

ISSN-0976-0245 (Print) • ISSN-0976-5506 (Electronic)

Volume 3 / Number 3 / July - September 2012

Indian Journal of Public Health Research & Development

An International Journal



Website: www.ijphrd.com

Indian Journal of Public Health Research & Development

Editor

Prof. (Dr) R. K. Sharma Dean (R&D), Saraswathi Institute of Medical Sciences, Panchsheel Nagar (UP) Formerly at All-India Institute of Medical Sciences New Delhi

Associate Editor

Dr Manish Chaturvedi Associate Professor, Community Medicine School of Medical Sciences and Research, Sharda University, Greater Noida

Assistent Editor (s)

Dr. M. Salman Shah, Aligarh Dr. Shailesh Gupta, Varanasi Dr. Sonu Goel, Chandigarh

Editorial Advisory Board

Dr. Gaurav Jain, O&M Dental Surgeon, Modi Nagar Prof. K. C. Singhal, Vice Chancellor, NIMS, Jaipur Prof. J. V. Singh, Community Medicine, Principal, M. N. M. C. (U.P.) Prof. A. K. Asthana, Anatomy, Principal, Subharti Medical College, Meerut Prof. P. D. Desai, Ob&Gy, Ex President FOGSI, Vadodara Prof. J. L. Agarwal, Physiology, Ghaziabad Prof. M.L.S. Prabha, Andhra Pradesh Prof. Pradeep Khanna, Community Medicine Rohtak Prof. G. S. Meena, Community Medicine, Delhi Dr. Anil Chaturvedi, General Medicine, Delhi Dr. Bhanu Pratap, International Federation of Red Cross and Red Crescent Societies Prof. S.D. Kandpal, Dehradun Prof. K.P.S. Malik, Meerut Prof. I. B. Sareen, Gurgaon Prof. V. K. Gupta, Greater Noida Prof. Ashutosh Niranjan, Greater Noida

Dr. P. S. Mittal, Ob&Gy, Gwalior Dr. Bhupendra Singh, Psychiatry, Banglore Dr. Sadhna Awasthi, Community Medicine, Haldwani Dr. Bhavna Pant, Community Medicine, Meerut Dr. V. Chavli, Orthopedics, Vadodara Dr. Shailendra Kumar, Community Medicine, Meerut Prof. G. Gupta, Community Medicine, Ghaziabad Dr. Sangeeta Kansal, Community Medicine, Varanasi

Print-ISSN: 0976-0245 Electronic - ISSN: 0976-5506, Frequency: Quaterly (Four issues per volume)

Indian Journal of Public Health Research & Development is a double blind peer reviewed international Journal. The frequency is half yearly. It deals with all aspects of Public Health including Community Medicine, Public Health, Epidemiology, Occupational Health, Environmental Hazards, Clinical Research, Public Health Laws and covers all medical specialities concerned with research and development for the masses. The journal strongly encourages reports of research carried out within Indian continent and south east Asia.

The journal has been assigned international standards (ISSN) serial number and is indexed with Index Copernicus (Poland). It is also brought to notice that the journal is being covered by many international databases. The journal is covered by EBSCO (USA), EMBASE (Scopus) database. The journal in now part of DST, CSIR and IJGC consortia.

Website: www.ijphrd.com

©All right reserved. The views and opinions expressed are of the authors and not of the Indian Journal of Public Health Research & Development. The journal does not guarantee directly or indirectly the quality or efcacy of any product or service featured in the advertisement in the journal, which are purely commercial.

Editor

Dr. R.K. Sharma First Floor, Punjab National Bank Building Main Dadri Road, Bhangel, NOIDA - 201 304, UTTAR PRADESH

Printed, published and owned by

Dr. R.K. Sharma
First Floor, Punjab National Bank Building
Main Dadri Road , Bhangel, NOIDA - 201 304, UTTAR PRADESH
1.7

Printed at

Thomson Press (India) Limited, B-315, Okhla Industrial Area Phase-I, New Delhi-110020

Published at

First Floor, Punjab National Bank Building Main Dadri Road , Bhangel, NOIDA - 201 304, UTTAR PRADESH

Scientifc Committee



Indian Journal of Public Health Research & Development

		www.ijphrd.com
	Contents	
Vo	Jume 03 Number 03 J	uly - September 2012
1.	A Study on Factors Associated With the Deterioration of Respiratory Function Among Male Textile Workers in Uttar Pradesh <i>Ajeet Jaiswal</i>	01
2.	Intraneural Cyst of Common Peroneal Nerve - A Case Report Amit Thakur, Rahul Agrawal, Romit Gupta, Vishali Kotwal, Manpreet Kaur Bajwa	
3.	Tele-Health Medical Diagnostics System with Integrated Electronic Health Records Anant R Koppar, V Sridhar	
4.	Evaluation of Vaginal versus Abdominal Hysterectomy for Non Prolapsed Uterus with Benign Gynecological Disease Agarwal Anjana, Krishna Hema	
5.	A potential Role of Apo B in the Risk Stratification of Type 2 Diabetic Patients with Dyslipidemia <i>C.A. Arathi, N. Prabhudeva, Geetha. J. P.</i>	a 18
6.	Finger Length Ratio (2D:4D) Correlates with Serum Testosterone and Athleticism in Women Arvind Malik	
7.	Sex Determination from Hand Dimensions in Indian Population Asha K.R., Lakshmi Prabha R., Gangadhar M. R.	
8.	A Prospective Randomised Study of Comparative Analysis of Conventional Simple Closure of Abdomen Versus Mesh Zipper Technique Closure In Exploratory Laparotomy for Peritonitis Satendra Kumar, Deepak Chatterjee, Ashutosh Niranjan	
9.	Nail the Culprit: Dental Identification Ayush Razdan Singh	
10.	. Ulcer Foot - Malignant Melanoma - A Case Report Basumitra Das, G. Parvathi, J.Chandralekha, K.V. Murali Mohan	
11.	A Study of Incidence of Fulminant Hepatic Failure in Paeditric Age Group and Knowledge, Behaviour & Attitude Regarding Etiology of Jaundice in Society Yogesh Kumar Goel, Daya Chand, Bhawna Kohli, Savitri Singh, Yogesh Rai	
12.	. Sero-Prevalence of Rubella infection Durgadas Naik, Aynom Tsegay	
13.	. Histomorphological Study of Malignant Tumours of Liver Deepti.P, Hiremath.S.S, H.R.Chandrashekhra, P.Shashikala, Anitha.M.R,Vijayanath.V	
14.	. Management of Bell's Palsy - A Case Study M.V.D.L. Sathyanarayana, D.Radhika, K.V.Murali Mohan	
15.	. Correlation Between Body Mass Index With Fasting Blood Sugar and Lipid Profile in Young Adult College Students of South Indian Population Maliyannar Itgappa, Vasudeva Murthy C.R., Siddappa K, Raju G M, Rajeshri S Patil	
16.	. Tympanoplasty with and without Mastoidectomy for Non-Cholesteatomatous Chronic Otitis Media <i>K. Mallikarjuna Swamy, Vasudeva Murthy C.R.</i>	
17.	. Prevalence of Abo and Rhesus Blood Groups Among Blood Donors Mallikarjuna Swamy C M, Basavaraj P B, Kavitha G U, Shashikala P	
18.	. A Study of Research Pattern of Postgraduate Dissertations in Pathology Manjula, Shashikala P, Padmamma S	
19.	. Site Distribution of Different Types of Cutaneous Malignancy Manjula A, Shashikala P, Sandhya Lakshmi B.N	

Π

20.	Comparison of Pain Response to Heel Prick and Venepuncture in Term Babies Manuprakash .S.K, K.Varadarajshenoy .K	80
21.	Clinical Crown Lengthening Procedure: Literature update and two Case Reports Mukhatar Ahmed Javali, Pawan Kumar	85
22.	Dentigerous cyst - A case report Murali Mohan. K.V, Radhika. D, Naga Sujatha. D, Ramesh. T	90
23.	Implant Considerations in Children and Adolescent Patients Narendra Padiyar, Srivatsa. G, Rajeswari.c.l	93
24.	Correlation of Apoptotic Index and Bcl-2 Protein with Other Histological Prognostic Factors in Prostate Carcinoma Malik P Nisha, Sharma V.K, Gupta Ankush	97
25.	Dental Care in Diabetes: A Review Neeta Misra, Anuj Maheshwari, Pradyumna Misra	102
26.	A Study of Variations in Origin, Length, Course and Termination of Internal Thoracic Artery Prakash KG, Rajkumar KR, Vijayakumar BJ, Amrappa N	106
27.	Efficacy of Computerized Tomography (CT) in Identification of Clinically Un-detectable Lymph Nodes in Patients with Oral Squamous Cell Carcinoma - An Observational Study Prasanth Venela, Priyanka Ammika, CH.Simhachalam Naidu	110
28.	Comprehensive knowledge on dental management of HIV/AIDS:	. 115
29.	Intraoral Periapical Radiographic changes of teeth and jaw bones in Chronic Renal Failure Patients - an Observational Case-control study <i>Prasanth Venela, Priyanka Ammika, Ch. Simhachalam Naidu, M. Shantan Reddy,</i> <i>Mallikarjun A, Farheen sultana pasha</i>	120
30.	Non Carious Cervical Lesion-A Multifactorial Etiology Case Report Prashanth Kumar, Kiran Murthy	125
31.	A study of epidemiology of rabies at Government medical college and hospital, Aurangabad Prashant V Solanke, Anand Kalaskar, J V Dixit	127
32.	Comparison of Surface Hardness of Two Resin Composites After Exposure to Three Different Staining Agents and Four Different Bleaching Agents-an in vitro Study <i>Prashanth Kumar, Kiran Murthy</i>	132
33.	Effect of Meditation on Parameters Related to Stress R.N.Raichur, S.B.Kulkarni, Rahul R R, Aruna G B	137
34.	Fibroid Uterus - A Clinical Profile Ramesh B H, Shashikala P, Doddikoppad M M, Mallikarjuna Swamy C M, Chandrasekhar H R	143
35.	Prevalence of Anemia and Impact of Weekly Iron-folic Acid Supplementation on School Children in Urban Slums of Haryana, India Ramesh Verma, Meena, Pardeep Khanna, Varun	147
36.	Study of the Third Head of Biceps Brachii Muscle in South Indian Population Ravi Kumar V., Siri A.M., Rajasekhar H.V., Vijayakumar B. Jatti	151
37.	BIND Syndrome—A Life Threatening Sequel to Kernicterus Mittal Sachin, V Pramod G, L Ashok	154
38.	A Correlative Study of Gingivitis and Alveolar Bone Loss in Multiparity Zia Sultana, Sabyasachi Saha	157
39.	A Rare Case of Duodenal Perforation in a Child - A Case Report Sanjay Karpoor, Rajeshwari Patil	161
40.	Hyalinizing Clear Cell Carcinoma - A Rare Parotid Tumor Sanjay Karpoor, Rajeshwari Patil	163
41.	Clinico pathological study of leprosy in Northern Karnataka Shadakshari Gadigi, Chetana.S.Gadigi, Vijayanath.V, Venkatesh.M. Patil, Rajeshwari.R.Surpur, Anitha.M.R	165
42.	Socio Demographic Profile of Organophosphorous Poisoning in A Tertiary Care Hospital L. Krishnamurthy, Rohini K., Shashikala P.	169

43.	Usage of Multimedia Learning Modules for Teaching Human Microanatomy and its Assessment Through Osca/Osce Shilpi Jain, Satyam Khare, A.K. Asthana, Bhavna Pant, R.K. Kaushik	172
44.	Clinico- Psychological Profile of Acne Vulgaris Among Professional Students Shitij Goel, Shelly Goel	175
45.	Adolescents: Friendship and health Soroor Parvizy, Fazlollah Ahmadi, Shoaleh Bigdeli	179
46.	Thermographic Imaging - A Brief Review G.V. Pramod, M S Shrinidhi	184
47.	Perceptions of Church Leaders on HIV and AIDS in Metro Manila, the Philippines Sibasis Hense, Anupama Sharma	191
48.	An Interventional Study on Knowledge, Attitude and Practice Regarding Oral Rehydration Therapy Among Mothers of Under Five Children in an Urban Slum of Rajahmundry, AP Sipra Komal Jena, Vijaya Kumar Uthakalla, Pradeep Sukla, Sapna S. Patil	196
49.	Adolescent Girls and Reproductive Health: An Interventional Study in a Slum of Vijayawada, AP Sipra Komal Jena, Vijaya Kumar Uthakalla, Sapna S. Patil	200
50.	Incidence and Microbial Profile of Chronic Suppurative Otitis Media at Gulbarga, Karnataka VinodKumar C.S., Yuvaraj B.Y., Bushara, Vandana Rathod, Shameem Sulatana, Praveen D.S., Suneeta Kalsurmath	205
51.	A Study of Prevalence, Risk Factors and Clinical Profile of Neonatal Hypoglycemia Srinivasa B S, Prasannakumar	210
52.	A Study of the Effectiveness of Ultrasound in Diagnosing Infantile Pyloric Stenosis Srivatsa. N.K, Manuprakash. S.K	214
53.	A Study of Transvaginal Ultrasound in Asherman syndrome Srivatsa.N.K, Srinivasa.B.S	217
54.	A two year prospective study of evaluation of the role of ultrasonography in various retinal and choroidal disorders in western Uttar Pradesh Subhash Chand Sylonia, Vikrant Sharma, A K Verma, Harsh Vardhan Singh	220
55.	Thyroid Disorders in Pregnant Women Suhrid Misra, Amitabha Das	223
56.	Aarskog Syndrome - A Rare Case Report Suma M.S., Pramod G.V., Sujatha G.P., Ashok L., M.L. Kulkarni	225
57.	Stem Cell Therapy and Tooth Regeneration - A Review	230
58.	Learning Style Preferences & Course Performance of Phase I Mbbs Students Jayasheela Bagi, R.N. Raichur, Venkappa. S. Mantur, S.S. Goudar	233
59.	Intubation in Maxillofacial Trauma-A Dilemma Vidya B, K.M.Cariappa, Abhay Kamath T	237
60.	Lingual Orthodontics: The Invisible Braces Vijay R Naik, Vikram Pai	241
61.	Prevalence Study of Overweight/Obesity Among Adults (20-60yrs) of Rural Field Practice Area of Osmania Medical College, Hyderabad Vijaya Kumar Uthakalla, K.J. kishore Kumar, Jena, K. Chandra Sekhar, Devidas Tondare, V. Dinesh Chandra	245
62.	Prevalence Study of Overweight/Obesity Among Adults (20-60yrs) of Urban Field Practice Area of Osmania Medical College, Hyderabad Vijaya Kumar Uthakalla, K.J. Kishore Kumar, S.K. Jena, Priyadarshini Matta, Vimala Thomas, Suryaprabha	250
63.	Age and Gender related changes in Body Composition in Pre-adolescents	254
64.	Incidence of parasitic infestations in rural school children of age 5-12 years at Davangere District, Karnataka Uma Kiran, Suneeta Kalasurmath, Basavarajappa K.G, VinodKumar C.S	258

A Study on Factors Associated With the Deterioration of Respiratory Function Among Male Textile Workers in Uttar Pradesh

Ajeet Jaiswal

Assistant Professor, Department of Anthropology, Pondicherry University, Puducherry-605014, India. E-mail: rpgajeet@gmail.com,

ABSTRACT

Background: The textile and clothing sector in India is changing as a result of developing technology and economic conditions, with businesses restructuring, modernizing, and adapting to technological change. Reduction of respiratory function among Textile workers in the textile industry has been observed since the 1970s. A contaminant of raw cotton fiber and cotton dust, has been proposed as a affecting agent that may deteriorate the respiratory function. Present study aimed to find the factors associated with the deterioration of respiratory function among male Textile workers.

Methods: The sample consisted of 253 men above the age of 20 years who had worked for at least 3 months in a textile factory and 245 male Non Textile workers of same area were studied. All the respondents were interviewed by a pretested questionnaire to gather information regarding the chest symptoms, certain personal characteristics and occupational history. Statistical analyses like Chi-square and odds ratio was done to determine the significant difference between male Textile Workers and male Non Textile Workers.

Results: Univariate analysis of the factors for symptomatic byssinosis showed that dusty worksites, heavy smoking and duration of service years were significant. Logistic regression analysis showed that working in the scouring (odds ratio 11.6), spinning (odds ratio 4.68) and weaving sections (odds ratio 2.8), heavy smoking (odds ratio 11.9) and more than 10 years of service (odds ratio 2.3) were independent significant risk factors.

Conclusion: Efforts to reduce dust levels in the working environment and to discourage smoking among textile workers need to be strengthened to minimize the risk of developing byssinosis.

Keywords: Occupational Health, Respiratory Functions, Textiles Workers, Working Environment

INTRODUCTION

Occupational diseases reflect health hazards brought on by exposure within the work environment. Due to lack of education, unaware of hazards of their occupations, general backwardness in the sanitation, poor nutrition and climatic proneness of this geographic region to epidemics aggravate their health hazards from work environment (Wang et.al, 2003).

In 1956, an epidemiological study in the cotton industry in the UK documented the occurrence of respiratory problems like byssinosis (Schilling, 1956) Worldwide, India is the second largest producer of textile goods, which account for 20% of the national industrial output. Twenty million workers are employed in 1175 cotton mills across the country, representing a major occupational group (Datt and Sundaram, 1998). Exposure to cotton dust has long been associated with adverse respiratory effects and diminished lung function, which is most evident as byssinosis, a chest tightness experienced by workers on the first day back after a weekend or vacation break (Schilling, 1956, Roach and Schilling, 1960; Berry et.al, 1973). Most studies indicate that adverse respiratory effects are more closely associated with cotton fiber dust. (Castellan et.al, 1987; Castellan et.al, 1987 and Kennedy et.al, 1987).

Respiratory problems have been reported from most countries with a textile industry. Its prevalence varied from 2% in the USA in the late 1970s, 4 to 63% in England in the late 1950s (Schilling, 1962). While the prevalence is decreasing in developed countries, it continues to be high in developing countries. In Turkey it was 14.2% in the past decade. (Altin et.al, 2002).

There are few studies on Respiratory problems among cotton textile workers in India (Murlidhar et.al, 1995; Mathur et.al, 1993; Barjatiya et.al,1990 and Jaiswal, 2004). Murlidhar et. al, examined 273 cotton textile workers in Mumbai and found that 54 of 179 workers (30%) in dusty sections and 16 of 94 workers (17%) in non-dusty sections had respiratory problems. They also developed a questionnaire for the assessment of respiratory problems (Murlidhar et.al, 1995). In Uttar Pradesh the textile industry is more than a century old but no study has assessed the magnitude of or the risk factors for respiratory problems. Present paper carried out a case–control study to find out the risk factors associated with the occurrence of respiratory problems.

SUBJECTS AND METHODS

Present paper included all men, 20-49 years of age who had been working in the factory for at least more than 3 months. The details of the sample studied are shown in Table1. The analysis was done for 253 subjects-60 from the spinning section, 35 from the Scouring section 69 from the weaving section and 89 from the non-dusty sections. Present paper detected 95 cases of respiratory problems, of which 32 had associated chest pain with cough. For the risk factor analysis, 67 cases with only symptomatic respiratory problems were included. To choose controls a population of workers not working in Textile Industry was selected (n = 245). The Workers and controls (Nonworkers) were matched for age, sex and socio economic status. Textile Workers and controls were divided into three age groups, mainly 20-29 years, 30-39 years and 40-49 years. Subjects were chosen by pupusive stratified sampling technique.

Total workers in the factory	1650
Excluded	685: Female Workers in the factory, those <20 years of age and with a duration of exposure <3 months.
Remaining workers,	965
26% of this sample were taken	253
Distribution of this sample in different sections of the factory	Spinning 60, Scouring 35, Weaving 69, Non-dusty 89.
Respiratory Problems	99
No Respiratory Problems	154
Excluded because of chronic bronchitis	22
Control population	245
Mean age of TW males	31.98
Mean age of NTW males	32.48

 Table 1. Distribution of study sample

All the sampled individuals were interviewed with the help of an interview schedule prepared by adopting the standard Questionnaire (Florey and Leeder, 1982) and the Byssinosis Questionnaire used by Murlidhar et. al, (1995). Before the interview, an informed consent was obtained from each worker by explaining the nature of the study and the confidentiality of the information required.

Information was collected on age, smoking behaviour, occupation, overcrowding and fuel used for cooking at home. Weight and Height was accurately recorded, using standard techniques (Weiner and Lourie, 1981). For the type of fuel used, the predominant fuel used over the past year was considered. Those smoking >10 cigarettes or bidis per day for the last 20 years or more were considered heavy smokers (smoking index of 20 pack-years). Overcrowding was classified according to the number of persons per room. Pulmonary function tests done for all the subjects included forced vital capacity (FVC), forced expiratory volume in the first second (FEV1.0) and FEV1.0/FVC. Three readings were taken after explaining and demonstrating the test procedure. The best of three readings was considered for analysis. The predicted value of FEV1.0 for the concerned population was calculated and 80% of the predicted value determined.

Statistical analysis

The data were analysed by SPSS (Statistical Package for Social Sciences) version 13.0. Chi-square and odds ratios (ORs) with 95% confidence intervals (CI) were calculated for univariate analysis. Subsequently, the significant factors on univariate analysis were entered into a logistic regression model and the adjusted ORs with 95% CI obtained. Independent sample t-test was used for the analysis of pulmonary function tests.

RESULTS

The study population consisted of 99 cases and 245 controls. The socioeconomic status of all the workers was similar. Univariate analysis of the risk factors for respiratory problems showed that dusty worksites such as the spinning, scouring and weaving sections, heavy smoking and duration of service >10 years (Table 2) were significant. Body mass index (BMI), fuels used for cooking and overcrowding were not found to be statistically significant.

A logistic regression analysis (backward step-wise) showed that dusty worksites such as the spinning, carding and weaving sections, heavy smoking and duration of service >10 years were independent significant risk factors. Workers in the scouring sections had 11.6 times (95% CI: 1.9, 19.6), spinning sections

Factors Work site	Textile Wokers (%) (n=253)	Respiratory Problems (%)	Controls (%)	Chi-square	Odds ratio
	(n=99)	(n=245)		(95% CI)	
Dusty section	65.2	78.5	88.7	6.5*	3.7 (1.3, 10.9)
Non-dusty section	34.8	21.5	11.3		1
Sections					
Scouring	22.5	24.5	11.0	11.0*	11.6 (1.9, 19.6)
Spinning	14.2	12.8	12.7	4.68 (1.9, 21.3)	
Weaving	25.7	54.7	63.0	5.0*	2.8 (1.1, 9.7)
Non-dusty	37.6	7.0	13.3	1	
Smoking					
Heavy smokers	74.6	68.6	44.4	11.5*	11.9 (1.7, 19.5)
Others	22.6	31.4	55.6	1	
Duration of service					
>10 years	65.0	72.0	36.2	5.3*	2.3 (1.08, 5.8)
<10 years	35.0	28.0	63.8	1	
Body mass index					
>25	17.5	19.0	5.8	1.6	1.3 (0.7, 3.2)
<25	82.5	91.0	94.2	1	
Fuel used for cooking					
Wood and kerosene	49.8	66.0	53.9	1.7	0.5 (0.5, 2.8)
Gas	50.2	44.0	46.1	1	
Overcrowding					
Present	73.8	60.7	65.1	0.6	0.9 (0.5, 2.3)
Absent	26.2	39.3	34.9	1	

Table 2. Univariate analysis of risk factors for respiratory proble	ms
---	----

*p<0.05

had 4.68 times (95% CI: 1.9, 19.6) and those in the weaving section had 2.8 times (95% CI: 1.1, 3.6) higher risk of developing respiratory problems compared with those working in the non-dusty sections. Workers with a smoking index of >20 pack-years (heavy smokers) had a 11.9 times (95% CI: 1.7, 19.5) higher risk for respiratory problems. Also, workers with a duration of service >10 years had a 3-fold (95% CI: 1.1, 5.6) higher risk compared with those with <10 years of service. Analysis of pulmonary function tests showed that there was a marginal but statistically insignificant difference in all the para-meters between the cases and controls (Table 3).

Table 3. A	nalysis	of Pulmona	ry function test
------------	---------	------------	------------------

Test	Mean	p value*		
Forced vital capacity (FVC) (lit.)				
Cases	2.31	1.8*		
Controls	3.61			
Forced expiratory volume in one second (FEV 1.0) (lit.)				
Cases	2.32	1.7*		
Controls	2.67			
FEV 1.0/FVC (%)				
Cases	87.5	0.8		
Controls	82.4			

* Independent sample t-test p<0.05 considered significant

DISCUSSION

The textiles sector contains many hazards and risks to workers, ranging from exposure to noise and dangerous substances, to manual handling and working with dangerous machinery. Each processing stage - from the production of materials to the manufacturing, finishing, colouring and packaging poses risks for workers, and some of these are particularly dangerous for women's health.

This short document cannot cover all the hazards and risks in all the parts of the textiles sector, but highlights some of the key issues, particularly to women workers, and how worker safety and health can be managed. Though cotton dust has been established as the causative agent for respiratory problems, it is important to determine the other risk factors associated with the occurrence of the disease so as to implement comprehensive preventive measures.

Present paper used the WHO definition of respiratory problems and excluded all those who had chronic bronchitis. Kamath et. al, have reported that chronic bronchitis is a separate entity among cotton textile mill workers (Kamath et.al,1981). Gupta (1969) in a review of respiratory problems found that many studies did not exclude patients with chronic bronchitis and this might affect the results.

In the past decade, studies from Turkey and China have shown that dust levels above the recommended values are associated with a high prevalence of respiratory problems (Altin et.al, 2002 and Christiani et.al, 2001). The risk factors identified in our study such as working in the scouring, spinning and weaving sections, long exposure and heavy smoking have been reported by others as well. A study from France showed an OR of 7.3 for an exposure of 20 years compared to an OR of 2.8 for an exposure of 10 years in our study. Similarly, they had an OR of 3.7 for the dustiest sections compared with 11.0, 4.7 and 2.1 found in our study for the scouring, spinning and weaving sections, respectively. The French study did not find any association with smoking though our study did (Massin et.al, 1991). A study from Lancashire, UK reported that the prevalence of respiratory problems like byssinotic symptoms was significantly related to years worked in the cotton industry, exposure to dust, quality of cotton used, work area, ethnic origin and smoking habits (Cinkotai et.al, 1988). However, another study from Lancashire showed that byssinosis was rare among workers engaged in cotton weaving (Raza et.al, 1999). In a study from Kanpur, only dustiness and length of exposure were important contributory factors to the occurrence of respiratory problems. The risk of respiratory problems among workers in the card room, blow room and waste plant sections and those who had an exposure of >5 years was nearly 3 times higher compared to workers in other sections of the mill and or those with <5 years of exposure (Mathur et.al, 1993). Besides the abovementioned studies, there are also descriptive and comparative studies, in which some attempt has been made to identify the risk factors. In a study from Kishangarh, India it was reported that a majority of workers had developed the disease after 16 years of exposure, unlike in our study where the risk was high among those with 10 years of exposure. The disease was more common among smokers and severe among those who were consuming 15 pack-years of cigarette/ bidis, (Barjatiya, 1990) comparable with our results.

This variation of results may be due to varying definitions of the disease. In another study from Mumbai, it is reported that the incidence of byssinosis was 30% among workers in dusty departments such as spinning, winding and weaving, compared with 17% in those working in the less dusty sections. Similarly, our observation of exposure of 10 years (OR = 2.8) as a risk factor is comparable with the finding of the Mumbai study in which 45% of the workers who had > 20 years of service had respiratory problems compared with 24% among those who had < 10 years of service (Murlidhar et.al, 1995).

Pulmonary functions showed a decline in the workers having respiratory problems, but it was not statistically significant. Other studies have reported either an insignificant decline in pulmonary functions or a decline independent of the symptoms of respiratory problems. A study from California analysed the acute effect of cotton gin environment on lung functions and found no correlation between the symptoms of respiratory problems and objective decrease in FEV1.0 (Larson et.al, 1981). The same researchers conducted a prospective, longitudinal study over a period of 4 years and reported an insignificant decline of FEV1.0, FEV1.0 /FVC and FEF (forced expiratory flow) 25%-75%. They failed to find any detrimental effect of the cotton gin environment on the rate of decline and reported the decline to be independent of the symptoms of respiratory problems (Larson and Barman, 1989). In a study from France, only peak expiratory flow was taken into consideration and the absence of a constant link between Monday tightness and drop of peak expiratory flow was reported (Massin et.al, 1991). In textile industries in north Portugal, workers exposed to cotton fibres in spinning areas had the highest prevalence of symptoms and reduction of the FEV1.0. There were no cases of respiratory problems among workers in the weaving areas. Smoking habits were related to a reduction in FEV1.0 and severity of respiratory illness but not to the presence of byssinosis (Da Costa et.al, 1998). A 15-year longitudinal study from Shanghai, China reported that cotton workers had small, but significantly greater, adjusted annual declines in FEV1.0. and FVC than did silk workers. Years worked in cotton mills, high level of exposure to endotoxins, and across-shift drops in FEV 1.0. were found to be significant determinants of a longitudinal change in FEV 1.0., after controlling for appropriate confounders. Moreover, there were statistically significant associations between excessive decrease in FEV 1.0. and respiratory problems, chest tightness at work and chronic bronchitis in cotton workers. It appears that longitudinal studies of 10-15 years' duration may be required to study the effect of respiratory problems on lung functions (Christiani et.al, 2001). The results of our study confirm the findings of some previous studies. There is a need for textile mills to reduce the dust levels in the scouring, spinning and weaving sections. Workers should be encouraged to use protective measures such as face-masks. Since heavy smoking is a risk factor for respiratory problems, measures should be taken to reduce smoking among textile workers. Rotating workers from dusty to nondusty sections on a regular basis might reduce the length of exposure to higher dust levels, thereby reducing the risk.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Authors is thankful to Textile Workers, their families and factory Owners for their cooperation. I am especially grateful for the assistance and encouragement of my supervisor Prof. A.K. Kapoor and co-supervisor Prof. Satwanti Kapoor and the medical professional of BHU for their help during research. The author is also thankful to UGC for giving me financial assistance to carry out the present work.

REFERENCES

- 1. Altin R, Ozkurt S, Fisekci F, Cimrin AH, Zencir M, Sevinc C. (2002) Prevalence of byssinosis and respiratory symptoms among cotton mill workers. Respiration; 69: 52-56.
- Barjatiya MK, Mathur RN, Swaroop A. (1990) Byssinosis in cotton textile workers of Kishangarh. Indian J Chest Dis Allied Sci; 32: 215-223.
- Berry G, McKerrow C, Molyneux M, Rossiter C, Tombleson J. (1973) A study of the acute and chronic changes in ventilatory capacity of workers in Lancashire cotton mills. Br J Ind Med; 30: 25-36.
- 4. Castellan R, Olenchock S, Hankinson J, Millner P, Cocke J, Bragg C, (1984) Acute bronchoconstriction induced by cotton dust: dose-related responses to endotoxin and other dust factors. Ann Intern Med; 101: 157-163.
- Castellan R, Olenchock S, Kinsley K, Hankinson J. (1987) Inhaled endotoxin and decreased spirometric values. N Engl J Med; 317: 605-610.
- Christiani DC, Wang XR, Pan LD, Zhang HX, Sun BX, Dai H, (2001) Longitudinal changes in pulmonary function and respiratory symptoms in cotton textile workers: A 15 year follow-up study. Am J Respir Crit Care Med; 163: 847-853.
- Cinkotai FF, Rigby A, Pickering CA, Seaborn D, Faragher E. (1988) Recent trends in the prevalence of byssinotic symptoms in the Lancashire textile industry. Br J Ind Med; 45: 782-789.
- Da Costa JT, Barros H, Macedo JA, Ribeiro H, Mayan O, Pinto AS. (1998)Prevalence of respiratory diseases in the textile industry: Relation with dust levels. Acta Med Port; 11: 301-309.
- 9. Datt R., Sundaram K.P.M. (1998) Indian economy. New Delhi, S. Chand, 602.
- 10. Florey CV, Leeder SR. (1982) Methods for cohort studies of chronic airflow limitation. Copenhagen: World Health Organization.
- 11. Gupta MN. (1969) Review of byssinosis in India. Indian J Med Res; 57: 1776-1789.

- 12. Jaiswal, A. (2004) Respiratory Efficiency as Affected by Exposure to Textile Dust-Health Status Evaluation of Textile Workers of District Varanasi, Utter Pradesh. Gene, Environment and Health, Delhi: 135-162.
- 13. Kamath SR, Kamath GR, Salpekar VY, Lobo E. (1981) Distinguishing byssinosis from chronic obstructive pulmonary disease: Results of a prospective five-year study of cotton mill workers in India. Am Rev Respir Dis; 124: 31-40.
- 14. Kennedy S, Christiani D, Eisen E, Wegman D, Greaves I, Olenchock S, (1987) Cotton dust and endotoxin exposure-response relationships in cotton textile workers. Am Rev Respir Dis; 135: 194-200.
- 15. Larson RK, Barman ML, Smith DW, Nicol L. (1981) Study of respiratory effect of short and long term cotton gin exposure. Chest; 79: 228-258.
- Larson RK, Barman ML. (1989) A longitudinal study of pulmonary function in cotton gin workers in the San Joaquin Valley. Chest; 96: 819-823.
- 17. Massin N, Moulin JJ, Wild P, Meyer-Bisch C, Mur JM. (1991) A study of the prevalence of acute respiratory disorders among workers in the textile industry. Int Arch Occup Environ Health; 62: 555-560.
- 18. Mathur N, Gupta BN, Rastogi SK. (1993) Multivariate analysis of byssinosis risk assessment. Indian J Chest Dis Allied Sci; 35: 185-190.
- 19. Murlidhar V, Murlidhar VJ, Kanhere V. (1995) Byssinosis in a Bombay textile mill. Natl Med J India; 8: 204-207.
- 20. Raza SN, Fletcher AM, Pickering CA, Niven RM, Faragher EB. (1999) Respiratory symptoms in Lancashire textile workers. Occup Environ Med; 56: 514-19.
- 21. Roach S, Schilling RA (1960) clinical and environmental study of byssinosis in the Lancashire cotton industry. Br J Ind Med; 7: 1-9.
- 22. Schilling RSF (1956) Byssinosis in cotton and other textile workers. Lancet; 2: 261-265.
- 23. Schilling RSF(1962). Worldwide byssinosis. BMJ; 11: 781-782.
- Wang, X. R., Eisen, E.A., Zhang, H. X., Sun, B. X., Dai, H.L., Pan, L.D., Wegman, D.H., Olenchock, S.A., Christiani, D.C. (2003) Respiratory symptoms and cotton dust exposure; Results of 15 year follow up observation; occupational and Environmental Medicine, 60, 935-941.
- 25. Weiner, J. S., Lourie, J. A. (1981) Human Biology: A Guide to Field Methods. International Biological Programme, IBP No.9. Marylebone London NW.

Intraneural Cyst of Common Peroneal Nerve - A Case Report

*Amit Thakur, *Rahul Agrawal, *Romit Gupta, **Vishali Kotwal, ***Manpreet Kaur Bajwa

*Assistant Professor, ***Senior Resident Department of Orthopaedics, **Assistant Professor of Medicine. G.G.S.Medical College & Hospital (BFUHS), Faridkot, Punjab

ABSTRACT

Intraneural cyst of common peroneal nerve is a rare case of foot drop. A patient presented with swelling on the lateral aspect over the head of fibula and foot drop. The patient had difficulty in walking. Case was investigated. Radiographs revealed no abnormality but MRI was diagnostic. Surgery was done with excision of the cyst and marsupalization of common peroneal nerve. The patient was then followed-up with improvement in dorsiflexion of foot and improved walking over subsequent follow-ups.

Keywords: Intraneural, swelling, dorsiflexion.

INTRODUCTION

Acute injury to the peroneal nerve is a frequent occurrence due to trauma, surgery or postural entrapment of the nerve at the fibular head. Non-traumatic causes are rare and commonly involve tumors, intraneural ganglia, hematoma or cysts^{2,3}.

The peroneal nerve branches from the sciatic nerve at the popliteal groove, passes over the lateral head of gastrocnemius muscle lateral to the groove; having a very superficial route in the 4 cm long area below the knee and around the fibular head and neck, the nerve is only protected by the skin and superficial fascia. It passes through a fascial fibrous arch surrounded by the long peroneal muscle and the intermuscular septum. In the peroneal nerve mononeuropathy frequently encountered in the lower extremity, the nerve is injured commonly in this 4 cm long area where it shows a superficial location or is entrapped when the fibrous arch is thickened, narrowing the tunnel the nerve passes through^{1,3,5}.

Correspondence:

Dr. Amit Thakur, M.S (Ortho), Assistant Professor Department of Orthopaedics G.G.S.Medical College & Hospital (BFUHS) Faridkot, Punjab Email: senteamit@msn.com

CASE REPORT

A sixteen-year old adolescent male presented with foot drop and a small swelling over the head of the fibula on the right side for the past three months. There was no history of trauma, surgery or abnormal posture.

About three months back the patient noticed a small swelling on the lateral aspect over the head of fibula. The swelling increased slowly for the first two months and had remained static for the past one month. Initially he complained of pain in the leg as well as tingling sensation. He had some difficulty in walking and clumsiness of foot which progressed to foot drop.

On examination, the patient had a high-stepping gait. There was atrophy of the leg muscles as well as foot. The patient was unable to dorsiflexion the foot (Fig-I). On neurological examination, there was decreased sensation over the leg and dorsum of foot in the distribution of common peroneal nerve.

There was a small swelling about the size of a coin over the head of fibula on right side (Fig-2). The swelling was non-tender but tapping over the swelling revealed a tingling sensation in the leg. The consistency was soft and margins were well defined.

The case was investigated. The x-ray of the leg and foot revealed no abnormality. Fine needle aspiration

cytology of the swelling revealed some cystic material. But the diagnosis was confirmed on MRI which revealed an intraneural cyst of common peroneal nerve as the cause of foot drop (Fig-3). Surgery was carried out with excision of cyst and marsupalization of common peroneal nerve.Patient was followed-up at monthly intervals. In the first few follow-ups, there was slight dorsiflexion of the toes and in the subsequent follow-up there was increased dorsiflexion of foot. Patient now can dorsiflex the foot against gravity and is still under regular follow-up [Fig-4]



Fig. 1. Photograph of patient showing foot drop



Fig. 2. Swelling over head of fibula



Fig. 3. MRI showing intraneural cyst of peroneal nerve



Fig. 4. Follow up showing partial recovery of dorsiflexion

DISCUSSION

Intraneural cysts are rare and benign nerve tumors. There are commonly reported in the legs mostly affecting the common peroneal nerve at the neck of fibula. Lesions may occur in motor or sensory nerves but mostly in mixed nerves. Although they usually affect the ulnar nerve at the elbow, cysts have also been reported at the following sites: (i) the posterior interosseus nerve at the level of brachioradialis; (ii) the median nerve at the level of pronator teres and in the carpal tunnel; (iii) the ulnar nerve in Guyon's canal and at the level of the deep palmar aponeurosis; (iv) the digital nerves and their dorsal branch^{4,6,7}.

Intraneural cysts often affect middle-aged men and usually present with pain or the symptoms of nerve compression. The appearance of clinical signs after exertion is characteristic. A history of acute minor trauma is often noted. The pain may be due to intracystic bleeding. Soon after neurological deficit appears in the corresponding nerve territory and the pain settles briefly. The time between the onset of symptoms and diagnosis varies from 1-2 months to 2 years^{1,8,9}.

Pain is usually intermittent and a positive Tinel's sign is uncommon. A swelling or nodule on the course of the nerve may be found. A motor deficit is usually present with sensory change in 50%. Plain radiographs are usually normal. Although ultrasound can identify the location and nature of the cyst, MRI is diagnostic. It can also assess the state of the nerve. MRI allows differentiation between an adjacent articular synovial cyst and a cystic schwannoma⁶.

Treatment is always surgical. Nerve resection and grafting must not be performed even if the lesions appear to be extensive. It is essential to maintain nerve continuity, first by incision and drainage of the contents of the cyst after epineurotomy, then by division of the neighbouring fibro muscular arch. An exoneurolysis is also performed. Complete resection of the cyst is dangerous if not impossible. There is no plane of dissection between the tumor and the adjacent fascias. The contents of the cyst are similar to those of synovial cyst. The intracystic liquid is a cellular mucopolysacchandle². The cystic wall has a fibro lamellar pattern and contains some inflammatory cells.

For long-standing tumors, the mean time to neurological recovery which occurs in most cases is ten months. Pain disappears rapidly after decompression and recovery occurs within a few months. Recurrences are rare. Long-term follow-up should include clinical examination and MRI, if necessary.

The pathogenesis remains controversial. The tumor is generally caused by mucoid degeneration of fibrous tissues or metaplasia of neural connective tissue after repeated micro trauma of the nerve within a confined space. Some have proposed that intraneural cysts originate in embryonic, ectopic, synovial fluid and that the cystic masses develop secondarily.

The intraneural cyst of common peroneal nerve is rare and benign tumor which remains an enigma. Successful surgical treatment depends upon early diagnosis before nerve damage has occurred^{5,9}. Our principal concern is the risk of recurrences, a worry which warrants long-term review.

REFERENCES

- Ramelli GP, Nagy L, Mathis J. Ganglion cyst of the peroneal nerve: a differential diagnosis of peroneal nerve entrapment neuropathy. Eur Neurol 1999; 41: 56-58.
- Stack RE, Bianco AJ. Compression of the common peroneal nerve by ganglion cysts : report of nine cases. J Bone Joint Surg (Br) 1965; 47B : 773-778.
- Harbaugh KS, Tiel RC, Kline DG. Ganglion cyst involvement of peripheral nerves. J Neurosurg 1997; 87: 403-408.
- 4. Ozturk K, Akman S, Erture E, Aksoy B. A case of an intraneural ganglion cyst in the peroneal nerve resulting in drop foot (Articular in Turkish). Acta Orthop Traumatol Turc 2000; 34 : 426-429.
- Parkes A. Intraneural ganglion of the lateral popliteal nerve. J Bone Joint Surg (Br) 1961; 43B: 784-790.
- Stull MA, Moster RP, Kransdorf MJ, Bogumill GP. Magnetic resonance appearance of peripheral nerve sheath tumours. Skeletal Radiol 1991; 20: 9-14.
- Dubuisson AS, Stevenaert A. Recurrent ganglion cyst of the peroneal nerve : radiological and operative observations case report. J Neurosurg 1996; 84: 280-283.
- Fabre T, Piton C, Andre D, Lasseur F. Peroneal nerve entrapment. J Bone Joint Surg (Am) 1998; 80: 47-53.
- Gchik JY, Alnot O, Silbermann Hoffman. Intraneural mucoid pseudocysts, a report of ten cases. J Bone Joint Surg (Br) 2001; 83B: 1020-1022.

Tele-Health Medical Diagnostics System with Integrated Electronic Health Records

Anant R Koppar, V Sridhar

P E T Research Center, Mysore University, Karnataka

ABSTRACT

Providing affordable and quality Education and Healthcare are the current challenges in the developing and densely populated countries, such as India and China. The Healthcare Delivery Systems are overloaded because of the inefficient expensive systems, processes and resources. Use of Information Technology in Healthcare, especially a Tele-health medical diagnostics system, can potentially improve healthcare. The system developed offers medical diagnostic hardware like Microscope and Vital Signs Monitor with the diagnostic software. The software consists of modules for Electronic Health Record and Disease Identification. The software has the ability to automatically identify the vital parameters and transmit the parameters to the remote doctor through broadband or wireless connectivity. The system offers simplicity and cost efficiency making it an ideal solution for use in rural areas. Currently the system is being used at few locations in India on a pilot basis and the results are very encouraging.

INTRODUCTION

The healthcare industry in India which comprises hospital and allied sectors is projected to grow 23 per cent per annum to touch US\$ 77 billion by 2012 from the current estimated size of US\$ 35 billion (₹1610 Billion) in 2009. The central and state governments are responsible for the provision of primary healthcare in the country. A spending of 1% of the GDP (effectively about Rs. 1050 per capita) on public health is not only dismally low but most of the expenditure is on staff salaries leaving little for facilities, drugs and other consumables. This is very low compared to countries like US - 16%, UK - 7.8%, Germany - 10.8%, France -10.4% and Japan - 8%¹. Though there is a large network of public primary care facilities in India for the healthcare delivery with numerous secondary and tertiary care facilities, the effectiveness of healthcare delivery is questionable in the public primary care facilities. Building better forward and backward linkages through a superior referral system would cause the secondary and tertiary care facilities to be more manageable and prevent them from being over burdened. Healthcare is also people / professional driven and depends on the competencies of the professional staff rather than the physical infrastructure. But this does not undermine the importance of physical infrastructure needed at many of the care centers.

In a large, overpopulated country like India with its complex social structure and economic extremes, the effect on health system is multifold². Government supported healthcare delivery follows a three tier system and is the primary responsibility of each state. Majority of the hospitals in the country are rooted in manual processes, which are unable to cope with the volume of data generated³. According to WHO, technologies form the backbone of the services to prevent, diagnose and treat illness and disease⁴. Rural India consists of approximately 638,000 villages inhabited by more than 740 million individuals. A network of government-owned and operated subcenters, primary health centers (PHCs) and community health centers (CHCs) is designed to deliver primary health care to rural folks. Sub-centre is the first contact point between the community and the primary health care system. Current norms require one sub-centre per 5,000 persons, one PHC per 30,000 people and one CHC per 120,000 people in the plains. Smaller populations qualify for each of these centers in the tribal and hilly areas. Each PHC serves as a referral unit to six sub-centers and each CHC to four PHCs. A PHC has four to six beds and performs curative, preventive and family welfare services. PHCs in India service more than 30,000 people each without a telephone connection and state quota of medicines of less that US\$ 0.10 a year per person in their jurisdiction area⁵.

This extremely poor infrastructure in terms of communication, patient care and human resources is a serious bottleneck to attempts at reforms since people are working everyday with little incentives, time or resources to try and embrace new technologies and new approaches to healthcare⁵. In addition, the inefficient use of resources adds to the problems in India's healthcare delivery mechanism⁶. Unequal distribution of resources is a reflection of this inequality and adversely affects the health of under-privileged population. The under-privileged are unable to access the healthcare due to geographical, social, economic or gender related distances². Reliable information and effective communication are crucial elements in public health practices. The use of appropriate technologies can increase the quality and the reach of both information and communication⁷. An implementation of the system demonstrated that electronic summary utilization data could provide daily information that would support the improvement of health care outcomes and efficiency8. It was also shown in this study that this approach could be implemented in a simple, direct manner with minimal expenses. The benchmark suggests that well functioning health centers can take care of the vast majority of patients' problems⁹.

After decades of traversing a snail-like adoption curve, computerization is on the verge of altering medical practice fundamentally, partly because of the quality revolution. The labor costs of retrieving and reviewing medical records to gather the required quality data and the ineffectiveness of non-systemsbased solutions for improving performance are driving institutions to recognize the need to track clinical processes and outcomes and to prompt clinicians via computerized systems¹⁰. A further study determined that there is a need to create viable IT-based services, among others, with regard to micro-enterprises in rural areas¹¹. Barriers to implementation of IT in Healthcare Delivery can be classified as situational barriers (including time and financial concerns), cognitive and/ or physical barriers (including users' physical disabilities and insufficient computer skills), liability barriers (including confidentiality concerns), and knowledge and attitudinal barriers¹².

Healthcare Information and Management Systems Society (HIMSS) under the aegis of its Global Enterprise Task force headed by Dr. Steve Arnold was asked to investigate efforts to implement the EHR in a host of countries around the world¹³. The countries covered by this study were Netherlands, Greece, England, Wales, Denmark, Norway, India, New Zealand, Malaysia, Hong Kong, Singapore, Israel, Canada and USA. According to this study local and nationwide efforts to realize EHR systems were intermittently reported. In India, the IT adoption in Healthcare is estimated to be only five percent¹³. To gain insight into the functioning of the healthcare centers with respect to use of information technology and their effectiveness in healthcare delivery, a survey was done. This survey was undertaken in Gadag and Bagalkot districts to assess the ground realities in healthcare centers by evaluating various parameters that would influence the quality of healthcare delivery.

MATERIAL AND METHODS

The details of the district healthcare facilities - the District Hospitals (DH), Taluk Hospitals (TH), Community Healthcare Centers (CHC), Primary Healthcare Centers (PHC), Primary Healthcare Units and National Leprosy Control Center (NLCC) - were obtained from the District Health Department. Out of the total 107 facilities, 83 facilities participated in the assessment that accounts to 77.6 % of assessment coverage.

A questionnaire consisting of a set of 86 questions related to patient load, medical record formats, hospital infrastructure and staffing information was used for this assessment. Responses to the questionnaire were tabulated. The responses were used to depict the results and draw inferences.

RESULTS OF THE SURVEY

On an average 70 patients per day use the healthcare centers. The variance in this number is significant with some interior HCs having less than 10 patients per day visiting them and more than 100 patients per day visiting the THs. The average Inpatient to Outpatient ratio is 1:10, with the average duration of stay of inpatients being 2-3 days. The hospitals surveyed had an average of 10 beds for inpatients in the hospital. Each HC, on an average has two full-time doctors and between 11-20 additional employees. The average age range of full time doctors working in these HC is 30-35 years. HCs reportedly have an average of 15 paramedical staff. Quality of healthcare depends on the efficiency of the doctors as they have to attend to at least 35 patients on an average daily. Use of health information technologies has the potential to improve.

Patient Records

All the HCs surveyed used paper to maintain patient medical records and spent a lot of efforts (time/ money) on maintenance.

Quality of Care

As many as 49 out of 83 HCs responded that they fell far behind on the use of proper technology in treating patients. They also felt that they could have treated patients better if they had access to quicker and more accurate information.

Patient Referrals

Each HC refers 5 to 10 patients to other HCs every month. Patients are referred from one HC to another predominantly (77%) by using paper documents and the rest are referred over telephone. In the case of referral based on paper documents, the quality of information flow depended on the past history of the patient and the respondents further conveyed that an accurate record of patient history was not available in most of the cases. In the case of telephone referral, the quality of referral is based on the doctor's knowledge about patient medical history and also depends on the extent of time spent on phone to provide the history. As doctors keep treating on an average of 70 patients per day, it will be difficult to convey accurate diagnostic information during the referral. In both cases, the quality of referral suffers leading to repetition of the same treatment or ineffective treatment at the secondary Healthcare center. This reduces the quality of Healthcare and increases the cost of treatment.

Improvement of Operating Efficiency

Of the total 83 respondents, 69 respondents (83%) felt that implementing an IT Solution would improve Patient Care and Administration. While most respondents agreed that an IT solution promises more results than it can deliver, on an interesting note, most respondents also thought that implementation of an IT solution would affect all stakeholders within the HC.

TELE-HEALTH MEDICAL DIAGNOSTICS SYSTEM

From the literature survey, it is evident that there is very less work done to increase the effectiveness of the Healthcare Delivery System in Rural India. There is a need for systematic evaluation of the requirements and conditions of Rural India for better and affordable Healthcare. The use of Information Technology in this area will help.

The system developed is a tele-health medical diagnostic system which will be useful in mitigating the current issues and challenges. The solution comprising of both hardware and software addresses the pressing needs of today like introducing Electronic Health Records and helping control Disease Outbreak. The system enables multi-point, multi-referral consultation and one to one consultation between patient and doctor as well as doctor and doctor.

Hardware

The hardware is packaged into a "box" powered by an Intel Processor and Solar Panel / UPS as shown in Fig.1

Details of Hardware

- Intel Embedded Processor (Dual Core)
- Keyboard / Mouse / Web-Cam
- Vital Signs Monitor
- Wireless Connectivity
- Microscope with Camera
- Powered by Solar Panel/UPS



Software

The Software has the following modules:

Medical Diagnostics Kit

This is a software with necessary interfaces and algorithms to diagnose disease conditions. Capturing the patient symptoms, providing differential diagnosis, measurement of vital signs and analyzing patient samples for various diseases are the key functions of this software.

- The patient is registered during the first visit and the symptoms are recorded.
- Integrated Vital Signs Monitor: A single point capturing of vital signs of a patient like body temperature, non-invasive blood pressure (NIBP), pulse rate, SPO2, electro cardiogram (ECG) and heart rate. These vital signs are captured and automatically uploaded to the patient electronic health record.
 - The ECG can be viewed as a 3/5 channel waveform with 13 arrhythmia classification. The software will be able to calculate Heart Rate, identify and judge lead off and detect ST segment. The depressed or elevated ST segment helps in the diagnosis of ventricular ischemia or hypoxia.
 - Non-Invasive Blood Pressure (NIBP) can be measured in different modes from Neonatal to Adult mode. Manual, Automatic, Continuous measurement modes can also be used.

Calibration and Leakage air checking can be performed.

- The pulse oximeter (SPO2) provides the noninvasive measurement of arterial blood oxygen saturation and pulse rate. Measurement modes can be set from neonatal to adult. It is a single channel plethysmogram.
- Respiration rate is calculated with one channel respiration waveform and provides apnea alarm.
- Temperature data can be obtained from two channels.

•

- Integrated Disease Identification using Image Processing & analyzing algorithms: This module provides a cost effective means to diagnose disease through automated blood test procedures. Absence of a disease / health condition is indicated clearly by using the blood / sputum smear. Possible presence of an indication of a disease / health condition is flagged by the system for further analysis. Tele-Health Kiosk software is capable of supporting tele-pathology through.
 - Dynamic Imaging enables a doctor to view the real time pathological images. A technician places the prepared smear slide under a microscope integrated with a digital camera. Doctor from a remote place can send a request to view the slide / smear to a technician. On technician accepting the request, doctor will be able to view the slide / smear in real-time & will be able to make annotations of the image.
 - Static Imaging Allows a technician to upload the stored pathological images into the patient EHRs. Doctor will be able to view these stored images at a time convenient.

The software modules help the doctor / technician to measure DBC (Differential Blood Count), detect malarial parasites and recognize tuberculosis bacilli automatically.

- CytoSight: A digital microscopy product that can analyze blood smear slides to get differential blood count (DBC) using image processing.
- Malaria Detect: Analyses blood samples to detect RBCs affected with malaria parasites.
- Tuberculosis Detect: Analyses the sputum samples to detect tubercle bacilli (Mycobacterium tuberculosis).
- Tomo Sight: This allows a technician to upload the radiology images from different modalities viz X-Ray, CT-Scan & MRI that will be transmitted to a remote doctor for consultation. Advanced image compression makes the image transfer with a low internet bandwidth possible.

Integrated Electronic Health Records (EHR)

EHR is an integral part of Tele-Health Kiosk software. Every activity that is carried out by a

technician or a doctor in relation to a patient is recorded in digital format. The key features of EHR software:

- Patient Registration with patient unique ID.
- Creation of multiple visits against a patient unique ID to maintain the patient history.
- Recording the patient illness details and treatment given for future use
 - ✓ Captures the symptoms & complaints of visit
 - Maintains the history of patient images (Viz., Wounded body part, Broken leg)
 - ✓ Maintains the history of Pathology images with the annotations
 - ✓ Maintains the history of Radiology images with the annotations
 - ✓ Captures prescriptions by a doctor.
- The captured information is available to view during the patient's subsequent visits that aid a doctor in decision making & thus providing quality care.
- Transfer patient data between PHC, CHC and District Hospitals (during patient referral)
- Patient referral for higher medical care is enabled electronically thus improving the quality of referrals.

Telemedicine

Network Software to connect various nodes for exchange of visual image, audio and data between the PHCs and District / City Hospital.

The above solutions transform the PHC into a center providing powerful healing to rural patients. It can treat those in need, save their data, share their data for expert consultation, save a lot of time in administering care and also network between all the healthcare centers. Tele-Health Kiosk can enable treatment to a patient by helping a trained non doctor at PHC collect patient information and make information available to doctor at remote location to provide treatment or advise. This can be enabled on an online or offline mode.

CONCLUSION

By implementing such a system healthcare awareness of patient increases and demographic information will be available for planning better healthcare delivery. The system with online information removes the need for patient mobility and provides flexibility to doctor by enabling a doctor to attend to patients at his / her convenient time. By deploying such Tele-Health Kiosks in different healthcare centers in rural India and interconnecting them, efficiency of Healthcare Delivery can be increased thereby reducing cost of healthcare. Currently the Tele-Health Kiosk is operational in few healthcare centers in Karnataka. The initial response from rural patients and doctors is encouraging.

REFERENCES

- 1. Health Care Spending in the United States and OECD Countries, January 2007, Kaiser Family Foundation.http://www.kff.org/insurance/snapshot/chcm010307oth.cfm.
- 2. Deogaonkar M, Socio-economic inequality and its effect on healthcare delivery in India: Inequality and healthcare; El. J. Sociology (2004): ISSN: 1198 3655.
- 3. [1] Mishra SK; Current status of E-health in India: http://openmed.nic.in/1265/01/skm12.pdf# search = % 22% 22 information % 20 technology % 22% 2C% 20 healthcare % 2C% 20india % 2C% 20 pdf % 22.
- 4. WHO, 2004. eHealth for Health-care Delivery: Strategy 2004-2007.
- 5. Sahay S, Special Issue on "IT and Health Care in Developing Countries"; EJISDC (2001): 5, 0, pp 1-6.
- John W. Peabody, Mario M. Taguiwalo, David A. Robalino, and Julio Frenk: Improving the Quality of Care in Developing Countries; Disease Control Priorities in Developing Countries; Chapter 70: pp 1293-1308.
- 7. World Bank 2006. Connecting People, Improving Health: the Role of ICTs in the Health Sector of Developing Countries, pp 5-6.

- 8. Ronald J Lagoe, Gert P Westert: Community wide electronic distribution of summary health care utilization data, BMC Medical Informatics and Decision Making 2006, 6:17.
- 9. Paul Bossyns, Ranaou Abache, Mahaman S Abdoulaye, Hamidou Miyé, Anne-Marie Depoorter and Wim Van Lerberghe: Monitoring the referral system through benchmarking in rural Niger: an evaluation of the functional relation between health centers and the district hospital, BMC Health Services Research 2006, 6:51.
- Kucher N, Koo S, Quiroz R. Electronic alerts to prevent venous thromboembolism among hospitalized patients. N Engl J Med. 2005; 352: pp 969-977. (11).
- 11. Ashok Jhunjhunwala, Anuradha Ramachandran, Alankar Bandyopadhyay: n-Logue, The Story of a Rural Service Provider in India; The Journal of Community Informatics, (2004), Vol. 1, I.
- 12. Costs and Benefits of Health Information Technology; Evidence Report/Technology Assessment - Number 132; Agency for Healthcare Research and Quality: April 2006.
- 13. Steve Arnold et al, Electronic Health Records : A Global Perspective, A Work Product of Healthcare Information and Management Systems Society (HIMSS), Aug 2008.

Evaluation of Vaginal versus Abdominal Hysterectomy for Non Prolapsed Uterus with Benign Gynecological Disease

*Agarwal Anjana. ** Krishna Hema

*Associate Professor, **Senior Resident, Department of Obstetrics & Gynecology, Hind Institute of Medical Sciences, Safedabad Barabanki. (UP).225001

ABSTRACT

Introduction: Vaginal hysterectomy is most common gynecological operation. It has many advantages, like low morbidity rate and early discharge from hospital, over abdominal hysterectomy when performed for benign gynecological conditions.

Objective: To report experience with vaginal hysterectomy performed for benign gynecological conditions.

Methods: 122 hysterectomies were performed in 3 years, from Jan 2009-Dec 2011; One hundred twelve women had vaginal hysterectomy for the uterus having size less than 14 weeks. Demographic and other useful scientific data were noted and analyzed to come to the conclusion that vaginal hysterectomy is safer operation than abdominal hysterectomy even for non prolapsed uterus.

Result: Almost 83.92 % cases had no complication and there were no life threatening complications. However 02 (1.78%) cases needed conversion to abdominal route without any serious morbidity.

Conclusion: Vaginal hysterectomy is simpler, feasible and uneventful treatment modality for gynecological indications other than utero-vaginal prolapse.

Keywords: : Vaginal hysterectomy, None prolapsed uterus, Morcellation

INTRODUCTION

Hysterectomy is one of the most common surgical procedure performed in gynecology by abdominal or vaginal route. It is well known that vaginal Hysterectomy carries the least morbidity & mortality having many advantages over abdominal hysterectomy in terms of low morbidity, early recovery, low complication rate, early resumption of work and low cost. Besides these facts there is no visible scar on Abdomioperineal region.Vaginal Hysterectomy in large size uterus could be performed easily by bisection, myomectomy and/or debulking.

The aim of the present study was to report our experiences in performing Non descent vaginal hysterectomy (NDVH) for benign gynecological conditions by different surgical techniques that

Correspondence: Dr. Anjana Agarwal, D-86, J Park 3 VigyanPuri,Mahanagar Extension, Lucknow,(UP). 226006 Mob:- 9415542356 Email:- anjana.agarwal98@gmail.com makes vaginal hysterectomy simpler, feasible and uneventful.

MATERIALS AND METHODS:

This prospective study was conducted at *Hind Institute of Medical sciences, a Rural Medical College* & Hospital, Safedabad Barabanki (UP).

All patients for hysterectomy having benign gynecological conditions, without prolapse e.g. DUB, Leiomyoma, Adenomyosis, and PID etc. were included in the study for a period of three years from Jan 2009 to Dec 2011.

Inclusion criteria for vaginal hysterectomy were mainly, uterine size not exceeding 14 weeks and having adequate access with good uterine mobility.

Exclusion criteria included uterus with severely restricted mobility, Suspicion of malignancy, complex adnexal mass and size more than 14 weeks.

Those patient who were not fulfilling the inclusion criteria for vaginal hysterectomy, underwent

abdominal hysterectomy. Cases having suspicion of adnexal mass clinically were evaluated by TVS also.

Detailed history and thorough clinical examination was done in each case. A written informed consent was taken in all the cases with prior counseling of the possibility of conversion to abdominal hysterectomy if needed. After giving anesthesia all cases were reassessed in Operation Theater, to see the size & mobility of uterus and the condition of the adnexa on both sides.

METHOD OF OPERATION

All cases were performed under regional anesthesia either spinal or epidural. After cleaning & draping, cervix was held with volsellum and vigrous massage was done through both lateral fornices, which facilitated the uterocervical descent.

Saline infiltration (with 15-20ml) was done anteriorly in vesico-cervical plane and posteriorly in cervico vaginal plane in all cases and circumferential incision was made around the cervix. Pubovesicocervical ligament was cut and bladder was mobilized upwards. Both anterior and posterior pouches were opened one after another. Mackenrodt's and uterosacral ligaments were clamped, cut and ligated on both side. Then clamping of uterine vessels was done bilaterally followed by morcellation techniques in bigger sized uterus (like Bisection, Myomectomy with bisection and/or Debulking). In total hysterectomy, last clamp was applied on round ligaments, ovarian ligaments and medial part of the fallopian tubes and in cases of salpingo-oophorectomy, round ligament was clamped separately followed by clamping of infundibulopelvic ligaments. After delivery of the uterus hysterectomy was completed in usual manner. Data regarding age, parity, size of uterus, time of operation, complications and hospital.

stay was recorded. All patients were given antibiotic coverage. Catheterization with Foley's catheter was done in all cases for 24-48hours.

RESULT

Hysterectomies were carried out during the study period for 122 patients. In which 112 cases were done through vaginal route and 10 by abdominal route. (*Table – 01*)

Table 1. Hysterectomy from Jan 2009 to Dec 2011.

S. No.	Type of hysterectomy	No.
01	Total no of hysterectomy	122
02	Vaginal hysterectomy	112
03	Abdominal hysterectomy	10

Table -02 shows various indications for NDVH, including dysfunctional uterine bleeding (41.07%) the commonest indication, followed by fibroid (25%), adenomyosis (14.3%) and pelvic inflammatory diseases (8.03%). In abdominal hysterectomy fibroid was the commonest indication followed by complex adnexal mass. *Table – 03* shows distribution of cases according to the age. Sixty cases (53.58%) were in the age group of 41-45 yrs and only eight cases (7.14%) were above the 50 yrs of age.

S. No.	Indication	No of Patient	Percentage
01	Dysfunctional uterine Bleeding.	46	41.07%
02	Fibroid	28	25.0%
03	Adenomyosis	16	14.3%
04	Chronic PID	09	8.03%
05	Cervical Factors (CIN)	08	7.14%
06	Ovarian cyst	03	2.7%
07	Previous surgery with DUB	02	1.78%

Table 2. Indications for NDVH

Table 3. Age wise distribution

S. No.	Age group(Yrs)	No of Patient	Percentage
01	35-40	28	25.00%
02	41-45	60	53.58%
03	46-50	16	14.28%
04	>50	08	7.14%

Sixty cases (53.58%) had parity three having favourable factor for vaginal route of surgery, i.e. vaginal laxity. Followed by parity two and four respectively (*Table – 04*).

Table 4. Parity wise distribution

S. No.	Parity	No of Patient	Percentage
01	Nulliparous	02	1.78%
02	One	06	5.35%
03	Two	37	33.03%
04	Three	60	53.57%
05	Four	07	6.2 %

Table 5. Morcellation - Technique

S. No.	Technique	No of Patient	Percentage
01	No morcellation	64	57.14%
02	Bisection	38	33.92%
03	Myomectomy with bisection	06	5.35%
04	Debulking	04	3.57%

Table – 05 Shows different techniques to reduce the size of uterus to facilitate the surgical removal of bigger size uterus. Different morcellation techniques were employed successfully in 48 patients (42.85%). Bisection was used most frequently (33.92%).

Hysterectomy was done for 68 cases (60.71%) and hysterectomy with bilateral salpingo-oophorectomy was done for 41 cases (36.60%) followed by hysterectomy with unilateral salpingo-oophorectomy in 3 cases (2.67%). (*Table – 06*)

S. No.	Туре	No of Patient	Percentage
01	Hysterectomy	68	60.71%
02	Hysterectomy with Bilateral salpingo-oophorectomy	41	36.60%
03	Hysterectomy with unilateral salpingo-oophorectomy	03	2.67%

Table 6. Type of operation

Table 7. reloperative- complication	Table	7.	Pero	perative-	comp	lications
-------------------------------------	-------	----	------	-----------	------	-----------

S. No.	Complications	No of Patient	Percentage
01	Uneventful	94	83.92%
02	Difficulty in opening posterior pouch	08	7.14%
03	Primary hemorrhage	06	5.35%
04	Bladder injury	02	1.78%
05	Conversion to abdominal route	02	1.78%

Table – 07, Surgery was uneventful in 94 cases (83.92%). Difficulty was encountered in opening the posterior pouch in 8 cases (7.14%). Excessive bleeding during surgery was present in 6 cases (5.35%) and required blood transfusion. There was bladder injury in 2 cases (1.78%), however immediate repair of bladder was done successfully. Two patients needed conversion to abdominal route, one for slippage of uterine pedicle and other was due to inaccessibility of left adnexa.

Most of the patients (76.8%) had uterine size of 6-8 weeks and only 3.6% patient had uterine size more than 12 weeks. (*Table – 08*)

Table	8.	Size	of	uterus
-------	----	------	----	--------

S. No.	Size of the uterus	No of Patient	Percentage
01	6-8 weeks	86	76.8%
02	10-12 weeks	22	19.6%
03	12-14 weeks	04	3.75%

Operation could be completed in most of the cases in 40-50 minutes (75%), and were discharged in 4-5 days. (*Table – 09*)

Fable	9.	Operative	-	Time
-------	----	-----------	---	------

S. No.	Time	No of Patient	Percentage
01	35 min to 40 min	06	5.35%
02	40min to 50 min	84	75.0 %
03	> 50 Min	22	19.64%

DISCUSSION

The aim of this study was to determine the benefits of vaginal hysterectomy for non descent uterus versus abdominal hysterectomy. The indications for vaginal hysterectomy in this study were, DUB, Fibroid uterus, Adenomyosis & PID etc and similar indications for hysterectomy have been reported by others¹⁻².

Dorsey JW etal³ reported that no patient with uterus more than 12 weeks underwent vaginal hysterectomy but 30.6% with uterus more than 12 weeks were operated by laparoscopic assisted vaginal hysterectomy (*LAVH*).

In the present study in 3.6% cases hysterectomy was carried out for about 14 weeks size uterus through vaginal route, but prior reduction of size was done by different morcellation techniques.

As larger size of the uterus has been found to be a major hindrance to the approach through the vaginal route^{1,2,3,4}, different authors have described various techniques to reduce the size of the uterus prior to removal through the vagina. *Adam Magos* et al^{5,} selected women with fibroid uterus between 14-20 weeks size and described bisection, myomectomy, morcellation and coring to reduce the uterine size.

Vaginal uterine morcellation is the key to a successful operation and obviates the need for either abdominal or laparoscopically assisted hysterectomy solely to deal with moderate uterine enlargement⁶⁷.

Uterine morcellation at the time of vaginal hysterectomy is safe and facilitates the removal of moderately enlarged and well supported uteri and is associated with decreased hospital stay and per operative morbidity rate compared with the abdominal route⁸.

Simple adnexal mass up to 6cm and mild to moderate endometriosis was not associated with any increased risk⁹. It has been demonstrated that ovaries are visible and accessible to transvaginal removal in most cases¹¹. Bilateral salpingo-oophorectomy at the time of vaginal hysterectomy was not independently associated with operative time or blood loss¹⁰. In our study bilateral salpingo-oophorectomy was done for **36.6%** of cases.

Lower segment caesarean section and nulliparity has been reported to impede vaginal surgery due to lesser laxity of the uterine ligamental support and narrower vagina². However in our study two patients with previous *LSCS* and two nulliparous women, underwent vaginal hysterectomy successfully. Sheth¹² reported a very low incidence of bladder injury (0.1%) - According to him access to the uterovesical pouch can be obtained through the uterocervical - broad ligament space without laparoscopic assistance and without bladder trauma. In our case bladder injury in two cases (1.78%), repaired peroperatively without any urinary morbidity after discharge from the hospital.

CONCLUSION

Vaginal hysterectomy is safe, feasible and patient friendly in most of the women requiring hysterectomy for benign conditions and should therefore be attempted. The short term clinical outcome in VH is superior to TAH. Vaginal hysterectomy should be a primary method for removal of uterus, if not contraindicated.

REFERENCES

- 1. DVIS A, Wizza E, Bournasn. O conner H nd magos A. How to increase the proportion of hysterectomies performed vaginally.Am J Obstet Gynecology 1998;179(4):1008-12
- 2. Ottosen C, Lingman G, Ottosen L. Three methods for hysterectomy; A randomized, prospective study of short term outcome. B.JOG 2000;107: 1380-1385.
- 3. Dorsey JH, Steinberg EP, Holt Z PM. Clinical indications for hysterectomy route; patient

characteristics or physician prefercence. Am J Obstet Gynecol. 1995;173 (5); 1452-60

- 4. Dancoisne P, Abossolo T, Orvain E, Tauaillon J, Sommer JV, Riviere JP, Amat D. Criteria for choice of vaginal hysterectomy for lesions other than invasive cancer. Rev-Fr-Gynecol Obstet, 1994 jan; 89 (1): 11-14
- 5. Magos A, Bournas N, Sinha R, Richardson RE and O' Connor H. Vaginal Hysterectomy for the large uterus. BJOG, 1996; 103: 246-251
- 6. Unger JB. Vaginal hysterectomy for the women with a moderately enlarged uterus weighing 200 to 700 gm. Am J Obstet Gynecol. 1999; 108 (6):1337-44
- Hoffman MS, Decesare S and Kalter C. Abdominal hysterectomy versus transvaginal morcellation for the removal of enlarged uteri. Am J obstet Gynecol. 1994; 171 (2): 309-15
- 8. Taylor SM, Romero AA, Kammerer-Doak DN et al. Abdominal hysterectomy for the enlarged myomatous uterus compared with vaginal hysterectomy with morcellation. Am J Obstet Gynecol. 2003;189:1579-83
- 9. Oath KS, Khalil M. Changing the route of hysterectomy: the result of a policy of attempting the vaginal approach in all cases of dysfunctional uterine Bleeding. EUR J Obstet Gynecol Report Biol 2006;125:243-7
- 10. Brian C. Cooper and Damiel H. Riddick. Journal of Gynecologic Surgery. 2005; 21: 9-12
- 11. Kovac SR, Cruik Shank SH. Guidelines to determine the route of Oophorectomy with hysterectomy. Am J Obstet Gynecol. 1996; 1483-88.
- 12. Sheth SS. Malpani AN. Vaginal hysterectomy following previous cesarean section. Int J Gynecol Obstet 1995; 50: 165-169.

A Potential Role of Apo B in the Risk Stratification of Type 2 Diabetic Patients with Dyslipidemia

¹C.A. Arathi. ²N. Prabhudeva. ³Geetha. J. P.

¹Department of Clinical Pathology, ²Department of Medicine, ³Department of Clinical Pathology Sree Siddhartha Medical College and Research Centre Sree Siddhartha University, Tumkur, Karnataka email: drgeethajp@gmail.com

ABSTRACT

Background: Dyslipidemia matters in type 2 diabetes and appreciation of the lipid abnormalities in diabetes has changed with time. There are few data on Apo B levels in these patients and consequently there is little information on the frequencies of the various dyslipidemic phenotypes.

Methods: Plasma lipids and Apo B were measured by standardized methods. The patients were categorized by two different methods. The first was based on triglyceride (<150mg/dl) and LDL cholesterol (<100mg/dl), and the second was based on triglyceride (<150mg/dl) and Apo B (<137mg/dl).

Results: As overall, plasma triglycerides were elevated, total and LDL cholesterol were normal and HDL was decreased. Results of the phenotyping analysis were, using the conventional approach; only 20% has elevated LDL cholesterol. Using the new approach, 63% has an elevated Apo B and therefore an elevated LDL particle number. The mean LDLc for hypertriglceridemic-hyperapo B group was 120.4mg/dl, whereas the mean Apo B for the same was 239mg/dl, indicating its significance over LDL cholesterol.

Conclusion: Diagnosis based on triglycerides and Apo B revealed more number of patients with atherogenic, dyslipidemic status rather than by diagnosing on triglycerides and LDL cholesterol levels. Apo B is a better cardiovascular risk marker and can replace LDL cholesterol in maintaining statin therapy in type 2 diabetic patients.

Keywords: : Apo B, Dyslipidemia, Cardiovascular Risk, Type 2 diabetes,

INTRODUCTION

Diabetic patients are vulnerable to different lethal diseases including cardiovascular disease, which is still ranked as the number one killer disease in the world¹. Diabetes is not just dysglycemia; particularly type 2 diabetes is also dyslipidemia². Dyslipidemia that frequently occur in type 2 diabetes might play a critical role in producing the accelerated macro vascular atherosclerotic disease, that is, unfortunately, so common. Their features need to be understood in detail³.

Recent studies have shown that the lipid abnormalities associated with diabetic dyslipidemia begin to develop prior to the clinical onset of type 2 diabetes, at a time when blood glucose concentrations are relatively normal. It followed that the implementation of effective antihyperlipidemic treatment to the diabetic population requires an intensive approach¹.

In diabetes, given the frequency of hypertriglyceridemia, small dense Low Density Lipoproteins (LDL) are common and their feature is now generally included in the definition. It is still not widely appreciated that not only is LDL composition altered in patients with type 2 diabetes, but LDL particle number is frequently increased as well, the combination resulting in hypertriglyceridemia, hyper Apolipoprotein B, one of the commonest, most atherogenic dyslipoproteinemias². Apo B is the major apolipoprotein of Very Low Density Lipoprotein (VLDL), Intermediate Density Lipoprotein (IDL) and LDL particles. In line with non- High Density Lipoprotein (Non-HDL), plasma levels of Apo B represent all atherogenic lipoproteins in the circulation; however because every atherogenic particle contains a single Apo B molecule, Apo B levels also provide an accurate reflection of the number of atherogenic particles⁴.

The Quebec cardiovascular study is the most up to date, prospective, epidemiologic investigation of the risk factors responsible for coronary artery disease. It is also the first study in which Apo B was measured in all subjects, and it is worth noting that Apo B was found to be the single most important lipid parameter for influencing outcome⁵. Not only is Apo B a better index than LDL cholesterol (LDL c) to predict risk, it is also a more accurate guide to the adequacy of statin therapy⁵. Because there is one Apo B molecule per particle of LDL, IDL, and VLDL, total Apo B levels highly correlate with non-HDL cholesterol levels. Non-HDL cholesterol provides the total cholesterol of LDL, IDL, VLDL, but Apo B reflects the total particle number in these lipoproteins⁶. Although growing evidence suggests that non-HDL c, and Apo B are stronger predictors of Cardio Vascular Disease (CVD) than LDL c alone in the general population, epidemiologic data among diabetic individuals are limited.

Hence we conducted a prospective study to determine the prevalence of dyslipidemic phenotypes, including Apo B in type 2 diabetic patients and consequently to evaluate their cardiovascular risk.

Criteria	Total	Women	Men	P-value
n	150	53	97	
Age(yrs)	52.5	52.5	52.5	
Total cholesterol(mg/dl)	204	205	194	HSP<0.001
Triglycerides(mg/dl)	233	236	235	HSP<0.001
LDL cholesterol(mg/dl)	101.6	101.6	104.9	HSP<0.001
HDL cholesterol(mg/dl)	38	38	38	HSP<0.001
Apo B(mg/dl)	220.6	229	208.3	HSP<0.001
BMI(kg/m ²)	31.5	32	31.8	HSP<0.001

Data are means(SD)

Table 2. Variables by triglycerides/Apo B phenotype

	Hypertriglyceri de-hyper apo b	Hypertriglyceri de-normo apo b	Normotriglyceride mic-hyper apo b	Normotriglyceride mic-normo apo b	Р
Total cholesterol (mg/dl)	201.2	245.8	182.7	187.4	HSP<0.001
Triglyceride (mg/dl)	246.7	274.5	138	130	HSP<0.001
LDL (mg/dl)	120.4	105	111	136	HSP<0.001
HDL (mg/dl)	37	37.8	38	39.4	HSP<0.001
Apo B (mg/dl)	239	111.6	168	108.7	HSP<0.001
BMI (kg/m ²)	32.4	31.7	31.1	29.5	HSP<0.001

Data are means(SD)

MATERIALS AND METHODS

A total of 150 type 2 diabetes patients were selected from medicine clinic aged between 35 and 70 yrs. The study was conducted at Sree Siddhartha Medical College and Research Centre, Sree Siddhartha University, Tumkur, Karnataka. Type 2 diabetic patients under medication that affect lipoprotein metabolism were excluded from this study. The protocol was approved by the local ethical committee of our hospital and patients gave their informed consent.

The clinical data was collected. Anthropometric measurements were taken and BMI (kg/m2) was calculated. Blood samples were obtained after an

overnight fast (10-12 hrs). The blood was left at room temperature for 30min and the serum was separated. Total cholesterol (Tc), Triglyceride (Tg), HDL-c and Apo B were immediately analysed from total serum. Tg and Tc were measured by commercially available fully enzymatic method. HDL –c was measured directly by a commercial kit by an end point method. Serum LDL-c was measured indirectly using the following equation.

[LDL-c] = [Tc] - [(HDLc + TG/5)]

The factor [TG/5] is an estimate of VLDL c concentration and is based on the average ratio of TG to cholesterol in VLDL. Serum Apo B was measured by an end point method, using commercial kit. The

reference values are provided now for Apo B. The patients were categorized into four groups based on triglyceride and Apo B levels, and were also divided into four groups based on LDLc and triglyceride levels.

Statistical analysis: student's t test was performed as the test of significance. P < 0.05 was considered statistically significant.

RESULTS

Of the 150 subjects, 97(64.66%) were men and 53(35.33%) were women. None were taking any medication that was known to affect lipoprotein levels. The features of the cohort are shown in table 1. Obesity was a common factor. There were no significant differences between males and females. The mean values for Apo B and lipids are shown in Table 1. Total and LDL cholesterol were normal, triglycerides were elevated, and HDL cholesterol was decreased. The average Apo B is discordant with the average LDL cholesterol, thus suggesting that small LDL particles are present.

In our study, dyslipidemia was more pronounced in women than men, as evidenced by significant increase in total cholesterol, triglyceride and Apo B. But the average HDL cholesterol was same in both men and women.

Based on plasma triglyceride and LDL-c, the cohort was divided into four phenotypes, normal, normal triglyceride-increased LDLc, increased triglyceridenormal LDLc, and increased triglyceride- increased LDL. Using the conventional classification, these correspond to normal, type IIA hypercholesterolemia, type IV hyperlipoproteinemia, and type IIB or combined hyperlipidemia³.

These findings were compared with those obtained with phenotypes based on triglyceride and Apo B. There were four phenotypes again, normal, normotriglyceride- hyper Apo B, increased triglyceride- normo Apo B, and increased triglycerideincreased Apo B.

Figure 1 A shows the phenotype frequencies based on triglyceride and LDL c, whereas Fig 1B shows the phenotype frequencies, which are based on triglyceride and Apo B ,. Using the conventional approach, 30% were normal, 03% had type IIA, 50.0% had type IV hyperlipopoteinemia, and 17% had IIB. In total 20% had abnormal LDL, evidenced by increased LDL c.

The corresponding results using triglyceride and Apo B, 18% were normal, 13% wer normotriglyceridemic-hyper Apo B, 50% were hypertriglyceridemic- hyper Apo B, 19% were hypertriglyceridemic-normo Apo B. In total, 63% had hyper Apo B.

Thus, the conventional approach suggested that only 20% had abnormal LDL, and the approach based on Apo B indicated that 63% had hyper Apo B, suggesting that small dense LDL particles are present. Hence, it is a better approach, to evaluate the small LDL particles.

The lipids, Apo B and BMI results for the phenotypes based on the triglyceride and Apo B group are depicted in table 2. The results for the normal group for lipids and Apo B were well within normal limits. In both hypertriglyceridemic groups, HDL was reduced. The mean LDL cholesterol for hyper triglyceridemic-hyper Apo B group was 120.4 mg/dl. In contrast the mean Apo B for the same group was 239mg/dl, indicating its significance over LDL cholesterol.

DISCUSSION:

A history of diabetes is equivalent in risk for death to a history of myocardial infarction, and the combination compounds the risk⁷. The United Kingdom Prospective Diabetic Study found that better glycaemic control reduced the frequency of microvascular disease, but the trend toward a reduced frequency of macrovascular disease was not stastiscally significant. In addition, the frequency of macrovascular disease in patients with type2 diabetes varies geographically, suggesting that factors like dyslipoproteinemias play an important role in the pathogenesis of the vascular disease⁷.

LDL particles in diabetic patients are more likely to be glycated, and in vitro studies indicate that glycated LDL particles are more likely to be oxidised. The collagen and elastin within the arterial wall are also more likely to be glycated; in vitro studies suggest that such changes are likely to entrap LDL particles that enter the vessel wall. Thus, diabetes may magnify the atherogenic potential of dyslipoproteinemias⁷. The combination of hypertriglyceredemia, hyper Apo B, increased number of small, dense LDL particles, and low levels of HDL- cholesterol, the atherogenic lipoproteins profile is not restricted to persons with type 2 diabetes mellitus; it is also common in persons with insulin resistance, those who will develop diabetes, and those with coronary disease⁷.

Apo B synthesis is required for the hepatic secretion of VLDL, and Apo B remains associated with the particle during the triglyceride hydrolysis and lipid exchange cascade until its clearance from the circulation as IDL or LDL particles. Measuring Apo B in plasma is roughly equivalent to quantifying the number of Apo B containing lipoproteins secreted by the liver, because there is systematically only one Apo B molecule per particle secreted⁸. The amount of cholesterol per LDL particle can vary substantially; LDL cholesterol is not a reliable index of LDL particle number⁷. Of the total Apo B, >90% are LDL particles or more precisely, IDL and LDL particles, as LDL cholesterol is the sum of the cholesterol in the IDL and LDL fractions. This remains true even in hypertriglyceredemia; therefore, total plasma Apo B is a reliable surrogate for LDL particle number⁷.

Much more attention in type 2 diabetes has been paid to VLDL and HDL particles than to LDL particles. The major findings of our study oppose this view. In the present study, 63% of our patients had hyper Apo B and therefore elevated LDL particle number. In contrast, based on conventional LDL cholesterol approach, only 20% of our cohort had increased LDL cholesterol, a major difference for the therapeutic outcome. The present study supports the reports of Wagner et al⁹, who were the first to study dyslipidemic phenotypes in type 2 diabetes, incorporating Apo B. Studies have shown that small dense LDL particles are common in type 2 diabetes⁷ and that Apo B levels , on average , are elevated in type 2 diabetes⁹. The overall results of our study are in accord with other reports.

There is abundance evidence from case control reports to support the role of Apo B as an important risk factor for Ischemic Heart Disease (IHD). Prospective data from the British United Provident Association study showed that Apo B was most strongly associated with IHD even after adjustment for total cholesterol and triglyceride levels in the multivariate analysis8. In youth with type 1 diabetes, elevated Apo B and dense LDL are not highly prevalent, whereas elevated Apo B and dense LDL were common lipoprotein abnormalities in youth with type 2 diabetes¹⁰. The intensive lipid lowering therapy targeted to patients with elevated Apo B levels not only diminished the rate of progression of coronary artery disease but also induced a net regression in angiographically determined coronary lesions⁸. Taiwanese type diabetic patients – suggests that Apo B containing lipoproteins could also initiate early glomerular injury leading to incipient diabetic nephropathy with micro albuminuria¹¹. It is arguably, even more urgent to implement apoproteins into the c and Apo B in relation to cardiovascular event occurrence, the current literature consists primarily of a series of epidemiological studies, both Non- HDL c and Apo B were found to be more accurate risk predictors than LDL c, Apo B being superior⁴.

Apo B is an extension of what came before, a more precise and more practical measure to improve clinical practise and treatment outcomes ¹².We do not fully

assess the lipoprotein status of patients with type 2 diabetes if Apo B is not measured. That means we will assess risk less well and will likely treat patients less effectively¹³. One management options for high risk patient is to measure Apo B during statin therapy to make sure that the total number of atherogenic particles is reduced¹⁴.

Statins are becoming an increasingly popular therapy for patients with type 2 diabetes because their LDL cholesterol levels, although normal, are above target levels ³. The treatment of the dyslipidemia of the metabolic syndrome should be focused on lowering LDL c and Apo B and increasing HDL. The percent reduction in LDL c and Apo B by statin medications is similar, but Apo B may be a better marker of treatment efficacy in metabolic syndrome patients with normal LDL cholesterol¹⁵. For highest risk individuals those with known clinical CVD and those who do not have clinical CVD but who have diabetes and one or more other cardio metabolic risk factors beyond their dyslipidemia, the recent ADA/ACC consensus statement suggested a target level of LDL c <70mg/dl, Non-HDL c <100mg/dl, and Apo B < $80 mg/dl^{16}$.

Apo B will be particularly useful in assessing patients who are hypertriglyceredemic , with either mixed hyperlipidemia or as an isolated abnormality. Thus, Apo B should be measured in dyslipidemias associated with metabolic syndrome, obesity, type 2 diabetes, chronic kidney diseases and familial hyperbetalipoproteinemia, since all such patients have elevated plasma Apo B¹⁷.

In line with recently adopted Canadian guidelines, the addition of Apo B represents a logical next step to National Cholesterol Education Program Adult Treatment Panel III (NCEPATP III) and other guidelines in US. It appears prudent to consider, using Apo B along with LDL c to assess LDL related risk for an in term period until the superiority of Apo B is generally recognised¹⁸.

To conclude, the abnormalities in LDL composition are frequently present in patients with type 2 diabetes, and the extent of which is evident only if Apo B is measured in addition to the standard lipid profile. Apo B is a better cardiovascular risk marker and can replace LDL cholesterol in maintaining statin therapy in type 2 diabetic patients.

REFERENCES:

1. Shekar HU, Shahjalal HM, Ahmed R, Uddin M, E-Jannat KK. Prevalence of dyslipidemic phenotypes including hyper-apo b & evaluation of cardiovascular disease risk in normocholesterolemic Type 2 diabetic patients. Pak J Biol Sci 2006;9(8):1536-1541.

- 2. Allan D, Sniderman AD. Diabetic atherogenic dyslipidmias. In: Falk E, Shah PK, de Feyter PJ (eds.): Ischemic heart disease. Manson publication, London, 2007: 243-245.
- 3. Sniderman AD, Seccombe D, Lamarche B, Tilley J :Hypertriglyceridemic Hyperapo B in Type 2 Diabetes. Diabetic Care 2002; 25: 579-582.
- 4. Kastelein JJP, van der Steeg WA, Holme I, Gaffney M, Cater NB, Barter P et al. Lipids, Apolipoproteins, and their ratios in relation to cardiovascular events with statin treatment. Circulation 2008;117:3002-3009.
- 5. Sniderman AD, Bergeron J, Frohlich J. Apolipoprotein B versus lipoprotein lipids : Vital lessons from the AFCAPS/TexCAPS trial. CMAJ 2001;164(1):44-47.
- 6. Jiang R, Stampfer MJ, Schulze MB, Rimm EB, Li T, Hu FB et al. Non-HDL Choleterol and Apolipoprotein B Predict Cardiovascular Disease Events Among Men With Type 2 Diabetes. Diabetic Care 2004;27:1991-1997.
- Sniderman AD, Scantlebury T, Cianflone K. Hypertriglyceridemic Hyperapo B: The Unappreciated Atherogenic Dyslipoproteinemia in Type 2 Diabetes Mellitus. Ann Int Med 2001;135:447-459.
- 8. Lamarche B, Moorjani S, Lupien PJ, Cantin B, Bernard PM, Dagenais GR et al : Apolipoprotein A-1 and B Levels and the Risk of Ischemic Heart Disease During a Five-Year Follow-up of Men in the Quebec Cardivascular Study. Circulation 1996;94:273-278.
- 9. Wagner AM, Bonet R, Perez A, Cartellvi A, Calvo F, Ordonez J. Apolipoprotein(B) identifies dyslipidemic phenotypes associated with cardiovascular risk in Normocholesterolemic type 2 diabetic patients. Diabetic Care 1999;22:812-817.
- 10. Alberts JJ, Marcovina SM, Imperatore G, Snively BM, Stafford J, Fujimoto WY et al. Prevalence and

Determinants of Elevated Apolipoprotein B and Dense Low-Density Lipoprotein in Youths with Type 1 and Type 2 Diabetes. J Clin Endocrinol Metab 2008;93(3):735-742.

- 11. Tseng CH. Apolipoprotein B Is an Independent Risk Factor for Microalbuminuria in Taiwanese Patients With Type 2 Diabetes. Diabetes Care 2003;26:2965-2966
- 12. Barter PJ, Ballantyne CM, Carmena R, Cabezas MC, Chapman MJ, Couture P et al . Apo B versus cholesterol in estimating cardiovascular risk and in guiding therapy: report of the thirty-person/ten-country panel. J Int Med 2006; 259: 247-258.
- 13. Sniderman AD. Non-HDL Cholesterol Versus Apolipoprotein B in Diabetic Dyslipoproteinemia alternatives and surrogates versus the real thing. Diabetic Care 2003;26(7):2207-2208.
- 14. Ballantyne CM, Raichlen JS, Cain VA. Statin Therapy Alters the Relationship Between Apolipoprotein B and Low-Density Lipoprotein Cholesterol and Non-High-Density Lipoprotein Cholesterol Targets in High-Risk Patients. J Am Coll Cardiol 2008; 52(8):626-6232.
- 15. Carr MC, Brunzell JD. Abdominal Obesity and Dyslipidemia in the Metabolic Syndrome: Importance of Type 2 Diabetes and Familial Coronary Artery Disease Risk. J Clin Endocrinol Metab 2004;89(6):2601-2607.
- Brunzell JD, Howard BV, Davidson M, Stein JH, Furberg CD, Witztum JL et al. Lipoprotein Management in Patients With Cardiometabolic Risk. J Am Coll Cardiol 2008;51(15):1512-1524.
- 17. Chan DC, Watts GF. Apolipoproteins as markers and managers of coronary risk. QJM 2006;99(5):277-287.
- Contois JH, McConnell JP, Sethi AA, Csako G, Devaraj S, Hoefner DM et al. Apolipoprotein B and Cardiovascular Disease Risk: Position Statement from the AACC Lipoproteins and Vascular Diseases Division Working Group on Best Practices. Clin Chem 2009;55:407-419.

Finger Length Ratio (2D:4D) Correlates with Serum Testosterone and Athleticism in Women

Arvind Malik

Associate Professor, Department of Physical Education, Kurukshetra University, Kurukshetra, Haryana, India

ABSTRACT

Fetal and adult testosterone may be vital in the establishment and maintenance of sex-dependent abilities associated with physical competitiveness. Researches has demonstrated that finger ratio (2D:4D) is negatively correlated with prenatal testosterone and traits beneficial to athleticism. The purpose of this study was to explore the relationships of digit ratio and serum free testosterone (FT) and total testosterone (TT) in non sportswomen and sportswomen, which entail specific physiological, psychological and physical compositions. Digital finger ratio (2D:4D) of right hand (RH), left (LH) and serum testosterone (FT & TT) were measured in sportswomen (N - 129 & age - 21.2 \pm 1.33) and non sports women (N - 158 & age - 20.2 \pm 1.11). A significant difference (RH F ratio - 4.06; p<0.001 & LH F ratio - 3.29; p<0.001) in the finger ratios were found between sportswomen and non sportswomen. Serum concentrations of free and total testosterones were significantly (P<0.001) higher in the sports women (FT Mean - 2.26 pg/ml & TT Mean - 22.21ng/dl) then non sports women (FT Mean - 1.45 pg/ml & TT Mean - 14.25 ng/dl). A significant negative relationship (FT p<0.05 & TT p<0.01) between serum testosterones and digital finger ratio (2d:4D) were found in the both groups of females. This research extends related evidence that the 2D:4D ratio may help in indicating potential athleticism or competition-level achievement in the females.

Key words: Prenatal testosterone, free testosterones, Total testosterones, Digital finger ratio.

INTRODUCTION

The ratio between length of the 2nd (the "index" finger) and 4th (the "ring" finger) digit (2D:4D) is positively correlated with prenatal exposure to estrogen and negatively correlated to prenatal exposure to testosterone¹⁻². The Homeobox genes Hox a and d control (a) the differentiation of the urinogenital system, and may therefore indirectly influence the prenatal production of testicular androgen and (b) the development of the digits ³⁻⁴. Sex steroids could directly influence relative bone lengths either by influencing (1) the development of the phalangeal anlagen during the perinatal period, or (2) metaphyseal growth. These observations have led to the suggestion that patterns of digit formation may relate to gonad function. The common control of the differentiation of the gonads and digits may mean that the functioning of the former may be reflected in the formation of the latter ¹. Patterns of 2D:4D ratios may

therefore reflect aspects of gonadal function such as the production of testosterone and estrogen. High 2D:4D ratio associates with low testosterone serum levels⁵.

Fetal and adult testosterone may be vital in the establishment and maintenance of sex-dependent associated with female physical abilities competitiveness. It has been reported that digit ratio (2D:4D) is negatively associated with prenatal testosterone, and it is also negatively associated with ability in sports such as football^{6,7}, as average '2D:4D' in football internationals of England (N=37) =0.94; black football professionals of England (N=13) = 0.93; Brazilian professionals (N=99) = 0.93; Brazilian first team professionals (N=20) = 0.92, skiing⁸, middle distance running, and endurance running⁹, sprinting ability¹⁰, rugby performance¹¹, which are dependent upon an efficient cardiovascular system. It is suggested that fetal testosterone exposure has long-term effects on traits associated with sports requiring high power (physical strength) and well-developed cardiovascular

systems¹² where as Voracek et al. reported similar effect in the female fencers ¹². The relationship between digit ratio, serum free and total testosterone and sporting ability in females has not been defined. Sports women innate specific physiological, psychological and physical profile. In the present study we examined the correlation of digit ratio (2D:4D) and serum testosterone in elite sports women and non sports women and examin can 2d:4d be used to predict future female potential in sport?

METHODS

Data was collected from the sportswomen (N - 129)& age – 21.2 ± 1.33) and non sports women (N – 158 & age -20.2 ± 1.11). In the category of sportswomen, female players were selected who had at least represented state or university in the Nationals or All India interuniversity where as in the non sportswomen, females who were pursuing their masters degree in humanities from Kurukshetra university and had never participated in any sports activities. Finger length of both was measured from the basal crease of each finger to the centre of top of each finger using digital vernier calipers in millimeters to two decimal places¹⁴⁻¹⁵. Digit ratio was calculated by dividing the length of the second digit (2D) by the length of the fourth digit (4D) for the left and right hand separately and then calculating the mean of these two ratios.

Five ml. of venous blood was drawn form median cubital/cephalic veins of the arm in BD Vacutainer® SST[™] Serum Separation Tubes of 73 subject (out of total 287) when they were in the lateral phase of their menstrual cycle, sports women (N - 46 & age - 21.5 ± 1.43) and non sports women (N - 27 & age - 20.6 \pm 1.04) between 6.00 to 6.30 a.m. (from sportswomen before the training session) by a trained technician. After centrifuge serum was separated and all serum samples were sent to Centralised Processing Laboratory (CPL) of Thyrocare Technologies Limited (ISO 9001:2008 & Accredited to College of American Pathologist) at Navi Mumbai for further analyses in the frozen form. The samples for Free Testosterone were analyzed by Solid Phase Radio Immuno Assay (SPRIA) Technology with kit Boisource, Belgium (reference range: adult female 0.02 to 3.09 pg/ml) and Total Testosterone were analyzed by Fully Automated Biodirectionally Interfaced Chemi Luminescent Immuno Assay, Precision Intra assay (% CV): 2.6%, Inter assay (% CV): 4.3% and Sensitivity: 10 ng/dl (reference range: 6-82 ng/dl).

RESULTS

A significant difference in right hand digit ratio (2D:4D) of sports group (N - 129, M - 0.969 & SED -0.05) and non sportswomen (N - 159, M - 0.988 & SED - 0.03) was found (F ratio - 4.06, P<0.001). Digit ratio of left hand in sports group (M - 0.976 & SED - 0.03) and non sports group (M - 0.995 & S.D - 0.02) differ significantly (Fratio - 3.29, P<0.001). Similarly the digit ratio of both hands differ significantly (sports group M - 0.972 & SED - 0.04, non sports group M -0.991 & SED - 0.04 and F ratio - 3.54, P<0.001). The mean serum concentrations of free testosterone present in sports group (N-46) and non sports group (N-27) were 2.26pg/ml (SED - 0.39) and 1.45pg/ml (SED - 0.22) respectively. Where as mean serum total testosterone in sports and non sports group were 22.21ng/dl (S.D -4.39) and 14.25ng/dl (SED - 3.77). A significant difference in the serum free testosterone (F - 2.86, P<0.05) and total testosterone (F – 4.55, P<0.001) were found between the sports and non sports groups.

Table 1. Significance of difference between Sports and Non Sports Group on Digit ratio, Free and Total Testosterone

Parameters	Sports Non sports		F-Ratio	Sig.
	Group	group		Level
R2D:4D±SEM	0.969 ± 0.05	0.988±0.03	4.06	P<0.001
L2D:4D±SEM	0.976±0.03	0.995±0.04	3.29	P<0.001
Mean 2D:4D±SEM	0.972 ± 0.04	0.991±0.04	3.54	P<0.001
FT ±SED	2.26±0.39	1.45±0.22	2.86	P<0.05
TT±SED	22.21 ±4.39	14.25±3.77	4.55	P<0.001

R2D:4D – Digit ratio of Right Hand, L2D:4D – Digit ratio of Right Hand, Mean 2D:4D – Mean of right and left hands, Free Testosterone (pg/ml) – FT, Total Testosterone (ng/dl) – TT

Table 2. Correlations between digit ratio andtestosterone levels

Variables	Left 2D:4D	Р	Right 2D:4D	Р	Mean 2D:4D	Р
Free Testosterone	-0.318	0.05	-0.401	0.05	-0.349	0.05
Total Testosterone	-0.501	0.01	-0.544	0.01	-0.523	0.01

There were significant negative relationship between free testosterone and digit ratio of left hand (r = -0.318, p = 0.05), right hand (r = -0.401, p = 0.05) and mean digit ratio of both hands(r = -0.349, p = 0.05). Similarly a significant negative relationship was found between total testosterone and digit ratio of left hand (r = -0.501, p = 0.01), right hand (r = -0.544, p = 0.01) and mean digit ratio of both hands(r = -0.523, p = 0.01).

DISCUSSIONS

We found a significant difference (p = 0.01) between in the finger ratios (both hands) of sports women and non sports women further mean digit ratio of sports group (Right hand 2D:4D - 0.969 & Left hand 2D:4D -0.976) were lesser then non sports women (Right hand 2D:4D - 0.988 & Left hand 2D:4D -0.995). Serum concentrations of free and total testosterones were significantly higher in the sport women (FT Mean -2.26 pg/ml & TT Mean – 22.21ng/dl) then non sports women (FT Mean - 1.45 pg/ml & TT Mean - 14.25 ng/ dl) Table - 1. We found association between 2D:4D and sporting ability in women as the mean digit ratio (both hand) of sports women was 0.972, which is well bellow the mean digit ratio M – 0.991 of non sports women. Further the concentration of serum testosterones were very much in the normal range in the both groups but the sports women group were having significantly higher level of both FT and TT as compare to non sports women. These findings support previous results indicating that digit ratio (2D:4D) is negatively associated with prenatal testosterone, and it is also negatively associated with ability in sports such as football⁷, skiing⁸, elite and non elite sports females¹⁶, competitiveness in sports¹⁷, middle distance running and endurance running Manning⁹, sprinting¹⁰, fencing¹⁸⁻¹⁹, rugby performance^{20,} sporting ability in females²¹ and rowing²². Our findings extend related evidence suggestive of prenatal programming of aptitude across a variety of sports.

A significant negative relationship between bio available testosterones and digit ratios (left hand -0.318, P < 0.05, right hand - 0.401, p < 0.05 & both hand -0.349, p<0.05) were found in both groups of women, Similarly -ve relationship was found between total testosterone and digit ratio (left hand - 0.501, P< 0.01, right hand - 0.544,P< 0.01 & both hand - 0.523 ,p< 0.01) table - 2. Similar negative correlation between adult testosterone levels and 2D:4D has been reported^{1, 23}. Findings are consistent with several lines of evidence, which together suggest a fetus may be more vulnerable to prenatal gonadal hormone, with subsequent sexual dimorphisms in behavioral sequel and risk for psychopathology. Further, the 2D:4D ratio is negatively related to sensitivity to testosterone, as indicated by variation in the structure of the androgen receptor gene²⁴. Individual differences, both within and between the sexes, exist in sex hormone levels at birth²⁵⁻²⁶ and in adulthood²⁷. It is possible that a female fetus that produces high normal androgen levels may continue to exhibit higher androgen levels than other

females in adulthood. This would explain the reported negative correlation between adult testosterone levels and finger length patterns without implicating adult androgen as a factor influencing the 2D:4D.Taken together, these various findings suggest that the 2D:4D ratio can serve as a marker for hormonal events occurring during early development that may affect later abilities.

If 2d:4d is fixed before birth and remains constant during life, this offers up the tantalizing question: can 2d:4d be used to predict future potential in sport? The association we observed between testosterone levels and digit ratio (2d:4d) encourages further study of sporting ability in the interpretation of digit ratios as markers. These results contribute to an increasingly consistent literature showing important associations of digit ratio (2D:4D), an indicator of Prenatal programming of sporting success and lateral differences in 2D:4D, with reproductive endocrine parameters in women. These results further encourage the use of digit ratio (2D:4D) as a marker for prenatal androgen exposure and help to further clarify the Prenatal programming of sporting success.

CONCLUSIONS

We have provided evidence that low 2d:4d is related high level of serum free and total testosterone and increased sporting ability in women. Digit ratio may provide a useful retrospective marker for early androgen exposure, making it possible to correlate such exposure with sporting success in females. Some known extragenital effects of prenatal testosterone that contribute to the development of efficient cardiovascular systems, good visuospatial abilities, physical endurance and speed, and to the propensity for rough-and-tumble play, apparently promote sporting success in adult life. Further work may determine whether this ratio can be used as a genuine tool for identifying sports talent.

REFERENCES

- Manning, J.T., Scutt, D., Wilson, J. and Lewis-Jones, D.I. The ratio of 2nd to 4th digit length: A predictor of sperm numbers and concentrations of testosterone, lutenizinghormones and oestrogen, Hum. Repro. 1998. 13, 3000-3004.
- Hönekopp, J., Manning, J.T., & Muller, C. Digit ratio (2D:4D) and physical fitness in males and females: Evidence for e_ects of prenatal androgens on sexually selected traits,

Hormo.Beh. 2007. 49, 545-549.

- 3. Kondo T, Zakany J, Innis J, & Duboule D. Of fingers, toes and penises. Nature.1997.390:29.
- Mortlock DP & Innis JW. Mutation of Hoxa 13 in hand– foot– genital syndrome. Nat Genet. 1997. 15:179–180.
- García-Cruz E, Huguet J, Piqueras M, Ribal MJ, Alcaraz A. Second to fourth digit ratio, adult testosterone level and testosterone deficiency. BJU Int. 2011 May 18. doi: 10.1111/j.1464-410X.2011.10249.x. [Epub ahead of print]
- 6. Manning JT.The ratio of 2nd to 4th digit length and performance in skiing. J Sports Med Phys Fitness.2002. Dec;42(4):446-450.
- 7. Manning, J.T., Taylor, R.P. Second to fourth digit ratio and male ability in sport: implications for sexual selection in humans. Evol. Hum Beha, 2001. 22, 61–69.
- 8. Manning JT.The ratio of 2nd to 4th digit length and performance in skiing. J Sports Med Phys Fitness.2002. Dec;42(4):446-450.
- Manning JT, Morris L & Caswell N. Endurance running and digit ratio (2D:4D): implications for fetal testosterone effects on running speed and vascular health.Am J Hum Biol. . 2009a. May-Jun;19(3):416-421.
- 10. Manning JT & Hill MR.Digit ratio (2D:4D) and sprinting speed in boys. Am J Hum Biol. 2009b. Mar-Apr;21(2):210-213.
- Bennett M, Manning JT, Cook CJ, & Kilduff LP Digit ratio (2D:4D) and performance in elite rugby players. J Sports Sci. 2010. Nov;28(13):1415-1421.
- Longman D, Stock JT & Wells JC. Digit ratio (2D:4D) and rowing ergometer performance in males and females. Am J Phys Anthropol. 2011 Jan 4. [Epub ahead of print].
- Voracek M, Dressler SG & Manning JT. Evidence for assortative mating on digit ratio (2D:4D), a biomarker for prenatal androgen exposure. J Biosoc Sci 2006. Jul;39(4):599-612.
- 14. Manning J.T. Fluctuating asymmetry and bodyweight in men and women: implication of sexual selection. Ethol. Sociobiol. (1995)16,145-152.
- 15. Scutt D. & Manning J.T. Symmetry and ovulation in women. Hum. Reprod. (1996)11.2477-2780.
- Pokrywka L, RachoD´ D, Suchecka-RachoD´ K & Bitel L.. The second to fourth digit ratio in elite

and non-elite female athletes. Am J Hum Biol. 2005.Nov-Dec;17(6):796-800.

- 17. Hönekopp, J., Manning, J.T., & Muller, C. Digit ratio (2D:4D) and physical fitness in males and females: Evidence for e_ects of prenatal androgens on sexually selected traits, Hormo.Beh. 2006. 49, 545-549.
- Voracek M, Dressler SG & Manning JT. Evidence for assortative mating on digit ratio (2D:4D), a biomarker for prenatal androgen exposure. J Biosoc Sci 2006. Jul;39(4):599-612.
- Voracek M, Reimer B & Dressler SG. Digit ratio (2D:4D) predicts sporting success among female fencers independent from physical, experience, and personality factors. Scand J Med Sci Sports. 2010. Dec;20(6):853-60.
- 20. Bennett M, Manning JT, Cook CJ, & Kilduff LP Digit ratio (2D:4D) and performance in elite rugby players. J Sports Sci. 2010. Nov;28(13):1415-1421.
- 21. Malik A. & Malik S. Digital finger ratio (2d:4d): An indicator of serum testosterone and prenatal programming of specific sports. Int. J Sports Sci Fit . 2011 Feb. Vol. 1(1) , 26-28.
- 22. Longman D, Stock JT & Wells JC. Digit ratio (2D:4D) and rowing ergometer performance in males and females. Am J Phys Anthropol. 2011 Jan 4. [Epub ahead of print]
- 23. Malik A. digital finger ratio: A potential predictor of sporting ability. Int.J Sports Sci Phy Ed. 2011b, Jan. Vol 2(1). 31-36.
- 24. Manning, J. T., Bundred, P. E., Newton, D. J., & Flanagan, B. F. (2003). The second to fourth digit ratio and variation in the androgen receptor gene. Evolution and Human Behavior, 24, 399–405.
- 25. Sakai, L. M., Baker, L. A., Jacklin, C. N., and Shulman, L. Sex steroids at birth: Genetic and environmental variation and covariation. Dev. Psychobiol. (1991). 24, 559–570.
- Marcus, J., Maccoby, E. E., Jacklin, C. N., & Doering, C. H. Individual differences in mood in early childhood: Their relation to gender and neonatal sex steroids. Dev. Psychobiol. 1985. 18, 327–340.
- 27. Couwenbergs, C., Knussmann, R., & Christiansen, K. Comparisons of the intra- and inter-individual variability in sex hormone levels of men. Ann. Hum. Biol. (1986). 13, 63–72.

Sex Determination from Hand Dimensions in Indian Population

ASHA K.R*., LAKSHMI PRABHA R**., Gangadhar. M. R***

*Assistant Professor, Dept of Anatomy, **Professor & Head, Dept of Anatomy, Sri Siddhartha Medical College, Tumkur, Karnataka, India, ***Associate Professor, Department of Anthropology, Manasa Gangothri, Mysore.

ABSTRACT

Determination of sex from extremities plays an important role in identifying the deceased in forensic examinations. The dimensions of the hand have been used for the determination of sex, age and stature of an individual. The purpose of the present study was to determine sex by hand dimensions among 200 South Indian and North Indian subjects. Statistical analysis indicated that bilateral variations were insignificant for all measurements. The average hand length and breadth were found to be about 1 cm greater in males as compared to females. Hand index was calculated and has been used for the determination of sex. Hand index more than 42 was suggestive of males and less than 42 is that of females. These differences were insignificant when values were compared between subjects of the same sex in South Indian and North Indians.

Key words: : Sex, Hand dimensions, Determination, Indian population.

INTRODUCTION

Identification of an individual is the main objective of forensic investigations. Identification of an individual from dismembered, mutilated and fragmentary remains is a challenge to forensic experts; in such cases, complete identification becomes unlikely and partial identification assumes importance to proceed into further investigations (Tanuj Kanchan et al 2008). The primary factors that are helpful in the identification include age, sex and stature (Vij K 2001). Many factors like racial, ethnic and nutritional factors play an important role in human development and growth; therefore different nomograms become necessary for different population ((Srinivasan 2002). An attempt has been made in the present study to find out the gender difference in the hand dimensions and the hand index in South Indian and North Indian population using statistical considerations.

Dr. Asha. K. R.,

MATERIALS AND METHODS

The present study was undertaken in the Department of Anatomy, Sree Siddhartha Medical College, Tumkur, amongst 200 right handed medical students, aged between 20-30 years after taking informed consent to participate in the study. The student population of Tumkur comes from all over India. The division of subjects into South and North Indians was based on their region of origin and taking into account other zonal divisions of India (Srinivasan 2002). The total sample consisted of 50 South Indian females, 50 South Indian males, 50 North Indian females and 50 North Indian males. All the subjects included in the present study were healthy and free from any apparent symptomatic deformity of the spine or foot.

In the present study, both hands of each individual were measured using sliding calipers in centimeters to the nearest millimeter. All the measurements were taken by single observer in order to avoid interobserver bias.

To measure hand dimensions, subjects were asked to place their hands prone with fingers extended and adducted on a flat horizontal surface.

Correspondence Address:

Assistant Professor, Department of Anatomy, Sri Siddhartha Medical College, Tumkur, Karnataka, India. Email:ashakeshavraj@rediffmail.com. Ph.9886051964

Length of hand was measured using sliding calipers (graduated in mm) as the straight distance between the midpoint of a line joining the two stylion (styloid process of radius and ulna) and dactylion (the lowest point on the anterior margin of the middle finger).

Breadth of hand was measured using sliding calipers (graduated in mm) as the straight distance between metacarpal radiale (the most medially placed point on the head of second metacarpal on the stretched hand) and metacarpal ulnare (the most laterally placed point on the head of fifth metacarpal on the stretched hand). Measurements were taken to accuracy of 0.1 cm (Singh IP and Bhasin MK 1968). Hand index was calculated by dividing the hand breadth by hand length and multiplied by 100.

STATISTICAL ANALYSIS

Analysis was done using Statistical software namely SPSS 15, Stata 8.0, MedCalc 9.0. and Systat 11.0. The data were statistically analyzed to determine sex by measurements of hand.

RESULTS

Descriptive statistics for bilateral hand dimensions among South Indian and North Indian males and females are shown in Tables 1 and 2.

In table 1, mean values of hand length among South Indian and North Indian males was more than 19 and in females it was less than 18.

In Table 2, mean values of hand breadth among South Indian and North Indian males was more than 8 and in females it was less than 7.

Table 3 depicts the mean values of hand index. In South Indian and North Indian males, both right and left hand indices were more than 42. In South Indian and North Indian females, both right and left hand indices were less than 42.

Statistical analysis indicated that bilateral variation was insignificant for the measurements of hand length and breadth in both sexes. Hand dimensions on both sides were significantly greater (p<0.001) in males when compared with females. No statistically significant differences were found in the mean hand dimensions of South and North Indian population when compared for the same sex.

T 1 1 4			CTT 1 1		3 6 1	1	1	(
l'able 1.	Measurements	(cm) (ot Hand	Length in	Males	and Fe	males	(n=200)
		(/ -						(,

Study group	Hand length	Minimum	Maximum	Mean	SD
SIM	Right	16.90	21.50	19.44	1.13
	Left	17.10	21.00	19.38	1.02
NIM	Right	16.40	23.10	19.53	1.16
	Left	16.80	23.20	19.46	1.12
SIF	Right	14.60	19.80	17.47	1.00
	Left	14.50	19.80	17.47	1.01
NIF	Right	15.40	19.50	17.80	0.93
	Left	15.50	19.40	17.74	0.90

Abbreviations used in tables: South Indian males (SIM), North Indian males (NIM), South Indian females (SIF) and North Indian females (NIF).

Table 2. Measurements	(cm)	of Hand	Breadth i	n Males	and Female	es (n=200)
-----------------------	------	---------	-----------	---------	------------	------------

Study group	Hand Breadth	Minimum	Maximum	Mean	SD
SIM	Right	7.20	9.00	8.25	0.41
	Left	7.30	9.00	8.19	0.37
NIM	Right	6.90	9.40	8.28	0.46
	Left	7.00	9.00	8.17	0.43
SIF	Right	6.30	8.00	7.31	0.32
	Left	6.50	7.90	7.23	0.31
NIF	Right	6.50	8.60	7.33	0.43
	Left	6.60	8.40	7.27	0.41

Study group	Right Hand index (mean)	Left Hand index (mean)
SIM	42.53±2.46	42.32±2.17
NIM	42.46±2.26	42.03±2.09
SIF	41.95±2.49	41.47±2.48
NIF	41.25±2.46	41.02±2.22

Table 3. Bilateral Hand index in SIM, NIM, SIF and NIF (n=200)

DISCUSSION

Sometimes, fragments of soft tissues are found disposed off in the open, in ditches, or rubbish dumps, etc. and this material is brought to forensic pathologist for examination (Mant Keith A 1995). One of the important objectives of examination is identification. The present study was aimed to establish the corelation between hand index and sex.

The present study strongly confirms sexual dimorphism in the hand length and breadths as earlier studies reported that these are larger in the males than in the females. These findings were consistent with the study conducted by Krishan 2007 and Agnihothri et al 2008. An association of Y-chromosome with stature has been documented. In addition, age of puberty being two years later in males as compared with females gives them additional time for growth (Malek et al 1990).

Insignificant bilateral variation for the measurements of hand length and breadth in both sexes as found in the present study differed from that of Rastogi et al 2008 in which right-hand dimensions were larger than that of left hand. Statistically significant differences in the mean stature and hand dimensions of South and North Indian population when compared for the same sex are compatible with those arrived at by Rastogi et al 2008. This suggests that in persons of different population groups (belonging to the same race) geographical variations do not have much influence on body proportions.

Recent studies by Agnihothri et al 2008 and Danborno et al 2008 showed that there was a consistent difference in the range of hand index between males and females across ages 18-35 years. The present study which was also conducted in a similar age group (20-30 years) in South and North Indian population showed a slight deviation from their studies. In our study hand index in males was found to be more than 42 and in females, it was less than 42. Therefore, 42 can be used as a deviation point for the determination of sex. In the studies by Agnihothri et al 2008 conducted on Mauritius population, the deviation point was 44 and in Donborno's study on Nigerian population it was 47. In Indian studies by Kanchan T et al 2009 the sex differences were found to be statistically significant only for the hand index on the left side and morphometric parameters of the hand showed considerable sexual dimorphism while the hand index remained poor sex indicator. In contrast the present study indicated a positive correlation between an individual's hand dimensions including the hand index and gender. These sex differences were statistically significant bilaterally. Thus sex can be determined by hand index with fair accuracy. The results of this study are however applicable only when an intact hand examined.

CONCLUSION

Determination of sex of an individual from the mutilated or amputated limbs plays a conspicuous role in facilitating personal identification in incident of murder, accidents or natural disasters. In the present study it is concluded that hand index is highly reliable for the determination of sex in forensic examinations and anthropological studies. The study thus has medicolegal implications when a dismembered hand is brought for examination.

REFERENCES

- Tanuj Kanchan, Ritesh G Menezes, Rohan Moudgil, Ramneet Kaur, M. S. Kotian and Rakesh K. Garg . Stature estimation from foot dimensions. Forensic Science International. 2008; 179: 241–245.
- Vij K. Identification. Textbook of Forensic Medicine: Principles and Practice. 1st ed. New Delhi. Churchill Livingstone Pvt. Ltd.2001; pp 62– 135.
- 3. Srinivasan P. The TTK Zonal Road Atlas of India. Chennai. TTK Health care Ltd. 2002; pp 7–89.
- Singh IP and Bhasin MK. Anthropometry. A Laboratory manual of biological anthropology. Delhi: Kamla Raj Enterprises.1968; pp1-35.

- 5. Mant Keith A. Identification of the living and dead. Taylor's Principles and Practice of Medical Jurisprudence. 13th ed. New Delhi. B.I. Churchill Livingstone Pvt. Ltd.1995; pp 156–82.
- Krishan K and Sharma A. Estimation of stature from dimensions of hands and feet in a North Indian population. J Forensic Legal Med.2007; 14 (6):327–332.
- Agnihotri AK, Agnihotri S, Jeebun N and Googooolye K. Prediction of stature using hand dimensions. J Forensic Leg Med. 2008; 15(8): 479–482.
- 8. Malek AKA, Ahmed AF, Aziz El Sharkawi SAE and Abd EL Hamid NAEM. Prediction of stature from hand measurements. Forensic Science International.1990; 46:181–187.
- 9. Rastogi P, Nagesh KR and Yoganarasimha K. Estimation of stature from hand dimensions of north and south Indians. Leg Med (Tokyo). 2008; 10(4):185–189.
- 10. B. Danborno and A. Elukpo. Sexual dimorphism in hand and foot length indices, stature-ratio and relationship to height in Nigerians. The internet Journal of Forensic Science. 2008; 3:1

A Prospective Randomised Study of Comparative Analysis of Conventional Simple Closure of Abdomen Versus Mesh Zipper Technique Closure In Exploratory Laparotomy for Peritonitis

Satendra Kumar*, Deepak Chatterjee*, Ashutosh Niranjan**

*Assistant Professor, **Professor, Department of Surgery, School of Medical Sciences & Research, Sharda University, Greater Noida, Uttar Pradesh

ABSTRACT

The concept of "open abdomen" particularly in patients with delayed generalized peritonitis, where closure is difficult and may precipitate abdominal compartment syndrome, has been reviewed in many articles recently. Since most arguments still support the effectiveness of this method and the results have been mostly favourable, we had compared the results of mesh-zipper laparostomy with conventional closure of abdominal wall. Patients with poor general condition with high APACHE II score and when closure of abdominal wall was difficult especially if it was leading to raised intra abdominal tension, were included in mesh zipper technique group. In these patients commercial zippers with mesh were used on all. We analyzed 28 patients of peritonitis, divided in two different groups of 14 each.

Key words: Mesh - Zipper technique; Generalized peritonitis; Residual abscess; APACHE II scores.

INTRODUCTION

The treatment of peritonitis is multidisciplinary, with complimentary application of medical, operative and non-operative interventions. Early control of the septic source is mandatory. Staged abdominal repair had been used in patients with intra-abdominal infections¹. Despite many technical advances in surgery, mortality from severe abdominal sepsis remains unacceptably high². The reason for high mortality may be unsatisfactory drainage of the peritoneal cavity, residual sepsis or multiple organ failure. In an effort to reduce the mortality, various surgical procedures like continuous peritoneal lavage³, staged laparotomy⁴ and radical peritoneal debridement⁵ have been tried previously. In recent years several authors have used an open abdomen technique using a 'zipper', with or without a mesh with promising results^{6,8}. In effort to reduce the mortality, we have used mesh laparostomy and compared it with conventional closure of abdominal wall in APACHE II score patients.

MATERIALS AND METHODS

This study had been conducted in School of Medical Sciences & Research, Greater Noida after obtaining the

permission from the institutional ethical committee. This is a prospective analysis of two different techniques of closure of abdomen in case of exploratory laparotomy conducted for peritonitis, admitted during a period of one year from January 2009 to December 2009. All the patients, who underwent exploratory laparotomy, were divided into two groups. In one group simple closure of abdomen was done where as in the second group closure was done by putting a mesh with attaching a zip to it. The criteria for mesh & zipper application were:

- 1. Patients in whom adequate elimination of the toxic source and the infectious source was not possible.
- 2. Compromised anastomosis or impending perforation.
- 3. Patients with poor general condition with high APACHE II score.
- 4. Closure was difficult and intra abdominal tension was raised.

All the patients were resuscitated in the emergency. Exploration was done with midline incision under general anaesthesia. Intra peritoneal collections were taken for culture and sensitivity. After performing definitive surgery thorough peritoneal lavage was done with at least 4-6 litres of sterile saline and drains
were inserted in required spaces. In first group, the abdomen was closed en masses or with tension suturing; where as in second group, a strip of sterile polyprolene (Marlex mesh) of wound size was anchored with either rectus sheath or skin with Prolene- 00 as interrupted sutures circumferentially and wound was dressed. In this second group no drains were placed in the peritoneal cavity. After 24 hours a pre-sterile zipper was sutured in the middle of mesh after dividing it in the middle. This zip could be unzipped to inspect the peritoneal cavity and for debridement of necrotic materials, for irrigation of abdominal cavity. As the sign of sepsis abated, the zipper and mesh were removed and the abdomen was closed either en masse or putting tension sutures under general anaesthesia. Post operatively we analyzed the incidence of wound dehiscence, burst abdomen, and death. This study was conducted with the aim to establish whether zipper mesh technique has any



In conventional group,7(50%) patients had residual abscesses, which was detected either by ultrasonography or on re-exploration of abdomen. Out of seven patients,4 had single,3 had two pocket of collections. The 5 patients were operated and 1 patient was kept on conservative line of management, while one patient died on the day of diagnosis (Table-3).

Table 3. Comparision of Residual Abscesses In Conventional Group

Number of Residual Abscess	Total Patients	Operated	Conservative
0	7	0	7
1	4	3	1
2	3	2	1
3	0	0	0

In mesh laparostomy and zipper group, as all patients had frequent intra-peritoneal lavages, the incidence of collection was nil. The average hospital stay in mesh laparostomy group was 34 days, as compared to 30 days in conventional group. The incidence of intestinal leak complications in mesh advantages over conventional closure en mass or not, so that a protocol of its management could be devised to minimize the morbidity and mortality.

OBSERVATION

There was a male predominance in both groups with mean age of 33 years in zipper-mesh group as opposed to 36 years in conventional closure group (table-1). In mesh laparostomy and zipper group, 50% had undergone single surgery, 28.57% had two surgeries, whereas 14.28% had three surgeries and 7.14% had four surgeries. This figure was 64.28% for single surgery, 28.57% had two and 7.14% had three surgeries in conventional group (table-2). Total ten surgeries were performed through the zip, single surgery in 5 patients, twice in one and thrice in one patient.



laparostomy group were high (n=6) as compared to conventional group (n=4), although the rate of burst abdomen and basal atelactasis incidence were higher in conventional group (table-4). One patient in mesh laparostomy group developed DVT, who died later on due to pulmonary embolism.

Table 4.

Complications	Mesh Laparostomy &Zipper Group	Conventional Group
Intestinal Leak	6	4
Burst Abdomen	2	5
Residual Abscesses	0	7
Skin Dehisence	4	4
Deep Vein Thrombosis	1	0
Basal Atelactasis	5	7

The mortality observed in case of mesh laparostomy group was 35.71% as opposed to 50% in conventional group. The majority of the expired patients were with APACHE score more than 20 Table-5. The cause of death in majority of the patients in both groups was multiple organ failure, except one patient of mesh laparostomy patient, who died due to deep vein thrombosis and pulmonary embolism.

Patient	APACHE II	Mesh	Conventional
Number	Score	laparostomy Gr.	Gr.
1	22	А	D
2	27	D	D
3	14	А	А
4	14	А	А
5	25	D	D
6	12	А	А
7	16	А	А
8	22	А	D
9	13	D	А
10	23	D	D
11	29	D	D
12	15	А	A
13	18	А	D
14	14	A	А

Table 5. Showing comparison of mortality inrelation to APACHE II score

D=Dead, A-Alive

DISCUSSION:

Despite the advent of powerful parenteral antibiotics, technologically advanced surgical intensive care units, the management of peritonitis is still individual and it depends on several factors like severity of disease, host factors, the amount and type of peritoneal contaminations. Recently, newer approach of temporary closure of abdomen with zipper, slide fasteners and Velcro analogues have tried to facilitate daily exploration, drainage and cleaning of peritoneal cavity. Selection of patients for proper application of the technique is an important factor. Hedderich et al9 had given more emphasis on extent and severity of intra-abdominal infection as well as age and status of patient, whereas Walsh et al¹⁰ and Garcia et al¹¹ had given more emphasis on the APACHE score. High APACHE II score indicate late presentation of the patients and also the advance stage of the disease process. The mean APACHE II score in this present study was 19 points excluding arterial blood gas analysis predicting a mortality of 42%. In case of zipper technique, daily lavage was possible, along with direct visual examination of the peritoneal cavity. Residual abscesses were easily detected during daily lavage through zipper. While in conventional group ultrasound abdomen was required for detection of intra-peritoneal collection and another reexploration was required to drain the collection. Walsh reported the formation of adhesions even when the abdomen was being lavaged thrice daily. In contrast we have found only filmy adhesions, which were

fragile and broken without significant bleeding. These findings were also encountered by Singh et al¹². We had not used drain in mesh laparostomy and zipper technique group. Some authors recommended & reported that these were helpful in removing irrigation fluid during and after lavage(?), but Walsh and Chiasson¹⁰ considered the use of drains as redundant.

The average closure of abdominal wall in our study was 8th day; Teichmann et al 13 closed the wound on an average of 12th day. The primary closure of wound was preferred in 79% of cases by Teichmann et al, Whereas Walsh et al allowed the wounds to close by secondary intention. We performed closure in 9 patients in mesh laparostomy with zipper group; out of these 9 patients 5 under went for tension suturing and 4 patients for mass closure. In mass closure 2 developed wound dehiscence and 2 burst abdomen, which was treated by subsequent secondary suturing. The mass closure was performed in 12 patients in conventional group, out of which 6 died postoperatively. Out of 6 alive patient of mass closure, 5 developed burst abdomen and 1 skin dehiscence. The skin dehiscence was treated by delayed suturing after the clearance of infection. Burst abdomen after definitive closure was more in conventional group might be due to abdominal tension present during closure. Basal atelectasis was more in conventional group. We did not encountered spontaneous or traumatic fistulization due to mesh or zipper, used in our study. The patients with mesh laparostomy & zipper technique were kept on both hyperalimentation or Ryle's tube feeding or jejunostomy feeding as in conventional treatment, because lavages did not precipitate or unduly prolong the paralytic ileus. In mesh laparostomy & zipper group, patients can be made ambulatory postoperatively earlier as compared to conventional group. The outcome of patients in whom the initial standard surgery associated with first attempt mesh and zipper insertion was better than the patient in whom mesh was used in subsequent surgeries.

CONCLUSION

The mesh was applied to those patients who had gross sepsis, compromised anastomosis, high APACHE II scores or tension at closure. These patients were compared with conventional group where abdomen was closed after exploration, definitive surgery and peritoneal lavage. Comparison was done in patients with same APACHE II scores in both groups. The results were same with conventional and mesh laparostomy group with low APACHE II scores, whereas with high APACHE II scores the result of mesh laparostomy has an edge over the conventional group. Intra-abdominal residual abscesses and secondary pathology could be easily detected on daily exploration during lavage in mesh laparostomy group, while in conventional group 35.71% patients underwent re-exploration for residual abscesses and secondary pathology, which was detected after a significant time lapse. The mean hospital stay was almost equal in both groups, 34 days in mesh laparostomy as oppose to 30 days in conventional group. We found better survival outcome in mesh laparostomy group. The mortality was 50% in conventional group, whereas it was as low as 35.71% in mesh laparostomy group.

Since the mesh laparostomy allowed effective continuing drainage of the septic abdomen, better prognosis and almost equal hospital stay; the mesh laparostomy group had some edge over the conventional group. Although this is a very small study to propagate mesh laparostomy as an ideal procedure for abdominal wall closure in case of acute bacterial peritonitis, but there is some scope for its further trials and other re-modalisation of this technique.

REFERENCES

- 1. Ozguc H,Yilmazlar T,Gurluler E, Ozen Y, Korum N,Zorluolu A. Staged abdominal repair in the treatment of intra-abdominal infection: Analysis of 102 patients;J Gastro intest Surg 2003;7(5),646-651.
- 2. Hau TI Ahrenholz DH, Simmons RL Secondary bacterial peritonitis: The biological basis of treatment. Curr Prob Surg 1979;16: 1-64.
- 3. Stephen M, Lmwenthal J. Continuing peritoneal lavage in high risk peritonitis. Surgery 1979;85: 603-606.
- 4. Pennicks FW, Kerremans RP, Lauwers PM. Planned relaparotomies in surgical treatment of

severe generalized peritonitis from intestinal origin. World J Surg 1983; 7: 762-765.

- 5. Polk HC, Fry DE Radical peritoneal debridement for established peritonitis. The results of a prospective randomized clinical trial., Ann Surg 1980; 192: 3504.
- Hedderich S, Wexler MJ, McLean APH, Meakins J L The septic abdomen: open management with marlex mesh with a zipper. Surgery1986; 99: 399-407.
- Garcia, Sabrido JL, Tallado JM, Christou NV, Polo JR, Valdecantos E Treatment of severe intraabdominal sepsis andlor necrotic foci by an 'open abdomen' approach. Arch Surg 1988; 123: 152-156.
- 8. Bose SM,-Kalri M, Sandhu NPS. Open management of septic abdomen by marlex mesh zipper. Aust NZ J Surg 1991; 61: 385-388.
- 9. Hedderich GS, Wexler MJ, Mclean AP. Theseptic abdomen: open management with Marlex mesh with a zipper.Surg 1986;99:399-409.
- 10. WalshGL, Chiasson P, Hedderich G et al. The open abdomen : The Marlex mesh and zipper technique : A method of managing intraperitoneal infection. Surg Clin N A 1988;1:25-40.
- 11. Garcia Sabride JL,Tallade JM,Christou NV,etal. Treatment of severe intraabdominal sepsis or necrotic foci by an 'open' abdomenapproach: Zipper and zipper mesh techniques. Arch Surg 1988;123:152-156.
- 12. Singh K, Chinna RS. Role of zipper in the management of abdominal sepsis. Ind J Gastroenterol 1993;12(1):1-4.
- 13. Teichmann W,Witmann DH, Andreone PA. Scheduled re-operations (EtappenLavage) for diffuse peritonitis.Arch Surg 1986;121:147-152.

Nail the Culprit: Dental Identification

Ayush Razdan Singh

Lecturer, Department of Conservative Dentistry & Endodontics, Sardar Patel Post Graduate Institutue of Dental & Medical Sciences, Chaudhary Vihar, Raebareilly Road, Lucknow, India E-mail id: dr_ayush_singh @ yahoo.com

ABSTRACT

Forensic dentistry plays a major role in identification of deceased individuals⁹. Dental identification of humans occurs for a number of different reasons and in a number of different situations¹⁵. The bodies of victims of violent crimes,^{16,13} fires,³ motor vehicle accidents⁷ and work place accidents can be disfigured to such an extent that identification by a family member is neither reliable nor desirable¹⁰. Persons who have been deceased for some time prior to discovery and those found in water also present unpleasant and difficult visual identifications. Dental identifications have always played a key role in natural and manmade disaster situations and in particular the mass casualties normally associated with aviation disasters^{4,1,5,6}. Because of the lack of a comprehensive fingerprint database, dental identification continues to be crucial.

Key words: Human identification, Dental identification, Bite marks, DNA profiling, Comparative Identification, postmortem profiling.

INTRODUCTION

As we enter a new millennium, society is faced with fresh challenges in every conceivable area. Despite leaps in modern technology, medical breakthroughs and the geographical changes that the last century has brought, crime still persists in all aspects of our lives. Violent and heinous activities that shatter the lives of victims, their friends and families occur everyday. Often, little can be done to repair such damage. The apprehension and subsequent prosecution of the perpetrator(s) is essential to maintain law and order. Through the specialty of forensic odontology, dentistry plays a small but significant role in this process. By identifying the victims of crime and disaster through dental records, dentists assist those involved in crime investigation. Always part of a bigger team, such personnel are dedicated to the common principles of all those involved in forensic casework: the rights of the dead and those who survive them¹².

Correspondence Address:

Dr Ayush Razdan Singh 2/71, Vishal Khand Gomti Nagar Lucknow, UP-226010, Contact No: 9793467975, E-mail id: dr_ayush_singh @ yahoo.com The most common role of the forensic dentist is the identification of deceased individuals⁹. Dental identification takes two main forms. Firstly, the most frequently performed examination is a comparative identification that is used to establish to a high degree of certainty that the remains of a decedent and a person represented by antemortem (before death) records are the same individual. Information from the body or circumstances usually contains clues as to who has died. Secondly, in those cases where antemortem records are not available, and no clues to the possible identity exist, a postmortem(after death)dental profile is completed by the forensic dentist suggesting characteristics of the individual likely to narrow the search for the antemortem materials¹⁴.

Role of DNA in dental identifications

With the introduction of polymerase chain reaction, (PCR) a technique that allows amplification of DNA at pre-selected, specific sites, this source of evidence is now increasingly popular. Comparison of DNA preserved in, and extracted from the teeth of an unidentified individual can be made to a known antemortem sample (stored blood, hairbrush, clothing, cervical smear, biopsy etc) or to a parent or sibling¹⁴.

Genomic DNA

Genomic DNA is found in the nucleus of each cell and represents the DNA source for most forensic applications, (there are no nuclei, and hence there is no DNA, in red blood cells.) When body tissues have decomposed, the structures of the enamel, dentine and pulp complex persist. It is necessary to extract the DNA from the calcified tissues. Teeth represent an excellent source of genomic DNA. PCR-based analysis produces a DNA profile that can be compared with known antemortem samples or paternal DNA. The identification of individuals is not the only use for dental DNA. The technique has allowed criminal investigators to link victims to crime scenes once the body has been removed and incinerated¹².

Mitochondrial DNA

In addition to genomic DNA, cells contain mitochondrial DNA (mtDNA), the sequence of building blocks of which can be determined to assist in identification. The main advantage of mtDNA is that there is a high copy number in each cell caused by the high number of mitochondria present in most cells. This infers that in cases where genomic DNA cannot be analyzed, possibly because it is too degraded, mtDNA may be present in sufficient quantity. In addition to its higher copy number, mtDNA is maternally inherited.

This maternal inheritance pattern confers the same mtDNA sequence, barring mutations, upon siblings and all their maternal relatives. This has important implications for the identification of individuals for which there is no antemortem comparison sample. Although mitochondrial DNA is still in its infancy in forensic casework, it is a powerful technique that is likely to become commonplace in the future¹².

Comparative dental identification

The puzzle that surrounds dental identification is that postmortem dental remains can be compared with antemortem dental records, including written notes, study casts, radiographs etc to confirm identity. Individuals with numerous and complex dental treatments are often easier to identify than those individuals with little or no restorative treatment. The teeth are a reservoir for such unique features and can survive most postmortem events that can change other body tissues¹³. Human remains are found and reported to the police and they then initiate a request for dental identification. A tentative identification like a wallet or driving license is sometimes found which enables the antemortem records to be located. Sometimes the geographical location in which the body is found enables an identification to be made using data from the missing persons database. Antemortem records are then obtained from the dentist of record⁸.

The forensic dentist produces the postmortem record be careful charting and written descriptions of the dental structures and radiographs. If the antemortem records are available at this time, a postmortem radiograph should be taken to replicate the type and angle of these.8 Radiographs should be marked with a rubber-dam punch to indicate antemortem and postmortem to prevent confusion-one hole for antemortem films and two holes for postmortem films. Once the postmortem record is complete, a comparison between the two records is carried out. A methodical and systematic comparison is required, examining each tooth and surrounding structures in turn. While dental restorations are important in the identification process, many other oral features are assessed. Such additional features play an increasingly important role in those individuals with minimal restorations. Because of the decrease in dental caries, non-restorative cases are on the rise¹¹.

Postmortem dental profiling

When antemortem dental records are not available and other methods of identification are not possible then postmortem dental profiling is done. This is done by limiting the population pool to which the deceased individual is likely to belong and thus increase the likelihood of locating antemortem records. It provides information on the age of the deceased, his ancestral background, sex and socio-economic status. Sometimes information can also be obtained on the occupation, dietary habits, habitual behaviour and dental and systemic diseases¹⁴.

Forensic anthropologists most often provide details of osteological studies, but forensic dentists can assist in the process. The determination of sex and ancestry can be assessed from skull shape and form. Generally, from skull appearance, forensic dentists can determine race within the three major groups: Caucasoid, Mongoloid and Negroid. Additional characteristics, such as cusps of Carabelli, shovel-shaped incisors and multi-cusped premolars, can also assist in determination of ancestry. Sex determination is usually based on cranial appearance, as no sex differences are apparent in the morphology of teeth. Microscopic examination of teeth can confirm sex by the presence or absence of Y-chromatin and DNA analysis can also reveal sex¹².

Other methods of dental identification

The two processes described above, comparative identification and post-mortem profiling, represent the most common methods of dental identification. However, in some instances more novel and innovative techniques have been applied. There have been a number of requests from individuals and dental organizations over the years to insist that dental prostheses are labelled with the patient's name or a unique number. Unlabelled dentures have been recovered from patients and then fitted to casts retained by the treating dentist or laboratory, and this has been an accepted method of identification. Other dental appliances, such as removable orthodontic braces have also been used for identification purposes. Whittaker describes a case where a removable orthodontic appliance was used to identify a victim of a house fire¹².

Dental Identification in mass disaster

The identification of large numbers of casualties in mass disasters are complex and fraught with hazards, both physically and emotionally. The identification process is fundamentally the same as that in a routine comparative dental identification, but the inherent problems are magnified. Problems of body fragmentation, mutilation, commingling and incineration, idiosyncratic dental records from numerous regions, poor working conditions and psychological stresses all confound the identification process. The key to successful mass disaster identification is preparedness. Many jurisdictions have dental identification teams and disaster plans in place. Mock disaster scenarios that help dentists prepare for the disaster situation have proven to be successful¹².

Reporting a Dental Identification

The American Board of Forensic Odontology recommends that reporting a dental identification is limited to the following four conclusions:

• Positive identification- The antemortem and postmortem data match in sufficient detail, with

no unexplainable discrepancies, to establish that they are from the same individual.

- Possible identification- The antemortem and postmortem data have consistent features but, because of the quality of either the postmortem remains or the antemortem evidence, it is not possible to establish identity positively.
- Insufficient evidence- The available information is insufficient to form a basis of conclusion.
- Exclusion- The antemortem and postmortem data are clearly inconsistent².

CONCLUSION

Although we are a civilized and cultured society, we still see deaths due to suicides, homicides and accidents. Natural disasters such as floods, cyclones earthquakes and other activities such as air and rail disasters, fires, industrial accidents and terrorism also wreck havoc in society.

Identification of the criminal and the victim is of paramount importance from a social, emotional and legal view-point. The most reliable means of identification include: fingerprints, dental comparisons and biological methods such as DNA profiling. Although forensic medicine is by and large involved in this, identification by dental records is also possible.

Forensic odontology is one of the most unexplored and intriguing branch of forensic medicine. Dental evidence plays a vital role in establishing the identity of the dead.In this process dental records that can be used are tooth, arch shape, saliva, bitemarks and pulp tissue from which personal identification can be made accurately.

REFERENCES

- 1. Alexander CJ, Foote GA. Radiology in forensic identification: the Mt. Erebus disaster. Australas Radiol 1998; 42: 321-326.
- 2. American Board of Forensic Odontology. Body identification guidelines J Am Dent Assoc 1994; 125: 1244-1254.
- 3. Andersen L, Luhl M, Solheim T, Borrman H. Odontological identification of fire victimspotentialities and limitations. Int J Legal Med 1995; 107: 229-234.
- 4. Brannon RB, Kessler HP. Problems in mass disaster dental identification: a retrospective review. J Forensic Sci 1999; 44: 123-127.

- Chapenoire S, Schuliar Y, Corvisier JM. Rapid efficient dental identification of 92% of 13 train passengers carbonized during collision with a petrol tanker. Am J Forensic Med Pathol 1998; 19: 352-355.
- Clark DH. An analysis of the value of forensic odontology in ten mass disasters. Int Dent J 1994; 44: 241-250.
- 7. Dorion RB. Disasters big and small. J Can Dent Assoc 1990; 56: 593-598
- 8. Goldstein M, Sweet DJ, Wood RE. A specimen positioning device for dental radiographic identification. Image geometry considerations. J Forensic Sci 1998; 43: 185-189.
- 9. Jones D G .Odontology is often final piece to grim puzzle. J Calif Dent Asso.1998; 26: 650-651.
- Malkowski FS. Forensic dentistry, a study of personal identification. Dent Stud 1972; 51: 42-44.

- 11. Murray J. Prevention of oral diseases. Oxford: Oxford University Press, 1986.
- 12. Pretty IA, Sweet D. A look at forensic dentistry: The role of teeth in the determination of human identity. BDJ 2001; 190: 359-366.
- 13. Rothwell BR, Haglund W, Morton TH. Dental identification in serial homicides: the Green River Murders. J Am Dent Assoc 1980; 119: 373-379.
- 14. Sweet D, DiZinno J A. Personal identification through dental evidence-tooth fragments to DNA. J Calif Dent Assoc 1996; 24: 35-42.
- 15. Weeds VW. Postmortem identifications of remains. Clin Lab Med 1998; 18: 115-137.
- Whitaker DK, Richards BH, Jones ML. Orthodontic reconstruction in victim of murder. Br J Orthod 1998; 25: 11-14.

Ulcer Foot - Malignant Melanoma - A Case Report

Basumitra Das*, G. Parvathi**, J.Chandralekha**, K.V. Murali Mohan*

*Associate Professor, ** Assistant Professor Department of Pathology, Andhra Medical College, Visakhapatnam, AP, India

inchi of Functogy, Finanti Fieucea Conege, Vioantapartant, Fie

ABSTRACT

Malignant melanoma is fatal skin cancer when detected and treated early prognosis will be good. Recent reports indicate rising incidence globally. This case study indicates how the people neglect the problems so much. A female patient aged 65 years presented with a painful non healing ulcer with pigmented margins of eighteen months duration on plantar aspect of the right heel. Three lymph nodes were present in the right inguinal region aspirated and obtained tarry coloured fluid revealed malignant melanoma cells with melanin pigment. Biopsy report confirmed the diagnosis that nodular aggregates of infiltrating melanoma cells with melanin pigment in the background of necrosis. Malignant melanoma remains one of the most challenging malignant neoplasm, particularly in developing countries where majority of patients present with late stage disease. Size of the ulcer indicates negligence of the patient. Health education may lead to future decline in morbidity and mortality.

Key words: : Ulcer foot, Pigmented margins, Malignant melanoma.

INTRODUCTION

Melanoma is most dangerous type of skin cancer arising from melanocytes which produce a skin pigment called melanin. Melanin is responsible for colour of hair and skin. Melanocytes predominantely present in skin and also in bowel & eye. Melanoma is one of the less common types of skin cancer but causes majority of skin cancer deaths. Melanoma can appear on normal skin or may arise from a birth mole. It is also called malignant melanoma because it spreads to other areas of the body as it grows beneath the surface of the skin. The development of melanoma related to long term exposure of strong sun light or ultra violet radiation particularly in fair skinned people.

There are 4 types of melanoma

A. **Superficial spreading melanoma:** is most common type, 70% of melanomas. Usually flat irregular in shape and colour, with different shades of black and brown. It may occur at any

Correspondence Address:

Dr. Basumitra Das, MD. Associate Professor of Pathology Door No: 15-15-51, F2, B2, Prince Appartment , Maharanipeta Visakhapatnam - 530 002, A.P., India Cell No: +91 9440 04 2844 E mail: basumitra67@gmail.com age are body site and most common in caucasians.

- B. **Nodular melanoma:** constitutes 15% 0f melanomas usually starts as a rised area with blakish blue or bluish red or may be amelanotic.
- C. Lentigo maligna melanoma: Constitute 10% of melanomas and usually occurs in the elderly. Commonly seen in sun damaged skin of face, neck & arms. Usually large flat and tan in colour.
- D. Acral lentiginous melanoma: least common form of melanoma 5%. Common in African Americans and occurs on the palms & soles.

Rarely melanomas may appear in mouth, iris of the eye or retina. It may be noticed at the time of dental or eye examination. It can also develop in vagina oesophagus anus, urinary tract & small intestine.

Primary symptoms are mole, sore, lump or growth on the skin.

ABCD system for easy remembaring of symptoms

- A. Asymmetry in the affected area.
- B. Borders irregular edges.
- C. Colour changes shades of tan, brown or black.
- D. Diameter usually larger than 6 mm.

Biopsy may confirm the diagnosis. Prognosis depends on the early diagnosis and treatment⁶.

CASE REPORT

A 65 years old female presented with painful ulcer over the plantar aspect of the right heel for 18 months duration of size 7.5 x 5cms. Slowly growing ulcer with pigmented margins Figure 1. Not a known diabetic. No history of pre existing naevus or ulcer. Patient complaining of loss of appetite, loss of weight and swelling in the inguinal region. Three lymph nodes



Fig.1: Ulcer heel with pigmented margins.



Fig.2: Melanoma cell in FNAC [H&E X800].



Fig.3: Nodular aggregates of melanoma cells in the background of necrosis & melanin pigment [H&E x400].

found were aspirated and obtained blakish tarry coloured fluid which shows melanoma cells with melanin pigment suggestive of malignant melanoma Figure 2. An incitional biopsy was taken from the foot lesion confirmed the diagnosis, that nodular aggregates of infiltrating melanoma cells with melanin pigment in the background of necrosis Figure 3 & 4. Immunohistochemical stains S 100 & HMB-45 not done as it is well differentiated malignant melanoma¹. CT scan revealed no metastasis of chest and abdomen. As per TNM staging it was labeled Stage III C. No similar history in the family members.



Fig.3: Melanoma cells with melanin pigment [H&EX800].

DISCUSSION

Worldwide incidence of melanoma is increasing at a faster rate than any other neoplasm. Around 60 thousand new cases of invassive malignant melanoma are diagnosed in U.S each year. As per WHO 48 thousand melanoma related deaths registered worldwide per year that is approximately 1% of all cancer deaths. Queensland, Australia & Israel has highest incidence of melanoma in the world⁴. Increased incidence of uveal melanoma is seen in France, Italy and Japan. It is interesting that when Jews residing in various parts of the world were studied those in Asia & Africa had the lowest incidence. India is one of the low incidence regions of the world. Indian ethnic migrants to Great Britain also enjoy low mortality in relation to melanoma¹.

Melanoma may occur at any age. The risk of developing melanoma increases with age, highest among those in their eighties. It is one of the more common cancers in young adults and otherwise healthy people. People who begin using tanning devices [U V radiation] before 30 years of age are 75% more likely to develop melanoma. The rarity of the tumour before puberty indicates hormonal influence². Melanoma more common in whites than blacks and Asians. It is the 5th most common malignancy in men and 6th most common in women. Approximately 10% of all patients with melanoma have a family history⁴. Familial melanoma is genetically heterogeneous. Loci for familial melanoma have been identified on the chromosome arms 1p, 9p&12q. Multiple genetic events have been related to the pathogenesis of melanoma. Mutation of the MD M2 SNP 309 gene is associated with increased risk of melanoma in younger women. Mutations that cause the skin condition Xeroderma Pigmentosum also seriously predispose one to melanoma⁵.

Acral lentiginous melanoma, first described by Rene, is the most common melanoma type that presents on the plantar aspect of the foot and is frequently misdiagnosed due to its less common location and because it does not fit the ' changing mole' pattern. This type is commonly amelanotic. Plantar melanomas are more commonly ulcerated than melanomas on the leg. Ulcerated and amelanotic melanomas still present a considerable clinical challenge. Aggressive tumors grow quickly and can ulcerate early. It does not exhibit the classic signs of malignant melanoma associated with the mnemonic acid³. The Bombay cancer group found sole of foot and internal mucous membranes as major anatomic sites in Indians. Plantar acral melanomas constituted 1/4 of all melanomas in a study from Manipal. In Hong Kong & China cuteneous malignant melanoma is found predominantly at an older age with the acral lentiginous type, located mainly on the feet¹. Its thickness at the time of diagnosis is crucial to the prognosis but there is no significant difference between the mean thickness of melanomas on plantar surface. Ulceration is equivalent to having a thicker, more advanced tumour. Past history of melanoma must be elicited as there is increased risk of second melanoma⁴. Melanoma is one of the most notorious tumors both for metastasis at unusual locations or after a long latent period¹. Brain is a common site of metastasis associated with poor prognosis⁴. Incidence of inguinal lymph node metastasis reported in 4% of cases without primary lesion may be due to spontaneous regression of primary lesion².

Although Immunohistochemical stains usually are not necessary for diagnosis, they are generally performed for completeness. S -100& HMB 45 stains are positive in melanoma. S-100 is highly sensitive, but not specific for melanoma. HMB 45 is highly specific but moderately sensitive for melanoma. These stains are useful for poorly differentiated melanomas. Acral melanoma has been mistaken for plantar warts, fungal infections, hyperkeratotic lesions and non-healing ulcers. Non healing diabetic foot ulcers should be biopsied to rule out melanoma. A black malignant melanoma can also be mistaken for gangrene. Squamous cell carcinoma ulceration is extremely rare on skin, which was not previously damaged by radiation, burns or chronic inflammation.

Early detection of malignant melanoma greatly enhances the prognosis which depends on age, sex, site, mitotic divisions & ulceration. Younger patients have better prognosis & Male have worse. Primary melanoma of the foot has been associated with a poorer survival rate than secondary type. Head & neck melanomas have worse prognosis than limbs⁵.

Melanoma that occurs in the foot or ankle often goes unnoticed during its earliest stage, when it would be more easily treated. By the time melanoma of the foot or ankle is diagnosed, it frequently has progressed to an advanced stage, accounting for a higher mortality rate. The existance of malignant melanoma though uncommon in our country, needs to be recognized and considered in the diagnosis of poorly differentiated lesions at any site.

REFERENCES

- Col. R. Lakhtakia, Col. A. Mahta, Maj. Gen. S. K. Nema. Melanoma: A frequently missed diagnosis. MJAFI. 2009. 65. 292-294.
- A.Z. Mohammed, A. N Manasseh, B.M. Mandong and S.T. Edino. Histopathological study of malignant melanoma in high Landers. The Nigerian journal of surgical research. 2003. Jan-June. vol. 5, No. 1-2.
- Lee C. Rogers, David G. Armstrong, Andrew J.M. Boulton, Anthony J. Freemont and Rayz A. Malik. Malignant Melanoma Misdiagnosed as a Diabetic Foot Ulcer. Diabetes Care. 2007. February, vol. 30, No.2, 444-445.
- 4. Winston W Tan. Malignant Melanoma. E medicine: Web MD. 2010. Sep.10.
- Vinay Kumar, Abul K. Abbas, Nelson Fausto. Robbins and Cotran Pathologic Basis of Disease. Saunders - Elsevier.2010. 7th edition. Chapter 25, pp 1234-1236.
- 6. Harsh Mohan. Text Book of Pathology. Jaypee.2010. 6th edition. Chapter26, pp787-789.

A Study of Incidence of Fulminant Hepatic Failure in Paeditric Age Group and Knowledge, Behaviour & Attitude Regarding Etiology of Jaundice in Society

Yogesh Kumar Goel¹, Daya Chand², Bhawna Kohli³ Savitri Singh⁴, Yogesh Rai⁵

^{1,3}Assistant Professor, ²Associate Professor, Department of Pediatrics, ⁴Associate Professor Department of Pathology, ⁵Assistant Professor Department of Biochemistry, Saraswathi Institute of Medical Sciences, Anwarpur, Hapur, (Uttar Pradesh).

ABSTRACT

Object: To study the incidence and etiology of fulminant hepatic failure (FHF) in children and to study, attitude, behavior and knowledge regarding etiology and treatment of jaundice among the accompanying persons of cases of Jaundice.

Material & methods: The present study was conducted in the Department of Pediatrics, Saraswathi Institute of Medical Sciences (SIMS), Anwarpur, Hapur. 38570 children between 6 months to 18 years of age belonging to both rural and urban areas with signs and symptoms suggestive of liver disease and Children who fulfilled diagnostic criteria of FHF were included. Children were investigated for incidence and etiology of liver disease. A questionnaire was prepared to study the knowledge, attitude and behavior regarding etiology and treatment of jaundice among the accompanying persons of Jaundice Patients.

Result: Incidence of FHF was 1.4 per 1000 per year. Out of total 1010 jaundiced patients, incidence of FHF was 2.5%. Cases of FHF were maximum 61.1% in 5-15 year age group, Male: female ratio was almost equal in case of FHF (1.25:1). In our study etiological diagnosis was possible in 68.48% cases, out of which 61.08% were of viral etiology. 31.48% were idiopathic. Drug induced FHF was in 7.4%. Out of 1010 Jaundice patients, 370 patients (36.63%) were from urban area and 640 patients (63.36%) were from rural area. Commonest misconception was that the cause of hepatitis is super natural and they go to supernatural healers (Quacks) for treatment, 50% from urban area and 78.12% from rural area had this belief. They follow a special diet, they restrict protein, fat, Yellow Edible things like turmeric and not use full milk, in urban area 70.54% and In Rural area 84.37% had this belief. Knowledge and Awareness about immunisation, safe Injection and safe water was observed in accompanying persons of rural and urban area. it was found that there is less awareness in rural area then urban area. it was observed that there is significant co-relation between knowledge, attitude and behavior of public on the occurrence and complication of jaundice.

Conclusion: It is concluded that there is need to increase the public awareness by different educational programs regarding etiology of hepatitis and its prevention by immunisation for hepatitis A and B, use of safe injection, safe water and hygienic Sanitary habits. Early detection of liver disease and management of case by a competent doctor is the mainstay to decrease the mortality from jaundice.

Type of Study: Prospective hospital based mortality.

Keywords: : Jaundice, FHF, Hepatitis, immunization,

INTRODUCTION

FHF is usually defined as the severe impairment of hepatic functions in the absence of pre-existing liver disease. FHF is a clinical syndrome resulting from massive necrosis of hepatocytes or from severe functional impairment of hepatocytes. The currently accepted definition in children includes¹.

- Biochemical evidence of acute liver injury (usually <8 week duration)
- (2) No evidence of chronic liver disease and Hepatic based coagulopathy defined as a prothrombin time (PT) > 15 seconds or international normalized ratio (INR) > 1.5 not corrected by vitamin K, in the presence of clinical features of hepatic encephalopathy or PT > 20 seconds or INR > 2

regardless of the presence or absence of clinical features of hepatic encephalopathy

CAUSES OF FHF

Infectious agents: In approximately 50% of patients, FHF is caused by acute viral hepatitis, common hepatotropic viruses are A, B, C, D, & E. Many non hepatotropic viruses other than hepatitis are also recognized as cause of FHF in childhood, including Epstein Barr virus, cytomegalovirus (CMV); paramyxovirus, varicella zoster virus, herpes virus types 1, 2 and 6; parvovirus and adenovirus.

Hepatotoxic drugs: These agents are the second most common causes of FHF, responsible for approximately 25% of cases, eg. Acetaminophen overdose, sodium Valproate etc.

Circulatory causes: Is uncommon cause of FHF. They include congestive heart failure, cardiomyopathy, sepsis, shock, cyanotic heart disease.

Other **causes** include Hodgkin's disease, leukemic infiltration, and autoimmune hepatitis.

Idiopathic: Idiopathic FHF remains significant in children.

MATERIAL & METHODS: The present study was conducted in the Department of Pediatrics, SIMS Anwarpur Hapur for a period of 24 months from January 2010 to Dec. 2011. Random sampling was done and cases are selected from indoor and OPD, Department of Pediatric SIMS (Tertiary Level Care Center) Anwarpur Hapur. The study was conducted in collaboration with Departments of Pathology and Biochemistry.

Inclusion Criteria: The cases were selected randomly from OPD and ward; they comprised children between 6 months to 18 years of age belonging to both rural and urban areas and of various religions and socioeconomic status, Children with signs and symptoms suggestive of liver disease and Children who fulfilled diagnostic criteria of FHF.

Exclusion Criteria: Children with pre existing liver disease were excluded.

A detailed case history was taken and a thorough clinical examination was done in each case. The findings were recorded in a specially prepared Performa.

The cases were subjected to following investigation: HB, TLC, DLC, ESR, Hepatic Enzymes- SGPT, SGOT, Serum Alkaline Phosphatase, S. Bilirubin- Direct & Indirect, RBS, Renal Function - S. Creatinine, S.Phosphorous, Serum Electrolytes - S. Na+, S.K+, S.Ca++, Coagulation Profile - PT, APTT, Viral Studies-HBs Ag, IgM anti HBcAg, Anti HAV IgM, Anti HCV antibody, Anti HEV IgM IgG or IgM antibody against CMV, EBV and Herpes virus, Toxin and drug level in serum whenever indicated. A questionnaire was prepared to study the knowledge, attitude and behavior regarding etiology and treatment of jaundice & FHF.

OBSERVATIONS

In this study following observations were made.

Out of sample size 38570, 54 Patients were diagnosed as FHF. Incidence rate calculated and it was found 1.4 per 1000 per year. (Table I). Out of total 1010 jaundiced patients, 40 patients were diagnosed as FHF. It was found that cases of FHF were maximum (61.1%) in 5-15 year age group (Table II). The table shows that male female ratio is almost equal in case of FHF (1.25:1) (Table III). In our study etiological diagnosis was possible in 68.48% cases, out of which 61.08% were of viral etiology. Idiopathic FHF remains a significant cause in children (31.48%). Drug induced FHF was in 7.4% Cases and all cases were due to Paracetamol drug injury (Table IV). Jaundice in Urban and Rural Area was 36.63% and 63.36% respectively (Table V). Regarding misconceptions among accompanying person, commonest misconception was that the cause of hepatitis is super natural and there is no need to go to Doctor, It was found 50% and 78.12% in Urban and Rural Areas Respectively. They go to super natural healers (Quacks) for treatment, who use Bhaboot and Necklace of Special Wood. Super natural healers also do Jharphook (Mantra Tantra) to treat this disease and they also use special herbs for treatment, 50% of Urban and 78.12% of rural accompanying person visited these so called healers before coming to hospital. About 70.54% from urban area and 84.37% from rural area think that they had to follow a special diet with restricted protein and Fat. They do not give Yellow Edible Things to eat like turmeric they also think that full milk should not be used. These thought misbeliefs lead to more malnourishment and increased risk of complications (Table VI). Knowledge and Awareness about immunisation safe Injection and Safe Water was observed, Immunisation against hepatitis A and hepatitis B is available but accompanying persons were not aware about Immunisation against these Viruses. Regarding awareness about immunization 50% and 30% accompanying persons were aware from Urban and Rural area respectively. Safe Injection and use of disposable syringes is must to prevent hepatitis B and hepatitis C. In urban area 74.86% and in rural area only 50% had knowledge of safe Injection. Use of safe water is must to reduce the faeco-oral transmission of hepatitis A and E. In Urban area 74.86% and in rural

area 39.06% had knowledge of safe water. (Table VII)

Total Patients (OPD + IPD)	No. of fulminant hepatic failure Patients	incidence
38570	54	1.4 per 1000

Table I. Incidence of FHF

Table II. Age Incidence of FHF

Age group	No. of patients	%
Below 5 year	12	22.22
5-10 year	15	27.77
11-15 year	18	33.33
16-18 year	9	16.66
Total	54	100

Table III. Gender Incidence of FHF

Sex	No. of patients	%
Male	30	55.5
Female	24	44.44
Total	54	100%

Table IV. Etiology of FHF

Etiology	No. of Patients	0//o
Hepatitis A	18	33.33
Hepatitis B	5	9.25
Hepatitis C	2	3.70
Hepatitis E	8	14.8
Drugs	4	7.40
Idiopathic	17	31.48
Total	54	100%

Table V. Demographic Pattern of Jaundice Patients

AREA	No of Patient of Jaundice	%
URBAN	370	36.63
RURAL	640	63.36

TABLE VI. Misconceptions regarding Jaundice in Rural and Urban Area

Misconception	Urban/ Rural	No of Patients	%
Disease is Super	Urban	185	50%
Natural	Rural	500	78.12%
Goes to Quacks	Urban	185	50%
for treatment	Rural	500	78.12%
Dietary Restriction	Urban	261	70.54%
	Rural	540	84.37%

TABLE VII. Knowledge and Awareness about immunization safe Injection and Safe Water

Have	Urban/	No of	%
Knowledge of	Rural	Patients	
Immunisation of	Urban	185	50%
hepatits A and B	Rural	192	30%
Safe Injection	Urban	277	74.86%
	Rural	320	50%
Taking Safe Water	Urban	277	74.86%
	Rural	250	39.06%

DISCUSSION

The Incidence of FHF was 1.4 per 1000 per year. In the present study most of the patients [58.5%] were in 5-15 year age group. Bradley et al (1983)² reported that disease affects the young adults predominantly. In the present study male: Female ratio was 1.25:1 i.e. males and Females were almost equally affected. Results were comparable with Raju et al (1989)³, Gimson et al $(1983)^4$, U poddar et al $(2002)^5$. In the present study viral etiology was present in 61.08%, out of which hepatitis A found in about 33.33%. HEV 14.8% and Hepatitis B in 9.25% cases. Similar observation was noted by MD Yohannan (1990)⁶, Thapa et al (1995)⁷, U Poddar et al (2002)⁵. Drug induced FHF was in 7.4% cases, whereas paracetamol overdoses was prominent cause of FHF in Europe (42%) Gagan K Sood, Julian Katz (2011)8. No cause was found in 31.48% cases, the observation for idiopathic FHF was similar to Robert H et al (2008)⁹, various misconceptions and lack of knowledge were present in both rural and urban areas but they were more prevalent in rural areas. Misconception like cause of hepatitis is super natural and can be treated by super natural healers was more in rural area (72.12%) then urban area (50%). Misconception regarding restriction of diet in jaundice was more in rural area (88.2 %) then urban area (50 %). Dietary restriction was more in rural area (84.37%) than urban area (70.54%). Knowledge of immunization for hepatitis A and hepatitis B was more in urban area (50%) then rural area (30%) Knowledge of safe injection was present more in urban area (74.86%) then in rural area (39.06%) Use of safe water and safe sanitary practices was more in urban area (74.86%) then rural area (39.06%).

CONCLUSION

On the basis of this study following conclusion were drawn:- FHF has a low incidence. In our study incidence rate was 1.4 per 1000 per year. Incidence of FHF in jaundice patient was 2.5 %, in this study 61.1% patients were of 5-15 year of age group. Our result showed that there is significant co-relation between knowledge, attitude and behavior on the occurrence of Jaundice and its complications this calls for increasing awareness on all aspects of jaundice to minimize the complications. It is concluded that there is need to increase the public awareness by different educational programs regarding etiology of hepatitis and its prevention by immunisation for hepatitis A and B, use of safe injection, safe water and hygienic Sanitary habits. Early detection of liver disease and management of case by a competent doctor is the mainstay to decrease the mortality from Jaundice.

KEY MESSAGE

• One of the most common causes of FHF is viral, so immunisation against hepatitis A & B must be introduced in immunization programme.

Education programmes regarding safe injection, etiology of hepatitis, immunization, personal and environmental hygiene must be introduced in schools.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Authors would like to acknowledge the help provided by Dr.Nishi Agrawal DGO and to offer grtitude to all parents who participated in this study.

Conflict of Interest- Nil

Source of funding- None

BIBLIOGRAPHY

 Nelson Textbook of pediatrics 18th edition volume 2 Page No. 1703-1705.

- 2. Bradley DW, Maynard JE, Popper H et a! : Post transfusion non A non B hepatitis, Physiochemical property of two distinct agents. Infect, dis. 1983; 148: 254-265.
- 3. Raju GS, Broor S. Singh V. and Mehta Sk: Fulminant viral Hepatitis : Indian experience Journal of Gastroenterology and Hepatology 1989; 4 : 161-165.
- 4. Gimson AES, White YS, Eddleston ALWF, Williams R : Clinical *and* prognostic differences in Fulminant hepatitis type A, B, and non A non B. Gut 1983; 124 : 1194-1198.
- 5. Poddar U, Thapa BR, Prasad A, Sharma AK, Singh K : Natural history and risk factors in fulminant hepatic failure. Arch Dis Child. 2002 Jul;87(1):54-56.
- 6. M.D YOHANNAN, M. ARIF, S.RAMIA : Aetiology of Icteric Hepatitis and Fulminant Hepatic Failure in Children and the Possible Predisposition to Hepatic Failure by Sickle Cell Disease. Acta Paediatr Scand 1990;79(2):201-205.
- 7. Thapa BR, Singh K, Singh V, Broor S, Nain CK : Pattern of hepatitis A & hepatitis B virus markers in cases of acute sporadic hepatitis & in healthy school children from North West India : Journal of Tropical Pediatrics, 1995; 41 : 328-329.
- 8. Acute liver failure Gagan k sood, chief editor Julian katz, md medscape reference updated march 2011.
- 9. Ronald A. Sacher, James W. Shih, and Robert H. Pureed : Hepatitis C Virus-Associated Fulminant Hepatic Failure. N Engl J Med 1996; 335:631-634.

Sero-Prevalence of Rubella infection

Durgadas Naik* Aynom Tsegay**

*Associate Professor of Microbiology, **Clinical Laboratory Scientist /Graduate Assistant Asmara College of Health Sciences, Asmara, Eritrea

ABSTRACT

Background: The burden of rubella infection in most of the developing countries especially in Africa is not well documented because of limited epidemiological studies. Congenital rubella syndrome (CRS) in the newborn is one of the important complications of rubella infection. Many countries have introduced MMR (measles, mumps and rubella) vaccine to control CRS. Measles has been successfully controlled in many countries by vaccination centered measles control program. However, most of the African countries have not included MMR vaccine in their national immunization program.

Objective: The exact magnitude of Rubella cases in this geographic area is not known. The availability of an effective vaccine to prevent Rubella infection and therefore CRS, has made it necessary to evaluate the burden of disease in a country where MMR vaccine is not covered in the immunization schedule or in vaccination strategy. A retrospective study was undertaken to find out the seroprevalence of rubella infection in Eritrea.

Material and Methods: This study was done in the Immunoserology section of National Health Laboratory of Eritrea which is also National Reference Laboratory. The results of earlier years were collected from the National Measles reference Laboratory and this data is primary and reliable. Rubella specific IgM kit was used using Dade-Behring, Germany ELISA kit . Specimen collection, handling, transport and processing were done as per the instructions given by the manufacturer.

Results: The seroprevalence of rubella cases (69) were high in the year 2006, when compared to other years. Like in most of the studies, the distribution of Rubella cases was maximum in children of below 14 years. Seasonal distribution of the rubella cases shows, 96% were recorded in January to May 2006 with highest number occurring in the month of April.

Conclusion: The results analysis indicate the prevalence of Rubella virus in this geographic area and in the absence of MMR vaccine in the immunization schedule there is every possibility of acquiring Rubella infection during pregnancy and therefore CRS.

Key words: Rubella, Seroprevalence, Congenital rubella syndrome

INTRODUCTION

In viral disease control measures, killer diseases of children that are preventable by vaccination are given top priority. These include diseases like Polio, Hepatitis, Measles, and Rubella. Rubella has a worldwide distribution. Before the introduction of vaccination, outbreaks tend to occur in spring and summer. Children of 3-10 yrs are most frequently

Corresponding author Durgadas Govind Naik Asmara College of Health Sciences, Eritrea E-mail: durga_das2002@yahoo.com affected. Rubella is generally mild childhood viral disease. The disease is of very important public health problem because infection acquired during early pregnancy often results in number of fetal malformations called as Congenital Rubella Syndrome (CRS). Despite the vaccination program 5-10% of women of child bearing age are susceptible to rubella infection. Many nations have not introduced MMR vaccination and as a result, protection against Rubella is not provided to children. Thus making children vulnerable for Rubella infection¹. Congenital rubella is a major global cause of preventable hearing impairment, blindness and intellectual disability. The incidence rate of CRS is estimated to be 0.5 to 2.2 per

1000 live births in developing countries. Only 28% of developing countries vaccinate against Rubella². In countries where vaccination is uncommon, the incidence of rubella infection is high and epidemics are frequent. Serology is the mainstay of diagnosis of rubella infection. A reliable method of diagnosing rubella infection in a laboratory is by detection of rubella-specific IgM antibodies.

Rubella has been a special concern of ophthalmologists for more than 60 years. In 1941, Greg reported cataracts in 78 infants, many of whom were also affected by congenital heart disease and failure to thrive. Subsequent studies confirmed that the risk of rubella defects was high in infants whose mothers were infected by rubella virus in the first 16 weeks of pregnancy³. WHO estimates that, worldwide, more than 100000 children are born with CRS each year, most of them in developing countries⁴.

Eritrea is situated in the horn of Africa with an area of 122,000 sq.kms, with a population of ~3.5 million. To the east, the country is bordered by the Red Sea, Djibouti borders in the South-East, Ethiopia in the South, the Sudan in the North & West. As per demographic & Health Survey, 2002, published by the National Statistics and Evaluation Office, Asmara, Eritrea, May 2003, the infant mortality rate is 48 and 93 per thousand live births.

Like any part of the world, Rubella cases are reported in Eritrea. In Integrated Disease Surveillance and Response Program, which was adopted n 1998 and implemented in 2001, Measles is one of the priority diseases. Rubella is not included in the priority diseases. A Measles Reference Laboratory, aided by WHO was established within National Reference Health Laboratory, in the year 2002. In Eritrea, Surveillance on the prevalence of Rubella by immunoserological studies, guides ministry of health in intervention measure. When referred to data available on measles and rubella, it appeared that measles cases are on down trend and rubella cases on up trend. The actual burden of rubella infection in most of the developing countries especially in Africa is not well documented. The availability of an effective vaccine to prevent Rubella infection and therefore CRS, has made it necessary to evaluate the burden of disease in a country where MMR vaccine is not covered in the immunization schedule or in vaccination strategy. This prompted us to take up this research study to find out the reality of rubella cases in Eritrea by taking immunoserological prevalence as a parameter.

MATERIAL AND METHODS

This study was done as part of senior research paper of second author in the Immunoserology section

of National Health Laboratory of Eritrea which is also National Reference Laboratory. The Measles Reference laboratory is located within National Health Laboratory and conducts tests for Measles and rubella suspected cases. The results of the other years were collected from the National Measles reference Laboratory and this data is primary and reliable. In brief, 5 ml of Blood specimen from each suspected patient was collected and serum was separated using biocentrifuge. Rubella specific IgM kit was used using Dade-Behring, Germany ELISA kit. Elisa test was done using standard protocol given by the manufacturer. Specimen collection, handling, transport and processing were done as per the instructions given by the manufacturer.

RESULTS

The number of suspected rubella cases ranged from 43 to 112 per year over the years 2002 to 2007 (Table 1 & Figure 1) . The maximum number was in the year 2006. Of the112 cases, 69 were laboratory confirmed rubella cases. However, trend was different in the year 2007 , where the number of cases were 4. For the last 6 years, maximum of 69 cases were detected in 2006. These are confirmed cases of Rubella and usually referred to Measles Reference Laboratory for the detection of measles. Thus, clinical cases which were not referred to the reference center are likely to be high.

Table 1. Number of cases of Rubella - year wise

Year	Positive	Negative	Total
2002	18	37	55
2003	4	59	63
2004	1	33	34
2005	15	72	87
2006	69	43	112
2007	4	39	43
	111	283	394

In the year, 2006, a total of 127 suspected measles cases were investigated by immunoserology section and found 3 confirmed cases of measles by ELISA IgM



Fig. 1. Rubella cases - Year wise

specific for measles. On the other hand, of the 128 cases; 69 cases were confirmed by immunoserology laboratory as rubella. From the year 2006 data, it is evident that there is widespread presence of rubella in the community. 60 of the 65 cases were of below 14 years age group (Table 2 & Figure 2). Seasonal distribution of the rubella cases shows, 96% were recorded in January to May 2006 with highest number occurring in the month of April (Table 3 & Figure 3). The number of measles cases was 11,16, and 3 for the years 2004, 2005 and 2006, respectively.

Age Group	Positive	Negative	Total
Less than 9 months	1	3	4
9 to <12 months	0	3	3
24 to < 60 months	10	7	17
5 to <14 years	49	21	70
14 years and above	5	3	8
Missing	4	6	10
Total	69	43	112

Table 2. Rubella Cases - Age wise (Year 2006)



Month	Positive	Negative	Total
January	10	6	16
February	11	9	20
March	11	5	16
April	23	6	29
May	10	4	14
June	1	2	3
July	0	1	1
August	0	1	1
September	0	1	1
October	2	4	6
November	0	2	2
December	1	2	3
	69	43	112

Table 3	Rubella	C2606	- Month	WISE	(Vear 2006)
I able 5.	Nubella	Lases	- 191011111	WISC V	1 Eat 2000)



DISCUSSION

Like in most of the studies^{4,5,6} the distribution of Rubella cases was maximum in children of below 14 years. Most of the cases recorded were in the months of January, February, March, April and May. It is difficult to draw any conclusion about seasonal distribution, just based on one year data. However, in many studies^{7,8} most of the rubella cases were recorded in winter. In the present study most of the cases were recorded in January to May period. In one of the studies involving screening 2300 cases for rubella infection, no seasonal pattern was observed⁹.

In a unvaccinated case low seroprevalences and late encounter of mumps and rubella was observed¹⁰. In another study, CMV infection was prevalent in a significantly higher number of children with hepatospleen-omegaly than rubella while in infants with congenital malformations a significantly higher number had rubella infection. It is concluded that rubella and CMV infections are commonly seen in children with intrauterine infections¹¹. In a study, involving 917 women and 99 newborn babies who were jaundiced, or who died within a few days of birth or who showed gross congenital abnormalities, IgM antibodies to cytomegalovirus (CMV), Herpes simplex virus type 2 (HSV-2) and rubella virus were detected indicating the importance of this virus in intra-uterine infection¹². Congenital rubella syndrome (CRS) and congenitally infected babies were born from 12 highrisk mothers in Japan and authors strongly advocated more intensive immunization to eradicate CRS completely in Japan⁷. An outbreak of Rubella was recorded in Brazil and an attempt was made to prevent by vaccination⁸.

The epidemiology of rubella and CRS has changed significantly in the last decade. These changes and molecular typing suggest that the United States is on the verge of elimination of the disease. This is mainly achieved by vaccination program. During the 1990s, the incidence of rubella in children younger than 15 years decreased (0.63 vs 0.06 per 100 000 in 1990 vs 1999), whereas the incidence in adults aged 15 to 44 years increased (0.13 vs 0.24 per 100 000). 23 CRS infants were born to foreign-born mothers. The findings indicate sustained low incidence of rubella and CRS since 199213,14. Rubella vaccine has emerged as the most effective public health measure against the well known crippling consequences of congenital rubella infection (CRI). After the devastating pandemic of rubella between 1962 and 1965, United States licensed the use of vaccine in 1969, which resulted in 99% reduction of cases¹⁵. In 1996, the Immunization Working Group of the Mexico-United States Binominal Commission was established to enhance coordination of disease surveillance, assure high vaccination coverage in both countries, and hasten the elimination of vaccine-preventable diseases. The United States and Mexico share the Pan American Health Organization (PAHO) goal of measles elimination by 2000¹⁶.

No country in sub-saharan Africa vaccinate against rubella. It is recommended that countries wishing to undertake prevention program for CRS should either mount vaccination programs for adolescent girls or women of reproductive age or offer universal vaccination in infancy as part of routine childhood immunizations, accompanied by serological surveillance of women of reproductive age¹⁷. In this laboratory of Eritrea, the number Rubella cases detected in 2006 was 69 and measles 3. At outset, it appears that the number of Rubella cases is on the rise, while the number of measles cases is on decline. The cases were referred as suspected measles cases which were also tested for rubella antibodies to detect rubella infection. Therefore it is likely that the actual number of rubella cases in the community could be higher than actual numbers reported. This indicates the vaccine against measles is effective. Many studies¹⁸⁻²² conducted recently in different countries around the globe, emphasize the need for a continued strong public health commitment to increase the proportion of vaccinated individuals and with priority to immunize women of child bearing age.

CONCLUSION

Introduction of Measles vaccine and control program successfully controlled the cases of Measles in Eritrea but not Rubella. Many countries have adapted MMR vaccine (Mumps, Measles, and Rubella) and successfully controlled Rubella cases. Rubella causes periodic outbreaks. In Eritrea, effective Measles control program by vaccination resulted in decrease in number of measles cases in children. Results of this study strongly advocate the introduction of MMR vaccine and effective surveillance of Rubella cases. The presence of Measles Reference Laboratory which also screens specimens for rubella makes surveillance and detection effective. Although exact picture of Rubella cases in community and incidence of CRS in infants is not known, all these cases can be prevented by effective vaccination.

REFERENCES

- 1. Robert F.B. Basic Medical Microbiology, 1995 by Little, Brown & Company 5th edition.
- 2. Cutts FT, Vynnycky E. Modelling the incidence of congenital Rubella Syndrome in developing countries.1999, Int. J. Epidemiology 28(6): 1176-1784.
- 3. Gregg NM, Congenital cataract following German Measles in the mothe Transactions of the Opthalmological Society of Australia, 194; 3: 35-46.
- 4. Robertson SE, Featherstone DA, Gacic-Dobo M, Hersh BS. Rubella and Congenital Rubella Syndrome: global update. Pan American Journal of public Health, 2003; 14:306-315.
- 5. Cooray S, Warrener L, Jin L. Improved RT-PCR for diagnosis and epidemiological surveillance of Rubella.Virus, J Clin Virol. 2006, Jan; 35 (1): 73-80.
- Deorari AK, Broor S, Maitreyi RS, Agarwal D, Kumar H, Paul VK, Singh M, Incidence, clinical spectrum, and outcome of intrauterine infections in neonates. J Trop Pediatr. 2000 Jun;46(3): 155-159.
- 7. Kaneko M, Sameshima H, Ikenoue T, Minematsu T, Kusumoto K, Ibara S, Kamitomo M, Maruyama Y. Rubella outbreak on Tokunoshima Island in 2004: serological and epidemiological analysis of pregnant women with rubella. J Obstet Gynaecol Res. 2006 Oct;32(5): 461-467.
- Lanzieri TM, Segatto TC, Siqueira MM, de Oliviera Santos EC, Jin L, Prevots DR. Burden of congenital rubella syndrome after a communitywide rubella outbreak, Rio Branco, Acre, Brazil, 2000 to 2001. Pediatr Infect Dis J. 2003 Apr; 22(4): 323-329.
- 9. Das S, Ramachandran VG, Arora R Cytomegalovirus and Rubella infection in children and pregnant mothers – a hospital based study.
- Tolfvenstam T, Enbomb H, Ghebrekidan H, Rudénb UA, Lindeb, Grandienb, M and Wahrenb B. Seroprevalence of viral childhood infections in Eritrea, J Clin Virol, 2000: Feb(16:1), 49-54
- 11. Broor S, Kapil A, Kishore J, Seth P. Prevalence of rubella virus and cytomegalovirus infections in suspected cases of congenital infections. Indian J Pediatr. 1991 Jan-Feb;58(1): 75-78.
- 12. Bos P, Steele D, Alexander J. Prevalence of

antibodies to rubella, herpes simplex 2 and cytomegalovirus in pregnant women and in neonates at Ga-Rankuwa. Cent Afr J Med. 1995, Jan;41(1): 14-17.

- 13. Reef SE, Frey TK, Theall K, Abernathy E, Burnett CL, Icenogle J, McCauley MM, Wharton M. The changing epidemiology of rubella in the 1990s: on the verge of elimination and new challenges for control and prevention. JAMA. 2002 Jan 23-30; 287(4): 464-472.
- 14. MMWR Morb Mortal Wkly Rep. Rubella and congenital rubella syndrome— United States, 1994-1997.Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC). 1997 Apr 25; 46(16): 350-354.
- 15. Bakshi SS, Cooper LZ. Rubella and Mumps vaccines. Pediatr Clin North Am 1990; 37: 651-668.
- 16. MMWR Morb Mortal Wkly Rep Measles, rubella, and congenital rubella syndrome—United States and Mexico, 1997-1999.Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC). 2001 Feb 23; 50(7): 125.
- 17. Robertson, S. Background Document: Data on

Rubella Vaccination Schedules, Report of a meeting on preventing CRS, WHO. 2000.

- Aytac N, Yucei A, Yapicioglu H, Kibar F, Karaomerlioglu O, Akbaba M. Rubella seroprevalence in children in Dogankent, Italy Euro Surveill, 2009 ; 14(50): 40-44.
- 19. Caidi H, Bloom S, Azilmaat M, Benjouad A, Reef S and El Aouad R Rubella seroprevalence among women aged 15-39 years in Morocco. East Mediterr Health J, 2009; 15(3): 526-531.
- 20. Seneze C, Haus-Chemyol R, Hanslik T. Rubella seroprevalence in 234 military young women aged 19-31 years. Presse Med, 2008; 37(12): 1717-1722.
- 21. Giambi C, Rota MC, Bella A, Filia A, Gabutti G, Guido M, De Donno A, Ciofidegli Atti ML. Rubella epidemiology in Italy in Years 1998-2004. Ann Ig, 2007; 19(2): 93-102.
- 22. Kombich JJ, Muchai PC, Tukei P, Borus PK. Rubella seroprevalence among primary and pre primary school pupils at Moi's bridge location, Uasin Gishu District, Kenya. BMC Public Health, 2009; 29(9): 269.

Histomorphological Study of Malignant Tumours of Liver

*Deepti.P, **Hiremath.S.S, ***H.R.Chandrashekhra, ****P.Shashikala, *****Anitha.M.R,*****Vijayanath.V

*Associate Professor, Department of Pathology, S.S.Institute of Medical Sciences & Research Centre, **Professor Department of Pathology, ***Principal, J.J.M.Medical College, ****Professor & Head, Department of Pathology, *****Assistant Professor, Department of Anatomy, *****Associate Professor, Department of Forensic Medicine & Toxicology, S.S.Institute of Medical Sciences & Research Centre, Davangere-577005, Karnataka

INTRODUCTION

Liver tumours are usually detected either by routine physical examination or by different imaging techniques¹. In spite of the rapid development of these diagnostic tools, histopathological study of liver tissue has retained its central place².

Liver is affected by both benign and malignant tumours. The majority of the primary tumours can be classified according to the indigenous cells of the liver (hepatocytes; bile duct epithelium and endothelium) from which they arise.

MATERIALS AND METHODS

This study was undertaken to observe the histomorphological features in primary and metastatic malignant tumours of the liver. The material for the present study was collected from the data available in the Pathology Department, J.J.M. Medical College, Davangere, during the period of ten years from January 1993 to December 2002. The study material consisted a total of 125 liver tissue samples with histologically proven malignancy. It includes 124 ultrasound guided needle biopsies and one wedge biopsy. Benign tumours and non neoplastic lesions of the liver are excluded from this study.

Clinical details are obtained by studying the hospital records in 77 old cases during the period of eight years from January 1993 to December 2000. In the remaining two years, from January 2001 to December 2002, 48 patients were examined and clinical details were noted. Ultrasonography findings of the liver were available for scrutinization in only 24 cases. Liver tissue sampling and method of obtaining liver tissue were at the discretion of the clinician. Liver tissue samples were subjected to naked eye examination and were fixed in 10% formalin. They were routinely processed to obtain 5-7 micron thick paraffin sections. They were routinely stained with Haematoxylin and Eosin stain. Other stains employed when required were

- 1. Von Gieson's stain
- 2. Gomori's reticulin stain
- 3. Periodic acid schiff stain (with or without diastase) and
- 4. Prussian blue stain

Patients were subjected to routine haematological and urine investigations. Liver function tests including tests for HBsAg and HCV antibodies were done depending on the clinical requirement. All the cases were subjected to detailed study.

OBSERVATIONS

This study deals with the determination of the histomorphological features in primary and metastatic malignant tumours of the liver. During the period of the present study, 125 patients with histologically proven malignant liver tumours were encountered in the Department of Pathology, J.J.M. Medical College, Davangere. These malignant liver tumours formed 0.23% of 53,273 total surgical specimens received during the same period. During this period, these tumours formed 57.1% of the 219 liver biopsies and 14.42% of the 867 histologically proven malignant lesions present at various sites. The following observations were made in this study.

Age

Age of the patients having malignant liver tumours ranged from 2¹/₂ years to 74 years. 39 patients (31.2%) belonged to the age group of 41-50 years.

Age group	No. of cases	Percentage
0 - 10	1	0.8
11 – 20	2	1.6
21 - 30	5	4.0
31 – 40	20	16.0
41 – 50	39	31.2
51 - 60	24	19.2
61 – 70	22	17.6
71 - 80	12	9.6
Total	125	100

Table I. Showing Distribution of Malignant LiverTumours In Different Age Groups

Sex

In this study, 100 patients, (80%) were males and 25 patients (20%) were females. Male to female ratio was 4:1.

Table II. Sex Distribution of Malignant Liver Tumours

Sex	No. of cases	Percentage
Male	100	80
Female	25	20
Total	125	100

Sex incidence in the different age groups showed male preponderance in all the age groups. Higher incidence of malignant liver tumours in both males (33%) and females (24%) was observed in the age group of 41-50 years.

Table III. Showing Age and Sex Distribution in Malignant Liver Tumours

Age in years	Males	Percentage	Females	Percentage	Total	Percentage
1 - 10	1	1	-	-	1	0.8
11-20	2	2	-	-	2	1.6
21 – 30	4	4	1	4	5	4.0
31 – 40	15	15	5	20	20	16.0
41 - 50	33	33	6	24	39	31.2
51 - 60	18	18	6	24	24	19.2
61 – 70	17	17	5	20	22	17.6
71 - 80	10	10	2	8	12	9.6
Total	100	100	25	100	125	100

BLOOD GROUP:

Blood group determination was done in 16 cases. Among these 10 patients belonged to B (positive) blood group. Three patients belonged to A (positive), two patients had O (positive); and remaining one patient had AB (positive) blood group.

Table IV. Showing The Frequency Of Different Clinical Features In Malignant Liver Tumours (125 Cases = 100%)

Sl. No.	Clinical Features	No. of Cases	Percentage
1	Loss of appetite	75	60.0
2	Loss of weight	47	37.6
3	Weakness and lassitude	35	28.0
4	Distension of abdomen	48	38.4
5	Pain abdomen	43	34.4
6	Fever	25	20.0
7	Nausea and vomiting	20	16.0
8	Pedal oedema	21	16.8
9	Diffuse hepatomegaly	53	42.4
10	Jaundice	13	10.4
11	Ascites	25	20.0

Liver Tissue Samples

In this study, of 125 malignant liver tumours, 124 were studied by ultrasound guided needle biopsies (99.2%) and one specimen was operative wedge biopsy (0.8%).

Sl.	Specimen	No. of Cases	Percentage
1	Ultrasound guided needle biopsy	124	99.2
2	Operative wedge biopsy	1	0.8
	Total	125	100

Table V. Showing Types Of Liver Tissue Samples

Types of Liver Tumours

In this study malignant liver tumours were classified according to the nomenclature recommended by The World Health Organization, (International Histological classification of tumours, No. 20, WHO 1978)⁴. Among 125 patients of malignant liver tumours, primary malignant epithelial tumours were observed in 106 patients (84.8%) and metastatic tumours were noted in 19 patients (15.2%). Malignant nonepithelial liver tumours were not encountered in this study. Ratio of primary to secondary malignant tumours was 5.58:1.

Laboratory Investigations

Serum bilirubin with rise in unconjugated fraction was seen in 13 patients with the values ranging from 4mg% to 7mg%. AST was increased in 50 patients with the values ranging from 50 to 110 I.U/L ALT was

increased in 46 patients with the values ranging from 65 to 150 I.U/L. Serum alkaline phosphatase was in the range of 52 to 84 K.A. units in 46 patients. Albumin to globulin ratio in serum was reversed in two cases. Serum was positive for HbsAg in six patients, among 16 patients who were tested for HbsAg. Test for HCV antibodies was done in one patient which showed absence of HCV antibodies. In 20 cases, where ascites was present, malignant cells were non seen in ascitic fluid.

Table XVI. Showing Histological Types In Primary Lesion In Metastatic Tumours of Liver

Sl. No.	Histological type	Primary site	No. of Cases	Percentage
1	Well differentiated adenocarcinoma	Stomach	1	5.27
2 Well differentiated adenocarcinoma		Oesophagus	1	5.27
3	Well differentiated adenocarcinoma	Unknown	12	63.16
4	Poorly differentiated carcinoma	Unknown	4	21.03
5	Embyronal tumour	Unknown	1	5.27
	Total		19	100

Age

Age of these patients having metastatic liver tumours ranged from 11 years to 71 years. Six patients (31.58%) belonged to the age group of 41-50 years.

Sex

In this study of 19 patients, 15 patients (78.95%) were males and four patients (21.05%) were females. Male to female ratio was 3.75:1. Higher incidence of metastatic liver tumour 31.58% was observed in the age group of 41-50 years.

Table XVII. Incidence of Metastatic Tumours in Different Age Groups and Their Sex Distribution

Age in years	Males	Percentage	Females	Percentage	Total	Percentage
11-20	2	13.33	-	-	2	10.52
21 - 30	0	-	1	25.00	1	5.27
41 - 50	5	33.33	1	25.00	6	31.58
51 - 60	4	26.68	1	25.00	5	26.32
61 - 70	2	13.33	1	25.00	3	15.79
71 - 80	2	13.33	-	-	2	10.52
Total	15	100	4	100	19	100

Table XVIII. Showing Frequency of Clinical Features in Metastatic Tumour in The Liver in 19 Cases (100%)

Sl. No.	Clinical Features	No. of Cases	Percentage
1	Loss of appetite	6	31.57
2	Loss of weight	1	5.26
3	Weakness and lassitude	9	47.36
4	Distension of abdomen	9	47.36
5	Pain abdomen	7	36.84
6	Fever	9	47.36
7	Nausea and vomiting	7	36.80
8	Pedal oedema	6	31.57
9	Diffuse hepatomegaly	1	5.26
10	Ascites	5	26.31

Ultrasonography reports were available in three cases which showed multiple mixed echoic regions in right lobe of liver, varying in size from 1cm to 5cms.

Serum alkaline phosphatase was markedly increased by 200 K.A. units in one patient. In five patients having ascites, ascitic fluid was a transudate and malignant cells were not seen in the ascitic fluid.

Ultrasound guided liver biopsy was done in all the 19 patients. Linear grey white biopsy material of 0.5cm to 1cm length was obtained in 14 patients. In five patients needle biopsy material was grey white and fragmented.

Microscopy

Metastatic adenocarcinoma was seen in 14 cases,

where liver biopsy showed well differentiated adenocarcinoma. Tumour cells were forming glandular pattern. These tumour cells were large and had large vesicular nuclei with conspicuous nucleoli and pale vacuolated cytoplasm. Subsequently these patients were subjected for detail examination to locate the primary. In one patient repeat ultrasonography revealed an irregular growth in the body of stomach. In one case, patient had growth in the lower end of oesophagus, detected by endoscopy. In the remaining 12 patients primary remained unknown.

In four patients liver biopsy showed metastatic poorly differentiated carcinoma, where tumour cells were forming compact masses and sheets. These tumour cells were large and had large vesicular nuclei pale staining cytoplasm, nuclear chromatin was irregularly condensed. In these patients primary could not be ascertained.

In one patient, who was a 11 year old boy, liver biopsy showed metastatic embryonal tumour, where tumour cells were forming solid nests amidst the hepatocytes. These tumour cells were small having large densely staining nuclei and scanty cytoplasm. Background was myxoid. In this case primary was not ascertained.

DISCUSSION

Liver tumours, come to attention for a variety of reasons. They may generate epigastric fullness and discomfort or be detected by routine physical examination or imaging techniques for other indications. The importance of recognising these lesions, is to perform guided percutaneous biopsies, with subsequent histopathological typing¹. In the present study the relative incidence of different malignant liver tumours and their histomorphological features were analysed.

In this study, 125 patients with histologically proven malignant liver tumours were studied. These malignant liver tumours formed 0.23% of 53,273 specimens received during the period of present study. This indicates the rarity of malignant liver tumours. These lesions formed 57.1% of the 219 liver biopsies performed during the same period, indicating that liver biopsies were performed more frequently for hepatic masses than other liver lesions. Malignant liver tumours formed 14.42% of the 867 malignant lesions at various sites, detected during the period of this study. This indicates that these lesions are one of the common malignant tumours observed in this geographic area.

Malignant liver tumours were frequently seen (31.2%) in the age group of 41-50 years and there was marked male preponderance with male to female ratio

of 4:1. Blood group analysis was possible in only a few cases and these tumours were seen commonly in B-positive blood group individuals. The commonest clinical features associated with these tumours were, loss of appetitie, loss of weight, weakness and lassitude, distention of abdomen, pain abdomen, fever, nausea and vomiting, pedal oedema, diffuse hepatomegaly, jaundice and ascites.

In this study among 125 malignant liver tumours, 124 cases were studied by ultrasound guided needle biopsies and only one sample was a operative wedge biopsy. But ultrasonography reports were available for scrutinization in only 24 cases. All these tissue samples were routinely processed to obtain paraffin sections and were studied after Haematoxylin and Eosin stain. PAS stain was useful in demonstrating glycogen in HCC and for demonstrating mucin cholangiocarcinoma. Gomori's reticullin stain was useful for outlining the thick liver cell plates. VonGieson's stain was useful in demonstrating fibrocollgenous tissue. Prussian blue stain was used to demonstrate iron granules, but there were no cases of haemochromatosis in this study.

In this study the nomenclature and classification recommended by WHO, 1978 was used⁴. Primary malignant epithelial tumours (84.8%) were more frequently observed than metastatic tumours (15.2%). Malignant nonepithelial tumours were not observed. These nonepithelial tumours are infrequent in other studies also. Among primary malignant epithelial tumours, HCC was more frequent (79.2%) followed by cholangiocarcinoma (4.8%) and hepatoblastoma 0.8%. Similar incidence was observed by other authors^{3,4}.

Other tumours like bile duct cystadenocarcinoma, combined hepatocellular and cholangiocarcinoma and undifferentiated carcinoma were not encountered in this study.

Metastastic tumours are more frequent than primary metastastic tumours. In the present study metastatic tumours in the liver were less frequent. This may be attributed to the fact that, most of the malignant tumours after histological examination are referred to referal cancer hospitals for further management. Most of the metastatic lesions in this study were routinely detected when ultrasonograhy was done for unrelated clinical presentation. ultrasound guided needle biopsies in these cases, showed well differentiated adenocarcinoma in 14 patients, of whom primary was subsequently identified in stomach in one case and oesophagus in another case, and in the remaining 12 cases, primary remained unknown. Needle biopsies showed poorly differentiated carcinoma in four cases where primary was unknown. In a 11 year old boy hepatic lesion showed metastatic embryonal tumour and primary could not be located. As primary remained unknown in majority of these metastatic lesions, examination by ultrasound guided needle biopsy became essential for establishing the lesion. The strategy of aetiological diagnosis of hepatic metastases is based on histological features of these lesions. In these studies involvement of liver by leukemia, lymphoma and malignant mesenchymal tumours were not observed.

With increasing use of guided needle biopsies in the diagnosis of malignant liver tumours, histopathological study has become an important diagnostic tool. The clinician may now choose from a variety of imaging techniques. It is recommended that these patients have base line and serial liver scans, liver function tests and tumour marker estimations. There is no doubt that rapid technologic improvements will continue to alter our diagnostic approach to this disease⁵.

CONCLUSION

Histomorphological study of primary and metastatic malignant tumours of liver was undertaken during the period of January 1993 to December 2002.

Malignant liver tumours formed 0.23% of the total number of surgical specimens. They formed 57.1% of liver biopsies and 14.2% of the malignant lesions, detected during the same period. Majority of the malignat liver tumour (31.2%) belonged to the age group of 41-50 years. Male to female ratio in malignant liver tumours was 4 : 1. Ultrasound guided needle biopsy was used more frequently (99.2%) to diagnose malignat liver tumours. Primary malignant epithelial tumours were more frequent (84.8%) and metastatic tumours were less frequent (15.2%). Ratio of primary to secondary malignant tumours was 5.58:1. Primary malignant epithelial tumours were hepatocellular carcinoma (79.2%); cholangiocarcinoma (4.8%) and hepatoblastoma (0.8%). Hepatocellular carcinoma formed 79.2% of malignant liver tumours. They formed 0.19% of the surgical specimens; 45.21% of liver biopsies and 11.42% of the malignant lesions at different sites detected during the same period. Hepatocellular carcinoma should rising incidence from 1993 to 2002. Majority of HCC patients belonged to the age group to 41-50 years (30.30%). Male to female ratio in HCC was 5.19:1. Commonest clinical features in HCC were loss of appetite, diffuse hepatomegaly and loss of weight. In HCC, increase in uncongugated bilirubin, increase in transaminases and alkaline phosphatase levels were observed in varying number of cases. A:G ratio was reversed in two cases. Six patients of HCC were positive for HBs Ag. Ultrasonography was useful in detecting solitary, diffuse and multifocal lesions of HCC. There was

ultrasonographic evidence of cirrhosis in two cases. Histological patterns observed in HCC were trabecular; trabecular and psuedoglandular, compact and pseudoglandular pattern's in the decreasing order of frequency. Tumour cell types observed in HCC, in the decreasing order of frequency were hepatic type; pleomorphic type; clear cell type; anaplastic type; and spindle cell type. Intracellular inclusions observed in this study were intranuclear cytoplasmic inclusions globular hyaline bodies and Mallory's hyaline inclusions in varying number of cases. 67.68% of HCC belonged to grade II according to grading system of Edmondson and Steiner. Cholangiocarcinoma formed 4.8% of the malignant liver tumours. Age of the patients of cholangiocarcinoma ranged from 40-70 years. Male to female ratio in cholangiocarcinoma was 1:5. Diffuse hepatomegaly was seen in all the six cases cholangiocarcinoma. Tumour of cells in cholangiocarcinoma were arranged in tubular pattern and compact masses. They were associated with abundant fibrous stroma. Mucin secreation was seen in one case of cholangiocarcinoma. Hepatoblastoma was diagnosed by needle biopsy in 2½ year old boy. Metastatic tumours in liver formed 15.2% of malignant liver tumours. Commonest histological type of metastatic lesions, was well differentiated adenocarcinoma. Primary was detected only in two cases of metastatic well differentiated adenocarcinoma. In the remaining cases, primary could not be located.

In the recent years there are rapid advances in the diagnostic imaging technology. This has led to differences in experiences and results among investigators. Liver biopsy has become an essential tool and diagnostic efficiency can be further improved when combined with immunohistochemistry, electron microscopic study and molecular biology techniques, coupled with serological marker study.

REFERENCES

- Crawford, J.M. "The liver and the biliary tract". Chapter 19 in Robbins Pathologic basis of disease, Ed. 6, Edt. by Kumar Cotran Robins, Singapore, Har Court – Asia, 1999, 845-901pp.
- Scheuer, P.J. "Neoplasms and nodules", Chapter 11, Liver biopsy interpretation, Ed. 5, Edt. by Peter J. Scheur and Jay H Leekowitch, London, W.B. Saunders, 1994, 152-182pp.
- Okuda, K and The Liver cancer study group of Japan. 1980 "Primary liver cancers in Japan". Cancer, 45: 2663-2669.
- 4. Habibullah, C.M. et al. 1981 "Primary liver cell carcinoma A study of 50 cases". J Asso Phys Ind, 29: 921-925.
- 5. Rustugi, V.K. 1987 "Hepatic Carcinoma". Gastroenterol Clin North Am, 16 (4).

Management of Bell's Palsy - A Case Study

M.V.D.L. Sathyanarayana*, D.Radhika**, K.V.Murali Mohan***

*Assistant Professor of Ophthalmology, **Assistant Professor of Anatomy, ***Professor and HOD of Pathology, R.I.M.S. Medical College, Kadapa, A.P., India

ABSTRACT

Facial nerve supplies to muscles of face and responsible for both forcible and smooth closure of eye lids and facial expressions. Facial nerve has three nuclei; 1. Main motor nucleus 2. parasympathetic nucleus 3. sensory nucleus .Motor nucleus supplies to muscles of face and responsible for facial expression and closure of eyelids. Facial nerve carries taste sensations from anterior 2/3 rd of tongue and cutaneous sensations from external auditory metus.In present case patient had sudden onset of left side facial palsy which completed over 24 -36 hours. She underwent lateral tarsal strip surgery, lee medial canthoplasty of lower lid and recession of upper lid retractors of left eye and had good cosmetic and symptomatic improvement.

Key words: Facial nerve, Ectropion, Lagophthalmos, Medial canthoplasty, Lateral tarsal strip surgery.

INTRODUCTION

Bell's palsy is an acute idiopathic, unilateral, most common, peripheral, lower motor neuron facial nerve paralasis. It is named after Scottish anatomist Charless Bells. Possible etiology includes viral infections particularly herpes simplex, diabetes mellitus, hypertension. The symptoms on effected side typically include inability to close the eyes & to smile. Lower eye lid may turn outwards. Wrinkle the fore head &whistle effected. Speech may be mildly slurred. Tearing occur because eye doesnot close completely. Taste sensation diminished on front half of the tongue. Sounds may appear on louder side. Most people develop maximum weakness within 48 hours. Bilateral involvement in less than 1%. Recurrence & bilateral involvement suggests myasthenia gravis. Incidence of bell's palsy 20 to 30 cases per one lakh people per year. A strong family history found in 2to 4% of cases. Incidence equal in both sexes. Average age onset 20 to 40 years but may occur at any age[1]. Incidence is lowest in children under 10 years. Left & right sides of

Correspondence Address: M.V.D.L. Sathyanarayana Assistant Professor of Ophthalmology Non teaching staff quarters First floor, House no-F1-1 R.I.M.S Medical College Campus Kadapa, Andhra Pradesh, India Cell no: 09440367590 Email: narayanasathya96@yahoo.com the face involved with equal incidence. One in 60 people being effected during life time. Incidence is higher in pregnant women. 71% of untreated patients will completely recover; 84% are complete or nearly normal recovery within 6 months.

Prognosis depends on age over 55 years, no recovery by 3 weeks, hypertension, diabetes mellitus, pregnancy, complete facial weakness & parotid tumors. Goal of treatment is preventing sequelae². Both corticosteroids & antiviral agents used as treatment strategies medically. Mime therapy in the form of physiotherapy is another option of treatment. Surgical treatment required to improve cosmotic appearance.

CASE REPORT

Kamalamma female 60 years presented with watering of left eye and inability to close left eye for the last 3 years Figure 1. On examination drooping of left half of face, deviation of mouth towards right side, loss of wrinkles on left half of fore head, severe paralytic ectropion of left lower eye lid and lagophthalmos left eye. Left eye is pesudophakia and right eye has immature senile cataract. Patient has good Bells phenomenon. Visual acuity in right eye is 6/60 and in left eye is 6/12.Blood pressure is 130/80 mm of Hg. No sensory or motor deficits noted. Taste sensations from anterior two thirds of tongue normal. No h/o hyperacusis.

Preoperative



Fig:1. Paralytic Ectropion lower lid & Lagophtholmos.

A clinical diagnosis of Bell's palsy with severe paralytic ectropion of lower lid and lagophthalmos left eye was made. Routine hematological investigations like TC,DC,ESR and biochemical investigations like blood sugar, renal function tests, serum calcium were normal. H.I.V was negative, V.D.R.L was non reacting.

X ray chest p. a was normal. C.T scan brain was normal. Syringing was patent in both eyes. Lee medial canthoplasty, lateral tarsal strip and recession of upper lid retractors done under local anesthesia to improve cosmetic appearance and symptoms Figure 2. Post-operative period was uneventful. Skin sutures removed on 7th day.

Post operative



Fig:2. Lee medial Canthoplasty & Lateral Tarsal Strip Surgery.

DISCUSSION

Bell's palsy or idiopathic facial nerve palsy is dysfunction of cranial nerve V11 (the facial) that results

in inability to control facial muscles on effected side. Several conditions like brain tumors, stroke, Lyme's disease, HSV Type 1,diabetes mellitus, sarcoidosis, brucellosis, Ramsay Hunt syndrome, Gullian –Barre syndrome, Leprosy, Melkersson-Rosenthal syndrome can cause acute fascial nerve palsy. If no specific cause can be identified the condition is called Bell's palsy. It is named after Scottish anatomist Charless Bells. Bell's palsy is the most common acute mononeuropathy and is the most common cause of acute facial nerve paralysis.

Bell's palsy is usually self-limiting and unilateral. Bilateral cases occur in 1% of cases¹.It affects approximately 1 person in 60 during a lifetime. Familial inheritance in 4-14%cases⁵.It is three times more common In pregnant women than non-pregnant women.[6].Four times more common in diabetics than general population⁷.

Facial nerve nuclei are in brainstem and facial nerve supplies all muscles concerned for facial expression. Sensory component is through nervous intermedius. It conveys taste sensations from anterior two thirds of tongue and cutaneous impulses from anterior wall of external auditory metus. Motor nucleus lies anterior and lateral to abducens nucleus.

It is thought that an inflammatory condition leads to swelling of facial nerve. During its course, as nerve travels through a narrow bony canal beneath ear swollen nerve compressed, leads to nerve inhibition and damage or death. No readily identifiable cause for Bell's palsy has been found. Exposure to trauma, environmental factors, metabolic and emotional disorders, emotional stress, environmental stress (e.g. cold), physical stress (e.g. trauma) etc. may precede onset.

Corticosteroids have been found to improve outcome while anti-viral drugs have not³.Most of people recover sponteously and achieve near normal function.

Facial nerve controls a number of functions like blinking, closing the eyes, smiling, frowning, lacrimation and salivation, innervates stapedius and carries taste sensations from anterior two thirds of tongue. Onset of Bell's palsy is abrupt and maximum weakness attained in 48 hours.Pain in ear may precede the paralysis for a day or two. Taste sensations may be lost unilaterally and hyperacusis may present.

Bell's palsy characterized by facial drooping on effected half, inability to control movements of facial muscles, paralytic ectropion, inability to close upper lid, exposure keratitis and its complications. The paralysis is of lower motor neuron type. Clinician should determine whether fore head muscles are spared. Fore head muscles receive innervations from both hemispheres of brain. In upper motor neuron type of facial palsy fore head muscles are spared. But Bell's palsy is lower motor neuron type and fore head muscles are involved. The degree of nerve damage can be assessed using House -Brackmann scoring.

Bell's palsy is a diagnosis of exclusion; by elimination of other reasonable possibilities. No specific cause can be ascertained. Bell's palsy is commonly referred to as idiopathic or cryptogenic I.e. unknown cause. Morris A. M ,et. al described that a large number of patients (45%) are not referred to a specialist, which suggest that Bell's palsy is considered by physicians to be a straight forward diagnosis that is easy to manage⁴.Since diagnosis of Bells palsy is by exclusion it requires through investigations specialist opinion before starting treatment.

Investigations: E.S.R, Blood Sugar, Lyme titer, ACE levels, chest imaging studies, lumbar puncture, Gadolinium enhanced M.R.I scan, H.I.V screening, V.D.R.L, F.T.A -ABS . Electro diagnostic tests like stapedius reflux test, electromyography, audiography may help in accessing prognosis.

TREATMENT

Medical therapy: Systemic therapy with oral steroids such as prednisolone significantly improves recovery at 6 months and is recommended.

Anti-viral like acyclovir proscribed due to theoretical link between Bell's palsy and herpes simplex and varicella zoster virus³.

Local therapy- Topical lubricants eye drops, lubricant eye ointments at night, advised to wear dark glasses in outdoors, Occluding lids with tape, external eye lid weights, Punctual plugs, Injecting Botullinum toxins into upper lid and lower lid retractors. Topical antibiotics and cycloplegic if exposure keratitis present.

SURGICAL THERAPY

- A. Correcting lower lid droop and ectropion Face lift, Lee medial canthoplasty, lateral tarsal strip surgery, Facial sling with facia lata, recession of lower lid retractors.
- **B. Correcting lagophthalmos** Implantable devices like gold plate surgery, Trasorrhaphy, transpositioning temporalis muscle, reinnervation of facial nerve, upper lid retractor recession .
- **C. Correcting brow ptosis** By direct or indirect brow lifts.

D. Correcting cheek ptosis - By mid face lift.

Prognosis: Prognosis is usually better for younger individuals and in patients older than 60 years prognosis is worse. Even without any treatment Bell's palsy tend to carry good prognosis. In a 1982 study when no treatment was available, of 1,011 patients, 85% showed first signs of recovery within three weeks after onset. For the other 15% recovery occurred 3-6 months later. After a follow-up of at least one year or until restoration, complete recover had occurred in more than two thirds (71%) of al patients. Recovery was judged moderate in 12% and poor in 4% of patients⁴. the patients who regain movements within the first two weeks nearly always remit entirely. When remissions does not occur until the 3rd week or later, patients develop complications⁵.

Major complications are chronic taste loss (ageusia), chronic facial spasm exposure keratitis and its complications, during regeneration some nerves may side track leading to silkiness and around 6% of patients exhibit crocodile tear syndrome or gustatolacrimal reflux syndrome.

Although defined as mononeurotic, patients diagnosed with Bell's palsy may have myriad of neurological symptoms including facial tingling, moderate or severe headache, neck pain ,memory problems, balance problems, ipsilateral limb parasthesias, ipsilateral limb weakness that are unexplained by facial nerve dysfunction. This is yet an enigmatic facet of this condition.

REFERENCES

- M.A. Nanavaty, A.R. Vasavada and P.D. Gupta . Tears in Old Age Indian Journal of Gerontology.2005; Vol. 19, No. 4. pp 393 -414.
- N Julian Holland, Graeme M Weiner. Recent developments in Bell's palsy. BMJ. 2004;329:553.
- 3. Sullivan FM, Swan IR, Donnan PT, et al , Early treatment with Prednisolone or acyclovir in Bell's palsy. N.Engl. J. Med. 2007;357 (16):1598-607.
- 4. Peitersen E . The natural history of Bell's palsy.Am J Otol 1982;4 (2): 107-11.
- 5. Roob G, Fazekas F, Hartung HP .Peripheral facial palsy : etiology, diagnosis and treatment. Eur . Neurol.1999; 41 (1):3-9.
- 6. Peitersen E, Andersen P. Spontaneous course of 220 peripheral non traumatic facial palsies. Acta Otolaryngol.1966;Suppl. 224:296.
- 7. Doner F, Kutluhan S .Familial idiopathic facial palsy. Eur Arch Otorhinolaryngol.2000; 257 (3): 117-119.

Correlation Between Body Mass Index With Fasting Blood Sugar and Lipid Profile in Young Adult College Students of South Indian Population

Maliyannar Itgappa¹, Vasudeva Murthy C.R.², Siddappa K³, Raju G M⁴, Rajeshri S Patil⁵

 ¹. Department of Biochemistry, ² Department of Forensic Medicine & Toxicology, ³ Department of Medicine, SSIMS&RC Davanagere, Karnataka Indi, ⁴Department of Forensic Medicine & Toxicology, JJM Medical College,
 ⁵ Department of Community Medicine, SSIMS&RC, Davanagere, Karnataka India-577 004

ABSTRACT

Objectives: To investigate fasting blood sugar (FBS) and lipid profile in young adult college students to correlates with BMI to find out risk factor for cardiovascular diseases. (CVD)

Design: Observational cross sectional study.

Materials & Methods: Students of SS Institute of Medical Science and Research Center, Davanagere, Karnataka were assessed for anthropometric measures, fasting blood sugar and their lipid profiles at central Lab of Biochemistry department during Jan 2010 to Jun 2010.

Results: Among 257 students male were 130 and female were 127. In 130 male students 11 were underweight i.e., their BMI was < 19 Kg/m2, 94 were of normal that is their BMI was between 19 Kg/m2 - 26 Kg/m2 and 25 were overweight with BMI of >26 Kg/m2. In 127 female students 21 were underweight i.e., their BMI was < 19 Kg/m2, 82 were of normal that is their BMI was between 19 Kg/m2 - 26 Kg/m2 and 24 were overweight with BMI of >26 Kg/m2. The mean BMI of males is 22.5±6.36 Kg/m2 and females is 22±5.65 Kg/m2 Mean BMI of the three groups in the 130 male students was 22.66±3.36 and that in 127 female is 21.36±3.49. Mean fasting blood sugar level in male is 82.25±9.48 mg/dl, and in female 83.03±10.62 mg/dl. Mean total cholesterol level in male is 155.75±28.05 mg/dl and in female 96.08±29.66 mg/dl. Mean HDL-C level was in male 95±39.65 mg/dl and in female 96.51±23.17 and in female 103.17±24.57. Mean VLDL level in male was 18.48±7.78 and that in female 18.95±6.21.

Conclusion: The prevalence of obesity in adult college students shows 1.5% in male and 1.16% in female. Compare to male and female the fasting blood sugar, Cholesterol, LDL and triglycerides levels are higher and significant in female than male. This result indicates females are more prone to develop cardiovascular diseases.

Key words: Facial nerve, Ectropion, Lagophthalmos, Medial canthoplasty, Lateral tarsal strip surgery.

INTRODUCTION

Obesity is a state characterized by a relatively absolute excess fat stored in the adipose tissue. Fatty tissues are normally present in the organism in

Correspondence Address: Dr Maliyannar Itagappa Associate Professor, Department of Biochemistry SSIMS & RC, Davanagere 577 004 Karnataka, India Email itagappam77@gmail.com Mobile- 9880747607 reasonable quantity that is proportional to the height of an individual. The exact measurement of these fatty tissues is difficult¹. Several anthropometric measures have been used to investigate the association between adiposity and cardiovascular disease. Body mass index is perhaps the most commonly used measurement². The BMI is also referred to as the Quetelet index i.e., defined as weight/height². Risk of obesity begins when the BMI is greater than $25(Kg/m^2)^3$. It is the most commonly used indicator of health risks associated with over weight (type II diabetes mellitus, insulin resistance and cardiovascular diseases) and underweight (Osteoporosis, infertility)⁴.

It has been suggested that the rate of weight gain during childhood may be a more significant factor for adult cardiovascular risk than an isolated measurement of weight at any single point in time⁵. Lipids and lipoproteins are well known risk factors for ischemic heart diseases. Elevated levels of triglycerides, cholesterol and LDL-C are documented as risk factors for atherogenesis⁶. Significant proportions of morbidity & mortality in obese adults are due to sudden cardiac arrest and congestive heart failure related to obesity⁷. Considering the probable disorders of lipid profile & acceleration of atherosclerosis process in high risk groups, this work assessed the lipid profile of a randomly selected group of adult college student populations. The prevalence of lipid risk factors was found to be mostly affected by age rather than by sex⁸.

Few studies have been conducted in order to determine the correlation of cardio vascular risk factors with simple anthropometric measurements in Indian population. No study had examined as CVD risk in young adult college students asymptomatic for CVD. To give a proxy profile on the CVD risk studies among such people the present study was conducted. We observed a high prevalence of CVD RISK factors among a relatively young population across the selected industrial population⁹. Cardiovascular diseases are the leading causes of death worldwide. Their incidence particularly coronary heart disease (CHD) is increasing among young adult. Few data exist on the prevalence of risk factors in young adult college students⁸.

Present study is aimed to indentify distribution of lipid profile and the prevalence of ovreweight and

obesity in non diabetic adult Indian population. Recent studies have indicated that the life expectancy of adults with sever obesity might be 15 to 20 years lower than normal individual⁷. Prevention of risk factors for cardiovascular diseases (CVD) such as obesity and dyslipidemia has been an important change in developing countries due to the westernization of diet and life style changes¹⁰.

MATERIAL & METHODS

Two hundred fifty seven healthy individuals of both sex with confirmed consent aged between 18 to 23 years. Their height and weight were recorded. Body mass index was calculated by using their height (m²) and weight (Kg). On the basis of BMI all students were divided into three groups ie., underweight whose BMI was less than 19 Kg/m², normal whose BMI was between 19-26 Kg/m² and overweight whose BMI was more than 26 Kg/m^2 . Plasma was prepared from blood samples collected in plain and fluoride bulbs for measurements from subjects in the morning after an overnight fast of 12 hours. Plasma glucose was determined by Trinder,s method (GoD) and Serum triglycerides are estimated by McGowan et al and Fossati et al. HDL-C estimated by Burstein et al. Total Cholesterol by modified Roeschlau's method on XL 600 auto-analyzer. Low-density lipoprotein cholesterol (LDL-C) and VLDL were estimated using the Friedwald, Levy and Fredrickson formula. Stastical analysis was done on Epi-Info-6. The means of the three groups were compared by ANOVA at the significance level of a=0.05. Correlation co-efficient was determined for the dependent variables of lipid profile with BMI (Kg/ m^2) as the independent variable.

RESULT

		1	
Parameters	Underweight(n=11)	Normal Subject(n=94)	Overweight(n=24)
Fasting blood sugar	78.27±8.86	80.93±8.91	89.00±9.02
Triglycerides(mg/dl)	67.45±17.32	88.47±31.00	131.68±49.74
Total Cholesterol(mg/dl)	138.09±15.34	147.93±22.93	192.96±16.42
HDL-C(mg/dl)	39.55±2.42	39.34±3.95	39.60±4.53
LDL-C(mg/dl)	82.82±14.04	90.50±19.71	125.12±14.77

 Table 1. Biochemical parameters, Fasting blood sugar and Lipid Profiles, in male students of different BMI groups.

Table 1 shows the mean FBS, TAG, Total Cholesterol, HDL, LDL and VLDL values are higher in overweight than the normal subject of the male students.

Parameters	Underweight(n=21)	Normal Subject(n=82)	Overweight(n=24)
Fasting blood sugar	78.24±6.59	80.90±10.07	94.71±6.64
Triglycerides(mg/dl)	83.62±20.39	92.15±27.70	120.42±30.69
Total Cholesterol(mg/dl)	140.79±15.58	156.37±25.21	190.71±22.03
HDL-C(mg/dl)	40.38±3.92	39.22±8.78	38.58±4.51
LDL-C(mg/dl)	89.62±15.50	99.51±23.55	127.50±17.36
VLDL(mg/dl)	16.9±5.12	17.94±5.71	24.21±6.12

Table 2. Biochemical parameters, fasting blood sugar and Lipid Profiles,in Female students of different BMI groups.

Table 2. Shows the mean FBS, TAG, Total Cholesterol, HDL, LDL and VLDL values are higher in overweight than the normal subject of the female students.

Table 3. Comparison of biochemical parameters in Male & Female Medical students

	Males		Females				
Parameter	Mean	SD	Mean	an SD Mean Difference		t Value	P* Value, sig
BMI	22.66	3.36	21.36	3.49	1.32	3.07	P<0.05 S
FBS	82.25	9.48	83.07	10.62	0.82	0.65	0.5NS
Triglycerides	95	39.15	96.08	29.66	1.08	0.24	0.8 NS
Total cholesterol	155.76	28.06	161.43	27.33	5.68	1.64	0.1 NS
HDL-C	39.41	3.94	39.29	4.60	0.12	0.21	0.8 NS
LDL-C	96.51	23.17	103.17	24.53	6.66	2.20	0.02 S
VLDL NS	18.48	7.78	18.95	6.21	0.48	0.54	0.5

*Students unpaired t test

Table 3. shows that the p value is significant in LDL-C and BMI than the other parameters.

 Table 4. Correlation Coefficient of BMI, FBS and Lipid

 Profiles in both male and female medical students.

	Mal	es	Females		
Parameters	Correlation Coefficient	Sig	Correlation Coefficient	Sig	
FBS	0.38	P<0.01 S	0.52	P<0.01 S	
Triglycerides	0.46	P<0.01 S	0.41	P<0.01 S	
Total cholesterol	0.53	P<0.01 S	0.51	P<0.01 S	
HDL-C	-0.005	P>0.05 NS	-0.1	P>0.05 NS	
LDL-C	0.5	P<0.01 S	0.51	P<0.01 S	
VLDL	0.52	P<0.01 S	0.39	P<0.01 S	

Table 4. Shows correlation coefficient is non significant in HDL-C but all other parameters have significant coefficient in both male and female.

DISCUSSION

How to define overweight and obesity among Asian individuals as not yet been formally decided. Western countries have been using the general criteria for overweight (BMI> 25) and obesity (BMI>30) with Asian population in their countries, while WHO and Asian countries have recommended or adapted lower BMI cut off points for overweight and obesity¹¹. Body mass index (BMI) used as a marker of adiposity, but it may not be a good measurement of fatness, mainly in extremes of stature and with advancing age¹². Obesity has been largely diagnosed based upon anthropometric measurements like waist circumference WC and body mass index¹⁰.

Weight gain is of concern during early development because adult obesity and its cardiovascular consequences appear to have their origins during child hood. Young children with obese parents tend to become obese adult¹³. Young adults (mean age, 22 years) in the beaver county lipid study had positive significant correlation between BMI and LDL-C and Triglycerides¹⁴, Conversely weight loss reduces risk in overweight individual¹⁵. A higher body mass index (BMI) has been shown to account for up to 16% of the global burdens of disease, expressed as percentage of disability/ adjusted life years. In the developed world, 2-7 percent of total health care cost is attributable to obesity. Weight is directly correlated with cardiovascular disease¹⁶. More over the growing prevalence of type II diabetes, cardiovascular disease and some cancers are tied to excesses weight¹⁶.

Cardiovascular diseases (CVD) are the major causes of morbidity and mortality in our society with dyslipidemia contributing significantly to atherosclerosis, thus measurement of plasma lipids would help in identifying people at risk for CVD¹⁷. The cardiovascular diseases burden afflicts both men and women with death accounting the 34% of the deaths in women and 28% in men 2007 (Rosamind et al 2007)¹⁸. The ability to prevent the development of atherosclerosis or alternatively to decrease established atherosclerotic plaques, often referred as regression, has major implications for public health¹⁹.

The casual association between plasma lipid level and risk of coronary artery diseases is established. Raised serum cholesterol (TC), triglyceride (TG), low density lipoprotein (LDL) level and decreased high density lipoprotein (HDL) are associated major risk factor for cardiovascular diseases²⁰. The blood level high density lipoprotein cholesterol (HDL-C) in contrast bears an inverse heart diseases²¹.

Although obesity has strong genetic determinants, the increasing prevalence of obesity in populations around the world suggests that environmental factors are promoting or exacerbating the problem²². Increased genetic propensity to develop CVD and increasing prevalence of cardiovascular risk factors are the reasons postulated for high prevalence and greater severity and extent of CVD in Indians. During the past three decade's prevalence of most of the CVD risk factors including diabetes mellitus, hypertension, dyslipidemia etc has increased markedly in India²³.

A 40-year following in Stockholm, Sweden, showed a significant relation between overweight in adolescence and adult premature death and cardiovascular disease²⁴, similarly, a recent evaluation of adults who were enrolled as children in the Harvard Growth Study in the 1920s showed that increased adult morbidity and mortality from coronary heart disease were related to overweight in adolescence²⁵.

Steady increase of cholesterol level has been reported in other Asian countries during the last decades of the 20th century, considerably increase in hypercholesterolemia, hypertriglyceridemia and abnormally low HDL in all age groups of professional populations since past years has recently been reported from China²⁰. A recent study conducted in Greece and

in particular in the Attica region verified this major health issue and showed that the prevalence of adult overweight and obesity were 53% and 20% in men and 31% and 15% in women respectively²⁶.

The health profile of Greeks has dramatically changed during the last decades, leading to high rates of obesity as well as one of the most rapidly increasing death rates from CVD²⁶. Today more than 11 billion adults worldwide are overweight, of which 312 millions are obese¹⁶. A high prevalence of some cardiovascular risk factors in Basra college students was observed⁸. There is a lot of data on the prevalence rates of obesity in the general population in Bahrain and other Arabian Peninsula States²² where the prevalence rate among adults is among the highest in the world²². Prevalence of trend of overweight and obesity has been increasing among adults Arab, probably due to the effects of modernization, affluence, increased food consumption and the concomitant changed to sedentary life styles²².

In this study the mean FBS, TAG, Total Cholesterol, HDL, LDL and VLDL values are higher in overweight than the normal subjects of the male and the p value is significant in LDL-C, the correlation coefficient is not significant in HDL-C but all other parameters have significant coefficient in both male and female.

The present study shows higher valves of FBS level in overweight group as well obesity but it is normal range comparatively in other subject groups. The TAG level is higher in overweight groups. The FBS and TAG levels were higher in female than male subjects. This result shows females were more prone to develop DM which leads to CVD

In this study the prevalence of overweight and obesity is 9.72% and 1.5% in male and that in female 9.3% and 1.16% of about 257 students, was higher than that reported in European countries¹⁴ where the prevalence overweight and obesity were 8% and 1% respectively, and among the medical students of Greece University⁸ the prevalence of obesity was 43%. It was lower than that reported in some Arab gulf countries⁸. For example, among Kuwait college students overweight and obesity were prevalent as 38.5% and 11% respectively⁸. Obesity is a major health problem in Kuwait, more than half of adult females and almost 1/3rd of adult males are obese ²⁷. Tunisia's adult population, not unlike the expressions of those in industrialized countries, is a currently taking an increase in chronic non communicable diseases, especially CVD²⁸.

As 19.06% students of our total study populations are overweight, so number of risk individuals is much higher. Therefore strategical design to limit cardiovascular risk should address weight reduction during childhood and adolescence. However, the influence of obesity on cardiovascular risk begins before adulthood and overweight during adolescence is associated with an increased risk of coronary heart diseases in male and female subjects²¹.

The prevalence of obesity in western population varies greatly, but a weighed estimate suggests prevalence between 15% and 20%²². In the United States about one third of the population was overweight and another third was obese²⁵. The prevalence of adult overweight (BMI range 25-29,9) and obesity is increasing regardless of age socioeconomic or ethnicity differences²⁷. As the prevalence of obesity is increasing worldwide, data from epidemiological studies in grebe demonstrate that a considerable proportion of the population is overweight or obese²⁶.

Obesity has been extensively studied as main causes of metabolic disturbance, including metabolic syndrome, nonalcoholic fatty lever diseases and Type-II diabetes mellitus. As a simple and non invasive method for a detection of obesity and dyslipidemia, anthropometric measurements could be efficiently used in clinical and epidemiologic fields¹⁰.

CONCLUSION

The low percentage adult college students with controlled lipid concentrations suggest that there is a need for awareness programs for the prevention and control of dyslipidemia and impaired blood sugar levels. The alarming prevalence of risk factors in such young adult population demonstrates the need for organized efforts for the implementation of local and national level programs to prevent cardiovascular diseases. It has a significant association with different cardiovascular risk factors especially high total cholesterol, LDL, impaired FBS and hypertension.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Authors are thankful to the Principal, Prof and head of the department of Biochemistry, students and technicians of the Central Lab of S S I Medical Science & Research Center for providing necessary facilities to perform this research work.

REFERNCES

1. Brownlee M, Biochemistry and molecular cell biology of diabetic complication; Nature, 2001; 414:813-820.

- 2. Wang Z and Hoy W E, Waist circumference, Body mass index, Hip circumference and Waist-to-Hip ratio as predictors of cardiovascular Disease in Abroriginal people; European Journal Clinical Nutritions 2004; 58,888-893.
- 3. Ford EF. Giles WH Dietz WH, Prevalence of the metabolic syndrome among US adults, Journal of the American Medical Association, 2002:287:356-359.
- 4. Guylaine CR, Helgo Saudny O, Harriet V, Kuhnlein, Grace M, Egeland; Body mass index may overestimate the prevalence of overweight and obesity among the INUIT; International J of Circ umpolar health; 2005:64(2); 163-169.
- 5. Bray GA, Adolescent overweight may be tempting fate; N Engl J Med. 1992;327:1379-1380.
- 6. Ugwu CE, Eezeanyika LUS, Daikwo MA and Amana R; Lipid profile of a population of diabetic patients attending Nigerian National Petroleum Corporation Clinic, Abuja,2009; AFR J of Biochem Research, 3(3),66-69.
- 7. Horri M, Vakili R, Evolution of cardiovascular and lipid profile abnormalities in obese children and adolescents, Iran J Med Sci 2006: 31(2): 87.-90.
- Jasim N AI-Asadi, Omvan S Habib, Lami Al-Naama: Cardiovascular risk factors among college students: Bahrrrain Med Bull 2006: 28(3); 1-8.
- Reddy KS, Prabhakaran D, Chhaturrvedi V, Jeemon P, Thankappan KR, Ramakrishnan L, Mohan BVM, Pandy CS, Ahmed FU, Joshi PP, Meera R, Amin RB. Aahhuja RC , Das MS and Jaison TM; Methods for establishing a surveillance system for cardiovascular diseases in Indian industrial populations. Bulletin of the world health organization, 2006, 84(6)
- Seul-ki Jeong, Man-Wook, Seo, Young–Hyun Kim, Sun-Seog Kweon, Hae-Sung Nam; Does waist indicate dyslipidemia better than BMI in Korean adult population?; J Korean Med Sci 2005;20;7-12
- 11. Soo-Kyung Lee, Relationships between body mass index, diabetes and blood glucose level in south Korean adults ;2005 Korean national health and nutrition survey; Republic of Korea.
- 12. Chadha DS, Gurdeep Singh, Kharbanda P, Vasdev V, Gangoo RK: Anthropometric correlation of lipid profile in healthy aviators, Ind J Aerospace Med 2006: 50(2); 32-37
- 13. Whitaker RD, Wright JA, Pepe MS, Seidel KD, Dietz WH, Predicting obesity in young adulthood from childhood and parental obesity. N Engl J Med .1997; 337; 869-873.

- 14. Donahue RP, Orchard TJ, Kuller LH, Drash AL., Lipids and lipoproteins in a young adult population, Am J Epidemiol, 1985;122:458-469.
- 15. Su HY, Sheu WHH, Chin HML, Effect of weight loss on blood pressure and insulin resistance in normotensive and hypertensive obese individuals. Am J Hypertens. 1995:8:1067-1071.
- 16. Farhad Hosseinpanah, Mehdi Rambod and Fereidoun Azizi; Population attributable risk for diabetes associated with excess weight in Tehranian adults: a population base cohort study: BMC Public health 2007:7:328.
- 17. Sawant AM, Shetty D, Mankeshwar R, Ashvaid TF, Prevalence of dyslipidemia in young adult Indian population. J Assoc Physicians Indian. 2008; 56:99-102.
- Divya Bishnol, Tanveen Kaur, Badaruddoza, Predictor of cardiovascular disease with respect to BMI, WHR and lipid profile in female of three population groups. Biology and Medicine, 2010, 2(2).32-41.
- 19. Goswami K and Bandyopadhyay A, Lipid profile in middle class Bengali population of Kolkata; Indian Journal of Cinical Biochemistry, 2003,18(2);127-130.
- 20. Limbu YR, Rai SK, Ono K, Kurokawa M, Yanagida JI, Rai G, Gurung N and Rai CK; Lipid profile of adult Nepalese population. Nepal Med Coll J 2008; 10(1); 4-7.
- 21. Jawed Aziz, Nadeem A Siddiqui, Imran A siddiqui, Amir Omair: Relation of body mass index with lipid profile and blood pressure in young health students AT Ziauddin Medical University; J Ayub Med Coll Abdottabad 2003:15(14).

- 22. Faisal Al-Mahroos, Khaldoon Al Roomi: Obesity among adult Bahraini population; Impact of physical activity and educational level; Annals of Saudi Medicine 2001:21:3-4:183-192.
- 23. Kasliwal RR, Kulshveshtha a, Sweta Agrawal, Basal M, Trehan M; Prevalence of cardiovascular risk factors in Indian patients undergoing coronary artery bypass surgery, JAPI 2006:34: 371-375.
- 24. DiPietro L, Mossberg HO, Stunkard AJ, A 40 years history of overweight children in Stockholm: life time overweight, morbiditiy, and mortality. Int J Obes. 1994:18:585-590.
- Must A, Jacques PF, Dallal GE, Bajema CJ, Dietz WH, Long term morbidity and mortality of overweigh adolescents. N Engl J Med. 1992; 327:1350-1355.
- 26. Paul Farajian, Efthimia Renti and Yannis Manios. Obesity indices in relation to cardiovascular diseases risk factors among young adult female students, British journal of nutrition 2008:99, 918-924.
- 27. Fasial H, Al Orifan, Hanan E, Badr, Mohammad Abdul Subour Se'adah, Khalid EK, Basel AL Kordi, Adel Abass; Obesity and cardiovascular risk factors in Kuwaiti Adulats , Kuwait medical J 2007:39(2):162-166.
- 28. Ghannem H, Khlifa K, Harrabi I, Ben Abdelaziz A and Gana R: Study cardiovascular risk factors among urban school children in Sousse, Tunisia: Estern Mediterranean health journal 2000: 6: 1046-1054.

Tympanoplasty with and without Mastoidectomy for Non-Cholesteatomatous Chronic Otitis Media

K. Mallikarjuna Swamy¹, Vasudeva Murthy C.R.²

¹Assistant Professor, Dept of E.N.T., ² Assistant Professor, Dept of Forensic Medicine and Toxicology, S.S.Institute of Medical Sciences and Research Center, Davangere-577005

ABSTRACT

Chronic otitis media is an inflammatory process of the mucoperiosteal lining of the middle ear space and mastoid. Infection represents the single major cause for the failure of tympanoplasty and can result from a hidden mastoid disease. Cortical mastoidectomy is an effective means of repneumatizing the mastoid and eradicating the mastoid source of infection. The effect of mastoidectomy on patients without evidence of active infection remains highly debated and unproven.

Key words: Type I tympanoplasty, Cortical mastoidectomy.

INTRODUCTION

Chronic otitis media is an inflammatory process of the mucoperiosteal lining of the middle ear space and mastoid. Although much has been written about the pathology, treatment modalities and outcome of cholesteatomatous ear disease, little has been about management mentioned of non cholesteatomatous Chronic Suppurative Otitis Media (CSOM)¹. It is well accepted that the main purpose of operation is to obtain permanently dry ear and close the perforation and improve the hearing. The use of mastoidectomy as a means to establish drainage of a complicated infection of the ear sparks little controversy². Well trained, experienced otologists currently remain divided as to the importance of mastoidectomy in the treatment of chronic noncholesteatomatous suppurative otitis media. However, the use of mastoidectomy to treat chronic drainage or suppuration from otitis media remains an issue of debate. Some authors have thought that mastoidectomy is justified in cases of chronic suppurative otitis media, which have been refractory to maximal antibiotic therapy³. Other authors have argued that closure of tympanic membrane perforations and elimination of chronic drainage can be achieved effectively when performing tympanoplasty with or without mastoidectomy. The non-mastoid causes of graft failure include general disability, technical error, and most importantly eustachian tube dysfunction.⁴ Mastoid factors include the extent of mastoid pneumatization and the presence of inflammatory disease in mastoid, while there is little

Correspondence Address: K. Mallikarjuna Swamy Assistant Professor, Dept of E.N.T.

C/o Dr.Shiva Prasad.K. Governments Doctors Quarters. Near Togakaveera Choulatry, MCC "A" Block, Davangere. controversy over the importance of non-mastoid factors; otologists have debated the role of mastoid in tympanic membrane reconstruction. Some argue that tympanic membrane perforations should be repaired by type I tympanoplasty alone, regardless of the status of the mastoid, others advocate mastoidectomy coupled with tympanic membrane repair when mastoid condition warrants. Ventilation of middle ear is an essential predictor of functional results following middle ear reconstruction⁵. It is a complex and dynamic process depending upon a number of factors. Most important of which include the functional status of the eustachian tube, the degree of pneumatization of mastoid air cells and the condition of middle ear mucosa. The role of mastoid pneumatization in the middle ear aeration is not exactly known. But it forms an air reservoir and acts as a surge of tank to minimize pressure fluctuation^{6,7}. The exact mechanism of the pneumatization of the mastoid air cell system and the factors influencing the pneumatization are poorly understood. The pneumatization has been linked to hereditary and genetic factors. It has also been related to the size of the skull and the height of the individual⁸. The functional status of the eustachian tube has been correlated to the pneumatization of the mastoid air cells by some authors, whereas, others do not confirm a significant correlation between the two. However, the ears with chronic suppurative otitis media have consistently shown a reduction in the size of mastoid air cell system. The purpose of this study is to examine the role of the mastoid air cells in the tympanic membrane reconstruction^{9,10}. The goal is to determine whether mastoidectomy is an effective means of repneumatizing the mastoid air cell system and eradicating mastoid sources of infection, to analyse the post-operative results for non-cholesteatomatous CSOM treated by tympanoplasty with or without mastoidectomy and to determine whether mastoidectomy is helpful or not.

MATERIALS AND METHODS

This study comprises of 60 patients with chronic suppurative otitis media safe type in quiescent stage. All the cases were operated during a period of 2 years between June 2005 to June 2007 in the department of ENT, Father Muller Medical College, Mangalore: 30 of these cases were selected for type I tympanoplasty alone (Group A) and 30 cases were selected for type I tympanoplasty with cortical mastoidectomy (Group B).

The work up for these cases consisted of a detailed history and a complete general physical, systemic and ear, nose and throat examination. In all the patient a routine blood and urine examination, X-ray of paranasal sinuses and mastoids, examination under microscope and puretone audiometry were done. Eustachian tube function was assessed clinically. The size of the mastoids was roughly measured by using a graph paper, on which the X-ray film of the mastoid taken in the lateral oblique view was superimposed.

RESULTS

Sixty cases of type I tympanoplasty were studied during a period of two years from June 2005 to June 2007 in the Department of ENT, Father Muller Medical College, Mangalore. The study group comprised of 55 patients, five of whom operated on both the ears, thus making the total number of operated cases sixty. Out of 60 patients 30 cases were selected for type I tympanoplasty alone (Group A) and other 30 cases were selected for type I tympanoplasty with cortical mastoidectomy (Group B).

Table 1. Showing group	s
------------------------	---

Type I tympanoplasty (Group A)	Type I tympanoplasty with cortical mastoidectomy (Group B)
30 cases	30 cases
Total no. of cases 60	

The age and sex incidence and various factors influencing the success of Type I tympanoplasty were analysed and the following results were observed.

Age (in years)	No. of patients	%
10-19	13	23.6%
20-29	21	38.2%
30-39	14	25.4%
40-49	6	11%
>50years	1	1.8%
Total	55	100%
$c^{2}_{(4)} = 21.636,$	p = 0.001 significant	

Table 2. Showing range of age

In present study, number of patients were seen in the age group of 20-29 years (38.2%), (p = 0.001) with a

mean age of 26.4 years. The youngest patient was 14 years and the oldest 55 years.

Table 3. Age	Factor in	Successful	Type I	Tym	panop	plasty	V

Age (in years)	No. of cases	Failures	Take-up rates			
10-39 years	52	8 (15.3%)	44 (84.7%)			
40 years and above	8	2 (25%)	6 (75%)			
Total	60 10					
$\chi^2_{(1)} = 0.029$	p = 0.865 (Not significant)					

In present series only eight type I tympanoplasties were performed on patients aged over 40 years. The graft take up rates were found to be lower in these patients (75%) compared to that of the younger age groups (84.7%) but statistically not significant.

 Table 4. Graft Takeup Rates in Patients with Bilateral

 CSOM

CSOM-Safe type	No. of cases	Failures	Take-up rates
Unilateral	26	4 (15.4%)	22 (84.6%)
Bilateral	34	6 (17.6%)	28 (82.4%)
Total	60	10	
$\chi^2_{(1)} = 0.054$ p	=0.816	(Not sig	gnificant)

Presence of bilateral CSOM at the time of Type I tympanoplasty did not seem to have any influence on the graft take up. In present study, 29 patients had bilateral ear disease, but the graft take up rates were similar to that with unilateral CSOM.

 Table 5: Size of Perforation with Regard to Graft

 Up-Take and Audiological Benefit

Size of perforation	No. of cases	Failures	Take-up rates	Average hearing gain
Medium	19	Nil	19 (100%)	6.8 dB
Large	29	3 (4%)	26 (89%)	12.6 dB
Subtotal	12	7 (58%)	5 (42%)	13.4 dB

Adjusted $\chi^{2}_{(2)} = 18.476 p = 0.0001$ (significant)

 Table 6: Audiological Benefits between the types of perforations

	N	Mean	Std. deviation	95% confidence interval for mean		Minimum	Maximum
Medium	19	6.84	4.682	4.59	9.10	0	18
Large	26	11.85	6.044	9.40	14.29	0	28
Subtotal	5	13.40	3.507	9.05	17.75	8	17
Total	50	10.10	5.877	8.43	11.77	0	28

F_(2.47) =5.808,p =0.006 (Significant)

Higher failure rates were noticed with increasing size of perforation, irrespective of the surgical approach. However, in successful cases of type I tympanoplasty, patients with subtotal and medium sized perforations showed a better audiological improvement (13.4 dB). According to multiple comparison test significant difference observed between Large and medium central perforations, medium and subtotal perforations.

Table 7. Relation of the Mastoid Size of Graft UptakeType I tympanoplasty (Group A)

Size of mastoids	No. of cases	Take up rate	Failure rate
Small	6	4 (66.6%)	2 (34.4%)
Medium	18	14 (77.7%)	4 (22.3%)
Large	6	6 (100%)	0

Adjusted $\chi^2_{(2)} = 3.317$ p = 0.190 (Not significant)

Cortical mastoidectomy + type I tympanoplasty (Group –B)

Size of mastoids	No. of cases	Take up rate	Failure rate
Small	13	10 (76.9%)	3
Medium	15	14 (93.3%)	1
Large	2	2 (100%)	0

Adjusted $\chi^2_{(2)} = 2.167$ p = 0.338 (Not significant)

As seen from the above charts a larger mastoid gives a much better take up rate, as compared to a smaller mastoid, irrespective of whether Type I tympanoplasty was done with or without cortical mastoidectomy. However, with a cortical mastoidectomy, the take up rates were found to be better even for smaller mastoids.

Table 8. Post – Operative Clinico-Audiological Evaluation

Procedure	No. of cases	Take up rates	Failures	Freedom from discharge	Audiological benefit
Group-A	30	24 (80%)	6 (20%)	25	10.4 dB
Group–B	30	26 (86.7%)	4 (13.3%)	30	9.7 dB
$\chi^2_{(1)} = 0.480$ p = 0.488(Not significant)					

Table 9. To test the significant difference between the two groups with respect to Audiological Benefit

Procedure	No. of cases	Medium	Maximum	Mean	Std. Deviation
Group-A	24	0	28	10.46	6.547
Group-B	26	0	18	9.77	5.294

 $T_{(48)} = 0.41$, p = 0.685(Not significant)

In group A (type I tympanoplasty only) patients the graft take – up rates were 80% compared to 86.7% of group B (type I tympanoplasty with cortical mastoidectomy). Although there was failure of the graft to take up in 4 cases of Group B, all the patients were free from ear discharge post operatively. However in the failed cases of Group A, there was no clinical improvement in five cases and ear discharge persisted even after surgery. The audiological improvement was found to be almost equal in both Group- A and Group – B.

Hearing	No. of cases	Percentage
Improvement	47	78.33%
No change	12	20%
Worsened	1	1.7%
Total	60	100%

 $\chi^{2}_{(1)} = 21.6$ p = 0.0001(Significant)

In our study of 60 cases, there was an average hearing improvement of 10.74 dB in speech frequencies in 78.3% of cases. 10 cases were not taken into account, as there was failure of graft take up. 2 cases showed no post operative audiological benefit inspite of graft take up. In one case there was deterioration from moderate conductive hearing loss to moderately severe mixed hearing loss after surgery.

CONCLUSION

Infection represents the single most important cause of graft failure and can result from a hidden mastoid disease. A simple mastoidectomy is an effective means of repnematizing the mastoid air cell system as well as eradicating the mastoid source of infection. Our study proves that type I tympanoplasty along with a cortical mastoidectomy gives better results than type I tympanoplasty alone.

REFERENCES

- 1. Rizer F. M. Overlay versus underlay Tympanoplasty. Part I: Historical Review of the Literature. Laryngoscope. 1997; 107:1-23.
- 2. Ortegren. Myringoplasty. Acta Otolaryngology. Suppl: 193, 1-41.
- 3. Siedentop K.H., Lee R.H and Osenar S.B. Predictability of tympanoplasty results. Arch Otolaryngology. 1972; 94: 146-150.
- 4. Booth J.B. Myringoplasty The lessons of failure. The journal of laryngology and otology. 1974; 88: 1223-1236.
- 5. Holmquist J and Bergstrom B. The mastiod air cell system in ear surgery. Arch otolaryngology. 1978; 104:127-129.
- 6. Wehrs R.E. and Tulsa O.K. Aeration of the middle ear and mastoid in tympanoplasty. Laryngoscope. 1981; 91: 1463-1467.
- Packer P., Mackendrick A. and Solar M. What's best in Myringoplasty: Underlay or overlay, dura or fascia? 1982; 96: 25-41
- 8. Yung M.W. Myringoplasty: Hearing gain in relation to perforation site. 1983; 97: 11-7.
- 9. Jackler R.K. and Schindler R.A. Role of the mastoid in tympanic membrane reinstruction, Laryngoscope. 1984; 94: 495-500.
- 10. Adkins W.Y., White B and Charleston.S.C., Laryngoscope. 1984; 94:916-918.
Prevalence of ABO and Rhesus Blood Groups Among Blood Donors

Mallikarjuna Swamy C M*, Basavaraj P B*, Kavitha G U **, Shashikala P*** *Assistant Professor, **Associate Professor, ***Professor & Head, Dept. of Pathology, SSIMS & RC, Davangere, Karnataka

ABSTRACT

Background: ABO and Rhesus (Rh) blood group antigens are hereditary characters and are useful in population genetic studies, in resolving medico-legal issues and more importantly for the immunologic safety of blood during transfusion.

Objectives: To document the distribution pattern of the ABO and Rh blood groups among blood donors in and around Davangere (Karnataka).

Methods: The distribution of ABO and Rh blood group was analyzed among 19,413 blood donors, over a period of 5 years (2005 to 2009). The age group and sex of donors, frequency of ABO blood groups and Rh status were calculated.

Results: The predominant donors belonged to the age group between 18-35 years (86.18%). Male to female ratio among donors was 86:1. The most prevalent blood group was O (36.76%), followed by group B (29.85%) and group A (26.15%). The least common blood group was AB (7.24%). The prevalence of Rh positive and negative distribution in the studied population was 94.48 and 5.52% respectively. The highest frequency of coexisting ABO-Rh phenotypes was that of O positive (34.67%) followed by B positive (29.85%) and A positive (26.15%).

Conclusion: Knowledge of frequencies of the different blood groups is very important for blood banks and transfusion service policies that could contribute significantly to the National Health System.

Keywords: Blood groups, ABO, Rhesus, Phenotypes, Blood donors.

INTRODUCTION

Over 700 erythrocyte antigens have been reported in the literature and have been organized into 30 blood group systems by the International Society of Blood Transfusion¹. The two most significant blood group systems were discovered by Karl Landsteiner during early experiments with blood transfusion: the ABO group in 1901² and in co-operation with Alexander S Wiener the Rhesus group in 1937³. The discovery of the ABO system marked the beginning of modern blood banking and transfusion medicine. The ABO system is the single most important blood groups which hold a respectable position in view of the safety of blood/blood component transfusion to date^{4,5}.

Correspondence Address: Dr. Mallikarjuna Swamy C. M Assistant Professor Dept. of Pathology, S.S. Institute of Medical Sciences & Research Centre, Davangere, Karnataka-577 005 Email: drmallikarjuna@yahoo.com Mobile number: 09964017330 Blood groups are genetically determined and exhibit polymorphism in different populations.⁶ The knowledge of the distribution of ABO and rhesus (Rh) blood group is essential for effective management of blood banks inventory, be it a facility of a smaller local transfusion service or a regional or national transfusion service. Apart from their importance in blood transfusion practice, ABO and Rh blood groups are useful in population genetic studies, researching population migration patterns, as well as resolving certain medico-legal issues, particularly of disputed parentage. It is, therefore, imperative to have information on the distribution of these blood groups in any population⁷.

The frequencies of ABO and Rh blood groups vary from one population to another. There are very few documented works devoted to the study blood groups in India and no data is available for Davangere, Karnataka. Our aim was to determine the ABO and Rh blood group distribution pattern among blood donors in a tertiary care hospital and to compare our results with other studies in India and elsewhere.

MATERIALS AND METHODS

ABO and Rh blood group of 19,413 blood donors (includes both voluntary and replacement donors) who donated blood for various reasons at the SS Blood Bank, Davangere, were analyzed from the inception of blood bank in 2005 to 2009 (five years). Donors were also recruited from various blood donations camps held in association with Indian Red Cross society and district hospital Davangere. The blood group phenotypes were detected by the classic slide and tube method by the antigen-antibody agglutination test with appropriate positive and negative control by mixing whole blood with appropriate anti-sera. In case of doubt, the test was examined under a microscope or the results were confirmed by reverse grouping using known group A and B red cells. Results of donors' age, male to female ratio and frequency of ABO and Rh blood groups were analyzed.

RESULTS

A total of 19,413 blood donor's blood groupings were done. The donors were aged 18-60 years with the maximum donors between 18-35 years (86.18%) Table 1. Male donors (19189, 98.85%) were more than females (224, 1.15%) with male to female ratio of 86:1. The number of voluntary and replacement donors were 1197 (6.17%) and 18216 (93.83%) respectively.

Table 1.	Age	distrib	ution	of	blood	donors
----------	-----	---------	-------	----	-------	--------

Age Group (Years)	No. of Donors	Percentage
18-25	8950	46.11
26-30	5119	26.37
31- 35	2659	13.70
36-40	1562	8.05
41-45	691	3.55
46- 50	336	1.73
51-55	78	0.40
56-60	18	0.09
Total	19413	100

The most common ABO blood group was found to be group O (7133, 36.76%), followed by group B (5795, 29.85%) and group A (5078, 26.15%). The least common blood group was AB group (1407, 7.24%) i.e., O > B > A> AB. Rh antigen was detected in 18,339 (94.48%) donors while Rh negative phenotype was found in 1074 (5.52%) donors (Table 2 and Figure 1).

Table 2. The frequency of combined ABO and Rh blood groups among blood donors

Blood Group	Rh positive	%	Rh negative	%	No. of Donors	Prevalence (%)
А	4778	24.61	300	1.54	5078	26.15
В	5486	28.26	309	1.59	5795	29.85
AB	1348	6.94	59	0.3	1407	7.24
0	6727	34.67	406	2.09	7133	36.76
Total	18339	94.48	1074	5.52	19413	100

Rh-D negative was common to the blood group O (2.09 % of all blood groups) as compared to blood group of AB (0.30%). The Rh group negativity for blood groups A and B were close (1.54% and 1.59% respectively). There was no association between ABO blood group and Rh status.

DISCUSSION

Both ABO and Rh blood grouping is very important for safe blood transfusion. Dangerous hemolytic transfusion reactions may occur when blood is transfused into an individual with an incompatible blood type.⁸ The severity of the resulting transfusion reaction may vary from an asymptomatic minor rise in the plasma bilirubin level to severe jaundice and renal tubular damage, with anuria and death. Another complication due to "Rh incompatibility" arises when an Rh negative mother carries an Rh positive fetus (erythroblastosis fetalis).⁵

ABO and Rh genes and phenotypes vary widely across races and geographical boundaries⁹⁻¹¹ despite the



Fig. 1. Frequency of ABO and Rh phenotypes among donors.

fact that the antigens involved are stable throughout life. The resultant polymorphism remains important in population genetic studies, estimating the availability of compatible blood, evaluating the probability of hemolytic disease in the new born, resolving disputes in paternity / maternity and for forensic purposes^{4,12}.

In our study, maximum donors were between 18-35 years because young adults usually volunteer

to donate blood than older age group. It was also evident that numbers of female donors were less because of their low body weight, low hemoglobin concentration, ignorance, lack of motivation and awareness and fear among the females regarding blood donation. The similar findings were noted by Ahad et al ¹³ Hence, general population needs more motivation and many voluntary blood donation camps need to be conducted to meet the increasing demand for blood. We have compared the frequency of distribution of blood groups ABO and Rh to previous studies Table 3. The present study is useful in providing information about the status of ABO and Rh blood group among blood donors which might represent ABO and Rh frequency in general population.

Table 3. Comparison of distribution of ABO and Rh blood groups in the present study and other countries. (DNA-data not available)

Study	Α	В	AB	0	Rh +	Rh -
Present	26.15	29.85	7.24	36.76	94.8	5.52
Bangalore ¹⁴	23.85	29.95	6.37	39.82	94.2	5.79
Mysore ¹⁵	34.3	25.3	6	37.4	97.3	2.67
Mysore ¹⁶	26.6	28.72	12.77	31.91	96.8	3.19
Chittoor ¹⁷	18.95	25.79	7.89	47.37	90.6	8.42
Vellore ¹⁸	18.85	32.69	5.27	38.75	94.5	5.47
Gujarat ¹⁹	23.3	35.5	8.8	32.5	94.2	5.8
Punjab ²⁰	21.9	37.6	9.3	9.3	97.3	2.7
Bangladesh ¹³	24.17	34.54	8.27	33.05	97.1	2.89
Pakistan ²¹	23.8	38	10	10	89.1	10.9
Nepal ²²	34	29	4	33	96.7	3.33
Niger-Delta ⁷	23.8	20.7	2.8	52.7	93.9	6.12
Yemen ²³	29.6	16.5	2.3	2.3	92.9	7.1
Iran ²⁴	33.1	23.3	8.9	8.9	88.7	11.3
Saudi Arabia ²⁵	33.4	6	3.8	56.8	92.8	7.2
Bahrain ²⁶	21.5	24.4	4.5	4.5	94.5	4.5
Australia ²⁷	38	10	3	49	DNA	DNA
United Kingdom ²⁸	42	8	3	47	DNA	DNA
USA (Blacks/ Whites) ²⁸	27/40	20/11	4/4	49/45	DNA	DNA
World's population ²⁸	32	24	7	37	DNA	DNA

As far as distribution of ABO blood group is concerned, the group O is the most frequently encountered phenotype in the population under study. This observation is in accordance with previous reports from other parts of South India^{14, 15, 18}. Another south Indian study conducted on the population of Chittoor district of Andhra Pradesh also showed similar pattern of distribution of blood groups¹⁷.

With regard to the other ABO blood group phenotypes, the frequency of group 'A' in the present

study is in proximity to the reported frequency among the Bangaloreans¹⁴. Slightly higher frequency for group A was reported in Gangadikara Vokkaligas of Mysore¹⁵.

A proportion of group 'B' as in our study is similar to report by other studies from South India ^{14, 18} whereas in north India blood group 'B' was found to be commonest ABO subtype^{19, 20}. The discrepancy between our findings and that reported by Wadhwa et al¹⁹ and Sidhu²⁰ may be attributed to the ethnic difference among the population of India, or it could be due to the smaller sample size as against a relatively larger sample size in the present study. A Study done by Nanu and Thapliyal²⁹ also reports that group B is the most predominant ABO group in the north Indian population as also in neighboring Pakistan.²¹ Bombay group was not found in our study.

The frequency of Rh negative phenotype is close to those reported from other parts of South India^{14,18} and north-India^{19,29}. This indicates that frequency of Rh-D negative phenotype in India is around 5% in sharp contrast to the frequency of about 15% phenotype reported in other nations^{6,11}.

CONCLUSION

This study establishes that there is a significant difference in ABO blood groups between south and north India, and India as well as different parts of the world. Among blood donors, the various ABO and Rh blood groups in south India, group O is the commonest, followed by blood groups B and A, where as in north India group B is the commonest phenotype. The frequency of Rh-negative in India is similar to other series. The results of this study could contribute significantly to the National Health System in aiding the prediction of percussions of certain diseases related to blood groups, as well as the requirement for certain blood groups within the blood donation programme. Knowledge of the frequencies of the different blood groups in this part of India is very important for blood banks and transfusion service policies. Knowledge of blood group phenotype distribution is also important for clinical studies (for example disease association), as well as for population studies.

Thinking about the life threatening complications and dangerous sequel of transfusion reaction we should be very careful regarding ABO and Rh blood grouping starting from blood collection, blood grouping and cross matching and up to transfusion to the recipient. Only sincerity and awareness can bring these dangerous transfusion reactions to zero.

- 1 International Society of Blood Transfusion (ISBT). "Table of blood group systems". Oct 2008, http://ibgrl.blood.co.uk/isbt.
- 2. Landsteiner K. Zur Kenntnis der antifermentativen, lytischen und agglutinierenden Wirkungen des Blutserums und der Lymphe. Zentralblatt Bakteriologie 1900;27:357-62.
- 3. Landsteiner K, Wiener AS. An agglutinable factor in human blood recognized by immune sera for rhesus blood. Proc Soc Exp Biol Med 1940;43:223-224.
- Reid ME, Calhoun L, Petz LD. Erythrocyte antigens and antibodies. In: Lichtman M, Beutler E, Kipps TJ, Seligsohn U, Kaushansky K, Prchal JK. Editors. Williams hematology. 7th ed. McGraw-Hill Medical publishing division:New York;2006. pp 2119-2136.
- Blaney KD, Howard PR. editors. ABO and H group systems and secretor status. In :Basic and applied concepts of immunohematology. 2nd ed. Mosby Elsevier:Missouri; 2009. pp.78-107
- Mourant AE, Kopec Ada C, Damaniewssta -Sobczak K. editors. Distribution of Human blood groups and other polymorphism. 2nd ed. Oxford University Press:London;1976.
- 7. Enosolease ME, Bazuaye GN. Distribution of ABO and Rh-D blood groups in the Benin area of Niger-Delta: Implication for regional blood transfusion. Asian J Transf Sci 2008; 2(1):3-5.
- Barret KE, Barman SM, Boitano S, Brook HL. Editors. Blood types. In: Ganong's Review of Medical Physiology. 23rd ed. Tata McGraw Hill: New York; 2010:527-530.
- Knowles S, Regan F. Blood cell antigens and antibodies, erythrocytes, platelets and granulocytes. In: Lewis SM, Bain BJ, bates I. Editors. Practical hematology. 10th ed. Churchill Livingstone;:Philadelphia; 2006. pp 481-522.
- 10. Reid ME, Lomas-Frances C. The blood group antigens facts book. Academics Press: SanDiego;1997.
- Technical manual. In: Vengelen-Tyler, editor. 12th ed. American Association of BloodBanks: Bethesda MD;1996.
- Polesky HF, Roby RK. Blood group, human leucocytes antigens and DNA polymorphism in Parentage and forensic testing. In:McPherson RA, Pincus MR. editors. Henry's clinical diagnosis and management by laboratory methods. 21st ed. Saunders:Philadelphia;2007. pp 1340-1349.
- 13. Ahad MA, Bakar MA, Ahsan HAM. Pattern of ABO and Rhesus (Rh) blood group among blood donors. Taj 2002;15(2):68-70.

- 14. Periyavan A, Sangeetha SK, Marimuthu P, Manjunath BK, Seema. Distribution of ABO and Rhesus-D groups in and around Bangalore. Asian J Transfus Sci 2010;4(1):41.
- 15. JaiPrabhakar SC, Gangadhar MR. Study of ABO and Rh (D) blood groups among Gangadikara Vokaligas of Mysore. Anthropologist 2009;11(1):63-64.
- 16. Prabhakar SCJ, Gangadhar MR. Reddy KR. ABO and Rh (D) blood groups among the Vishwakarmas of Mysore district, Karnataka. Anthropologist 2005;7(1):71-72.
- 17. Reddy KSN, Sudha G. and Rh (D) blood groups among the desuri Reddis of Chittoor District, Andhra Pradesh. Anthropologist, 2009;11(3):237-238.
- Das PK, Nair SC, Harris VK, Rose D, Mammen JJ, Bose YN, Sudarsanam A. Distribution of ABO and Rh-D blood groups among blood donors in a tertiary care centre in South India. Trop Doct. 2001;31(1):47-8.
- 19. Wadhwa MK, Patel SM, Kothari DC, Pandey M, Patel DD. Distribution of ABO and Rhesus-D groups in Gujarat, India: a hospital based study. Indan J Ped Oncol 1998; 19 (4):137-141.
- 20. Sidhu S. Distribution of the ABO Blood Groups and Rh(D) Factor Among the Scheduled Caste Population of Punjab. Anthropologist 2003; 5: 203-204.
- 21. Hammed A, Hussain W, Ahmed J, Rabbi F, Qureshi JA. Prevalence of Phenotypes and Genes of ABO and Rhesus (Rh) Blood Groups in Faisalabad, Pakistan. Pak J Biol Sci 2002; 5: 722-724.
- 22. Pramanik T, Pramanik S. Distribution of ABO and Rh blood groups in Nepalese medical students: a report. East Mediterr Health J. 2000 Jan;6(1):156-8.
- 23. Bahaj AA. ABO and Rhesus Blood Groups Distribution In Hadhramout Population. Hadhramout for Studies & Researches 2003; 4: 52-58.
- 24. Boskabady MH, Shademan A, Ghamami G, Mazloom R. Distribution of Blood Groups Among Population in the city of Mashhad (North East of Iran). Pak J Med Sci 2005; 21: 194-198.
- 25. Sarhan MA, Saleh KA, Bin-Dajem SM. Distribution of ABO blood groups and rhesus factor in Southwest Saudi Arabia. Saudi Med J 2009; Vol. 30 (1): 116-119
- 26. Al-Arrayed S, Shome DK, Hafadh NAS et al. ABO Blood Group and Rh-D Phenotypes in Bahrain: Results of Screening School Children and Blood Donors. Bahrain Med Bull 2001;23(3):112-15.

- 27. Australian red cross society. Available from: http://www.donateblood.com.au/all-aboutblood/blood-types
- 28. Racial & ethnic distribution of ABO blood types. Last revised on 07/13/2008. Available

From: http://www.bloodbook.com/world-abo.html.

29. Nanu A, Thapliyal RM. Blood group gene frequency in a selected north Indian population. Indian J Med Res. 1997;106:242-6.

A Study of Research Pattern of Postgraduate Dissertations in Pathology

Manjula*, Shashikala P**, Padmamma S***

*Librarian, Library and Information Centre, **Co-ordinator, Medical Education Unit, S S Institute of Medical Sciences & Research Centre, Davangere-577 005 Karnataka, India, *** Associate Professor Department of Library and Information Science, Kuvempu University, Shankaraghatta-577 451, Karnataka, India

ABSTRACT

This is a descriptive study undertaken to analyze the pathology dissertation topics of MD pathology students. 107 dissertation topics obtained through the website of RGUHS were analyzed. Skin, Female Genital System, Gastrointestinal system and Blood were the most common systems chosen for the study and maximum sample size was from Female genital system. Studies incorporating immunohistochemistry ,immunoflourescence, flow cytometry, and other newer and sophisticated techniques were very rare.

Key words: Pathology dissertation, Clinicopathology, Cytology, Hematology, Histopathology.

INTRODUCTION

Research in the form of thesis / dissertation work is an integral part of most postgraduate curriculums. Exposure to research helps to train the mind in adopting a scientific approach to medical and clinical problems.

The goal of medical research is to improve health and the purpose is to learn how systems in human body work, why we get sick and how to get back to health and stay fit. Research is the basic foundation to improve medical care. It can also provide evidence for policies, decisions on health development and finds new ways to treat and prevent disease.

Pathology is a scientific study of the nature of disease and its causes, processes, development, and consequences. Pathology is a unique medical specialty, touches all branches of medicine, as diagnosis is the foundation of all patient care. In fact, more than 70 percent of all decisions about diagnosis and treatment, hospital admission, and discharge rest on medical test results. Thus Pathology serves as the bridge between the basic sciences and clinical medicine and is the scientific foundation for all of medicine¹.

There are 31 colleges teaching Post Graduate course in Pathology in Karnataka, out of which 26 colleges are affiliated to Rajiv Gandhi University of Health Sciences (RGUHS), Bangalore. This paper analyses the studies which are undertaken by Post Graduates of Pathology of various medical colleges attached to RGUHS. 107 studies have been taken for analysis, as per the RGUHS web site www.rguhs.ac.in² dissertation subject wise list on greenstone platform as on 21.12.2010. Details of 67 studies obtained are analyzed. The present study helps to know about the various studies done by the Post Graduates of pathology for their dissertation and to know thrust areas which require studies.

MATERIAL AND METHODS

This is a descriptive study undertaken to analyze the pathology dissertation topics of postgraduates of pathology doing MD, in various medical colleges attached to Rajiv Gandhi University of Health Sciences. Material for the study was obtained through the website www.rguhs.ac.in on the greenstone plot form. As on 21.12.2010, there were 107 dissertation topics uploaded in the website covering dissertations undertaken from 2005 to 2008. Out of 107 topics, proper link was obtained for 67 titles, the details of which were taken and analyzed for the type of study, sample size and the organ system to which the study was confined. There was a wrong link for 40 titles which are excluded from the study.

RESULTS

107 titles obtained initially, showed the following distribution pattern of the topics.

Histopathology 30 (28%), Cytology 12 (11.2%), Clinicopathology 9 (8.4%), Cytology / histology correlation 3 (2.8%), Hematology 12 (11.2%), Histochemistry 1 (0.9%)

Type of study	No. of studies	%
Clinicopathological	9	8.4
Cytology	12	11.2
Cytology/Histology	3	2.8
Hematology	12	11.2
Histochemistry	1	0.9
Histopathology	30	28.0
Wrong link	40	37.38
Total	107	100

Table 1. Types of study undertaken by pathologypostgraduates is as follows:

Table 2. The various systems to which the study was confined are as shown below.

System	No of	No of	Sample
	studies	studies with	Size
Pland	12		E0 E00
Dioou	15	2	50-500
Bones	2	2	-
Breast	7	3	50-180
Cardiovascular system	1	-	50
Central Nervous System	1	-	62
Female Genital System	14	4	85-9945
Gastrointestinal	14	4	30-265
Gastrointestinal/Salivary gland	1	1	-
Head & Neck	2	1	197
Liver	3	2	56
Lungs/ Respiratory System	2	1	-
Lymph Node	7	2	50-244
Male Genital System	4	3	93
Mediastinum	1	-	71
Nerve	1	1	-
Nose	3	1	51
Renal System	1	1	-
Salivary Gland	1	1	-
Skin	16	6	28-198
Soft Tissue	3	2	138
Thyroid	7	2	82-162
Others	3	1	56-100
Total	107	40	

Sample size was obtained only in 67 studies to which a proper link was obtained. Overall sample size varied from 28-9945. Highest number of sample studied ie 9945 was from histopathology of female genital system. Least number of samples for the study ie 28 was from skin.

Skin, followed by gastrointestinal system, female genital system and blood were the most frequently chosen system for the study, as shown in the above Table.

DISCUSSION

Medical research and projects also have several benefits, such as improving students' ability to interpret the scientific literature critically when working as physicians or dentists, increasing the potential number of scientists who will pursue medical research and improving independent analytical problem-solving skills³.

Improving the quality of research is more a question of attitude than hard work. The amount of work required for doing mediocre research is exactly the same as that for the best of research. Research aims at the production of new knowledge and new skills that can be used in society⁴.

Both quantitative and qualitative approaches to research evaluation can be used to connect the aims of health research to its perceived value of research outcomes, whether this is tied to scientific excellence or usefulness⁵. Pathologists play an important role in patient care and management with other doctors, as a diagnostician, consultant, experimentalist, auditor of the quality of medical practice, teacher and administrator, etc⁶.

Histopathology (28%) was the commonest study chosen for the dissertation topic and the different systems which were commonly preferred for the study were Female genital system, gastrointestinal system and Skin.

Histochemistry, respiratory system, nerve, Mediastinum was the least common topics for study. Sample size was highest for female genital system, as maximum number of specimen received for histopathology to any medical college laboratories is from female genital system, of which hysterectomy, cervical biopsy and endometrial samples are the commonest.

With advances in technology, there are new and sophisticated diagnostic methods available for disease diagnosis. Because of lack of availability of such investigation in all the medical colleges and also they are not cost effective, students opt for histopathology and Clinicopathological studies for their dissertation work. Histopathology still remains the gold standard for confirmation of diagnosis and since the facility is available in all the medical colleges, students choose to take up histopathological studies. Postgraduate students should be encouraged to take up research activities, which adopt other types of investigations and skill. This calls for all the medical colleges to have sophisticated laboratory for such investigations and also trained personnel. This can happen when medical council of India mandates the establishment of laboratory with sophisticated methods of investigations in all medical colleges.

- 1. Kumar et al.,: Robbins and Cotran Pathologic Basis of Disease, Ed.8, 2010. pp 4.
- 2. <u>www.rguhs.ac.in</u> visited on 21.12.2010 on greenstone platform.
- 3. Weihrauch M, Strate J, Pabst R: The medical dissertation–no definitive model. Results of a survey about obtaining a doctorate contradict frequently stated opinions. Dtsch Med Wochenschr 2003, 128: pp2583-87.
- 4. Advisory Council on Health Research: Publication no. 57 - Research that matters -Responsiveness of University Medical Centers to issues in public health and health care. The Hague 2007.
- 5. Mostert, Sebastian P, et al., Societal output and use of research performed by health research groups in Health Research Policy and Systems 2010, 8:30 <u>http://www.health-policy-systems.com/content/8/1/30</u>.
- 6. Deodhare, S G: General Pathology and Pathology of Systems, Ed.6, 2002. pp.1.

Site Distribution of Different Types of Cutaneous Malignancy

Manjula A*, Shashikala P**, Sandhya Lakshmi B.N*

*Assistant Professor, ** Professor and Head, Department of Pathology, S.S. Institute of Medical Sciences and Research Center, Davangere, India

ABSTRACT

Background: Dermatological malignancies are relatively uncommon. Since the investigation, at an individual level, of various aspects of lifetime sun exposure, however, remains difficult, comparison of the site distribution and age pattern of different types of skin cancer can be an important source of aetiological clues. This study sought to evaluate the site distribution and age pattern of three main types of skin cancer in our setting.

Methods: The present study is a descriptive analysis of three main skin cancers seen in a tertiary hospital in Davangere. Histologically diagnosed various skin cancers i.e. malignant melanoma (MM), basal-cell carcinoma (BCC) and squamous-cell carcinoma (SCC) from January 2005 to December 2009 were reviewed and analyzed according to age, gender and site of distribution.

Results: During the study period forty tissue samples received were histologically confirmed to be of common primary skin cancers. The ages of the patients ranged from 18 and 80 years (mean: 51.4years). Squamous cell carcinoma (SCC) was the most common malignancy consisting of 26 (65 %) cases followed by melanoma with 9 (22.5%) cases and basal cell carcinoma (BCC) with 5 (12.5%) cases. The most common incidence was among the age group 40-60 years with 20(50%) cases detected. The head and neck was the commonest site of involvement for SCC and BCC, whereas for melanoma it was lower extremities.

Conclusion: Squamous cell carcinoma, Basal cell carcinoma and malignant melanoma constitute three main histotypes of skin cancer. SCC and BCC compared to malignant melanoma affect body locations which are usually sun exposed. Age-related behavior (i.e., another indirect indicator of duration of exposure to UV light) is consistent with the anatomical distribution of skin cancer.

Key words: Squamous cell carcinoma, Basal cell carcinoma, Malignant melanoma, Site distribution.

INTRODUCTION

Three most frequent primary skin cancers are basal cell carcinoma (BCC), squamous cell carcinoma (SCC) and malignant melanoma (MM). BCC and SCC, in combination are referred to as nonmelanoma skin cancers (NMSC). Exposure to ultra-violet (UV) radiation plays a major role in the aetiology of three main skin cancer types. The doses and patterns of sun exposure most strongly related to the risk of various

Correspondence:

Assistant Professor

E-mail: manjulaadinarayan12@rediffmail.com

skin cancer types seem, however, to vary substantially.¹

While SCC is believed to rise steadily with continuous intense sun exposure, the strongest evidence for MM has been intermittent exposure. BCC has been less often studied, but some data indicate that the risk of BCC may not increase beyond a certain level of sun exposure.^{2, 3} Since the investigation, at an individual level, of various aspects of lifetime sun-exposure however, remains difficult, comparison of the site distribution and age pattern of different types of skin cancer can be an important source of aetiological clues, especially if based on unselected population based series⁴.

This study sought to evaluate the site distribution and age pattern of three main types of skin cancer and an attempt was made in understanding the possible etiological clues in these malignancies.

Dr. Manjula A

Department of Pathology, S. S. Institute of Medical Sciences & Research Centre, "Jnanashankara". NH - 4, Bypass road, Davangere - 577 005, Karnataka, India.

MATERIALS AND METHODS

The present study was done in the department of pathology, S.S. institute of Medical Sciences and Research Centre, tertiary care hospital, Davangere which caters largely to the surrounding village population. A total of 40 cases with histological diagnosis of cutaneous malignancy i.e. malignant melanoma (MM), basal-cell carcinoma (BCC) and squamous-cell carcinoma (SCC) from January 2005 to December 2009 were analyzed. Malignancies of skin adenexa and anogenital region were excluded from the study. The variables evaluated included age, gender and site distribution of three main types of skin cancer the details of which were obtained from case records.

RESULTS

During the study period forty tissue samples received were histologically confirmed to be of common primary skin cancers. Table 1 shows the relative incidence of skin cancer types. Squamous cell carcinoma (SCC) was the most common malignancy consisting of 26 (65 %) cases followed by melanoma with 9 (22.5%) cases and basal cell carcinoma (BCC) with 5 (12.5%) cases. Age of patients ranged from 18 years to 80 years with mean age of 51.4years (Table 2). 29 cases (72.5%) were males and 11 cases (27.5%) females with a male to female ratio of 1: 0.37. The most common incidence was among the age group 40-60 years with 20(50%) cases detected. Tumors were rare below the age of 30 years with only 4 cases.

Table 3 shows the Age and sex distribution of skin cancer. High Incidence of malignant melanoma was

between 41-50 yrs, basal cell carcinoma 61-70 yrs and squamous cell carcinoma 51-60 yrs. Distribution of primary sites involved is shown in Table 4. Most cases of SCC (50%) were seen in the head and neck region with majority in face including lip. Equal number of SCC (38.4%) were also seen in lower limb especially involving the foot. Melanoma occurred more on the lower extremities (66.7%) frequently involving the foot. Among the BCC, majority of the cases i.e. 80% were reported in the head and neck region with the predilection for face.

Table 1. Relative incidence of skin cancer.

Туре	Number	Percentage
Squamous cell carcinoma	26	65.0
Malignant melanoma	09	22.5
Basal-cell carcinoma	05	12.5
Total	40	100

Table 2. Age/gender distribution.

Age range	Gen	Total (%)	
	М	F	
01-10	0	0	0 (0)
11-20	2	0	2 (5)
21-30	1	1	2 (5)
31-40	4	2	6 (15)
41-50	7	2	9 (22.5)
51-60	9	2	11 (27.5)
61-70	4	3	7 (17.5)
71-80	2	1	3 (7.5)
Total	29(72.5)	11(27.5)	40(100)

Mean: 51.4 years; age range: 18-80 years.

AGE	M	M	BC	C	sco	2	Total
	М	F	М	F	М	F	
01-10	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
10-20	1	0	0	0	1	0	2
21-30	0	0	0	0	1	1	2
31-40	0	1	0	0	4	1	6
41-50	3	1	0	0	4	1	9
51-60	1	1	1	0	7	1	11
61-70	0	0	2	2	2	1	7
71-80	1	0	0	0	1	1	3
Total	6	3	3	2	20	6	40

Table 3. Age/sex distribution of Skin cancer.

MM: Malignant ,melanoma, BCC: Basal cell carcinoma, SCC: Squamous cell carcinoma

Site Distribution			Total (%)	
	Malignant Melanoma	Basal-cell carcinoma	Squamous cell carcinoma	
Head & neck	1(11.1)	4(80)	13(50)	18(45)
Scalp	-	1	3	4
Ear	-	-	1	1
Face	1	3	9	13
Upper limb& shoulder	2(22.2)	-	2(7.7)	4(10)
Axilla	1	-	-	1
Arm	-	-	2	2
Hands	1	-	-	1
Lower limb	6(66.7) 17(42.5)	1(20)		10(38.4)
Thigh	-	-	2	2
Popliteal fossa	1	-	2	3
Leg	-	-	2	2
Foot	5	1	4	10
Unknown	-	-	1(3.9)	1
Total (%)	9(100)	5(100)	26(100)	40(100)

Table 4. Site distribution of different types of skin cancer

DISCUSSION

Squamous cell carcinoma, Basal cell carcinoma and malignant melanoma constitute three main histotypes of skin cancer⁴. Skin cancers occur mainly in the sixth, seventh and later decades^{12, 14-15}.

In the present series, nearly 70% of all reported cases of cancer relate to the fifth and later decades. The frequency of skin cancers in men and women is different. Present study shows male preponderance comparable to other studies¹³⁻¹⁵. Skin cancers occur mainly in the sun exposed regions predominantly involving face and neck areas of the body^{13,16}. Present study also shows that 45% of the reported skin cancer types were found in the head and neck region which demonstrate the major influence of sun exposure in the development of skin cancers.

SCC was the commonest skin cancer in the present series similar to other studies^{11,13}. SCC commonly occurs on sun damaged skin. Our results indicate that SCC compared to malignant melanoma affect body locations which are usually sun exposed, such as the face, scalp and upper arm. This corroborates previous studies by Franceschi et.al¹ and the findings are in line with continuous chronic sun exposure playing a more important role for SCC than melanoma. Present study shows predominant clustering of SCC over fifth decade and later.

Melanoma ranked the second most frequent tumor after SCC. The site distribution of melanoma does not accord with sun exposure in comparison with the nonmelanoma skin tumours¹⁰. Foot was the major site of involvement in the present study thus indicating the role of non-solar risk factor similar to other studies.¹¹ Melanoma showed clustering of cases over fourth decade.BCC was the third most common lesion in the present study contrast to other studies^{14,15}. BCC in this series predominantly involved the face comparable to other studies⁹ and showed high incidence rate over sixth decade.

In conclusion Squamous cell carcinoma, Basal cell carcinoma and malignant melanoma constitute three most frequent primary skin cancers. SCC and BCC compared to malignant melanoma affect body locations which are usually sun exposed. Age-related behavior (i.e., another indirect indicator of duration of exposure to UV light) especially for nonmelanoma skin cancer is consistent with the anatomical distribution of skin cancer.

- 1. Franceschi S, Levi F, Randimbison L, Vecchia CL. Site distribution of different types of skin cancer: new aetiological clues. Int J Cancer 1996; 67:24-28.
- Krickera, Armstronbg K, Englishd R, Heenanp J. Adose-response curve for sun exposure and basal-cell carcinoma. Int J Cancer 1995; 60:482-488.
- 3. Armstrong K. Epidemiology of malignant melanoma: intermittent or total accumulated exposure to the sun? J dermatol Surg Oncol 1988; 14:835-849.
- 4. Levi F, Franceschi S, Randimbison L, Vecchia

CL. Trends of skin cancer in the Canton of Vaud, 1976-92. Br J Cancer 1995; 72:1047-1053.

- 5. Moan J, Dahlback A. The relationship between skin cancers, solar radiation and ozone depletion. Br J Cancer 1992; 65:916-921.
- 6. Osterlind A, Jensen KH, Jensen OM. Incidence of cutaneous malignant melanoma in Denmark 1978-1982. Anatomic site distribution, histologic types, and comparison with non-melanoma skin cancer. Br J Cancer 1988; 58:385-391.
- Kaldorj, Shuggd, Youngb, Dwyert, WANG YG. Non-melanoma skin cancer: ten-year experience of cancer-registry based surveillance. Int J Cancer 1993; 53:886-891.
- 8. Asuquo ME, Otei O, Umana A, Bassey I, Ebughe G. Skin malignancy of the head and neck in Calabar, Southern Nigeria. European J plastic surgery 2010; 33:87-89
- Laishram RS, Banerjee A, Punyabati P, Sharma DC. Pattern of skin malignancies in Manipur, India: A 5-year histopathological review. J Pakistan Association of Dermol 2010; 20: 128-132.
- 10. Crombie ki. Distribution of malignant melanoma on the body surface. Br. J. Cancer 1981; 43:842

- 11. Cutanee T, Calaber, Sud Nd. Skin malignancies in Calabar, Southern Nigeria. J. Afr. Cancer 2009; 1:159-163
- 12. Deo SV, Sidhartha H, Shukla NK et al. Surgical management of skin cancers: experience from a regional cancer centre in North India. Ind J Cancer 2005; 42:145-150.
- 13. Ochicha O, Edino ST, Mohamed AZ, Umar AB: Dermatological malignancies in Kano, Nigeria: a histopathological review. Annal African Med 2004; 3:188-191.
- 14. Al-Thobhani AK, Raja YA, Norman TA.The pattern and distribution of malignant neoplasms among Yemeni patients. Saudi Med J 2001; 22: 910-913.
- 15. Alakloby OM, Bukhari IA, Shawarby MA. Histopathological pattern of non melanoma skin cancers at King Fahd Hospital of the University in the Eastern Region of Saudi Arabia during the years1983-2002. Cancer Ther 2008; 6:303-306.
- 16. Al-Maghrabi JA, Al-Ghamdi AS, Elhakeem HA. Pattern of skin cancer in south western Saudi Arabia. Saudi Med J 2004; 25: 776-779.

Comparison of Pain Response to Heel Prick and Venepuncture in Term Babies

Manuprakash .S.K *, K.Varadarajshenoy .K**

*Assistant Professor of Pediatrics, Hassan Institute of Medical Sciences, Hassan, Karnataka 573201, **Head of the Department of Pediatrics, Fr. Muller's Medical College, Mangalore, Karnataka

ABSTRACT

Objective: The objective of the study was to know the difference in the behavioural pattern that appear with painful stimuli in term neonates and also to compare the pain response to venepuncture & heel prick for blood sampling in term neonates.

Method: 70 healthy term neonates between 37 weeks to 42 weeks of gestational age, who required blood sampling for bilirubin or blood sugar estimation within the first week of life, were selected for the study. Selected cases were equally divided into 2 groups. In group 1, blood sampling was done by venepuncture and in group 2, blood sampling was done by heel prick. The state of arousal in neonates was assessed before the procedure with prechtl and beintema score. The pain following the procedure was measured in terms of behavioural pain score. Oxygen saturation, heart rate and respiratory rate were monitored by a single observer. The data collected was statistically analyzed by using Fisher's 'Z' test.

Results: 1. The behavioural pain response scores were increased in both the groups. 2. In response to painful stimuli, there was increase in heart rate and respiratory rate and decrease in oxygen saturation in both the groups. 3. The study revealed that term neonates who underwent heel prick had higher pain score than venepuncture 4. There was no difference in pain response score between male and female babies in both the groups.

Conclusion: Pain response was more during heal prick than venepuncture. Like adults, babies do experience pain. Hence it is necessary to use analgesia during any painful procedures.

INTRODUCTION

Pain is defined by the International Association for the Study of Pain as "an unpleasant sensory and emotional experience associated with actual or potential tissue damage or described in terms of such damage".¹ Acute pain is a highly complex, dynamic subjective experience that is useful to growing children, serving to warn them of danger and limiting exposure to additional injury. This definition is problematic when considering neonates and infants who are incapable of self report and may not have had previous experience with injury.

Anand and Craig² propose that pain perception is an inherent quality of life that appears early in development to serve as a signaling system for tissue damage. This signaling includes behavioural and physiological responses that are valid indicators of pain and can be inferred by others.

The pain in neonates has been historically underestimated & undertreated. It was thought that neonates do not feel pain because of inadequate myelination of sensory nerves, immaturity of pain receptors & reduced localization of pain. The effects of pain are also deleterious⁴. First pain experience has profound effects on subsequent pain perception and responses. Pain experience in the neonatal ICU may alter the normal course of development of pain expression in toddlers and pre-school children. Pain & stress in the neonatal period also alters pain sensitivity, decreases weight gain & decreases ability to learn. Extreme preterm neonates requiring many painful procedures during NICU care will have high prevalence of clinical & subclinical neurologic deficits, neurobehavioural disorders and psycho social problems during their pre-school and school years⁵.

Behaviour is the main source of expression of pain in non-verbal neonates. It is considered that there is increased sensitivity of pain in preterm babies as pain threshold is directly related to gestational age. Preterm babies having low threshold are highly sensitive to pain and term babies having higher threshold have lesser sensitivity to pain.

The early and abundant expression of putative neurotransmitters mediating nociception together with the delayed appearance of neurotransmitters associated with descending inhibitory fibers is responsible for increased excitability in the dorsal horn of the premature spinal cord. The magnitude of hormonal, metabolic, cardiovascular and immune response to invasive procedures is high in preterm and term babies. Because of high magnitudinal response, higher plasma concentration of analgesia and anesthesia are required to produce effect in neonates as compared to older age group.

There is still uncertainty about the extent of perception of pain by preterm babies as compared to term babies. Thus there is need to define differences in the common behaviours that consistently appear with painful stimuli in term and preterm babies. There is a gap in knowledge regarding this, hence present study was undertaken.

METHOD

The present study, a prospective study was carried out in the Department in Pediatrics in a reputed medical college hospital in Karnataka, India. The ethical clearance for the study was obtained from the institutional review board. The sample size for the study was determined to be 70. Healthy term neonates between 37 weeks to 42 weeks of gestational age, who required blood sampling for bilirubin or blood sugar estimation within the first week of life, were selected for the study. Selected cases were equally divided into 2 groups. In group 1, blood sampling was done by venepuncture and group 2; blood sampling was done by heel prick. Babies with significant morbidity like Septicemia, Birth Asphyxia, Congenital Malformation, neurological involvement and those received Nalaxone were excluded from the study.

Mothers of the selected neonates were always present during blood samplings & informed consent was taken before the procedure.

The state of arousal of neonates was assessed before the procedure using Prechtl and Beintema score as:

- 1. Eyes closed, regular respiration, no movements.
- 2. Eyes closed irregular respiration.
- 3. Eyes open, no gross movements

- 4. Eyes open, continual gross movements, no crying
- 5. Eyes open or closed, fussing or crying

Neonates in state 5 were not included in the study. The Dorsum of the hand was selected and venepuncture was done using a 24 gauge hypodermic needle. A cotton wool ball was applied to prevent bleeding. For the heel prick group, the heel was wiped with alcohol and pricked with a lancet to collect blood. A cotton wool ball was applied to prevent bleeding.

The pain during the procedure was scored in terms of behavioral pain score as

- 1. Brow Bulge
- 2. Eye Squeeze
- 3. Nasolabial Furrow
- 4. Open mouth
- 5. Cry

Each response was given a score of 1 if present and '0' if absent. Total score ranging from 0 to 5 were possible. Oxygen saturation was monitored using pulse oximeter. Heart rate, respiratory rate and behavioural scores were monitored by single observer.

Heart rate, respiratory rate and saturation were measured before and after the procedure. The maximum response during first five minutes of procedure was taken into consideration and the results were compared between groups I and II. The data collected was analyzed for statistical significance by student t test for continuous numerical values and the results were expressed in frequency, percentages, mean and SD. P< 0.05 was considered as significant.

RESULTS

In present study 70 term neonates were selected, to know the difference in the behavioural pattern that appear with painful stimuli and also to compare the pain response to venepuncture & heel prick . Among selected neonates, 42 were males and 28 were females. (Table 1)

Table 1. Gender distribution

Group	Male	Female
Group I: Term Venepuncture	21	14
Group II: Term Heel prick	21	14

Most of the babies selected were having a score of 3 in Prechtl & Beintema score. In this study almost all neonates exhibited brow bulge & eyes squeeze during the procedure. Nasolabial furrow & open mouth were next commonly observed response. Cry as a response was consistently high in heel prick group when compared to venepuncture group. (Table2)

Facial actions	Term Venepuncture	Term Heel prick
Brow bulge	35	35
Eyes squeeze	34	35
Nasolabial furrow	31	35
Open mouth	25	33
Cry	18	29

Table 2. Behavioural pain score

There was significant difference in behavioral pain response score (p<0.002) between venepuncture and heel prick group. The mean behavioural pain response score for venepuncture being 4.086 & for the heel prick 4.723, which suggest that response was high in heel prick. (Table 3a, 3b)

Table 3a. Behavioral pain score

Behavioural Pain score	Number of babies		
	TermTermVenepunctureHeel pri		
2	4 -		
3	7 2		
4	6 5		
5	18	28	

Table 3b. Mean total behavioural pain score

Groups	Mean B.P.S.	
Ι	4.086	
П	4.743	

In this study, venepuncture and heel prick groups exhibited increase in mean heart rate , respiratory rate during the first five minutes of procedure resulting in significant statistical differences (P<0.01). The O_2 Saturation fell significantly during the procedure (P< 0.01) (Table 4 & 5)

When pain response to venepuncture and heel prick compared, there were no statistically significant differences in heart rate, respiratory rate & Spo₂ changes before & during first five minutes of procedure. The behavioural pain response score was statistically significant in heel prick group (Table 6).

There was no statistical significant difference in the male & female preterm infants in behavioural response score. (Table 7)

DISCUSSION

Until recently, it was believed that neonates & infants do not feel pain due to immaturity of their nervous system.

Previous studies have clearly shown that the anatomical, physiological & neurochemical structures which convey pain are well developed in both preterm & term neonates²⁰. Most of the term & preterm neonates admitted to NICU undergo repeated multiple diagnostic & therapeutic procedures that result in pain & discomfort.

Table 4. Changes in heart rate, respiratory rate & Spo₂ in response to venepunctre in term neonates

Variables	Before	During 1 st 5 min of procedure	Mean difference	95% CI for mean	P value
HR	127.71±15.038	149.26±17.68	+21.543	17.25+25.836	.000
RR	47.54±8.41	60.06±15.05	+12.114	8.19+16.04	.000
Spo ₂	95.8±2.08	91.2±2.99	-4.6	-5.63-3.56	.000

Table 5. Changes in heart rate, respiratory rate & Spo, in response to heel prick in term babies

Variables	Before	During 1 st 5 min of procedure	Mean difference	95% CI for mean	P value
HR	130.37±12.21	147.943±11.36	+17.57	14.31 to+20.83	.000
RR	45.94±10.38	59.57±9.3	+13.63	10.49 to+16.77	.000
Spo ₂	96.37±1.85	90.6±2.56	-5.77	-6.58 to-4.96	.000

Table 6. Comparison of pain response in term neonates for venepuncture & heel prick

	Variables	Group I (term venepuncture)	Group II (Term heel prick)	p value
Before	HR	127.71	130.37	.42
	RR	47.94	45.94	.379
	Spo ₂	95.8	96.37	.229
During1 st 5 min.	HR	149.25	147.94	.713
	RR	60.057	59.57	.872
	Spo ₂	91.2	90.6	.371

	Group I (TV)	Group II (TH)	p value
State of arousal score	3.057	3.086	.82
Behavioural response score	4.086	4.723	.002*

Table 6a. Comparison of pain response in term neonates for venepuncture & heel prick

* Highly significant.

Frequent & prolonged pain may be potentially harmful to the developing nervous system & may threaten the physiological stability of premature & sick infant.^{4,6} Venepuncture & heel prick are the common methods of collecting blood in neonates. The present study clearly indicates that all newborns responded to painful stimuli in one or the other way. Various studies also reported that neonates have characteristic & predictable response to painful stimuli.

J. Alison Rush forth et al ⁷ study reported that 90% of term and 84% of preterm babies exhibited an increase in behavioural response to heel prick. In term babies the brow bulge & nasolabial furrow were seen most often (83%). Eyes squeeze was observed in 78% of babies where as open mouth and cry were seen in 75% of term babies.

Table 7. Comparison pain response between Male & Female term neonates

(Venepuncture and heel prick group)

Variable	Male	Female	Т	P value
State of arousal	3.048± .6228	3.11±. 315	.467	.642
Behavioural response score	4.476±.92	4.32±.94	.683	.492

In our study, brow bulge & eyes squeeze were most often seen facial action (97-100%). Open mouth was seen in 82% of term babies & cry in 67%.

When comparing the physiological parameter in response to pain, Harmesh Singh et al⁸, in their study reported that mean heart rate was increased during the procedure in both the groups with statistically significant differences (p<0.01). There was significant rise in respiratory rate during the procedure as compared to baseline (P<0.01). All newborn experienced a significant decrease in oxygen saturation during procedure (p<0.01).

Neil M C In tosh et al ⁹ studies concluded that mean heart rate & respiratory rate increased significantly





with pain. In our study, it was observed that heart rate & respiratory rate increased significantly in both the groups following venepuncture and heel prick procedures (p<0.001) & on the other hand oxygen saturation was decreased significantly (p<0.001). Similar responses were also seen in studies done by Brown. L. et al¹⁰, Owen ME et al¹¹, Berg.K. M. et al¹², Lindli V.et al¹³, Gonsalves S. et al¹⁴.

In a study conducted by Vibhuti S Shah,¹⁵ neonatal pain response and its adverse effects and maternal anxiety were assessed in 27 neonates using neonatal infants Pain scale [NIPS]. It was concluded that NIPS scores were higher in heel stick group compared to venepuncture group. This suggests that venepuncture is less painful than heel prick in newborns.

In our study, there was significant difference in behavioral pain response score (p<0.002) between venepuncture and heel prick group. The mean behavioural pain response score for venepuncture being 4.086 & for heel prick 4.723, which suggest that response was high in heel prick. Changes in physiological parameters i.e. heart rate, respiratory rate & oxygen saturation were uniformly present in both the groups. This implies pain response to heel prick was high compared to venepuncture.

Greisburg R et al ¹⁶ & Grunau et al ¹⁷, in their study concluded that female newborn babies of all gestational age expressed more facial features of pain than male babies. J. Alison Rush forth et al ⁷ study concluded that term female babies were associated with increased pain scores compared to male babies. In contrast to above studies, there was no statistical significance in behavioral response scores in male & female term babies in our study.

In Summary, the behavioural response score was increased in both the groups. In response to pain, there was increase in heart rate and respiratory rate, where as oxygen saturation was decreased in both the groups. The study revealed that term neonates who underwent heel prick had higher pain score than venepuncture. There was no difference in pain response score in male or female babies in both the groups.

CONCLUSION

Pain response was more during heel prick than venepuncture. Like adults, babies do experience pain. Hence it is necessary to use analgesia during any painful procedures.

- 1. Merskey H, Albe Fersard DC. Bonico JJ et al. Pain in terms. Pain 1979; 6:249.
- 2. Anand K.J.S, Craig KD. New perspectives on definition of pain. Pain 1996; 67:3-6.
- McGrath P J. Behavioral measures of pain. Progress in pain research & measurement. 1998; 10:83.
- 4. Nandakishor S Kabra & Udani R H Pain in neonate. Indian J Pediatric 1999; 66:121-130
- 5. Anand KJS. The clinical importance of pain & stress in preterm neonates 1996.
- Pokela ML. Pain relief can reduce hypoxemia in distressed neonates during routine treatment procedures. Pediatrics 1994; 93: 379-383.

- Rush forth JA, Levene MI. Behavioral responses to pain in healthy neonates. Arch. Dis child 1994; 70: 174-176.
- Singh H, Singh D, Soni R. K. Comparison of pain response to venepuncture between term & preterm neonates. Indian pediatrics 2000; 37: 179-181.
- 9. Neil MC In tosh, Leonik van veen, Helen Brameyer. Alleviation of the pain of heel prick in preterm infants. Arch Dis child 1994; 70: F177-F181.
- 10. Brown.L. Physiologic response to cutaneous pain in neonates. Neonatal Network 1987; 5:18-21.
- 11. Owens ME, Todt EH. Pain in infancy: Neonatal reaction to heel lance. Pain 1984; 20:7-86.
- 12. Berg KM, Berg WK, Graham FK. Infant heart rate response as a function of stimulus Psychophysiology 1971; 8:30-44.
- 13. LindhV Wiklund, Hakanssons. Heel lancing in Term newborn infants; Pain, 1999; 80:143-148.
- 14. Gonsalves S, Mencer J. Physiological correlates of painful stimulation in preterm infants. Clin J Pain 1993; 9:88-93.
- 15. Shah. V.S., Taddio A., Bennett S. Speodel.D. Neonatal pain response to heel sticks Vs venepuncture for routine blood sampling. Arch Dis child 1997;77:143-144.
- Guinsburg R, Difference in pain expression between male & female newborn infants, Pain 2000, 85:127-133.
- Grunau RVE, Craig KD. Pain expression in neonate's facial action & cry. Pain 1987; 28: 395-410.

Clinical Crown Lengthening Procedure: Literature update and two Case Reports

¹Mukhatar Ahmed Javali, ²Pawan Kumar

¹Associate Professor, ²Senior Lecturer, Department of Prosthodontics, Al-Badar Dental College & Hospital, Gulbarga - 585 102, Karnataka, India

ABSTRACT

Clinical crown lengthening procedures are used to enhance aesthetics and /or provide adequate tooth structure for placement and retention of the restoration while respecting the attachment apparatus. When restoration margins extend beyond biologic width, inflammation and anatomic changes can develop. This article will outline the theoretical concepts underlying crown lengthening procedure, an overview of the indications and contraindications for it and two case reports clinical crown lengthening procedures.

Key words: Aesthetics; Crown lengthening; Gingival margin; Gingivectomy

Conflicts of interest: Nil.

INTRODUCTION

Clinical crown lengthening procedures are periodontal surgeries which are done to enhance esthetics or to provide adequate tooth structure for placement and increase retention of the restoration, respecting the attachment apparatus. The incorporation of crown lengthening surgery in the treatment plan can greatly improve the chances of a predictable success of a prosthodontic and/or esthetic case. Early planning will facilitate treatment and provides for more stable and better esthetic result.

The crown lengthening procedure has received considerable attention in both the periodontic and the restorative literature since the term 'biologic width' was first coined by Walter D. Cohen in 1962. Garguilo described various components of the periodontium, giving mean dimensions of 1.07 mm for the connective tissue, 0.97 mm for the epithelial attachment and 0.69

Correspondence Address: Mukhatar Ahmed Javali Associate Professor, Department of Periodontics, Al-Badar Dental College & Hospital, Gulbarga - 585 102.Karnataka, India. E-mail: majavali@yahoo.com. Email:javali2006@indiatimes.com. Cell No: +919844167003. Phone Residence: +91 08472 279021. mm for the sulcus depth. These measurements are known today as the biologic width. This biologic width includes the tissue that occupy between base of the gingival sulcus and the crest of alveolar bone. The average width is 2.04mm¹. In order to prevent impingement of biologic width, 3mm to 4mm of tooth structure is necessary coronal of bony crest². In instances where the biologic width is not respected, a periodontal lesion characterized by chronic gingival inflammation, loss of attachment, gingival recession associated with localized bone loss, and alveolar resorption will result ³.

Rationale for use of this procedure:

There are two basic reasons to include crown lengthening in the prosthetic treatment plan; (i) to increase the stability/retention of the restoration; and (ii) to preserve or create a healthy attachment apparatus. The durability of a crown is improved due to: (i) a longer abutment with greater retention; (ii) superior adaptation of the crown margin facilitated by more precise impressions enhanced by healthy gingival tissues; and (iii) decreased risk of localized periodontitis due to the creation of an adequate distance between the alveolar crest and the apical extent of the restoration. Thus, it is generally accepted that crown-lengthening surgery helps to relocate the alveolar crest at a sufficient apical distance to allow room for adequate crown preparation and reattachment of the epithelium and connective tissue⁴.

The preservation of a healthy periodontium is accomplished by creation of an adequate distance between the alveolar crest and the restoration as well as providing the margins accessible for daily cleaning.

Indications and Contraindications

The diagnostic acumen of the prosthetic dentist is often challenged by borderline cases. The clear indications for crown lengthening surgery are coronal fractures extending below the gingival margin, root perforations extending subgingivally,subgingival caries or overextended restorations to the functional epithelium,occlusal wear and increase clinical crown coronal to bony crest in order to prevent violation of biologic width..Indications for crown lengthening procedures in anterior maxilla includes labial clinical crown exposure, increasing aesthetics with patients with altered passive eruption and excessive gingival display⁵.

Maxillary anterior region present a difficult therapeutic challenge due to its aesthetic importance. Poorly planned procedures in these areas can lead to unaesthetic and functional alterations, such as interproximal embrasure opening, elongations of clinical crowns, unequal length of the crowns and speech impediment⁵.

Treatment Planning

Planning for the procedure requires diligent communication between the restorative dentist and the periodontist. Since the surgery will establish a new dento-gingival complex in accordance with the planned restorative margins, the prosthetic provider must plan and delineate the placement of margins before the surgery. With the advance of a well fabricated provisional restoration, the periodontist can then determine a zone of sound tooth structure and better plan the extent to which alveolar bone will be removed.

Clinical Crown Lengthening Procedures

Clinical treatment modalities utilized to lengthen clinical crowns prior to aesthetic prosthetic or restorative include periodontal surgical procedures like gingivectomy, flap surgery with or without orthdontically assisted extrusion⁵.

Gingivectomy

This modality is indicated when bone surgery is not required and soft tissue resection will provide desired results. Gingival resection is limited to instances where an appropriate gingival width is available. An internal bevel incision is used and the excised tissue is removed with the curettes. Slight finger pressure is applied for readaptation of the gingiva to the tooth, instead of sutures. While gingivectomy is often acceptable, it is not always predictable. The restored gingival margin often shifts coronally due to gradually reestablishment of the biologic width after treatment⁶.

Periodontal Flap Surgery

Periodontal flap surgery is appropriate when uneven gingival margins are present pre-operatively. Provisional restoration are prepared and fitted prior to the surgical procedure, which allows improved access to the interproximal and a precise evaluation of the amount of tooth structure to expose accordingly to the preoperative diagnostic waxups. An internal bevel incision is given in a scalloped form to preserve the interdental papillae. Full thickness flaps are raised and the alveolar bone is reduced to achieve the desired level with the proximal teeth. Releasing incision age used in necessary. The osteotomy is carefully designed to achieve at least 3mm of supracrestal sound tooth structure.Osteoplasty is performed where indicated.

This procedure results in larger clinical crowns and loss of osseous support I the indicated dentition. The buccal and palatal flaps are sutured by positioning the flaps apically. After 7-10 days sutures are removed and further prosthetic treatment is delayed for an additional 4 weeks for complete healing.

Periodontal Flap Surgery with Forced Eruption

This procedure is implemented 00when the gingival margin level in the treatment area is correct and aesthetic results in this area are imperative. In these instances, if periodontal surgery is performed without forced eruption will compromise the appearance of gingiva. In this procedure, where periodontal surgery and forced eruption are utilized, periodontal surgical area is reduced to a limited area and does not involve the proximal dentition.

CASE REPORTS

Case 1

A 52-year-old man presented to the department of

periodontics from the department of prosthdontics requesting to increase the length of clinical crown for retention of the prosthesis (Fig 1). His medical history was noncontributory, and he denied a history of smoking or alcohol consumption. Extraoral examination revealed no significant findings. His face was symmetric and had a straight profile. His smile line extended to the second premolars, and smiling displayed approximately 4 mm of gingival tissues. Dental examination revealed that the crown of tooth 45 had short clinical crown. The prosthetic treatment plan for the patient involved a crown and bridge of full metal crown involving 47 and 45 as abutments. Periodontal examination revealed good oral hygiene with minimal plaque and calculus deposits. Clinical examination revealed shallow probing depths, no mobility and adequate amounts of keratinized attached gingiva. The crestal bone level was within normal limits, and the crown to root ratio was favourable.



Fig. 1: View of tooth (45) before the procedure.

After discussion with the prosthetic dentist, clinical crown-lengthening was recommended to allow a healthy, optimal relationship between the teeth and the periodontium. Apically positioned flap with osteotomy and osteoplasty was performed (Fig 2, 3). Chlorhexidine rinse 0.2% bid was prescribed for 2 weeks, and the patient was given appropriate postoperative instructions. Final insertion of the crowns was performed 4 months after the crownlengthening surgery (Fig 4).



Fig. 2: Flap surgery and osseous reduction.



Fig. 3: Apically repositioned flap and sutures.



Fig. 4: Final insertion of the crowns 4 months after surgery.

Case 2:

A 22-year-old female patient presented to the periodontics department requesting a better-looking teeth and smile. She had undergone orthodontic treatment for last 2 years, but she complaint of excessive gingival display during smiling (Fig 5). Her medical history was noncontributory.Extraoral examination revealed no significant findings. Her face was symmetric and had a straight profile. Her smile line extended to the second premolars, On dental examination it revealed that the gingiva was coronally placed in respect to upper anterior teeth and it displayed more during smiling. Periodontal examination revealed good oral hygiene with minimal plaque and calculus deposits. The gingiva was pink and firm and the papillae were intact. Clinical examination revealed false pockets because of coronally placed gingival margins, no mobility and adequate amounts of keratinized attached gingiva.



Fig. 5: View fo anterior maxillary teeth before the proedure.

After studying the patient finding it was decided to plan for esthetic crown-lengthening to allow a healthy, optimal relationship between the teeth and the periodontium and no display of gingiva during smiling. A internal bevel gingivectomy and gingivoplasty was performed maintaining the depth of the sulcus (Fig 6).The healing was good and the gingival appearance was aesthetically fine (Fig 7).



Fig. 6: Internal bevel gingivectomy and gingivoplastry.



Fig. 7: View after 2 months.

DISCUSSION

Clinical crown lengthening is a useful means to provide adequate tooth length for proper prosthetics without compromising the periodontium, the retentive qualities of the prosthesis and the aesthetic results. Common procedures include, periodontal surgeries, such as gingivectomy, flap surgery with or without forced eruption.

While gingivectomy is a relatively simple procedure, the dimension of the pre-operative supracrestal gingival tissue tends to reform over the subjacent alveolar bony crest post-operatively. Therefore; gingivectomy is successful only in the presence of sufficient width of gingiva⁶. Periodontal flap surgery actually reduces the bone support of the tooth and increases the dimensions of the clinical crown. In situation of single tooth Clinical crown lengthening procedure, flap surgery can be contraindicated due to uneven gingival recession and resulting open embrasures.However,this procedure is indicated in region where aesthetic is not a factor.

When forced eruption, preceding clinical crown lengthening is performed can subsequently reduced the surgical procedure to a defined area without involving the proximal dentition, which can enhance the aesthetic results^{7,8}. Corrective osseous surgery can be avoided if forced eruption is combined with biweekly gingival fiberotomy⁹. Disadvantage of forced eruption includes compromise oral hygiene; impair aesthetics, patient discomfort during treatment and extended treatment period and expenses. Periodontal surgery with or without orthodontics treatment facilitates prediction of a functional and aesthetically successful oral rehabilitation.

CONCLUSION

The incorporation of crown lengthening surgery in the planning stages of reconstructive work can greatly improve the outcome of the treatment, both functionally and aesthetically. Respecting the biologic width concept will ensure a healthy and stable result. This multispecialty treatment should be considered for indicated situations while implementing careful evaluation, case selection, treatment planning, and precise surgical and associated treatment, in order to achieve the results that meet the functional and aesthetic demand.

- 1. Gargiulo AW, Wentz FM, Orban B. Dimensions and relations of the dentogingival junction in humans. Journal of Periodontology 1961; 32:261-267.
- Rosenberg ES, Garber DA, Evian C. Tooth lengthening procedures. Compendium Continuing Education in Dentistry. 1980; 1(3):161-173.
- 3. Parma-Benfenati S, Fugazzotto PA, Ruben MP. The effect of restorative margins on the post0surgical development and nature of the periodontium. Part 1. International Journal of Periodontics and Restorative Dentistry. 1985; 5(6):30.51.
- 4. Carnevale G, Sterrantino SF, Di Febo G. Soft and hard tissue wound healing following tooth

preparation to the alveolar crest. Int J Periodontics Restorative Dent 1983; 3(6):36-53.

- 5. Carlos EN,Zvi Artzi,Ofer Moses.Preprosthetic clinical crown lengthening procedures in the anterior maxilla.Pract Proced Aesthet Dent 2001;13(7):581-588.
- Afshar-Mohajer K, Stahl SS.The remodeling of human gingival tissue following gingivectomy. J Periodontol 1977;48(3):136-139.
- 7. Ingber JS.Forced Eruption. Alteration of soft

tissue cosmetic deformities.Int Periodont Rest Dent 1989; 9960:416-425.

- 8. Stern N,Becker A.Forced Eruption.Biological and clinical considerations.J Oral Rehabil 1980;7:395-402.
- 9. Berglundh T,Marinello Cp,Lindhe J,et al. Periodontal tissue reactions to orthodontic extrusion.An experimental study in th dogs. J Clin Periodontol 1991;18(5):330-336.

Dentigerous cyst - A case report

Murali Mohan. K.V*, Radhika. D**, Naga Sujatha. D***, Ramesh. T****

*Professor and HOD of Pathology, **Assistant professor of Anatomy, ***Assistant professor of Oral & Maxillofacial Surgery ***Assistant professor of Conservative Dentistry& Endondontics, ****Assistant professor of Conservative Dentistry & Endondontics, RIMS Govt.Dental College, Kadapa., Andhra Pradesh

ABSTRACT

Dentigerous cysts are most common cystic lesions of jaws. It is most prevalent odontogenic cyst associated with an erupted or developing tooth, particularly mandibular 3rd molar. Other teeth that are commonly affected are maxillary canine, maxillary 3rd molars, canines and central incisors. Radiologically cyst appears as ovoid well demarcated unilocular, radiolusency with a sclerotic border. In the present case dentigerous cyst involving unerrupted left mandibular canine tooth. Clinical and radio graphical findings suggestive of dentigerous cyst which is confirmed by histopathological examination. Careful evaluations of history clinical and radiological findings help the clinician for accurate diagnosis and appropriate treatment.

Key words: Unerrupted canine tooth, Dentigerous cyst.

INTRODUCTION

Dentigerous common cysts are most developmental odontogenic cysts of jaws approximately account for 20 to 24% which apparently develops by accumulation of fluid between reduced enamel epithelium and tooth crown of un erupted tooth⁶. Dentigerous cyst or follicular cyst is an odontogenic cyst thought to be of developmental origin associated with the crown of an unerrupted or partially erupted tooth. The cyst cavity lined by epithelial cells derived from reduced enamel epithelium of tooth forming organ. In addition to developmental origin some authors have suggested that periapical inflammation of non vital deciduous teeth in proximity of follicle of unerrupted permanent successors may be a factor triggering this type of cyst formation⁴. Histologically a normal dental follicle lined by anomalous epithelium where as dentigerous cyst lined by non keratinized stratified Squamous epithelium. Since dentigerous cyst develops from follicular epithelium it has more potential for growth differentiation than radicular cyst. About 90% of

Correspondence:

Dr. Murali Mohan. K.V Professor and HOD of Pathology Door No: 7/597 NGO's Colony Kadapa- A.P. India -516 002 Cell No: +91 9440042844 E-mail - kuppilimm@gmail.com dentigerous cysts involved with permanent dentition. Only 5% associated with supernumerary teeth¹.

CASE REPORT

A female patient aged 18 years presented with left mandibular swelling of 2x3 cm size of ten month duration. History of gradual enlargement, swelling was bony hard in consistency and fixed to left mandible below lower lip. Radiological examination showed large circular well defined and unilocular radiolucent area surrounding unerrupted permanent left mandibulur canine tooth. Histopathological examination showed cystic lumen with loosely arranged fibrous connective tissue cyst wall lined by 3 to 4 layers of cuboidal epithelial cells resembling reduced anomalous epithelium. There was no inflammatory cell infiltration. After correlating the clinical, radiological and histopathological features a final diagnosis of dentigerous cyst was made.

DISCUSSION

Dentigerous simply means containing teeth. Dentigerous cyst is most common intra bony lesion of jaws in children⁴. These cysts are more commonly seen with mandibular third molar and maxillary canine and followed by mandibular premolars, maxillary third molar, supernumerary teeth and rarely the central incisor⁶. No tooth is spared, but decidious teeth are scarcely ever affected. In our case left permanent mandibular canine is effected which is a rare presentation. Dentigerous cyst is a benign odontogenic cyst. These are second most common cysts after radicular cysts¹. Very rarely both cysts may be seen on the same patient. Males are more commonly affected than females⁶. Two types of dentigerous cysts occur. The first is developmental in origin and occurs in mature teeth usually as a result of impaction. These cysts usually occur in the late second and third decades, and predominantly involve mandibular third molars. The second type is inflammatory in origin and occurs in immature teeth as a result of inflammation from a nonvital deciduous tooth follicle. These are diagnosed in the first and early part of the second decade. It may occur at any age, our patient is 18 years female. Frequency in the general population has been estimated at 1.44 cysts for every 100 unerrupted teeth³. Dentigerous cyst arises from alterations of reduced enamel epithelium after development of enamel resulting in accumulation of fluid between the unerrupted tooth and the surrounding dental follicle is the accepted etiology. What precipitates this fluid accumulation is unknown. Sizes of the cysts are variable. These cysts are often asymptomatic therefore these lesions are diagnosed in routine radio graphical examination. Swelling, rarely pain occurs late or with infection. Multiple dentigerous cysts have been reported with associated syndromes like cleidocranial dysplasia, mucopolysaccaroidosis and basal cell nevus syndrome⁵. Radiographically, a dentigerous cyst should always be differentiated from a normal dental



Fig.1: Radiographic picture of Dentigerous cyst



Fig.2: Histopathological picture of Dentigerous cyst [H&E X400].

follicle. So these cysts cannot be diagnosed using radiographic evidence alone but must be based on both macroscopic and microscopic examination. Unicystic amyloblastoma and odontogenic kertocyst also mimic dentigerous cyst radiologically⁴. Dentigerous cyst should be differentiated from other lesions like adenomatoid odontogenic tumour, odontogenic kertocyst, amyloblastic fibroma, unicystic amyloblastoma, odontogenic adenomatoid tumour & large apical cyst⁶. Histopathological examination shows cystic lumen with loosely arranged fibrous connective tissue cyst wall lined by 3 to 4 layers of cuboidal epithelial cells resembling reduced anomalous epithelium. Hyperplastic statified squamous epithelial lining usually seen in older patients. Secondary changes like chronic inflammation, ulceration, reactive hyperplasia, metaplsia and dysplasia may be seen. Complications associated with dentigerous cyst include pathologic bone fractures, loss of permanent tooth, bone deformation, development of Squamous cell carcinoma, mucoepidermoid carcinoma and amyloblastoma⁶. Treatment depends on size, location, disfigurement and requires variable bone removal to ensure total removal of the cyst². Surgical removal of cyst avoiding damage to the permanent tooth and enucleation of cyst along with removal of involved tooth. Recurrence very unusual. Dentigerous cyst associated with anterior teeth will result in failure of eruption and leads to esthetic and orthodontic problems.

- 1. Isser. D.K. Dentigerous cyst in a young boy. Indian Journal of Otolaryngology and Head and Neck Surgery .2002, Vol. 54, No. 1, January – March.
- 2. Dinkar. A, Dawasa. A, Shenoy. S. Dentigerous cyst associated with multiple mesiodens: A case

report. Journal of Indian Society of Pedodontics and Preventive Dentistry.2006, April 1.

- 3. Shashikiran. N, Kum. N, Reddy. V.V.S. Unusual presentation of inverted impacted premolars as a result of dentigerous cyst: A case report. Journal of Indian Society of Pedodontics and Preventive Dentistry.2006, April 1.
- 4. Kalaskar. R, Tik. A, Damle. S. Dentigerous cysts of anterior maxilla in a young child: A case report. Journal of Indian Society of Pedodontics and Preventive Dentistry.2007, October 1, pp187-190.
- 5. Vikrams Prabhakar and Simarpreet Virk Sandhu. Non syndromic bilateral maxillary dentigerous cysts: Review of literature and report of an unusual case. Journal of Indian Society of Pedodontics and Preventive Dentistry. 2009, December.
- 6. Desai. R.S, Vanaki S.S, Puranik.R.S, Tegginamani.A.S. Dentigerous cyst associated with permanent central incisor: A rare entity. Indian Society of Pedodontics and Preventive Dentistry. 2005,Volume 23,Issue 1, pp 49-50.

Implant Considerations in Children and Adolescent Patients

Narendra Padiyar*, Srivatsa. G**, Rajeswari.C.L***

*Professor and HOD Department of Prosthodontics Mahatma Gandhi Dental College and Hospital Jaipur, **Professor and HOD Department of Prosthodontics, ***Reader Department of Prosthodontics KLE Society's Institute of Dental Sciences Bangalore

ABSTRACT

There are some congenital disorders which can lead to absence of teeth in children. Such children require replacement of teeth for functional and psychological reasons. As the growth of the jaws is still incomplete, it was generally accepted that removable partial denture is the treatment of choice in children.

Various authors have debated the pros and cons of placing implants in children and adolescent patients. All are of the opinion that an understanding of dental development and cranio facial growth is a must for anyone trying implants in children. Hence, an understanding of the direction of growth of the jaws, the problems of placing implants and the importance of vigilant recare programme in children is a necessity before attempting implants in children.

Key words: Growth, Implants, Children, Adolescence, Implant supported prosthesis,

INTRODUCTION

The reasons for missing teeth in children's include congenital disorders, pathology, trauma and others. Prosthodontic rehabilitation is required in such children depending on the individual status of the existing dentition, the functional status of mastication, phonetics, esthetic aspects and psychological well being. The replacement of missing teeth in children differs from that of adults and there are some important factors to be considered in treatment planning.

THE FACTORS INCLUDE

Growth: Jaw growth in children is continuous till 18 to 22 years and the presence of teeth is vital for the development of anatomy and physiology in the adjacent structures. Any interim prosthesis should not interfere with the growth of these structures.

Correspondence Address: Dr. Narendra Padiyar Professor and HOD Department of Prosthodontics Mahatma Gandhi Dental College and Hospital Jaipur. Phone no: 09928561339 e-mail ID: drnpadiyaru@yahoo.com *Space management*: There is a need for space management to facilitate proper eruption of permanent teeth. The clasps and the temporary denture base should not interfere with the eruption of natural teeth.

Neuromuscular skills: The neuromuscular skills in child are not as developed as that of adult. The better the neuromuscular coordination, the better is the adaptation to the temporary denture.

Patient and parent management: The child patient must understand the need for the prosthetic replacement; its maintenance and the importance of good oral hygiene. The child's cooperation needs to be gained through behavioral management. The parents' attitude, motivation and understanding of the proposed treatment and its limi-tations need to be carefully evaluated before any treatment is rendered.

Modification in the procedures: The modification of existing teeth for their preservation and maximum support, alteration of the tech-niques in fabrication of prosthesis and the modification and/or replacement of the prostheses is to be kept in mind during child rehabilitation.

Numerous treatment options for edentulous space in children and adolescence include; removable prostheses and recently the dental implants. Removable prosthesis which includes removable partial dentures, complete dentures and overdentures are often the treatment of choice to replace missing teeth and/or restore vertical dimension of occlusion prior to definitive treatment. The advantages of overdentures in cases of hypodontia are well documented. Removable pros-theses are easily modified or remade during the growth period offering an easy, affordable, and reversible method of dental rehabilitation. Fixed Prosthodontic treatment is seldom used even as an interim prosthesis in the treatment of hypodontia. Fixed partial dentures with rigid connectors should be avoided in young, actively growing patients as it may interfere with jaw growth.

The successful use of implants in adults has arosed the interest of the clinicians to try them in younger patients. There is no doubt that the children who have congenital anomalies can benefit remarkably from an implant supported oral rehabilitation carried out in childhood.¹ However, dental and skeletal growth is a major compounding variable related to the use of dental implants in adolescent patients.² Clinicians should have an understanding of the potential risks involved in placing implants in jaws that are still growing and developing and consider the effect that implants have on craniofacial growth³.

For a stable implant position, it is generally recommended to wait for the completion of dental and skeletal growth. In a growing child, the growth and development of maxilla and mandible are different as are those in the specific areas of each arch⁴⁷. Transversal skeletal or alveolar dental changes are less dramatic in mandible than maxilla⁸. However if implants are to be placed in children or adolescents, the two primary concerns are the effect of growth on the long term relative position of the implant and the effect of implant supported prosthesis on future dental and skeletal growth².

Normally the early growth in maxilla is due to growth of the cranial base and the later growth is extremely variable and can be vertical, transverse and antero posterior. Transverse growth occurs at the midpalatal suture and implant prosthesis crossing the suture will restrict growth. In the mandible, the growth in the posterior region occurs predominantly in late childhood with large amounts of anteroposterior, transverse and vertical growth apart from rotational growth [Downward and forward, mediated by oppositional condylar growth]. Where as in anterior mandible, there is minimal alveolar growth when teeth are missing due to early stabilization of the mandibular symphysis. Major transverse growth is complete in early childhood. It is the most suitable site for implant placement. Placing implants in this region also will diminish the residual alveolar resorption.

In the absence of maxillary teeth, the alveolar ridges will not develop, and the maxilla will be underdeveloped both sagittally and vertically. In contrast, Mandibular growth is not dependent on the presence of teeth. Therefore, in the presence of hypodontia or anodontia, the relationship between the two jaws will tend to be disproportionate with class III development as growth continues throughout the normal growth period⁹.

DISCUSSION

Anodontia is a genetic disorder defined as the absence of all teeth and is extremely rarely encountered in a pure form without being part of a syndrome. Rare but more common than anodontia are hypodontia and oligodontia. Hypodontia is genetic in origin and usually involves the absence of 1 to 6 teeth. Oligodontia is genetic as well and is the term most commonly used to describe conditions in which more than six teeth are missing. These conditions may involve the primary or permanent sets of teeth, but most cases involve the permanent teeth.

One of the commonest causes of congenitally missing teeth in children reported in the literature is due to ectodermal dysplacia (ED). Young children with ED and anodontia in the mandible, present special challenges while placing implants.¹⁰ Implant survival rates vary between 88.5% and 97.6% in patients with ED and between 90% and 100% in patients with tooth agenesis. Implants placed in adolescent ED patients do not have a significant effect on craniofacial growth, while implants placed in ED patients younger than 18 years have a higher risk of failure¹¹. The main risk factors could be the small jaw size, the pre-operative condition, lack of patient monitoring following surgery and orofacial motor dysfunction, rather than the ED itself.^{10,11} Some of the authors have argued that endoosseous implants can be successfully placed and can provide support for prosthetic restoration in patients with ectodermal dysplasia¹². Studies have shown that these patients benefit remarkably from an implant supported oral rehabilitation¹³ particularly because children do not use removable partial dentures. The loaded implants help to ensure maintenance of ridge height, prevent supra eruption, and maintain stable occlusion.

Although the development of techniques for osseointegrated implants offer new possibilities for the prosthdontic rehabilitation of such children, it was concluded that implant surgery in small children must not be considered routine treatment¹⁴. It is recommended to wait for the completion of dental and skeletal growth except for severe cases of ectodermal dysplacia¹⁵. It is accepted by most of the authors that the safest time to place implant in such children seems to be during the decline of adolescent growth curve determined by cephalometric radiographs, serial measure of stature or hand-wrist radiograph⁸.

PROBLEMS AND PRECAUTIONS

Implants in the maxilla can behave like ankylosed tooth¹⁶, cannot participate in growth resulting in growth disturbances, unpredictable implant dislocations in vertical and antero posterior direction and even implant losses due to resorptive aspects of growth at the nasal floor and anterior surface of maxilla. It is concluded that insertion of implant in growing maxilla should be avoided until early adulthood⁸.

In the posterior mandible, implants may become submerged resulting in both functional and esthetic disadvantages later like infra occlusion and multidimensional dislocation when compared with the developing teeth. As a result there are no reported implant insertions in the posterior mandible⁸.

Overall, implants in any region can interfere with the position and eruption of adjacent tooth germs. There may be morphological changes due to trauma to tooth germs and disorders of eruption. Osseointegration may be lost as the growth takes place. In order to avoid these problems, some clinicians have tried placing implants buccally with success. Implants placed after 15 years in girls and 18 years in boys or when two annual cephalograms show no change in the position of the adjacent teeth and alveolus are said to have the most predictable prognosis^{6,9}.

If a decision is made of implant placement, it is advisable to restore larger edentulous areas with implants than to place a single implant supported crown^{1,16,17}. Considering the anatomical and morphological features in pediatric patients mini and micro implants are being introduced⁸. A combination of well executed Implant-supported/tooth-supported, overdenture (hybrid) prosthesis would be an excellent choice in rehabilitation of congenital subtotal anodontia later in life in contemporary dental practice¹⁸.

However, the decision for implant placement is based not only on growth, but also the number and location of the missing teeth. In patients who present with com-plete anodontia, implants can be planned in the maxilla and anterior mandible as early as age 7. These may be classified under provisional implants. It has to be kept in mind that surgery [segmental osteotomy or distraction osteogenesis] may be necessary once growth is com-plete to reposition of the implant segment to a more favorable position there by to correct the jaw size discrepancy. Implants may have to be replaced⁷ or the implant prosthesis may have to be modified or remade over time by utilizing pinc porcelain or acrylic resins for fixed or removable implant supported prosthesis⁹.

Some studies have shown excellent long term results achieved after appropriate case selection, careful handling of the soft and hard tissues and good occlusal harmony. But usually a common problem faced in case of missing teeth is lack of sufficient bone for implant placement and this may be due to local to general decrease of growth stimuli of the jaw due to absence of large numbers of teeth.

CONCLUSION

Ideally the implants are placed once the skeletal growth is completed, but in cases of partial or complete anodontia the use of implants is becoming popular. Placing implants in a child patient should be a team effort consisting of surgeon, pedodontist, prosthodontist, orthodontist and periodontist. There is no doubt that implants would greatly assist in prosthesis support. The clinician should understand the disadvantages of early placement and weigh those factors against esthetic and functional advantages afforded by implants.

Patients with implant assisted restorations should be evaluated frequently to ensure the health of the implant and its surrounding tissue as well as to assess the effect of the prosthesis on the overall growth and development of the jaws. An extremely vigilant recare programme is necessary.

- 1. Guckes AD et al. Using endosseous dental implants for patients with ectodermal dysplasia. J Am Dent Assoc 1991;122:59-62.
- Mc Donald. Prosthodontic treatment of the adolescent patient. In, Dentistry for the child and adolescent, 8th edition. New Delhi, Mosby publishers, 2004;504-523.
- 3. Brahim JS. Dental implants in children. Oral Maxillofac Surg Clin North Am 2005;17:375-381.
- 4. Bjork A, Skieller V. Growth of the maxilla in three dimensions as revealed radiographically by the implant method. Br J Orthod 1977;4:53-64.
- 5. Cronin RJ, Oesterle LJ. Implant use in growing patients: treatment planning concerns. Dent Clin North Am 1998;42(1):1-34.
- 6. Cronin RJ, Oesterle LJ, Ranley DM. Mandibular implants and the growing patient. Int J Oral Maxillofac Implants 1994;9:55-62.

- Oesterle LJ, Cronin RJ, Ranley DM. Maxillary implants and the growing patient. IntJ Oral Maxillofac Implants 1993;8:377-387.
- Shobha Tandon. Pediatric Prosthodontics. In, Text book of Pedodontics, 1st edition, Hyderabad, India, Paras Medical publishers, 2003;601-613.
- 9. Sharma AB, Vargervik K. Using implants for the growing child. J Calif Dent Assoc 2006 Sep;34(9):719-24.
- Bergendal B, Ekman A, Nilsson P. Implant failure in young children with ectodermal dysplasia: a retrospective evaluation of use and outcome of dental implant treatment in children in Sweden. Int J Oral Maxillofac Implants 2008 May-Jun; 23(3):520-524.
- 11. Yap AK, Klineberg I. Dental implants in patients with ectodermal dysplasia and tooth agenesis: a critical review of the literature. Int J Prosthodont 2009 May-Jun;22(3):268-76.
- 12. Kearns G, Sharman, Perrot D. Placement of endoosseous implants in children and adolescents with hereditary ectodermal dysplacia. Oral surg Oral med Oral Pathol Oral radiol Endod 1999;88:5-10.

- 13. Sweeney et al. Treatement outcomes for adolescent ectodermal dysplacia patients treated with dental implants. Int J Paediatr Dent 2005;15:241-248.
- 14. Bergendal T, Ederdal, Koch. Osseointegrated implants in the oral rehabilitation of a boy with ectodermal dysplacia. Int Dent J 1991;41:149-156.
- 15. Percinoto.C et al. Use of dental implants in children: A literature review. Quintessence Int 2001;32:381-383.
- 16. West wood RM, Duncan JM. Implants in adolescents: a literature review and case reports. Int J Oral Maxillofac Implants 1996;11:750-755.
- 17. Ledermann PD, Hassell TM, Hefti AF. Osseointegrated dental implants as alternative therapy to bridge construction or orthodontics in young patients: seven years of clinical experience. Pediatr Dent 1993;15:327-333.
- 18. Dhiman R, Singh P, Roy Chowdhury SK, Singla NK. Complete mouth rehabilitation of sub total congenital anodontia with indigenous implant supported prosthesis. J Indian Prosthodont Soc 2006;6:90-94.

Correlation of Apoptotic Index and Bcl-2 Protein with Other Histological Prognostic Factors in Prostate Carcinoma

Malik P Nisha^a, Sharma V.K^b, Gupta Ankush^c.

^aJunior Resident, Lecturer, Pathology, LLRM Medical College Meerut, Uttar Pradesh ^bProfessor, Department of Pathology, LLRM Medical College Meerut, Uttar Pradesh ^cJunior Resident, Department of Surgery, S. N. Medical College, Agra, Uttar Pradesh

ABSTRACT

This study was conducted to evaluate the correlation of Apoptotic Index and Bcl-2 protein expression immunohistochemically in Prostate Cancers with known histological prognostic factors in prostate Carcinoma including Gleason's score and Angiogenic index (AgCD-31). The study group consisted of 35 cases of prostate adenocarcinoma obtained from the patients admitted in Dept. of Surgery and from cancer registry of Department of SN Medical Collage Agra. The specimens were subjected to hematoxylin and eosin staining, Bcl-2 immuno histochemical staining, Apoptotic index calculation, Gleason's grading. Univariate analysis showed no correlation between apoptotic index (A.I.) & Gleason's grade {mean A.I. 2.23 ± 1.72 (intermediate grade) and 1 ± 0.85 (high grade); p>0.05}, negative correlation between apoptotic index and angiogenic index {mean angiogenic index =109.82 (intermediate grade) & 247.35 (high grade); p<0.05}.Bcl-2 showed a positive correlation with Gleason's grade (intermediate grade 7.69% & high grade 21.82%), but Bcl-2 positive immunoreaction was not correlated with apoptotic index (p>0.05). Besides grading, quantification of Bcl-2 antiapoptotic protein and angiogenic index can be of value to predict prognosis of prostate carcinoma. Bcl-2 immunostain can be used on TURP specimens where often grading may not be representative of the entire specimen.

Keywords: Apoptotic Index, Bcl-2, Angiogenic index, Prostate cancer.

INTRODUCTION

The incidence of prostate adenocarcinoma has risen dramatically in the past decade, probably owing to early detection, by employing digital rectal examination, serum Prostate Specific Antigen (PSA) assay and transrectal ultrasonography. Latest estimates show that it has now become the most common form of cancer and second leading cause of cancer death in men ¹. This change predominantly represents an increase in the number of cancers diagnosed rather than a real increase in the number of cancers in the population. Early detection has also resulted in increased life expectancy^{2,3}.

Correspondence Address: Nisha Punia, Lecturer Department of Pathology, LLRM Medical College, Meerut U.P. Phone: +919359838899 Email:nishapmalik15@yahoo.com.in

Molecular prognostic markers in carcinoma prostate are not a new concept. As we know three main factors are required for tumor establishment- 1) Doubling time of tumor cells, 2) Fraction of tumor cells that are in replicative pool and 3) Rate at which cells are shed and lost in the growing lesion. One of the important pathways is inhibition of apoptosis or programmed cell death which may be involved in the pathogenesis of cancer by prolonging cell life and facilitating retention of deleterious mutation. Among the most important regulators of apoptosis and programmed cell death are that of B- cell lymphoma proteins(Bcl-2) and its related proteins. The protein encoded by this gene is a potent blocker of apoptosis. Complex interaction among the three subgroups within the Bcl-2 family controls the signaling events of apoptosis⁴. Over-expression of the Bcl-2 protein occurs in a wide variety of human cancers and presumably contributes to neoplastic expansion by prolonging cell survival. Bcl-2 proteins at endoplasmic reticulum also regulate autophagy, a survival pathway that limits metabolic stress, genomic instability and tumourigenesis⁵. Among the most important regulators of apoptosis and programmed cell death are that of B- cell lymphoma proteins(Bcl-2) and its related proteins. The protein encoded by this gene is a potent blocker of apoptosis. Complex interaction among the three subgroups within the Bcl-2 family controls the signaling events of apoptosis⁴. Overexpression of the Bcl-2 protein occurs in a wide variety of human cancers and presumably contributes to neoplastic expansion by prolonging cell survival. Bcl-2 proteins at endoplasmic reticulum also regulate autophagy, a survival pathway that limits metabolic stress, genomic instability and tumourigenesis⁵.

In normal prostate Bcl-2 protein is present in the androgen independent basal cells that line the basement membrane of the prostate gland but not in the differentiated luminal secretory cells that are androgen dependent and undergo apoptosis when deprived of testosterone. In our study we evaluated the correlation of apoptotic index and Bcl-2 protein expression immuno-histocamically in prostate carcinoma with known histological prognostic factors like Gleason's grading, scoring and angiogenic index.

 Table 1. Case distribution of randomly sampled prostatic adenocarcinoma.

S. No.	Case Obtained	Number	Percentage
1	Trup	23	65.71
2	Radical Prostatectomy	11	31.43
3	Needle Biopsy	1	2.86
	Total	35	100.00

MATERIAL AND METHODS

Thirty five cases of prostate adenocarcinoma were randomly selected among the Patients registered in Department of Surgery and Pathology of S.N. Medical College, Agra. Random sampling of 35 cases consisted of 23 cases of TURP, 11 cases of Radical prostatectomy and one needle biopsy specimen Table 1. Haematoxylin - eosin stained slides from each specimen were reviewed and the Gleason's grade was assigned. Tumours were classified as high grade when the combined Gleason's score was _8 and intermediate when score was between 5 and 7 Apoptotic index was calculated in histological tumor material. Apoptotic index was calculated by measuring apoptotic cells per 1000 tumor cells per 10high power fields⁶. Immunohistochemical staining for Bcl-2 and CD-31 was performed by means of a modified labeled avidinbiotin technique, using monoclonal antibody and staining kit (DAKO LSAB2 System, HRP).The percentage of immunopositive tumour cells were scored as follows5: 1=0 to <1%;2=1 to 25%; 3=26 to 50%; 4=51 to 75% and 5=76 to 100%. Immuno-staining intensity was rated as follows: 0(none); 1(weak); 2(moderate) and 3(intense). Specimens were considered immunopositive when ³ 1% of the tumour cells had clear evidence of staining.Micro vessels marked with anti-CD31 in highly vascular tumour areas were counted in four adjacent high power fields. Micro vessel density was calculated per square millimeter of tumour tissue.

Statistical analysis: We categorized our sample (total specimens=35) into two groups: intermediate (13) and high grade cases (22). There were no low grade adenocarcinomas (Gleason score _ 4) in any of our specimens. After calculating apoptotic index and angiogenic index and evaluating Bcl-2, the statistical analysis was performed to draw the significance, if any, amongst various grades of prostate adenocarcinoma. Chi-sq. test was applied to find out any correlation between apoptotic index and Bcl-2. By using student's't' test correlation was observed between the angiogenic index and apoptotic index.

RESULTS

The study group consisted of 35 specimens of prostate adenocarcinoma which were categorized according to Gleason grading system. Apoptotic index was calculated using light microscopy on H&E stained sections. No statistically significant correlation was found between Gleason's grade and apoptotic index (p>0.05): (Table-2): (Bar diagram). Bcl-2 immunostaining demonstrated highly variable expression in the malignant epithelium (Figure 1). On the average, 22.86% of cases were Bcl-2 positive. Bcl-2 positive percentage increased with increasing Gleason's grade. Strong expression of Bcl-2 protein was related to high tumour category, metastatic disease, poor histological differentiation, weak infiltration of the tumour by lymphocytes. Statistically Bcl-2 and apoptotic index were not found to be significantly correlated (p=0.08). There were cases that showed apoptotic bodies and were Bcl-2 positive (Figure 2). These cases were also subjected to CD-31 staining to find out angiogenic index . It was observed that angiogenic index increased with increasing grade(Figure 3). It showed statistically significant correlation between angiogenic index and Gleason's grade (p<0.05).

S. No.	Gleason's grade	Cases		Bcl2 positive%	AgCD31
1	Intermediate grade (5-7)	13	0-6(2.23±1.72)	1(7.69)	109.82
2	High grade (8-10)	22	0-3(1.00±0.85)	7(21.82)	247.35
	TOTAL	35		8(22.86)	357.17

Table 2. Correlation of Gleason grade with apoptotic index (A.I.), Bcl2-immunopositive cases and angiogenic index (Ag CD-31).



Fig. 1: Intense Bcl-2 positivity in Gleason Grade –III+IV (score-7) Adenocarcinoma (10x40).



Fig.2: Apoptosis in Gleason Grade –III Adenocarcinoma (H& E 10 $\rm X$ 40)



Fig. 3: Angiogenesis in Gleason Grade 3 Adenocarcinoma (CD 31 immunostain x 40)

DISCUSSION

Most prostate cancers, at the time of clinical diagnosis, present as mixture of androgen dependent and androgen independent cells. A vast majority of prostate cancers respond initially to androgen ablation since the population of androgen dependent cells undergoes rapid apoptosis upon androgen withdrawal. However, androgen ablation rarely cures patients, most of whom will experience recurrence due to takeover of the tumour mass by androgen independent tumour cells as well as emergence of apoptosis- resistant clones as a result of further genetic alterations such as Bcl-2 amplification. Proteins coded by the Bcl-2 family of genes are important regulators of programmed cell death and apoptosis⁸. Bcl-2 is a potent antiapototic protein which help in development of neoplasm, by maintaining the longevity of cells via suppressing their programmed death. Its expression is more common in tumour with invasive behavior, high proliferation rate and abnormal cell differentiation⁹.We observed a significant correlation in the Bcl-2 protein expression between the different tumour grades Table 2. The expression of Bcl-2 family in prostate cancer (gene bax, bcl-xl and mcl-1) positively correlates with Gleason's grade⁷. Our results are in full agreement with those of Hering et al.¹⁰, who found positive correlation in frequency of Bcl-2 positive expression in prostate adenocarcinoma with low and high Gleason score. They concluded that over expression of Bcl-2 is significantly higher in patients with an initially elevated Gleason score (8, 9, and 10). The Bcl-2 expression probably exerts a role in the longevity of the cells submitted to hormonal therapy¹¹. Khor et al(2007)¹² observed that combination of negative Bcl-2 / normal Bax expression seemed more significantly related to reduced biochemical or any other treatment failure. In a previous analysis in prostate cancer it was suggested that the expression of Bcl-2 seems to be related to androgen independence, while in breast cancer expression of Bcl-2 is sex steroid dependent¹³. Accordingly, the results suggest that, along with increasing genetic instability (i.e. increased G-grade); the abnormal expression of Bcl-2 protein becomes more common in prostatic cancer. We observed that Bcl-2 positive immunoreaction did not correlate with apoptotic index (p=0.08). The relationship between inhibited apoptosis and expression of Bcl-2 protein is not clear cut; since Bcl-2 positive tumour also showed apoptosis. However, in these tumours the apoptosis rate may be reduced in relation to mitosis rate and other regulatory mechanisms, such as androgen and other growth factors may be involved. Expression of Bcl-2 protein is not a critical factor that determines the degree of apoptosis¹⁴.

In our study, we quantified apoptosis by calculating apoptotic index (A.I.) but did not find any correlation of A.I. with Gleason's grade (p >0.05). Findings of apoptotic index in prostate cancer were in accordance with those of Amirghofran et al.¹⁵, who did not observe any correlation between apoptosis and different grades of carcinoma. They found a significant correlation between bax expression and stage of carcinoma, but not with apoptotic index, suggesting the presence of non functional bax protein or the role of other proapoptotic molecules in oncogenesis. Similarly Brown et al (1996)¹⁶ found that the pathologic stage did not correlate with cell proliferation, apoptosis or overall daily growth. Their study concluded that cell proliferation and apoptosis do not correlate with pathological stage in clinically organ confined cancer. Similarly Matushima et al. (1998)¹⁷ showed A.I. does not correlate with Gleason score nor was there any significant correlation between AI and pathologic stage. Tu et al. (1996)¹⁸ found that localized prostate cancer cells exhibited a relatively low rate of apoptosis, which was significantly lower than the apoptotic index of normal prostate glandular epithelial cells. Metastatic prostate tumor cells, however, exhibited a significantly higher apoptotic index compared with localized prostate cancer cells.

In our study we observed that angiogenic index increases with Gleason's grade and was inversely related to apoptotic index (p<.05) Spontaneous apoptosis is related inversely to angiogenesis and positively related to proliferative activity. Quantitative micro vessel density has been shown to provide important staging and prognostic information in prostatic carcinoma. Correlation between angiogenic index and apoptotic index has been shown to be altered significantly by androgen ablation¹⁷. The increase in micro vessels from low to high grade was in accordance with the finding of Bettencourt et al.¹⁹. They found that micro vessel density count in the tumour are significantly increased with increasing Gleason's



Bar- diagram — Showing A. I, Bcl-2 and angiogenic activity in intermediate and high grade prostatic carcinoma.

sum and nuclear grade but did not increase significantly in adjacent benign prostate.

Thus beside grading, scoring, lymphovascular invasion, perineural invasion; quantification of Bcl-2 antiapoptotic protein and angiogenic index can be of value to predict prognosis of prostate carcinoma. Bcl-2 immunostain can be used on TURP specimens where often grading and scoring may not be what is given, as radical prostatectomy is not done. Similar large scale studies are required to derive a cut-off value of bcl-2 immuno positivity which may help in predicting progression of patients and their better management. It is also seen that high

Bcl-2 positivity is present at the spreading edge of the tumour. The reason of this interesting finding could be decreased apoptosis at the spreading edge ensuring survival of cells to achieve invasiveness or it could be that malignant neoplasm has different cell kinetics in different areas according to survival/invasive need.

Of the many new molecular prognostic markers being evaluated in carcinoma prostate Bcl-2 and angiogenic index appear to have promise. There is an increase in Bcl-2 positive percentage with increasing Gleason's grade and a significant inverse correlation (p<0.05) exists between angiogenic index and apoptotic index. These biomarkers appear useful in Radical Prostatectomy as well as TURP (Trans urethral resection of prostate) specimens.

- 1. Kumar V, Cotran SR, and Robbins SL: Robbin's Basic Pathology, 7th edn. Philadelphia, Elsevier, 2003, pp 667-669.
- Babaian RJ, Mettlin C, Kane R et al.: The relationship of prostate-specific antigen to digital rectal examination and transrectal ultrasonography. Findings of the American Cancer Society National Prostate Cancer Detection Project. Cancer 1992; 69(5):1195-2000,
- Cupp MR and Oesterlin JE: Prostate-specific antigen, digital rectal examination, and transrectal ultrasonography: their roles in diagnosing early prostate cancer. Mayo Clin Proc 1993; 68(3):297-306,
- 4. szegezdi E,Macdonald DC, Nichonghaile T et.al.:Bcl-2 family on guard at the ER. American J physiolcell physiol 2009; 296(5):c941-53.
- Heath-Engel HM , ChangNC, ShoreGC: The endoplasmic reticulum in apoptosis and autophagy : role of the Bcl-2 protein family. Oncogene 2008; 27(50):6419-33.
- 6. Soini Y, Virkajarvi N, Lehto VP et al.: Hepatocellular carcinomas with a high proliferation index and a low degree of apoptosis

and necrosis are associated with a shortened survival. Br. J Cancer 1996; 73: 1025-1030,

- Krajewska M, Krajewski S et al.: Immuno histochemical analysis of bcl-2 bax, bcl and mcl-1 expression in prostate cancers. Am J Pathol 1996; 148: 1567-76,
- 8. Tanji N and Yokoyama M: Apoptosis in prostate adenocarcinoma; a study of relationship to ki-67 and bcl-2 protein expression. Anticancer Res 1998; 18(28): 1111-6,
- 9. McDonnel TJ, Troncoso P, Brisbay SM et al.: Expression of proto-oncogene bcl-2 in the prostate and its association with emergence of androgen independent prostate cancer. Cancer Res 1992; 52: 6940-6944,
- 10. Hering O, Lipay M, Srougi M et al.: Comparison of positivity frequency of bcl-2 expression in prostate adenocarcinoma with low and high Gleason Score. Sao Paulo Med J 2001; 119(4):138-41,
- T. Suji M, Y. Murakami, H. Kanayama et al.: Immuno histochemical analysis of ki – 67 antigen and bcl-2 protein expression in prostate cancer: effect of neoadjuvant hormonal therapy. Br J of Urol 1998; 81: 116-121,
- 12. Khor LY, Moughan J, AL-saleem t, et.al: Bcl-2 and Bax expression predict prostate cancer outcome in man treated with androgen deprivation and radiotherapy on radiation therapy oncology group protocol 92-02. Clinical cancer research

2007; 13(12): 3585-90.

- 13. Lipponen P and Vesalainen S: Expression of the apoptosis suppressing protein bcl-2 in prostatic adenocarcinoma in related to tumor malignancy. The Prostate 1997; 32: 9-15,
- 14. Tanji N and Yokoyama M: Apoptosis in prostate adenocarcinoma; a study of relationship to ki-67 and bcl-2 protein expression. Anticancer Res 1998; 18 (28): 1111-6,
- 15. Amirghofran Z, Monabati A and Gholijani N: Apoptosis in prostate cancer: Bax correlation with stage. Int J Urol 2005; 12 (4): 340-345,
- 16. Brown C and Sauvageot J: Cell proliferation and apoptosis in prostate cancer- correlation with pathologic stage? Mod Pathol 1996; 9(3): 205-9,
- 17. Matsuhima H, Goto T, Kawabe K et al.: Correlation between proliferation, apoptosis and angiogenesis in prostate carcinoma and their relation to androgen ablation. Cancer 1999; 85(8):1822-27,
- 18. Tu H and Jacobs SC: Incidence of apoptosis and cell proliferation in prostate cancer relationship with TGF- beta 1 and bcl-2 expression. Int J Cancer1996; 69(5): 357-63,
- 19. Bettencourt MC, Bauer JJ, Sesterhenn IA et al.: CD34 immuno histochemical assessment of angiogenesis as a prognostic marker for prostate cancer recurrence after radical prostatectomy. J Urol 1998; 160(2):459-65.

Dental Care in Diabetes: A Review

*Neeta Misra, **Anuj Maheshwari, ***Pradyumna Misra

*Professor in Oral Medicine, Diagonosis & Oral Radiology, **Associate Professor in Medicine, ***Professor in Conservative & Endodontics, U.P.Dental College & Research Center, BBD Group of Educational Institutes Faizabad Road, Lucknow

ABSTRACT

The prevalence of diabetes is increasing worldwide. Diabetic population is growing fastest in south Asian region. Currently India is having more than 45 million diabetics. As the longevity of diabetic patients is being increased due to effective diagnostic protocols, increasing awareness and better treatment options available, more and more dentist has to come across diabetic population with dental problems. Therefore, it is important for dentists to be aware of medical and dental management considerations for this expanding patient population. Diabetes mellitus can have a significant impact on the delivery of dental care¹.

INTRODUCTION

The link between diabetes and oral health can't be ignored. In fact, dental problems in people with diabetes are so rampant that Mark Finney, DDS, believes oral disease should be referred to as "the sixth 'opathy' of diabetes," deserving of the attention given to retinopathy, neuropathy, nephropathy and the likes. While everyone is prone to periodontitis, or diseases of the tissues surrounding the teeth and gingiva, people with diabetes often have more severe cases that can both cause and predict additional diabetic complications. So for people with diabetes, getting that cleaning and check-up are especially important. Unfortunately, most diabetics do not pay enough attention to the increased need for oral care and the potential for dental problems that accompany this disease.2

ORAL COMPLICATIONS

The first oral complication of diabetes is periodontal disease, which stems from a chronic inflammation caused by various types of bacteria and microbes in the oral cavity of diabetics. The first stage of periodontal disease is gingivitis, which occurs when the bacteria in dental plaque irritate the gingiva and cause infection, to which your body responds by causing the gums to become red and swollen and bleed easily. Gingivitis only rarely causes discomfort, and therefore, it is especially important that diabetic patients train themselves to be aware of even slight changes in gum tissue and consult with their medical and dental care providers. It is important to note that gingivitis in diabetics is a direct result of poor glycemic control, and is not because of higher levels of plaque accumulation. Diabetes does not significantly increase plaque. Getting and keeping your blood sugar level even will go a long way toward solving your gingival problems. Research indicates that the risks of developing periodontal disease appears to increase over time for those with diabetes; while those who have had diabetes for fewer than 10 years are less likely to lose teeth due to the complications of their disease.²

Improving control over blood sugar levels is the best way a person with diabetes can improve overall oral health, because diabetes weakens the body's normal defenses against disease. Diabetes also adversely affects salivary gland production, causing xerostomia, or dry mouth, which leads to having higher concentrations of glucose in saliva and bacteria in the mouth. Elevated salivary glucose and dry mouth both increase the likelihood of dental cavities.³

HOW XEROSTOMIA AFFECTS ORAL HEALTH

When the normal environment of the mouth is altered due to a decrease in salivary flow or alteration in salivary composition, a healthy mouth becomes is not only at risk for tooth deterioration, but can suffer from dry, cracked oral tissue as well, which leads to mouth ulcers; an inflamed tongue and inflamed mucosal tissues lining the mouth more likely.

In addition to adversely affecting salivary glands, diabetes causes blood vessels to thicken, which in turn slows down the flow of blood to body tissues, including the gums and dental bones. Good blood flow is essential to provide important nutrients and eliminate harmful wastes from body tissues, including tissues of the mouth. Lowered blood flow causes the gum and bone tissue that support the teeth to become less healthy and less resistant to infection from the bacteria found in dental plaque.⁴

The most common reasons for a dry mouth in a diabetes patient are:

- Side effects of medication
- Neuropathy (autonomic)
- Lack of hydration
- Kidney dialysis
- Hyperglycemia
- Mouth breathing
- Smoking

Some clinical signs of dry mouth

- Loss of moisture, glistening of the oral mucosa
- Dryness of the oral membranes
- Irritated corners of the mouth (cheilitis)
- Gingivitis
- Difficulty wearing dentures
- Mucositis
- Mouth sores
- Yeast infection(Candidiasis), especially on the tongue and Palate.
- Dental cavities: increased prevalence and located in sites generally not susceptible to decay

Dental Care for Dry Mouth Patients

The diabetes patient with dry mouth along with his or her oral health team will have to develop a routine for optimal oral health.

Here are some simple ways to accomplish that goal:

- Perform oral hygiene at least four times daily, after each meal and before bedtime.
- Rinse and wipe the mouth immediately after meals.
- Brush and rinse removable dental appliances after meals.
- Use only toothpaste with fluoride. Some toothpastes (such as Biotene) are formulated for dry mouth.
- Keep water handy to moisten the mouth at all times.
- Apply prescription-strength fluoride at bedtime as prescribed.
- Avoid liquids and foods with high sugar content.
- Avoid overly salty foods.
- Limit citrus juices (orange, grapefruit, tomato), as well as diet sodas.
- Avoid rinses containing alcohol. Several nonalcoholic mouthwashes are now available on the market.

- Use a lip balm or moisturizer regularly.
- Try salivary substitutes, gels or artificial saliva preparations. These may relieve discomfort by temporarily wetting the mouth and replacing some of the saliva constituents.
- In severe cases, use of pilocarpine might be used under a physician's care.^{4,5}

Diabetics also face increased susceptibility to getting other nasty dental health problems such as oral yeast infections, gingival abscesses, lichen planus, burning mouth syndrome and possible difficulties in wearing dental prosthetics.

Though diligent blood sugar control is the most important factor in maintaining. Diabetic's oral health, rigorous dental hygiene is also imperative for those with this disease, for without it oral health problems can multiply exponentially. No one should smoke cigarettes, and this is especially true for diabetics. Smoking is injurious to gums and mouth tissues and only adds to diabetic dental health problems.

If all of this sounds like bad news, there is an upside: Diabetics who keep their blood sugar levels in check can usually receive any dental treatments that patients without diabetes can receive, which is especially important if you want to undergo cosmetic dental procedures to improve your smile.^{7,8}

Management issues of operative dentistry among diabetics:

To minimize the risk of an intraoperative emergency, clinicians need to consider a number of management issues before initiating dental treatment.

Medical history: It is important for clinicians to take a good medical history and assess glycemic control at the initial appointment. They should ask patients about recent blood glucose levels and frequency of hypoglycemic episodes. Antidiabetic medications, dosages and times of administration should be determined. A variety of other concomitantly prescribed medications may alter glucose control through interference with insulin or carbohydrate metabolism. The hypoglycemic action of sulfonylurea's may be potentiated by drugs that are highly proteinbound, such as salicylates, dicumerol, β -adrenergic blockers, monoamine oxidase inhibitors, sulfonamides and angiotensin-converting enzyme inhibitors. Epinephrine, corticosteroids, thiazides, oral contraceptives, phenytoin, thyroid products and calcium channel-blocking drugs have hyperglycemic effects.

In general, morning appointments are advisable since endogenous cortisol levels are generally higher at this time.
Patients undergoing major surgical procedures may require adjustment of insulin dosages or oral antidiabetic drug regimens. Any complications of DM, such as cardiovascular or renal disease, will have their own effects on dental treatment planning. If necessary, the dentist should consult with the patient's physician⁸.

Scheduling of visits: In general, morning appointments are advisable since endogenous cortisol levels are generally higher at this time (cortisol increases blood sugar levels). For patients receiving insulin therapy, appointments should be scheduled so that they do not coincide with peaks of insulin activity, since that is the period of maximal risk of developing hypoglycemia.

Diet: It is important for clinicians to ensure that the patient has eaten normally and taken medications as usual. If the patient skips breakfast owing to the dental appointment but still takes the normal dose of insulin, the risk of a hypoglycemic episode is increased. For certain procedures (for example, conscious sedation), the dentist may request that the patient alter his or her normal diet before the procedure. In such cases, the medication dose may need to be modified in consultation with the patient's physician.

Blood glucose monitoring: Depending on the patient's medical history, medication regimen and procedure to be performed, dentists may need to measure the blood glucose level before beginning a procedure. This can be done using commercially available electronic blood glucose monitors, which are relatively inexpensive and have a high degree of accuracy. Patients with low plasma glucose levels (< 70 mg/dl for most people) should be given an oral carbohydrate before treatment to minimize the risk of a hypoglycemic event. Clinicians should refer patients with significantly elevated blood glucose levels for medical consultation before performing elective dental procedures.

During treatment: The most common complication of DM therapy that can occur in the dental office is a hypoglycemic episode. If insulin or oral antidiabetic drug levels exceed physiological needs, the patient may experience a severe decline in his or her blood sugar level. The maximal risk of developing hypoglycemia generally occurs during peak insulin activity. Initial signs and symptoms include mood changes, decreased spontaneity, hunger and weakness. These may be followed by sweating, incoherence and tachycardia. If untreated, possible consequences include unconsciousness, hypotension, hypothermia, seizures, coma and death.

If the clinician suspects that the patient is experiencing a hypoglycemic episode, he or she should

terminate dental treatment and immediately administer 15 grams of a fast-acting oral carbohydrate such as glucose tablets or gel, sugar, candy, soft drinks or juice. It is important to note that the α glycosidase inhibitors prevent the hydrolysis of sucrose into fructose and glucose. Therefore, a hypoglycemic episode in a patient taking these drugs should be treated with a direct source of glucose. After immediate treatment, dentists should measure blood glucose levels to confirm the diagnosis and determine if repeated carbohydrate dosing is needed. If the patient is unable to swallow or loses consciousness, the dentist should seek medical assistance; 25 to 30 ml of a 50 percent dextrose solution or 1 mg of glucagon should be administered intravenously. Glucagon also can be injected subcutaneously or intramuscularly7.

It is important for dentists to educate patients about the oral implications of diabetes mellitus. Among the mechanisms thought to produce the tissue damage associated with chronic hyperglycemia are glycation of tissue proteins and excess production of polyol compounds from glucose¹. People with poorly controlled DM also may have impaired wound healing and increased susceptibility to infections. Some people experience peripheral and autonomic neuropathies such as numbness and tingling of extremities, oral paresthesia and burning.

Severe hyperglycemia associated with type 1 ketoacidosis or type 2 hyperosmolar nonketotic state usually has a prolonged onset. Therefore, the risk of a hyperglycemic crisis is much lower than that of a hypoglycemic crisis in a dental practice setting. Ketoacidosis may develop, with nausea, vomiting, abdominal pain and an acetone odor. Definitive management of hyperglycemia requires medical intervention and insulin administration. However, it may be difficult to differentiate between hypoglycemia and hyperglycemia based on symptoms alone. Therefore, the dentist should administer a carbohydrate source to a patient in whom a presumptive diagnosis of hypoglycemia is made. Even if the patient is undergoing a hyperglycemic episode, the small amount of additional sugar is unlikely to cause significant harm⁷. The clinician should measure blood glucose levels after immediate treatment.

After treatment: Clinicians should keep in mind these postoperative considerations. Patients with poorly controlled DM are at greater risk of developing infections and may demonstrate delayed wound healing. Acute infection can adversely affect insulin resistance and glycemic control, which, in turn, may further affect the body's capacity for healing. Therefore, antibiotic coverage may be necessary for patients with overt oral infections or for those undergoing extensive surgical procedures. If the dentist anticipates that normal dietary intake will be affected after treatment, insulin or oral antidiabetic medication dosages may need to be appropriately adjusted in consultation with the patient's physician. Salicylates increase insulin secretion and sensitivity and can potentiate the effects of sulfonylurea's, resulting in hypoglycemia. Therefore, aspirin and aspirin-containing compounds generally should be avoided for patients with DM⁸.

The following tips are from the National Institute of Dental Health:

- Controlling your blood glucose is the most important step you can take to prevent tooth and gum problems. People with diabetes, especially those whose blood glucose levels are poorly controlled, are more likely to get gum infections than non-diabetics. A severe gum infection can also make it more difficult to control your diabetes. Once such an infection starts in a person with diabetes, it takes longer to heal. If the infection lasts for a long time, the diabetic person may lose teeth.
- Much of what you eat requires good teeth for chewing, so it is extremely important to try to preserve your teeth. Because the bone surrounding the teeth may sometimes be damaged by infection, dentures may not always fit properly and may not be perfect substitutes for your natural teeth.
- Taking good care of your gums and teeth is another important measure. Use a soft-bristle brush between the gums and the teeth in a vibrating motion. Place the rubber tip of the toothbrush between the teeth and move it in a circle.
- If you notice that your gingiva bleeds while you are eating or brushing your teeth, see a dentist to

determine if you have a beginning infection. You should also notify your dentist if you notice other abnormal changes in your mouth, such as patches of whitish-colored skin.

Have a dental checkup every six months. Be sure to tell your dentist that you have diabetes and ask him or her to demonstrate procedures that will help you maintain healthy teeth and gums.

REFERENCES:

- 1. Diabetes statistics. National Diabetes Information Clearinghouse, National Institute of Diabetes and Digestive and Kidney Diseases, National Institutes of Health. Available at: www.niddk.nih.gov/health/diabetes/pubs/ dmstats/dmstats.htm.Accessed Aug. 27, 2001.
- 2. Moore PA, Weyant RJ, Mongelluzzo MB, et al. Type 1 diabetes mellitus and oral health: assessment of periodontal disease. J Periodontol 1999;70:409 –417.
- 3. Lin BP, Taylor GW, Allen DJ, Ship JA. Dental caries in older adults with diabetes mellitus. Spec Care Dentist 1999;19:8–14.
- 4. Levin JA, Muzyka BC, Glick M. Dental management of patients with diabetes mellitus. Compend Contin Educ Dent.1996;17:82–90.
- 5. Rees TD. The diabetic dental patient. Dent Clin North Am 1994; 38:447–463
- 6. Sreebny LM, Yu A, Green A, Valdini A. Xerostomia in diabetes mellitus. Diabetes Care 1992;15:900–904.
- 7. Quirino MR, Birman EG, Paula CR. Oral manifestations of diabetes mellitus in controlled and uncontrolled patients. Braz Dent J 1995;6:131–136.
- 8. Haber J, Wattles J, Crowley M, Mandell R, Joshipura K, Kent RL. Evidence for cigarette smoking as a major risk factor for periodontitis. J Periodontol 1993;64:16–23.

A Study of Variations in Origin, Length, Course and Termination of Internal Thoracic Artery

Prakash KG*, Rajkumar KR**, Vijayakumar BJ***, Amrappa N****

*Asstt professor, Dept of Anatomy, AIMS & RC, Meeyyannoor, Kollam dist, Kerala **Asst professor, Dept of Anatomy, SSIMS & RC, Davangere, Karnataka, ***Associate professor, Dept of Forensic Medicine, SSIMS & RC, Davangere, Karnataka, ****Asstt professor, Dept of Anatomy, BIMS, Belgaum, Karnataka

ABSTRACT

Internal Thoracic Artery (ITA), also called as Internal Mammary Artery (IMA), arises from the inferior aspect of the first part of the subclavian artery, opposite to the origin of thyro-cervical trunk. It descends vertically 1cm away from the lateral border of the sternum and terminates in 6th intercostal space dividing into musculophrenic and superior epigastric arteries. As Internal Thoracic Artery is most commonly used as cardiac conduit (graft) to bypass occluded or nearly occluded coronary arterial segments in coronary arterial bypass graft (CABG) surgery, cardiac surgeons should know the possible variations pertaining to its origin, length, course, branches, termination and diameter at various intercostal spaces, to choose the level for bypass.

As per dissection procedure given in Cunningham's 15th edition vol-02, anterior thoracic cage was separated in 25 cadavers. Study on internal thoracic arteries carried out by painting arteries. In 84% the arteries were taking origin from I-part of Subclavian artery,10% from throcervical trunk, 4% from suprascapular and transverse cervical artery. 2% arising from suprascapular artery alone, in 88% it is getting terminated at 6th intercostals space, 10% in 5th intercostals space and 2% in 4th intercostals space and mean length 18 cms on right side, 18.30cms on left side.

Key words: Internal thoracic artery, Internal mammary artery, CABG (coronary arterial bypass graft)

INTRODUCTION

The study of internal thoracic artery also called INTERNAL MAMMARY ARTERY has gained utmost importance in cardiac surgeries. In this era, there is a rise in mortality rate due to heart attack or myocardial infarction secondary to coronary artery block. Coronary atherosclerosis and its associated mortality, it is readily understandable that Coronary bypass grafting is one of the most common surgical procedures. The artery arises from Subclavian artery behind the sternal end of Clavicle and in 6th intercostals space by dividing into Musculophrenic and Superior epigastric arteries⁵.

The internal thoracic arteries and segments of the radial artery or saphenous veins and inferior epigastric arteries are commonly used conduits to bypass occluded or nearly occluded coronary arterial segments. Internal thoracic artery is being preferred to venous conduits due to the fact that there is low incidence of atherosclerosis and it has a high patency rate due to good endothelial functions. Endothelial derived relaxing factor, nitric oxide as well as prostacylin are shown to be produced by human internal thoracic artery, which is the contributing factor in its high patency rate and making it to be structurally suitable for withstanding arterial pressures.

AIMS AND OBJECTIVES

- 1. Normal pattern and any variation in origin, course, branching length and level of termination.
- 2. Pattern in either sexes and variation in right and left sides

Work was undertaken to throw more light for cardiac surgeons to perform coronary bypass grafting and to the plastic surgeons to perform postmstectomy microvascular breast reconstruction and for interventional radiologist.

MATERIALS AND METHODS

A total number of 50 specimens of internal thoracic artery (25 right sided, 25) left sided from 20 males and 5 females cadavers given for dissection to undergraduates students in department of Anatomy and also from the department of Forensic medicine.

The scalenus anterior muscle was identified; the first part of Subclavian artery and its branches were

dissected. The ribs were cut about 5cms away from costochondral junction on both sides first down to 8th ribs. The anterior thoracic wall was lifted from above downwards gradually separating from the underlying structures. Finally, a cut is made across, joining the lower ends of the two vertical cuts of right and left sides to free the anterior thoracic wall with internal thoracic artery of both sides⁶. The specimens were washed with water to get rid of clots and connective tissue and preserved with 10% formalin.1:10 thin solution of fevibond in acetone was prepared, arteries were painted afterwards colored with red oil color, and specimens were allowed to dry.

Following statistical methods were applied in the present study,

- 1. Cross tabs procedure (Contingency coefficient test)
- 2. Chi-square test
- 3. Descriptive statistics
- 4. Independent samples 't' test

All the statistical operations were done through SPSS for Windows (version 14.0-Evaluation version), SPSS Inc. New York.





Fig. 1 and 2: Measurement of the Total Length of the Artery.

RESULTS

Table 1. ITA specimens grouped according to their pattern of origin and their percentage.

S. No	ТҮРЕ	SIDE	TOTAL	%	GRAND TOTAL	Total %
1	Normal origin from	Right	22	44	42	04
	Subclavian artery	Left	20	40	42	84
2	Arising with	Right	02	04	0E	10
	trunk	Left	03	06	03	
3	Arising with	Right	01	02	01	02
	artery	Left	NIL		01	02
4	Arising with	Right	NIL		02	04
	and Transverse cervical artery	Left	02	04	02	04

Table 2. ITA specimens grouped according to their termination in the intercostal spaces

S. No	Termination	SIDE	TOTAL	%	GRAND TOTAL	Total %
1	6th ICS	Right	21	42	44	88
	ouries	Left	23	46	TT	00
2.	5th ICS	Right	03	06	05	10
	Suries	Left	02	04	05	10
3.		Right	01	02	01	02
	4th ICS	Left	NIL	-	01	02

Chi-Square () = 67.72, P < 0.000 (highly significant).

Table 3. Mean Length of Internal Thoracic artery in male(in cm).

	Male		
	Right Left		
Mean Length	18.00	Mean Length	18.29
Std. Deviation	0.3408	Std. Deviation	0.3331

Table No.4: Mean Length of Internal Thoracic artery in female (in cm).

	Fe		
	Right Left		
Mean Length	18.05	Mean Length	18.36
Std. Deviation	0.3954	Std. Deviation	0.2123



Graph 1: Pie chart showing variations in the pattern of origin of ITA specimens (%).



Graph 2: Graph showing ITA specimens grouped according their termination in the intercostal spaces.

DISCUSSION

The study of Internal Thoracic Artery has gained its utmost importance in cardiac surgeries and it is most commonly used graft in CABG. Bypass surgeries are done to bypass the occluded or nearly occluded coronary arterial segments, to relieve ischemic symptoms, persistent angina or congestive heart failure from severe occlusive diseases of the coronary arteries.

A total of 50 specimens of internal thoracic arteries were studied by dissection method to know the possible variations pertaining to its origin, length, course, branches, termination and inner luminal diameter at origin, 2nd ICS, 4th ICS & 6th ICS, to help the cardiac surgeons to choose the level for bypass surgeries, to assist the plastic surgeons in the post mastectomy microvascular breast reconstruction surgeries, wherein perforating branches of the artery are the recipient vessels and to give the information to the radiologists to have sound knowledge about the possible anatomical variations of the artery that they can come across during radiological investigations.

According to Daseler E.H. and Anson B. J., the origin of the artery is variable¹.

Based on a study of 769 dissected specimens, it has been observed that the internal thoracic artery took origin as follows

- A. From the first part of Subclavian artery (609 of 769, 79.19%; Rt-324, Lt- 285).
- B. From common stem with thyrocervical trunk (68 of 769 extremities; 8.84%; Rt-11, Lt-57).
- C. From common trunk with suprascapular artery (29 of 769 extremities, 3.77%; Rt-9, Lt-20).
- D. As a direct branch of second part of subclavian artery (28 of 769 extremities, 3.64%; Rt- 6, Lt-22).
- E. From common trunk with inferior thyroid artery (9 of 769 sides, 1.17%; Rt-5, Lt-4).

- F. From direct common trunk with transverse cervical artery (6 of 769 sides, 0.78%; Rt-2, Lt-4).
- G. As direct branch from 3rd part of subclavian artery (6 of 769 sides, 0.78%; Rt-4, Lt- 2).
- H. From common trunk with superior intercostal artery (6 of 769 sides, 0.78%; Rt-4, Lt-2).
- I. As direct branch of axillary artery (4 of 769 sides, 0.52%; Rt- 2, Lt-2).
- J. Internal thoracic, transverse cervical, suprascapular arteries, all from common trunk (2 of 769 extremities, 0.28%; Rt-1, Lt-1).

Comparison of present work with that of Daseler EH and Anson B.J¹

Normal origin of the artery from first part of Subclavian artery is 84% in the present study compared with 79.19% in above workers. Similarly, the artery taking origin with Thyrocervical trunk is 10% in the present work compared to 8.84% in above anatomists study. Origin of the artery with suprascapular and transverse cervical arteries is 4% in the present study compared to 0.28% in above workers.

To determine the relationship of the Phrenic nerve to internal thoracic artery, it has been analyzed that the nerve passes from lateral to medial behind the first rib, was found to cross the artery superiorly and remains medially in 16 of 25 specimens on the left and 12 of 25 on right side, but other specimens, it crosses inferiorly. These findings were similar to the findings of Owens WA & Gladstone DJ³. And therefore, it can be concluded that there is no constant relationship between these structures.

SUMMARY

The study of Internal Thoracic Artery (ITA) has gained its utmost importance in cardiac surgeries and most commonly used graft in coronary arterial bypass surgeries (compared to other grafts like Radial artery, Saphenous vein etc). CABG procedure is done to bypass occluded or nearly occluded coronary arterial segments to relieve ischemic symptoms, persistent angina or congestive heart failure from severe occlusive diseases of the coronary arteries.

A total of 50 specimens of internal thoracic arteries were studied by dissection method to find out the possible variations pertaining to its origin, length, course, branches, termination and inner luminal diameter at origin, 2nd ICS, 4th ICS & 6th ICS, with aim to guide the cardiac surgeons to choose the level for bypass graft surgeries(CABG), to help the plastic surgeons in post mastectomy micro vascular breast reconstruction (TRAM-Transverse Rectus Abdominis Myocutaneous flap technique, wherein perforating branches of the artery are the recipient vessels)⁴ and use of the anatomical proximity of interanal mammary artery to the left anterior descending artery(left anterior interventricular branch) in coronary bypass graft provided to be having good results.²

- Internal thoracic artery most commonly takes origin from the first part of Subclavian artery (84%).
- There is no constant relationship between phrenic nerve and the artery at or above the first rib which emphasize the need for the caution for dissecting ITA at that level.
- Internal thoracic artery most commonly terminates in 6th ICS (88%) and mean total length being more on left side than right side by 0.30 cm.
- The mean total length of the artery on the left side is more than the right side by 0.30 cm.

REFERENCES

1. Deseler EH, Anson BJ. Surgical anatomy of the subclavian artery and its branches. Surg. Gynecol.

Obstet 1959; 108: 149-174.

- Krittredge RD, Kemp HG. Use of internal mammary artery in coronary arterial bypass graft surgery. Am. J. Roentol 1977 March; 128(3): 395-401.
- 3. Ownes WA, Glandstone DJ, Heylings DJ. Relation of internal thoracic artery with Phrenic nerve. Ann Thoracic Surgery: 1994 (Sept); 58(3); 843-844.
- 4. Park MC, Lee JH, Chung J, Lee SH. Use of internal mammary vessel perforator as a recipient vessel for TRAM breast reconstruction. Ann Plast Surg: 2003 (Feb); 50(2): 132-137.
- Standring S. Grays Anatomy: Anatomical basis of clinical practice. Chest Wall: 39th edition. Elsevier Churchil Livingstone, Edinburgh. 2005; pp: 964-965.
- 6. Romanes GJ. Cunningham's manual of practical anatomy. The walls of thorax: vol: 2; 15th edition: oxford university press. 2009: pp: 11-16.

Efficacy of Computerized Tomography (CT) in Identification of Clinically Un-detectable Lymph Nodes in Patients with Oral Squamous Cell Carcinoma - An Observational Study

Prasanth Venela, Priyanka Ammika, CH.Simhachalam Naidu

A.V. Super Specialty Dental Hospital, Near Amberpet Masjid, Amberpet, Hyderabad, Andhra Pradesh, India

ABSTRACT

Background: The most common malignant tumour of head and neck region is Oral squamous cell carcinoma and is the third most common malignancy in India. The most common mode of metastasis is through the cervical lymph nodes. Detection of tumours is mostly done clinically by direct visual examination. The complexity in predicting the presence of metastatic disease in clinically negative necks has lead to wide spread use of elective neck dissection. This present study is intended to evaluate the status of clinically not detectable lymph nodes using.

Computerized Tomography : (CT) which might help in determining the prognosis and treatment plan and also to compare the accuracy between the clinical examination and CT.

Methods: Forty patients who have been histopathologically diagnosed as Oral squamous cell carcinoma were included in the study The patients were subjected to clinical as well as CT examination. The findings of both examinations were correlated with pathological findings from the neck dissection.

Results: Number of True positives detected by clinical examination (CE) versus CT is 7 and 13 respectively (p=0.17). Number of True negatives detected by CE versus CT is 18 and 18 respectively (p=1). Number of False positives detected by CE versus CT is 5 and 5 respectively (p=1). Number of False negatives detected by CE versus CT is 10 and 4 respectively (p=0.1). Sensitivity for CE versus CT is 41.1% and 68.4% respectively (p=0). Specificity for CE versus CT is 78.2% and 78.2% respectively (p=1). Positive Predictive Value for CE versus CT is 58.3% and 72.2% respectively (p=0.001). Negative Predictive Value for CE versus CT is 64.2% and 75% respectively (p=0.001). Accuracy of CE versus CT is 62.5% and 77.5% respectively (p=0.001).

Conclusion: The present result indicates that CT is an important image tool for detection of clinically occult lymph nodes of head and neck in patients with oral squamous cell carcinoma and statistically significant over the clinical examination regarding the sensitivity, true predictive value, false predictive value and over all accuracy.

Key words: CT, Cervical lymphnodes, Oral squamous cell carcinoma, Clinical examination

INTRODUCTION

Oral cancer comprises majority of head and neck cancers. They account for 3-5% of all malignancies¹. Worldwide, oral carcinoma is one of the 10 most common causes of death². The most common malignant tumour of head and neck region is Oral

Correspondence Address: Dr. Prasanth Venela Plot #11-107; Sai Krupa Lake View Residency, Pragatinagar; Dilsukhnagar; Hyderabad- 500060, Andhra Pradesh, India. Ph: 91-9959553260 Fax: 91-40-30421517 E-mail: prashuvennela@gmail.com squamous cell carcinoma and is the third most common malignancy in India³. The most common mode of metastasis in Oral squamous cell carcinoma is through cervical lymph nodes. Of the estimated 800 lymph nodes in the human body, about 300 lymph nodes are situated in the neck.⁴ The metastasis of head and neck carcinomas to regional lymph nodes is complicated by extensive anastamotic and parallel systems of cervical lymphatics⁵. Detection of tumours are mostly done clinically by direct visual examination. Although palpation has advantage of being both easy and inexpensive to perform and can be repeated, it is generally accepted to be inaccurate⁶. The complexity in predicting the presence of metastatic disease in clinically negative necks has lead to wide spread use of elective neck dissection⁷. Currently apart from the physical palpation, several modalities are available for investigating the presence and extent of cervical nodal metastasis. Imaging has great impact on treatment of head and neck cancers^{8,9}. Imaging modalities that are used to evaluate the oral cavity includes plain radiography (panoramic and intraoral radiography), nuclear medicine scintigraphy, ultrasound, magnetic resonance imaging, computed tomography and positron emission tomography. However, there are apprehensions regarding the efficacy of these investigations.

OBJECTIVE

To evaluate the status of clinically not detectable lymph nodes using Computerized Tomography in patients with Oral squamous cell carcinoma which might help in determining prognosis, treatment and also to compare accuracy between the clinical examination and Computerized Tomography in the evaluation of cervical lymph node metastasis.

MATERIALS AND METHODS

This is observational study and was conducted in the wing of Oral Medicine and Radiology at A.V. Super specialty dental hospital. 40 who have been histopathologically diagnosed as Oral squamous cell carcinoma were included in the study. All patients were drawn from outpatient department of A.V. Super Specialty Dental Hospital and MNJ Institute of Oncology and Regional Cancer Centre, Hyderabad. Before conducting the study ethical clearance has been obtained from ethical clearance committee of GSL Medical College and Hospital, Rajahmundry. Information regarding the nature and purpose of the study was thoroughly explained to every patient and a written consent was obtained. A structured Questionnaire has been filled which includes a detailed clinical examination case history, (CE), histopathological, radiological, and haematological findings. CE was performed using a disposable latex rubber gloves and a mouth mirror. Measuring tape, ruler and a divider were used to assess the extent of lesion and size of lymph nodes.

CLINICAL EXAMINATION OF LYMPH NODES

Palpation of lymph nodes were done commencing with most superior nodes and working down to the clavicle. Submandibular lymph nodes in the submandibular triangle were palpated from behind the patient's chin tipped slightly toward the chest. With fingers cupped and tips pressed lightly against the Mylohyoid muscle, the tissue is rolled laterally across inferior border of the mandible. The Submental lymph nodes are palpated in the Submental triangle under chin. The nodes along the anterior triangle (nodes along the anterior located aspect of Sternocleidomastoid muscle) are palpated with the patients head tipped slightly forward and area medial to the Sternocleidomastoid muscle is pressed with finger tips. The fingers are rotated along the entire length of the muscle. The nodes in the posterior triangle are palpated by placing the finger tips behind the muscle. Palpation is started at Trapezius muscle and moved to the Sternocleidomastoid muscle. The Suboccipital nodes have been in the posterior triangle at the base of the skull. The Supraclavicular lymph nodes are palpated in Subclavian triangle by tipping the patients head forward, to relax the muscles in the neck. The finger is placed in the triangle, and the area is palpated with a rotary motion. The primary tumor along with the lymph nodes were staged clinically using the TNM system developed by the American Joint Committee on Cancer. The palpable lymph nodes were documented according to the number, size, consistency and mobility. The site was recorded according to the levels of the lymph nodes in the neck.

Later each patient underwent a spiral CT with a Somatom Emotion (Siemens) scanner. Scanning was performed in an axial plane in 3-5mm thick contiguous sections at a table speed of 5mm per second after the administration of 50 ml of non ionic contrast medium (Omnipaque or Iohexol) at a rate of 1-1.5 ml/sec. The patients subjected to CT were positioned in a supine position with the chin elevated. Transverse scans were obtained from the supraclavicular fossa to the base of the skull parallel to the inferior border of the mandible. Scanning began after a delay of 50-60 seconds. Scanning parameters were 140 kv and 160 mA. The period of CT scan to the neck dissection was within 35 days.

All CT scans were evaluated retrospectively without the knowledge of the clinical staging. The neck nodes were classified into different anatomical levels based on the Imaging Based Nodal Classification developed by Peter M. Som, Hugh D.Curtin and Anthony A.Mancuso.

The lymph nodes were diagnosed as positive for metastasis if the following criteria were met.

- 1. Lymph nodes size greater than 1.5 cm for level I node and 1.0 cm for rest of the subsequent nodes along the short axis.
- 2. Three or more lymph nodes in the primary drainage area.
- 3. Lymph nodes with central nodal necrosis and peripheral rim enhancement after intravenous contrast.

- 4. Round shape of lymph nodes.
- 5. Extracapsular spread of the disease.

After neck dissection was performed, the surgical specimen was subjected to the histopathological examination of pathology where the lymph nodes were dissected and classified the nodes into levels as indicated by the surgeon. The nodes were then fixed in formalin, embedded in paraffin, sectioned and stained with haematoxylin and eosin. All nodes were microscopically evaluated by a pathologist for the presence of malignancy at each level. A node was considered positive when there was evidence of tumour on histopathological examination. The clinical examination and CT findings were correlated with pathological findings from the neck dissection. Sensitivity, Specificity, Negativity, Positive Predictive Value and Accuracy were calculated for the both the clinical examination and CT.

Statistical analysis was performed using the Chi Square Test and differences were considered significant when the **P** value is less than **0.05**.

RESULTS

Out of these 40 patients included in the present study, 19(47.5%) were males and 21(52.5%) were female. The age group ranged from 25 years to 68 years with a mean of 46.5 years.

In the total 40 cases, 15 were involving buccal mucosa (37.5%), 11 were involving tongue (27.5%), 9 were involving the gingivoalveolar region (22.5%), 4 were involving palate (10%) and in 1(2.5%) patient there was retromolar trigone involvement. In present sample five patients were classified as T1, 26 patients as T2, 4 patients as T3 and 5 patients as T4.Of the 40 cases, 27 (67.5%) patients were histologically graded as grade I (Well Differentiated), 11(27.5%) patients as grade II (Moderately Differentiated) and 3 (7.5%) patients as grade III (Poorly Differentiated).

CLINICAL EXAMINATION

Of the 40 patients examined, 12 were clinically diagnosed as positive nodes. Among those 12 patients seven had pathological evidence of metastasis. Hence these cases were considered as true positive (58.33%).5 patients with clinically positive showed no histopathological evidence of metastasis. These were grouped as false positive (41.66%).In 28 of clinically negative cases, pathologic confirmation of absence of metastatic disease was reported in 18 cases. These were grouped as true negative (64.28%) and 10 cases which

have shown to be clinically positive showed negative nodes histopathologically (35.71%).

CT SCANNING

Of the 40 patients evaluated by CT, 18 patients showed positive neck nodes. Out of these 18 patients, 13 were histopathologically proved to be positive (true positive – 72.22%).In other 5 patients although CT showed positive nodes, pathological examination showed no evidence of neck metastasis (false positive – 27.78%).22 patients showed negative nodes on CT, out of which 18 patients were histopathologically negative (true negative – 81.81%) and 4 patients showed metastatic nodes histopathologically (false negative –18.19%)

HISTOPATHOLOGY

Out of 40 patients, 17 (42.5%) were found to be positive on histopathologic analysis and 23 were negative (57.5%). Out of 17 pathologically positive nodes, 7 patients were correctly diagnosed clinically where as CT was able to diagnose 13 patients.

OCCULT GROUP

10 out of 40 patients have evidence of neck metastatic involvement with no clinical evidence of neck disease. Of these clinically negative necks, 4 patients were identified by CT as negative and 6 patients showed positive in CT. this is to say that CT was able to upstage the neck in 6 patients.

STATISTICAL ANALYSIS

 Table 1. Number of true positives detected by clinical examination versus CT

Diagnostic Aid	True Positive	chi-value	p-value
Clinical Examination	7	1.8	0.17
СТ	13		

 Table 2. Number of true negatives detected by clinical examination versus CT

Diagnostic Aid	True Negative	chi-value	p-value
Clinical Examination	18	0	1
СТ	18		

Table 3. Number of false positives detected by clinicalexamination versus CT

Diagnostic Aid	False Positive	chi-value	p-value
Clinical Examination	05	0	1
СТ	05		

Table 4. Number of false negatives detected by clinicalexamination versus CT

Diagnostic Aid	False Negative	chi-value	p-value
Clinical Examination	10	2.57	0.1
СТ	04		

Table-5: Sensitivity for clinical examination versus CT

Diagnostic Aid	Sensitivity	chi-value	p-value
Clinical Examination	41.17%	6.77	0.00
СТ	68.42%		

Table 6. Specificity of clinical examination versus CT

Diagnostic Aid	Specificity	chi-value	p-value
Clinical Examination	78.26%	0.00	1.00
СТ	78.26%		

Table 7. Positive Predictive Value of clinical examination versus CT

Diagnostic Aid	Positive Predictive Value	chi-value	p-value
Clinical Examination	58.33%	1.47	0.001
CT	72.22%		

Table 8. Negative Predictive Value of clinical examination versus CT

Diagnostic Aid	Negative Predictive Value	chi-value	p-value
Clinical Examination	64.28%	0.67	0.001
СТ	75%		

Table 9. Accuracy of clinical examination versus CT

Diagnostic Aid	Accuracy	chi-value	p-value
Clinical Examination	62.50%	1.6	0.001
СТ	77.50%		

DISCUSSSION

Pre-treatment assessment of lymph node metastases is important for therapy and prognosis of patients with carcinoma of the oral cavity. Any modality that detects metastatic nodes accurately would have a great impact on the management of such patients.⁹ Sensitivity of clinical examination was found to be 41.17%, whereas in previous studies it is reported between 48.7% to 86%.¹⁰⁻¹⁵. Specificity of clinical examination was found out to be 78.42% whereas in previous studies it is reported between 70% to 96.7%.¹³⁻¹⁶ The positive predictive value (PPV) of clinical examination was found out to be 58.33% which was lower when compared to the previous studies values i.e. 74-79.2%.¹⁴⁻¹⁶ The negative predictive value for clinical examination was found out to be 64.28%

whereas in previous studies it ranged between 63.63% to 84.1%.¹⁴⁻¹⁶. The accuracy of the clinical palpation was found out to be 62.5% which was low when compared to the previous studies values ranged between 68 to 85%.¹⁴⁻¹⁶ The sensitivity of CT was found out to be 68.42 % whereas in previous studies it is reported between 52.5 to 93%.¹⁰⁻¹⁶ The specificity of CT was found out to be 78.26% whereas previous studies reported values ranging from 81 to 100%.¹²⁻¹⁸ The present study revealed PPV of CT as 72.2% whereas previous studies reported 53.1 to 92.3%.¹⁰⁻¹⁸ The present study revealed PPV of CT as 75% compared to previous studies that showed values from 75 to 94 %.¹⁴⁻¹⁸ The present study showed an overall accuracy for CT as 77.5%, whereas previous studies reported 75.3 to 90 %.12-19 Among 18 true positives detected by CT, 8 cases were based on size criteria (>1.5cm), 5 were based on grouping of lymph nodes in one drainage area, 3 were having central nodal necrosis and 2 with peripheral rim enhancing node. Central nodal necrosis and peripheral rim enhancement seems to be most accurate as it gave a specificity of 100%. CT was able to correctly evaluate 6 cases (21.42%) which were clinically not detectable.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

We at A.V. Super specialty dental Hospital express our sincere gratitude to management, and administrative staff for rendering their support. We are grateful to our colleagues involved in this program for planning, discussing the details and generalities in developing strategies for smooth implementation of the study.

REFERENCES

- 1. Edzard Wiener, Christoph Pautke, Thomas M. Link. Comparison of 16-slice MSCT and MRI in the assessment of squamous cell carcinoma of the oral cavity. European Journal of Radiology 58 (2006) 113–118.
- 2. Greenberg, Glick, Ship. Burket's Oral Medicine. 11th Ed. 2008 BC Decker Inc Hamilton.
- Jatin P Shah, Newell W Johnson, John G Batsakis. Oral Cancer. Martin Dunitz; Taylor and Francis Group 2003.
- Jagdeep S. Thakur, M. L. Sharma, C. Mohan et al. Clinicopathological and radiological evaluation of cervical lymph node metastasis in head and neck malignancies. Indian J. Otolaryngol. Head Neck Surg. (October-December 2007) 59, 327–331.
- 5. Jonas A. Castelijns Michiel W. M. van den Brekel. Imaging of lymphadenopathy in the neck. Eur Radiol (2002) 12:727–738.
- 6. Van den Brekel MW and Jonas A. Castelijns. Imaging of Lymph Nodes in the Neck. Seminars

in Roentgenology, Vol 35, No 1 (January), 2000: 42-53.

- Woolgar JA, Beirne JC, Vaughan ED, Lewis-Jones HG, Scott J, Brown JS. Correlation of histopathologic findings with clinical and radiologic assessments of cervical lymph-node metastases in oral cancer. Int J Oral Maxillofac Surg 1995; 24:30–37.
- Shu-Hang Ng et al. Imaging of Neck Metastases

 Review. Chang Gung Med J Vol. 29 No. 2; March-April 2006.
- 9. Popperl G. Lang S, Dagdelen O, Jager L, Tiling R, Hahn K and Tatsch K. Correlation of FDG-PET and MRI/CT with histopathology in primary diagnosis, lymph node staging and diagnosis of recerrency of head and neck cancer. Rofo. 2002 Jun; 174(6); 714-720.
- Feinmesser R, Freeman JL, Noyek AM, Birt D, Gullane P, Mullen JB. MRI and neck metastasis: A Clinical/ Radiological/ Pathological Correlative Study. J Otolaryngol 1990; 91:136–40.
- 11. Leicher-Düber A, Bleier R et al. Cervical lymph node metastases: a histologically controlled comparison of palpation, sonography and computed tomography. Rofo. 1990 Nov;153(5):575-579.
- 12. Steinkamp HJ, Zwicker C, Langer M, et al.Cervical lymph node metastasis: significance of computerized tomography and palpation. A histologically controlled comparison. Rofo. 1991 Oct; 155(4):305-311.

- 13. Altuna Mariezkurrena X, Henríquez Alarcón M et al. Palpation and CT to evaluate the cervical adenopathies in head and neck tumours. Acta Otorrinolaringol Esp. 2004 Apr;55(4):182-189.
- 14. Ilknur Haberal et al. Which is important in the evaluation of metastatic lymph nodes in head and neck cancer: Palpation, ultrasonography, or computed tomography? Otolaryngology– Head and Neck Surgery Volume 130 Number 2:197-201.
- 15. Rottey S et al. Evaluation of metastatic lymph nodes in head and neck cancer: a comparative study between palpation, Ultrasonography, ultrasound guided fine needle aspiration cytology and computed tomography. Acta Clin Belg. 2006 Sep-Oct; 61(5):236-241.
- Alain Luciani et al. Lymph node imaging: Basic principles. European Journal of Radiology 58 (2006) 338–344.
- 17. Carvalho P, Baldwin D, Carter R, Parsons C. Accuracy of CT in detecting squamous carcinoma metastases in cervical lymph nodes. Clin Radiol. 1991 Aug; 44(2):79-81.
- Ako'lu E, Dutipek M, Beki_' R. Assessment of cervical lymph node metastasis with different imaging methods in patients with head and neck squamous cell carcinoma. J Otolaryngol. 2005 Dec;34(6):384-394.
- 19. Friedman M, Shelton VK, Mafee M, et al. Metastatic neck disease. Evaluation by computed tomography. Arch Otolaryngol 1984; 110:443-447.

Comprehensive Knowledge on Dental Management of HIV/AIDS: A Survey on Private Sector Oral Health Care Providers in Andhra Pradesh

Prasanth Venela¹, Priyanka Ammika¹, CH.Simhachalam Naidu¹, Tarun Chengappa K.U¹, Mir Quasim Ali Saad Naseri², M.Shantan Reddy³, Mallikarjun.A⁴

 ¹Association for Rural and Urban Needy (ARUN) Plot # 37-112/4; Sri Colony; Neredmet X Road; R.K.Puram; Secunderabad-500056 Andhra Pradesh; India
 ² Eco Foundation for Research and Training (EFFORT) 2-56/4; Pakabanda Bazar; Khammam; Andhra Pradesh;India
 ³ Narayana Super Specialty Dental Hospital Opposite Little Chums School; Sahara Road; Mansoorabad; L.B.Nagar; Hyderabad-68 Andhra Pradesh; India

⁴ A.V. Super Specialty Dental Hospital Near Amberpet Masjid; Amberpet; Hyderabad; Andhra Pradesh; India

ABSTRACT

Background: In India capacity building and training in HIV/AIDS has been focused on doctors, nurses, and counsellors. Oral healthcare providers namely, dentists, dental assistants and nursing assistants have been marginalized. Dentists form the first source of healthcare contact to many HIV/AIDS patients for complaints of oral lesions, with absolutely no knowledge of their patients HIV status. As there is a lack of data on oral health care providers and HIV / AIDS in India, ARUN took the initiative to address this issue and collect data that can prove invaluable in designing future programs and policies.

Methodology: The sampling technique used for the assessment is simple random sampling. The survey was carried out in dental colleges and private clinics and trust hospitals both in the rural and urban settings. A total of 75 dental health care providers from 5 dental colleges and 12 private clinics participated in the survey. The tool was a self administered questionnaire. MS Excel was used for recording the findings. Data analysis was done using SPSS software.

Results: None of the oral health care providers are referring the patients to HIV testing centres in government hospitals.67% are referring the patients for HIV testing to labs in private sector.32% of the dentists are referring patients for HIV testing based on the clinical manifestations, 23% as a routine, 8% based on risk behaviour, and 37% of dentists are not at all referring for HIV testing. Only 20% oral health care providers were aware of oral manifestations of HIV/AIDS, 56% of them are not sterilizing the instruments after each use, 61% of them are disinfecting the impressions before sending to the dental laboratory, only 61% dentists are following Universal safety precautions, 94% are not aware of PEP. **Conclusion:** Approximately 10776 patients seeking oral health care in 20 private dental colleges and hospitals can be presented with potential HIV infection and approximately 2000 dentists need to be trained every year. Involving dentists would help in early detection and reducing the HIV epidemic.

INTRODUCTION

India has a population of one billion, around half of whom are adults in the sexually active age group. Since the detection of the first AIDS case in India, in 1986; the total number of People Living with HIV/ AIDS (PLHA) in India in 2007 is estimated to be

Correspondence Address: Dr.Prasanth Venela Plot #11-107; Sai Krupa Lake view residency; Pragatinagar; Dilsukhnagar; Hyderabad- 500060; Andhra Pradesh; India. Ph: 91-40-32462117, 91-9959553260 Fax: 91-40-30421517 E-mail: prashuvennela@gmail.com 2.31 million. Females constitute around 39% of the burden. Children below 15 years constitute 3.5% of the estimated number of PLHA while elderly people with age greater than 49 years constitute 7.8%. Adults aged 15-49 years constitute 88.7% of the estimated number of PLHA¹. Highest numbers of PLHA are in Andhra Pradesh and Maharashtra, with nearly half-a-million PLHA each¹.

Several studies have demonstrated the negative impact of HIV infection on oral health. Approximately 40–50% of HIV-positive persons have oral fungal, bacterial, or viral infections that occur early in the course of the disease². Oral lesions in HIV-infected

Individuals serve as an early indicator of the immunosuppressive condition. Oral lesions strongly associated with HIV infection include Pseudo membranous candidiasis, Erythematous or atrophic candidiasis, Hyperplastic or chronic candidiasis, Angular cheilitis, Herpetic Gingivostomatitis, Hairy Leukoplakia, Oral warts, Acute Necrotizing ulcerative gingivitis/periodontitis, Kaposi's Sarcoma, Non Hodgkin's Lymphoma and Oral Ulcers^{34,5}.

WHO outlined some basic principles for developing a country-specific approach to capacitybuilding to control HIV/AIDS-related oral disease^{7,8}. four areas were identified: (1) health promotion and health education, (2) patient care, (3) infection control, and (4) epidemiology and surveillance. WHO Oral Health Programme recommends encouraging oral health personnel and public health practitioners to make oral health status, an integral part of optimum case management and of surveillance activities of the diseases associated with HIV infection⁶. In India, dental care scenario is unique, at present there are more than 267 dental schools, producing approximately 19,000 dental graduates/year and almost 3000 specialists/ year⁶. Assessment of the knowledge levels of the Oral health care providers is considered important for treatment of oral manifestations of HIV/AIDS, as it would help in identifying the levels of competence, training needs and preferences of Oral health care providers.

METHODS & MATERIALS

Association for Rural and Urban Needy (ARUN) is a non-government organization established in 1995 with an objective of promoting the health awareness among the underserved people with an emphasis on HIV/AIDS across Andhra Pradesh. ARUN undertook this study on oral health care providers with the following objectives: (i) To assess the levels of knowledge of Oral Health care Providers on oral manifestations of HIV infection; (ii) To assess the knowledge of oral health care providers on HIV testing; (iii) To assess the expected outcome in terms of the level of competence that Dental Health care provider need; (iv) To assess the knowledge of oral health care providers on universal safety precautions. The survey was carried out in the Dental colleges, private clinics and Trust hospitals located across four districts (Nalgonda, Medak, Nellore and Khammam) in the State of Andhra Pradesh.

DATA

A semi structured questionnaire was developed specially after consultations among trained investigators from ARUN. The self-administered questionnaire attempted to capture both qualitative and quantitative data and was field tested by experienced investigators. The questionnaire was circulated to all the departments within dental college and in private hospitals. A total of 75 oral health care providers were chosen by convenience sampling to participate in the survey. The respondents asked to fill up the self administered questionnaire based on their observations and clinical experience. The questionnaire was based on ten different parameters capturing the information pertaining to objectives framed. In addition, secondary data was derived from the additional information collected from the medical records of the hospital with in the dental college. The data was entered on MS Excel and was analysed using SPSS version software.

RESULTS

1. Typical/Special cases:

Among the commonly treated typical or special cases in a dental hospital 33% of cases are Impaction cases, 31% are flap surgeries, 16% are Space infections, 15% are Trismus and 5% are of various carcinomas.

Procedure	% adopting
Providing Glass tumblers to patients for rinsing mouth during surgical procedures	61
Changing glass tumblers after each procedure	10
Wearing Gloves	97
Changing Gloves after each procedure	45
Wore masks	98
Changed masks after each procedure	88
Used Drapes	94
Changed drapes after each procedure	62
Wearing of Aprons	100
Changed Aprons after each procedure	7
Used rubber dams	18
Changed rubber dams for each patient	8

2. Universal safety precautions:

Among oral health care providers surveyed, 61% of dentists were using Glass tumblers for patients to rinse their mouths, while doing surgical procedures; only 10% of oral health providers who are providing glass tumblers to patients are changing the tumblers after each procedure. About 98% of dentists wore gloves while performing surgeries and only 88% of them were changing the gloves after each surgery. 97% of oral health care providers surveyed wore mouth masks while performing surgeries, but only 45% of them changed their mouth masks after each surgery. All the dentists wore Aprons during treatment

procedures (Simple clinical examination and while performing surgeries) but where as mere 7% of them are changing their Aprons after finishing each treatment procedures. 94% of dentists are placing drapes on the patients while performing the treatment but whereas only 62% of them are changing drapes from patient to patient. 18% of dentists are using Rubber dams while carrying out treatment, but only 8% of them are changing the Rubber dams from patient to patient.

3. Risky surgical procedures

Among the surveyed dentists, 67% of dentists felt that various dental extraction procedures have maximum risk of occupational injuries and exposure to HIV infection, 28% of dentists felt, Flap surgeries have the maximum risk and 5% of dentists felt that Root Canal Therapy (RCT) have maximum amount of risk of occupational exposure.

4. HIV Oral Indicators

The percentage of oral health care providers who are aware of the oral manifestations of HIV/AIDS working within surveyed hospitals illustrated that, 20% of oral health care providers are of aware of Oral Candidiasis, 18% are aware of Angular Chelitis, 7% are aware of Leukoplakia, 4% are aware of Shingles, 8% are aware of Herpetic Stomatitis, 1% are aware of Kaposi's Sarcoma, 2% of them are aware of Non Hodgkin's Lymphoma, 8% are aware of Acute Necrotizing Ulcerative Gingivitis/Linear Gingival Erythema, 8% are aware of Necrotizing Ulcerative Periodontitis, 14% are aware of Recurrent Aphthous Ulcers and 11% know about Xerostomia.



Graph 1: Incidence of HIV oral indicator

5. Referral for HIV Testing

The percent of patients having any one of the oral manifestations of HIV/AIDS being referred to HIV testing by the oral health care providers from the Out Patient Department in various health care settings are 16.3% from Dental Colleges and Hospitals, 1.2% from Private Clinics and 9.2% from Trust hospitals.



Graph 2: Referrals made from various health care settings for HIV testing

6. Reason for the Referral:

The survey results illustrated 37% of the dentists are not referring the patients for HIV testing. Among the dentists who are referring (63%) for HIV testing, only 32% are referring based on clinical diagnosis of oral manifestations of HIV/AIDS, 23% of them are referring as a precautionary measure, 8% of them are referring after assessing their attitude and behaviour.

7. Place of Referral for HIV testing

None of the dentists are referring the patients to HIV testing centres [Integrated Counselling and testing Centres (ICTC)] run by the local government agency. 67% of them are referring to private health care facilities for HIV testing.

8. Sterilization

The analysis of the data on the practices of the sterilization of the used instruments followed by Oral Health care providers illustrated, 56% of them are not sterilizing the hand pieces after each use, 61% of them are disinfecting the impressions before sending to the laboratory, 53% of them are not using sterilization wrappings, 85% of them are not using the sterilized rubber dams, 25% of them are not sterilizing the burs after each use, only 1% of them are not changing the saliva ejectors after every use and 94% of dentists are unaware of Post Exposure Prophylactic drugs (PEP).

Details	% of Oral
	health care
	providers
Not sterilizing instruments	56
% using sterilized wrappings	
for impressions	61
Disinfecting wrappings	53
Not using sterilised	
of rubber dams	85
% using disposable syringes	99
Not using sterilised burs	25

DISCUSSION

HIV-related oral conditions occur in a large proportion of patients suffering with HIV/AIDS, oral manifestations may suggest possible HIV infection, although they are not diagnostic of infection. Dental expertise is necessary for proper dental management of complications in HIV/AIDS.

In this study practice of wearing gloves during performing surgical procedures as well as routine clinical examination to prevent the transmission of infection to patients and to prevent the contact of the health care worker with blood and saliva, is reported to be 97% which is overwhelming but only 45% of dentists who are using gloves have reported that they changed gloves for each patient. This is higher than what was reported by previous studies¹³. Though wearing of protective gloves does not protect from the injuries caused during handling of the sharp equipment, but may confer some protection by virtue of their wiping action on the sharp object on penetration¹⁴.

In this study, 88 percent of dentists wore and changed masks during treatment in between each treatment procedure, in comparison to 54.5% in Jordan⁹ 75% in Kuwait¹⁵, 64.8% in New Zealand, ¹³ 74.8% in Canada. ¹². It is observed that 87% of dentists are changing saliva ejectors, 75% of dentists changed burs and extraction instruments between patients. There have been reports of previous studies about the transmission of infection as a result of inadequate sterilization of handpieces^{16, 17}.

Only 44% of dentists sterilized hand pieces in contrast to other studies that found higher rates of sterilization^{15, 10}. The reason for not sterilizing the instruments was false impression regarding autoclaving as it would cause damage to the equipments. This agrees with the findings of a previous study¹⁸. Contamination of the laboratory could occur if cross-infection control is neglected. Indeed, occupational infection of dental laboratory technicians with HBV has been reported¹⁹. The results of this study revealed that as low as 39% of dentists used disinfectants for impressions before sending to dental laboratories. This is in comparison to 18% in Jordan⁹ and 53.7% reported by study done in durban²⁰. The use of rubber dam, in addition to improving safety and saliva control, significantly reduces bacterial contamination of the atmosphere during restorative procedures, particularly in the vicinity of the operator and dental assistant²¹. The results of this study revealed that only 15% of the oral health care providers participated in survey used rubber dams in their restorative procedures, compared to 13.6% among the private providers in Jordon⁹ and 40% among private dentists in Durban²⁰.

CONCLUSION

Form the data generated through this study illustrated a considerable amount of oral health care providers are (i) Unaware of the national program on HIV/AIDS; (ii) Have very low levels of knowledge on Clinical manifestation of HIV and their importance. (iii) Have less understanding on Universal safety precautions that can avoid the occupational exposure; (iv) Low level of the knowledge on HIV testing procedures purpose and place of referral; (v) Have low levels of knowledge on Infection control and Waste management; (vi) Low level of understanding on Post Exposure Prophylaxis (PEP).

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

We at ARUN express our sincere gratitude to management, administrative staff, and teaching staff of private dental colleges, private dental hospitals and Trust hospitals. We take immense pleasure in thanking many people who have given their time and talent to its implementation. We are grateful to our colleagues involved in this program for planning, discussing the details and generalities in developing strategies for smooth implementation of the program time to time.

REFERENCES

- 1. HIV Sentinel Surveillance and HIV estimation in India 2007-A Technical brief [http://www.nacoonline.org].
- 2. Johnson NW, Glick M, Mbuguye TNL (2006). Oral health and general health. *Adv Dent Res* 19: 118–121.
- Coogan MM, Sweet SP, editors (2002). Oral manifestations of HIV in the developing and developed world. Proceedings and abstracts of the 4th International Workshop on Oral Manifestations of HIV infection. Skukuza, South Africa, 4–8 July 2000. Oral Dis 8(Suppl 2):5–190.
- Glick M, Muzyka BC, Lurie D, Salkin LM (1994). Oral manifestations associated with HIV-related disease as markers for immune suppression and AIDS. Oral Surg Oral Med Oral Pathol 77:344–349.
- Oral manifestations of HIV infection in children and adults receiving highly active antiretroviral therapy [HAART] in Dar es Salaam, Tanzania [http://www.biomedcentral.com/ 1472-6831/6/12]
- http://www.whoindia.org/LinkFiles/ Oral_Health_Multicentric_epidemiological_study_intropdf
- 7. World Health Organization (1995). Building the capacity for an oral health response to the global

HIV pandemic. Geneva: WHO Oral Health Programme; www.who.int/oral_health.

- 8. World Health Organization (2003a). The World Health Report 2003—shaping the future. Geneva: WHO.
- 9. Compliance with Infection Control Programs in Private Dental Clinics in Jordan http:// www.jdentaled.org/cgi/content/full/69/6/693
- 10. Al-Rabeah A, Mohamed AGI. Infection control in the private dental sector in Riyadh. Ann Saudi Med 2002; 22:1–2.
- 11. Gore SM, Felix DH, Bird AG, Wray D. Occupational risk and precautions related to HIV infection among dentists in the Lothian region of Scotland. J Infect 1994; 28:209–222.
- McCarthy GM, MacDonald JK. The infection control practices of general dental practitioners. Infect Control Hosp Epidemiology 1997; 18:699– 703.
- 13. Treasure P, Treasure ET. Survey of infection control procedures in New Zealand dental practices. Int Dent J 1994; 44:342–348.
- 14. Upton LG, Barber HD. Double-gloving and the incidence of perforations during specific oral and maxillofacial surgical procedures. J Oral Maxillofacial Surgery 1993; 51:261–263.

- 15. Morris E, Hassan FS, Al Nafisi A, Sugathan TN. Infection control knowledge and practices in Kuwait: a survey on oral health care workers. Saudi Dent J 1996;8:19–26
- 16. Lewis DL, Boe RK. Infection risks associated with current procedures for using high-speed dental handpieces. J Clin Microbiol 1992;30:401–6.[Abstract/Free Full Text]
- 17. Lewis DL, Arens M, Appleton SS, Nakashima K, Ryu J, Boe RK, et al. Cross-contamination potential with dental equipment. Lancet 1992; 340:1252–1254.
- 18. Miller CH. Sterilization: disciplined microbial control. Dent Clin North Am 1991; 35:339–355.
- 19. Georgescu CE, Skaug N, Patrascu I. Cross infection in dentistry. Biotechnol Lett 2002;7(4):861–868
- 20. Yengopal V, Naidoo S, Chikte UM. Infection control among dentists in private practice in Durban. SADJ 2001; 56(12):580–584.
- 21. Cochran MA, Miller CH, Sheldrake MA. The efficacy of the rubber dam as a barrier to the spread of microorganisms during dental treatment. J Am Dent Assoc 1989; 119(1):141–144.

Intraoral Periapical Radiographic Changes of Teeth and Jaw Bones in Chronic Renal Failure Patients - an Observational Case-Control Study

Prasanth Venela, Priyanka Ammika, Ch. Simhachalam Naidu, M. Shantan Reddy, Mallikarjun A, Farheen sultana pasha

> *A.V. Super Specialty Dental Hospital Near Amberpet Masjid; Amberpet; Hyderabad; Andhra Pradesh; India*

ABSTRACT

Background: Chronic renal failure is an important health care problem throughout the world, with a prevalence of 7852 cases per million population (p.m.p) in India. Patients afflicted by this medical condition can visit a general dentist's office with number of clinical as well radiological manifestations. This study is undertaken to observe the soft radiologic changes occurring in teeth and jaw bones through Intraoral Periapical Radiographs (IOPA) which could be warning signs for undiagnosed kidney disease in these patients.

Methods: IOPA radiographs of 30 patients present in the initial stage of chronic renal failure (CRF) and have not undergone dialysis and 30 control group were taken in to the study. Maxillofacial radiologists measured the changes in the morphological features of the lamina dura, trabecular pattern, pulp size and radiographic density presenting in the teeth and jaw bones.

Results: In patients with CRF the significant changes were observed in lamina dura in the maxilla (93.3% of cases and 43.3% in controls; p=<0.0001) as well as mandible (83.3% of case and 33.3% of controls; p=<0.0001) when compared with controls. Changes in the trabecular pattern of both maxilla (86.6% of cases and 43.3% of controls; p=<0.001) and mandible (86.6% in cases and 10% in controls; p=<0.0001) were very evident in the case group when compared with controls. The radiographic density in case group showed significant change in maxilla (93.3% in cases & 20% in controls; p=<0.0001) when compared to controls but interestingly negligible change was seen in mandible of both case and control groups (40% in cases and 23.3% of controls; p=0.1647).No significant change was observed in size of pulp chamber in both maxilla (86.6% in patients and 70% in controls; p=0.117)and mandible (63.3% in patients and 30% in controls; p=0.0096) in both case and control groups.

Conclusions: The results suggest that changes IOPA radiographic changes in Lamina dura, trabecular pattern and overall radiographic density can be a good prognostic tool for assessment and management CRF patients.

Key words: IOPA, Lamina dura, Trabecular pattern, Radiographic density, Pulp chamber

INTRODUCTION

A patient's renal reserve or the capacity for structural and functional hypertrophy of surviving nephrons, can compensate to a point at which less than 50% of renal function remains. Once the damage is past

Correspondence Address: Dr.Prasanth Venela Plot #11-107; Sai Krupa Lake view residency; Pragatinagar; Dilsukhnagar; Hyderabad- 500060; Andhra Pradesh; India. Ph: 91-9959553260 Fax: 91-40-30421517 E-mail: prashuvennela@gmail.com Source of support: A.V. Super Specialty Dental Hospital Word Count: 2,994; Table Count: 02 the point of compensation, patients will begin to experience the signs and symptoms of chronic renal insufficiency (CRI) and, if left untreated, will progress to a state of chronic renal failure (CRF). Ultimately, such patients develop end-stage renal disease (ESRD). Oral cavity provides the reflection of the systemic state of whole body. Each disease has its unique oral manifestations; In case of renal failure, 90% of all affected patients experience oral symptoms¹ affecting both the bone and soft tissue structures². Commonly noted signs and symptoms include Halitosis and metallic taste due to increased concentration of urea in saliva and its posterior transformation into ammonium, Xerostomia,^{13,4} paleness of the mucosal membranes due to anemia,^{1,2,3,5} Uremic stomatitis, Gingival bleeding^{2,6}, Petechiae and Ecchymosis² resulting from platelet dysfunction^{6,7} and the effects of anticoagulants⁷, Gingival hyperplasia secondary to drug treatment,⁹which in turn is aggravated by the deficient oral hygiene^{3, 9, 10}. Periodontal problems include loss of periodontal ligaments, and formation of deep pockets^{11, 12}, Enamel hypoplasia secondary to alterations in calcium and phosphorus metabolism², which can affect both the primary and permanent dentition⁸. Severe erosions on the lingual surfaces of the teeth may occur due to frequent regurgitation and vomiting induced by uremia medication, and nausea associated to dialysis^{1,7}. Pulp obliteration², possibly related to the alterations in calcium and phosphorus metabolism, Delays or alterations in eruption^{1,2}. Changes in maxillary bone, secondary to renal osteodystrophy^{1,7} comprising bone demineralization with trabeculation and cortical loss^{1,2,5,7}, giant cell radio transparencies or metastatic calcifications of the soft tissues¹. The patients are also probably at increased risk of fracture during dental treatments such as extractions^{1, 5}, tooth mobility^{1, 7, 8}, malocclusion, crowding, pulp chamber calcifications¹ and temporomandibular joint problems are also observed^{13.} Candidiasis is common among both transplant patients and subjects on dialysis^{5, 8}. Cytomegalovirus (CMV) infection is frequent in the first months after transplantation², Oral hairy leukoplakia (OHL) secondary to drug-induced immune suppression^{8,} ⁹virus-related tumors such as Kaposi's sarcoma⁸ or non-Hodgkin lymphoma^{8,9}. Skeletal changes resulting from chronic renal disease are collectively called renal osteodystrophy. It is widely accepted that acquired disturbance of the utilisation of vitamin D in both the intestines and bone tissue in chronic renal insufficiency results in hypocalcaemia and secondary hyperparathyroidism. In the roentgenogram the trabeculae of the spongy bone are not well defined and the density of the bone is generally decreased. Soft Radiographic alterations of the jaw bones in chronic renal disease are not uncommon and often represent as partial or complete loss of the lamina dura, thinning of the cortical plates, with the blurring of anatomic landmarks. In addition, trabecular pattern of the affected bone often assumes a ground-glass or salt andpepper appearance¹⁶. As per the recent study the prevalence of CRF in India is 7852 cases per million population (p.m.p).¹⁵Considering the above back ground, this study is performed to examine the radiological changes of teeth and jaw bones in renal failure patients who are not undergoing dialysis.

OBJECTIVES OF THE STUDY

As a dental practitioner it is necessary to have a thorough understanding of special treatment considerations to be performed which can be effective and safe to these systemically compromised patients.

- To determine Intra Oral Peri Apical Radiograph (IOPA) changes in patients diagnosed with CRF who have not undergone dialysis.
- IOPA radiograph as an aid in assessing and predicting the prognosis of CRF.

METHODS AND MATERIALS

This is observational, case-control study and was conducted in the wing of Oral Medicine and Radiology at A.V. Super Specialty Dental Hospital. The study group was formed of 30 patients with modera-tesevere CRF: 22 men and 08 women; mean age = $64 \pm$ 11 years; mean weight = 74.78 ± 4.60 kg; 42% had primary education, 37% secondary education and 21% higher education. The 30 controls presented similar cha-racteristics with regard to sex (25 men and 5 women), age (mean age= 60 ± 11 years), weight (mean weight = 75.50 ± 4.94 kg) and educational level (38% had primary education, 35% secondary education and 27% higher education) and with no major systemic diseases. All the patients were drawn from outpatient department of A.V. Super Specialty Hospital, Hyderabad. Two Maxillofacial Radiologists performed the interpretation of IOPA radiographs.

RADIOGRAPHIC EXAMINATION OF PATIENT

The selected sample were examined and subjected for clinical evaluation. The patient was made to sit comfortably on the physiological dental chair with artificial illumination. Detailed clinical history was noted followed by radiographic evaluation with the help of I.O.P.A.R in relation to 26, 27, 28 & 46, 47, 48.

MATERIALS

- CCX Digital Trophy Trex Group X-ray machine with specifications of 70 KVP, 8 mA, 0.16x/secs (Electronic x-ray timer), provided with a chair which could be elevated or brought down to adjust the vertical height.
- IOPA Films- No. 2 (31 x 41 mm) (Kodak Dental Intra Oral E-Speed Film, Eastman Kodak Company, New York). No.0 (22 x 35 mm) (Kodak insight Super Polysoft Film, Eastman Kodak Company)
- 3. Lead apron, Sterile gloves, White adhesive plaster (Johnson and Johnson India Ltd)

EXPOSURE OF IOPA RADIOGRAPHS

Patient was positioned upright in the chair with the back and head well supported. Positioned the dental chair low for maxillary and elevated for mandibular projections. Patient was draped by lead apron, where the x-ray unit is of 70 KVp, 8mA with the normal exposure time, then place the KODAK, E-Speed intra oral film of size 31x41mm, using snap-A- Ray intra oral film holder using Bisecting angle technique, where the position of film as close as possible to the lingual surface of the teeth, resting in the palate for maxillary with the horizontal angulation is at right angles to the buccal surfaces of teeth and vertical angulation of +20 degrees & in the floor of mouth for mandibular with the angulation of -5 degrees.

INTERPRETATION OF RADIOGRAPHS

After exposure the films were processed in the dark room by manual visual processing method The processed and dried film was labelled and stored in a separate cover. The interpretation of IOPA radiographs was done in the dark room using radiographic view box and magnifying lens. The IOPA radiograph was mounted on the radiographic view box and criteria for Radiographic evaluation.

The results obtained in the present study were analysed using the SPSS version 16.0 statistical package for Windows. Chi-squared test were used to study the variables. Statistical significance was taken as a value of p<0.05. Odds ratio with 95% confidence interval was also calculated.

RESULTS

Of the 30 patients in the study group, 22 (73%) were in the initial stages of CRF and 08 (27%) were suffering moderate CRF and all the patients in the study group have not undergone for dialysis and were on pharmacological-dietary treatment. The following variables are presented for Maxillary bone changes in Table 1 and mandibular bone changes in Table 2 both for the patients and for the controls: the lamina dura in the maxillary bone showed changes in 93.3% of case group where as 43.3% in control group, showing a tendency of statistical significance (p=<.0001). The changes were assessed in terms of entire lamina dura thickening or thinning completely or partially and its presence or absence. It is observed that in 33.3% of patients lamina dura was completely absent where as in controls it is only 3.3%. Significant change was observed in thinning of lamina dura in cases (60%) and in controls it was 26.6%. Similar changes were observed in the lamina dura of the mandible, 83.3% of the patients showed changes where as 33.3% of controls showed changes giving a tendency of statistical significance (p=0.0001). 86.6% of cases and 43.3% of controls showed changes in the pattern of trabeculation of maxilla providing the statistical significance (p=<0.001). Similar results were observed in mandibule (86.6% in cases and 10% in controls; p=<0.0001).In maxilla 93.3% of patients showed changes in the radiographic density where as in controls only 20% have shown changes giving a statistical significance (p=<0.0001). But in case of mandibule, both controls and cases have shown less amount of changes in the overall radiographic density giving to statistical significance (40% in cases and 23.3% of controls; p=0.1647). No significant difference was observed regarding the changes in pulp chamber (relative to age) of the maxilla in both cases and controls with no statistical significance (86.6% in patients and 70% in controls; p=0.117), Where as in case of mandible slight difference was observed in the pulp chamber when compared to maxilla. 63.3% of cases showed changes but whereas controls are 30%, giving no statistical significance (p=0.0096). In case of changes in thickness of the lower border of the mandible significant changes were observed (73.3% of cases and 20% of controls) giving a statistical significance(p=<0.0001).

Table 1. Table 2. Comparison of Radiographic changes in the Maxilla ofCase group (n=30) and Control group (n=30)

	Maxilla				
	Cases (CRF patients) n (%)	Control n (%)	Odds ratio	Statistical significance	
Changes in Lamina Dura					
Yes	28 (93.3)	13 (43.3)	18.3077	p=<.0001	
No	2 (6.6)	17 (56.6)			
Changes in Trabecular pattern					
Yes	26 (86.6)	4 (13.3)	42.25	p=<.0001	
No	4 (13.3)	26 (86.6)			
Changes in overall radiographic density					
Yes	28 (93.3)	6 (20)	56	p=<.0001	
No	2 (6.6)	24 (80)			
Changes in pulp chamber (relative to age)					
Yes	26 (86.6)	21 (70)	2.785	p=0.117	
No	4 (13.3)	9 (30)			

		Mandible		
	Cases (CRF patients) n (%)	Control n (%)	Odds ratio	Statistical significance
Changes in Lamina Dura				
Yes	25 (83.3)	10 (33.3)	10	p=<.0001
No	5 (16.6)	20 (66.6)		
Changes in Trabecular pattern				
Yes	26 (86.6)	3(10)	58.5	p=<.0001
No	4 (13.3)	27 (90)		
Changes in overall radiographic density				
Yes	12 (40)	7 (23.3)	2.1905	p=0.1647
No	18 (60)	23 (76.6)		
Changes in pulp chamber (relative to age)				
Yes	19 (63.3)	9 (30)	4.03	p=0.0096
No	11 (36.6)	21 (70)		
Changes in thickness of lower border of mandible				
Yes	22 (73.3)	6 (20)	11	p=<.0001
No	8 (26.6)	24 (80)		

Table 2. Comparison of Radiographic changes in the Mandible of Case group (n=30) and Control group (n=30):

DISCUSSION

Chronic renal failure alters bone metabolism by multiple mechanisms. Pathognomic radiologic findings include the loss of the dental lamina, thinning of cortical bone in multiple locations, a coarsened trabecular pattern, and a "salt-and-pepper" appearance of bone, particularly the skull.^{18,19,20} In this study, loss of Lamina dura was observed significantly in both the jaws in cases and negligible loss in control group, the reason can be nonspecific instead of hyper/ hypoparathyroidism, as suggested in other studies^{21,22}. This study correlates with the findings of study conducted by Indiana University Medical Center; Indianapolis, USA that states that the triad of changes in lamina dura, trabecular pattern, and bone density alteration, although variable in relative appearance, frequently appear together²³. The findings of this study find similarities with the findings of Veterans Administration Medical Center, Wood, Wis., USA in terms of delicate or absent trabecular patterns.^{22.}The study also illustrated that changes in the size of pulp chamber in both the jaws in control as well as cases has no statistical significance and cannot be taken as diagnostic marker of the renal failure. This study also correlates with the overall granular or chalky white appearance associated with an increase in radiographic density as one of the most common alterations²².

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

We at A.V. Super specialty dental Hospital express our sincere gratitude to management, and administrative staff for rendering their support. We are grateful to our colleagues involved in this program for planning, discussing the details and generalities in developing strategies for smooth implementation of the study.

REFERENCES

- 1. De Rossi SS, Glick M. Dental considerations for the patient with renal disease receiving hemodialysis. J Am Dent Assoc. 1996 Feb;127(2): 211-29.
- 2. Davidovich E, Davidovits M, Eidelman E, Schwarz Z, Bimstein E. Pathophysiology, therapy, and oral implications of renal failure in children and adolescents: an update. Pediatr Dent. 2005 Mar-Apr; 27(2):98-106.
- 3. De la Rosa García E, Mondragón Padilla A, Aranda Romo S, Bustamante Ramírez MA. Oral mucosa symptoms, signs and lesions, in end stage renal disease and non-end stage renal disease diabetic patients. Med Oral Patol Oral Cir Bucal. 2006 Nov 1;11(6): E467-73.
- 4. Proctor R, Kumar N, Stein A, Moles D, Porter S. Oral and dental aspects of chronic renal failure. J Dent Res. 2005 Mar; 84(3):199-208.
- 5. Gudapati A, Ahmed P, Rada R. Dental management of patients with renal failure. Gen Dent. 2002 Nov-Dec; 50(6):508-510.
- 6. Kerr AR. Update on renal disease for the dental practitioner. Oral Surg Oral Med Oral Pathol Oral Radiol Endod. 2001 Jul;92(1):9-16.
- 7. Klassen JT, Krasko BM. The dental health status of dialysis patients Can Dent Assoc. 2002 Jan;68(1):34-38.

- Proctor R, Kumar N, Stein A, Moles D, Porter S. Oral and dental aspects of chronic renal failure. J Dent Res 2005;84(3):199–208.
- 9. De la Rosa-García E, Mondragón-Padilla A, Irigoyen-Camacho ME, Bustamante-Ramírez MA. Oral lesions in a group of kidney transplant patients. Med Oral Patol Oral Cir Bucal. 2005 May-Jul; 10(3):196-204.
- Ciavarella D, Guiglia R, Campisi G, Di Cosola M, Di Liberto C, Sabatucci A, et al. Update on gingival overgrowth by cyclosporine in Renal transplants. Med Oral Patol Oral Cir Bucal. 2007 Jan 1; 12(1):E19-25.Oct;32(10):1076-1082.
- 11. Davidovich E, Schwarz Z, Davidovitch M, Eidelman E, Bimstein E. Oral findings and periodontal status in children, adolescents and young adults suffering from renal failure. J Clin Periodontol. 2005.
- Sobrado Marinho JS, Tomás Carmona I, Loureiro A, Limeres Posse J, García Caballero L, Diz Dios P. Oral health status in patients with moderatesevere and terminal renal failure. Med Oral Patol Oral Cir Bucal. 2007 Aug 1;12(4):E305-310.
- 13. Bots CP, Poorterman JH, Brand HS, Kalsbeek H, Van Amerongen BM, Veerman EC, et al. The oral health status of dentate patients with chronic renal failure undergoing dialysis therapy. Oral Dis. 2006 Mar;12(2):176-180.
- 14. Roderick PJ, Jones I, Raleigh VS, McGeown M, Mallick N (1994). Population need for renal replacement therapy in Thames regions: ethnic dimension. *Br Med J*309:1111–1114.
- Agarwal S.K, Dash S.C, Irshad M, Raju S, Singh R & Pandey R.M (2005).Prevalence of chronic renal failure in adults in Delhi, India. Nephrol. Dial. Transplant 20 (8):1638-1642. doi:10.1093/ ndt/gfh855.

- 16. Göran Söderholm, Leif Lysell, ÅUke Svensson. Changes in the jaws in chronic renal insufficiency and haemodialysis. Report of a case. *J Clin Periodontol.* 2005 Oct; 36-42.doi: 10.1111/j.1600-051X.1974.tb01236.x
- 17. J. I. Chang, P.M. Som and W. Lawson (2005), Unique Imaging Findings in the Facial Bones of Renal Osteodystrophy. *American Journal of Neuroradiology* 28:608-609.
- 18. Bottomley WK, Cioffi RF, Martin AJ. Dental management of the patient treated by renal transplantation: preoperative and postoperative considerations. *J Am Dent Assoc* 1972; 85: 1330-1335.
- 19. Naylor GD, Fredericks MR. Pharmacologic considerations in the dental management of the patient with disorders of the renal system. *Dent Clin North Amer* 1996; 40:665-683.
- 20. Heard E Jr, Staples AF, Czerwinski AW. The dental patients with renal disease. Precautions and guidelines. *J Am Dent Assoc* 1978; 96:792-796.
- 21. Frankenthal S, Nakhoul F, Machtei EE, Green J, Ardekian L, Laufer D, Peled M. The effect of secondary hyperparathyroidism and hemodialysis therapy on alveolar bone and periodontium. *J Clin Periodontol* 2002; 29:479-483.
- 22. William H. Kelly, Michael K. Mirahmadi, James H. S. Simon, John T. Gorman. Radiographic changes of the jawbones in end stage renal disease. Elsevier Inc.1980 Oct; 372-381.doi:10.1016/0030-4220(80)90423-5.
- 23. Charles E. Hutton. Intradental lesions and their reversal in a patient being treated for end-stage renal disease. Elsevier Inc 1985 Sep; 258-261.doi:10.1016/0030-4220(85)90307-X

Non-Carious Cervical Lesion-A Multifactorial Etiology Case Report

*Prashanth Kumar, **Kiran Murthy

*Assistant Professor, **Professor, SJM Dental College, Chitradurga, Karnataka

Abstract

Non-carious cervical lesions (NCCL) of teeth have been documented in the literature and there are many cases with regard to every single type including attrition, abrasion, erosion, and abfraction. But very cases have been documented where all these lesions co exist and it is difficult to say which the causative lesion is and which other lesion causes the progression. This is a unique case where the causative factors and the etiology are dubious and vague patient history. The clinical findings, differential diagnosis, final diagnosis and the prognosis are discussed. Also the treatment of such lesions is important.

INTRODUCTION

A non-carious cervical lesion (NCCL) is the loss of hard dental tissue on the neck of the tooth, most frequently located in the vestibular plane. Causal agents are diverse and mutually interrelated. The causes of tooth surface lesions proposed are classified as attrition, abrasion, erosion and abfraction.

Attrition is the physiological wearing away of a tooth as a result of tooth to tooth contact.

Abrasion is the pathological wearing away of a tooth substance through some abnormal mechanical process.

Erosion is the loss of dental hard tissue b a chemical process that does not involve bacteria.

Abfraction is the pathological loss of both enamel and dentin caused by biomechanical loading forces.

Clinically it is seen that these factors often act concomitantly resulting in loss of tooth structure in the cervical region of teeth. A case report is presented where the etiology is multifactorial. The history is inconclusive making it difficult to pinpoint single causative agents. Treatment and preventive options are also discussed.

CASE REPORT

A patient had come to the hospital with a complaint of brown color tooth lesions in the cervical third of tooth. Patient noticed this 6-8months before she reported. The patient did not give a proper history of her oral hygiene, eating or other habits and hence the etiology was elusive. Clinically the condition cannot be categorized into any of the afore mentioned conditions and it becomes apparent that the three physical and chemical mechanisms are jointly involved in the etiology of this lesion.

DIFFERENTIAL DIAGNOSIS

The differential diagnosis which gives primacy to a single mechanism fails because they miss the mltifactorial nature of this lesion. No single mechanism is adequate to explain all occurrences of NCCLs', their etiologylikely is multifactorial in nature. A combination of all these factorsis responsible to varying degrees. It has not been clearly identified as to whether any one process is more responsible for lesion initiation or for progression or vice-versa. Initiation of breakdown by one process can make the tooth more susceptible to damage by the other processes, perhaps in a synergistic manner. One factor may predominate over another in a given patient, leading to the varied presentations.

TREATMENT

Decision to restore NCCL's is based on the desire to strengthen the tooth and decrease the theoretical stress concentration and flexure, mitigate lesion progression, prevent hypersensitivity and pulp involvement, improve oral hygiene, and enhance esthetics. Treatment measures have included resin based composites, glass ionomers or a combination of the techniques. Other treatment options include metal restorations for posterior teeth, dentin bonding agents and copal varnishes, fluoride therapy and desensitizing agents, nightgaurd and occlusal adjustments, dietary modifications and oral habit cessation. In this case the teeth were restored with composite resins as the lesion was in the cervical third of the teeth involving enamel.

CONCLUSION

Though non-carious cervical lesion(NCCL) are common in dialy practice, cases where these lesions exist concomitantly are rare and when the practitioner encounters such cases he should be astute to diagnose the case, document all the findings and establish a definitive treatment plan. As the etiology and the causative lesion was dubious in this case the dentist must be wise enough in considering all the factors that can cause NCCL and come to a proper diagnosis considering all the other NCCL in the differential diagnosis.

REFERENCES

- 1. Hooper S, West NX, Pickles MJ, Joiner A, Newcombe RG, Addy M (2003).Investigation of erosion and abrasion on enamel and dentine: a modelin situ using toothpastes of different abrasivity. J Clin Periodontol 30: 802-808.
- Horning GM, Cohen ME, Neils TA (2000). Buccal alveolar exostoses: prevalence, characteristics, and evidence for buttressing bone formation. J Periodontol 71: 1032-1042.
- 3. Hugoson A, Ekfeldt A, Koch G, Hallonsten AL (1996). Incisal and occlusal tooth wear in children and adolescents in a Swedish population. Acta Odontol Scand 54: 263-270.
- 4. Jaeggi T, Lussi A (1999). Toothbrush abrasion of erosively altered enamel after intraoral exposure to saliva: an in situ study. Caries Res 33: 455-461.
- 5. Joiner A, Pickles MJ, Tanner C, Weader E, Doyle P (2004). An in situ model to study the toothpaste

abrasion of enamel. J Clin Periodontol 31: 434-438.

- Kakudo Y, Hieda T, Matsuzawa S, Ishida A, Yoshihara M (1969). Relations between brushing force and the number of strokes during tooth brushing in pre-school children and primary school pupils. J Osaka Dent Univ 3: 187-199.
- Grippo JO. Noncarious cervical lesions: the decision to ignore or restore. J Esthet Dent. 1992; (suppl 4): 55-64.
- 8. Xhonga FA. Bruxism and its effect on the teeth. J Oral Rehabil.1977; 4(1): 65-76.
- 9. Hand JS, Hunt RJ, Reinhardt JW. The prevalence and treatment implications of cervical abrasion in the elderly. Gerodontics. 1986; 2(5): 167-170.
- Heymann HO, Sturdevant JR, Bayne SC, Wilder AD, Sluder TB, Brunson WD. Examining tooth flexure effects on cervical restorations: a two-year clinical study. J Am Dent Assoc. 1991; 122(5): 41-47.
- 11. Lyttle HA, Sidhu N, Smyth B. A study of the classification and treatment of noncarious cervical lesions by general practitioners. J Prosthet Dent. 1998; 79(3): 342-346.
- 12. Rees JS, Jacobsen PH. The effect of cuspal flexure on a buccal class V restoration: a finite element study. J Dent. 1998; 26(4): 361-367.
- 13. Grippo JO, Simring M, Schreiner S. Attrition, abrasion, corrosion and abfraction revisited. J Am Dent Assoc. 2004; 135(8): 1109-1118.
- 14. Pegoraro LF, Scolaro JM, Conti PC, Telles D, Pegoraro TA. Noncarious cervical lesions in adults: prevalence and occlusal aspects. J Am Dent Assoc. 2005; 136(12): 1694-1700.
- Bernhardt O, Gesch D, Schwahn C, Mack F, Meyer G, John U, etal. Epidemiological evaluation of the multifactorial aetiology of abfractions. J Oral Rehabil. 2006; 33(1): 17-25.

A study of Epidemiology of Rabies at Government Medical College and Hospital, Aurangabad

*Prashant V Solanke, **Anand Kalaskar, ***J V Dixit

*Assistant Professor, Community Medicine department, Sree Mookambika Institute of Medical Sciences, Kulasekharam 629161,Kanyakumari District, Tamil Nadu, **Associate Professor, Dept. of Microbiology, Sree Mookambika Institute of Medical Sciences, Kulasekharam-629161, Kanyakumari District, ***Associate Professor, Dept. of Community Medicine, Government Medical college, Aurangabad

ABSTRACT.

Background: Human rabies despite advances in medical sciences still remains practically a cent percent fatal disease.

Methods: We reviewed the surveillance data of Rabies cases over a period of 5 years (Jan 2000 – Dec 2004) and also cross sectional study was carried during the period from 1st January 2005 to 31st December 2005 at Government Medical College Hospital, Aurangabad, Maharashtra to study the factors associated with rabies and also the traditional customs, misbelieves and indigenous treatments associated with rabies.

Results: Total 153 cases were noted during the study period out of which 31 cases were found during cross sectional study. The most vulnerable age group for rabies cases was 15-45 years (38.56%), 48.38% received indigenous treatment and 41.93% took some form of wound treatment.

Conclusion: Implementation of effective canine rabies control activities by use of anti – rabies vaccine for animals, effective control of stray dog population and complete vaccination schedule in case of animal bite are necessary.

Key words: Rabies, Anti-rabies vaccines, Vaccination

Conflict of Interest: None

Source of Disclosure: No.

INTRODUCTION

Rabies is a natural infection of dogs, foxes, cats, wolves and bats. Man is infected by the bite of rabid dog or other animals¹. Rabies is simply the Latin word for madness². In the first century AD the Roman scholar Aulus Cornelius Celsus was perhaps the first to provide an accurate description of the disease with a wide range of species susceptible to infection³.

Australia, China (Taiwan), Cyprus, Iceland, Ireland, Japan, Malta, New Zealand, the UK, Islands of Western Pacific, Liberian Peninsula, Norway and Sweden are

Dr. Prashant V Solanke

all rabies free. In India, the Islands of Lakshadweep, Andaman and Nicobar are rabies free⁴.

Globally 40000 to 70000 deaths occur in a year. In India approximately 7.4 million people are bitten by animals. In India, pet dog population is around 28 million. Pet dog: Man ratio is 1:36. Annual man days lost to animal bite is 38 million⁵. It is estimated that about 18,000 to 20,000 cases of human rabies occur annually in India⁶. Hence rabies is one of the important public health problems in India.

It is a common practice in our country to apply various materials/ substance over the wounds caused by animal bites. The commonly used materials/ substance are turmeric(with or without oil), chili powder, flour paste, plant seeds, plants sap, calcium carbonate with copper coin, tea powder etc. It is also observed that patients seek treatment from quacks and endanger their lives⁷.

Correspondence Address:

Assistant professor

Community medicine department, Sree Mookambika Institute of Medical Sciences,

Kulasekharam 629161, Kanyakumari District, Tamil nadu. Mobile 9751926130

In the present study we endeavor to study epidemiology and factors associated with development of rabies in patients admitted to Government Medical College Hospital, Aurangabad. Further we intend to study the traditional customs, misbelieves and indigenous treatments for rabies.

AIMS AND OBJECTIVES

- 1. To study the epidemiology of rabies cases admitted in Government Medical College Hospital, Aurangabad.
- 2. To identify the factors associated with development of rabies.
- 3. To study the traditional customs, misbelieves and indigenous treatments associated with rabies.

MATERIALS AND METHODS

The present hospital based cross sectional study was carried at Government Medical College Hospital, Aurangabad during the period from 1st January 2005 to 31st December 2005. Present study is an epidemiological profile of rabies cases admitted in isolation ward of Government Medical College and hospital, Aurangabad through information received from admitted patients/attainder and available records of patients admitted from 1st January 2000 to 31st December 2004.

All clinical diagnosed cases of rabies were admitted in this hospital during the study period were included in this study. Detailed history of each case was taken and clinical examination was carried out as soon as the patient is admitted.

The data was collected during 1st January 2005 to 31st December 2005 during office hours from Record Section. Home visit was done to all the patients home, who were admitted to Government Medical College Hospital, Aurangabad during 1st January 2005 to 31st December 2005.

The pretested questionnaire was used for interview.

STATISTICAL ANALYTICAL METHODS

Chi – square was used whenever applicable.

REFERENCE CITING

Vancouver system of listing and citing of references is used.

OBSERVATIONS AND DISCUSSION

Present study was carried out to study epidemiology, factors associated with development and the traditional customs, misbelieves and indigenous treatment by quacks for animal bite in rabies for a period of one year from 1st January 2005 to 31st December 2005. Also records of clinically diagnosed cases of rabies, admitted in isolation ward of Government Medical College and Hospital, Aurangabad from 1st January 2000 to 31st December, 2004 were analyzed.

The isolation ward of medical college Hospital admits and manages rabies cases.

Total 31 cases of rabies admitted in Government Medical College Hospital, Aurangabad were studied from 1st January 2005 to 31st December 2005.

Also records of 122 cases of rabies admitted at Government Medical College and Hospital, Aurangabad during 1st January 2000 to 31st December 2004 were analyzed.

Table 1. Distribution of Rabies Cases According to Age

Year	Age(Yrs)	No. of cases	Percentage
2000 to	0-5	9	5.88
2004 and	6-14	39	25.49
1 st January	15-45	59	38.56
2005 to	≥ 45	46	30.06
31st December 2005	Total	153	100

In the year from 1st January 2000 to 31st December 2005 more than 38.56% cases were in the age group above 15-45 years. Mean age is 32.05 years (range 3 to 84 years).In age group of above 45 years, 30.06% cases were seen.

Sarbjit Sehgal et. al (1996) observed that more than 56% victims were in the age group 5-30 years⁸.

DS Dahliwal et.al (2000) observed that majority (39.22%) of cases belonged to the age group of 15-45 years followed by 6-14 years (27.45%) and rest 45 years and above⁹.

Singh J et.al (2001) observed that cases were significantly higher in 5-14 years old than in other age group¹⁰.

Table 2. Distribution Of Cases According Tto Economic Status(During 1st January 2005 to 31st December 2005)

(BG Prasad Classification)

Social class	Per capita income p.m.	Urban cases	Rural cases	Total cases
Ι	2607& above	0	3	3(9.67%)
II	1303 - 2606	5	8	13(41.93%
III	782 - 1302	1	8	9(29.03%)
IV	391 - 781	1	2	3(9.67%)
V	Below 391	1	2	3(9.67%)
	Total	8(25.8%)	23(74.19%)	31(100.0%)

Table - 2 displayed social class grading as per per-capita income by BG Prasad¹¹.

It is also clear that 41.93% cases belong to socio – economic class – II, followed by 29.03% class - III and 9.67% class – I, IV ad V.

Table 3. Distribution of Cases as per Literacy Status (During 1st January 2005 to 31st December 2005)

Sr. No.	Literacy status	No. of cases	Percentage
1	Illiterate	13	41.93
2	Literate	18	58.06
	Total	31	100

It is evident from above table that 58.06% of the total rabies cases were literate while 41.93% were illiterate.

Table 4. Distribution of Cases as per Occupation (During1st January 2005 to 31st December 2005)

Sr. No.	Occupation	No. of cases	Percentage
1.	Agricultural labour	12	38.70
2.	Farmers	02	6.45
3.	Employed	01	3.22
4.	Own business	04	12.90
5.	House wife	03	9.67
6.	Dependent	05	16.12
7.	Others*	04	12.90
	Total	31	100.00

*Others included (i) Workers in factory, (ii) Private electricians (iii) Fruit sellers and (iv) Beggars.

From table –4, it is clear that 38.7% were agricultural labour while 12.9% were businessmen.

Katke DN stated that students form the most vulnerable category for animal bites (43.7%).¹²

Table 5. Time Lag Between Bite and Starting arv (1stJanuary 2005 to 31st December 2005)

S. No.	Interval(days)	No. of cases	Percentage
1	Within 24 hours	03	16.66
2	1 – 2 days	14	77.77
3	2 – 3 days	1	5.55
	Total	18	100.00

Those who started anti – rabies vaccination following bite of a rabid animal 16.66% took ARV within a day of bite and 77.77% in 1- 2 days. 5.55% cases had taken ARV after 2 – 3 days after bite of animal.

Katke DN observed that 47% cases had reported within 24 hours, 68.5% cases within first 2 days and about 80% cases had reported within 3 days of animal bite.¹²

MK Sudarshan et al observed that those who started an anti-rabies vaccination following bite of a rabid animal 7.6% taken ARV within a day of bite and another 6% in the next 2 to 3 days.¹³

Table 6. Distribution of Cases as per the Nature ofBite (During 1st January 2005 to31st December 2005)

Nature of bite					
S. N0.	Animal	Provoked	Total		
1	Dog	5	25	30(96.77%)	
2	Cat	_	1	1(3.22%)	
3	Cow	_		—	
	Total	5(16.12%)	26(83.87%)	31(100.0%)	

It is evident from the above table that cases of provoked bite were 5(16.12%) and of unprovoked bites were 26(83.87%).

Katke DN (1944) had observed that the cases of provoked bite were 25.5% and of unprovoked bites were 74.5%.¹²

Table - 7 Distribution of Cases as per Nature of Wound Treatment Received

1st January 2005 To 31st December 2005

	Wound	Water	Soap &	Antiseptic	Wound
	treatment received		water		treatment not received
Urban	3	3	0	0	6
Rural	13	10	3	0	8
Total	16(53.33%)	13	3	0	14(46.66%)

Out of 31 patients, 1 patient of consumption of unboiled milk of cow is excluded from this table. Above table shows that 16 patients (53.33%) out of 30 patients received some form of wound treatment. Out of these 16 patients, 13 patients used water, while 3 patients used soap and water.

Most significant finding is that 14 (46.66%) patients did not receive any sort of wound cleaning.

Katke DN observed that 307 (59.2%) cases out of 519 cases received some form of wound treatment. Out of these 307 cases, 61 (19.9%) cases cleaned wound only with water, 114(37.1%) cases used soap and water, while 132 (43%) cases used some antiseptic. 212 (40.8%) cases did not receive any sort of wound cleaning.¹²

MK Sudarshan et al stated that 39.5% cases used soap and water for cleaning wound.¹³

Table 8. Details of Indigenous Treatment Done

1st January 2005 To 31st December 2005

S. No.	Indigenous treatment	No. of cases	Percentage
1.	Indigenous t/t done	15	48.38
2.	Local application to wound	11	35.48
3.	Application of lime / lime juice	6	19.35
4.	Application of leaf	3	9.67
5.	Application of turmeric powder	1	3.22
6.	Consulting quacks	1	3.22
7.	Application of tea powder	1	3.22

It is evident from the above table that 15(48.38%) cases received indigenous treatment. 35.48% cases had done local application to wound. In 6(19.35%) cases lime or lime juice was applied to the wound. Lime is a cautering agent and thus this is a useful traditional practice. 3(9.67%) cases had applied leaf over wound. Only 1 case (3.22%) had consult quacks. In 3.22% cases, turmeric powder and tea powder was applied over wound.

Katke DN observed that 244 (46%) received traditional local treatment, of these 140 cases had also received traditional treatment orally, most of the times consuming enchanted bhakar,(roti) (99.3%). In 148 cases (60.7%) lime was applied to the wound. Lime was applied and copper coin was fixed to the wound in 70 cases (28.7%). Cauterization was done by red hot iron rod in one case. (0.4%)¹².

MK Sudarshan observed that the most commonly ressautes practices were magico-religious (28.09%) followed by herbal therapy (10.6%)¹³.

DG Sampath observed in case studies that turmeric mixed with oil, some plant recdes, paste made from jowar flour, were applied over wound by a bite of animal⁷.

SUMMARY, CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATION

The present hospital based study was carried out in Government Medical College and Hospital, Aurangabad during 1st January 2005 to 31st December 2005. The study was aimed to study the epidemiology, clinical profile, traditional customs, misbelieves and indigenous treatment associated with rabies.

Total 153 cases were reported during the year 1st January 2000 to 31st December 2004 and between 1st January 2005 to 31st December 2005. All these cases were included in the study.

RESULTS OF STUDY WERE AS FOLLOWS:

- 1) 15-45 years (38.56%) was most vulnerable age group for rabies cases and 0 5 years (5.88%) were least prone age group for rabies cases.
- 41.93% cases belong to social grade II as per BG Prasad Classification.
- 3) 58.06% of cases were literate.
- 4) Agricultural labour forms the most vulnerable category for rabies cases (38.7%).
- 5) Those who started anti rabies vaccination following bite of a rabid animal, 77.77% cases had taken ARV in 1-2 days after bite of animal.
- 6) Dog was the principal animal responsible for the rabies cases. 96.77% of cases were the victims of dog bite.
- 7) Cases of provoked bites were 16.12% and of unprovoked bites were 83.87%.
- 8) Only 18.75% patients received local wound treatment using soap and water.
- 9) Most significant finding is that 14 (46.66%) patients did not receive any sort of wound cleaning.

10) 48.38% received some form of indigenous treatment, most of the times 19.35% in the form of application of lime or lime juice, which is useful traditional practice as lime is cauterizing agent.
9.67% cases applied leaf over the wound.
3.33% of cases reported application of turmeric powder and tea powder over the wound.

RECOMMENDATIONS

It is evident from the present study that there are some traditional customs, misbelieves and indigenous treatment which results in rabies.

Following recommendations are suggested in order to minimize problem of rabies.

- 1) Implementation of effective canine rabies control activities by use of anti rabies vaccine for animals
- 2) Effective control of stray dog population
- 3) Licensing of pet dogs is the need of the hour.
- Community should be made more aware of the importance of proper local wound treatment and complete vaccination schedule in case of dog bite, through mass media.
- 5) Conduct professional training and public awareness campaign.

REFERENCES

- 1. C.P.Baveja, Textbook of microbiology. Second edition. 2005: 480.
- Christie A.B Infectious disease. Epidemiology and Clinical Practice. III edition, 1980; 722 – 745.
- Plotkin S. Oren Stein: Vaccines, Second Edition, New York. 1992; 649 – 670.

- 4. IJCP group. MMR and Rabies Vaccines: Essential facts, Human Biological Institute, Hyderabad, India. 2004; 36 43.
- 5. Gupta A.K. Paper presentation in Conference of Association for Prevention and Control of Rabies in India, Shimla, 2005.
- 6. Ghosh A. Study of rabies at communicable disease centre during year 2003 2005 at Agartala, Tripura (W), Paper presentation in Conference of Association for Prevention and Control of Rabies in India, Shimla, 2005.
- Malik S. Rabies Prevention Case Studies. Mediworld Publications, New Delhi, 2004; 1 – 7.
- 8. Segal S., Bhattacharya D. & Bhardwaj M. Fiveyear longitudinal study of efficacy and safety of purified Vero cell rabies vaccine for post-exposure prophylaxis of rabies in Indian Population, 1996.
- 9. Dahliwal D.S., Dahliwal R.S Indian Journal of Community Medicine. 2000; Vol.XXXV: 118–12.
- Singh J et al. Epidemiological characteristics of rabies in Delhi and surrounding areas. PMID: 11752732 (Pub Med-indexed for MEDLINE) 2001: 1354 – 1360.
- 11. Kulkarni A.P., Baride J.P Text Book of Community Medicine. Second Edition. Mumbai: Vora Medical Publication. 2002.
- 12. Katke DN. Study of some epidemiological aspects of animal bite cases reported at anti-rabies treatment centre, Government Medical College Hospital, Aurangabad. Dissertation for MD (PSM), Marathwada University, 1994.
- Sudarshan M.K. Association for Prevention and Control of Rabies in India. Assessing burden of rabies in India. 2004; 1 – 81.

Comparison of Surface Hardness of Two Resin Composites After Exposure to Three Different Staining Agents and Four Different Bleaching Agents-an in vitro Study

*Prashanth Kumar, **Kiran Murthy

*Assistant Professor, **Professor, SJM dental college, Chitradurga, Karnataka

ABSTRACT

Abstract: To compare the surface hardness of two resin composites Esthet_X and filtek supreme after exposure to three different staining agents coffee, tea and red wine and two different dentist prescribed at home bleaching agents colgate platinum & opalescence and one over the counter bleaching agent (Colgate Platinum).

Methodology: 60 specimens, 9mm×2mm each of Filtek Supreme and Esthet-X were prepared. The 60 specimens were divided into 4 groups:

Group 1: coffee group Group 2: tea group Group 3: red wine group Group 4: control group (distilled water)

Results: The results showed that in case of Filtek Supreme a statistically significant difference in surface hardness was noted when subjected to coffee and tea and the tea group when subjected to OTC bleaching agent. In case of Esthet-X, significant difference in surface hardness was observed when subjected to tea and the same tea group when treated with Opalescence 20%.

INTRODUCTION

Currently dentistry is experiencing a trend of increasing demand from patients for superior esthetic restorations. Restorative materials used in dentistry are required to have long term durability in the oral cavity. During the daily clinical practice, tooth colored restorations exist in the teeth that are planned to be bleached. Also, in today's world consumption of beverages and drinks has dramatically increased. Very little is known about the effects of these beverages, drinks and bleaching agents on the physical properties of the composites. Therefore it is important for dentists to understand the effects of bleaching agents on the physical properties of restorative materials¹.

The purpose of this in-vitro study was to quantitatively assess the effects of beverages, drinks, dentist prescribed at-home bleaching agents and OTC agents on the surface hardness of one microhybrid and one nanofilled composites.

MATERIALS AND METHODS

- 3 Staining solutions: coffee, tea and red wine
- 2 composite resins, Filtek supreme (FS) and Esthet-

X (EX).

1 OTC bleaching agent, Mirawhite.

• 3 professionally supervised bleaching agents, colgate platinum, Opalescence 10%, ultradent products, USA and opalescence 20%, ultradent products, USA.

PREPARATION OF THE SPECIMEN

9mm × 2mm specimens were prepared using a metal ring.

The 60 specimens of each composite were divided into four groups (n=15):

- 1. Coffee group
- 2. Tea group
- 3. Red wine group
- 4. Distilled water (Control group)

Each group of both the composites was subjected to one of the three staining solutions. They were kept in staining solutions for three hours a day for 40 days. The specimens were kept in distilled water for the remaining period. The solutions were changed daily. Each day after the staining period the specimens were washed in distilled water. The control group was not subjected to any staining solution and was kept in distilled water throughout the staining period.

BLEACHING PROCEDURE

Samples were treated with three different bleaching agents. The specimens of coffee group, tea group and red wine group were divided into three groups each (n=5), and were subjected to one of the three bleaching agents. The bleaching agents were applied on to the surface of the specimens. The specimens were subjected to bleaching agent for eight hours a day for 14 days. The specimens were kept in distilled water for remaining period. The control group was not subjected to any bleaching agent.

SURFACE HARDNESS TESTS

Surface hardness tests were performed with Vickers hardness tester. The testing was performed with a 50g load and 20 seconds dwell time. Three values were collected for each specimen and the mean was calculated. Surface hardness tests were performed three times during the study: baseline (24 hours after polymerization), after the 40 day staining period and finally after the 14 day bleaching period.

Graph 1: Mean VHN scores of Filtek Supreme at baseline and after staining



RESULTS

In table 1 it is observed that there is a very high significant difference in the VHN values recorded at baseline and after staining in Filtek Supreme composite when used in coffee and tea solutions (P<0.001). But no significant difference is observed in red wine and distilled water (P>0.05).

Graph 2: Mean VHN scores of Esthet-X at baseline and after staining



Graph 3: VHN scores of Filtek Supreme after staining and bleaching



Graph 4: Mean VHN scores of Esthet-X after staining & bleaching



In Esthet-X composite significant difference is noticed in the VHN values recorded at baseline and after staining (P<0.05). Very high significant difference is noticed in tea (P<0.001) and no significant difference is noticed in red wine and distilled water (P>0.05).

Composite	Staining solution	Baseline (Mean±SD)	After staining (Mean±SD)	Mean difference	t	P-value
Filtek Supreme	Coffee	85.86±25.34	76.45±22.17	9.415	5.546	< 0.001*
	Tea	93.01±27.37	75.01±17.74	18.007	5.863	< 0.001*
	Red wine	84.35±22.52	76.39±29.65	7.953	1.416	0.179
	Distilled water	79.99±15.69	78.64±17.39	1.347	1.275	0.223
Esthet-X	Coffee	57.34±15.50	50.09±13.40	7.247	2.906	0.012*
	Tea	53.66±11.25	44.46±9.37	9.200	5.494	< 0.001*
	Red wine	62.25±33.06	60.96±19.74	1.293	0.165	0.871
	Distilled water	53.91±12.46	52.18±13.29	1.726	0.676	0.510

 Table 1. Comparison of VHN scores at baseline and after staining in Filtek Supreme and

 Esthet-X composites when used in different staining solutions

*denotes a significant difference

In table 2 it is observed that there is a significant difference between the VHN score recorded after staining & after bleaching in tea with OTC bleaching agent (P<0.05). But no significant difference is observed in any of the combinations of staining solutions with bleaching agents (P>0.05).

Staining solution	Bleaching Agent	After staining (Mean±SD)	After bleaching (Mean±SD)	Mean difference	t	P-value
Coffee	Colgate Platinum	75.56±14.15	66.24±11.98	9.320	1.310	0.260
	Opalescence 20%	69.24±29.93	62.36±29.06	6.880	2.392	0.075
	OTC	85.54±21.83	78.76±21.78	5.780	1.950	0.123
Tea	Colgate Platinum	67.46±16.97	61.10±10.80	6.360	1.576	0.190
	Opalescence 20%	74.78±12.38	67.94±10.69	6.840	2.192	0.093
	OTC	82.78±22.65	69.14±19.65	13.640	3.962	0.017*
Red Wine	Colgate Platinum	74.78±39.82	72.15±13.36	2.628	0.151	0.887
	Opalescence 20%	88.44±31.84	68.94±30.03	19.500	1.406	0.233
	OTC	65.96±12.50	44.90±15.10	21.060	2.140	0.099
Distilled Water	Colgate Platinum	74.08±12.09	76.06±12.12	-2.020	-1.720	0.161
	Opalescence 20%	86.80±15.67	86.92±14.90	-0.120	-0.123	0.908
	OTC	75.06±23.16	75.36±26.44	-0.300	-0.179	0.867

 Table 2. Comparison of VHN scores 0f Filtek Supreme after staining and after bleaching

*denotes a significant difference

In table 3 it can be observed that there is a significant difference between the VHN score recorded after staining & after bleaching in tea with Opalescence 20% (P<0.01) & OTC bleaching agents (P<0.05). But no

significant difference is observed in any of the combinations of staining solutions with bleaching agents (P>0.05).

Table 3. Comparisor	of VHN scores 0	f Esthet-X after	staining and	after bleaching
			0	0

Staining solution	Bleaching Agent	After staining (Mean±SD)	After bleaching (Mean±SD)	Mean difference	t	P-value
Coffee	Colgate Platinum	57.04±10.22	54.16±8.26	2.880	2.138	0.099
	Opalescence 20%	54.46±15.66	45.36±9.38	9.100	2.301	0.083
	OTC	38.78±5.89	35.90±6.18	2.880	2.270	0.086
Tea	Colgate Platinum	45.60±13.89	39.44±14.03	6.160	2.144	0.099
	Opalescence 20%	42.76±8.19	35.00±7.11	7.760	5.079	0.007*
	OTC	45.02±6.47	38.26±5.18	6.760	3.113	0.036*
Red Wine	Colgate Platinum	70.54±20.66	55.32±16.82	15.220	1.171	0.307
	Opalescence 20%	62.70±20.54	45.46±10.62	17.240	2.306	0.111
	OTC	49.64±15.36	43.28±22.87	6.660	1.646	0.175
Distilled Water	Colgate Platinum	57.24±10.42	59.56±14.83	-2.320	-1.005	0.372
	Opalescence 20%	48.04±13.92	46.54±12.86	1.500	1.734	0.158
	OTC	51.26±16.17	53.80±16.82	-2.540	-1.745	0.156

*denotes a significant difference

DISCUSSION

In this study the specimens were immersed in beverages and drinks for a limited period and then kept in distilled water for the remaining period.

Chemical softening of the restoratives may result in decreased physico-mechanical properties. The latter includes diametric tensile strength (Lee et al, 1999) fracture toughness (Ferracane and Marker, 1982), hardness and wear (Wu and McKinney, 1982)⁸.

In addition to the oxidizing agent used in the at home bleaching procedure an additive called carbapol (carboxy polymethelene) may be added to thicken the gel. This additive keeps the gel within the tray better and slows the chemical reaction as a result the bleaching agent is in contact with the surface of composite restorations for a longer time which may result in undesirable effects on the mechanical properties of the composite resin⁵.

In the present study it was observed that there is a very highly significant difference in the VHN values recorded at baseline and after staining in case of Filtek Supreme composite when stained with coffee and tea solutions (P<0.001). But no significant difference was observed in red wine and distilled water (P>0.05).

Hydrogen peroxide is known to have capacities for oxidation and reduction, generating free radicals. In addition to its reactivity, hydrogen peroxide demonstrates an extensive ability for diffusion. Possibly peroxides induce oxidative cleavage of polymer chains. The unreacted bonds are expected to be most vulnerable parts of the polymers. This may lead to a softening and reduction of surface microhardness¹⁰.

Within the limits of this in vitro study it can be stated that prolonged exposure to beverages like coffee, tea and OTC bleaching agents may affect physical properties like surface hardness of Filtek Supreme composite resin. Dentist prescribed bleaching agents may not deleteriously affect Flitek Supreme composite resin restorations present in the mouth. Beverages like tea and dentist prescribed bleaching agents like Opalescence 20% may affect physical properties like surface hardness of Esthet-X composite resin. However, it is difficult to extrapolate the findings of an in vitro study to clinical situations as it is impossible to factor in all the variables that a restoration may be subjected to in the mouth.

CONCLUSION

• In this study, the three staining solutions coffee, tea and red wine were found not to affect the surface of the composite resin Filtek Supreme and

Esthet-X in more than one way. This may be attributed to the difference in the type of the filler used and percentage of filler in the two composites.

- In case of Filtek Supreme, the coffee and tea group were significantly affected by the respective staining solutions. The surface hardness had significantly decreased when compared to the baseline values.
- The tea group in Filtek Supreme was further affected when treated with the OTC bleaching agent. The hardness values had dwindled after the bleaching period.
- In case of Esthet-X, the tea group was significantly affected by the staining solution. The surface hardness values had fallen after the staining procedure.
- The same tea group was further affected when subjected to Opalescence 20% dentist prescribed at-home bleaching agent. The surface hardness values had come down after they were subjected to the bleaching agent.

BIBLIOGRAPHY

- 1. Hao Yu, Qing Li, Manal Hussain, Yining Wang, Effects of bleaching gels on the surface microhardness of tooth-colored restorative materials in situ, Journal of dentistry 3 6, 2008, 261 – 267.
- 2. Olga Polydorou, Elmer Hellwig, Thorsten Mathias Auschill, The Effect Of At-Home Bleaching On The Microhardness Of Six Esthetic Restorative Materials, JADA2007; 138(7):978-984.
- **3. Inger Campos, Luiz Andrf, Freire Pimenta,** Effects of Bleaching with Carbamide Peroxide Gels on Microhardness of Restoration Materials, J Esthet Restor Dent 15:175-183,2003.
- 4. Arzu Mujdeci and Osman Gokay, Effect of bleaching agents on the microhardness of tooth-colored restorative, J Prosthet Dent 2006; 95:286-289.
- 5. Nadia Malik Taher, The Effect of Bleaching Agents on the Surface Hardness of Tooth Colored Restorative Materials, The Journal of Contemporary Dental Practice, Volume 6, No. 2, May 15, 2005
- 6. Rafeal Ratto de Moraes, Jose Laurindo Machado Marimion, Luis Felipe Jochims Schneider, Effect Of Six Months Of Aging In Water On Hardness And Surface Roughness Of Two Microhybrid Dental Composites, Journal Of Prosthodontics, 17(2008), 323-326.
- 7. E. C. Kao, Influence Of Food Simulating Solvents On Resin Composites And Glass Ionomer Restorative Cement, Dental Materials 1989.
- 8. AUJ Yap, P Wattanapayungkul, Effects of

In-Office Tooth Whiteners on Hardness of Tooth-Colored Restoratives, Operative Dentistry, 2002, 27, 137-141.

- 9. S. B. Turker & T. Biskin, The Effect of Bleaching Agents on the Microhardness of Dental Aesthetic Restorative Materials, Journal of oral rehabilitation 2002, 29, 657-661.
- Christian Hannig, Sebastian Duon, Klaus Becker, Edgar Brunner, Elke Kahler, Thomas Attin, Effect of bleaching on subsurface microhardness of composite and a polyacid modified composite, Dental Materials 2 3 (2007) 198–203.
- **11. K. Okadaa, S. Tosakia, K. Hirotaa, W.R. Humeb,** Surface hardness change of restorative filling materials stored in saliva, Dental Materials 17 (2001).
- 12. Fla'vio H.B. Aguiara, Aline T.B. Braceiroa, Gla'ucia M.B., Ambrosano, Hardness and diametral tensile strength of a hybrid composite resin polymerized with different modes and immersed in ethanol or distilled water media, Dental Materials (2005) 21, 1098–1103.
- 13. Thomas Attin, Christian Hannig, Annette Wiegand, Effect of bleaching on restorative materials and restorations—a systematic review, Dental Materials (2004) 20, 852–861.

- 14. W. Geurtsena, G. Leyhausena, F. Garcia-Godoy, Effect of storage media on the fluoride release and surface microhardness of four polyacid-modified composite resins ("compomers"), Dental Materials 15 (1999) 196–201.
- **15.** Rodrigo Sversut de Alexandre, Renato Herman Sundfel, André Luiz Fraga Briso, Effect of 10% Carbamide Peroxide Dental Bleaching on Microhardness of Filled and Unfilled Sealant Materials, J Esthet Restor Dent 18:273–279, 2006.
- **16.** J. E. McCinney, and W. WU, Chemical softening and wear of dental composites, volume 64, number11, journal of dental research november1996.
- R. G. Chadwick, J. F. McCabe, A. W. G. Wallas, R. Storer, The Effect Of Storage Media Upon The Surface Microhardness And Abrasion Resistance Of Three Composites, Dental Materials, April, 1990.
- **18.** Shawn J. Bailey Edward J. Swift, Jr, Effect of Home Bleaching Products On Composite Resins, Quintessence Intl 1992; 23:489-494.
- **19. Robert J. Cooley & Karen M. Burger,** Effect of carbamide peroxide on composite resins, Quintessence Intl 19921; 22: 817-821.

Effect of Meditation on Parameters Related to Stress

R.N.Raichur*, S.B.Kulkarni**, Rahul R R, Aruna G B

*Professor. Dept. of Physiology, J.N.Medical College, Belgaum, **Former Prof. and Head, Department of Physiology, KIMS, Hubli, Karnataka

ABSTRACT.

Every one experiences stress because of our modern life style. Meditation is the best effortless relaxation technique which is easy to learn and practice in daily life. Regular practice of meditation is highly beneficial and effective in reduction of stress. Most of the studies on effect of meditation have been coupled invariably with practice of set of asanas and kriyas. This study differs from others as we have tried to find effects of meditation alone in Sukhasana posture only, on parameters related to stress in healthy young medical students. Resting heart rate, blood pressure, respiratory rate and anxiety scores were recorded before meditation training and practice and after a period of meditation training and practice and the results were compared. The resting heart rate in post-meditation period was significantly lower than premeditation readings (p<0.001). The decrease in Diastolic Blood Pressure in the post-meditation period was statistically significant (p<0.001). The values of Anxiety scores showed statistically significant decrease after 12 weeks of meditation practice (p<0.02). After 12 weeks of meditation practice there was significant reduction in stress related parameters. Hence meditation practice modulates stress response and modifies one's attitude towards stress. Regular practice of meditation is highly beneficial in reduction of stress and to keep good health.

Keywords: Meditation, Stress, STAI, Anxiety, Sukhasana.

INTRODUCTION

Everyone experiences stress because of our modern life style which is highly competitive, challenging and with full of tensions. Stress is a non-specific response of the body caused by various stressors. Various studies conducted worldwide indicate 75% of general population experiences stress and workplace stress reported to be 32% which is more common in executives especially in women¹. Nowadays even younger age group belonging to professional courses encounter high degree of stress because of competitive curriculum and intense academic competitions more so during challenging situation like examinations².

Now a days stress reduction programmes are becoming essential. The benefits of such programme have convinced even big corporations including NASA. Stress is a hypermetabolic physiological state associated with increased heart rate, blood pressure, respiratory rate, oxygen consumption and blood flow³. Meditation which is a wakeful hypometabolic state associated with greater alertness and causes significant reduction in heart rate, respiratory rate, oxygen consumption, anxiety and plasma cortisol⁴. Meditation by relaxation response helps to counteract the biochemical changes that cause stress. Meditation modulates stress responses and modifies once attitude towards stress. Meditation is the best effortless relaxation technique which is easy to learn and practice in daily life. Regular practice of meditation is highly beneficial and effective in reduction of stress⁵.

Most of the studies on effect of meditation have been coupled invariably with practice of set of asanas and kriyas. Aged and especially physically weak people may not be able to perform these asanas. There is paucity of studies of effects of meditation alone without incorporating asanas & kriyas. Even some people have difficulty in meditating by adopting Padmasana, but Sukhasana can be easily adopted by any person. Hence this study was undertaken to find out the effect of meditation in Sukhasana posture only on some parameters related to stress in healthy young medical students. Though practice of various asanas were not included in this study, only Sukhasana which is the posture required for performing meditation was included. Meditation along with OM chanting was taught and practiced.

AIMS AND OBJECTIVES

The study was undertaken to study effect of meditation in Sukhasana posture on parameters related to stress in young healthy medical students. The following parameters were studied. Resting heart rate. Resting blood pressure (SBP and DBP). Resting Respiratory rate. Evaluation of anxiety by STAI questionnaire.

Objectives were to record the above parameters before meditation training and practice in meditation group and after a period of meditation training and practice for 13 weeks in same meditation group and compare the two.

MATERIALS

This study was conducted in the Department of Physiology, KIMS Hubli. After calculation of sample size, twenty five students who came voluntarily to participate in the study were included. This group was called Meditation group denoted by 'M'. This group underwent meditation training for one week followed by meditation practice for 12 weeks.

A detailed physical and clinical examination of each participant was carried out and no abnormality was found. All subjects were right handed, non smokers, non alcoholics and took no drug. They had almost similar dietary intake, activity and life style. They also agreed not to change their lifestyle, diet and activity during the study period. These subjects never underwent meditation training, relaxation exercises and sports related training, in the past and also during the study period. All subjects had normal vision and hearing and were found to be sound physically, mentally, emotionally and psychologically.

METHOD

The following parameters recorded in two phases. First or initial reading was taken well before the participants of meditation group joined meditation course, henceforth denoted by 'M-1' indicating premeditation readings. Final readings were recorded after the participants of meditation group completed the meditation training and practice, henceforth denoted by 'M-2', measurements stand for post meditation readings. RESTING HEART RATE : This was recorded by using Cardiart 108T mk IV ECG machine, manufactured by BPL India Ltd.

RESTING BLOOD PRESSURE : This was recorded by using Mercury Sphygmomanometer.

RESPIRATORY RATE : This was recorded by using electronic spirometer called Spirolyser model 2spl-100 manufactured by F I M company.

EVALUATION OF ANXIETY : Spielberger's State Trait Anxiety Inventory (STAI) consisting of two parts (X-1 and X-2) was used to assess anxiety levels/scores.

MEDITATION COURSE: The Meditation course was conducted for 13 weeks. Meditation training was conducted for one week by a qualified Yoga trainer. This was followed by meditation practice under supervision for 12 weeks. The students were asked to adopt Sukhasana posture and chant OM for a period of 30 minutes in two spells of 15 minutes each with a rest period of 5 minutes in between during which they were asked to relax.

RESULTS

All the above parameters were recorded in two phases. First reading was taken well before the participants of meditation group joined the meditation course. Henceforth denoted by 'M-1' indicating premeditation readings. Final readings were recorded after the participants of meditation group completed the meditation training and practice. Henceforth denoted by 'M-2', measurements stand for post meditation readings. Statistical analysis of data was done by using paired t-tests and values of t and p were calculated. Value of 0.05 or less was taken as statistically significant.

RESTING HEART RATE : Initial Resting Heart rate (beats/minute) in the premeditation group (M-1) was 76.32 ± 2.228 .

The resting heart rate in postmeditation group (M-2), that is at the end of 12 weeks of meditation

 Table 1. Resting Heart Rate, Blood Pressure, Respiratory Rate and Anxiety Scores

 During Premeditation and Postmeditation Period.

PARAMETERS	M-1	M-2	SIGNIFICANCE LEVEL
Resting Heart Rate (Beats/minute)	76.32 ± 2.228	64.08 ± 2.157	*P<0.001
Resting Systolic Blood Pressure (mm of Hg)	115.2 ± 1.681	112.1 ± 1.531	P<0.20
Resting Diastolic Blood Pressure (mm of Hg)	77.04 ± 1.096	73.76 ± 1.008	*P<0.05
Resting Respiratory Rate(breaths/minute)	19.24 ± 0.971	9.68 ± 0.736	*P<0.001
STAI ScoresX-I	46.36 ± 1.575	36.56 ± 1.063	*P<0.001
STAI ScoresX-II	47.08 ± 1.684	40.92 ± 1.474	*P<0.02

* Indicates Statistically Significant

practice was 64.08 ± 2.157 , which was significantly lower than 'M-1' (p<0.001) [Table–1 and Graph-1].





RESTING SYSTOLIC BLOOD PRESSURE : Initial Resting Systolic Blood Pressure (in mm of Hg) in the premeditation group (M-1) was 115.2 ± 1.681 .

The Resting Systolic Blood Pressure in postmeditation group (M-2), that is at the end of 12 weeks of meditation practice was 112.1 ± 1.531 . Statistically significant difference between the two values was not found (p<0.20) [Table–1 and Graph-2].

Graph 2. Resting Systolic Blood Pressure (Mean ± Sem)



RESTING DIASTOLIC BLOOD PRESSURE : Initial Resting Diastolic Blood Pressure (in mm of Hg) in the premeditation group (M-1) was 77.04 ± 1.096 .

The Resting Diastolic Blood Pressure in postmeditation group (M-2), that is at the end of 12 weeks of meditation practice was 73.76 ± 1.008 . The decrease in Diastolic Blood Pressure in the

post-meditation period of meditation group was statistically significant (p<0.05) [Table–1 and Graph-3].





RESTING RESPIRATORY RATE : Initial values of respiratory rate (breaths/minute) in the premeditation group (M-1) was 19.24 ± 0.971 .

The Resting Respiratory Rate in postmeditation group (M-2), that is at the end of 12 weeks of meditation practice was 9.68 ± 0.736 . The decrease in respiratory rate after meditation practice was statistically significant (p<0.001) [Table–1 and Graph-4].

Graph 4. Resting Respiratory Rate (Mean ± Sem)



ANXIETY SCORES

STAI (X-I) Scores : Initial values of Anxiety scores in the premeditation group (M-1) was 46.36 ± 1.575 . The Anxiety scores in postmeditation group (M-2), that is at the end of 12 weeks of meditation practice was 36.56 ± 1.063 . The values of Anxiety scores showed significant decrease after 12 weeks of meditation practice which was statistically highly significant (p<0.001) [Table–1 and Graph-5].


Graph 5. Anxiety Scores (Stai - X 1) Means ± Sem)

STAI (X-II) Scores : Initial values of Anxiety scores in the premeditation group (M-1) was 47.08 ± 1.684 . The Anxiety scores in postmeditation group (M-2), that is at the end of 12 weeks of meditation practice was 40.92 ± 1.474 . The values of Anxiety scores showed significant decrease after 12 weeks of meditation practice which was statistically significant (p<0.02) [Table–1 and Graph-6].

Graph 6. Anxiety Scores (Stai - X 2) Means ± Sem)



DISCUSSION

The resting heart rate showed statistically significant reduction in meditation group after meditation practice (p<0.001). Meditation being a hypometabolic state causes significant decrease in heart rate. Majority of scientific studies shows meditation to be a wakeful state accompanied by decreased metabolism. The generalized decrease in metabolism manifests with decreased heart rate, blood pressure, respiratory rate. These findings have been verified by impressive number of studies. Farrel DJ⁶, Dillbeck M C⁷, Gallois P⁸, Farrow JT⁹, Stehle R¹⁰, Khanam AA et al¹¹, reported significant decrease in heart rate after regular practice of meditation. Wallace¹², Delmonte¹³. Zeier¹⁴, Sudsuang et al ¹⁵ reported reduced heart rate associated with meditative

practices. Our results are also similar and support the above findings.

Resting systolic blood pressure after meditation practice was numerically slightly lower than premeditation readings, but there were no statistically significant differences between the values.

The resting diastolic blood pressure decreased after meditation practice which was statistically significant (p<0.05). Meditation produces reduction in systolic and diastolic blood pressure, comparable to those commonly found with antihypertensive medication but without any side effects¹⁶. Cooper and Aygen¹⁷ found significant reduction of high blood pressure in hypertensive patients after practice of meditation. Randomized control trials have found that meditation is more effective in reducing blood pressure than any other relaxation technique¹⁸. In our study there was reduction of only diastolic blood pressure and not systolic blood pressure and our subjects were normotensive from the beginning. Cardiovascular reactivity which is measured as changes in blood pressure and heart rate in response to stressful tasks may predict hypertension.

The decrease in respiratory rate in meditation group after meditation practice was statistically significant (P< 0.001). Corey, Paul¹⁹ found increased airway conductance and increased ease of breathing during and after meditation practice. Wallace RK²⁰ reports significant decrease in respiratory rate with a mean decrease of 3 breaths/min during meditation and in one subject respiratory rate decreased from 12/min to 4/min. John T Farrow²¹ in his study reported statistically significant reduction in respiratory rate, wherein he observed 60% reduction in respiratory rate. During meditation practice respiratory rate decreases due to natural reduction in metabolic activity at cellular level and not from a forced reduction of breathing. The reduction in respiratory rate was due to decreased metabolic rate.

The anxiety scores were measured by using STAI, developed by Spielberger C D²² is a definitive instrument for measuring anxiety status in adults. The values of anxiety scores (X-I and X-II) showed statistically significant decrease after meditation practice in meditation group (p<0.001 and p<0.02). A Malathi and A Damodaran²³ observed statistically significant reduction in basal anxiety levels and also significant reduction in the raised anxiety scores prior to the examination compared to the control group. A three months study of managers and employees who regularly practiced meditation in a fortune 100 manufacturing company showed, meditation practitioner displayed more relaxed physiological functioning, greater reduction in anxiety and reduced tension during jobs. This is due to reduction in limbic arousal. Limbic system contains hypothalamus which controls autonomic nervous system which is responsible for reduction of stress.

SUMMARY AND CONCLUSION

After 12 weeks of meditation practice there was significant reduction in heart rate, diastolic blood pressure, respiratory rate and anxiety status. Stress is a hypermetabolic physiological state associated with increased heart rate, blood pressure, respiratory rate, oxygen consumption and blood flow. Meditation which is a wakeful hypometabolic state associated with greater alertness and causes significant reduction in heart rate, respiratory rate, oxygen consumption, anxiety and plasma cortisol. Most of our observations are attributable either entirely or largely to induction of a hypometabolic state / relaxation response by meditation. Most of the studies on effect of meditation have been coupled invariably with practice of a set of asanas and krivas. Old and physically weak people may not be able to perform these asanas. There is paucity of study of effects of meditation alone. Hence this study was undertaken to find out effect of meditation in only sukhasana posture, on some parameters related to stress in healthy young medical students.

Though Practice of various asanas were not included, only sukhasana which is the posture required for performing meditation was included, OM meditation along with OM chanting was taught and practiced. Hence only meditation without asanas and kriyas is also effective in reduction of stress. This can be a boon to the hypertensive, diabetic patients who have already crossed middle age and may not be able to carry out various asanas. Meditation brings better hormony between mind and body, which is essential to face stressful situations. Meditation modulates stress response and modifies one's attitude towards stress. Regular practice of meditation is highly beneficial in reduction of stress and to keep good health.

REFERENCES

- Harris research International survey, Associates for research into science of enjoyment (ARISE). Stress relaxation and pleasure amongst office workers. Nov 1994.
- Malathi A, Damodaran A. Stress due to exams in medical students- Role of yoga. Ind J Physiol Pharmacol. 1999; 43(2): 218-224.
- 3. William E Prentice. Fitness of college and life. 5th edition; 1994: 333-354.
- 4. Ding John-E Young Eugene Taylor. Meditation as a voluntary hypometabolic state of biological

estivation. News Physiol Sci, Jun 98; 13: 149-153.5. Benson H, The relaxation response. NewYork;

6. Farrell DJ. The reduction in metabolic rate and heart rate of man during Meditation, Lawrence E, Mount (Ed), E A A P, Publication # 26, Butterworth and Co. (Publishers) Ltd Australia. 1980; 279-282.

William Morrow and Co. 1975.

- Dillbeck MC, Orme–Johnson D W. Physiological differences between transcendental meditation and rest. American Psychologists, 1987;42: 879-881
- 8. Gaylord C, Orme–Johnson D and Travis F. The effects of the transcendental meditation technique and progressive muscle relaxation on EEG coherence, stress reactivity and mental health in black adults. International J Neuroscience. May 1989; 46(1): 77-86.
- 9. Farrow JT and Hebert JR. Breath suspension during the transcendental meditation, technique. Psychosomatic Medicine 1992; 44(2): 133-153.
- 10. Stehle R. Ventilation, Heart rate, Respiratory Partial Pressures of Athletes Practicing the Transcendental Meditation technique cologne, W. Germany 1975.
- 11. Khanam, A A., Sachdeva, U,. Guleria R, and Deepak KK. Study of pulmonary and autonomic functions of asthma patients after yoga training. Indian J of Physiol Pharmacol; Oct. 1996; 24.
- Wallace RK. Physiological Effects of Transcendental Meditation. Science 1970; 167:1751-4
- Delmont MM. Physiological responses during meditation and rest. Biofeedback Self Regulation. Jun 1984; 9(2): 181-200
- 14. Zeier H. Arousal reduction with biofeedback supported respiratory meditation. Biofeedback Self Regulation. Dec 1984; 9(4): 497-508.
- 15. Sudsuang R, Chentanez V and Veluvan K. Effect Buddhist Meditation on Serum Cortisol and Total Protein Levels, Blood Pressure, Pulse Rate, Lung Volume and reaction time. Physiology Behavior, Sep 1991; 50 (3): 543-8
- 16. Schneider RH, et al. A randomized controlled trial of stress reduction for hypertension in older African Americans. Hypertension, Nov 1995; 26(5): 820-7.
- 17. Cooper M and Aygn M. Effect of meditation on serum cholesterol and blood pressure. J of the Israel Medical Association, 1978; 95: 1-2.
- 18. Alexander CN et al. Transcendental meditation, mindfullness and longevity- an experimental study with the elderly. J of Personality and Social Psychology, 1989; 57(6): 950-964.
- 19. Corey P W. Airway conductance and oxygen consumption changes associated with practice of transcendental meditation technique. University

of Colorado Medical centre, Denver Colorado, USA, 1973.

- 20. Wallace RK, Benson H and Wilson A. A wakeful hypometabolic physiologic state. Am J Physiol. 1971; 221: 795-9.
- 21. Farrow TJ. Physiological changes associated with transcendental consciousness- the state of least excitation of consciousness. Psychophysiology laboratory, 1975; MERU: Switzerland.
- 22. Spielberger C D, Gorsuch R L, Jacobs G A, Luschene R E, and Vagg P R. Manual for State Trait Anxiety Inventory. 1983, Palo Alto CA, Consulting Psychologist Press.
- 23. Malathi A, damodaran A. Stress due to Exams in Medical Students – Role of Yoga Ind J Physiol Pharmacol. 1999: 43(2): 218-224.

Fibroid Uterus - A Clinical Profile

Ramesh B H¹, Shashikala P², Doddikoppad M M³, Mallikarjuna Swamy C M⁴, Chandrasekhar H R⁵

¹Associate Professor, Department of Pathology, Mysore Medical College and Research Institute. Mysore ²Professor and Head, Department of Pathology. S. S. Institute of Medical Sciences and Research Centre Davangere ³Professor, Department of Pathology J.J.M.M.C. Davangere, ⁴Assistant Professor, Department of Pathology. S. S. Institute of Medical Sciences and Research Centre, Karnataka ⁵Professor, Department of Pathology J.J.M.M.C. Davangere, Karnataka

ABSTRACT

Background: Fibroid is the commonest tumor of the reproductive tract and frequently encountered problem in gynecological practice.

Aim and Objectives: To observe the frequency of uterine leiomyoma in relation to age, parity and clinical manifestations.

Material & Methods: Over a period of two years, 1827 hysterectomy specimen sent for histopathology was studied. Uteri with fibroids were included for the study. Clinical data including age, parity, menstrual pattern, presenting symptoms, surgical treatment history of these patients with fibroid was collected and analyzed.

Results: Hysterectomy specimens constituted 65.48% of the total gynecological specimen during the period of two years. Leiomyoma was diagnosed in 314 patients out of 1827 hysterectomies (17.18%). Greater frequency (83.45%) was found in late reproductive and perimenopausal years ie 4th and 5th decade with a mean age of 40.9 years. Most of the patients were parous (98.09%) with more than one child. Menorrhagia (46.17%) was the commonest symptom followed by dysmenorrhoea (22.09%). In 72.03% of cases uterus was between 6-12 weeks size.

Conclusion: Leiomyoma is the most common benign tumor of uterus occurring during reproductive age group. Incidence of leiomyoma is increasing in parous women. Patients with abnormal uterine bleeding have to be investigated to find out the exact etiology so that anemia due to prolonged blood loss is prevented and early therapeutic intervention prevents huge growth of the mass, thus preventing secondary complications.

Key words: Leiomyoma; Hysterectomy; age; Parity; Menorrhagia

INTRODUCTION

Uterine leiomyoma (also referred to as myoma, fibromyoma, or fibroid), is the most common benign neoplasm of the female reproductive tract. It represents the clonal expansion of a cell within the myometrium of the uterus. These benign tumors occur in up to 30% of symptomatic reproductive aged women, with the true prevalence estimated to be as high as 70%. The incidence peaks in the fourth decade and declines after menopause. Uterine leiomyoma is one of the leading

Correspondence Address: Dr Ramesh B H No 17, 3rd Cross, KN extension Yeshwantpur Bangalore-22 indications for hysterectomy. The clinical symptoms and severity usually depend upon the size, position and number of fibroids present. They are asymptomatic in more than 50% of the cases. Dysmenorrhea, abdominal pain, Abdominal mass, pressure symptoms, infertility and repeated miscarriages may be The presenting symptoms.^{1,23}

Their growth is considered to be dependent upon estrogens excess, as leiomyomas Contain more estrogen receptors than normal myometrium⁴ and they usually Regress after menopause. Other benign tumors of the organ are so rare that they Need only minimal discussion.

Though uterine leiomyomas are common, it is difficult to obtain much information regarding clinical and pathological aspects of it in Indian literature. This prompted the present study. The exact incidence is difficult to assess as most of the patients do not come to the hospital unless and until there is presence of progressive symptoms of some duration.

Most of the leiomyomas are believed to be asymptomatic when small and progress slowly. Unfortunately their symptomatology continues to be variable⁵.

Much attention has been focused on the association of leiomyomas with a state of hyperestrinism and as the factor responsible for their growth. Here we present an analysis of leiomyomas in relation to age, parity and clinical manifestations from a large series of hysterectomies.

MATERIAL AND METHODS

This is a descriptive study on patients with leiomyomas, diagnosed in hysterectomy specimen. Over a period of two years, 1827 hysterectomy specimen sent for histopathology were studied in detail both macroscopically and microscopically for the presence of leiomyomas. Uteri harboring leiomyomas were segregated and particulars of those patients regarding age, parity, clinical symptoms were collected from the case records and analyzed.

RESULTS

Gynecological surgical specimen constituted 26.41% (2790) of the total surgical specimen (10,562) received for microscopic diagnosis to the department of pathology during the study period. Of the 2790 gynecological specimen, hysterectomy specimen was 1827 (65.48%). Leiomyoma was diagnosed in 314 specimen (17.15%). which included three myomectomies.

Age (Figure 1): Age of these patients ranged from 21 to 70 years with most of the patients in 4^{th} (49.37%) and 5^{th} decade (34.08%). Only two patients were in 7^{th} decade. The mean age was 40.9 yrs.

Age range of 314 patients with leiomyoma



Parity (Figure 2): Of the 314 patients with leiomyomas, 308 patients (98.09%) were parous with more than one child and only 6 were nulliparous (1.91%). Seventeen patients had a single child (uniparous).



Symptomatology (Table 1): Menorrhagia (46.17%) was the commonest symptom followed by dymenorrhoea (22.29%), pain abdomen (12.74%) and mass per abdomen (14.01%).

Symptoms	No. of Cases	%
Menorrhagia	145	46.17
Dysmenorrhoea	70	22.09
Pain abdomen	40	12.74
Mass per abdomen	44	14.01
Prolapse	28	8.91
White discharge per vagina	24	7.64
Mass per vagina	5	1.59
Backache	7	2.22
Bladder disturbances	4	1.27
Metrorrhagia	20	6.36
Polymenorrhagia	10	3.18
Sterility	6	1.91
Fever	5	1.59
Amenorrhea	1	0.05
Total	314	100

Table 1. clinical Symptoms

Clinical assessment of uterine size: In 72.03% of cases, uterus was between 6-12 weeks size, as assessed clinically followed by uterine size of 12-20 weeks (8.04%) and with more than 20 wks in 8.04%. Atrophic uterus was found in only 2 (0.64 %) cases.

GROSS PATHOLOGY

Majority of leiomyomas were located in the uterus (96.6%) and the rest were in cervix (3.4%). In this study, of the 311 uteri, 274 (88.10%) uteri were grossly bulky,

35(11.2%) were normal in size and only 2(0.64%) were atrophic.

DISCUSSION

The present study estimated incidence rates for uterine leiomyomata from Hysterectomy

Specimen. Leiomyomas are benign neoplasms commonly encountered in gynecological practice⁶.

In our study; all the benign tumors were leiomyomas with an incidence of 17.15%. Incidence of Leiomyomas varies from 10 % to 77% in different studies done over many decades^{1,7}.

In the present study, majority of the leiomyomas were limited to reproductive age group with higher incidence (49.37%) observed between 31-40 years, similar to previous studies^{2,3}. The role of parity in the etiology of leiomyomas is still not clear. Leiomyomas are believed to be common in nulliparous or relatively infertile women⁶. In contrast in the present study, most patients were multiparous (92.98%), and only 1.9% was nulliparous and uniparous constituted 5.41% of cases. Chhabra & Jaiswal⁷ (82%), Achari & Khanam⁸ (87%) and Rosario Pinto⁹ (76.8%), also noted highest incidence in multiparous women and lowest incidence in nulliparous women in their studies.

The symptomatology continues to be variable. Many patients presented with more than one symptom. It is believed that symptomatology and severity usually depend on the size, number and location of leiomyomas^{8,9}. However majority remain symptomless and especially progress slowly. In the present study common presenting symptoms were menorrhagia (46.17%) followed by dysmenorrhoea (22.29%). Menorrhagia was the commonest clinical symptom as noted by Rosario pinto⁹ (37.9%). Mass per Abdomen was present in 14.01% patients, comparable to Rosario pinto⁹ (17.7%). Earlier studies report a higher incidence of patients presenting with mass per abdomen. Newer diagnostic techniques like ultrasonography are helpful to identify the lesion at an early stage, thus helping patients to take treatment before the mass grows to an extent that it becomes palpable per abdomen.

Menorrhagia does not occur in every case, but when the growths are deep intramural or submucous, it is a constant symptom. Increased blood loss often causes severe anemia. Excessive bleeding may be from increased surface of the endometrium or from thickened polypoidal endometrium. Multiple intramural growths by hindering effective uterine contractions result in prolonged & profuse blood loss¹⁰.

In the present study, abnormal uterine bleeding in the form of menorrhagia, metrorrhagia and polymenorrhagia was found in 55.73% of cases. Dysmenorrhoea due to irregular uterine contractions was found in 22.29% of cases. White discharge per vagina (WDPV) (7.64%) was caused by excessive secretion from hyperplastic mucus the endometrium.^{3,10} Bladder disturbances (1.27%) were due to cervical fibroids or those arising from lower part of the body getting impacted into the pelvic cavity, elongating & distorting the urethra & displacing the bladder upwards & stretching the urethra¹⁰. Majority of leiomyomas were uterine (96.6%) and the incidence of cervical leiomyomas was just 3.4%, similar to other studies^{8,911}.

Endometrial hyperplasia, adenomyosis & follicular cysts were some of the commonly associated pathological lesions^{8, 9}.

CONCLUSION

Leiomyoma is the most common benign tumor of uterus occurring during reproductive age group. Incidence of leiomyomas is increasing in parous women. Patients with abnormal uterine bleeding have to be investigated to find out the exact etiology so that anemia due to prolonged blood loss is prevented and early therapeutic intervention prevents huge growth of the mass, thus preventing secondary complications.

BIBLIOGRAPHY

- 1. William H. Parker, M.D: Etiology, symptomatology & diagnosis of uterine Myomas. J Reproductive Med. 2007. 87:725-736.
- 2. Buttram VC, Reiter RC. Uterine leiomyomata: Etiology, symptomatology & Management. Fertil Steril 1981. 36:433-445.
- 3. Iftikhar R. Modes of presentation of leiomyoma of uterus. Journal of Surgery Pakistan (International) 13 (3) July September 2008; 117-1120.
- Rein MS, Barbieri RL, and Friedman AJ. Progesterone: A critical role in Pathogenesis of uterine myomas. Am J Obst Gynecol 1995: 172(1)14-18.
- Chabra, S., and Ohwri Neenu.: Leiomyomas of uterus. A clinical study. J. of Obstet. & Gynaecol. Of India. 1993: 43(3): 436-439.
- Vollenhoven, B.J., Lawrence, A.S., and Healy, D.L: Uterine fibroids: a clinical Review. Br. J. of Obst. & Gynaecol. 1990. 97, 285-298.
- Chhabra, S., and Jaiswal, M, M.: Vaginal management of utero-cervical myomas. J. of Obstet. & Gynaecol. Of India. 1968:46: 260-263.

- 8. Achari., and Khanam, W.: Study of Endometrium and Ovaries in Fibromyoma. J of Obstet. & Gynaecol of India. 1965; 15: 356-362.
- 9. Rosario Pinto, Y.: Uterine fibromyomas. J. of Obstet. & Gynaecol. Of India. 1968; 18: 101-107.
- 10. Persaud, V., and Arjoon, P.D: Uterine Leiomyoma: Incidence of Degenerative change and a

correlation of associated symptoms. Obstetrics & Gynecology March, 1970(3):432-436.

11. Cramer SF, Patel A .The frequency of uterine leiomyomas. Am J clin pathol 1990? Oct 94(4) 435 -438.

Prevalence of Anemia and Impact of Weekly Iron-folic Acid Supplementation on School Children in Urban Slums of Haryana, India

Ramesh Verma*, Meena**, Pardeep Khanna***, Varun**** *Assistant Professor, **Associate Professor, ***Senior Professor & Head **** Senior Resident, Department of Community Medicine, Pt. B.D. Sharma PGIMS, Rohtak.

INTRODUCTION

Nutritional anemia is a condition in which the haemoglobin content of the blood is lower than normal as a result of deficiency of one or more essential nutrients, regardless of the cause of such deficiency. The usual causes of nutritional anemia include inadequate supply of iron, folic acid or vitamin B12¹. Anemia in children, especially iron deficiency, is the commonest health problem in many developing countries with an estimated prevalence of 43%². There is convincing evidence that iron deficiency causes impaired growth, developmental delay, behavioural abnormalities and impairs cognitive function and school performance³. Other health consequences include reduced immunity, increased morbidity, increased susceptibility to heavy metal (including lead) poisoning4.It has also been associated with functional abnormalities of lymphocytes and neutrophils⁵⁻⁶.

Iron deficiency anemia (IDA) occurs mainly because of:

inadequate dietary intake, particulary of iron rich foods and increased body loss due to worm infestation (hookworm, roundworm). Average indian diet is generally inadequate in terms of iron, proteins, calcium and overall calories. Moreover, the non-haem content of cereal-based diets has much less bio-availability (5-10%) as compared to haem iron (25-30%) present in the non-vegetarian diet (meat, fish etc.)⁷.

It is true that National Nutrition Anemia Control Program (NACP) was launched in the country in 1970 but the benefits of this programme have not been

Correspondence:

Dr. Ramesh Verma 239, Subhash Nagar, Rohtak-124001 (Haryana) Ph.: 01262-210057 (R) Mobile: 0-94163-81012 e-mail: dr.rameshverma@yahoo.co.in reached to the target population like children, adolescent girls, pregnant women etc. This is due to the lack of operational feasibility to estimate the hemoglobin levels, orientation of field workers and acceptance of the programme by the beneficiaries⁸.

AIMS AND OBJECTIVES

To find out the prevalence and effect of weeky supplementation of iron- folic acid on anemia

MATERIAL AND METHODS

The present intervention study was carried out from March 2009 to September 2009. All children (n=490) in the age group of 6-11 years from government primary schools of urban slums (field practice area of PGIMS, Rohtak) were covered. The blood samples for haemoglobin estimation were obtained by finger prick method using sterile needles. 20 microliters of blood sample was collected in 5 ml Drabkin solution. The baseline haemoglobin estimation was done by Cyanmethaemoglobin method. Haemoglobin cut-off level for labelling anaemia as per WHO guidelines was taken as 11.5g%⁹.

After obtaining baseline data of haemoglobin levels, the intervention was carried out. A tablet of Albendazole (400mg) was given one week prior to supplementation for deworming and supervised weekly IFA (20mg of elemental iron and 0.1mg folic acid) therapy were administered to all children for six months. The invesigator himself gave these IFA tablets by visiting the school once a week. The concerned class teacher was assigned the duty to ensure consumption of IFA tablets by children who were absent on those days. After six months, the repeat haemoglobin estimation was done to assess the impact of intervention in school children.

After collection, the whole data was complied, analysed and appropriate statistical tests were applied using SPSS software.

RESULT

Degree of anemia	Non-anemic		Mild		Moderate		Severe		Total	
	Ν	%	Ν	%	Ν	%	Ν	%	Ν	%
Before intervention	114	23.2	254	51.8	116	23.7	06	1.3	490	100
After intervention	282	57.6	174	35.5	34	6.9	00	0.0	490	100

Table I. Degree of Anemia Before and After Intervention in 6-11years Children (N-490)

X²= 183.8 df=6 p<.000

Overall prevalence of anemia among children was found to be 76.3% with mild, moderate and severe anemia being 51.8%,23.7% and 1.3% respectively.

After intervention the prevalence of anemia decreased to 42.4% (33.9%). Also the degree of anemia

decreased significantly. The non anemic became 57.6% from 23.2% while mild and moderate anemic decreased from 51.8% to 35.5% and 23.7% to 6.9% respectively. No child was found in severe grade after intervention.

Degree of anemia	Before intervention			After intervention		
	Ν	%	Mean ± SD	Ν	%	Mean ± SD
Non anemic	114	23.2	12.61 ± 0.64	282	57.6	12.21 ± 0.76
Mild	254	51.8	10.68 ± 0.42	174	35.5	10.61± 0.40
Moderate	116	23.7	8.91 ± 0.58	34	6.9	09.20 ± 0.42
Severe	06	1.3	$6.50 \pm .00$	00	0.0	0.0 ± 0.0
Total	490	100	10.6 ± 1.44	490	100	11.4 ± 1.15

Table II. Mean Haemoglobin Before and After Intervention in 6-11 Years Children (N-490)

Z=16.85 P < 0.000

There was rise in mean haemoglobin concentration from 10.6 \pm 1.44 g/dl to 11.4 \pm 1.15 g/dl after intervention. The rise in mean haemoglobin before and after intervention (0.80g/dl) was found to significant.

DISCUSSION

A reduction in the frequency of iron supplementation to once or twice weekly is being widely examined in developing countries on the assumption that the side effects of oral iron will decrease and that the reduction in administered iron will be offset by a lesser inhibition in absorption from iron taken on the previous day.

The prevalence of anaemia in urban slum school children aged 6 to 11 yr was found to be 76.3 percent in the prevalenc of anaemia in 6-12 yr old children to be 36 per cent¹⁰, while Verma M et al found 77 % prevalence among 5-15 yr old urban school children of Punjab⁶. The National Family Health Survey –II conducted in 1998-99, documented that about 74% children between the ages 6-35 months were anemic¹¹. The prevalence was as high as 93 per cent in children from Varanasi by Aggarwal etal.¹² Murthy NK et al found the prevalence of anemia to be 81 % among school going girls in Tamilnadu¹³. The variations in the prevalence of anaemia in other studies could be explained on the

basis of heterogeneity of the studied population, dietary habits, different nutritional status and incidence of worm infestation in a defined geographical area.

After weekly iron supplementation, the anemia decreased from 76.3% to 42.4% among school children in the present study. Kotecha PV et al observed that anemia decreased from 74.7% to 53.2% after weekly iron supplementation in children¹⁴. Meenakshi et al conducted a study among adolescent girls and found a significant decrease (6.8%) in prevalence of anaemia after biweekly iron supplementation¹⁵.

The mean haemoglobin increased from 10.6 ± 1.44 g/dl to 11.4 ± 1.15 g/dl after weekly iron supplementation in the present study. Similar findings were observed by Aggarwal KN et al and Shobha S & Sharada D¹⁶⁻¹⁷. Kapur D et al and Hall A et al also found that weekly iron supplementation significantly decreased the anemia in school children. They found that weekly iron supplementation took longer time to raise haemoglobin, but was found to be effective as well as practical ¹⁸⁻¹⁹.

Sunil Gomer et al also observed among pregnant women that equal rise of hemoglobin and hematocrit values in the weekly supplemented group as compared to daily supplemented therapy²⁰. Liu et al reported that the compliance was nine times higher with the weekly iron supplementation than that with daily dose in children²¹.

Tee ES et al conducted a study on Malaysian school girls and concluded that long term weekly iron-folate improved their iron stores and Hb concentration²².

Shah BK et al also observed that weekly supplementation of iron folic acid on adolescent Nepalese girl increased significantly the mean haemocrait levels²³.

CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATIONS

In India, the National Programme for Prevention and Control of Anemia focuses on pregnant women and young children less than 5 years. However, the status of anemia in children is not well documented. Anemia in children therefore continues to be accorded a very low priority. School health services should be regularized and promoted for early intervention and prevention of long term sequelae of anemia. Amongst the intervention measures, it is important to take up sustained health education, provision of safe drinking water and improvement in environmental sanitation. It would be also useful to teach them about personal hygiene and conduct health education like healthy eating habits especially consumption of iron rich foods (green leafy vegetables) and vitamin C rich foods and discouraging intake of tea afte meals through 'School Health Projects'. Topics on health and nutrition should be made an essential part of the school curriculum. Aanganwari workers, members of Mahila Swasthya Sanghs and Mahila Mandals and Community Volunteers should be involved in these programmes to promote the nutritional status of children.

It is concluded that once-weekly iron supplementation is as effective as daily supplementation for the treatment of iron deficiency anemia. Moreover, weekly iron supplementation is cost effective and has no or fewer side-effects.

However, supervised weekly iron and folic acid supplementation is more effective and helps to lower the prevalence of anemia in children.

REFERENCES

- 1. WHO (1968) Techn. Rep. Ser. No. 405
- 2. DeMaeyer EM, Dallman P, Gurney JM, Hallberg L, Sood SK, Srikantia SG. Preventing and controlling iron deficiency anaemia through primary health care. Geneva : World Health Organization: 1989 p. 8-9.
- 3. Preventing iron deficiancy in women and children, technical consensus on key issuses. 7-9

october 1998, UNICEF, UNU, WHO, MI, Technical group International Nutrition Foundation, USA 1998

- 4. Scrimashaw N. 1990. Functional Significance of Iron Deficiency. *In:* Functional Significance of Iron Deficiency. Third Annual Nutrition Workshop. Eds. Enwonwu, C, Meharry Medical College, Nashville, TN, USA, 1990, pp 1-14.
- 5. Demaeyer EM. Preventing and Controlling Iron deficiency anemia through primary health care. A guide for health administrators and programme managers. Geneva: World Health Oraganisation: 1989. p.14
- 6. Verma M, Chhatwal J, Kaur G. Prevalence of anaemia among urban school children of Punjab. Indian Pediatr 1998; 35 : 1181-1186.
- Park K. Nutrition and Health. In: Park's Textbook of Preventive and Social medicine. 19th ed. Jabalpur. Banarsidas Bhanot Publishers; 2007. p.
- 8. Indian Council of Medical Research. Evaluation of the National Nutritional Anemia Prophylaxis Program. New Delhi. Indian Council of Medical Research, 1989.
- 9. WHO. Iron deficiency anemia, assessment, prevention and control- A guide for programme manager. UNICEF, United Nation, WHO;2001.
- 10. DeMaeyer E, Adiels-Tegman M. The prevalence of anaemia in the world. World Health Stat Q 1985; 38 : 302-316.
- 11. Nutrition and the prevalence of anaemia : anaemia among children. In : National Family Health Survey (NFHS-2), 1998-99, International Institute for Population Sciences, Mumbai, India; 2000 p. 271-273.
- 12. Agarwal DK, Upadhyay SK, Agarwal KN, Singh RD, Tripathi AM. Anaemia and mental functions in rural primary school children. Ann Trop Paediatr 1989; 9 : 194-198.
- 13. Murthy NK, Srinivasan S, Rani P. Anemia and endurance capacity among children and women of 6-26 years. The Ind J Nutr Dietet. 1989, 26:319-325.
- 14. Kotecha PV, Karkar P, Nirupam S. Summary Report: Adolescent girl anemia control programme. Government of Gujrat (Deptt. Of Health & Education). UNICEFF;2004: 1-32.
- Meenakshi et al. Study of prevalence of anemia & impact of intervention on school going adolescent girls in a rural block of Haryana; 2005p 34
- 16. Agarwal KN, Gomber S, Bisha H, Som M. Anemia prophylaxis in adolescent school girls by weekly or daily iron-folate supplementation. Indian Pediatr. 2003; 40(4) :296-300
- 17. Shobha S, Sharada D. Efficacy of twice weekly iron supplementation in nemic adolescent girls. Indian Paediatr. 2003 40 (12) : 1186-90.

- Kapur D, Sharma S, Agarwal KN. Effectiveness of nutrition education, iron supplementation or both on iron status in children. India Pediatr. 2003; 40 (12): 1131-1144.
- Hall A, Roschnik N, Ouatta F, Toure I, Maiga F, Sack M et al. A randomised trial in Mali of the effectiveness of weekly iron supplements given by teacher on haemoglobin concentration of school children. Public Health Nutr 2002; 5(3): 413-418
- 20. Sunil Gomber, K.N. Agarwal, Charu Mahajan and N. Agarwal. Impact of daily vs weekly hematinic supplementaion on anemia in pregnant women. India Pediatr 2002; 39:339-346
- 21. Liu XN, Kang J, Zhao L, Viteri FE. Intermittent iron supplementation in chinese pre-school children is efficient and safe. Food and Nutrition Bulletin. 1995;16: 139-1s46
- 22. Tee ES, Kandiah M, Awin N, Chong SM, Satgunasigam N, Kamarudin L et al. School administered weekly iron- folate supplement improve haemoglobin and ferritin concentration in Malaysian adolescent girls.American J Clin Nutr. 1999; 69:1249-1256.
- 23. Shah BK, Gupta P. Weekly vs daily iron and folic acid supplemenation in adolescent Napalese girl. Arch Peditr Adolesc Med. 2002; 156(2): 131-135

Study of the Third Head of Biceps Brachii Muscle in South Indian Population

Ravi Kumar V.*, Siri A.M.**, Rajasekhar H.V.***, Vijayakumar B. Jatti****

*Assistant Professor, **Assistant Professor, ***Professor, Department of Anatomy, J.J.M. Medical College, Davangere, ****Assistant Professor, Department of Forensic Medicine, SSIMS & RC, Davangere, Karnataka

ABSTRACT

Biceps brachii muscle is a muscle of the flexor compartment of arm. It arises by two heads – a long head and a short head. In terms of number and morphology of its heads of origin, it is most one of the most variable muscles in the body. Most common variation being the presence of third head of biceps muscle, as present in our study. In this study 64 arms from 32 South Indian cadavers were studied, accessory head of biceps was found in 4 out of 64 arms studied.

The accessory (third) heads of the biceps muscle can cause compression of neurovascular structures of upper limbs. Usually the third head of biceps is an incidental finding during dissections and is rarely detected in clinical studies unless it is symptomatic. The presence of accessory head of biceps can cause various difficulties to surgeons in the surgical procedures of arm and may lead to iatrogenic injuries. Hence the knowledge of such type of variation is important for academic interests as well as for surgeons and physiotherapists.

Key words: Third head of biceps, Accessory head of biceps, Variant of biceps muscle.

INTRODUCTION

Biceps brachii is a muscle of anterior compartment of arm. By its value itself its clear that it has 2 heads. It is characteristically, described as a two headed muscle that originates proximally by a long head and a short head. Short head arises as a thick flattened tendon from the coracoid apex, together with coracobrachialis muscle. Long head arises as a long narrow tendon from the supraglenoid tubercle of scapula¹.

The two heads fuse in the upper half of the arm to form the bulk of biceps muscle. The muscle ends as a flattened tendon, which passes ventrally, turns backwards and laterally to get inserted into the rough posterior area of the radial tuberosity. The biceps brachii muscle is innervated by musculocutaneous nerve (C5 and C6 spinal cord segments) and supplied by brachial and anterior circumflex humeral arteries. The mode of insertion of biceps muscle makes it a powerful supinator of forearm².

Corresponding Author: Dr. Ravikumar V., Assistant Professor Department of Anatomy, J.J.M. Medical College, Davangere. E-mail: drravi_v@rediffmail.com It has been reported in 10% cases the third head of biceps may arise from the superomedial part of brachialis and is attached to bicipital aponeurosis or medial side of bicipital tendon. Three different type of origin of third head of biceps have been described, they are superior, inferomedial and inferolateral varieties³. The supernumery heads of biceps brachii have clinical importance as they may confuse a surgeon who performs surgical procedures on the arm and may lead to iatrogenic injuries or they may cause compression of important neurovascular structures of upper limb⁴.

MATERIALS AND METHODS

The present study was undertaken in Department of Anatomy, JJM Medical College, Davangere where 32 (n = 64), formalin dried cadavers were dissected.

The upper extremities of 32 cadavers (n=64) were dissected irrespective of age and sex for undergraduate teaching purpose. The arm was dissected carefully and the biceps muscle was displayed along its whole extent. The other related structures of the arm were also demonstrated. The details of the additional heads of biceps in 4 upper limbs were examined and photographs were taken accordingly.

RESULTS

Among the 32 cadavers (n=64) studied third head of biceps were found in 4 upper limbs. They were designated with numbers as case 1 to case 4. The photographs were taken and the related structures of the arm were also demonstrated.

Case-1

The third head of biceps took its origin from inferomedial aspect of arm left side distal to insertion of corabobrachialis. Later on it divided into 2 slips medial and lateral slips. Medial slip merged with medial intermuscular septum of arm; where as lateral slip was joining the tendon of biceps above the elbow. It was supplied by branches of musculocataneous nerve (Figure 1).



Fig. 1: Photograph showing the third head of biceps (TH) and its two slips with the arrows. Medial slip joining the medial intermuscular septum and the lateral slip joining the biceps tendon. (BM- Biceps muscle. BA-Brachial artery. MN- Median nerve.)

Case-2

The third head of biceps was found in left upper limb. It was found to arise from inferolateral aspect of arm between the insertion of coracabrachialis and brachialis muscle. It joined with the biceps tendon around 5 cms above the bend of elbow. It was supplied by twigs from musculocutaneous nerve (Figure 2).



Fig. 2: Photograph showing the third head of biceps (TH) taking origin from the lateral aspect of the humerus (Inferolateral variety of origin). The third head merged with the biceps tendon. (BM-Biceps muscle. BA-Brachial artery. MN-Median nerve.)

Case-3

The accessory head of biceps in this case was found in left upper limb. The third head of biceps took origin as a slender slip of muscle on the inferomedial aspect of arm distal to the insertion of coracobradialis muscle. Distally the muscle slip joined the biceps tendon 2 cm above the bend of the elbow. It was supplied by musculocutaneous nerve. (Figure 3).



Fig. 3: Photogrph showing the third head of biceps (TH) with an arrow. The accessory head of Biceps was very slender in this specimen. (BM-Biceps muscle. BA-Brachial artery, MN- Median nerve)

Case-4

The accessory head was found in an left upper limb. It had a wide bony origin on the inferomedial aspect of arm both above and below the insertion of coracobrachialis muscle. It joined the biceps tendon around 5cms above the bend of the elbow and was supplied by musculocutaneous nerve.

The breadth of the accessory head at its widest part was 12 cms and total length of muscle -16 cms. (Figure 4).



Fig. 4: Photogrph showing the third head of biceps (TH) with an arrow. The accessory head of Biceps was very wide in its origin in this specimen. (BM- Biceps muscle. BA-Brachial artery. MN- Median nerve.)

DISCUSSION

The occurance of third head of biceps has been reported by various authors. The present study

highlights the occurance of third head of biceps in the south Indian population and an effort has been made to compare this study with previous studies.

Grays anatomy reported the occurance of third head in 10% of cases¹. Biceps muscle is extremely variable muscle in terms of number and morphology of its heads of origin.Three headed biceps brachii muscle is a more common variant among the supernumery heads of biceps which can be from three to seven heads of origin the prevalence of third heads is between 7.5-18.3% with no radial and gender differences⁵.

Third head of biceps is seen in 8% of Chinese, 10% in European whites, 18% Japanese⁶, 20.5% in South African blocks, 8.3% in South African whites⁷, 15% in Turkish⁸ and 7.1% in Indian population⁹. If the supernumery head is relatively large it may provide additional strength to the biceps brachii as reported by Switter and Carmicheal¹⁰. This finding is similar as found in case 4 (Figure 4) of our study where the third head had very wide origin.

Rodriguez³ classified the supernumery heads based on their origin and location into superior, inferomedial and inferolateral heads of origin. The inferomedial head was observed in 31 out of 350 arms (9%) and therefore more common variant. Superior humeral head of origin was found in 5 cases (1.5%) and inferolateral head was least common variant seen in 10ut of 350 arms (0.3%). Similarly in our study we found inferolateral head of origin in one case i.e., case 2 (fig. 2).

CONCLUSION

In our study 64 upper limbs were studied for the presence of third head of biceps. In 4 arms out of 64 we found the presence of third head of biceps. The prevalence being 6.25% which is nearer to the earlier studies in Indian population by Rai R (7.1%) 9.

Our study highlights the rarest site of origin of occurance of third head of biceps from the inferolateral aspect of arm (Figure 2) which accounts to only 0.3% according to the study of Rodriguez. Also our study is unique where in which in one of the specimen (Figure 1), the third head divided into two slips medial and lateral slip before insertion, further the medial slip merges with medial intermuscular septum of arm and lateral slip joines the biceps tendon. This finding again is very rare and was not reported by earlier workers and articles reviewed. The presence of third head of biceps this important to know because it can compress the median nerve, brachial artery because of its close relationship as seen in specimen 1 of our study (Figure 1). The knowledge of this type of variation is important for surgeons and orthopedicians for the surgeries of arm. Thus the present study was an attempt to know the accessory head of biceps muscle and highlight the clinical importance of it from academic and surgical point of view.

REFERENCES

- 1. Williams PL, Bannister LH, Berry MM, et al eds., Gray's Anatomy, the Anatomical basis of medicine and surgery, 38th edn, Edingburgh, EIBS Churchill Livingstone; 1995; 843.
- 2. Johnson D, Ellis H, Pectoral girdle and upper limb, gray's Anatomy, 39th edn, Elsevier, Churchill livingstone, 2005; 853.
- 3. Rodriguez-Niedenfuhr M, Vazquez T, Choi D, Parbin I, Sanadu Supernumery humeral heads of biceps brachii muscle revisited. Clin Anat 2003: 16: 197-203.
- 4. Poudel PP, Bhattrai C, Study on the Supernumery heads of biceps brachii muscle in Nepaleese, Nepal Med Coll J 2009, 11 (2) 96-98.
- 5. Vijayabhaskar P., Baral P, Vaishya R, Shrestha R.N., Supernumery head of biceps brachii; A rare case in Nepaleese population, Kathmandu Univ, Med. Journal (2008) Vol. 6, No. 2, Issue 22, 225-227.
- 6. Bergman RA., Thompson SA. Afifi.A.K., Saadeh FA, Compendium of Human Anatomic Variation, 1st edn Baltimore; Urban and Schwarzenberg, 1988: 11.
- 7. Asvat R: Candler P, Sarmiento EE-High incidence of third head of biceps brachii in South African population J. Anat 1993; 182; 101-104.
- 8. Kopuz C, Squerak B; Ozbenli S on the incidence of third head of biceps brachii in Turkish neonates and adults, Kaibogaku Zasshi 1999; 74; 301-305.
- 9. Rai R, Ranade AV, Prabhu LV, Pai M.M. Prabash -Third head of biceps brachii in an Indian Population Singapore Med J; 2007; 48 (10): 929-931.
- 10. Switter MG and Carmicheal SW-Bilateral three headed biceps brachii muscle. Anat Anz, 1980; 148; 346-349.

BIND Syndrome—A Life Threatening Sequel to Kernicterus

Mittal Sachin¹, V Pramod G², L Ashok³

¹Leturer, ²Reader, ³Professor and Head, Department of Oral Medicine and Radiology, Bapuji Dental College and Hospital, Davangere, Karnataka, India

ABSTRACT

Bilirubin Induced Neurological Dysfunction Syndrome (BIND) Syndrome is a condition caused by bilirubin toxicity to the basal ganglia, hippocampus and various brainstem nuclei. In the acute phase, severely jaundiced infants become lethargic, hypotonic and suck poorly. If the hyperbilirubinemia is not treated, the infant becomes hypertonic and may develop a fever and a high-pitched cry.^[11] The hypertonia is manifested by backward arching of the neck (retrocollis) and trunk (opisthotonus). Surviving infants usually develop a severe form of choreoathetoid cerebral palsy, hearing loss, dental dysplasia, paralysis of upward gaze and, less often, intellectual and other handicaps.^[2] Hereby presenting a rare case report of a 9 year old female patient having BIND Syndrome with typical dental manifestations.

Key words: BIND Syndrome, Kernicterus, Hyperbilirubinemia, Dental Dysplasia, Cerebral Palsy

INTRODUCTION

Parents of a nine year old female patient reported to Department of Oral Medicine, Bapuji Dental College with the complaint of multiple decayed teeth in the upper teeth region of the patient and wished to get them restored. The medical history of the patient dated back to third day post-partum of full term normal delivery, when the patient developed jaundice and hyperbilirubinemia which was more than 20 mg/dL. The patient had delayed milestones, she was not able to speak or hear since birth. The patient had abnormal movement and posture of the limbs. Patient does not have bowel and bladder control, child eats if food is placed in the mouth but never shows active intentional movements. Patient frequently has febrile episodes and cough. There is no history of seizures.

The parents of the patient had consanguineous marriage. The blood group of the mother is "O" Rh positive whereas that of the patient is "A" Rh positive. Two year old male sibling is normal.

On general physical examination the patient is poorly built and nourished. There is generalized

Dr. Sachin Mittal

wasting and rigid tonicity of the muscles. Superficial abdominal reflexes and deep tendon reflexes could not be elicited due to rigidity. Gross motor milestones like neck holding, sitting and standing without support not achieved. Milestone of sitting and standing with support is that of two years normal child. Fine motor milestones are not achieved. There is exaggerated lumbar lordotic curvature and bowing of the trunk (opisthotonus) and backward arching of the neck (retrocollis). Severe mental retardation was noted.

The patient weighs 9 kgs, height 90 cms and Body Mass Index (BMI) of 11kg/m². Respiratory rate was 32 cycles per minute and blood pressure 90/80 mm of Hg.

On extra oral examination patient is dolico-cephalic and dolico-facial with frontal bossing. Emaciation of the face is seen. Depressed nasal bridge is seen. The patient has paralyses of upward and downward gaze. Rigidity of the neck and facial musculature noted. On intra oral examination patient exhibited involuntary movements of the tongue. On examination of hypoglossal nerve, tongue spasticity was noted. Patient has a complete set of deciduous teeth with all permanent first molars. Teeth show rampant caries and generalized enamel hypoplasia. A provisional diagnosis of kernicterus was made based on medical history and clinical examination.

Hematological examination reveals Hb 10.1 gm%, ESR 26 mm/1st hour and normocytic hypochromic

Correspondence Address:

Department of Oral Medicine and Radiology, Bapuji Dental College and Hospital, Davangere, Karnataka-577004 E-mail: sachin2627@yahoo.co.in



Fig. 1: Dolicocephalic, dolicofacial and frontal bossing

anemia. Unconjugated bilirubin of 0.5 mg/dl and albumin and globulin ratio of 1.2. Auditory examination by "Brainstem Evoked Response Audiometry" (BERA) test revealed profound bilateral peripheral sensorineural hearing loss.

Patient was then referred to pediatrician who cross examined the patient and arrived at the final diagnosis of BIND syndrome.

DISCUSSION

The syndrome of Bilirubin induced neurological dysfunction (BIND) refers to a wide spectrum of



Fig. 2: Retrocollis, opisthotonus and generalized hypertonia of the muscles

disorders caused by severe hyperbilirubinemia that includes kernicterus. The common insult in all cases of BIND is a total serum bilirubin level that exceeds the infant's neuroprotective defenses and results in neuronal injury, primarily in the basal ganglia, central and peripheral pathways, and hippocampus brain stem nuclei for oculomotor function and cerebellum.^[1] It is a common complication of hyperbilirubinemia associated with Rh erythroblastosis fetalis and, occasionally, ABO hemolytic disease.^[3] Bilirubin toxicity manifests as hypotonia followed by hypertonia and/or opisthotonus or retrocollis⁴.



Fig. 3: Rampant caries

Risk factors for severe hyperbilirubinemia include Rh and ABO incompatibility, glucose-6-phosphate dehydrogenase (G-6-PD) deficiency.^[5]Serum bilirubin levels of ≥ 20 mg/dL pose a high risk for kernicterus, and represent a medical emergency; severe kernicterus is often fatal, and characterized by lethargy, poor feeding, hypertonicity, seizures and apnea; survivors have sequelae in the form of dental dysplasia, cerebral palsy, hearing loss, severe jaundice, lethargy, poor feeding, choreoathetoid cerebral palsy, mental retardation, sensorineural hearing loss, gaze paresis.^[6]



Fig. 4: Generalized enamel hypoplasia

The classic signs of bilirubin encephalopathy in the severely hyperbilirubinemic term infant include increasing hypertonia, especially of extensor muscles, with retrocollis(backward arching of the neck) and opisthotonus(backward arching of the back), or both, in association with varying degrees of drowsiness, poor feeding, hypotonia, and alternating tone. The early presenting signs and symptoms of BIND can be described in terms of mental status, muscle tone, and cry⁷.

The chronic, irreversible bilirubin encephalopathy in its various presentations may include extrapyramidal movement disorders (dystonia chorea and athetosis), gaze abnormalities, auditory disturbances (especially sensorineural hearing loss with central processing disorders and/or auditory neuropathy), and enamel dysplasia of the deciduous teeth⁸.

Approximately 55-65% patient of BIND syndrome present with these features. In early stage of BIND hypertonia and retrocollis, which increase in severity and are usually accompanied by a shrill cry and an unexplained irritability alternating with increasing lethargy⁸.

Visual abnormalities: Ocular movements are affected, most commonly resulting in upward gaze abnormality, although horizontal gaze abnormalities and gaze palsies can also be observed. These deficits result from damage to the corresponding cranial nerve nuclei in the brain stem⁶.

Auditory abnormalities: Hearing abnormalities are the most consistent feature of chronic bilirubin encephalopathy and can develop in patients who show none of the other characteristic features. Auditory disturbances are almost always present and are both central (brainstem) and peripheral (auditory nerve) in origin. The most common abnormality is highfrequency hearing loss, which can range from mild to severe.^[6] These deficits can result from damage both to the cochlear nuclei in the brain stem and to the auditory nerve, which appear to be exquisitely sensitive to the toxic effects of bilirubin, even at relatively low levels⁸.

Some degree of dental enamel hypoplasia and multiple carious teeth can be observed in about threequarters of the patients with BIND⁸. Advanced signs are marked by cessation of feeding, seizures, fever, and coma. Death from acute kernicterus is due to respiratory failure and progressive coma or intractable seizures⁹.

Patient's history of post-partum jaundice, parents having consanguineous marriage, mother having "O" blood group and patient having "A" and clinical examination revealing mental retardation, delayed milestones, generalized hypertonia, wasting of muscles, retrocollis, opisthotonus, paralysis of upward and downward gaze, sensorineural hearing impairment, involuntary tongue movements and dental enamel hypoplasia strongly favors diagnosis of BIND Syndrome.

REFERENCES

- 1. Van PR. Diagnosis of kernicterus in the neonatal period. Pediatrics 1969; 28: 870-874.
- Volpe JJ. Bilirubin and brain injury: Neurology of the Newborn, 4th edition Philadelphia: WB Saunders; 2001. 490-514.
- 3. American Academy of Pediatrics Practice Parameter. Management of hyperbilirubinemia in the healthy term newborns. Pediatrics 1994; 94: 558-565.
- Johnson L, Brown AK, Bhutani VK. BIND: A clinical score for bilirubin induced neurologic dysfunction in newborns. Pediatr Suppl 1999; 104: 746-749.
- Washington EC, Ector W, Abboud M, Ohning B, Holding KR. Hemolytic jaundice due to G6PD deficiency causing kernicterus in a newborn female. South Med J. 1995; 88: 776-779
- 6. Shapiro SM. Definition of the clinical spectrum of kernicterus and bilirubin-induced neurologic dysfunction (BIND). J Perinatol. Jan 2005; 25(1): 54-59.
- Johnson LH, Brown AK, Bhutani VK. Systembased approach to management of neonatal jaundice and prevention of kernicterus. J Pediatr 2002; 140: 396-403.
- 8. Maisels MJ, Newman TB. Bilirubin and neurologic dysfunction: Do we need to change what we are doing? Pediatr Res 2001; 50: 677-679.
- 9. AAP Subcommittee on Neonatal Hyperbilirubinemia. Neonatal jaundice and kernicterus. Pediatrics 2001; 108: 763-765.

A Correlative Study of Gingivitis and Alveolar Bone Loss in Multiparity

* Zia Sultana, **Sabyasachi Saha

*Reader, Department of Periodontology and Implantology, **Professor & Head, Department of Preventive and Community Dentistry, Sardar Patel Postgraduate Institute of Dental & Medical Sciences, Lucknow. U.P.

Abstract

Aim: To evaluate any possible correlation between gingivitis and alveolar bone loss in multiparity

Material and Method: 50 non-pregnant and 50 pregnant subjects each were subjected to clinical examination for plaque and gingivitis of all the teeth using Loe and Silness index. Roentgenographic examination of maxillary and mandibular central incisors and right and left maxillary and mandibular 1st molars was done at random.

Results: Irrespective of pregnancy or non pregnant state gingivitis and plaque exhibit a strong correlation with time. The level of gingivitis has no effect on the alveolar - bone loss during or after pregnancy.

Conclusion: Gingival changes associated with pregnancy is due to the effects of hormonal changes and even more, so due to multiparity.

INTRODUCTION

Periodontal Changes in pregnant women have been reported in the literature before the discovery of female sex hormones¹.

Changes in the gingival tissues during pregnancy have seen termed as "Pregnancy Gingivitis". During this period the gingiva may appear hyperemic and enlarged and bleed frequently during brushing or on external manipulation².

Gingivitis is aggravated during pregnancy due to alteration of endocrine function, conditioned by local irritative factors, or modified by systemic disturbance.^{3,4} Age and parity were also found to affect the gingival conditions of pregnant women. Additional factors like socio- economic status, nutrition, mental stress and oral hygiene⁵ were also found to play an important role in aggravating the gingival condition during pregnancy. In pregnancy, though all the hormones are affected, but the major changes are in

Corresponding Address Dr. Sabyasachi Saha Professor & Head, Department of Preventive and Community Dentistry, Sardar Patel Postgraduate Institute of Dental & Medical Sciences, Raebarelli Road, Uthrathia Lucknow-226025. U.P. the female sex steroids - estrogen, progesterone and gonadotropins³. The correlation of the increased inflammatory state of the sex steroids showed that these homones influence the inflammation of the gingival tissues.

Tooth mobility⁶ changes have also been reported during pregnancy. It has been suggested that increased tooth mobility during pregnancy was not brought about by alteration of the alveolar bone but merely by changes in the periodontal membrane⁷.

The effects of pregnancy on the periodontal membrane and tooth supporting alveolar bone have rarely been investigated. Therefore a study was conducted to determine if their is any correlation between alveolar bone loss and gingivitis in multiparity.

AIM

To evaluate any possible correlation between gingivitis and alveolar bone loss in multiparity.

MATERIAL AND METHOD

A statistically designed sample, comprising of 100 females, both pregnant and non-pregnant, in the age group of 18-45 years was drawn from the Queen Mary's Hospital and Dental Out Patient Department of KGMC, Lucknow.

The sample was divided into 2 groups which constituted the control and the experimental group of 50 non-pregnant and 50 pregnant subjects each.

The experimental (pregnant) sample was divided into 2 sub groups having 25 subjects in each, depending upon the frequency of pregnancy experience as under:

- 1. Gp IA 1st Pregnancy
- 2. Gp IIA More than 2 Pregnancy experiences

For each experimental (pregnant) group there was a corresponding control group depending upon the non - pregnant females having lesser frequency of pregnant experience namely:

- 1. Gp IB No pregnancy experience
- 2. Gp II B Not more than 2 pregnancy experiences

Only healthy subjects were included in the study. Care was taken to exclude all the cases having acute diseases, chronic debilitating diseases, anterior traumatic bite, severe attrition, malocclusion and excessive decay. The 3rd molar was not considered.

The selected cases were subjected to clinical examination of all the teeth. Roentgenographic examination of maxillary and mandibular central incisors. and right and left maxillary and mandibular 1st molars was done at random. The clinical assessment of gingivitis and plaque was made by gingivitis and plaque index system proposed by Loe and Silness⁸ respectively.

RADIOGRAPHIC INTERPRETATIONS

Alveolar bone loss was measured as percentage of "maximum bone loss", on basis of Herulf's investigation and the criteria adopted by Oliv Schei and Waerhaugh,⁹ the alveolar crest was considered to be of optimum height when it was 1 mm or less from the cemento-enamel junction.

A measuring gadget was made on a translucent plastic rule. A line was made 1mm from the margin corresponding to the normal distance from the alveolar crest to the cemento-enamel junction. Close to the end of the baseline a point was chosen as center and from this center 10 radii with exactly the same distance between each of them were made. The base, as well, formed the first radius.

During the measurement the ruler was placed over the x-ray film in such a manner that the margin of the ruler covered the cemento-enamel junction. The ruler was moved until the last radius covered the apex. Through the translucent ruler the alveolar crest could be seen either under one of the radius or between two of them. In this way it was possible to assess the height of the bone with an accuracy of upto 5%. As alveolar crest was considered the point where the periodontal membrane space was found to be of approx normal width.

However, in many cases such a definite point could not be found, for which reason no measurement was made where no interproximal fillings were present, the CEJ could be localized with certainity. Although in most of the cases difficulties were encountered. In many cases the CEJ was observed by interproximal fillings and if so, the central margin of the fillings was chosen as the base - line. Separate measurements were made for mesial and distal surfaces of each tooth.

RESULTS

The following results were drawn from the clinical roentgenographic study of gingivitis and alveolar bone loss in multiparity -

- 1. Irrespective of pregnancy or non pregnant state gingivitis and plaque exhibit a strong correlation with time. The correlation being stronger in the absence of pregnancy.
- 2. The segment wise comparative significance of these correlations among the four groups are shown in Table 1 to 5.
- 3. Generally the level of gingivitis has no effect on the alveolar bone loss during or after pregnancy.
- 4. Alveolar bone loss is not related to the absence or presence of pregnancy and a significant loss of alveolar bone may occur in the absence of pregnancy.

DISCUSSION

Table 1. Comparative significance of correlation	coefficient values of gingivitis and per	rcent bone loss in the maxillary
anterior segment of pregnant (Group	os IA and IIA) and nonpregnant (Group	• IB and IIB) groups

Group	No. of Cases	Average age (years)	'R'	Normal variate 'Z'			
				IA	IB	IIA	IIB
IA (Pregnant)	25	21	-0.025	-	2.01*	1.98*	2.69**
IB (Nonpregnant)	21	21	0.39	-	-	1.35N.S	1.41 N.S.
IIA (Pregnant)	27	27	0.24	-	-	-	1.99*
IIB (Nonpregnant)	29	29	0.50	-	-	-	-

* Significant at 5% level of hignificance,** Significant at 1% level of significane, N. S. - Not significant.

Group	No. of Cases	Average age (years)	'R'		Normal variate 'Z'			
				IA	IB	IIA	IIB	
IA (Pregnant)	25	21	0.077	-	0.31N.S	1.56 N.S	1.98*	
IB (Nonpregnant)	25	21	0.003	-	-	1.61N.S	2.01 *	
IIA (Pregnant)	25	27	0.11	-	-	-	0.89 N.S	
IIB (Nonpregnant)	25	29	0.19	-	-	-	-	

 Table 2. Comparative significance of correlation coefficient values of gingivitis and percent bone loss in mandibular

 anterior segment of pregnant (IA & IIA) and nonpregnant (IB & IIB) groups.

* Significant at 5% level of significance

N.S. not significant

 Table 3. Comparative significance of correlation coefficient values of gingivitis and percent bone loss in maxillary posterior segment of pregnant (group IA and IIA) and nonpregnant (group IB and IIB) groups.

Group	No. of Cases	Average age (years)	'R'	Normal variate 'Z'			
				IA	IB	IIA	IIB
IA (Pregnant)	25	21	-0.086	-	0.09N.S	2.01*	1.97*
IB (Nonpregnant)	25	21	0.083	-	-	2.02*	1.98*
IIA (Pregnant)	25	27	0.29	-	-	-	1.21 N.S.
IIB (Nonpregnant)	25	29	0.17	-	-	-	-

* Significant at 5% level of significance.

N.S. not significant.

 Table 4. Comparative significance of correlation coefficient values of gingivitis and percent bone loss in mandibular posterior segment of pregnant (group IA & IIA) and nonpregnant (group IB & IIB) groups.

Group	No. of Cases	Average age (years)	'R'	Normal variate 'Z'			
				IA	IB	IIA	IIB
IA (Pregnant)	25	21	-0.064	-	2.11*	1.98*	1.41N.S.
IB (Nonpregnant)	25	21	0.32	-	-	1.96*	1.99*
IIA (Pregnant)	25	27	0.16	-	-	-	0.10N.S.
IIB (Nonpregnant)	25	29	0.10	-	-	-	-

" Significant at 5% level of significance

" N. S. Not significant.

Table 5. Comparative significance of alveolar bone loss in pregnant and nonpregnant groups.

Group	Mean percent bone loss	IA	IB	IIA	IIB
IA (Pregnant)	15.387	-	0.05N.S.	0.05N.S.	0.05N.S.
IB (Nonpregnant)	10.280	-	-	0.05N.S.	0.05*
IIA (Pregnant)	17.195	-	-	-	0.05N.S.
IIB (Nonpregnant)	22.045	-	-	-	-

* Significant at 5% level of significance

N. Š. not significant

Changes in the severity of periodontal disease has been documented during the course of pregnancy (Cohen 1971),² which is reflected in terms of gingivitis. An increased level of estrogen and progesterone in the circulating blood of females during pregnancy was noted. This, along with the dental plaque has been assumed to cause changes in the gingival tissues manifesting as gingivitis^{10,11}. Any pre-existing gingivitis at the beginning of pregnancy appeared always to increase gradually in severity with the advancement of pregnancy and decrease after parturition (Hugoson) 1971¹².

Higher concentration of female sex steroids, mainly

estrogen and progesterone, acting for a longer period of time during pregnancy has been believed to have a hyperemic and permeability increasing effect on the periodontal vascular system as shown for other parts of the body (Gersh and Catchpole).¹³

The present study was undertaken to determine the effect of multiparity on gingival and supporting periodontal tissues, especially the alveolar bone.

In the present investigation a strong correlation between gingival and plaque scores was apparent for both pregnant and non - pregnant groups. The findings also leads to the belief that during pregnancy gingival response is associated to a lesser extent with the soft deposits around the teeth. This is in agreement with Cohen et al.²

Loe & Silness³ suggested that during pregnancy, an additional factor, probably hormonal in nature is introduced. This, together with bacteria may be responsible for the accumulated inflammatory response. The finding of this study is in agreement with those of Hugoson¹² who found that gingivitis become more severe during pregnancy without any accompanying increase in the amount of bacterial plaque.

IOPA radiographs of both pregnant and nonpregnant females in the present investigation did not reveal a definite pattern of bone destruction in any of the groups. Evaluation of individual segments revealed that correlation between gingival score and percent bone loss was statistically insignificant.

During pregnancy, there is a lowering in the blood Ca level of mother due to increase demands of Ca.¹⁴ the total amount needed by the fetus is, however, small as compared to the total body Ca of the mother. Though periodontal disease especially alveolar atrophy is theoretically possible during pregnancy; it is actually rarely associated with it primarily (Shour 1943)¹⁵.

CONCLUSION

In conclusion it may be said that gingival changes generally associated with pregnancy with special significance of the effects of hormonal changes and even more, so due to multiparity.

Removal of oral debris and improved oral hygiene reduced gingivitis, suggesting that the marginal flora played a primary etiologic role in pregnancy gingivitis as well as in common marginal gingivitis.

REFERENCES

- 1. Pinard, A. and Pinard, I. : Treatment of gingivitis of puerperal women. Dent. Cosmos. 19: 327, 1877.
- 2. Cohen, D. W., Shapiro, J. et al. A longitudinal investigation of periodontal changes during pregnancy and fifteen months postpartum. J. periodont. 42:, 653-7, 1969.
- 3. Loe, H.: periodontal changes in pregnancy. J.

periodont. 36: 209, 1965.

- Maier, A. W. and orban, B. : Gingivitis in pregnancy. Oral Surg. Oral med. And oral path. 2: 243, 1949.
- 5. Lovdal, A. incidence of clinical manifestation of periodontal disease in light of oral hygiene and calculus formation. J. A. D. A., 56: 21, 1958.
- 6. Kieffer: cited by monesh, 1926.
- 7. Rateitschak, K. H.:- tooth mobility changes in pregnancy. J. Periodont. Res. 2: 199, 1967.
- 8. Loe, H:- the gingival index, the plaque index and the retention index systems.
- Schei, O. Waerhaugh, J. et al. alveolar bone loss as related to oral hygiene and age. J. Periodont. 30: 7, 1959.
- Lieff S, Boggess KA, Murtha A. P. et. al.: The Oral conditions and pregnancy study: Periodontal status of a Cohort of pregnant women. J. Perioodntal 75: 116;2004.
- 11. Sobetis YA, Banos SP, Offenbacher S. Exploring the relationship between periodontal disease and pregnancy complications. J Aha Dent Assoc 2006; 137: 75-135.
- 12. Hugoson, A.: gingivitis in pregnant women. A longitudinal clinical study. Odont. Rev. 22: 66-84, 1971.
- Gersh, I. and Catchole, H. R.:- the nature of ground substance of connective tissue. Perspect. Boil. Med 3: 282-319, 1960.
- 14. J Effcoat MK, Lewis CE, Reddy MS, et. al.: Postmonopausal bone loss and its relationship to oral bone loss. Periodontal 200; 23: 94, 2000.
- 15. Shour, I. and Massler, M.:- endocrines and Dentistry. J. A. D. A. 30: 595, 763, 943, 1943.

A Rare Case of Duodenal Perforation in a Child -A Case Report

Sanjay Karpoor *, Rajeshwari Patil**

*Associate Professor, Department of Surgery, Belgaum Institute of Medical Sciences, Belgaum-590001, **Assistant Professor, Department of OBG, SN Medical College, Bagalkot, Karnataka, India

INTRODUCTION

Primary duodenal ulcer disease occurs in children of all ages, but most often seen in those above ten years. As in adults, it often pursues a chronic course.Primary ulcer seen in children under 6 years is more unusual, and does not tend to reccur. Stress ulcers are seen most often in infants and in critically ill clidren and are asymptomatic until the complicated by hemorrhage or perforation¹.

CASE REPORT

A four-year-old male child reffered from Pediatrics OPD, bought by his father with a histroy of sudden onset of pain abdomen generalised all over abdomen.History of constipation since 3 days was present. History of 5-6 episodes of greenish coloured vomitting along with high fever since 2 days was given by his father.Patient was treated conservatively for 2 days in a private hospital and was then reffered to pediatrics OPD. There was no past history of fever, abdominal trauma or analgesic consumption. Birth history revealed a full term normal delivery and attended all milestones normally. No other significant personal history.

On general physical examination child was moderately built but poorly nourished, looked drowsy, apathetic and pale. Pulse rate of 108 beats/min, BP of 90/60 mmHg and respiratory rate of 28 cycles /min were recorded.Abdominal examination revealed distention and generalised rigidity.On Percussion, tympanic note was heard all over the abdomen, liver dullness- obliterated and there was a evidence of free fluid in the abdomen.

Investigations:

• Errect abdominal radiograph showed free gas under diaphragm,

Corresponding Address Dr. Sanjay Karpoor Associate Professor, Department of Surgery, Belgaum Institute of Medical Sciences, Belgaum - 590001, Karnataka, India.

- Hemogram showed Hb% of 4.5 gms,
- Total count was raised with predominant neutrophillia,
- Blood urea and creatinine was normal and
- Blood grouping and cross matching was done with revealed blood group of A^{+ve}.

Diagnosis

Based on history, clinical findings and investigations clinical diagnosis of perforative pertonitis, secondary to ileal perforation due to typhoid fever and appendicular perforation was given.

Laparotomy findings showed duodenal perforation (1st part), significant peritonial contamination and flakes(++), ulcer closed with Graham's omental patch and a solitary round worm was seen in the peritonial cavity. Peritonial cavity was washed and checked for Meckel's diverticulum and any other anamolies.

In Post operative period child was investigated for for typhoid and widal was negative. H.Pylori serology not done. Patient did well for the first 2 days but developed pneumonia on third day and was shifted to pediatrics ward. On day 4, superficial surgical site infection and burst abdomen was noted. Tension suturing was done. On 8th post operative day patient coughed out a round worm. the child was dewormed. A course of H.pylori eradication was given. Patient discharged after 18 days of surgery.

Diffential Diagnosis:

- Enteric perforation.
- Appendicular perforation.
- Meckel's Diverticular perforation.

DISCUSSION

Gastrointestinal perforation is one of the major complication of peptic ulcer that may result in sudden death. Perforation of the gut leads to leakage of intestinal contents into abdominal cavity causing peritonitis. Commonest site of perforation is duodenum. Predominant age for duodenal ulcer is 25-75 years. Rarely seen before the age of 15 years. Duodenal ulcer is an uncommon entity in children. Incidence of 1.55 cases per year reported in an Indian series. Its diagnosis is overlooked because of vague and variable symptoms and low index of suspicion on part of the treating physicians.

Peptic ulcer in children can be associated with:

- 1. Z-E syndrome.
- 2. Sickle cell anemia.
- 3. H. pylori infection
- 4. Blood group 'O' etc.

Peptic ulcer are seen secondary to medications like non-steroidal anti-inflammatory drugs (NSAID) and corticosteroids or physiological stress in burns, head injury and mucosal ischemia. H.pylori infection is very common in developing countries. Food contaminated under less than ideal conditions or exposed to contaminated water or soil may increase the risk. Inadequate sanitation practices, low social class and crowded or high denisity living condition seem to be related to a higher prevalence of H.pylori infection. Duodenal ulcers associated with H.pylori are seldom seen in children under ten years of age².

CONCLUSION

The operating surgeon should keep in mind such a diagnosis in any child with acute abdomen. Simple closure of the perforation with omental patch is an adequate procedure in emergency. ³Incidence and pathogenesis remain debatable.

REFERENCES

- 1. Gryboski JD.Peptic ulcer disease in children. Medical Clinics of North America 1991; 75, 889-902.
- Brown LM.Helicobacter Pyroli:Epidemiology and Routes of transmission.Epidemiologic Reviews 2000; 22: 283-297.
- Graham DY, Klein PD, Evans DG et al., Helicobacter Pyroli epidemiology, relationship to gastric cancer and role of infants in transmission. European Journal of Gastroenterology and Hepatology 1999; 4: 1-6.

Hyalinizing Clear Cell Carcinoma - A Rare Parotid Tumor

Sanjay Karpoor*, Rajeshwari Patil**

*Associate Professor, Department of Surgery, Belgaum Institute of Medical Sciences, Belgaum,**Assistant Professor, Department of OBG, SN Medical College, Bagalkot, Karnataka, India

INTRODUCTION

Hyalinizing clear cell carcinoma of salivary glands is very rare tumour. It mainly affects minor salivary glands and rarely occurs in parotid glands. Because of its rarity, it is not established whether it is a benign or malignant tumour and also its prognosis¹. Present case report of Hyalinizing clear cell carcinoma of parotid gland has been therefore highlighted.

CASE REPORT

History

A 60 years old female presented with swelling over the right side of her face since 8 months and discharge from the swelling since 1 weeek. History of present illness revealed that the swelling was small to start with and progressed to reach present size. It was painless all this while. The swelling ruptured spontaneously and discharge was bloody from the summit of swelling. No history of trauma, fever, increased salivation, loss of weight or appetite.

Examination

On examination she was elderly lady with stable vitals but pale. On local examination there was swelling over the right parotid region measuring approximately 10x8 cms, ovoid in shape with bosselated surface. Its vertical extent was from zygomatic arch to 4 cms below the inferior border of mandible and horizontally from 4 cms proximal to angle of mouth to mastoid. There was copious, bloody discharge from the summit of swelling. There were no dialated veins, skin over it was strecthed and shiny. Ear lobule was lifted up.

On palpation no tenderness or local rise of temperature. Skin over the swelling was pinchable. The swelling was not fixed to underlying structures.

Corresponding Addredd Dr. Sanjay Karpoor Associate Professor, Department of Surgery, Belgaum Institute of Medical Sciences, Belgaum - 590 001, Karnataka, India Intraoral examination including parotid duct opening was found to be normal.

Investigations

-The routine investigations were normal except for anemia (Hb%-8gm%)

-FNAC of swelling reported to be a pleomorphic adenoma of right parotid gland.

Clinical diagnosis

Based on history, examination findings and investigation findings clinical diagnosis of Pleamorphic adenoma of the right parotid gland with anemia was given.

Treatment plan

Patient was prepared for surgery and superficial parotidectomy was planned.

Operative findings

A well capsulated single cystic swelling was found. the swelling was removed and wound was closed using a transposition flap, over a suction drain. Patient withstood the procedure well and post operative period was uneventful.

Patient had come for follow up 2 months later, wound was healed well and patient had no complaints.

Histopathological report

To our surprise, the report was hyalinizing clear cell carcinoma of parotid gland.

DISCUSSION

Hyalinizing clear cell carcinoma of parotid gland, there is only a brief mention of this entity in text books and only a handful of articles have thrown light on it. Hyalinizing clear cell carcinoma (HCCC) is a recently described neoplasm predominantly affecting the oral cavity in adult females. It is relatively well defined group described by Milchgrub et al¹. A total of 11 cases have been reported in literature. out of these 11 cases 9 cases tumor was arising from minor salivary glands. Thus HCCC arising from parotid gland is even more rare. It is considered to be low grade indolent neoplasm, because of rare reccurence and metastasis^{2,3}. In one of the studies with relatively short follow-up of less than 10 years none of the patients were found to have died from the disease. However few studies have found to have recurrance rate of 8% and 15% rate of metastasis to regional lymphnodes³.

This low grade neoplasm could be treated by a wide excision, though further case studies and long term follow up would be necessary to document it.

REFERENCES

- 1. Milchgrub S,Gnepp DR,Vuitch F,Delgado R,Albores-Saavedra J.Hyalinizing clear cell carcinoma of salivary gland.Am J Surg Pathol 1994; 18: 74-82.
- 2. Tang SK, Wan SK, Chan JK. Hyalinizing clear cell carcinoma of salivary gland: report of a case with multiple reccurences over 12 years. Am J Surg Pathol 1995; 19: 240-241.
- 3. Berho M, Huvos AG.Central hyalizing clear cell carcinoma of the mandible and the maxilla.Clinicopathologic study of two cases with an analysis of the literature.Hum Path 1999; 30: 101-105.

Clinico Pathological Study of Leprosy in Northern Karnataka

Shadakshari Gadigi¹, Chetana.S.Gadigi², Vijayanath.V³, Venkatesh.M. Patil⁴, Rajeshwari.R.Surpur⁵, Anitha.M.R⁶

¹Assistant Professor Department of Pathology, ²Department of Dentistry, Vijayanagar Institute of Medical Science, Bellary, Karnataka, ³Associate Professor Department of Forensic Medicine & Toxicology, ⁴Associate Professor Department of Pharmacology, ⁵Associate Professor Department of Microbiology ⁶Assistant Professor Department of Anatomy S.S.Institute of Medical Sciences & Research Centre Davangere, Karnataka

ABSTRACT

Leprosy continues to be a public health problem in India. Cases were selected regardless of their age, sex, religion, occupation and socio economic status. Pathological examination helps in confirming the clinical diagnosis. Clinically exact typing of leprosy is difficult and even slit-skin smear yields poor results. Majority of the cases were seen in second and third decade. Patients of both sexes were affected and it was more in males than in females. Patients from different religions were affected among these most of them belonged to Hindu religion.

Key words: Leprosy; Histopathology; Diagnosis;

INTRODUCTION

Leprosy continues to be a major public health problem in Asia and Africa. Control of leprosy mainly based on identifying and destroying the causative organism. For effective treatment and control, the diagnosis of leprosy should be done at the earliest and should be accurate. Pathological examination helps in confirming the clinical diagnosis. Clinically exact typing of leprosy is difficult and even slit-skin smear yields poor results. Thus histopathological examination is necessary for both accurate and exact typing.

MATERIALS AND METHODS

The present study was undertaken from March 1994 – January 2005 in the Department of Pathology, Karnataka Institute of Medical Sciences, Hubli. Histopathological study of 135 skin biopsy specimens of leprosy patients were done.

All the biopsy specimens were received along with requisition for histopathological study containing clinical history, signs and symptoms of skin lesions,

Correspondence Address:

Dr. Shadakshari Gadigi

Assistant Professor

Department of Pathology

Vijayanagar Institute of Medical Sciences, Bellary, Karnataka

results of slit skin smears for AFB with BI in some cases and probable clinical diagnosis.

Cases were selected regardless of their age, sex, religion, occupation and socio economic status. Details of patient history and clinical examination were noted of the patients who clinically presented with hypopigmented / erythematous maculas, plaques, nodules, papules or a combination of these, along with impaired sensation for touch, pain, and temperature and nerve involvement .

Biopsy tissues were immediately fixed in 10% formalin for 12-24 hours. The tissue were processed, embedded in paraffin wax and cut into thin sections of 4-5 microns.

Sections were stained with routine hematoxylin and eosin along with special staining for AFB by Fite Faraco methods, and Auramine – Rhodamine fluorescent stain, wherever necessary.

HAND ESTAINING PROCEDURE

- 1. Wax was removed by placing sections in xylene 3-5 minutes.
- 2. Two changes of absolute alcohol 1-2 minutes.
- 3. Washed in running tap water 10 minutes.
- 4. Slides stained with Harris hematoxylin 10 minutes.
- 5. Dipped in acid alcohol for differentiation.
- 6. Washed in tap water for 10 minutes (bluing).

- 7. Counterstained with eosin 2 mins and washed in running tap water for 2 to 3 mins.
- 8. Sections were dehydrated in alcohol, cleared in Xylene and mounted with DPX.

Special stain for M. Leprae in paraffin section (Fite-faraco stain)

- 1. Wax was removed over two changes of xylene peanut oil (3:1) mixture 7 mins for each change.
- 2. Blotted with fine filter paper.
- 3. Sections washed in running water for 5 mins.
- 4. Stained with strong carbol fuchsin for 30 mins.
- 5. Water wash 2 mins.
- 6. Decolorized in 1% acid alcohol to reach a pale pink colour.
- 7. Water wash 2 mins.
- 8. Counter stained in methylene blue 5 to 6 dips.
- 9. Water wash until section becomes pale blue.
- 10. Section dehydrated in absolute alcohol 3 changes.
- 11. Cleared in Xylene 2 changes and mounted in DPX.

BACTERIAL INDEX (BI)

BI was for study of AFB stain BI was assessed in the same way as in a smear. Using an oil immersion objective the following scale was used.

- 1+ 1 to 10 bacilli in 100 fields
- 2+ 1 to 10 bacilli in 10 fields
- 3+ 1 to 10 bacilli in 1 field
- 4+ 1 to 100 bacilli in 1 field
- 5+ 100 to 1000 bacilli in 1 average field
- 6+ > 1000 bacilli in 1 field.

AURAMINE - RHODAMINE STAIN

- 1. Deparaffinisation was done with 1:3 peanut oil : Xylene mixture
- Auramine Rhodamine stain was used to flood the slides and kept in the incubator at 65 for 15 mins.
- 3. Slides were washed in running tap water for 2 mins.
- 4. De-colorization was done in 0.5% HCL in 70% ethanol for 2 mins.
- 5. Washed in running tap water for 2 mins.
- 6. Counterstained with 0.5% aqueous potassium permanganate.
- 7. Washed in running tap water for 2 mins.
- 8. Dehydrate in absolute alcohol.
- 9. Mounted in glycerol with coverslip.

Controls – Typical lepromatous leprosy biopsy.

OBSERVATIONS

The present study was carried out in the KARNATAKA INSTITUTE OF MEDICAL SCIENCES, HUBLI, a major referral hospital in North Karnataka from March 1994 to January 2005. During this period 40471 specimens were received in the Histopathology section. Department of Pathology, out of which 782 were skin biopsies. Out of these histopathological study of 135 skin biopsy specimens from skin lesions of leprosy patients was done. The skin biopsies were received from Dept of skin and STD, KIMS, Hubli, and few from other Hospitals in and around Hubli.

Table 1. Showing age and sex distribution in leprosy

Age (yrs)	S	iex	Total	Percentage
	М	F		
0—09	4	5	9	6.66
10—19	22	7	29	21.48
20—29	20	10	30	22.22
30—39	16	6	22	16.29
40—49	15	10	25	18.51
50—59	7	4	11	8.14
60 & above	6	3	9	6.66
Total	90 (66%)	45(34%)	135	100

In the present study, patients in the age group of 20-29 years were affected most with 30 cases (22.22%), followed by 10-19 years with 29 (21.48%), 40-49 years 25 (18.51%), 30-39 yrs 22 (16.29%), 50-59 years 11 (8.41%), 0-9 years 9 (6.66%) and 60 years and above with 9 (6.66%) cases.

Males were affected most with 90 cases (66.00%) and females with 45 (34.00%), with Male : Female ratio of 2:1.

Table 2. Showing distribution of leprosy in differentreligions.

S. No.	Religion	No. Of cases	Percentage
1	Hindu	108	80
2	Muslim	25	18.5
3	Christian	2	1.5
	Total	135	100

Out of 135 leprosy patients Hindus were 108 (80.00%), Muslims were 25 (18.50%), and Christians were only 2 (1.50%) cases.

S. No.	Clinical Features	No. of cases	Percentage
1	Hypopigmented patches	93	68.88
2	Erythematous patches	32	23.7
3	Combined (Hypopigmented & Erydthematous)	10	7.41
4	Macules	73	54.07
5	Plaques	17	12.69
6	Papules	8	5.93
7	Nodules	2	1.48
8	Combination of cutaneous lesions	35	25.93
9	Well defined	78	57.77
10	Ill defined	57	42.23
11	<5 Patches	122	90.37
12	>5 Patches	13	9.63
13	Loss of sensation	103	76.3
14	Thickened nerves	65	48.14

 Table 3. Showing clinical features in leprosy

The commonest presenting feature was hypopigmented patches seen in 93 (68.88%), followed by erythematous patches with 32 (23.70%), and combinations of both were seen in 10 (7.41%) cases. The most common cutaneous lesions observed were macules in 73 (54.07%), followed by plaques in 17 (12.59%), papules in 8 (5.93%) and nodules in only 2 (1.48%) cases. Various combinations of macula, papule, plaque and nodule were seen in 35 (25.93%) cases. The margins of cutaneous lesions were well defined in 78 (57.77%), and ill defined in 57 (42.23%) cases. Cases showing less than 5 lesions all over the body were 122 (90.37%) cases, and more than 5 lesion in 13 (9.63%). Loss of sensation was seen in 103 (76.30%) cases and thickened peripheral Nerves were present in 65 (48.14%).

Table 4. Showing clinical diagnosis in the present study.

S. No.	Clinical Features	No. Of cases	Percentage
1	TT	26	19.25%
2	BT	66	48.88%
3	BB	5	3.70%
4	BL	5	3.70%
5	LL	6	4.44%
6	IL	12	8.88%
7	Others	8	5.92%
8	Relapse	7	5.18%

Various clinical diagnosis were given, among these borderline tuberculod leprosy was the most common with 66 (48.88%), followed by tuberculoid leprosy in 26 (19.25%), indeterminate leprosy 12 (8.88%), 5 (3.70%S) cases each ;in borderline borderline leprosy ;and borderline lepromatous ;leprosy, and lepromatous leprosy; in; 6 (4.44%) cases. In rest of the cases, the clinical diagnosis other; than; leprosy was given, which constituted 8 (5.92%) cases. The diagnosis of relapse was given in 7 Cases (5.18%).

Table 5. Showing	; histopatholog	gical types of	leprosy.
------------------	-----------------	----------------	----------

S. No.	Clinical Features	No. of cases	Percentage
1	TT	39	28.88
2	BT	44	32.59
3	BB	-	-
4	BL	6	4.44
5	LL	9	6.66
6	IL	37	27.40

In the present study the commonest histopathological type of leprosy was borderline tuberculoid leprosy in 44 (32.59%), followed by tuberculoid leprosy in 39 (28.88%), indeterminate leprosy; in 37 (27.40%), lepromatous leprosy in 6 (4.44%) cases only. The borderline leprosy cases were not diagnostic morphologically.

DISCUSSION

In the present study the most affected age group was 20-29 years constituting 30(22.22%) and the second peak in the age group of 10-19 years with 29(21.48%) which are similar to the observations made by Guha et al¹ 108 and 80 (27% and 20% respectively).

Patients in the age group of 40-49 years constituted 25(18.51%) cases, 30-39 years 22(16.29%), similar results were observed by Seghal et al² 307 and 196 (18.48% and 11.8% respectively). Patients less than 9 years 9(6.66%) and more than 50 years (14.7%) were affected least; similar results were seen in the studies of Seghal et al² 43(2.59%) and 123 (7.41%) respectively, and Guha et al¹ 25(6.2%) and 52(13%) respectively.

In the present study there was male predominance with 2:1 male to female ratio which is similar to observatiob madr by Guha et al¹ (1.72:1) and Sehgal V N et al² (4.39:1) while the study done by Chaturvedi et al³ showed female preponderance with a ratio of 1:1.33.

In the present study almost all patients had skin lesions. Among which hypopigmented patches were seen in 91(67%) and erythematous patches were seen in 32(23%), which were similar to in the study done by Kar.P.K et al⁴ with 88 in 14(72.5% and 51.6% respectively). Nodules were observed in 12(8%) cases in the present study, similar results were observed by Verma et al⁵ 1 (7%). Loss of sensation was seen in 103 (76%) of cases in the present study while Kar.P.K et al⁴ and Verma et al⁵ observed 31 and 14 (25.8% and 97% respectively). Nerve thickening was seen in 65(48%)

and trophic ulcer in 3 (2%) cases in the present study while Verma et al⁵ observed 2 and 3 (13% and 20% respectively).

In the present study the commonest histopathological type of leprosy was borderline tuberculoid constituting 44(32.59%) cases, similar results were observed by P.K.Kar et al⁴ and Nadkarni N.S et al⁶ 38 and 969(31.66% and 36.7%) respectively. This was followed by tuberculoid leprosy with 39(28.88%) similar results were seen in the study done by Shenoi S D et al⁷ and Nadkarni N S et al⁶ 22 and 460 (22% and 17.4%) respectively. Intermediate leproy in 37 (27.3%), similar results were seen in P.K.Kar et al⁴ and Nadkarni N.S et al⁶ (29.16% and 15.9%) respectively. Borderline lepromatous leprosy and lepromatous leprosy constitute very few cases in the present study.

CONCLUSION

Histopathological study of 135 biopsy specimens, which were taken from skin lesions of the patients suspected to be suffering from leprosy, which constituted 0.34% of all biopsies evaluated. All the age groups were affected. Majority of the cases were seen in second and third decade. Patients of both sexes were affected and it was more in males than in females. Patients from different religions were affected among these most of them belonged to Hindu religion. The most common type of leprosy histopathologically diagnosed was borderline tuberculoid leprosy followed by tuberculoid and intermediate leprosy.

REFERENCES

- 1. Guha P K et al. age of onset of leprosy. Leprosy in India 1981; 53(1); 83-87.
- Seghal V N et al. slit skin smear in leprosy. International Journal of Dermatology 1990; 29; 9-16.
- Chaturvedi R M, Epidemiological study of leprosy in Malwani Suburb of Bombay, Leprosy Review, 1988, 59; 113-120.
- 4. Kar P K et al, A clinic Pathological study of macular lesions in leprosy, Indian Journal of Leprosy, 1994,66(4);435-442.
- 5. Verma O P et al. some epidemiological features of leprosy in a rural area in Hoogly district in India 1976;48(4);371-381.
- 6. Nadkarni N S et al, Significance of histopathological classification in leprosy, original article, Indian Journal of Leprosy 1999,71(3); 325-332.
- Shenoi S D et al, Correlation of clinical and histopathological features in untreated macular lesions of leprosy- A study of 100 cases, Indian Journal of Leprosy. April 1988,(60(2),202-205.

Socio-Demographic Profile of Organophosphorous Poisoning in A Tertiary Care Hospital

L. Krishnamurthy*, Rohini K.*, Shashikala P.**

*Department of Medicine, JJM Medical College, **Department of Pathology, S. S. Institute of Medical Sciences and Research Centre, Davangere, Karnataka

ABSTRACT

Aim and Objectives: To study the demography, social factors, clinical severity and therapeutic outcome of organophosphorous poisoning.

Design: Descriptive study conducted over a period of six months in emergency medical wards.

Method: Seventy cases of organophosphorous compound poisoning admitted to the emergency department were evaluated in the study.

Results: Forty two (60%) were males, twenty eight (40%) were females. Mean age was 25.82 years. Fifty four (77.1%) cases were attempted suicides and sixteen cases (22.9%) were due to accidental events. Among the suicide attempts, 30 (50.55%) were male patients. The study cases included 34.28% agriculturists and 24.17% coolies. These two groups were in low socio economic status.42 patients (60%) were brought to the hospital with mild symptoms and 11(15.71%) had severe intoxication. 58 (82.85%) patients had consumed the poison orally. In 12 (17.15%) patients it was accidental via inhalation and dermal absorption. Seven patients with severe intoxication were in an unconscious state at the time of admission and died of respiratory and neurological complication.

Conclusion: Confinement of these harmful, unsafe pesticides away from houses will reduce the easy accessibility of them for impulsive act of suicide or accidental consumption. Personal protective measures have to be undertaken to prevent accidental poisoning by inhalation and absorption. Measures like banning the most toxic organophosphorous poisoning have to be undertaken. Newer biological means of pest control would go a long way in preventing the exposure to the toxic effects of the presently used compounds.

Key Words: Organophosphorous compound poisoning, Suicide, Intoxication.

INTRODUCTION

Intentional self killing in the form of attempted and successful suicide is on the rise all over the world in recent years. In the last four decades, suicidal rates have been increasing and it is one among the three leading causes of death among 15-44 yrs of age in both sexes.

It is one of the serious social and public health problems. India ranks tenth in suicidal rates with 9.47per 1, 00,000 population^{2,3}.

Organophosphorous (OP) pesticides are used widely for agriculture, vector control, and Domestic purpose. Despite the apparent benefits, acute organophosphorous pesticide poisoning is an increasing worldwide problem especially in developing countries. Irrational use of the same in higher concentrations also poses risk to agriculturists. Initially, majority of patients present with florid cholinergic symptomatology. Severe intoxication can lead to bronchorrhea, respiratory depression, fasciculation and altered sensorium⁴⁻⁷.

The present study was undertaken while working in medical wards with the objective of describing socio demographic variables of OP poisoning patients and to study the clinical severity and outcome after treatment.

METHODOLOGY

This is a descriptive study of 70 patients of organophosphorous poisoning, admitted to emergency ward over a period six months in a tertiary care hospital. These patients were brought to the hospital by family or friends. The relevant details were collected from the patient's attendants or patients themselves in mild cases as well as from records and analysed. Clinical severity were assessed after detailed clinical examination. The patients were followed up till discharge from the hospital to look for the outcome of therapy.

RESULTS

The major characteristics of these 70 patients were as follows:

60% of patients were males and 40% were females with the age & sex distribution as shown in the Table 1.

Table 1. Age and sex distribution or organophosphorous poisoning cases:

Age	Male	Female	Total	Percentage
11-15	1	1	2	2.86
16-20	14	10	24	34.29
21-25	9	9	18	25.71
26-30	5	4	9	12.86
31-35	3	3	6	8.57
36-40	6		6	8.57
41-45	2	1	3	4.28
46-50	2	-	2	2.86
Total	42	28	70	100.00

Most patients were between 16 to 25 years of age. Mean age 25.82 yrs. **Table 2. Occupations of the patients**

Sl.No.	Occupation	Male	Female	Total	Percentage
01	Agriculture	24	-	24	34.28
02	Coolie	10	9	19	27.14
03	Housewife	-	15	15	21.43
04	Student	3	3	6	8.57
05	Mill worker	1	1	2	2.86
06	Tailor	1	-	1	1.43
07	Carpenter	1	-	1	1.43
08	Attender (Govt)	1	-	1	1.43
09	servant	1	-	1	1.43
	Total	42	28	70	100.00

34.28% were agriculturists belonging to middle and lower income group. 24.17% were coolies 21.43% were housewives.

Among 28 females with op poisoning, 53.57% were house wives.

Portal of entry: 58 (82.85 %) patients had consumed the poison orally. In 12 (17.15%) patients, the poisoning was through the skin by contact and also inhalation during spraying in the agricultural field.

Sl. No Grade		Number	Percentage	
1.	Mild	42	60.00	
2. Moderate		17	24.29	
3	Severe	11	15.71	

Categorization of severity of poisoning

These cases were grouped in to mild, moderate and severe according to the severity of clinical symptoms and signs as follows.

Mild: 42 cases (60%) were found to have mild illness. In this group, the patients had some or all of the following features - Nausea, Vomiting, epigastric pain, Sweating, restlessness and constricted or normal pupils, without obvious changes in the pulse, Respiration and blood pressure. These patients did not have any abnormal signs in the lungs and heart and recovered within 2-4 days.

Moderate: 17 cases (24.29%) were found to have moderately severe illness. In all these cases some or all of the following features in addition to that of the mild cases were found. Confusion, headache, muscle weakness, respiratory distress, circulatory failure and fasciculation. All these patients recovered within 10 days.

Severe: 11 cases (15.71%) were found to have severe illness. In all these cases, pulmonary edema, loss of consciousness and circulatory failure were present. 6 patients were semiconscious and 5 cases were unconscious. 7 patients in this category died.

DISCUSSION

Organophosphorous compounds are used extensively as insecticides in agriculture.

Though they are a boon to farmers, they are misused for suicidal purposes. Organophosphorous Compounds account for 2 million suicide attempts and 1 million accidental poisoning each year throughout the World.

It is the most significant form of poisoning in Asia, especially in agricultural countries like Pakistan, India and Srilanka^{3,1}.

The number of suicides in India during the decade (1998-2008)has recorded an increase of 19.4%. ie from 1,04,713 in 1998 to 1,25,017 in 2008².

In this study most of the victims of poisoning were in the age group 16-25 years similar to study at Ahmadabad, India, with a maximum number of patients between 21-30 years and study by Sulemaan M.I in Pakistan where most of the victims were between 15-24 years and Krupesh et al (mean age 24.8 yrs)⁵. Various factors like stress, unemployment, family conflict, marital problems may be the cause for frequent poisoning in this age group.

Overall male to female ratio in this study was 3:2 which is similar to other studies which also show a male preponderance^{3.1,6}. According to the attempted

suicide proportion was 46.4% in men and 75.4% in women⁸.

Accidental poisoning due to inhalation and absorption through the skin was found to be very high (17.5%) in contrast to negligible cases (1.61%) reported by krupesh et al⁵.

Maximum patients in this study belonged to lower income group (58.45%) and 90% of cases were non-fatal similar to 82% non fatal cases of attempted suicide reported by Logaraj ET al¹.

The proportion of fatal outcome reported in other studies varies from 10% - 17.86% ^{41,5}. Though none of our patients had history of previous attempted suicide there is a need for strengthening and counseling of these patients and their families to prevent further attempts, as Suresh et al have reported 24% patients attempting to commit suicide again.

CONCLUSION

Confinement of these harmful, unsafe pesticides away from houses will reduce the easy accessibility of them for impulsive act of suicide or accidental consumption. Personal protective measures have to be undertaken to prevent accidental poisoning by inhalation and absorption. Measures like banning the most toxic organophosphorous poisoning have to be undertaken.

We should hope for newer safe methods of pest

control which will put a halt to organophosphorous compound poisoning.

REFERENCES

- 1. Logaraj M. et al .Suicidal attempts reported at a medical college hospital in Tamil Nadu. Indian J Community Med 2005, 30(4) 136-137.
- 2. Govt. of India 2008 Accidental death and suicides in India, New Delhi: National Crime Record Bureau Ministry of Home affairs.
- 3. Suliman MI, Jibran R and Rai M The analysis of Organophosphates poisoning cases treated at Bahawal Victoria Hospital, Bahawalpur in 2000-2003. Pak J Med Sci 2006, 22(3) 244-249.
- 4. Sureshkumar PN. A descriptive analysis of methods adopted, suicide intent and causes of attempted suicide .Indian J psychol med. 2000, 23(1) 47-55.
- Krupesh N, chandrashekar TR and Ashok AC. Organophosphorous poisoning still a challenging proposition. Indian J Anaesth. 2002; 46(1): 40-43
- Nigam M, Jain AK, Dubey BP, Sharma VK.Trends of organophosphorous poisoning in Bhopal region. An autopsy based study. JIAFM; 2004: 26(2) 63-65.
- 7. Khurana D, Prabhakar s.organophosphorous intoxication. Arch Neurol 2000; 57: 600-602.
- Sahin HA, Sahin I, Arabaci F.sociodemographic factors in organophosphorous poisonings. A Prospective study. Hum Exp Toxicol 2003; 22(7): 349-353.

Usage of Multimedia Learning Modules for Teaching Human Microanatomy and its Assessment Through **OSCA/OSCE**

Shilpi Jain, Satyam Khare, A.K. Asthana, Bhavna Pant*, R.K. Kaushik

Deparment of Anatomy, Subharti Medical College, Meerut * Department of Community Medicine Subharti Medical College, Meerut

ABSTRACT

With the advent of the multimedia and inclusion of computer assisted instruction in an anatomy course has permitted the acquisition of the course objectives in a reduced amount of time. Keeping this in mind a study was done in department of Anatomy of Subharti Medical College to assess the students on their ability to understand microanatomy when taught on microscope in comparison to teaching on computers.

The performance was also evaluated on basis of OSCA/OSCE in comparison to diagram making which is a conventional method of assessment. Results obtained were statistically evaluated and it was found that on one hand teaching should include both conventional method of teaching i.e. through microscope as well as through computers while on the other hand OSCA is definitely a better means of evaluation.

Key words: Multimedia Learning Modules, OSCA/OSCE

INTRODUCTION

Human anatomy is one of the most important components of medical student curriculum. Uptill now books have been the primary medium to propagate knowledge in microanatomy and there are many excellent textbooks. Some of them give both detailed description of human anatomy and list of anatomical variations (Testut, 1896)¹ others concentrate on realistic illustrations (Bannister et al 1995,² Sobotta 2000)³

Anatomy is a field where spatial visualization is of importance. Functional anatomy is a strongly three dimensional matter. Students must learn particular anatomical structures, their function, and their spatial relationships with the surrounding structures. Computer assisted learning is growing quickly within academic programs. It makes teaching simpler and a time saving process. So a study was undertaken in our department at Subharti Medical College to assess the students on their ability to understand microanatomy when taught on microscopes in comparison to teaching on computers.

Correspondence Address: Dr. Shilpi Jain

Associate Professor Department of Anatomy Subharti Medical College, Meerut Mobile no. 9927009518 E mail. : j.vidisha@yahoo.in

Similarly a study was also done to assess the performance of students by diagram making which is a traditional method of assessment in comparison to objective structured clinical assessment (OSCA) (Fig. 1) which has evolved over the ten years its been in use.



Q1 Identify the given slide

Q2	Identify the structure labeled		
	A & give the classification to		
	which it belongs	1+3	
Q3	Identify the structure labeled		
	B and give two other examples		
	where it is found	1+1	
Q4	Identify structure labeled C and give		
	its function	1+2	

The OSCA format is used in many medical schools and can be considered generically as an assessment which uses a series of stations with students performing musical chairs as they rotate through the stations and tackle the set tasks. OSCA can be used in all years of the course for assessing clinically relevant content areas and skills which require a visual trigger or a hand on technique. Example includes a microscope slide (histology or pathology) a gross anatomy or pathology specimen, a diagnostic imaging material, a clinical photograph or a simulated patient.

MATERIAL & METHOD

A proforma was distributed among 200 first year students (100 MBBS & 100 BDS) of Subharti Medical College Meerut. They were asked to give their opinion regarding the method of teaching which has enabled them better understanding of the subject (Table I) and also about the method of assessment which enables them to gain more marks and is a better test of their knowledge of the subject (Table II). Students were also asked not to disclose their name if they thought it would influence the results.

Table I

(1)	Teaching:					
(a)	Through Microscope	Excellent	Good	Average	Poor	
(b)	Computer Teaching fitted With digital camera & Microscope	Excellent	Good	Average	Poor	
Tea	iching	Excellent	Good	Average	Poor	
Thi Mie	rough croscope	116	72	6	-	194
Co	mputer teaching	105	79	9	1	193
(Stı	udent t test applied	d) (P> .05)	TAE	BLE II		
(2) (a)	Assessment: Diagram Making	Excellent	Good	Average	Poor	
(b)	OSCA	Excellent	Good	Average	Poor	
	Results:- Out of 200 students, 194 replied					
Tea	iching	Excellent	Good	Average	Poor	
Dia	ıgram Making	78	106	10	-	194
OS stru ass	CA (Objective actured clinical essment	120	61	13	-	194

(Student t test applied) (P<.05)

DISCUSSION

Anatomy the structural basis for life, provides a unique and necessary perspective on the human body from molecular to the macroscopic stage (Marks 1996)⁴. A solid foundation of anatomy is the best preparation for an effective physical examination & for safe, efficient basic clinical procedures. Teaching of anatomy has attracted recent attention due to changing modern teaching methodology globally.

Previous studies have shown that on line education is an efficient tool for improving knowledge distribution using both multi media technologies to create educational support (Benbunan- Finch 2002)⁵ and the internet to distribute the knowledge (Smith et al, 1999)⁶. Indeed most departments of anatomy do not have the resources to start full soft ware development, they just need inexpensive development of MLM's (Multimedia learning module)to illustrate their classes. This economic constraint was previously mentioned by Lozanoff et at (2003)⁷. Many institutions have integrated computer assisted instruction in their curriculum (Mattingly & Barnes 1994⁸, Fitzharris 1998)⁹ with the computer assisted instruction being locally created or purchased commercially (Walsh & Bohn 1990¹⁰, Standford et al 1994)¹¹. The approach of using computers to successfully support an anatomy course is therefore not unique.

In present study students have projected their views both in favour of teaching human microanatomy through microscopes as well as through computers (p value > .05). Thus an effort should be made to incorporate MLM into the regular teaching schedule of teaching microanatomy via microscope. It must be emphasized that it is unlikely that MLM's will fully replace traditional educational tools (Lozanoff et al 2003)⁷ even if they appear to be superior. The main reason would be the lack of communication between the academic staff and the students if MLM's were used exclusively.

On the other hand assessment is central to a curriculum in which student learning is subst antially self directed as it provides students with opportunities to test the adequacy of their learning¹². The potential for assessment to either weaken or strengthen educational goals was recognized at an early stage leading to a commitment to formative assessment¹³ and the development of assessment instruments which would support, rather than undermine student learning.¹⁴The concept that assessment should be a fair and open process was accepted for the inception of the medical school.

Those contributing questions to written assessment papers are required to prepare a model answer and to specify the minimum level of competence which must be achieved by students to be considered satisfactory. Thus objective structured clinical examination (OSCE) has become a respected and widely used tool for the assessment of clinical competence in medical education¹⁵. In our study students showed their preference for OSCA (p value significant <.05). It was found that OSCA/OSCE was a better tool for assessment of knowledge of students in comparison to their diagram making.

These findings were corroborated by Barman A (2009)¹⁶ and Schoonheim Klein ME et al (2006)¹⁷. According to them implementation of an OSCE in undergraduate teaching appears to stimulate learning, resulting in greater achievement of specific clinical competence and a greater level of realistic self assessment.

REFERENCES

- 1. Testut L. Traite d' anatomie humaine, Paris Doin; 1896.
- 2. Bannister LH, Berry MM, Williams PL, Gray's Anatomy: The anatomical basis of Medicine &

Surgery. 38th ed. New York: Churchill livingstone; 1995. Sobotta J. Atlas d' anatomine humaine 21st ed.

- Sobotta J. Atlas d' anatomine humaine 21st ed. Munich: Urban & Fischer; 2000.
 Marks S.C information technology, medical
- Marks S.C information technology, medical education and anatomy for the 21st cenlury Clin Anat; 1996, 9: 343-8.
- 5. Benbunan- Fich R Improving education and training with information technology Commun ACM 2000,45: 94-99.
- 6. Smith TL, Ruocco A, Jansen BJ. Digital video in education Proceedings of the ACM Computer Science Education Conference, New Orleans, 1999,p 122-126.
- Lozanoff S, Lozanoff BK, Sora M-C, Rosenheimer J, Keep MF, Tregear J, Saland L, Jacobs J, Saiki S, Alverson D. Anatomy and the access grid: exploiting plastinated brain sections for use in distributed medical education Anat Rec (New Anat) 2003, 270B: 30-37.
- 8. Mattingly G.E & Barnes C.E Teaching human anatomy in physical therapy education in the united States: A survey. Physical therapy , 1994,74, 720-727.
- 9. Fitzharris T.P. survey of gross anatomy courses in the united states and Canada The Anatomical Record 1998, 253,162-166.
- 10. Walsh R.J., & Bohn R.C. Computer assisted instruction : A role in teaching human gross anatomy. Medical education 1990,24, 499-506.
- Standford, W< Erkmonen W.E., Cassell B.D., Moran G, Easley R.L., Carries & Albanese M.A Evaluation of a computer based program for teaching cardiac anatomy. Investigative Radiology, 1994,29,248-252.
- 12. Rolfe I Mc Pherson J. Formative assessment how am I doing ? Lancet 1995; 345: 837-839.
- 13. Leeder SR, Feletti GI, Engel CE. Assessment help or hurdle ? Programmed learning and educational Technology 1979:16:316-321.
- Engel CE, Feletti GI, Leeder SR. Assessment of medical students in a new curriculum. Assessment in higher education 1980;5: 279-293.
- 15. Trivino X, Vasquez A, Mena A et al , Application of objective structured clinical examination OSCE for pediatric internship assessment in two schools of medicine, Rev Med Chil 2002 Jul; 130 7): 24
- 16 Barman A, Critiques on the objective structured clinical examination, Anu Acod Med Singapore 2005 Sep; 34 (8): 478-82
- 17 Schoonheim Klien ME et al, Implementing an objective structured clinical examination (OSCE) in dental education : effects on students learning strategics . Eur J Dent Educ 2006 Nov; 10 (4): 226-35

Clinico- Psychological Profile of Acne Vulgaris Among Professional Students

¹Shitij Goel, ²Shelly Goel

¹Assistant Professor, ²Senior Resident, Deptt. of Dermatology, School of Medical Science & Research, Sharda University, Greater Noida (U.P.)

ABSTRACT

Background: Acne Vulgaris (AV) is one of the most common disorders of skin especially affecting young population. Because of its visible nature and the resulting scarring and hyper pigmentation, acne is associated with a significant psychosocial impact on the student's life that could be much more than any other medical condition. Very few Indian studies have been under taken to study profile of AV amongst professional college students and its psychological impact on them.

Aims & Objectives: Present study was conducted to determine profile of acne vulgaris in professional college students and to study psychological impact of acne among them.

Material & Methods: The study was conducted in 240 professional college students with acne vulgaris attending dermatology out patient department of medical college, Greater Noida, India. The parameters included age, sex and age at the time of onset of AV, site of acne, number and type of acne lesions (comedones, papules, pustules, cysts), grading of acne & its psychological impact.

Results: Age group of patients was 16-22 years. Male to female ratio was 1.76:1. Face was involved in all patients followed by back, chest, arms & neck. 84 patients (35%) had grade I acne, 60 (25%) had grade II, 64 (22%) had grade III while 44 (18%) had grade IV acne Vulgaris. Out of total 240 students, 53% had feeling of low self-esteem because of acne and 40% revealed they avoided social gatherings and interaction with opposite sex because of acne. Suicidal ideation was found in 8 students (3%) while 28 students thought acne would lead to difficulty in getting them a good job.

Conclusion: This study brings out the clinical profile of acne Vulgaris amongst students and psychological impact of acne on them.

Key Words: Acne vulgaris, Grade of acne, Psychological impact.

INTRODUCTION

Acne Vulgaris is a common, chronic inflammatory disease of the pilosebaceous unit producing comedones, papules, pustules, cysts and scars¹. The majority of patients with acne begin to develop lesions at or around puberty and the onset is on average a year or two earlier in girls than in boys. Grading system based on the clinical appearance of the lesions, site of lesions and lesion counting are useful in assessing the severity of acne Vulgaris. Owing to its visible nature and the resulting scarring, acne is associated with a

Corresponding Address Dr. Shitij Goel, Assistant Professor,

Deptt. of Dermatology, School of Medical Sciences & Research, Sharda University, Knowledge Park-III Greater Noida. U.P. India. Email: goelshitij@rediffmail.com significant psychosocial impact on the patient's life that could be comparable to the psychosocial impact of any other major medical condition². On the other hand, psychosocial distress itself can be a provocative factor in acne flares. Acne sufferers also have been shown to have higher levels of anxiety compared with a control population. Studies have further found that schoolgoing adolescents with acne feel embarrassed because of their facial appearance, are socially isolated and more self-conscious than their companions. The disease if left untreated can cause severe emotional distress especially among teenagers.

MATERIAL AND METHODS

Total 240 professional college students (medical, engineering and business administration) with acne vulgaris attending dermatology out patient
department of Medical College, Sharda Hospital, Greater Noida, India, who consented to participate were included in the study. Exclusion criteria was

- Patient with drug induced acne or other acneform lesions.
- Female patients with signs of hyper and rogenicity. (Hormonal acne)
- Patients with some other associated chronic medical disorder like hypothyroidism, tuberculosis, diabetes etc.

The study was conducted from December 2009 to June 2010. Parameters evaluated included age, sex, age at the time of onset, duration of lesion, site of lesions, number and type of acne lesions (comedones, papule, pustule, nodule), grading of acne and psychological impact. Acne vulgaris was graded using a simple grading system taking into account the predominant lesion to grade acne, which classifies it into four grades.

Grade I- predominantly comedones Grade II- predominantly papules Grade III- predominantly pustules Grade IV- nodulo-cystic acne & scarring

Questionnaires were provided to students regarding psychological impact of acne on their life.

Simple proportion and percentage was used to represent the data collected.

RESULT

Two hundred forty students having acne vulgaris attending skin OPD were included in the study. The age group, which was studied, was 16-22 years. Of the 240 patients 84 females (35%) and 148 (65%) were males. Male to female ratio was 1.76:1.

Face was involved in all the patients with acne vulgaris. However, face alone was involved in 202 (65.4%). This was followed by the involvement of the back (28.2%), chest (20.1%), neck (9.4%) and arms (10%).

As shown in chart-1, the most common type of lesion in this study was comedones, present in all patients. They were followed by papules in 140 (58%) patients while pustules were found in 72 (30%) number of patients. Nodules and cysts were found in 50(21%) patients. (Figure 1)

A total of 84 patients (35%) had grade I acne, 60 (25%) had grade II, 52 (22%) had grade III while 44 (18%) had grade IV acne Vulgaris.

Post-acne scarring was seen in 100 patients (42%). Cheeks were the most common site of post-acne scarring, being involved in all the 100 patients.



Fig. 1: Patient with grade IV acne. Nodules, cysts and comedones are seen



Chart 1: Type of acne lesion



Fig. 2: Post acne scarring

Post-acne hyper pigmentation was observed in 140 patients (58%). Seasonal variation was observed only in 42 patients (18%); 35 patients (15%) exacerbated in summer and 7 patients (3%) in winter.

Psychological impact- Total of 128 (53%) students had feeling of low self-esteem because of acne. Ninety-six students (40%) revealed they avoided social gatherings and interaction with opposite sex because of acne. Forty-nine out of total 84 females (58%) had social inhibition because of acne. Suicidal ideation was found in 8 students (3%). Twenty males and eight females

students felt that they had less chance of getting good scoring in their placement interview because of acne. (Refer- chart 2)



Chart 2: Psychological impact of acne

Psychological Symptoms	Males	Females	Total
1. Felling of low self esteem	70	58	128
2. Social inhibition	47	49	96
3. Suicidal ideation	5	3	8
4. Fear of not getting good placement	20	8	28

DISCUSSION

Acne vulgaris is a chronic condition that is more or less universal in adolescence. An individual is more likely to develop acne than any other skin disease¹. Adityan B et al. in their study on acne vulgaris in south Indian population reported 1.06% while Al-Ameer and Al-Akloby, had reported 11.2% prevalence of acne patients in the new patients attending their hospitals^{3,4}. In our study mean age of presentation was 18 years in females and 19 years in males. Al-Ameer and Al-Akloby⁴ also observed similar age of presentation in their study. Kane et al. in their study noted that the mean age of presentation of their patients was 25.58 years⁵. Due to earlier onset of puberty in females, acne appears earlier in them, it reflected in our study also.

Face is the most common site of acne vulgaris, as acne is a disorder of pilo-sebaceous unit, which are found in abundance over face. All of our patients (100%) had involvement of face, which was followed by back (28.2%). Chest was involved in 20.1%, neck was involved in 9.4% and arms were involved in 10%. Adityan B et al. in their study on acne vulgaris also observed similar findings. Acne vulgaris is a polymorphic disease characterized by presence of comedones, papules, pustules and cysts. Most common lesion found in our study was comedone (100%). Kilkenny et al, Cunliffe et al and Adityan B, in their respective studies also reported that comedones were the most common type of lesion^{3,6,7}.

In our study, we graded the severity of acne vulgaris, using a simple and quick system of classification using a four-grade system⁸. In our study

grade I acne was most common, as previously established by other studies. As comedone is the most common acne lesion, grade I is rightly the most common grade. Adityan B et al and Kane et al also noticed similar finding in their study³⁵. Few studies have shown lower incidence of scarring in their acne patients^{6,9}. We noticed high incidence of post acne scarring (42%) as well as post acne hyper pigmentation (58%). Adityan B et al, in their study also noticed high incidence of post acne scarring in south Indian population³.

Post inflammatory hyper pigmentation is a common complication of acne vulgaris, particularly in pigmented skin. Acne has traditionally been accepted in the society as a self-limiting condition. It is the complication of acne in the form of hyper pigmentation and scarring that warrants timely treatment. We observed high (58%) incidence if post-acne hyper pigmentation. Kane et al (67.7%), Yeung et al (52.6%) and Taylor et al (52,6%) also observed higher post acne hyper pigmentation in their respective studies^{5,9,10}. Adityan B et al in their study in south Indian patients observed lower incidence of hyper pigmentation³.

Studies done in the past have shown conflicting results regarding seasonal variation in acne vulgaris. In our study seasonal variation was observed only in 42 patients (18%); 35 patients (15%) exacerbated in summer and 7 patients (3%) in winter. Previous Indian study done by Adityan B et al also reported similar findings while Al-Ameer and Al-Akloby in their Saudi Arabian study has shown the reverse trend, that acne exacerbates in winter, and often improves during the summer months^{3,4}.

Our study observed great psychological impact of acne on college students. Total of 128 (53%) students revealed feeling of low self-esteem because of acne. Ninety-six students (40%) said they avoided social gatherings and interaction with opposite sex because of acne. College time is very crucial for students, as it affects overall personality of the student in his future professional life, so acne may have great impact on student's life. Forty-nine out of total 84 females (58%) had social inhibition because of acne. In our study suicidal ideation was found in only 8 students (3%). Similar study done by Rehn LM et al reported much higher (14.5%) suicidal ideation tendency¹¹. This is a positive trend observed by us. Twenty males and eight females students felt that they had less chance of getting good scoring in their placement interview because of acne. Their fear to some extent can be justified as there has been evidence to support that employers are inclined to favour those with clear complexions when making job offers¹².

CONCLUSION

To conclude, our study included 240 patients with acne vulgaris. Face was involved in all patients followed by back, chest, arms & neck. 72 patients (30%) had grade I acne, 60 (25%) had grade II, 64 (27%) had grade III while 44 (18%) had grade IV acne Vulgaris. Out of total 240 students, 53% had feeling of low selfesteem because of acne and 40% revealed they avoided social gatherings and interaction with opposite sex because of acne. Suicidal ideation was found in 8 students (3%) while 28 students thought acne would lead to difficulty in getting them a good job. Thus acne vulgaris has lot of negative psychological impact on students, which included low self-esteem, social inhibition and fear of not getting a good job. Our study thus brings out the clinical profile and psychological impact of acne vulgaris in students attending a teaching hospital in north India.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

We would like to acknowledge all the students who participated in the study. We are especially thankful to Dr. Nitin Vora, Professor, Dermatology, B.J. Medical College, Ahmedabad for his guidance during conduction of this study.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST

None.

REFERENCES

- Simpson NB, Cunliffe WJ. Disorders of sebaceous glands. In: Burns T, Breathnach S, Cox N, Griffiths C, editors. Rook's Textbook of Dermatology, 7th ed., Oxford: Blackwell Publishing; 2004. p. 43.1-43.75.
- 2. Ikaraoha CI, Taylor GOL, Anetor JI, Igwe CU et al. Demographic features, beliefs and sociopsychological impact of acne vulgaris among its

sufferers in two towns in Nigeria. Online J Health Allied Scs. 2005; 1; 3.

- 3. Adityan B, Thappa DM. Profile of acne vulgaris-A hospital-based study from South India. Indian J Dermatol Venereol Leprol 2009; 75: 272-278.
- 4. Al-Ameer AM, Al-Akloby OM. Demographic features and seasonal variations in patients with acne vulgaris in Saudi Arabia: A hospital-based study. Int J Dermatol 2002; 41: 870-871.
- 5. Kane A, Niang SO, Diagne AC, Ly F, Ndiaye B. Epidemiological, clinical, and therapeutic features of acne in Dakar, Senegal. Int J Dermatol 2007; 46: 36-38.
- Kilkenny M, Merlin K, Plunkett A, Marks R. The prevalence of common skin conditions in Australian school students: 3, Acne vulgaris. Br J Dermatol 1998; 139: 840-845.
- Cunliffe WJ, Holland DB, Clark SM, Stables GI. Comedogenesis: some new aetiological, clinical and therapeutic strategies. Br J Dermatol 2000; 142: 1084-1091.
- 8. Tutakne MA, Chari KV. Acne, rosacea and perioral dermatitis. In: Valia RG, Valia AR, editors. IADVL Textbook and atlas of dermatology, 2nd ed., Mumbai: Bhalani Publishing House; 2003. p. 689-710.
- 9. Taylor SC, Cook-Bolden F, Rahman Z, Strachan D. Acne vulgaris in skin of color. J Am Acad Dermatol 2002; 46: 98-106.
- 10. Yeung CK, Teo LH, Xiang LH, Chan HH. A community-based epidemiological study of acne vulgaris in Hong Kong adolescents. Acta Dermatol Venereol 2002; 82: 104-107.
- 11. Rehn LM, Meririnne E, Hook-Nikanne J, Isometsa E et al. Depressive symptoms, suicidal ideation and acne: a study of male Finnish conscripts. J Eur Acad Dermatol Venereol. May 2008; 22 (5): 561-567.
- 12. Graham-Brown R, Bourke J. Mosby's Color Atlas and Text of Dermatology, 2nd edition, Elsevier; 2008, p.234.

Adolescents: Friendship and health

Soroor Parvizy*, Fazlollah Ahmadi**, Shoaleh Bigdeli***

*Associate Professor, Department of Community Health Nursing, Nursing and Midwifery Faculty, Centre for Educational Research in Medical Sciences, Tehran University of Medical Sciences, Tehran, 14197-33171 Iran.

*Associate Professor, Nursing Department, Faculty of Medicine, Tarbiat Modarres University, Tehran, 14155-4838, Iran

***Assistant Professor, Department of Medical Education, Faculty of Medicine, Tehran University of Medical Sciences, Tehran, 14155-5983, Iran.

ABSTRACT

This study is an attempt to explore Iranian adolescents' perspectives on friendship and health. Purposeful sampling was used (n=41). Interviews were recorded and transcribed for further analysis. Results showed three main themes, two of which are the focus of this paper as: positive and negative impact of peers, friendship with the opposite sex.

To maintain a healthy society, considering the multilayered dimensions of adolescence and recognition its characteristics is critical for families, teachers, curriculum planners, health workers and policy makers

Key words: Adolescence, Content analysis, Health, Peer group, Qualitative approach

INTRODUCTION

A Large body of research has investigated different aspects of adolescence health^{1, 5,7}^{13,15, 23, 24}, among these, a study on depressive symptoms and risky behaviors shows that depressive symptoms of adolescence are significantly associated with parental depression, family dysfunction, problems with peers, low selfesteem, alcoholism, feminine gender, and large family size¹. Furthermore, in comparison to their peers, adolescents from poor families, with either one or both parents unemployed, inadequate emotional support, and frequent conflicts significantly engage in more risky behaviors²³.

Moreover, during adolescence, growth, development, and adaptation to developmental changes of this era, often take place within an environment of drug abuse, increased sexual relationship and weakened family structure²⁴. Among adolescence developmental changes, the tendency to

Correspondence Address: Shoaleh Bigdeli

Assistant Professor, Department, Faculty of Medicine, Tarbiat Modarres University, Tehran University Medical Sciences, Tehran - 14155-5983, Iran Tel.: +98-21-88622607; Fax: +98-21-88622607. E-mail address: sh-bigdeli@tums.ac.ir/shb555@yahoo.com become independent from family members, as well as, an increased inclination to follow peers is remarkable. The influence of peers on each other as a normal evolutionary process and a prerequisite for socialization in adolescence, as an identity-seeking period, can bring harms⁷ due to separation from family and significant others and joining to peers. Considering the vulnerability of the youth and the fact that relationship with peers can increase this vulnerability, addressing the subject of friendship in adolescence is of outmost importance.

Friendship is crucial to psychological health of adolescents⁵. Accordingly, another study¹⁵ investigated the association between social relations and psychological health complaints, and emphasized that stressed relations are strongly associated with psychosomatic complaints¹⁵. Moreover, friendship with deviant friends increases the risk of antisocial behavior during adulthood⁸. Furthermore, there is evidence that insufficient family and friend support, peer victimization, physical and/or sexual abuse, and emotional neglect positively correlate with adolescence suicide¹³.

However, the existing literature on adolescence holds little qualitative evidence available on the youth friendship and health, especially in Iranian context. In addition, evaluation of the youth lived experiences and deep emotions, as a risk-prone group, are not easily achievable by the current quantitative research.

METHODS

THE IRANIAN CONTEXT

Iran with more than fifteen million adolescents, approximately 30% of the country's total population, is one of the youngest countries in the world¹⁸. The tendency to show risky behaviors among the youth, confronts countries with a challenging situation. Within the Iranian context, friendship has an influential role on the youth, and friends are crucially important to live a healthy or unhealthy life. In Iranian culture friendship is considered vital and family is regarded as a sacred being; therefore, sometimes, adolescents may keep their relationships, especially with the opposite sex, secret from their immediate family members. Furthermore, in Iran, due to social and educational development, and changing employment policies, Iranian adolescents live in a transitional period; however, they still prefer to enjoy more family emotional support, and need to be attached to their family members while seeking more independence²⁶.

In this section, we will report the results of some Iranian studies on adolescents and their peers. A comparative study on adolescents' attachment to mother, father, and peers in Shiraz guidance schools has revealed that there is a positive correlation between age and attachment to peers, while this attachment to father and mother shows a negative correlation²⁶. A quasi-experimental study compared the effects of teaching breast self-examination by peers and health care personnel on students' knowledge and attitude, the results of which showed that the mean score of knowledge in the group trained by their peers was higher than those trained by health care personnel². Moreover, the results of a longitudinal quasi-experimental study which employed a skill-based intervention to prevent and reduce substance abuse among urban adolescents in Tehran, showed that the intervention significantly decreased substance abuse, improved knowledge, changed attitudes, improved say NO skills, and increased level of selfcontrol, self-efficacy, and perceived susceptibility among the intervention group; whereas, level of self control and attitudes against substance abuse among the control group were deteriorated ^{3.} In another study on the influence of peers, adolescents who met their friends regularly and had a stronger tie with them, brushed their teeth twice or more a day. In addition, girls were significantly more likely to brush their teeth; however, they had weaker peer social networks than boys¹⁰. According to the importance of the issue, this qualitative content analysis is an attempt to explore adolescents' perspectives on health and friendship.

In-depth, open-ended semi-structured interviews were carried out in were conducted in one or two sessions within an average of one hour natural settings through purposive sampling, which were tape-recorded and, transcribed for further analysis. To understand, interpret and conceptualize the meaning in qualitative data^{14,17}, after each interview, the content is read and reread for several times. Then, it was broken down into smaller meaningful units called codes, which were categorized into sub-themes and themes, through constant comparative analysis till a sense of satisfaction to researchers and reasonable stability toward data is reached¹⁷.

TRUSTWORTHINESS OF THE DATA

Data trustworthiness was confirmed by prolonged engagement, member, peer, and external check. The maximum variation of sampling is used for data conformability and credibility³⁰.

ETHICAL CONSIDERATIONS

The ethics research review board of Tehran University of Medical Sciences, Nursing and Midwifery School approved the research ethical considerations. all aspects of ethical guidelines with respect to human rights were applied including consent forms were also secured.

RESULTS

The findings are explained according to the demographic data and the emerged themes (Table 1 and 2).

Demographic Characteristics	Number	Percent
Sex:		
Male	17	41
Female	24	59
Education		
Secondary School	14	34
High School	22	54
University	5	12
Employment		
Student	36	87
Worker	4	10
Shopkeeper	1	3
Total	41	100

Гab	le	1.	Dem	ogra	phi	c dat	a
-----	----	----	-----	------	-----	-------	---

[a]	b	le 2.	The	Emerged	Themes	and	Sub-t	hemes
-----	---	-------	-----	---------	--------	-----	-------	-------

Consequences of relationship with peer group	* Positive effects* Negative effects
Friendship with the opposite sex	* Reasons * Limitations

The positive and adverse effects of peers

The positive or negative outcomes of friendship and its influence on the onset of undesirable habits such as smoking, alcohol consumption, and drug abuse have emphasized by the participants. Male participants mostly reported undesirable and unwanted behaviors under the influence of their peers (peer obedience), while there is seldom a report on their positive influence:

"I was a villain... my friend encouraged me to share our secrets and deeds. He stopped me from doing mischief. He accompanied me to mosques and religious gatherings....to attend a mosque was a good experience; I enjoyed attending religious places, because it was a very unique experience." 15, 16 year old boy

Friendship with the opposite sex

Developing friendship with the opposite sex was one of the most challenging issues for which participants brought up and explained various motives. A number of participants mentioned modernity and its challenges, satellites and the internet, seeking affection and decreased family relationships as a grownup, as the main reasons for developing relationship with the opposite sex, while others emphasized the need to know others, and the need to feel as a grownup.

In this regard, one of the adolescents mentioned:

"Some girls seek friendship with boys because of modernity and to be more stylish, it is "a must" for them and they want to follow modes; while others seek affection, and when a guy loves them, they become attracted to him. However, in fact, they never receive what they want." P. 22, 18 year old girl Friendship with the opposite sex might provide a context for development of various social deviations ranging from familial conflicts, educational decline, and emotional dependency to possible transmission of sexual diseases, some of which were reported as the worst consequence of illegal relationship with the opposite sex.:

"These friendships usually damage our school work. Parents do not agree friendship with a girl friend; we cannot talk to them about friendship with the opposite sex. In our country, falling in love with an opposite sex should be kept as a secret and it is a misery." P.12, 18-year-old male.

"Today, one of the diseases that threaten life of the youth is AIDS that can be acquired from sexual relationship between adolescents." P.13, 17-year-old-boy.

In addition, imposing limitations on the relationship between the opposite sexes and forbidding them will bring about unwanted, undesirable effects:

"Being restricted is ridiculous, cause forbidding these relationships, worsen the situation." P.23, 16 year old girl.

DISCUSSION

Content analysis was according to the qualitative methodology. The first extracted theme, has two subthemes: positive and negative effects of friendship on adolescents, the participants emphasized the role of peers which is similar to what has been reported in the literature^{9,11, 15, 27,28}. Moreover, they stated that they got a sense of "energy and euphoria, psychological vitality, superiority and a sense of identity" through interaction with peers that act as a psychological support for them.

Abnormal friendship leads to higher rates of complicated behaviors in adolescents, and interaction with deviant peers leads to emergence of antisocial behavior in early adulthood⁸. In contrast, it is shown that peers were successful to run a stop smoking program in schools of both genders⁴. Therefore, increasing body of knowledge about coping with peer pressure may provide a particular promising route of intervention in adolescents' substance use and abuse²⁴.

Participants of the study stated that friendship with the opposite sex is one of their main health challenges. In addition, the male participants of the study narrated more negative experiences due to their relationships, because in Iran they are less limited, have more joys, and can spend more time with peers, than females. Although, friendship with the opposite sex in Iran is significantly less popular than Western countries; yet, transition from a traditional to a modern society and signs of adolescent's identity crisis add to the severity of the problem²¹. In Iran, according to the sociocultural-religious views, pre-marital relationship with the opposite sex is still a taboo; but, satellites and the internet propagate the western model of relationship with the opposite sex, especially for the youth.

Culture and various contextual factors affect the extent of relationship between the sexes, these may include, a range from simple friendship to having romantic or sexual involvement⁷. According to the participants, transmitted diseases acquired from a sexual relationship are the worst consequences of secret premarital friendships. Adolescents are highly at risk to acquire AIDS. And, the program of "Healthy People till 2010" has addressed this issue³¹. Recently,

in Iran, AIDS trend has changed from addictionoriented to sex-oriented³³.

Early or, increased sexual activity, having too many sexual partners, pregnancy, transmitted sexual diseases, alcohol consumption, cigarette smoking and drug abuse are amongst the problems that adolescents face. Continuation of these behaviors, increase their importance in adulthood^{16,28,29}. The widening gap between generations, social trends, modernity, and more virtual communication along with enculturation are factors related to adolescence health that extremely affect traditional families²⁰. Also, it is reported that religious beliefs are associated with lower risk of smoking and drinking in adolescents²⁵. The religious and traditional structures of Iranian society to a certain extent control the development of high risk friendship with the opposite sex. However, because of the internet and other advanced communication systems that significantly influence the youth, there is a change of patterns in premature sexual relationships among adolescents which from the Iranian cultural and religious point of view is neither accepted nor legal.

There is a belief that premature sexual activities predispose adolescents to the major risk of unpleasant unwanted effects²⁸. A great number of adolescents in the Western countries, during high school, have more than one sexual partner, the result of which is an increase in sexually transmitted diseases among 13-21 year old adolescents^{12, 22} which is the most paramount goal of the World Health Organization to overcome³¹.

CONCLUSION

Health practitioners and nurses are in a position to encourage health promotion by assessing lifestyle patterns among the youth and to facilitate positive and to decrease negative behaviors⁶. There is an urgent need for teachers, policy-makers, and health practitioners to be aware of adolescence needs. Furthermore, to consider adolescence needs, according to their socio-cultural contexts, in curriculum development is of an upmost importance.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The participation of all participants who added value to the results of this research and the official support of Tehran University of Medical Sciences, faculty of Nursing and Midwifery are highly appreciated.

REFERENCES

1. Abiodun, O., Adewuya, M.B., Yemisi, A., & Ologun, B. (2006). Factors Associated with

Depressive Symptoms in Nigerian Adolescents. Journal of Adolescent Health, 39, 105-110.

- 2. Akbarzadeh, M., Zangiabadi, M., Moatari, M., Tabatabaei, HR., (2009). Comparing the effect of teaching breast self-examination by peers and health care personnel on students knowledge and attitude. Iranian Journal of Medical Education, 8, 2, 195-202. (In Persian)
- 3. Allahverdipour H, Bazargan M, Farhadinasab A, Hidarnia A, Bashirian S. J Drug Educ. 2009; 39(2): 211-222
- Audreya, S., Hollidayb, J., & Campbell, R. (2006). It's good to talk: Adolescent perspectives of an informal, peer-led intervention to reduce smoking. Social Science & Medicine, 63, 320-334.
- Chan, W.Y., & Birman, D. (2009). Cross-and samerace friendships of Vietnamese immigrant adolescents: A focus on acculturation and school diversity. International Journal of Intercultural Relations. 33, 313-324.
- Chen, M.Y., James, K., & Wang, E.K. (2007). Comparison of health-promoting behavior between Taiwanese and American adolescents: A cross-sectional questionnaire survey. International Journal of Nursing Studies, 44(1), 59-69.
- Cingöz-Ulu, B., Lalonde, R.N. (2007). The role of culture and relational context in interpersonal conflict: Do Turks and Canadians use different conflict management strategies? International Journal of Intercultural Relations, 31,4, 443-458.
- Dishion, T.J., Nelson, S.E., Winter, C.E., & Bullock, B.M., (2004). Adolescent Friendship as a Dynamic System: Entropy and Deviance in the Etiology and Course of Male Antisocial Behavior. Journal of Abnormal Child Psychology, 32,6, 651-663.
- Dolcini, M. M., Harper, G. W., Watson, S.E., Catania, J,A., Ellen, J.M., (2005) Friends in the 'hood: Should peer-based health promotion programs target non-school friendship networks? Journal of Adolescent Health. 36, 267.e6 –267.e15.
- Dorri M, Sheiham A, Watt R.(2010)The influence of peer social networks on toothbrushing behaviour in Iranian adolescents in Mashhad, Community Dentistry Oral Epidemiological, Dec; 38(6): 498-506
- Gray, N.J., Hughes. F. A., & Klein, J.D. (2003). Cultural safety and the health of adolescents. British Medical Journal. 327, 457-457.
- 12. Hunt R. (2001). Community-Based Nursing; Philadelphia: Lippincott Co.
- 13. King, C.A,& Merchant, C. (2008). Social and interpersonal factors relating to adolescent suicidality: a review of the literature. Archives of Suicide Research. 12, 3, 181-196.
- 14. Krippendorff, K. (2004). Content analysis: an

introduction to its methodology. Thousand Oaks, CA : Sage.

- 15. La[^] ftmana S.B., O[°] stbergb V. (2006). The pros and cons of social relations: An analysis of adolescents' health complaints. Social Science & Medicine. 63, 611–623.
- 16. Micucci, J. (1998). The Adolescent in Family Therapy .New York: Guilford Co.
- 17. Morgan D, L. (1993). Qualitative Content Analysis: A Guide to Path Not Taken. Qualitative Health Researh. 3,1, 112-121.
- National youth Organization. (2009). Vazeeiat va Negharesh Javanan Iran (in Persian) The Iranian's Youth Situation and Attitude. Theran: Roonas Co. (In Persian)
- Nies, M., Mc Ewen, M. (2001). Community Health Nursing; 3rd Ed; Philadelphia: Sanders Co. O[°] zcebe, H., Akin, L. (2003). Effects of Peer Education on Reproductive Health Knowledge for Adolescents Living in Rural Areas of Turkey. Journal of Adolescent Health. 33, 217-218.
- 20. Parvizy.S, Ahmadi.F, Nikbakht. A (2008). An identity based-model for adolescents health: A qualitative study, Eastern Mediterranean Health Journal, 14, 4, 869-879.
- 21. Parvizy, S., Nikbakht, A., Tehrani, S & Shahrokhi, S., (2005). Adolescents' perspectives on Addiction: Qualitative Study. Nursing & Health Sciences journal. 3, 192-199.
- 22. Reiff, M., (2001). Health compromising behaviors: Why do adolescents smoke or drink? Identifying underlying risk and protective factors. Journal of Developmental & Behavioral Pediatrics. 22, 148-149.

- 23. Ronceviæ, N., (2006). Adolescent health. Article in Serbian, Srp Arh Celok Lek. 134, 1, 34-44.
- 24. Rumpold, G., Klingseis, M., Dornauer, K., Kopp, M., Doering, S., Hofer, S., Mumelter. B.,
- 25. Russell MV, Haines MM, Head JA. (2006). Variations in associations of health risk behaviors among ethnic minority early adolescents. Journal of Adolescent Health. 38, 55.e15-55e.23.
- 26. Samani S. (2007). A comparison of a attachment to mother, father and peers in guidance school student in Shiraz. Journal of social sciences and humanities of Shiraz University. (in Persian) 25, 4, 49, 99-111.
- 27. Schultte E, Price D, Gwin J. (2001). Pediatric Nursing: An Introductory Text, 8th Ed, Philadeelphia: Sanders Co.
- 28. Senderowitz J. (1995). Adolescent Health; Washington: World Bank Pub.
- 29. Stanhope, Lancaster J. (2000). Community & Public Health Nursing; 5th Ed; WDC: Mosby Co.
- 30. Streubert HJ, & Carpenter DR. (2007). Qualitative research in nursing; Advancing the humanistic imperative, 4th Ed, Lippincott Co, Philadelphia.
- 31. World Health Organization. (2002). Challenge of Adolescent Sexual Development; Geneva: WHO pub.
- 32. Zambon., A, Lemma., P, Borraccino A, Dalmasso P, Cavallo F. (2006). Socio-economic position and adolescents' health in Italy: the role of the quality of social relations. European Journal of Public Health.16,6, 627-32.
- 33. Mohraz M. (2010). An Interview with the head of AIDS research centre, In Persian, Retrieved from http://www.pezeshkan.org/?p=20390 on 26 June 2010.

Thermographic Imaging - A Brief Review

*G.V. Pramod, **M S Shrinidhi

*Reader Department of Oral Medicine and Radiology, Bapuji Dental College and Hospital Davangere - 577 004, Karnataka **Professor and Head, Department of Periodontics Sharavathi Dental College and Hospital Shivamogga

INTRODUCTION

The normal internal temperature in resting man is maintained within very narrow limits inspite of wide variations in environmental temperature. The human skin is almost a perfect emitter of infrared radiation and its temperature varies widely as a result of environmental changes¹⁵. By studying the skin temperature patterns from the patient's body, the diagnosticians gain a direct index of the metabolic activity in the various parts of the body¹⁰.

Thermography (Gk therme-heat, graphein-to record) Thermography is a technique for sensing and recording on film hot and cold areas of the body by means of infrared detectors that reacts to blood flow.

Thermography makes use of measuring techniques, which portray surface temperature distributions pictorially, and this is accomplished either with liquid crystals or infrared scanning equipment¹. It gives us a functional perspective based on physiology and stress response¹⁰.

"We can finally see what the body is doing before it becomes dysfunctional enough to create an irreversible problem".

HISTORY OF THERMOLOGY

The importance of deep body temperature as an indicator of disease has been known for centuries. HIPPOCRATES used his right hand to judge the skin temperature of his sick patients. In 1592, GALILEO GALILEI was credited with inventing the Galileo's thermo scope. In 1611, SANTORIO SANCTORIUS developed the first thermometer with 110 grades.

Correspondence Address: Dr. G.V. Pramod Reader Department of oral medicine and radiology Bapuji Dental College And Hospital Davangere - 577 004 Telephone Number: (08192) 221385 Email: gv. pramod@rediffmail.com drpramodeepa@gmail.com It took however nearly 300 years before WUNDERLICH introduced fever measurements as a routine clinical diagnostic procedure. This method took decades to become firmly established and is now customary in all hospitals through out the world to take daily body (core) temperature measurements on all patients.¹

METHODS OF OBTAINING THERMAL IMAGES

Thermal images can be obtained mainly by two methods

- 1. Direct contact methods: Ex. Liquid crystal thermography (LCT)
- 2. Non-contact methods: Ex. Infrared thermography (IRT) includes Area telethermometry, Electronic thermography, Infrared telethermography (ITT), or Digital infrared telethermographic imaging (DITI).¹

CONTACT METHOD

LIQUID CRYSTAL THERMOGRAPHY

Liquid crystal area thermometers use flexible rubber sheets within which cholesteric crystals are embedded. There are several layers of the crystals in the commercial sheet materials, which are mounted in a frame .The liquid crystal elastic sheet, are applied to the surfaces of the body. After placement, the crystals change from their neutral color at room temperature in response to the surface temperature of the body with which they are in contact. The color distribution over these sheets represents the temperature distribution over the area of skin in contact with the sheet. The resultant color display is then photographed. It is this photograph that becomes the thermogram, which is used for diagnostic evaluation¹.

ADVANTAGES

- a. Portable
- b. No contact between the skin and the monitoring device during studying skin temperature
- c. Easy to apply
- d. No electric requirements

Thermal device Direct Contact Methods 1. Hand	Thermal sensitivity (°C)	Estimated cost (\$)	Estimated date of inception	Major advantages	Major disadvantages
2. Mercury thermometer	2-3 0.1-0.2	0 2	100's B.C. 1500's	 Convenient Inexpensive, convenient 	SubjectiveRequirescontact
3. Thermistor, thermocouple	0.01 - 0.02	2000	1930's	- High accuracy, convenient	- Requires contact
4. Liquid crystal thermography	0.3 - 1.0	5000	1960's	- Provides thermal image	- Requires contact
Non-Contact Methods Computerized Infrared telethermography 	0.05	75 000	1970's	- Non-contact static image, computer data analysis	- Expensive and static image
2. Advanced Infrared computerized telethermography	0.005	100 000	1990's	 Non-contact dynamic image, computer data analysis 	- Expensive

e. Considerably less expensive than electronic telethermography units

DISADVANTAGES

- a. Low or poor thermal sensitivity $(0.3 1 \, {}^{\circ}C)$.
- b. Skin surface has to be blackened
- c. The process is technique sensitive
- d. Require carefully timed skin contact to record a reproducible temperature distribution
- e. The spatial resolution of the liquid crystal display is poor (> 5mm)



Fig. 1: Full body Thermographic Image



Fig. 2: Thermo graphic image of face

In spite of its severe limitations, liquid crystal thermography has been claimed to yield meaningful results in the evaluation of thermal abnormalities of the face due to orofacial disorders.

NON-CONTACT METHOD

INFRARED THERMOGRAPHY

JOHN FREDRICK WILLIAM HERSCHEL recorded infrared wavelengths and introduced the term "Thermograph".

186 Indian Journal of Public Health Research & Development. July-Sep., 2012, Vol. 3, No. 3



Fig. 3: Thermographic image of hands







Fig. 4: Thermographic image of legs

THE EQUIPMENT

i. Detector system

There are two categories of detectors. They are

a. Thermal detectors: Thermal detectors suitable for clinical use sense radiation by the temperature rise in the absorbing element, which affects some temperature-sensitive property. Pyroelectric detectors have the advantage that they can detect long wavelength radiation without detector cooling which is required for photon detectors. Recently pyroelectric detectors have been incorporated into VIDICON type TV tubes.¹³

b. Photon detectors:

Indium antimonide (InSb) and cadmium mercury telluride (usually referred to as CMT) are the photon detectors most often used in clinical thermography equipment.

ii. Imaging Systems



Fig. 5: Thermographic image of inflamed face

Scanning of the scene in front of the detector can be accomplished by a variety of ways example, the Aga Thermovision 680 Medical camera or other systems like oscillating mirrors and rotating multi-sided mirror drums. The thermal picture is usually displayed on a television image tube.

More recently, serial scan systems have been developed in each detector in a linear array scan in sequence over every point in the scene, and the signals are appropriately delayed and added to form the image.

iii. Display systems

The signal derived from the detector is amplified and used to modulate the intensity of the electron beam of a TV monitor type picture-tube display unit. The thermal image shows relative temperature differences in a continuous range of gray tones from black to white. The hot area to be displayed may be white or black (inverted mode) depending on the preference of the user.





MYOGENIC FASCIAL PAIN

GENERAL CONSIDERATIONS PREPARATION OF THE PATIENT

Clinical thermography should be carried out in a draught-free, constant temperature environment. A

cool ambient temperature of 19+/-1°C is the optimum to ensure reliable standardization and operation of the imaging equipment. It is important to strictly follow as many of these factors,

- 1) Expose the area of examination.
- 2) Keeping the subject at rest for 12-15 minutes in constant temperature (70-75°C) room.
- Keeping the room free from air currents and heat generating objects¹.
- Subjects being investigated by thermography must have clean, dry skin free from cosmetic cream. Perspiration on the skin reduces the apparent surface temperature.¹³

Thermographic feature suggestive of abnormality is localized area of temperature increase either unilateral or bilateral of about 1.5K or more on over the suspected pathologic area.¹³

Blood vessels which lie within 2 or 3 mm of the surface can be imaged photographically using reflected light and infrared sensitive film. Fat in contrast to muscle is a poor conductor, on the thermogram skin over the fat appears colder than skin over muscle. Hair is avascular and appears as "cold spots". Conversely skin over muscle large veins, bruises, hematomas, infections and injuries appear as "hot spots". Heavy scar tissue and uninfected cysts appear cold as a result of low metabolism and relative avascularity.¹⁵

Since its first application Infrared thermography has shown considerable potential within a number of dental disciplines including Periodontology, Restorative dentistry, Prosthodontics, Oral surgery and Oral Medicine.

SOME AREAS OF RESEARCH AND APPLICATIONS

- i. Breast cancers (by Lawson, 1956)^{11, 15}
- ii. Diagnosis and management of malignant melanoma
- iii. To quantitate the inflammation present in Osteoarthritic joint and in sacroiliac region
- iv. To determine the vitality of teeth and Atypical odontalgia
- v. Obstetric application
- vi. For screening for cancer, management of burn or wound healing $^{\rm 16}$
- vii. To study rheumatic and other orthopedic diseases, cerebrovascular diseases, and ophthalmic disease⁵
- viii. To evaluate dermatologic diseases⁵
- ix. For the quantification of the effects of post-surgical inflammation, dental analgesics, and anti-inflammatory drugs, etc.



Fig. 8: Thermographic image of breasts

TEMPERATURE GRADIENT IN NORMAL TEETH



THERMOGRAM OF A NON-VITAL TOOTH



- x. In alveolar bone during implant site bone surgery.
- xi. Useful in the diagnosis of myofascial symptoms associated with temporomandibular disorders etc.

USES

Thermography is being used to investigate a variety of clinical problems. The most important amongst these are:

- 1) Screening for occult malignant disease.
- 2) Delineation of the extent of known disease.
- Identification of areas with abnormal temperatures, which might be the cause of functional impairment of underlying organs or glands.
- Monitoring the effects of various forms of therapy such as reconstructive surgery, radiotherapy or treatment with hormones or drugs.
- 5) Assessing the prognosis of certain disease.
- 6) Identify functional deficiencies and vascular disorders.
- 7) Studying the effects of acute or chronic trauma.
- 8) Physiological research such as energy metabolism and peripheral vascular investigations.¹³

FACIAL TELETHERMOGRAPHY

The normal facial telethermograph

Heat emissions from the human face have been shown to be physiologic indicators of underlying health or disease. Heat emission is directly related to cutaneous vascular activity, yielding enhanced heat output on vasodilatation and reduced heat output on vasoconstriction. Infrared telethermography of the face may serve, therefore, as an utterly harmless non-invasive diagnostic technique that can help to differentiate selected clinical problems.⁶

Overall thermal symmetry usually is present in the face and neck regions of normal subjects. Areas of highest thermal symmetry include the nasal, inframandibular, inferior labial, inferior buccal, superior buccal, superior buccal and TMJ regions of the face and neck. The posterior neck and temporal region of the face demonstrated the lowest degree of thermal symmetry. Electronic thermography has potential for use as an alternative diagnostic technique in dentistry.⁷

THE ABNORMAL FACIAL TELETHERMOGRAPH

There has also been interest in the application of thermographic methods to the study of oral and paraoral lesions.

i) Chronic orofacial pain patients

Recent clinical studies have successfully assessed the application of telethermography on patients with chronic oral and or facial pain of greater than 4 month's duration.

ii) Assessing TMJ disorders

The most widely studied application of thermography to the orofacial region has been in the characterization of craniomandibular disorders, particularly TMJ dysfunction.⁴

TMJ pain patients were found to have asymmetrical thermal patterns, with increased temperatures over the affected TMJ region of their face. Specifically, painful TMJ patients with internal derangements and painful TMJ osteoarthritis were both found to have asymmetrical thermal patterns and increased area temperatures over the affected TMJ region of their faces.

The recent dental literature on majority of telethermography studies demonstrated a strong correlation between pain and local hyper perfusion or hyperthermia.⁶

ii) In oral inflammatory conditions

There are few dental studies. In one thermography was used to help determine the vitality of teeth. Results showed that firstly there was no correlation between electric pulp test readings & infrared temperature and secondly decayed / filled tooth surfaces & infrared temperature. One positive result was with a clinical abscess case¹⁵.

Thermography when used in odontogenic inflammatory conditions, the results showed the technique to be effective in active cases of disorders like periodontitis, periostitis, osteomyelitis, abscess and cellulitis¹⁵.

Thermography found that the normal surface temperature of the mucosa was significantly cooler than the temperatures of the inflamed areas in subjects with lesions induced by chemotherapy. Infrared thermography may allow measurement of tooth vitality to be based on blood supply rather than nerve supply. Thus it could be reliable method of vitality testing after transplantation. There was temperature gradient from the gingival margin to the incisal edge of approximately 2.5°C. The gingival margin of the teeth is at approximately 29°C whereas incisal edge is at approximately 27.5°C at an ambient room temperature of 21°C.

Thermography is a promising aid in the diagnosis of atypical odontalgia $^{\rm 8}$ and internal derangement of TMJ.

Other physical disorders that have been reported to produce abnormal facial thermograms and that are potentially related to craniomandibular problems with myofascial pain syndromes, myositis, musculoligamentous injury, motor and sensory radioculopathy, herniated disc disease and the inflammation of arthritis and bursitis.⁸

RECENT DEVELOPMENTS AND FUTURE PROSPECTS

- i) Pyroelectric vidicon camera
- ii) Microwave Thermography
- iii) Dynamic Area Telethermometry (DAT)
- iv) Digital Infrared Thermal Imaging (DITI)

CONCLUSION

The application of temperature measurement and thermal imaging to assess health and disease (medical thermology) has continued to advance since antiquity up to the present day. The use of thermography has been minimal principally due to technological inadequacies of previous thermal imaging system. However with the ever-developing advancement in technology, current systems are capable of producing real time highly sensitive digitized thermal images. This development has led to take an increased use of newer thermographic imaging both medical and dental research.

REFERENCES

- 1. Anbar M, Gratt BM, Hong D. Thermology and facial telethermography. Part I: history and technical review. Dentomaxillo facial Radiology. 1998, 27: 61-67.
- 2. Barnett ML et al. Computer based thermal imaging of human gingiva. Journal of Periodontology. 1989; 60: 628-633.
- 3. Berry DC. Variations in skin temperature of face in normal subjects and in patients with mandibular dysfunction. Br J of Oral Surg. 1971; 8: 242-247.

- 4. Biagioni PA et al. Infraredthermography: Its role in dental research with particular reference to craniomandibular disorders. Dentomaxillofacial Radiology. 1996; 25: 119-124.
- Curcio RTBM. Pararadiologic imaging modalities: Ultrasonography and thermography. In Merill V, editor. Atlas of roentgen graphic positions and standard radiological procedures. Saint Louis, the Mosby Company, 1975. 4th edi, 3rd vol.p.954-959.
- 6. Gratt BM, Anbar M, Thermology and facial thermography: Part II. Current and future clinical applications in dentistry. Dertomaxillofacial Radiology. 1998, 27: 68-74.
- 7. Gratt BM, Pullinger A, and Sickles EA, and Lee JJ, Electronic thermography of normal facial structures: a pilot study Oral Surg Oral Med Oral Pathol. 1989, 68: 346-51.
- 8. Gratt BM, Sickles EA and RossJB Electronic thermography in the assessment of internal derangement of the TMJ. Oral Surg Oral Med Oral Pathol. 1991; 71: 364-70.
- 9. Gratt BM, Sickles EA, Groff-Radford SB and

Solberg WK. Electronic thermography in the diagnosis of atypical odontolgia. A pilot study. Oral Surg Oral Med Oral Pathol. 1989, 68: 472-481.

- 10. http://www.ami.com.au/~lifetronics/crt/ crt.htm
- 11. http://www.infraredtraining.net
- 12. http://www.meditherm.com
- Jones CH in PNT wells scientific basis of medical imaging, Thermographic imaging, P 194 – 210, 1st ed., 1982: P 194 – 210, Churchill living stone.
- 14. Pogrel MA, Erbez G, Taylor RC, Dobson TB, Liquid crystal thermography as a diagnostic aid and objective monitor for TMJ dysfunction and myogenic facial pain. J Craniomard disorders: Fac Oral Pain. 1989, 3: 65-70.
- 15. Soffin CB, Morse DR, Seltzer S, Lapayowker MS. Thermography and oral inflammatory conditions. Oral Surg Oral Med Oral Pathol. 1983; 56: 256-262.
- 16. White A et al. The use of infrared thermography in the evaluation of oral lesions. JADA.1986; 113: 783-786.

Perceptions of Church Leaders on HIV and AIDS in Metro Manila, the Philippines

Sibasis Hense*, Anupama Sharma**

*Southern Cross University, Australia and M.B.A Institute of Health Management Research, Jaipur, India, **International Health Policy and Management, Brandeis University, U.S.A and M.B.A, Institute of Health Management Research, Jaipur, India

ABSTRACT.

Human Immune Deficiency Virus (HIV) and Acquired Immune Deficiency Syndrome (AIDS) are serious public health problems. HIV/AIDS cases are on the rise world wide. In the Philippines, experts view the epidemic to be "growing but hidden". Studies show religious institutions including the church can play vital role in HIV prevention, care and support for the people living with HIV and AIDS (PLWHA). This study is an attempt to explore the perceptions, attitude, and knowledge of church leaders towards HIV and AIDS in Metro Manila. Data collected from 24 church leaders in 4 major Christian denominations through face-to-face interviews reveal that a majority of them have poor understanding of HIV/AIDS and related problems. Most of the leaders were reluctant to promote the use of condom. According to them sexual abstinence is the best way of HIV prevention. However, the leaders opine, if a need is felt, all possible measures would be taken to prevent the growth of this deadly virus in the Filipino society. Thus, it is imperative to sensitize the church leaders about the menace of HIV and AIDS situation and the related consequences in the country.

Keywords: AIDS, Church, Church leaders, HIV, Philippines, PLWHA, Metro Manila.

INTRODUCTION

Globally, it is estimated that about 33 million people are living with HIV/AIDS in 2007¹. In the Philippines, about 8300 people are estimated to be living with HIV/AIDS by the end of 2007². The first case of HIV/AIDS in the country was detected in 1984, since then the number of Filipinos infected with the virus has been on the rise³. Health experts describe the potential epidemic to be "growing but hidden"⁴. This growing number of HIV/AIDS cases may be due to apparent lack of public awareness of the virus. As the country is primarily inhabited by Catholics, religion holds a powerful key in shaping the ethical and moral norms of its populace. It is also a well known fact that, visit to spiritual places and adhering to religious practices and beliefs provides hope and gratification to individuals suffering from chronic

Correspondence Address: Ms. Anupama Sharma Assistant Professor International Institute of Health Management Research Sector 18A, Dwarka, New Delhi Fax: +91-011-30418909, Office: +91-011-30418900 Mobile: +91-9958293008, Email : anupama@iihmr.org Website: www.iihmr.org ailments including AIDS. Studies have noted that religion practices increase treatment adherence for individuals suffering from chronic ailments including AIDS⁵⁻⁷. This research is significant in exploring the current perceptions of church leaders and their strategic roles to fight against the virus and attached stigma. Three key aspects were explored in this study viz., initiatives taken by four major Christian groupings towards HIV and AIDS, opinions and beliefs of these church leaders towards HIV prevention, care and support activities and, factors acting as constraints to fight against the spread of the virus.

METHODS

Data was collected for a period of seven weeks during a field visit to Metro Manila. Leaders from four major Christian denominations were interviewed throughout Metro Manila including, Manila City, Pasay City, Paranaque, Valenzuela City and Quezon City. The study was exploratory in nature and included 20 sites and interviewed 24 church leaders. Only urban churches were selected on the basis of purposive sampling due to ease in accessibility. The sample however includes both male and female respondents in order to avoid any gender biasness.

Study Design

A non-experimental qualitative design was adopted in this cross sectional study. The study was analytical in nature as it tried to investigate whether the church leaders perceived HIV and AIDS to be a problem in comparison to other health or developmental problems in the Philippines.

Data Collection Procedures and Analyses

A semi-structured open-ended questionnaire was developed for the study. It contained 21 questions in five different sections. The questionnaire was pretested on some of the local church leaders for validation and necessary modifications were made. Prior to each interview session appropriate appointments were taken and a written consent was signed to fulfill the criteria for ethical consideration. De-identified data were collected and each respondent was given a specific identity number to protect privacy. A summary of observations was compiled simultaneously post each interview session. Thematic analyses have been used and each theme was theorised and explained using illustrated quotations from the data set.

RESULTS

The respondent mainly comes under the age group of 25 – 65 years, with median age of 48 year. Six of the respondents were female (25%) and 18 were male (75%). Majority of them have acquired postgraduate qualifications.

Denomination	Location	Total
Catholic	Urban	13
Evangelical	Urban	06
Protestant	Urban	03
Baptist	Urban	02
	TOTAL	24

Table 1. Churches included in the study

Respondents level of understanding of HIV and AIDS

Only few leaders possess the clarity to differentiate between HIV and AIDS. Two respondents felt that their churches had taken initiatives to make their members aware of the virus and its related consequences. 3 of the respondents revealed that, activities undertaken by a local Non-Government Organisation towards HIV prevention helped them to gain appropriate knowledge on the subject. Few of the leaders also perceived that knowing about HIV and AIDS is a matter of self interest.

Perceived impact of HIV and AIDS among Filipinos

Majority of the leaders responded that HIV and AIDS might hamper the country's tourism industry. One of the respondents also perceived that employment generation opportunities for overseas Filipinos workers would be affected. Almost 11 leaders believed that the disease is spreading more among younger people, children and productive age population and would strongly affect the socioeconomic conditions at individual, families and at macro level. Interestingly, one respondent stated that the virus is confined only to a certain population of the society like sex workers, gay community and drug users. Statements like 'Health is Wealth'; Opportunity and Monetary loss due to ill health, and social issues related to stigma, fear and discrimination were few of the responses received during the interview.

Prioritising HIV and AIDS as health issues

Surprisingly, many respondents believed that besides HIV and AIDS, there are currently other health concerns like tuberculosis, cancer, heart diseases, diabetes, dengue, and under-nutrition among children which need to be prioritized. Apart from these health problems, few developmental issues were also pointed out like poverty, increasing crime, corruption etc. Very few perceived the disease to be growing inside and in latent state that needs timely attention. Two of the interviewees strongly felt that the disease was a head on problem and required holistic approach.

Perceptions on condom use and promotion

Majority of the leaders were reluctant to promote the use of condom. Two of the Catholic leaders perceived that it is an individual choice to use a condom or not. One of the leaders also supported its use in specific medical conditions especially, if one of the partners is HIV infected. According to another leader, use of condom is secondary and people should be faithful and follow abstinence. Similarly, for unmarried, promotion of condom use is inconsistent as per the Church teachings.

Perceptions on promoting sexual abstinence

Church leaders from all the four denominations candidly expressed the idea of promoting sexual abstinence. According to Bible preaching, sex should only happen after marriage. Some of the leaders' perceived abstinence is the best and most effective way to avoid HIV virus. They also perceived when someone is faithful to a partner than he/she would be 100% safe from acquiring the HIV infection. One of the leaders also compared abstinence to be a better option than condom use.

Perceived strengths within churches to fight against HIV and AIDS

A plethora of strengths are perceived by the church leaders which could make a difference in disease prevention and providing care and support to the sufferings.

Perceived factors that are driving the spread of HIV infection

The most commonly cited risk factor for HIV transmission was promiscuity followed by ignorance and poverty.

Activities undertaken by Churches to address HIV and AIDS

A very handful number of church was found to be directly involved in addressing the problem of HIV and AIDS either by conducting prevention activity or by providing care and support to the sufferings. A comprehensive intervention program was not in the priority list of any church, because HIV problem is not willing to partner with developmental agencies to address challenge areas and fight the HIV epidemic. Bilateral programs in specific to HIV and AIDS and other health issues like TB, dengue were conducted only by three churches. Few churches have been working in partnership with funding agencies for socio-economic and developmental related issues. Some of the leaders believe that collaboration and partnership can address financial, technical and human resource crunch.

Perceived acceptable prevention message

Different types of prevention message that churches were willing to deliver mostly emphasis on abstinence and fidelity based on Bible teachings. One respondent said, they teach singles and couples differently to prolong life by keeping away from immorality. Nevertheless, a few respondents indicated that they do teach all the messages of prevention wherever necessary.

Attitude towards HIV prevention

The overall attitude of church leaders was found to be congenial and positive towards HIV prevention. However, majority of churches were also not

Table 2	. Perceived	strengths	within	churches
---------	-------------	-----------	--------	----------

Perceived strengths for disease prevention	Perceived strengths for providing care and support system for sufferings
Ability to advocate and disseminate information effectively.	Spiritual and emotional support by sharing the message of hope, compassion, grace and love.
Ability to building and creating networks for Transformational and community development.	Power of counseling to eliminate stigma and discriminations.
Possession of virtues like credibility, fidelity, accountability, acceptability, and relationship with god.	Ability to nurture through holistic development i.e. development of physical, psychological, moral spiritual, economical, and social wellbeing.
Power of eliminating ignorance through education.	Pastoral support for PLWHA

Table 3. Perceived factors that are driving the spread ofHIV and AIDS

Promiscuity	Intra venous Drug Users
Prostitution	Ignorance
Lack of employment	Extra marital sex
Poverty	Overseas Filipino Workers
Curiosity about	Thriving sex industry
sex among teenagers	

a felt need as compared to other health problems. However, through sermons, free seminars and congregations, most of the churches disseminate the message of leading a righteous life to people.

Collaboration, networking and partnership

A majority of church leaders interviewed were

Table 4 Activities undertaken by churches to address HIV and AIDS

Gospel preaching for responsible lifestyle.
Programs targeted to teenagers for building healthy relations i.e. relation of brother, sister and the Christ.
Program targeted among married couples to be faithful and avoid extra marital relationship.
Counseling programs targeted to drug users.
Prayer rallies for prostitutes.
Support for income generating activities to alleviate poverty.
Advocacy and information dissemination through free seminars.
General medical and dental camps through healthcare ministries.
Campaign targeted to youths and professionals on abstinence.

convinced with the idea of rising HIV cases and related deaths. Leaders believed that contribution for HIV prevention can be done provided, a need is felt. When asked about willingness of churches to involve in activities relating to HIV prevention, there were both supportive & non-supportive responses. Alternatively, very few churches were already involved in some sort of prevention activity. According to them the prevention lies within advocacy, information dissemination, and message development. One of the respondents also said that clear and accurate messages delivered through churches could make a real difference.

Attitude towards care and support for People Living with HIV and AIDS

Majority of the church leaders regard it as a mission of churches to provide care & support for the sufferings. Resources, expertise, training & appropriate guidance to deal with PLWHA are the areas that require help according to few of the respondents. One of the leaders also replied that church had a major role to play in the recovery part hence; it can provide spiritual and emotional support to people living with HIV and AIDS.

DISCUSSIONS

HIV/AIDS in the Philippines is growing. The youths, adults and children are at risk of contacting the virus. Health experts describe the situation to be a tip of an iceberg with maximum number of cases still going unreported due to social stigma, discrimination and inadequate access to medical facilities8. Involvement of churches towards HIV/AIDS prevention was seen in 2006 after the visit of Caritas Internationalis special advisor in the Philippines⁹. However, only few churches are involved with some sort of the prevention activities insisting on abstinence, monogamy and purity in a relationship. This again put them in conflict with HIV experts who believe condom use should be the essential aspect of any prevention program. Leaders prioritise HIV and AIDS to be insignificant against other public health and developmental problems like TB, cancer, and dengue, poverty, corruption, unemployment etc.

An attempt to compare and contrast findings of this study with previous studies revealed a mixture of conformity and deviations. Results of the study confirms previous findings that Churches were willing to provide care and support for the infected and the affected as a part of their Christian obligation. Resources in terms of human expertise and financial support are always a matter of constraints that are even experienced in most of the previous findings¹⁰⁻¹². This study shows that churches are willing and keen to participate in prevention activities as well and deliver a message of being faithful, maintaining purity in a relationship and follow abstinence. For teenagers and adolescents they converse more about building relationship and follow an affiliation of brotherhood-sister and the Christ. Study findings also confirm previous findings that churches are opposed to promoting condom use^{13,14}. Pre- and extra-marital sex is a practice that is clearly condemned in the Bible. Allegiance to the Bible is probably what distinguishes church-based programs from those that are implemented by secular organizations.

The result reveals and contradicts major studies in the past that churches focus only on recovery part. However findings clearly states, church leaders are equally keen to mobilise their resources for prevention activities such as educating people, creating awareness and health promotion.

Contrary again to previous studies, this study shows that churches still possess the attitude to support PLWHA. They strongly believe components like hope, compassion, care and grace offered by the churches and other religious institutions can eliminate stigma and discrimination linked with the disease.

CONCLUSIONS

HIV/AIDS in Metro Manila is 'growing but hidden'. The situation at the moment is similar to the situation experienced by most of the African countries twenty years ago. The Church leaders in Metro Manila also anticipate the situation like 'a tip of an iceberg'. They hardly perceive HIV and AIDS to be a head on problem in the country, but their willingness and attitude to address the health concern is very positive and congenial. Therefore, urgent and concerted efforts are needed to sensitize the church leaders by making them realise, the real HIV situation in the country and convince them to foresee the problem as a potential and possible pandemic bearer in near future.

REFERENCES

- 1. UNAIDS. Global HIV/AIDS Epidemic Report 2008. Geneva, Switzerland: UNAIDS; 2008.
- 2. UNAIDS. Epidemiological Fact Sheet on HIV and AIDS the Philippines 2008. Geneva, Switzerland: UNAIDS; 2008.
- Department of Health, Republic of the Philippines. HIV Estimates in the Philippines Consensus Report 2005. Metro Manila, the Philippines: Department of Health, Republic of the Philippines; 2005.

- 4. World Health Organisation. Biregional Strategy for Harm Reduction Report 2005. New Delhi and Metro Manila: World Health Organisation; 2005.
- 5. Joel T. Spirituality/Religion and quality of life in patients with HIV/AIDS. Journal of General Internal Medicine. 2006; 21: S1-2.
- 6. Garner RC. Safe sects? Dynamic religion and AIDS in South Africa. Journal of Modern African Studies. 2000; 38: 41- 69.
- Cotton S, Tsevat J, Szaflarski M, et al. Changes in religiousness and spirituality attributed to HIV/ AIDS: are there sex and race differences? Journal of General Intern Medicine. 2006; 21:S14–20.
- 8. Jonatha C, Brad A., et al. The Philippines Unprotected: Sex, condom and the human right to health. Human Rights Watch. 2004; 16 (6):5 - 6.
- 9. Caritas Internationalis & UNAIDS. How Caritas works - HIV and AIDS: Geneva, Switzerland: Caritas Internationalis & UNAIDS; 2006

- 10. Zambezi, RN. Church-based Interventions for HIV/AIDS Prevention in Ndola, Zambia. Global Health. USA, Emory University. 2005.
- 11. Garvey, M. Young people, HIV and the churches: A Christian Aid Report 2003: Cape Town, South Africa. Stop Aids Campaign; 2003.
- 12. World Council of Churches. Working with People Living with HIV/AIDS Organizations Background Document. Geneva, Switzerland; 2004.
- 13. White R, Cleland J, et al. Links between premarital sexual behavior and extramarital intercourse: A multi-site analysis. In AIDS; 2000 14:2323-31.
- 14. UNAIDS. Theological Workshop Focusing on HIV-and AIDS Related Stigma Report 2005. Geneva, Switzerland: UNAIDS; 2005.

An Interventional Study on Knowledge, Attitude and Practice Regarding Oral Rehydration Therapy Among Mothers of Under Five Children in an Urban Slum of Rajahmundry, AP

Sipra Komal Jena*, Vijaya Kumar Uthakalla*, Pradeep Sukla**, Sapna S. Patil***

*Assistant Professor, **Associate Professor, Dept. of Community Medicine at GSL Medical College, Rajahmundry, AP. ***Senior Lecturer, Dept. of Community Medicine Allianze College of Medical Sciences, Penang, Malaysia

ABSTRACT

Background: Diarrhea & dehydration is the major cause of death among the children under five years and accounts for more than 6 lakh deaths .The slum children are more vulnerable. The mothers should be educated to practice regarding ORT and care during diarrheal episodes.

Objectives: 1.To study the knowledge, attitude and practice regarding ORT among the mothers and educate them about ORT. 2. To evaluate after imparting health education.

Materials And Methods: Around 600 mothers of under five children were interviewed with the help of a pretested questionnaire. The mothers were given health education regarding Oral Rehydration Therapy (ORT) and care during diarrhea & followed up after three months to assess their knowledge & practice.

Results: Only 21% of the study subjects were aware of ORT which significantly increased after health education(p=0.0000).. The awareness was more among the higher educated (p<0.001). Significant number of respondents could name at least two danger signs of dehydration, home available fluids, preparation of sugar and salt solution (p<0.001). At the end of study, significant number of the mothers could correctly demonstrate how to prepare Oral Rehydration Solution (ORS) (p<0.001).

Conclusions: Most of the respondents were not aware regarding ORT and care during diarrhea which significantly increased in the follow up visit after health education. Hence IEC activities, and awareness campaigns to be intensified and organized in the slum area.

Key words: Diarrhea, Dehydration, ORT, Home available fluids, Demonstration.

INTRODUCTION

Acute diarrheal diseases constitute a major public health problem especially in the developing countries where children under 5 years are worst sufferers¹.

About 3 million deaths globally are associated with diarrhea and India alone accounts for one-third of these

Corresponding Address Dr. Sipra Komal Jena Assistant Professor. Dept. of Community Medicine. GSL Medical College, Rajahmundry,A.P. 533296 Cell No. 09848619923. E-mail: drsipra@live.com deaths². During 2005, about 1.07 million cases were reported in India with 2040 deaths³. Around 65% of deaths are due to dehydration. In India, children suffer from as high as 6-12 episodes of diarrhea per year⁴. The slum dwellers are most affected because of their poor prevailing conditions, poverty, lack of knowledge, personal hygiene & incorrect feeding practices. It causes a lot of economic burden on health services, so emphasis has been given to it and its management which is dominated by advances in oral rehydration techniques⁵. According to recent reports, Oral Rehydration Therapy (ORT) may now be preventing about 3 million deaths, globally in a year,⁶ thereby reducing the disease burden⁷. About 90% of all diarrheal episodes can be managed at home by mothers with appropriate ORT. They should be able

to recognize dehydration and start ORT, seeking medical advice whenever necessary⁸.

Hence mothers, particularly of under-five children need to be educated about ORT, basic sanitation and care during diarrhea to reduce its incidence. This study is an effort to educate them in order to reduce the disease burden.

MATERIALS AND METHODS

Study design: Community based interventional study **Study area:** slum covered by UHC, Ambedkarnagar which is the field practice area of GSL Medical College, Rajahmundry, A.P.

Study subjects: mothers of under-5 children.

Sample size: 600

Study period: March to September 2010

Sampling technique: systematic random sampling technique

Study variables: Age, occupation, education, awareness regarding ORS, home available fluids, danger signs etc.

Study instrument: pre-tested questionnaire, health education material.

Statistical analysis: percentages and proportions, chi-square.

METHODOLOGY

The study was conducted in a slum area covered by Urban Health Center (UHC), Ambedkarnagar which is the field practice area of GSL Medical College. It caters to a slum population of 16,967 and 5,988 house holds. 10% of the house-holds were selected for study which was calculated upto 600. Every 10th house was selected for interview. All the mothers of under 5 children were interviewed with the help of a pre-tested questionnaire after obtaining their verbal consent. If there was no under 5 child in the 10th house, the next house was selected for interview. The mothers were given health education regarding Oral Rehydration Solution (ORS), its preparation, home available fluids, care during diarrhea with the help of charts and correct demonstration of preparation of ORS by the help of interns who were trained regarding this. The study subjects were interviewed again with the same questionnaire after a period of 3 months. Around 550 study subjects were interviewed in the follow up study. 50 houses were locked in spite of several visits. Data collected was analyzed in office excel 2007.

RESULTS

Out of 600, 315 (52.5%) mothers belonged to 19-24 age group followed by 25-30 age group (40.17%). Majority of them, 509 (84.83%) were Hindus followed

by Christians (11.17%). Nearly half of them, 297(49.5%) are educated upto primary or are illiterate. Around 287 (47.83%) work for daily wages and 217 (36.17%) are house wives. Majority of them belong to lower class (59.33%) according to Modified Kuppuswamy scale.

Table 1 shows that only 127 (21.17%) out of 600 mothers were aware of ORT. The source of information about ORS is mainly through media (53.54%), followed by friends and relatives (23.62%) as shown in Table 2. After imparting health education, 528 mothers(96%) became aware of it in the follow up study which is statistically significant (P=0.0000). It was also seen that awareness was more in the educated mothers (P=0.0000) which is shown in Table 3.

Table 1. Awareness regarding Oral Rehydration Therapy

Awareness	Pre- intervention		Post-inte	rvention
	No	%	No	%
Yes	127	21.17	528	96.00
No	473	78.83	22	4.00
Total	600	100.00	550	100.00

P= 0.0000

Table 2. Source of information regarding ORS

Source of information	Number	Percentage
Media	68	53.54
Health staff	22	17.32
Friends & relatives	30	23.62
Others	7	5.50
Total	127	100.00

 Table 3. Literacy status of respondents and awareness

 about ORT

Literacy status	Pre- intervention		Post-interventione	
	No	%	No	%
Prof/Hons	-	-	-	-
Grad/PG	21	16.54	21	3.98
Inter/ITI	46	36.22	48	9.09
High school certificate	28	22.05	142	26.89
Middle school certificate	15	11.81	86	16.29
Primary	11	8.66	151	28.60
Illiterate	6	4.72	80	15.15
Total	127	100.00	528	100 .00

P=0.0000

Out of the 127 mothers who were aware of ORT, only 33 (26%) used ORS. However in the follow up study, 290 (55%) were using it.

There were 680 under 5 children in all the 600 households, out of which

172 children(25.29%) suffered from diarrhea in the last 2 weeks and 260 children (38.23%) suffer frequently. Around 313 (52.17%) mothers out of 600, sought medical advice during diarrheal episodes, out of which 173 (28.83%) preferred Government Hospitals and 427(71.17%) sought advice from Private hospitals.

Out of 600 mothers, 268(44.66%) had knowledge regarding various home available fluids and majority of them (55%)used them during diarrheal episodes. Around 294(49%) mothers were aware to continue breast feeding & practised it. After intervention, 474 (93.5%) were aware as well as practicing it which is statistically significant (P=0.000).

Out of 127 mothers, who had knowledge regarding ORS, had correct knowledge how to prepare sugar & salt solution and 6 (15%) among them used regularly during diarrheal episodes. In the follow up study, 298 mothers (56.44%) out of 528 had correct knowledge regarding its preparation which is again statistically significant (P< 0.001).

Only 29 out of 600 mothers (4.83%) could tell that immunization protects against diarrhea whereas 571 (95.17%) did not have any idea about it. In the post interventional study, 323(58.73%) out of 550 could tell about the importance of immunization for prevention of diarrhea (p<0.001).

In the pre-interventional study, out of 127 mothers who were aware of ORT, only 9(7.09%) knew about the correct quantity of ORS to be given to the child during diarrheal episode which significantly increased to 359 (68%) out of 528 after intervention (p<0.001).

Out of 600, 200 mothers (33.33%) did not know where to procure ORS packets but in the follow up study, 266 mothers out of 550 could tell about its availability in the UHC, whereas 21.82% knew about its availability in the medical shop only. 10% still were unaware regarding the availability of ORS packets.

Out of 600 mothers, 108 (18%) could tell about minimum 2 danger signs of dehydration as per guidelines for assessment of dehydration⁹ whereas in the follow up study 240(40%) could name at least 2 danger signs.

Out of 127 mothers who were aware of ORT, only 20 (15.8%) could demonstrate the correct way to prepare ORS but in the follow up study, 396 out of 528 (75%) could correctly demonstrate its preparation which is statistically significant (p=0.0000). Table 5 shows that the higher educated mothers could demonstrate better & in a correct way (P=0.0000).

DISCUSSION

It is seen that only 21.17% of the mothers were aware regarding ORT which is very important in a slum area where 38.25% of the children suffer frequently from diarrhea. After imparting health education 96% of the mothers were aware. The figures are similar to the studies conducted by Zagade in Pune¹⁰ and S.Panda in Cuttack¹¹. Maternal literacy

 Table 4. Literacy status and correct demonstration of preparation of ORS

Literacy status	Pre- intervention		Post-interventione	
-	No	%	No	%
Prof/Hons	-	-	-	-
Grad/PG	10	16.54	21	5.30
Inter/ITI	6	36.22	48	11.62
High school certificate	3	22.05	140	35.35
Middle school certificate	1	11.81	82	20.71
Primary	-	-	89	22.47
Illiterate	-	-	18	4.55
Total	127	100.00	528	100 .00
P=0.0000				

P=0.0000

status positively affected the mothers understanding of ORT and her ability to prepare ORS which is similar to the study by Gopal Das¹². The source of information regarding ORS before health education was mainly through media (53.5%) which is similar to the study conducted in Urban slum community of Tigri¹³ and a study by Dua et al¹⁴. The health staff of UHC should educate the mothers more frequently regarding the benefits of life saving ORS and care during diarrheal episodes as they have more scope to educate them about it and clearing their doubts as it is a two way communication process. Though 96% were aware of ORS in the follow up study, only 55% were using it which is similar to the study by Bhatia in Chandigarh¹⁵ and NFHS-3 data¹⁶ where usage was poor though maximum mothers knew. Only 52.17% sought medical advice during diarrheal episodes, out of which 71.17% preferred private hospitals instead of the UHC which can equally provide good care. The mothers need to be convinced about the quality care provided in the UHC or any Govt. hospital.

It is also seen that 44.66% of the mothers had knowledge regarding Home Available Fluids and majority of them used it which is again similar to the study conducted in Tigri. The awareness and practice to continue breast feeding during diarrheal episodes was seen among 49% before intervention which is similar to study conducted by Gupta et al.¹⁷ The knowledge and practice increased to 93.5% in the follow up visit which is a good sign as it should be continued among the infants. Exclusive breast feeding during 4 to 6months have been shown to dramatically reduce the incidence of diarrhea¹⁸.

In the absence of ORS packets, the mothers should be able to prepare sugar and salt solution to prevent dehydration. Though initial knowledge was poor but 56.44% gained knowledge regarding its preparation in the follow up study.

The mothers should also be able to recognize dehydration and seek medical help when condition of child worsens. Only 40% could name 2 danger signs of dehydration even after health education. Hence they should be repeatedly visited by health staff and educated.

It is also important for them to know about protection from diarrhea provided by immunization. Though the initial knowledge was very poor, it increased after intervention.

It is also important for them to know the correct quantities of ORS to be fed to the child as prescribed¹⁹ which was 68% in the follow up study as compared to the initial visit (7.09%).

Recently WHO has recommended a hypo-osmolar ORS for treatment of all cases of acute diarrhea,²⁰ which is available in all PHCs, sub centers, UHCs etc. Though the UHC is well provided with the ORS packets, 33.33% of the mothers did not know where to procure them. Even after health education & information, only 21.82% could tell about its availability in UHC. Hence the health staff need to educate the mothers about its availability and other health facilities and health programs so that they can utilize the facilities available to them. With health education, their health knowledge, attitude and practice will improve as it was in a study by Akram DS in Karachi²¹.

CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATIONS

Most of the respondents in the slum area were not aware regarding ORT and proper care during diarrhea which significantly increased in the follow up visit after imparting health education. Hence health education, IEC activities may be intensified and awareness campaigns to be organized on Reproductive and Child Health in which ORT in the child component is important.

Adequate health care facilities with quality care and outreach services should be provided in the hospitals particularly the UHCs and PHCs.

Repetition of these campaigns periodically and involvement of volunteers, Youth clubs, NGOs to carry out the same. The awareness among slum dwellers to be risen to such high level that their health needs should become the felt needs of the community and in turn the health demands of slum dwellers.

ACKNOWLEGEMENTS

We sincerely thank our Professor and HOD, Dr. S.K Mishra for his valuable support and guidance. We are also grateful to Mr.Lakshman Rao, Statistician and Mrs. B.Raja Rajeswari for their help.

REFERENCES

1. Dhaar GM, Robbani I. Foundations of Community Medicine, 2nd edition, 2008, page 40.

- 2. Kishore J. National Health programs of India, 8th edition, 2009, Page 137.
- 3. Govt. of India (2006), Health Information of India 2005, Ministry of Health & Family Welfare, New Delhi.
- 4. Bhattacharya SK. Acute Diarrheal Diseases in children, clin Immunol, ImmunoPatol 2003, 110: 1175-1181.
- 5. K. Park. Park's Text book of Preventive & Social Medicine, 20th edition, Feb 2009, page 194.
- 6. WHO (2008), The Global Burden of Disease, 2004 update.
- 7. WHO, UNICEF (2005), Clinical management of Acute Diarrhea. WHO/UNICEF joint statement.
- 8. Gupta MC, Mahajan BK, Text book of Preventive & Social Medicine, 2003 edition, page no. 190-194.
- 9. Govt. of India (1998), Health Information of India, 1995 & 1996, Ministry of Health & Family Welfare, New Delhi.
- 10. Zagade U.J. Sevadham Trust PVOH-II Project, IJCM, 3(1), Jan-June 1997, Page 53-55.
- 11. Panda S. Brief Report of PVOH-II. Project of OMRAH, Cuttack, Orissa, IJCM, 3(1), Jan-June 1997, Page 82-88.
- 12. Gopal das T, Gujral S, Mujoo R, Abbi R, Child diarrhea: Oral Rehydration & Rural mother, Nutrition, 1991 Sep- Oct 7(5): 335-9.
- 13. N.Bhandari, Qadeer I, Bhan MK. Patterns of use of Oral Rehydration Therapy in an Urban slum community, JIMA, vol 93, no.6,Calcutta, June 1995, Pg 293-242.
- 14. Dua T, Bahl R, Bhan MK. Lessons learnt from Diarrheal Disease Control Program & implications for the future. Indian Journal of Pediatrics, 1999 Jan-Feb 66(1): 55-61.
- 15. Bhatia V, Swami HM, Bhatia M, Bhatia SP Attitude & practices regarding diarrhea in rural community in Chandigarh. Indian J. Pediatr, 1999, Jul-Aug 66(4): 499-503.
- 16. Govt. of India. National Family Health Survey III (2005-06), IIPS, Ministry of Health & Family Welfare, Mumbai 2007.
- Gupta N, Jain SK, Ratnesh, ChawlaU, HossainS,Venkatesh S .An evaluation of Diarrheal Diseases & Acute Respiratory infections Control Programmes in a Delhi slum. Indian J Pediatrics, 2007 May: 74(5), 471-476.
- 18. Dipika Sur, Bhattacharya SK, Acute Diarrheal Diseases An approach to management, JIMA, volume 104, No.5, May 2006, Page 220 -222.
- 19. Arole Sobha, Health Care at home, Footsteps 74, March 2008, www.tearfund.org/tilz
- 20. Hanh SK, Kim YJ, Garner P. Reduced Osmolarity Oral Rehydration Solution for treating dehydration due to diarrhea in children: A systemic review, BMJ: 2001, 323: 81-85.
- 21. Akram DS, Agboatwalla M, J.Trop Pediatr, 1992 April 38(2), 85-87.

Adolescent Girls and Reproductive Health: An Interventional Study in a Slum of Vijayawada, AP

Sipra Komal Jena*, Vijaya Kumar Uthakalla*, Sapna S. Patil**

*Assistant Professor, Dept. of Community Medicine at GSL Medical College, Rajahmundry, AP. **Senior lecturer, Dept. of Community Medicine Allianze College of Medical Sciences, Penang, Malaysia.

ABSTRACT

Background: Adolescent period is characterized by physical, mental and emotional changes to prepare for adult role in almost all aspects of life including marriage, motherhood and earning. Lack of knowledge, skills, access to contraception and vulnerability to sexual abuse, particularly among the slum dwellers, put the adolescents at high risk of unwanted pregnancy, early child birth, unsafe abortion and RTI including HIV/AIDS. Hence to avoid these problems, they should be aware regarding all aspects of reproductive health

Objectives: 1.To study the knowledge, attitude and practice regarding reproductive health among the adolescent girls and educate them about reproductive health. 2. To evaluate after imparting health education.

Materials and Methods: Around 450 adolescent girls were interviewed with the help of a pretested questionnaire. The mothers were given health education regarding various aspects of reproductive health including HIV/AIDS & followed up after three months to assess their knowledge & practice.

Results: Only 48.89% of the study subjects were aware of Reproductive Health which significantly increased after health education(p=0.000). The awareness was more among the girls whose mothers were more educated (p=0.000). Significant number of girls were practicing menstrual hygiene and were aware of contraceptives including emergency contraceptives, minimum legal of marriage, sexually transmitted diseases, HIV/AIDS including modes of transmission and prevention after giving health education (p=0.000).

Conclusions: Most of the adolescent girls were not aware regarding Reproductive health which significantly increased in the follow up visit after health education. Hence IEC activities, and awareness campaigns regarding reproductive health including HIV/AIDS to be intensified and organized in the slum area.

Key words: Adolescent girls, Reproductive health, Awareness, Contraceptives, Menstrual hygiene.

INTRODUCTION

Adolescence has been defined by the World Health Organization as the period of life spanning the ages between 10 to 19 years¹. This period is characterized by physical, mental and emotional changes to prepare for adult role in almost all aspects of life including marriage, motherhood and earning. Sexual and reproduction is the main functional development

Corresponding Addredd Dr. Sipra Komal Jena Assistant Professor Dept. of Community Medicine GSL Medical College, Rajahmundry,A.P. 533296 Cell No. 09848619923. E.mail: drsipra@live.com during this period. In India adolescents constitute nearly a fifth of total population. Around 49% in rural and 29% in Urban areas are married by the age of 18 years². which results in a host of detrimental reproductive outcomes. It is well known that in growing children, conception leads to the cessation of growth in the mother, also an increased risk of adverse obstetric and neonatal outcomes³. Lack of knowledge, skills, poverty, access to contraception and vulnerability to sexual abuse, particularly among the slum dwellers, put the adolescents at high risk of unwanted pregnancy, early child birth, unsafe abortion and RTI including HIV/AIDS.

It is therefore necessary to create awareness regarding all aspects of reproductive health like reproductive hygiene, contraception, consequences of unprotected sex, Sexually Transmitted Diseases (STD), Reproductive Tract Infections (RTI) including HIV/ AIDS etc., so that they are not only prepared physically but also psychologically for smooth transition from child hood to adulthood, as they are going to contribute to the future of our country.

This study is an attempt to study their knowledge, attitude and practice regarding reproductive health and educate them about it to create better reproductive health outcomes.

MATERIALS AND METHODS

Study design: Community based interventional study **Study area:** slum covered by UHC, Rajarajeswaripeta, Vijayawada

Study subjects: 450 adolescent girls.

Study period: July to December 2008

Sampling technique: Systematic random sampling technique

Study variables: Age, education of subjects and mother, awareness regarding reproductive health, menstrual hygiene practices, awareness regarding contraceptives, minimum legal age of marriage, HIV/AIDS etc.

Study instrument: pre-tested questionnaire, health education material.

Statistical analysis: percentages and proportions, chisquare.

METHODOLOGY

The Vijayawada Municipal Corporation consists of approximately 132 notified slums which are attached to 22 Urban Health Centers (UHC). Out of these, UHC, Rajarajeswaripeta, was selected by Simple random sampling technique using lottery method. This UHC comprises of 5 slums, catering to a total population of 33,903 and 6,626, households. All slums were included in the study for effective coverage. 10% of the households were selected for study which was calculated upto 663. Every 10th house was selected for interview. The number of households from each slum taken for study was taken according to the proportion of its contribution to the entire slum population under UHC. Thus 450 adolescent girls were identified in these households. All the adolescent girls were interviewed with the help of a pre-tested questionnaire after obtaining their or their parent's verbal consent. If there was no adolescent girl in the 10th house, the next house was selected for interview. The adolescent girls were given health education regarding all aspects of reproductive health like reproductive hygiene, contraception, emergency contraceptives, minimum legal age of marriage, consequences of unprotected STD/RTI including HIV/AIDS etc. with the help of lectures and charts. The study subjects were interviewed again with the same questionnaire after a period of 3 months. Around 425 study subjects were interviewed in the follow up study. The doors of the 25 houses were locked inspite of several visits. Data collected was analyzed in office excel 2003.

RESULTS

Out of 450, 190 (42.22%) adolescent girls belonged to 16-19 age group followed by 13 - 16 age group (39.56%). Majority of them, 266 (59.11%) were Hindus followed by Christians 98(21.78%). Most of them, 172 (38.22%) belonged to backward caste. Around 46 (10.22%) girls were illiterate, 168 out of 450 adolescents (37.33%) were educated upto primary and discontinued their studies. Most of them, 258 (57.33%) belong to nuclear family. Majority of them belong to upper lower class, 263 (58.44%) according to Modified Kuppuswamy scale.

Out of 450 adolescent girls, 170 (37.78%) were already married & out of them, 145(85.29%) had already delivered a child.

Table 1 shows that 220 (48.89%) out of 450 adolescent girls were aware regarding reproductive health but after imparting health education, 312 (73.41%) out of 425 adolescent girls were aware of it in the follow up study which is statistically significant (P=0.000). The source of information about it in the initial study was mainly through mass media, 78 (35.45%), followed by friends and relatives 96(43.64%). It was also seen that the literacy status of the mother influenced the reproductive health awareness among the adolescents. The more was the education of the mother, the more was the awareness, (P=0.000) which is shown in Table 2.

Table 1. Awareness regarding Reproductive Health

Awareness	Pre- intervention		Post-intervention			
	No	%	No	%		
Yes	220	48.89	312	73.41		
No	230	51.11	113	26.59		
Total	450	100.00	425	100.00		
· · · ·						

P = 0.000

Table 2. Literacy status of mothers and awareness about Reproductive health

Literacy status	Literacy of mother of adolescents		Reproductive Awareness among adolescents	
	No	%	No	%
High school certificate & above	78	17.33	68	30.91
Middle school certificate	142	31.56	98	44.55
Primary	150	33.33	36	16.36
Illiterate	80	17.78	18	8.18
Total	450	100.00	220	100.00
B 0.000				

P=0.000

The awareness regarding legal minimum age of marriage was 230 out of 450 (51.11%) before imparting health education which increased to 310 out of 425 (72.94%). This is statistically significant (P=0.000). Around 34 adolescents out of 170(20%) had married below the age of 18 years.

About 400 out of 450 girls (88.89%) had experienced menarche, out of which 200 girls (50%) had experienced at the age of 12 years followed by 130 (32.5%) at the age of 13 years. Practice of menstrual hygiene was seen among 150 girls out of 400 (37.5%) before imparting health education whereas in the follow up study, it was practiced by 262 (65.5%) which is highly significant.(P=0.000). (Table 3).

Γ	able	3.	Practice	of	menstrual	hy	giene

Practice	Pre- inte	ervention	Post-intervention	
	No	%	No	%
Yes	150	37.50	262	65.50
No	250	62.50	138	34.50
Total	400	100.00	400	100.00
D 0.000				

P = 0.000

The practice of menstrual hygiene was assessed in terms of regular bath, use of sanitary towels or napkins, regular change of pads, washing of external genitalia etc. Out of 400 girls, 306 (76.5%) had problems during menstruation, out of which maximum number of girls suffered from dysmenorrhoea, 155 (50.65%) followed by excessive bleeding during menstruation(25.49%). Only 61(19.93%) sought medical advice for their problems.

Table 4 shows awareness regarding contraceptive methods which was only 90 (20%) out of 450 before imparting health education which significantly increased to 212 (49.88%) in the follow up study (P=0.000). Among those who were aware of contraceptive methods, only 4 out of 90 (4.44%) could tell about emergency contraceptives whereas in the post- interventional study, 100(47.16%) were aware of it . Attitude towards 1 child norm was seen among 54 girls out of 450 (12%) and 2 children norm among 315 (70%) girls. After intervention also, 22 out of 425 (5.18%) were still unsure.

Awareness	Pre- intervention		Post-inte	rvention
	No	%	No	%
Yes	90	20.00	212	49.88
No	360	80.00	213	50.12
Total	450	100.00	425	100.00
P = 0.0000				

About 180 girls out of 450 (40%) still believed that the decision regarding adoption of family planning methods should be taken by elders. Only 30 out of 450 (6.67%) girls felt that both the husband and wife should decide. However after intervention, 60 girls out of 425(14.12%) felt that the married couple should take the decision and 8.24% girls wanted to be dependent on their own decision.

Table 5 shows the significant change in the awareness regarding HIV/AIDS among the girls after intervention. (P=0.000). Among the 297 girls, who were aware of it in the initial study, the source of information was mostly through mass media, particularly TV. (72%). Awareness regarding modes of transmission of HIV/AIDS was adequate among 116 out of 297 (39%) in the initial study and 263(67.96%) out of 387 girls who became aware of it in the post interventional study. This is highly significant. (P=0.0000). Adequate knowledge regarding transmission of HIV means all the four modes essential modes of transmission (sexual contact, through needles and blades, through blood and blood products and mother to child). The awareness regarding protection from HIV was present among172 out of 297 girls and 302 out of 387 girls who were aware of HIV, in the pre and post interventional study respectively. (P=0.0000). Out of these 172 girls, only 37(21.51%) had correct knowledge regarding protective measures from HIV/AIDS which significantly increased to 151 out of 302 girls (50%). (P=0.000). Knowledge about safe sexual practices, safe injection practices, blood testing prior to blood transfusion, screening during antenatal period etc was regarded as correct knowledge.

Table 5. Awareness regarding HIV/AIDS

Awareness	Pre- intervention		Post-intervention	
	No	%	No	%
Yes	297	66.00	387	91.06
No	153	34.00	38	8.94
Total	450	100.00	425	100.00
P= 0.0000				

Out of 450 girls, 90 (20%) were aware regarding STDs and 8 among them (8.89%) had knowledge regarding association between STD and HIV in the preintervention study whereas 289 out of 425 (68%) were aware about it and 61 out of them (21.19%) were aware of its association with HIV/AIDS. (P<0.001).

DISCUSSION

It was seen that most of the girls belonged to 16 -19 age group and 47.55% of the adolescent girls were either illiterate or educated up to primary school out of which 50% were school drop outs which is a negative factor in spite of residing in urban area. Around 72% of the adolescent girls belong to low socio economic status that are vulnerable owing to poverty and ignorance. About 37.78% of the adolescents were already married being exposed to the risk of reproductive morbidity and mortality related to early conception. The finding is similar to that of NDHS - 2 data (1998-1999)(4). Besides the social problems like decreased morbidity, lower educational attainment, increased risk of domestic violence, married adolescent girls have a greater risk of suffering from adverse reproductive outcomes⁵. It is a discouraging fact that out of these nearly 85% have already delivered a child which is similar to the findings of Ashok Dyalchand⁶.

Around 49% were aware regarding reproductive health in the initial study which increased to nearly 74% which is a welcoming sign. Hence the health staff of UHC must educate them regularly. The literacy status of the mothers positively influenced the awareness of their daughters. Hence emphasis has to be paid also on the education of the adolescent girls who are going to be the future mothers.

The awareness regarding legal minimum age of marriage was 51% in the initial study which is similar to the study conducted by Neeru Gupta et al⁷ where more than half of them were aware. In the follow up study this knowledge significantly increased to 72.94% and attitude towards marrying beyond 18 yrs was more favorable which is quite encouraging.

About 20% of the married adolescent had married below the age of 18 yrs which is similar to the data according to NFHS - 3.

Around half of the girls had experienced menarche at the age of 12 yrs which is similar to the studies by Haldar et al⁸. The mean age of menarche was reported to be 12.5 yrs which is similar to study by Dasgupta et al⁹ where it was reported to be 12.8 yrs.

Practice of menstrual hygiene significantly increased from 37.5% adolescents to 65.5% of them which is a very welcoming sign as women having better knowledge regarding menstrual hygiene and safe practices are less vulnerable to reproductive tract illness and its consequences.

Dysmenorrhoea was the common problem which was experienced by 50.65% during menstruation. This is similar to the findings of Avasarala A K¹⁰ where the prevalence of dysmenorrhoea was 52.5% and the studies by Nair P et al¹¹ and French L¹² which is concurrent. Only 19.93% seek medical advice for the problems with findings of Jeejeebhoy S J¹³. The awareness regarding contraceptive methods was 90 out of 450 (20%) before health education which is similar to the study by Majumdar and Ganguly¹⁴ as well as Gupta Neeru¹⁵ but it significantly increased to 49.88% in the follow up study.

Initially only 4.44% were aware of emergency pills but in the follow up study, 47.16% became aware which is similar to the figures of a study by Kushwas et al¹⁵. As the adolescent girls are the main victims of unwanted teenage pregnancy and its consequences, they should be more aware of all the family planning methods including emergency contraceptive pills.

Attitude towards 1 child norm was seen among 12% and 2 children norm was seen in 70% which is similar to the study by Neeru⁷.

About 40% still believed that the decision regarding adoption of family planning should be taken by elders. However after health education, around 22% were confident of talking their own decision or collective decision of herself and spouse. They need to be educated about family planning methods particularly the married adolescents must be counseled by the health staff.

66% were aware about HIV/AIDS and the source of information mass media is through TV (72%), which is similar to the studies by Hemchandra K (17), P Lal et al¹⁸ and Sodhi S et al¹⁹. Friends also be made instrumental in spreading information through frequent motivation. The awareness regarding HIV/ AIDS, modes of transmission, protection or prevention of AIDS significantly increased after giving health education. Hence HIV awareness campaigns for the youth should be conducted in the slum frequently. The awareness regarding STDs and its association with HIV also significantly increased after imparting Health education on which should also be incorporated in the health education programmes.

Finally evidence also points that a combination measures such has comprehensive family life education access to contraceptive care and youth development through institutional and outreach methods reaps favorable methods creating better reproductive health outcomes²⁰.

CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATIONS

There is a need for evolving information, education and communication strategies to focus on raising awareness on reproductive health. Health education plays a significant role in enriching the knowledge regarding reproductive health. As the adolescent girls are main victims of unwanted teenage pregnancy and its consequences, reproductive tract infections or HIV/ AIDS, they should be more aware regarding all aspects of reproductive health including reproductive hygiene particularly during menstruation, contraception, legal age of marriage, STI/RTI, HIV/AIDS etc. All the sources of knowledge including educational institutes, health staff should be well known and approachable to them in order to adapt correct attitude and practice for a favorable reproductive outcome there by reducing the morbidity and mortality among them.

Hence health education, IEC activities may be intensified and awareness campaigns to be organized on Reproductive Health and repetition of these campaigns periodically and involvement of volunteers, Youth clubs, NGOs to carry out the same.

REFERENCES

- 1. World Health Organization. Programming for Adolescent Health and Development. WHO Tech Rep Ser No. 886, 1996, p-2
- 2. IIPS (2007). National Family Health Survey (NFHS-3), 2005-06, Mumbai India: International Institute for Population Sciences, Mumbai, India.
- 3. Senanayake P; (1995), The impact of unregulated fertility on Maternal and Child Survival, International Journal of Gynecology and Obstetrics, 50 (supplement 2).
- 4. IIPS (2000). National Family Health Survey (NFHS-3), 1998-99, Mumbai India: International Institute for population sciences, Mumbai, India.
- 5. Youth Lens on Reproductive Health and HIV/ AIDS, No15. Article can be accessed on the World Wide Web at http://www.fhi.org/NR/ rdonlyres....
- 6. Ashok Dyalchand. Social norms Approach addressing the Social determinants of early marriage and conception, Health for the millions, Vol.35, No. 4 & 5, pg. 40-48.
- Neeru Gupta, Sharda Jain. Teenage pregnancies - causes and concern, J Indian Med Assoc, vol.106, no.8 Aug 2008, pg. 516 - 519.
- 8. Haldar A et al. Study of need of Awareness generation regarding a component of Reproductive and Child Health Programme. Indian Journal of Community Medicine, Vol.XXIX No. 2, Apr - Jun 2004, pg. 96 - 98.
- 9. A.Dasgupta, M Sarkar. Menstrual Hygiene: How hygienic is the adolescent Girl, Indian Journal of Community Medicine, vol.33 No.2, Apr-Jun 2008, pg. 77 - 80.
- 10. Avasarala AK and Panchangam S,

Dysmenorrhoea in Different Settings: Are the Rural and Urban Adolescent Girls perceiving and managing the dysmenorrhoea problem differently? Indian Journal of Community Medicine, vol.33 Issue 4, Oct. 2008.

- 11. Nair P, Grover VL, Kannan AT. Awareness and Practices of Menstrual and Pubertal changes among Unmarried Female Adolescent in a Rural Area of East Delhi. Indian J of Community Medicine, 2007, 32: 156-157
- 12. French L. Study on Dysmenorrhoea, American Academy of Family Physicians, J Post Grad, Jan 2005.
- 13. Jeejeebhoy S.J, 1995. What is Reproductive Health? Reproductive Health needs in India, Voices 3(2): pp 4-10.
- 14. Majumdar Ratna & Ganguly S.K (2000). A study of adolescent girls in Pune, Health and Population Prospective and Issue, 23(2), 95-104 & 24(4).
- 15. Gupta Neeru, Mathur AK, Singh MP, Saxena NC, Reproductive Health Awareness of school going unmarried rural adolescents. Indian J Pediatr 2004: 17; 797-801.
- 16. Kushwas SS & Mittal A. Perception & Practice with regard to Reproductive Health among out of school Adolescents, Indian J of Community Medicine, 2007, 32, No. 2 141-143.
- 17. Hemchandra K, Jamaluddin, L.Masih, Kfaiyaz. HIV/AIDS awareness through Mass Media, The measurements of Efforts made in an Urban area of India, Indian Journal Of Public Health, Vol 52, No. 3, Jul-Sep 2008, pg. 171.
- P.Lal, Anita Nath, S.Badhan, Gopal K Ingle. Study of awareness about HIV/AIDS among Senior Secondary school children in Delhi, Indian Journal Of Community Medicine, vol.33, Issue 3, Jul-Sep 2008, Page 190-191.
- 19. Sodhi S, Mehta S. Level of awareness about AIDS: A comparative study of girls of two senior secondary schools of Chandigarh, Mass India, 1997, 77: 259-266.
- 20. Brindis C.D, 2006, A Public Health Success: Understanding Policy changes related to Teen sexual activity & Pregnancy, Annual Review of Public Health, 27: pp 277-295.

Incidence and Microbial Profile of Chronic Suppurative Otitis Media at Gulbarga, Karnataka

VinodKumar C.S.¹, Yuvaraj B.Y²., Bushara³, Vandana Rathod⁴, Shameem Sulatana⁵, Praveen D.S⁶., Suneeta Kalsurmath⁷

¹Assistant professor, Department of Microbiology, ²Department of Community Medicine, S.S. Institute of Medical Sciences and Research Centre, Davangere, ³Research Scholar, Department of Microbiology, ⁴Reader, Department of Microbiology, Gulbarga University, Gulbarga, ⁵Lecturer, Department of Microbiology, K.B.N. Institute of Medical Sciences and Research Centre, Gulbarga, ⁶Associate Professor, Department of ENT, ⁷Assistant Professor, Department of Physiology, S.S. Institute of Medical Sciences and Research Centre, Davangere,

ABSTRACT

Objective: Chronic suppurative otitis media (CSOM) is a prevailing and notorious infection in developing countries causing serious local damage and threatening complications. Early and effective treatment based on the knowledge of causing micro organisms and their sensitivity results in good clinical recovery and prevents from damage and complications.

The study intended to identify the incidence of bacterial infection in the CSOM and to determine their sensitivity to current antibiotics.

Methods: After clinical evaluation, middle ear secretion was taken for bacteriological examination from 250 patients meeting the inclusion criteria. All children with cholesteatoma and those with tumors occluding the (ear) canal were excluded. The samples were processed as per the standard microbiological techniques.

Results: A total of 272 bacterial agents were isolated from 250 patients aged between 8 months and 65 years. 220 samples yielded pure growth and 22 were mixed, *Pseudomonas aeruginosa* (39.7%) was the commonest isolate followed by *Klebsiella pneumoniae* and *Staphylococcus aureus*. Among anaerobic bacteria, Bacteriodes was the predominate bacteria isolated. Most of the isolates were resistant to commonly used antibiotics. ESBL evaluation revealed that 20.4 % of gram negative bacteria were extended beta lactamase producers. 63.4% of *Pseudomonas aeruginosa*, 20.3% of *Klebsiella pneumoniae* were the predominate organisms resistant to 3 GC.

Conclusion: Pseudomonas aeruginosa was the most common bacteria isolated from chronic discharging ears followed by Klebsiella pneumoniae. Amikacin was found to be the most suitable drug followed by ceftazidime for Pseudomonas aeruginosa. The high rate of multiple drug resistance for frequently used antibiotics raises serious concern.

Key words: Chronic suppurative otitis media, Drug resistance

INTRODUCTION

Chronic Supportive otitis media (CSOM) is a long standing purulent infection of middle ear cleft, presenting as purulent ear discharge which may be associated with variable degree of hearing loss. It

Correspondence Address: Dr. VinodKumar C.S.

Assistant Professor, Department of Microbiology S.S.Institute of Medical Sciences and Research Centre NH-4, Bypass, Davangere-577005, Karnataka Email: vinodmicro@yahoo.com occurs as a complication of acute otitis media, a common condition with an alarming propensity to be chronic infection. The complications of CSOM include mastoiditis, meningitis, focal encephalitis, intracranial abscesses and otitis hydrocephalus^{1,2}.

The microbiology of CSOM is unique as polymicrobial anaerobic floras were isolated from over half of the cases. The aerobic microorganisms most frequently isolated *are Pseudomonas sps, Staphylococcus aureus, Klebsiella sps, E. coli and Proteus sps*³.

Chronic otitis media has a multi-factorial etiology with highly variable prevalence through out the world.

In Industrialized countries the prevalence of this disease showed a marked decline during the post World War II era and is presently estimated at less then one percent. Improved housing, hygiene, accessibility to medical care and antimicrobial therapy are probably the factors that contributed to this evolution4. Unfortunately, the socio-economic situation of the rural India has not changed much. Gulbarga district of Karnataka state is the most back ward district of this state. The study was under taken to assess the microbial profile of CSOM and to evaluate antimicrobial susceptibility of the organisms isolated from CSOM.

MATERIALS AND METHODS

Hospital based cross sectional study.

Inclusion criteria

250 patients who attended outpatient clinic of department of ENT at Government Hospital, Gulbarga, M. R. Medical College Hospital, Gulbarga, Basaveshwar Hospital, Gulbarga and K. B. N. Institute of Medical College General Hospital, Gulbarga were included in the study. The patients were from the age 8 months to 65 years of both the genders were included.

Exclusion criteria

Patients who have used topical or systemic antibiotic for the last 10 days were excluded from the study. All the patients with cholesteatoma and those with tumors occluding the (ear) canal were excluded⁴.

Sample collection

The external ear canal was cleaned with suction and then swabbed with ethyl alcohol followed by povidone iodine. The aspirations were performed under visual control with an Otomicroscope and secretions were collected in glass bottles⁵.

Processing of samples

The specimen was transported to the laboratory where it was processed routinely for culture of aerobic and anaerobic bacteria. Organisms were identified by standard bio-chemical methods⁶⁷.

Antibiotic susceptibility testing

Sensitivity to relevant antibiotics was determined by Kirby Bauer's disc diffusion method^{8,9} using commercially available antibiotic discs (Hi-media, Mumbai). Gram-negative and gram-positive cocci were tested for the following antibiotics; Ampicillin (10 μ g), amoxicillin (10 μ g), gentiamycin (10 μ g), cefotaxime (30 μ g), ciprofloxacin (10 μ g), ceftazadime (30 μ g), ceftriaxone (30 μ g), amikacin (10 μ g), ampicillin (10 μ g), and ofloxacin (10 μ g).

Extended spectrum β lactamase (ES β L) by double disk synergetic test

ESβL production was detected by placing a susceptibility disk containing amoxicillin-clavulanate (20/10ug) as the inhibitor of beta lactamase in the center of the plate and cefotaxime (30ug), ceftazidime (30ug), ceftriaxone (30ug) and aztreonam (30ug) disks at 30 mm (center to center) from the amoxicillinclavulanate disk. Enhancement of the zone of inhibition of the oxyimino-lactam caused by the synergy with clavulanate in the amoxicillinclavulanate disk was considered as evidence of ES L production¹⁰. *Escherichia* coli ATCC 25922 and *Klebsiella pneumoniae* ATCC 700603 were used as control strains. The results were tabulated as frequencies (NCCLS-1997, 2000, 2004).

RESULT

During the one year study period, 250 patients with CSOM and related problems at the various Hospitals at Gulbarga were included in the study.

Table 1 shows the age and sex distribution of our cohort. There were 155 male and 95 females, with an age ranging from 08 months to 65 years (mean 10.1 years). Nearly 30% of patients were younger than 10 years. 52% of the study subjects were from lower socio-economic status followed by 31.2% from middle and 16.4% from higher socio-economic status.

Table 1. Demographic characters of the CSOM patients

Age	Number of Patients	%
0-10	75	30.0
11 to 20	85	34.0
21-30	33	13.2
31-40	10	4.0
41-50	15	6.0
>50	32	12.8
Socioeconomic		
status		
Low	130	52.0
Middle	78	31.2
Higher	41	16.4
Sex		
Male	155	62.0
Female	95	38.0

250 swabs cultured yielded 272 bacterial isolates. Pure growth was obtained in 228 samples and mixed growth in 22 samples. Culture of the swabs revealed Pseudomonas aeruginosa, Klebsiella pneumoniae, and Staphylococcus aureus were the most common bacteria isolated Table-2. Taken separately Pseudomonas aeruginosa isolated in 33.8%, Klebsiella pneumoniae in 23.9%, Staphylococcus aureus in 15.4%, Proteus mirabilis in 11.8%, Citrobacter freundii in 5.9%, Streptococcus pneumonia in 3.3%, and H. influenza in 1.8%. Among the anaerobes, the predominant were the species of Bacteroides (2.2%) followed by Peptostreptococci (1.1%).

Antibiotic susceptibility pattern of the isolate is shown in Table:

Organisms	No.	%
Pseudomonas sps	92	33.8
Klebsiella pneumoniae	65	23.9
Staphylococcus aureus	42	15.4
Proteus mirabilis	32	11.8
Citrobacter freundii	16	5.9
Streptococcus pneumoniae	12	4.4
H.influenzae	11	4.1
CONS	02	0.7
Anaerobic bacteria		
Bacteriodes	06	2.2
Peptostreptococci	03	1.1
Total	272	

Table 2. Microbial profile of CSOM

Penicillins and cephalosporins

81.3% of gram-negative bacteria were resistance to amoxycillin, 95.6% to ampicillin 69.2% to cefotaxime, 50.0% to ceftazadime and 50.0% to ceftriaxone. Amongst all the gram-negative bacilli, Klebsiella pneumoniae had the largest percentage of resistance to amoxicillin (89.2%) (Figure 2) and Citrobacter freundii was 100% resistant to ampicillin (Figure 4). Pseudomonas aeruginosa was found to have maximum resistance to cefotaxime (82.6%) and for ceftriaxone (77.1%) when compared to other gramnegative bacilli.

Among gram-positive cocci, 85.7% of Staphylococcus aureus was resistant to ampicillin, 66.7% to ofloxacin, 61.8% to cefotaxime and 59.5% to ceftazadime and 52.4% to ceftriaxone (Fig. 3).

Aminoglycosides

92% of gram-negative bacilli and 76.2% of grampositive cocci were resistance to gentamicin and 28.6% of gram-negative bacilli and 29.9% of gram-positive cocci were resistance to amikacin.

Ciprofloxacin

Over all rate of resistance for ciprofloxacin was 60.5%, with maximum resistance being exhibited by Pseudomonas aeruginosa (76%) (Fig. 1).

Of gram-positive cocci, all the isolates of Staphylococcus aureus, CONS were resistant to more than three antibiotics (Fig. 3). Cefotaxime, ceftazadime,



Fig. 1: Antibiogram of psudomonas SPS isolated from CSOM



Fig. 2: Antibiogram of klebsiella speciel isolated from CSOM



Fig. 3: Antibiogram of pseudomonas SPS isolated from CSOM

ofloxacin, netilmycin and amikacin had higher susceptibility to gram-negative and gram-positive bacteria compared to other drug.

Extended spectrum β lactamase (ES β L) mediated resistance:

Extended spectrum β lactamase (ES β L) mediated resistance was 25.4%. Pseudomonas aeruginosa (63.4%) was the predominant ES β L producer followed by Klebsiella pneumoniae (20.3%) and Proteus mirabilis (8.7%) (Table 3).

DISCUSSION

Chronic suppurative otitis media (CSOM) and its complications are among the most common conditions seen by otologists, pediatricians and general

Organisms	No.	%
Pseudomonas aeruginosa	44	63.4
Klebsiella pneumoniae	14	20.3
Proteus mirabilis	06	8.7
Citrobacter freundii	5	7.2
Total	69	

Table 3. Incidence of ESBL in Com

practitioners². It is a persistent disease with great risk of irreversible complications. Early bacteriological diagnosis of all cases will assure accurate and appropriate effective therapy. Selection of antibiotics is influenced by its efficacy, resistance of bacteria, safety, risk of toxicity and cost. Knowledge of the local microorganism's pattern and their antibiotic sensitivity is then essential to formulate a protocol for empirical antibiotic therapy⁴.



Fig. 4: Antibiogram of proteus speies isolated from CSOM



Fig. 5: Antibiogram of citrobater isolated from CSOM

The pathophysiology of chronic otitis media is poorly understood, but its natural history, risks factors, microbiology and management are well established. Typically, the disease starts early in life subsequent to an episode of acute otitis medias, and follows a fluctuating time course than synchronizes with the seasons of the year. As the affected subject matures, the disease sometimes spontaneously remits but leaves permanent damage⁷. In mild cases, a central tympanic membrane perforation and moderate conductive hearing loss are the only sequelae in more severe cases⁵, the ossicular chain and labyrinth can be completely destroyed when chronic otitis media is active, it can cause intracranial complications such as meningitis, venous sinus thrombosis cranial nerve palsies and brain abscesses which are associated with a high morbidity and even mortality⁶.

Previous studies on the microbiology of CSOM have revealed that the most frequently isolated bacteria were Pseudomonas aeruginosa, Staphylococcus aureus, coagulase negative Staphylococcus, Proteus spp, Klebsiella spp and fungi^{7,12,13}. Staphylococcus aureus is by far the most common, although some studies have shown that Staphylococcus aureus was more common especially when cholesteatoma was present¹³. It has also been reported that there were no significant differences in bacteriology between children and adults with CSOM¹⁴. Our study has revealed that *Pseudomonas* aeruginosa (33.8%) was the most common isolate in CSOM followed by Klebsiella pneumoniae (23.9%). There was also significantly high number of anaerobic isolates (11%) in our cases. There were very few isolates of other gram negative rods in the present study. These results commensurate with a study carried out in Rawalpindi¹⁵. In contrast, studies carried out in Karachi and Quetta revealed that *Staphylococcus aureus* outnumbered Pseudomonas aeruginosa as their major bacterial isolate in ear discharges^{16,17}. Pseudomonas aeruginosa was incidentally also the most common isolate in a similar study carried out in Nepal¹⁸. Not withstanding the minor differences in isolation percentages of the two organisms from different areas it is quite evident that Pseudomonas aeruginosa and Staphylococcus aureus together account for almost 75-85% of the total bacterial isolates in cases of chronic suppurative otitis media^{14,17}.

Interestingly review of literature about studies done to find out bacterial flora in cases of CSOM in neighboring state of Pakistan reveals that whereas *Staphylococcus aureus* remained as the premier isolate in two studies, the isolation rate of Staphylococcus aureus in one of the study was quite low where as *Klebsiella pneumonae*, *Proteus mirabilis* and *Escherichia coli* was relatively high^{18,19}.

Cephalosporins are the most frequently prescribed class of antibiotics and third-generation display an extended gram negative spectrum. These drugs are also used in treating pseudomonas infections. If *Pseudomonas aeruginosa* have become resistant to one cephalosporin are often resistant to other β -lactam antipseudomonas agents as well as to other antibiotics. In the present study 25.4% of gram negative bacilli were extended spectrum β -lactamase (ES β L) producers. 63.4% of Pseudomonas aeruginosa were ES β L producer followed by Klebsiella pneumoniae (20.3%)

The present study highlights the problem of CSOM in and around Gulbarga, District, Karnataka. Unhealthy practices, age of the patients and socioeconomic status contributes for high prevalence of CSOM. Measures to provide regular screening programs, at schools, and health educations are essential to reduce the disease burden in the community. Usage of various plant juices and nonprescription drops is wildly prevalent in the present study. We found that despite the presence of accessible health care, patients were reluctant to seek medical attention. Approximately 68% of the patient with discharging ears had never sought a medical opinion. One of the reasons for this is ignorance regarding the implications of the disease. Another 22% were completely unaware that their children were suffering from CSOM.

CONCLUSION

Antimicrobial resistance is a growing problem worldwide and surveillance of resistance patterns is essential. Treatment efficacy and safety are the main concerns for the chronic of ototopical preparation. Hence It is essential to use antibiotics in proper way to prevent emergence and spread of resistant pathogens.

REFERENCES

- 1. Mandel. EM, Casselbrant ML, Kurs-Lasky M. Acute otorrhea: bacteriology of a common complication of tympanostomy tubes. Ann. Otol. Rhinol. Larynogol, 1994; 103: 713-718.
- 2. Dohar JE, Garner ET, Nielsen RW, Biel MA, Seidlin M. Topical of ofloxacin treatment of otorrhea in children with tympanostomy tubes. Arch otolaryngology Head Neck Surg. 1999; 125, 537-545.
- Johnson RL: Chronic otitis media in school age Navajo Indians, Larynges scope 1967: 77, 1990-1995
- WHO (Division of Diarrhea and Acute Management of childhood illnesses WHO/CDR/ 95. 14. A.L. Geneva: WHO.
- Micro N. Controlled multicenter study on CSOM treated with topical application of ciprofloxacin 0.2% solution. Otolaryngol Head Neck Surg 2000; 123: 617-623.
- Indudharan R, Haq JA, Aigar S. Antibiotics in CSOM. A bacteriologic study. Ann Oto Rhino Laryngol 1999; 108: 440-445.
- 7. Duiguild JP, Collee JG, Fraser AG. Laboratory strategy in the diagnosis of infective syndromes.

In Collee JG, Marmion BP, Fraser AG, Simmons A. Mackie and Mcartney practical medical microbiology. 14th ed. London: 1996.

- 8. Bauer AW, Kirby WMM, Sherris JC, Truck M. Antibiotic susceptibility testing by a standardized single disc method. Am J Clin Pathol 1996; 45: 493-496
- 9. Performance standards for antimicrobial susceptibility testing; Eighth informational supplement, National committee for clinical laboratory standards (NCCLS) document. 1998; M100-S8.
- 10. Jerestin BH, Vandana Agarwal Pathat M. Extended spectrum -lactamases mediated resistance to third generation cephalosporins in Klebsiella pneumoniae in Nagpur, central India. Indian Journal Med Res 1997; 105: 158-161.
- 11. Loy AHC, Tan AL, Lu PKS. Microbiology of chronic suppurative otitis media in Singapore. Singapore Med J 2002; 43(6): 296-299.
- 12. Nekwa O, Shareef ZA, Benayama A. Anaerobes and fungi in chronic suppurative otitis media. Ann Otorhino Laryngol 1997; 106: 649-652.
- 13. Attallah MS. Microbiology of chronic suppurative otitis media with cholesteotoma. Saudi Med J 2000; 21: 924-927.
- 14. Vartiainen E, Vartiainen J. Effect of aerobic bacteriology on the clinical presentation and treatment results of chronic suppurative media. J Laryngol Otol 1996; 110: 315-318.
- 15. Aslam MA, Ahmed Z, Azim R. Microbiology and drug sensitivity patterns of chronic suppurative otitis media. J Coll Physicians Surg Pak 2004; 14; 8: 459-461.
- Ahmed B, Hydri S, Afridi AAK, Ejaz A, Farooq S, Zaidi SK. Microbiology of ear discharge in Quetta. J Coll Physicians Surg Pak 2005; 15(9): 583-584.
- Taj Y, Essa F, Kazmi SU. Pathological analysis of 596 cases of chronic suppurative otitis media in Karachi. J Coll Physicians Surg Pak. 2000; 10: 33-35.
- 18. Ahmed A, Usman J, Hashim R. Isolates from chronic suppurative otitis media and their antimicrobial sensitivity. Pak Armed Forces Med J 1999; 49: 82-85.
- 19. Hivemath SL, Kanta RC, Yeshwanthrao M, Vasantha kumar CM. Aerobic bacterial isolates of CSOM and their antibiotic sensitivity pattern. Ind Pract 2001; 54(7): 486-489.
- 20. Poorey VK, Lyer A. Study of bacterial flora in CSOM and its clinical significance. Ind J Otolaryngol and Head & Neck Surg 2002; 54 (2): 91-98.

A Study of Prevalence, Risk Factors and Clinical Profile of Neonatal Hypoglycemia

Srinivasa B S*, Prasannakumar**

*Senior Resident, **Professor of Pediatrics, Hassan Institute of Medical Sciences, Hassan, Karnataka. 573201

ABSTRACT

Objectives: The objectives of the study was to know the prevalence of neonatal hypoglycemia, clinical presentation and the various risk factors resulting in hypoglycemia.

Method: Babies born in our hospital were screened for hypoglycemia. Babies having hypoglycemia at birth and babies with risk factors for hypoglycemia were included in our study. These babies were monitored for hypoglycemia by using glucose strips and confirmed by laboratory method for the first 72hrs and these babies were also observed for clinical presentation. Data collected was statistically analysed by using 't' test.

Results: The prevalence of neonatal hypoglycemia was 9.4% in our hospital with male to female ratio was 1.46:1. Study shown percentage of hypoglycemia is more common in infant of diabetic mother and in birth asphyxia (06.59% each) followed by meconium aspiration syndrome babies (04.30%). Hypoglycemia was more in Cesarean born babies 57.14% than other modes. Hypoglycemia was observed in significant number during first 24hours of life and symptomatic cases were only 36.27%. In Clinical presentation respiratory distress was the commonest symptom followed by jitteriness, lethargy; seizures and combination of all these symptoms were in large number. Hypoglycemia was common in preterm babies 54.94%. Hypoglycemia in intrauterine growth retardation babies was significant number 63%, off these asymmetrical intrauterine growth retarded babies were71.42%. Neonatal hypoglycemia by laboratory(GOP)method was only 37.30%.

Conclusion: Hypoglycemia is a common metabolic disorder in neonatal period leading to brain dysfunction causing significant neonatal morbidity and mortality, it has to be evaluated and intervened early.

Key words: Clinical profile, Neonatal hypoglycemia.

INTRODUCTION

Hypoglycemia is the most common manifestation of failure of metabolic adaptation in the newborn, which is associated with significant brain dysfunction and neurodevelopmental retardation leading to significant cause of neonatal morbidity and mortality^(1,2).

The newborn during transition period must adapt from inutero transplacental delivery of nutrients to the postnatal situation of alternating periods of milk feeding and fasting. During this period newborn glucose levels falls to a low point in the first two hours of life and then increase and stabilize at mean levels of 65 to 70 mg /dl by the age of 3 to 4 hours, later maintained by breast feeding. Blood glucose levels are frequently lower in newborn than in older children and adults and newborn baby depends upon glucose almost exclusively for its energy.

Recent studies have suggested that term appropriate weight for gestational age (AGA) babies are able to generate ketonebodies^{3,4} while preterm babies are less able to do the same⁵ suggesting that blood glucose monitoring should be carried out from birth and may be discontinued only if euglycemic levels are maintained.

Low birth weight (LBW) babies between 1500-2000gms who are appropriate for gestational age without any risk factors (except their LBW) are usually

Correspondence Address: Dr. Srinivasa B S

⁷th floor, Room no 73, Doctors quatrus, Hassan institute of Medical Sciences Campus, Hassan, Karnataka. 573201. Email; srinivasabindu@yahoo.com

found to be vigorous and suck well at the breast. Available knowledge does not clearly tell whether these groups of babies are able to maintain euglycemic status when on breast-feeding in the first week of life. Hence, the present study was designed to monitor the blood glucose levels for the first few days of life with the initiation of breast feeds to find out whether these infants can remain euglycemic while on breast-feeding.

DEFINITION: "A blood glucose level <40 mg /dl in any infant regardless of gestational age and whether symptomatic or not"⁶.

The incidence varies from 0.5 to $15\%^5$. It has been observed that 8% of large for gestational age (LGA) and 15% of small for gestational age (SGA) suffer from hypoglycemia whereas in preterm, it is 5 to $10\%^7$.

MATERIALS AND METHODS

The present study, a prospective study was carried out in the Department of pediatrics in a reputed medical college hospital in Karnataka, India. The ethical clearance for study was obtained from the institutional review board. Newborn Babies delivered in Hassan Institute of medical sciences were studied in the first 3 days of life.

The selection criteria was; All newborns whose blood sugar at birth is <40 mg /dl and babies born as intrauterine growth retarded /preterm/Large for gestational age/Birth Asphyxia/Sepsis/Rh hemolytic disease of newborn/Babies born to Diabetic and Pregnancy induced hypertension mothers were followed up for first 3 days of life.

Eligible newborns were enrolled immediately after birth and Weight, gestational age was assessed⁸, a detailed maternal, obstetrical and natal history was recorded. The intrauterine growth retarded babies were divided as symmetric and asymmetric by using ponderal index.

Samples were taken by a painless heel prick puncture technique (capillary blood).Only reagent strips (dextrostix-Accu-Check sensor comfort) and glucometer-Accu-Check comfort (Boehringer-Mannheim-Roche), which is certified for use in newborns was used in the study.

The first sample was taken immediately after birth and if the baby was found to be hypoglycemic or if any of the risk factors are present baby will be followed up for the first 72 hours of birth with blood sample schedule as every 2nd hourly for first 12 hours and 4th hourly for next 12 hours. On 2nd day 6th hourly or depending on clinical findings and on 3rd day 8th hourly or depending on clinical findings. If a reading of <40 mg/dl was observed anytime, blood sample will be sent for laboratory for confirmation and baby will be treated as per the protocol for neonatal hypoglycemia.

The clinical status of the newborn was noted in order to categorize the episode as symptomatic or asymptomatic hypoglycemia. If a baby remained euglycemic for the first 3 days of life, follow-up was terminated and concluded that no further screening required. In addition to the estimation of blood glucose, the general activity, vital signs, seizures, apnea, limpness, Jitteriness, Lethargy, Respiratory distress, Cyanosis are observed.

Blood glucose estimation done by glucose strips and Plasma glucose by glucose oxidase peroxidase (GOP) in laboratory.

RESULTS

Off the 965 babies born in our hospital 91 were found to be hypoglycemic with prevalence of 9.4% (Table 1), with male to female ratio being 1.46:1 and preterm being 54.94% (Table 2). Hypoglycemia in cesarean born babies were more (57.14%) compared to other modes. Nearly 57% found hypoglycemic in first 6 hours and 90% by 24 hours (Table 3). Study showed gestational diabetes mellitus (6/91) was leading risk factor in the mother for neonatal hypoglycemia followed by hypothyroidism (2/91), pregnancy induced hypertension(2/91)and in neonates, intrauterine growth retardation was leading cause followed by birth asphyxia (6/91), sepsis(4/91), Meconium aspiration syndrome (4/91), polycythemia (3/91)and Hyaline membrane disease(2/91). Study revealed (Table 4) statistical significance (p<0.005) in Intrauterine growth retardation babies (61.50%) and in birth weight between 1500gms to 2500gms (63.72%) for hypoglycemia but only 4.30% of babies were large for gestational age. Hypoglycemia in asymmetrical intrauterine growth retarded babies was more common 71.42%.

Table 1. Prevalence of hypoglycemia

Factor	No of cases	Hypoglycemia prevalence
Hypoglycemic	91	9.40%
Euglycemic	874	91.60%

Factor	(Hypoglycemic- 91)	Hypoglycemia in percentage
Term	41	45.05%
Preterm	50	54.94%
Table 3. Hypoglycemia in relation to time of birth

Time in hours after birth	Cases with hypoglycemia(91)	Percentage of hypoglycemia
1 st hr	16	17.58%
2 nd hr	25	27.47%
3 – 6 th hr	11	12.08%
7 – 24 th hr	31	34.06%
24 – 48 th hr	08	08.79%
48 – 72 nd hr	00	00.00%

 Table 4. Hypoglycemic babies in relation to intrauterine growth

Factor	No of cases(91)	Percentage of hypoglycemia
LGA	04	4.30%
AGA	31	34.06%
SGA	56	61.50%

In SGA babies asymmetrical were 71.42 % (40/56)

The hypoglycemia in asymptomatic babies (63.73%) showed statistical significance (p<0.005) and In symptomatic cases (Table 5) respiratory distress was the common symptom (9/33), followed by jitteriness (5/33), lethargy/poor feeding (4/33), seizures(3/33) and combination of all these symptoms were in majority (12/33). off these 44% (22/50) were preterm and 26.80% (11/41) were term babies. Hypoglycemia detected by laboratory (GOP) was only 37.30% compared to glucometer because plasma glucose is 15% higher than capillary blood.

Table 5.	Clinical features	observed	in neonatal
	hypoglyc	emia	

Clinical features	No of Cases with symptoms (33)	Percentage of hypoglycemia
Jitteriness	05	15.15%
Lethargy/ Poor feeding	04	12.12%
Seizures	03	09.09%
Respiratory distress	09	27.27%
Combination of symptoms	12	36.36%

Asymptomatic babies being 63.73 % (58/91)

DISCUSSION

Many studies have revealed hypoglycemia is more common in neonates during early hours of birth due to maternal, fetal cause or both⁹⁻¹². Previous studies^{10,13} have shown preterm and intrauterine growth retarded babies were at greater risk for hypoglycemia along with other factors, so frequent blood glucose monitoring and early intervention is necessary within 72 hours of birth as it is the time for both neonate and mother who require sometime to establish effective breast milk feeding. The present study shows that prevalence of hypoglycemia 9.4% is well within the range (0.5%-15%) as observed in various studies^{7, 10, 11}. Hypoglycemia in male babies were 59.34% which was comparable to studies done by Plides et al¹⁴ and Cornbloth.M. et al¹⁵. In our study hypoglycemia was more in first 24 hours of birth, similar results were observed in Shelly and Neligan, Campbel et al. Mc Kittrick and M. Bhalla et al. Our study showed that preterm babies with hypoglycemia was 54.94% when compared to Studies done by Singhal PK et al¹⁶ Lubchenco et al¹⁰ and Beard et al³ which was 20.6%,67% and 34.14% respectively. Off the cesarean born babies 54% had hypoglycemia which was comparable to studies done by Musthaq Ahmad Bhat, Anil Bhansali et al¹⁷.

Asymptomatic babies in our study was 63.73% when compared to studies done by Haworth et al, Brown and Walli's, Cornbloth et al ^(1,18) where it was 84.28%, 67.38% and 75% respectively. Present study showed61.56% of babies with hypoglycemia as intrauterine growth retarded babies when compared to other studies where it was only 17% in Singhal PK et al and 32.80% in Lubchenco et al^{10,16} and asymptomatic intrauterine growth retarded babies in our study were 71.42% comparable to other studies ^(19,20) where they also showed higher percentage.

Clinical presentation in our study showed respiratory distress 63.63% as more common symptom followed by jitteriness51.51% and lethargy/poor feeding 48.48%, when compared to AlkaKhadwal et al²¹ where jitteriness and lethargy/poor feeding (50.70%) were more common in combination. The risk factor for hypoglycemia in our study was highest in intrauterine growth retarded group (61.50%) when compared to other studies where it was preterm babies^{16,17}. Hypoglycemia in asymmetrical intrauterine growth retarded babies were significantly high 71.42%. The maternal risk factors were observed in 10.98% of cases.

When compared to glucometer, hypoglycemia observed in neonates by laboratory (GOP) method was only 37.30% (34/91) as we know plasma glucose level is 15% more than capillary blood which is comparable with study done by R Boyd, B Leigh, P Staurt²².

Summary: A total number of 965 babies were screened for hypoglycemia in first 3 days of life. Hypoglycemia was observed in 91 (09.40%) cases with M: F 1.46:1. Hypoglycemia was observed in 57.14% of cesarean born babies compared to other modes (42.86%). Hypoglycemia was observed in large number of cases 56 % (51/91) with in first 6 hours of life and 90% had hypoglycemia by 24 hours. Most common risk factor for hypoglycemia was Intrauterine growth retardation (61.50%) off which asymmetrical

type being 71.42 % (40/56) and maternal risk factors were observed in 10.98% (10/91) of cases. Hypoglycemia observed in preterm was 54.94 % (50/ 91) and 43.88% of babies were of gestational age between 32-36weeks. Hypoglycemia observed in 63.72% of neonates were of weight between 1.5-2.5kg. Symptomatic babies were 36.27% (33/91) with common symptom being respiratory distress 27.27 % (9/33) where as combination of symptoms were found in 36.36 % (12/33) of babies. Only 37.30% of hypoglycemic neonates found to hypoglycemia by laboratory (GOP) method.

CONCLUSION

The present study shows that significant (9.4%)number of neonates developed hypoglycemia whether they are symptomatic or not during first few hours of life which is a significant number indicating need for evaluation and early and frequent feeding is necessary to prevent hypoglycemia otherwise it may result in significant effect on developing brain leading to morbidity and mortality. Majority of neonates return to euglycemic state by around 72hours of life regardless whether breast fed or started on IV dextrose. Preterm and intrauterine growth retarded babies were at significant risk for hypoglycemia needs to be monitored.

BIBLIOGRAPHY

- Haworth JC, Vidyasagar. Hypoglycemia in newborn: Clinical Obstetrics and Gynecology. 1971; 14: 821-839.
- Haworth JC, MC Rae KN. The neurological and developmental effects of neonatal hypoglycemia. A follow up of 22cases. Canadian med. Ass. J, 1965; 92: 861-864.
- 3. Beard AG et al: Perinatal stress and the premature neonates-II. Effect of fluid and calorie deprivation on blood glucose. J. Pediatr., 1966; 68: 329-343.
- 4. Hawdon JM et al: Neonatal hypoglycemia-blood glucose monitoring and baby feeding. Midwifery, 1993; 9: 3-6.
- 5. Hawdon JM et al: Patterns of metabolic adaptation for preterm infants in the first neonatal week. Arch. Dis. Child, 1992; 67: 357-365.
- 6. Meharban Singh; Metabolic disorders: Hypoglycemia. Care of Newborn. 6th edition New Delhi. Sagar publications 2004 PP. 353-357.

- Richard E.Wilkder, Estate Ann R.eds. Hypo and hyperglycemia in newborn, In: John.P Cloherty. Manuel of neonatal care. 5th Edition. Newyork Lippincott Williams and Wilkins; PP.569.
- 8. Ballard JL et al: New Ballard Score, J. Pediatric., 1991; 119: 417.
- 9. Cornblath M et al: Symptomatic neonatal hypoglycemia associated with toxemia of pregnancy. Journal of Pediatr, 1959; 55: 545-562.
- 10. Lubchenco LO, Bard H: Incidence of hypoglycemia in newborn infants classified by birth weight and gestational age. Pediatr, 1971; 47: 831-838.
- 11. Sexon WR: Incidence of neonatal hypoglycemia-A matter of definition. J. Pediatr., 1984; 105: 149-150.
- 12. Anderson S et al: Hypoglycemia-A common problem among uncomplicated newborn infants in Nepal. J. Tropic Pediatric, 1993; 39: 273-277.
- 13. Gutberlet RL, Cornblath M: Neonatal hypoglycemia revisited. Pediatrics, 1975; 58: 10-17.
- 14. Plides RS et al: The incidence of neonatal hypoglycemia-A complete survey. J. Pediatr., 1967; 70: 76.
- 15. Cornblath M et al: Hypoglycemia in infancy: The need for a rational definition. Pediatrics, 1990; 85: 834-837.
- 16. Singhal PK et al: Neonatal hypoglycemia-clinical profile and glucose requirements. Ind. Pediatr, 1992; 29: 167-171.
- 17. Mushtaq Ahmed Bhat, Anil Bhansali et al: Hypoglycemia small for gestational age babies. Indian Journal of Pediatrics, 2000; 67(6); 423.
- 18. Cornblath M, Schwartz R: Hypoglycemia in the neonate. J. Pediatr. Endocrin. 1993; 6: 113-129.
- 19. Mushtaq Ahmed Bhat, Anil Bhansali et al: Hypoglycemia small for gestational age babies. Indian Journal of Pediatrics, 2000; 67(6); 425-427.
- 20. Carter PE, Lloyd DJ, Duffy B et al; Glucogon for hypoglycemia in; Infants of small for gestational age; Arch.Dis.Child;1988; 63: 1264-1266.
- 21. V. Gupta, Alka Khadwal, M Agnihotri: Clinical profile of neonatal hypoglycemia – clinical study, Asian journal of Paediatric practice Oct–Dec 2004, Vol.8, No.2, page 24.
- 22. R Boyd, B Leigh, P Stuart; Capillary VS Venous blood glucose estimation; Eng; Med.J; 2005: 177-179.

A Study of the Effectiveness of Ultrasound in Diagnosing Infantile Pyloric Stenosis

Srivatsa. N.K*, Manuprakash. S.K**,

*Assistant Professor in Radiology, **Associate Professor in Pediatrics, Hassan Institute of Medical Sciences Hassan, Karnataka

ABSTRACT

Objectives: To evaluate the effectiveness of ultrasound for diagnosis and exclusion of pyloric Stenosis in the infants with nonbilious vomiting.

Methodology: In a cross-sectional study, 444 consecutive infants with clinical suspicion of pyloric Stenosis were evaluated by ultrasound (US) and categorized as pyloric Stenosis or not according measuring parameters as muscle thickness, muscle width and canal length of pylorus. Positive findings were confirmed at surgery; Negative findings were confirmed by means of follow up. Sensitivity, specificity and accuracy were calculated.

Results: Sensitivity, specificity and accuracy of ultrasound were 100% if pyloric muscle thickness of \geq 3mm was chosen as diagnostic. When muscle thickness more than 4mm was used, sensitivity, specificity and accuracy were 96%, 100% and 99.32% respectively.

Conclusions: Ultrasound is highly sensitive and specific if pyloric muscle thickness 3 mm is used as cut off point. By virtue of direct visualization of the pyloric muscle, ultrasound is method of choice for both the diagnosis and exclusion of pyloric Stenosis in infants.

Key words: Diagnosis, Infant, Pyloric stenosis, Sensitivity and specificity, Ultrasonography.

INTRODUCTION

The diagnosis of infantile pyloric Stenosis basically has been relegated to ultrasound in some centers. However, there is controversy about the role of ultrasound especially when the diagnosis is mostly relied on the muscle thickness. Hypertrophic Pyloric Stenosis (HPS) is a cause of non-bilious progressive vomiting between the first week and fifth month of life^{1,2}. HPS prevalence increases in male gender, in first child, white race, positive mother familial history, geographic districts, O and B blood groups and macrolid usage during pregnancy^{,2,3}. Some of its differential diagnosis during infancy are; Pylorospasm, gastro esophageal reflux (GER), duodenal stenosis or obstruction and malrotation^{1,2,4}. Clinical exam (Olive sign), measuring gastric residue, endoscopy, upper gastrointestinal series (UGI) and recently ultrasound are used for diagnosis^{2,4,5}.

Correspondence Address: Dr. Srivatsa.N.K. Hassan CT Scan Centre, Shankar Mutt Road Hassan, Karnataka, 573201) Email-srivatsa nk @ rediffmail.com The clinical diagnosis of HPS has traditionally been made by palpation of an olive–shaped mass in the epigastrium, representing the hypertrophied muscle (49-87%)^{2,4}.Imaging studies are indicated when the clinical findings are unclear or equivocal¹.

The use of ultrasound in the diagnosis of hypertrophic pyloric stenosis was first reported in 1977, by Teele and Smith by direct visualization of pyloric muscle⁶. Since then however, controversy on the definition of the abnormal dimension(s) of hypertrophied muscle continues^{1,4,7,8}. Three, 3.5 and 4 mm are used as cut- off points for pyloric muscle thickness^{1,2,4,8,9}. According to the relation of HPS prevalence to race and geographic districts, this study was designed choosing appropriative pyloric measurement for Iranian infants.

METHODOLOGY

This is a cross-sectional study with simple sampling method. Four hundred and eighty five consecutive infants with progressive, non bilious vomiting and/ or regurgitation were examined between February 2003 and February 2008. Forty one cases are excluded due to other findings which were confirmed as sepsis, metabolic disorder or not doing Ultrasound at all. Remaining 444 study population cases had Ultrasound.

All images were obtained on a GE Pro 3 machine with use of either 5, 7.5 or 10 MHZ transducers as linear or curvilinear probes. Infants were in supine or right posterior oblique position for better identification of pylorus in the longitudinal axis. Measurements were taken at the center of the pylorus, defined as the site of the pyloric lumen and identified by the double track sign of the pyloric mucosa to avert inaccuracy from tangential scans. The length of pyloric canal was measured from base of duodenal cap to the gastric antrum. The width of the canal was measured from outer edge of the muscle in both sides including the double layer of mucosa & central lumen. The muscle thickness was measured in the standard manner, from the outer wall of the pyloric muscle to the outer edge of the mucosa, which thus included the thickness of one muscle layer and excluded the mucosa and lumen.

A positive diagnosis of HPS was made when a persistent olive-like mass was found in place of the normal pyloric channel, with a muscle thickness of 3 mm or more. Three mm is used to including more cases and not missing them for surgery. Positive findings were confirmed surgically.

Negative diagnosis of HPS was made if either normal pylorus (consisted of an adjacent antrum and duodenal cap without as interposed, measurable canal length or muscle thickness was less than 2mm) or borderline cases with muscle thickness 2-3mm for the latter cases, follow up ultrasound were performed to confirm pylorospasm or ongoing early HPS. All negative cases were confirmed by follow-up clinic visits and if needed repeating ultrasound or using UGI. Demographic data, gestational age, blood group, familial history, physical exam (olive sign) and coexistent anomalies were also determined.

RESULTS

Four hundred forty four cases with non-bilious vomiting were evaluated by sonography. Seventy five patients were HPS positive with pyloric thickness of 3mm or more on Ultrasound. All cases were confirmed with surgery. Three cases had pyloric thickness between 2-3 mm without morphologic signs of HPS (pylorospasm). Therefore follow up ultrasound and observation was done. During two weeks pyloric thickness decreased below 2mm.

Three hundred and sixty six cases had normal pylorus which was confirmed by follow up. . Pyloric length was between 16-28 mm (20.22±2.33), width 8.7-

17 mm (13.14 \pm 1.97) and thickness 3-6.50 mm (4.94 \pm 0.65). The Histogram of pyloric muscle thickness is illustrated in Figure 1. Seventy five HPS-positive cases were aged 16-180 days (mean 40.26 \pm 23.28 SD); which included 63 boys (84%) and 12 girls (16%). Their weight ranges were 1900-4300 gram (mean3303.60 \pm 499.89 SD). Seventy three cases (97.3%) were term and two (2.7%) preterm.



Fig. 1: Histogram of Pyloric Muscle Thickness at Ultrasound

By choosing muscle thickness 3mm or more as diagnostic for HPS, sensitivity, specificity and accuracy were 100%. When muscle thickness more than 4mm was used, sensitivity, specificity and accuracy were 96%, 100% and 99.32%.

DISCUSSION

Infantile hypertrophic Pyloric Stenosis results from a defect in the pyloric contractility or relaxation, which result in hypertrophy of the antropyloric muscle^{2,4,9}. Accurate measurement of the antropyloric canal and its muscle is important in the diagnosis of HPS. Cohen and Haller suggested measuring the length, width and thickness of the pylorus for depicting HPS while muscle thickness is the most reliable measurement and the width is the least reliable one^{4,10}.

Mean of pyloric length in Assefa study on 39 patients was 19.1mm¹¹. Wilson and Vanhoutte suggested the length higher than 20 mm diagnostic for HPS¹². Our study shows 20.22 mm as mean of the length in HPS group. In Strauss study pylorus width more than 15mm was determined as abnormal¹³. In Assefa study the mean of pyloric width was 14.05 mm¹¹. In our study the mean was 13.14±1.97mm.

The mean of Pylorus muscle thickness was 4.46 mm in Assefa study¹¹. In Blumhagen studies thickness more than 4mm was suggested as diagnostic for HPS^{14,15}.

However Swischulk study concluded that muscle thickness 3mm or more as HPS, less than 2mm as normal and 2-3mm as borderline cases which need follow up⁸.

In our study pylorus muscle thickness was between 3-6.5mm by 4.94 ± 0.65 mm mean similar to other studies. With using muscle thickness 3mm or more as diagnostic for HPS, all 74 patients were HPS true positive (without false positive or false negative case). Our results were similar to Marta Hernanz- Schulman study in which sensitivity, specificity and accuracy were 100%⁷. By using 4mm as cut off point for the diagnosis of HPS (according to Nelson text book 2004), we missed diagnosis of HPS in three cases which was surgically confirmed HPS and had muscle thickness between 3-4mm.

Demographic data including age and sex were also almost similar in our group with previous studies. However, blood groups O and B were the most prevalent blood groups among HPS patients in other studies^{2,}. In our study O+ 44% and A+ 20% were the most prevalent blood groups.

Palpation of Olive in Oates and Macdessi study was positive in 87% and it was 48% during 1988-1991.16 Clinical olive sign was seen in 33.3% of our cases. In other studies positive Olive sign was between 40-100%^{10,17}. It seems that over the time physicians get more dependent on sonography.

In conclusion, Ultrasound is highly sensitive and specific if pyloric muscle thickness of 3mm is used as cut-off point. By virtue of direct visualization of the pyloric muscle, ultrasound is the method of choice for both diagnosis and exclusion of pyloric stenosis.

REFERENCES

- Sivit C, Siegel M. Gastrointestinal tract: Siegel M. Pediatric Sonography. 3rd ed. Philadelphia: Lippin cott Williams & Wilkins 2002; 340-343.
- 2. Wyllie R. Pyloric stenosis and congenital Anomalies of the stomach, Nelson Textbook of Pediatric, Beherman, Kliegman, Genson: Saunders, USA. 2004; 1229-1231.
- 3. Headback G, Abrahamssonk, Husberg B. The epidemiology of infantile Hypertrophic pyloric

stenosis in Sweden 1987-96.Arch Dis Child 2001; 85(5): 379-381.

- 4. Hernanz –Schulman M. Infantile Hypertrophic Pyloric stenosis, Radiology 2003; 227: 319-331.
- Finkelstein M, Mandell G, Trabell K, Hypertrophic Pyloric stenosis: Volumetric of Measurement of Nasogastric Aspirate to determine the imaging modality. Radiology 1997; 177: 759-767.
- 6. Teele RL, Smith EH. Ultrasound in the diagnosis of idiopathic hypertrophic pyloric stenosis. N Engl J Med 1997; 296: 1149-1150.
- Hernanz-Schulman M, Sells LL, Ambrosino MM. Hypertrophic Pyloric Stenosis in the Infant without a Palpable Olive: Accuracy of Sonographic Diagnosis, Radiology 1994; 193: 771-776.
- Okeefee FN, Stansberry SD, Swischuk LE. Antropyloric muscle thickness at ultrasound in infant: What is normal? Radiology 1991;178: 827-830.
- Kirks DR, Buonomo C, Taylor GA, Share JC. Gastrointestinal Tract, practical pediatric imaging: Diagnostic Radiology of Infants and Children, 13th ed. Philadelphia: Lippin cott-Raven: 1998; 899-903.
- 10. Haller J, Cohen H. Hypertorophic Pyloric Stenosis: diagnosis using us. Radiology 1986; 161: 335-339.
- 11. Assefa G: Sonographic diagnosis of hypertrophic pyloric stenosis. Preliminary experience: Ethiop Med J 2002; 40: 149-54. stenosis. J Clin Ultrasound 1984; 12: 201-204.
- 13. Strauss S, Manor A, Graif M. Sonography of Hypertrophic pyloric stenosis. AJR 1981; 135: 1057-105.
- 14. Blumhagen JD, Coombs JB, Ultrasound in diagnosis of Hypertrophic pyloric stenosis. J Clin Ultrasound 1981; 9: 289-292.
- 15. Blumhagen JD, Noble HG. Muscle thickness in Hypertrophic pyloric stenosis: Sonographic determination. AJR 1983; 140: 221-223.
- 16. Macdessi J, Oates R. Clinical diagnosis of pyloric stenosis; a declining art. BMJ 1993; 306: 553-555.
- Stevenson RJ. Non-neonatal intestinal obstruction in children. Surg Clin North Am 1985; 65: 1217-1234.

A Study of Transvaginal Ultrasound in Asherman Syndrome

Srivatsa.N.K*, Srinivasa.B.S**

*Assistant Professor in Radiology, **Senior Resident , Department of Paediatrics, Hassan Institute of Medical Sciences, Hassan, Karnataka

ABSTRACT

Objective: To determine the accuracy of transvaginal ultrasound in evaluation of uterine sonomorphology in nongestational amenorrhoea following curettage producers (Asherman Syndrome).

Methodology: The study population comprised all adult females in reproductive age group who presented with amenorrhea following a curettage procedure. Those with positive serum BHCG, and raised serum prolactin were excluded. Transabdominal (TAS) as well as transvaginal ultrasound (TVS) scan was carried out in all patients. Hystero-salpingography (HSG) was done in nearly all patients. Age, parity, indication for referral and curettage, duration of amenorrhea, frequency of curettage and previous menstrual and obstetric history, were obtained. Transvaginal scan findings were recorded and compared with HSG. Two patients came for a follow up after adhesionolysis.

Results: There were 17 patients in all with a mean age of 28.6 years, mean parity of 4.5 and mean amenorrhea duration of 5.5 months. Sixteen were primarily referred for evaluation of amenorrhea. Twelve had history of previous pelvic infection, 8 had previous menstrual irregularity and 15 had abortions. Repeat curettage was done in 09 patients. Trans abdominal ultrasound was positive in only one patient and transvaginal ultrasound was positive in all cases. Findings on the later examination included normal to thickened endometrium with heterogeneous echo texture, irregular outline, non-shadowing echogenic foci and sparse sub-endometrial vascularity. Calcification at endo-/myometrium junction was seen in one case on both techniques. The sensitivity of TVUS in diagnosing intra uterine adhesions was 92%, specificity 100%, positive predictive value 100% and negative predictive value 92%.

Conclusion: Transvaginal ultrasound shows accurate and specific uterine sono-morphologic features in traumatic amenorrhea and can be used as a reliable screening test.

Keywords: Asherman syndrome, Amenorrhea, Curettage, Intrauterine adhesions, Endometrium, Transvaginal ultrasound.

INTRODUCTION

Intrauterine adhesions and synechiae resulting from trauma, commonly curettage, is called Asherman syndrome¹. It may also result from other uterine interventions such as caesarian section and myomectomy, rarely from genital infections such as chlamydia, tuberculosis, and schistosomiasis² and even the presence of a foreign body. It usually leads to amenorrhea, hypomenorrhea, habitual abortion and secondary infertility. It is also called Fritsch-Asherman syndrome and the earliest descriptions date back to a

Correspondence Address: Dr. Srivatsa. N.K. Hassan CT Scan Centre, Shankar Mutt Road Hassan, Karnataka, 573201) Email-srivatsa_nk @ rediffmail.com single case description by the Austrian gynecologist Ernest Werthien (1864-1920)¹.

Generally regarded to be an uncommon finding³, the prevalence following secondary removal of placental remnants or repeat curettage may be as high as 40%⁴. Otherwise the estimated occurrence is 1:100 post partum curettage procedures ⁵. It can strike any woman undergoing virtually any intrauterine procedure. The condition is under diagnosed due to non-visualization of cavity on hysterosalpingography (HSG), which is the usual method of evaluation ^{3,4}. However endovaginal ultrasound has unique characteristics, which allow its utilization in the evaluation of this equally unique mucous membrane that lines the uterine cavity and correct evaluation of severity of adhesions helps in predicting the response to therapy^{6,7}.

The objective of this study was to determine the accuracy of transvaginal ultrasound scanning (TVS) in evaluating the morphology of endo and myometrium in cases of Asherman syndrome following curettage.

PATIENTS AND METHODS

Adult married female with history of amenorrhea of more than 2 months duration following a curettage procedure, referred for an ultrasound evaluation were included. Those with raised B-HCG, visible gestational sac on ultrasound, raised serum prolactin levels or not consenting for endovaginal scanning were excluded. Scanning was done per abdomen and vaginum. Age, duration of amenorrhea, indication of curettage and then referral, number of times curettage was performed, and past menstrual and obstetric history as well as uterine appearance in terms of endometrial thickness, regularity, echotexture and vascularity were noted.

HSG was done in all cases except one and was taken as the gold standard against which the sensitivity, specificity, positive and negative predictive values were determined. Only two patients came for follow up after 6 months.

RESULTS

There were a total of 17 patients. Out of them 16(92%) were referred for evaluation of non gestational amenorrhea and 1 (8%) for base line evaluation of prior to hormone replacement therapy. Mean age was 28.6 years (range 23-48); mean parity was 4.5 (range 0-7) and mean duration of amenorrhea prior to scanning was 5.5 months (range 3-37 months). Indication for last curettage was retained products of conception in 15 (88%) and with full abortion to 1402 (12%). Curettage was done once in 8 patients (48%) and two or more times in 9 (52%). History of pelvic infection was present in 12 patients (70.5%); history of abortion was available in 15 (88%) patients including two willful abortions while 07 (47%) had previous menstrual irregularity.

Trans abdominal scan was normal in 16 patients with only one patient showing positive finding of extensive irregularly arranged sub endometrial calcifications. TVS was positive in all 17 patients which included normal to thickened endometrium, heterogeneous echogenecity, irregular outline, sparse sub-endometrial vascularity and discrete regularly arranged calcifications at endometrium/ myometrium junction.

Sensitivity of TVS was 92%, specificity 100% and PPV was also 100%. Distal extent of changes correlated well with the proximal extent of cavity seen on HSG.

Two patients came for follow up after 06 months following hysteroscopic adhesionolysis and IUCD insertion. Both showed normal layered endometrium with multifocal vascularity.

DISCUSSION

The results of this study show that uterine cavity hidden by adhesions on HSG, is adequately visualized on TVUS giving a fairly accurate idea of the extent of endometrial abnormality. Hysteroscopy and hysterosalpingography are the usual diagnostic modalities for this condition^{6,8}. While hysteroscopy is invasive, HSG causes significantly more pain in amenorrhic than in menstruating women⁹. It is also reported that the presence of calcified or ossified tissue in endometrium can go undetected on HSG as well as MR while it can be visualized by TVUS¹⁰. It is therefore logical to utilize trans vaginal ultrasound as a modality of choice that may alert the gynecologist to the possibility of intra uterine synechiae¹¹.

The data extracted in this series highlights some important comparative aspects. There was history of infection before or after procedure in majority of these patients as was the history of abortion. This coincides with Westerndrop et al. who had pointed to a mildly increased risk in such cases⁴. The same researchers have also found a significant (12 –fold) increased risk of acquiring Asherman syndrome in women with previous menstrual irregularities. Eight of our 17 patients also had menstrual cycle and volume irregularities in the past. Just over half of these patients were repeatedly curettaged. Repeat curettage or secondary removal of products of conception/ placental remnants can increase the prevalence of intra uterine adhesions up to 40%⁴.

Endovaginal ultrasound is often superior to transabdominal ultrasound in evaluation of endometrial abnormality^{12,13}. This is again demonstrated in this study where transabdominal ultrasound could detect only gross calcifications while TVUS could detect subtle endometrial changes. Other researchers also note these changes of endometrial thickness, altered echogenecity and irregularity. Mendelson et al. associated these changes with Asherman syndrome apart from early pregnancy, decidual reaction, endometrial carcinoma, and reaction to intra-uterine contraceptive device¹². Cofino et al. also recommend ultrasound for evaluation and follow up of intra uterine adhesions¹¹. They described the adhesions as dense intrauterine lines, which disappeared after adhesionolysis. Only two patients in our series came for follow up after adhesionolysis. Both of them showed normal layered pattern of endometrium with increased sub-endometrial vascularity than before. It must be stressed that the vascularity changes as seen in this study are not described in literature previously.

The extent of adhesion formation correlated with the HSG findings. The extent of adhesions determines the severity, grading (from I-IV on an ascending scale) and outcome⁴. Patients in whom fundus is completely obscured or those with narrowed fibrotic cavity are therapeutically more challenging than mild endometrial type adhesions⁶. These adhesions are persistent and may deform a pregnancy sac¹⁴. However milder type may even resolve spontaneously after 8 months¹⁵ which may be the probable reason of some patients being lost to follow up as a majority (58%) of our patients had amenorrhea of less than twelve months duration.

The high sensitivity, specificity and PPV of TVUS in our series is comparable to that with Fedele et al¹⁷. who found a sensitivity of 91% with equal specificity and PPV i.e. 100% as ours. The superiority of transvaginal ultrasound also corresponds with Mendelson et al. observation of transvaginal scan having superior image quality over transabdominal scan¹².

CONCLUSION

Transvaginal ultrasound is a noninvasive, specific and sensitive imaging technique that detects subtle endometrial abnormalities caused by intra uterine adhesions following a curettage procedure. It can be used as an adjunct to hysterosalpingography for evaluation of the extent of adhesions.

REFERENCES

- 1. Asherman AG. Amenorrhea traumaticum (atretica). J Obstet Gynecol British Emp 1948; 55: 23-30.
- 2. Krolikowski A, Janowski K, Larsen JV. Asherman syndrome caused by schistosomiasis. Obstet Gynecol 1995; 85: 898-899.
- 3. Fletcher H, Kulkarni S, Brown E. Successful pregnancy outcome after hysteroscopic adhesionolysis in Asherman syndrome. West Indian Med J 1997; 46: 124-125.
- 4. Westendorp IC, Ankum WM, Mol BW, Vonk J. Prevalence of Asherman syndrome after secondary removal of placental remnants or a

repeat curettage for incomplete abortion. Hum Reprod 1998; 13: 3347-3350.

- 5. http://www.ashermans.org/ Medical%20 Description.htm (accessed on 4/17/2003).
- 6. Magos A. Hysteroscopic treatment of Asherman's syndrome. Reprod Biomed Online 2002; 4 Suppl 3: 46-51.
- 7. Goldstein SR. Use of endovaginal ultrasound in the over all gynecologic examination. Obstet Gynecol Clin North Am. 1991; 18: 779-796.
- 8. Critchley HOD. Amenorrhea and oligomenorrhea and hypothalamic pituitary dysfunction. In gynecology (3rd edition). Shaw RW, Soutter WP, Stanton SL (edi); Churchill Livingstone, London, 232, 2003.
- 9. Sohail S. Variables affecting pain tolerance in xray hysterosalpingography. J Coll Physicians Surg Pak. 2004; 14: 170-172.
- 10. Ombelet W, Lauwers M, Verswijvel g, Grieten M, Hinoul P, Mestdagh G. Endometrial ossification and infertility: the diagnostic value of different imaging techniques. Abdom Imaging. 2003; 28: 893-896.
- 11. Confino E, Friberg J, Giglia RV, Gleicher N. Sonographic imaging of intrauterine adhesions. Obstet Gynecol 1985; 66: 596-8.
- 12. Mendelson EB, Bohm-Velz M, Joseph N, Neiman HL. Endometrial abnormalities: evaluation with transvaginal sonography. Am J Roentgenol 1988; 150:139-142.
- 13. Qureshi IH, Hidayatullah, Akram AH, Ashfaq S, Nayyar S. Transvaginal versus transabdominal sonography in the evaluation of pelvic pathology. J Coll Physicians Surg Pak 2004; 14: 390-393.
- 14. Timor-Tritsch IE, Rottem S. Pathology of the early intrauterine pregnancy. In: Transvaginal Sonography(2nd edition): Timor-Tritsch IE, Rottem S (edi).; Elseiver, New York.312-3,1991.
- 15. Jensen PA, Stromme WB. Amenorrhea secondary to puerperal curettage (Asherman syndrome) Am J Obstet Gynecol 1972; 113: 151-157.
- 16. Tsapanos VS, Stathopaulo LP, Papathanassopaulou VS, Tzingounis VA. The role of Seprafilm bioabsorbable membrane in the prevention and therapy of endometrial synechiae. J Biomed Mater Res 2002; 63: 10-14.
- 17. Fedele L, Bianchi S, Dorta M, Vignali M. Intrauterine adhesions: diagnosis with transvaginal ultrasound. Radiology 1996; 199: 757-759.

A Two Year Prospective Study of Evaluation of the Role of Ultrasonography in Various Retinal and Choroidal Disorders in Western Uttar Pradesh

Subhash Chand Sylonia¹, Vikrant Sharma², A K Verma³, Harsh Vardhan Singh⁴

¹Assistant Professor, Department of Radiodiagnosis, ²Assistant Professor, Department of Ophthalmology, ³Professor and Medical Superintendent, Department of Radiodiagnosis, Saraswathi Institute of Medical Sciences, Hapur, Uttar Pradesh, ⁴Biochemist, Department of Pathology, Hindu Rao Hospital, Delhi-110007

ABSTRACT

50 eyes of 50 patients referred from outdoor patient department and causality department were examined by ultrasound- B-mode in department of radiology of Saraswathi Institute of Medical Sciences, Hapur. A membrane-like echogenecity was found between the retina and the choroids. The acoustic characteristics were studied. The usefulness for the differential diagnosis of retinal and choroids detachment was demonstrated with several situations of the choroido-retinal pathology. The thickness of the retina and choroids can be measured in routine examinations. B mode ultrasonography will be helpful in the evaluation of retina and choroids in the post traumatic and post surgical cases.

Keywords: Asherman syndrome, amenorrhea, curettage, intrauterine adhesions, endometrium, trans-va

INTRODUCTION

The ultrsonography is becoming an important part of diagnosis in various diseases of human organs including Retina and choroids. The ultrasonography is also becoming useful in the soft tissue abnormalities. The macula is the site of central vision within the retina. The retina is oxygenated by the underlying choroid. These tissues are less than 1 mm thick in total. While optical techniques can reveal much about the structure of the retina, ultrasound allows imaging of the choroid and deeper tissues. This study will investigate use of high frequency (7.5-10 MHz) ultrasound for imaging of the retina and choroid in patients with age-related macular degeneration, a prime cause of blindness. The investigation will involve use of novel post-processing methodologies to achieve maximum resolution of the fine tissue structures involved in this disease.

MATERIALS AND METHODS

This prospective case controlled randomized study was performed in department of radiology, Saraswathi

Correspondence Address: Dr. Subhash Chand Sylonia Assistant Professor, Department of Radiodiagnosis, Saraswathi Institute of Medical Sciences, Hapur-245101 Email: sylonia.red@gmail.com Institute of medical sciences Hapur, India from Jan 2009 to Jan 20011. The study was started only after taking permission from the institutional ethical committee. The study was performed on 50 patients visiting ophthalmology OPD/IPD of Saraswathi Institute of Medical Sciences, Hapur (UP) with the complaints like blunt trauma of eye, post surgical problems. The High frequency (7.5-10 MHz) ultrasound for imaging was used for the study. The scanning was done with patient lying supine, when the pull of gravity is exerted in the direction of the optic axis. The patients were instructed to close the eyelid throughout the examination. Both eyes were examined in all the patients. The eye was observed as it is from side to side and up and down to identify the membranous structure. The open globe injuries in patients were not included in the present study. In case of ocular trauma or recent ocular surgery care was taken to ensure that the pressure is not applied to the globe in order to minimize the possibility of causing expulsion of intraocular content from an occult rupture globe. The fasting blood sugar investigation was also performed to rule out diabetes. Detailed local examination of the orbit was carried out along with complete general examination and systemic examination of the patient. The history was recorded in preset questionnaire as a baseline record.

The High frequency (7.5-10 MHz) ultrasound for imaging was used for the study. The scanning was

done with patient lying supine, when the pull of gravity is exerted in the direction of the optic axis. The patient was instructed to close the eyelid throughout the examination. Both eyes were examined in all the patients. The eye was observed as it is from side to side and up and down to identify the membranous structure. The open globe injury inpatients were not included in the present study. In case of ocular trauma or recent ocular surgery care was taken to ensure that the pressure is not applied to the globe in order to minimize the possibility of causing expulsion of intraocular content from an occult rupture globe. The fasting blood sugar investigation was also performed to rule out diabetes. Detailed local examination of the orbit was carried out along with a complete general examination and systemic examination of the patient. The history was recorded in preset questionnaire as a baseline record.

OBSERVATIONS

Table 1. Showing Status of Retina and Choroids

S. N.	Chorioretinal Status	No. of cases	%
1.	Normal	19	38
2.	Total Retinal detachment	5	10
3.	Partial retinal detachment	1	2
4.	Retinal detachment with ocular mass	4	8
5.	Retinal detachment with retinal echoes	3	6
6.	Retinal detachment with sub retinal echoes	1	2
7.	Choroidal detachment	3	6
8.	Thick chorio-retinal layer tear	3	6
9.	Foreign body embedded in chorio-retinal layer	3	6
10.	Not visualized adequately	5	10
11.	Coloboma	2	4
12.	Disrupted	1	2
	Total	50	100

Table 2. Shows the various lesions and their radiological presentation in choroids

Lesion	Location	Shape	Vascularity
Melanoma	Choroid	Dome	+
Metastatic carcinoma	Posterior choroid	Diffuse/ regular	-
Choroid haemangioma	Posterior choroids	(temporal) Dome	-
Choroidal naevus	Choroid	Dome	+
Disciform lesion	Macula	Dome/ irregular	-
Choroidal Hemorrhage	Choroid	Dome	-

After completing the ultrasonographic study we observed that out of total 50 patients 19(38%) cases had normal appearing chorio-retinal layer where as 5(10%) cases had total retinal detachment and only 1(2%) case had partial retinal detachment (Table-1). Retinal cyst was associated with retinal detachment in 3(6%) cases. Retinal detachment with sub retinal echoes i.e. hemorrhage seen in only 1(2%) case. Ocular mass associated with retinal detachment was seen in 4(8%) cases. Choroidal detachment was also observed in only 3(6%) cases. Thickened chorio-retinal layer was seen in 3(6%) cases. The causes were Phthisis bulbi, uveitis and thyroidal ophthalmopathy. Foreign body embedded in chorio-retinal layer seen in 3(6%) cases. Fundal coloboma was seen in 2(4%) cases. Chorioretinal anatomy was observed to be disrupted in 1(2%) case. The Chorioretinal layer was not visualized in 5(10%) cases due to the large intraocular mass with possibility of retinoblastoma. Choroidal melanoma and choroidal nevus were vascular lesions diagnosed.

DISCUSSION

Ultrasonography is safe, quick, noninvasive, non ionizing method of imaging the eye, especially when light conducting media is opaque as in case of trauma,



Fig. 1: Sonographical Images of Retinal Detachment



Fig. 2: Sonographical Images of Choroidal Detachment

rendering direct vision by ophthalmoscopically difficulty. Out of 50 cases with ocular disease retinal detachment was detected in 14 cases (28%) out of which 5 cases (10%) were with total retinal detachment which is seen as funnel shaped membrane extending from the ora'serratas to the optic disc posteriorly. Appearance was in concordance with those of Kerman et al in 1978. Characteristic ultrasonographic patterns of retinal detachment in a variety of clinical circumstances are demonstrated and discussed. Uncomplicated retinal detachment consists of ultrasonically detected retinal detachment without associated pathology in the vitreous, sub retinal space, or choroid. The simultaneous detection of lesions in one or more of these areas may be a source of diagnostic confusion. Acoustic diagnostic criteria for differentiation of associated conditions in complicated retinal detachments are demonstrated and discussed. Thought we studied with B mode ultrasonography in variety of cases it is suggested that both High resolution A-scan and B-scan ultrasonography will be able to provide a method for detection and diagnosis of retinal detachment, associated ocular pathology, and simulating conditions. It can be concluded that ultrasonography is an ideal diagnostic modality for ocular regions especially in opaque media and an excellent screening modality for lesions which can not be diagnosed clically.

REFERENCES

1. Vashist S, Berry M, Goyal M.I J Radiol imaging 1995; 5: 119-130.



- Hasselink JR, Davis KR, Weber AL. Radiology 1980; 137 : 363-366.
- Munk L, Vallet AD, Lovin M. AM J Radiol 1991 ; 157 : 1079 -1086.
- 4. Fielding. JA. Clin Radiol 1996; 51 : 533-544.
- 5. Scott IU, smiddy WE, Feuer WJ, Ehlies FJ. Am J Ophthalmol. 2000 Jan; 137 (1) : 24-29.
- Coleman DJ, Lizzi FL, Jack RL. Philodelphia: Lea & Febiger, 1977.
- UIponam wari CU, Marchien TT. Niger Postgrad Med J. 2001 sep; 8 (3): 123-126.
- Blaivas M, Theodoro D, Sierzenski PR. Acad Emeg Med 2002 aug; 9(8): 791-799.
- 9. Georgeta M,AL A, Florica B. Oftalmologia. 2001; 52 (2) : 21-29 (Article in Romanian).
- 10. Fielding JA. IJ Radiol Imag 1994; 4: 186-193
- 11. Slamovits TL, gardner TA. Ophthalmology. 1989; 96 (4): 555-568.
- 12. Buerger DE, Biesman BS. Ophthalmology Clinics of North America 1998; 11(3): 381 -410.
- 13. Mundt GH IR, Hugher WF Jr. Am J Ophthalmol 1956; 441-488.
- 14. Okasala A. Am J ophthal mol 1964; 57 : 453.
- 15. Dallow RL. Int ophthalmol Clinic 1974; 14 (4): 23 -56.
- 16. Janssan F, kock E. Acta ophthalmol 1962 ;4: 420.
- 17. Janssan F, Sundmark E. Acta ophthalmol 1961; 39: 899.
- 18. Coleman DJ. Am J Ophthalmol 1972; 73: 501.
- 19. Coleman DJ. Koing WF, Katz L. Am J ophthalmol 1969; 68: 256.
- 20. Bronson NR. Trans Am J ophthalmol Soc 1972; 70: 365.

Thyroid Disorders in Pregnant Women

*Suhrid Misra, **Amitabha Das

*Associate Professor, Department of Pathology, Minapore Medical College, Paschim Medinipore **Assistant Professor, Department of Obstetrics and Gynaecology, SSKM Hospital,Kolkata-20

INTRODUCTION

Pregnancy is usually associated with normal but significant and reversible physiological change that asserts growth and well-being of the fetus. Biochemical tests of thyroid hormones clearly reflect these adaptive changes & distinctly different from non-pregnant women.

Pregnancy changes the normal iodine balance, immunity and thyroid function. For the well-being of the mother and fetus, the thyroid function abnormality is to be recognized and treated. Interpretation of thyroid function should be done cautiously considering the normal physiological alterations as found in this study.

2-5% of women suffer from various thyroid disorders. 1-2% of them are in reproductive age.

Importance of thyroid function tests during pregnancy found are as follows:

At the first 10-12 weeks of pregnancy, the fetus is totally dependent on the mother for thyroid hormones.

From the 2nd trimester, the fetal thyroid starts functioning and thyroid hormones are essential for CNS development. Mother supplies the iodine needed via placenta. Iodine deficiency in mother may give cretinism of the newborn.

Correct diagnosis and treatment of the thyroid dysfunction are important for preventing mother and fetal complication. Physiological changes of thyroid function during pregnancy should be considered for result interpretation.

Key word: TSH=Thyroid stimulating hormone, FT4=Free thyroxin, FT3=Free triiodothyronin, Anti-Tg=Antibody to thyroglobulin, Anti-TPO=Antibody to thyroid peroxisome

MATERIALS AND METHODS

20000 pregnant women from the pre-natal checkup clinic at Midnapore Medical College, SSKM Hospital and Medical College were chosen for the study over a period of 5 years.

Along with routine blood tests and urine examination, thyroid function tests (TSH, FT4,FT3, Total T4, Total T3, T3 Resin uptake, Free T4 index) and FNAC in relevant cases were performed.

They were followed till term and delivery. They were grouped into NORMAL with due consideration of physiological alterations as supported by literature and ABNORMAL. The results were retrospectively analyzed and interpreted.

RESULTS

Normal Physiological Changes Found

ASSAYS	1st Trimester 2nd Trimester		3rd Trimester
TSH	Normal or Normal decreased		Normal
FT4	Normal Normal		Normal
FT3	Normal	Normal	Normal
Total T4	High	High	High
Total T3	High	High	High
T3 Resin uptake	Low	Low	Low
Free T4 index	Normal	Normal	Normal

Normal and Abnormal Thyroid Pathology Observed

	Number	Percentage
Normal	17794	88.9%
Hypothyroidism	100	0.5%
Hyperthyroidism	40	0.2%
Goiter	2000	10.0%
Thyroid Nodules	20	0.1%
Thyroid Cancers	1	0.005%
Postpartum Thyroiditis	30	0.15%
Postpartum Grave's Disease	15	0.07%

DISCUSSION

During pregnancy, there is slight enlargement of the thyroid gland and its metabolic rate is increased. The changes during normal pregnancy as found in the literature are:

- a) Enhanced placental uptake of iodine-iodine is transferred to the fetus.
- b) Increased maternal renal clearance of jodine during pregnancy. Due to reduced availability of iodine, the TSH levels are raised to meet the demand. With advancement of pregnancy, serum TSH values were found to be increasing above the higher limit of normal non-pregnant women. Therefore reference range of TSH values significantly overlaps with those of nonpregnant women. Significant increase in serum TBG, Thyroglobulin, Total T4 and Total T3serum TBG increase 2.5 folds during pregnancy (peak at 21st week). This increase is caused by increased estrogen secreted by placenta. As a result there is rise in total T3 & T4 levels in the first and second trimesters, continued up to third trimester of pregnancy and then shows a decline till term. They probably help fetal development. Increased plasma value along with increased TBG results in increased production of total T4. By 4-6 weeks postpartum, serum TBG, T4 & T3 return to prepregnancy level.
- c) Serum thyroxin binding pre-albumin concentration do not change or decline slightly during pregnancy. Hypo-albuminaemia also occurs.
- d) Serum FT3 & FT4 concentrations are usually within the normal range. But the mean values are in the upper normal range or just above it. Early in pregnancy when serum HCG concentration are highest & decreased to the lower normal range in the third trimester.
- e) Stimulation of thyroid by HCG secreted by placenta, closely simulating luteinizing hormone & have weak thyrotropic activity. HCG having identical alpha subunit to TSH & has weak thyrotropic activity. TSH & HCG are similar enough that HCG can bind & transfer signal from TSH receptor on the thyroid epithelial cells. HCG titer reaches its peak towards the end of first trimester. Serum TSH titers show a decrease only during the first trimester of pregnancy because of negative correlation with HCG levels. Maternal serum TSH level returns to normal in 2nd trimester and then rise in the 3rd trimester. FT4 also increase with suppression of TSH and later on decreases during later gestation.

- 1) Enzyme Type III de-iodinase secreted from the placenta converts T4 to T3 and reverse. T3 (rT3) and also T3 to de-iodothyronine (T2).
- 2) Tg is increased frequently during pregnancy, reflecting the increased activity of the thyroid during pregnancy. The increase in thyroglobulin can be seen as early in the 1st trimester. But it is more pronounced in the later part of pregnancy. Increased serum Tg concentration are also associated with an increase in thyroid volume.
- 3) Thyroid auto-antibodies (antiTg & antiTPO) are present in 6-19.6% of pregnant women as compared to 5% of non-pregnant women.
- 4) The following is a general overview regarding the physiological and thyroid function tests changes associated with pregnancy:

Physiological Changes	Thyroid Function Test Change
Increased Serum estrogens	Increased Serum TBG
Increased Serum TBG	(i) Increased demand for T4 and T3(ii) Increased in total T4 and T3
Increased hCG	(i) Decreased TSH(ii) Increased FT4
Increased Iodine clearance	 (i) Increased in dietary requirement of iodine (ii) Decrease in hormone production in iodine deficient areas (iii) Increased Goiter in iodine deficient areas.
Increased Type III de-iodinase	(i) Increased T4 and T3 degradation(ii) Increased demand for T4 and T3
Increased Demand for T4 and T4	(i) Increased serum Tg.(ii) Increased thyroid volume(iii) Increased Goiter in iodine deficient areas

REFERENCES

- 1. The Thyroid: A Fundamental and Clinical Text, 7th edition, Werner & Ingbar.
- 2. Manual of Endocrinology and Metabolism, 2nd edition ,Norman Lavin.
- 3. Interpretation of Diagnostic Tests, 7th edition, Jacques Wallach.
- 4. Thyroid Disease and Pregnancy-American Thyroid Association (2005).

Aarskog Syndrome - A Rare Case Report

¹Suma M.S., ²Pramod G.V., ³Sujatha G.P., ⁴Ashok L., ⁵M.L. Kulkarni

¹Postgraduate student, ²Reader, ³Professor, ⁴Professor and Head, Department of Oral Medicine and Diagnostic Radiology, Bapuji Dental College and Hospital, ⁵Professor and Head,Department of Pediatries, Chigateri General Hospital, Davangere, Karnataka

ABSTRACT

Aarskog syndrome is a rare X-linked inherited disorder characterized by short stature, multiple facial, dental, digital and urogenital abnormalities. Here is one such male patient aged 20 years who was short statured and had dysmorphic facies with lack of eruption of multiple permanent teeth. He also had shawl scrotum with low IQ. The clinical appearance was coinciding with most of the features suggested in Aarskog syndrome.

INTRODUCTION

Aarskog syndrome (AAS) is also known as Faciogenital dysplasia (facial-digital-genital syndrome) is an X-linked inherited disorder¹⁻³.

The syndrome is named after Dagfinn Aarskog, a Norwegian pediatrician and human geneticist who first described a condition of familial syndrome of short stature associated with facial dysplasia and congenital anomalies in 1970,^{4, 5} and Charles I. Scott, Jr., an American medical geneticist who independently described the syndrome in 1971⁶. Hence the name Aarskog-Scott syndrome.

Aarskog syndrome is characterized by short stature, multiple facial, musculoskeletal, dental, neurological and urogenital abnormalities, ocular manifestations, congenital heart defects,⁷ low IQ and behavioral problems². Usually the dental findings include hypodontia and retarded dental eruption⁸.

The gene responsible is FGD1³ (MIM#305400) and AAS has been ascribed to mutations in the FGD1 gene⁹.

CASE REPORT

A 20 year old male patient was referred from a private clinic to the Department of Oral Medicine and Radiology, Bapuji Dental College and Hospital who desired to get his missing front teeth to be replaced. Upon eliciting history, it was found that his upper and lower front deciduous and permanent teeth were not erupted and surprisingly he never consulted any doctor for the same before. He had normal developmental mile stones. Patient was uneducated and unemployed. There was no history of consanguineous marriage of his parents. His maternal aunt has similar nose as of him and other family members were normal. His sister has all permanent teeth for her age and is studying.

Upon general physical examination, patient was of short stature (153 cms) with rounded face (Figure 1), broad forehead (Figure 1), hypertelorism (figure 1) (innercanthal distance - 4.6 cms, outercanthal distance - 9.6 cms), low and broad nasal bridge (Figure 1), downward slant of palpebral fissures (Figure 1), small nose (Figure 1), maxillary hypoplasia (figure 1), low and posteriorly set small ears, short neck without webbing, harrison's sulcus, small and short hands and feet, simian crease on the palmar aspect of hand, and also had shawl scrotum. On intra oral examination, there was vestibular bulge in relation to lower anterior labial and lingual vestibule (Figure 2), extending mediolateraly from mesial of 85 to 75 causing complete vestibular obliteration with buccal and lingual cortical plate expansion. There was a shallow arched palate (figure 3). Clinically teeth present were 53,54,55,16,17,64,65,26,27,74,75,36,37,84,46,47 (figure 2, 3). Partially edentulous upper and lower alveolar ridges, with over retained deciduous teeth in relation to 53,54,55,64,65,74,75,84 (figure 2, 3) and missing permanent twenty teeth i.e 11,12,13,14,15,21,22,23,24,25,31,32,33,34,35,41,42,43,44,45 (figure 2, 3). There was mesioocclusal caries in relation to 55 and distoocclusal caries in relation to 54 (figure 3). There was grade II mobility in relation to 54 and 55 with attrition of all over-retained deciduous teeth (figure 2, 3).

Patient was then subjected to radiographic examination, i,e panoramic radiograph, mandibular true occlusal, intraoral periapical radiographs (IOPA), and lateral cephalograph. IOPA in relation to maxillary and mandibular anterior region (figure 4) revealed impacted 11,12,21,22,31,32,33,41,42,43 along with retained root stump in relation to71. There was no evidence of root resorption in over-retained deciduous teeth in relation to 53, 65, 75 and 85. IOPA of posterior



Fig. 1: Round face, broad forehead, hypertelorism, low and broad nasal bridge, small nose, maxillary hypoplasia.



Fig. 2: Shallow arched palate.

- Teeth present were 53, 54, 55, 16, 17, 64, 65, 26, and 27.
- Missing teeth were 11, 12, 13, 14, 15, 21, 22, 23, 24 and 25.
- Mesioocclusal caries in relation to 55 and distoocclusal caries in relation to 54.



Fig. 3: Vestibular bulge in relation to lower incisor region with edentulous wide mandibular alveolar ridge and teeth present were 74,75,36,37,85,46,47.



Fig. 4: Intraoral periapical radiograph in relation to maxillary anterior region revealed impacted 11, 12, 21, and 22.

quadrant revealed impacted 18, 24, 25, 28, 38 and 48. Periapical radiolucency was found in relation to 54, 55 and 64. Panoramic radiograph (figure 5) revealed seventeen impacted permanent teeth i,e 13,14,15,18,22,23,24,25,28,31,32,33,38,41,42,43,48. There was cortical plate expansion in the anterior segment in mandibular occlusal radiograph (figure 6). There was non union of coronal suture, thickened cortex superiorly along with maxillary hypoplasia as evidenced in lateral cephaograph (figure 7). Then patient was subjected to IQ evaluation, which was 56 (according to Binet Kamat Test).



Fig. 5: Panoramic radiograph revealing multiple missing impacted permanent teeth and retained deciduous teeth.

His physical appearance and intraoral findindgs were closely related to Aarskog syndrome.

Features such as short stature, mental deficiency, low nasal bridge, small nose, hypoplastic maxilla, short



Fig. 6: True mandibular occlusal radiograph revealing wide cortical plate expansion.

and broad hand, hypertelorism, delayed eruption of teeth and hypodontia were found similar to Acrodysostosis but rest of the features like tendency to hold mouth open, prognathism, increased mandibular angle, large great toe, optic atrophy, hypoplastic genitalia, hypogonadism and malocclusion were not found in the present case.

As per the published English literature, the present case satisfies most of the primary and secondary criteria of diagnosis of Aarskog syndrome. 9Hence diagnosis of Aarskog syndrome was made.

As patient was keen in replacement of missing teeth, and was not interested, the genetic analysis could not be performed. Further patient was referred to department of oral and maxillofacial surgery, for extraction of multiple impacted teeth under general anesthesia along with prosthetic rehabilitation for missing teeth to be done in the department of prosthodontics.

DISCUSSION

Aarskog-Scott syndrome (AAS) is a genetically heterogeneous developmental disorder⁹. Approximately 200 cases have been reported till date¹⁰. Aarskog syndrome mainly affects males. In affected males, a large variability of expression was observed, while females show minor signs only. However it is sometimes possible to identify individual females as carriers¹¹ with minor dysmorphic features such as hypertelorism and widow's peak.⁹

The diagnosis of Aarskog syndrome is mainly by clinical criteria⁹. The primary criteria include: short stature, hypertelorism, short nose with anteverted nares, maxillary hypoplasia, a crease below the lower lip, mild interdigital webbing with short and broad hands, short fifth finger with clinodactyly, and shawl scrotum. Secondary criteria include: abnormal auricles with fleshy lobules, posteriorly angulated ears, widow's peak, ptosis, downward slant of palpebral fissures, joint hyperextensibility, broad feet with bulbous toes, cryptorchidism, inguinal hernia, and prominent umbilicus¹². Genital anomalies are characteristic.

Aarskog syndrome diagnosed prenatally by sonography at 28 weeks' gestation in a high-risk pregnancy for this disorder¹³.

The X-linked form of AAS has been ascribed to mutations in the FGD1 gene (faciogenital dysplasia 1 gene). However, although AAS may be considered as a relatively frequent clinical diagnosis, mutations have been established in few patients. Genetic heterogeneity and the clinical overlap with a number of other syndromes might explain this discrepancy⁹.

FGD1 encodes a guanine nucleotide exchange factor that specifically activates the Rho GTPase Cdc42; FGD1 mutations result in Faciogenital Dysplasia (Aarskog syndrome) that adversely affects the formation of multiple skeletal structures.

Porteus et al¹⁵ and Stevenson et al¹⁶ linked the Aarskog gene to Xp11.3-Xq13. Glover et al¹⁷ precisely assigned the breakpoint to Xp11.21 on re-evaluation of the chromosomes in 1993. This localization allowed the cloning of FGD1, the gene responsible for the syndrome¹⁸. FGD1, which encodes a 961 amino acid zinc finger protein with strong homology to the Rho/Rac guanine nucleotide exchange factors (GEF), was shown to be interrupted by the t(X;8) breakpoint. Until now, only one point mutation has been reported in an affected family, consisting of an insertion of an additional guanine residue at nucleotide 2122 of exon, which causes premature translational termination^{18, 9}.

Recently studies have been conducted to look for mutations in FGD1 gene, and it was confirmed that only a minority of these patients who are clinically diagnosed as Aarskog syndrome, carries the mutation in the FGD1 gene.¹³

The major facial manifestations of this syndrome include hypertelorism, broad forehead, broad nasal bridge, short nose with anteverted nostrils, long philtrum, widow's peak hair anomaly, and ocular and ear anomalies. In our case also the patient had short stature, with rounded face, broad forehead, hypertelorism (innercanthal distance - 4.6 cms, outercanthal distance - 9.6 cms), low and broad nasal bridge, downward slant of palpebral fissures, small nose, maxillary hypoplasia, low and posteriorly set small ears, short neck without webbing.

Limb abnormalities consist of short broad hands, brachydactyly, interdigital webbing, hypoplasia of the

middle phalanges, proximal interphalangeal joint laxity with concomitant flexion and restriction of movement of distal interphalangeal joints, and flat broad feet with bulbous toes. Our patient had simian crease on the palmar aspect of hand, small and short hands and feet.

Genital anomalies are characteristics and include shawl scrotum, cryptorchidism, and inguinal hernia¹³ Shawl scrotum is the genital abnormality in our patient.

However there was no widow's peak, anteverted nose, crease below the lower lip, interdigital webbing, clinodactyly, bulbous toes, cryptorchidism, inguinal hernia, prominent umbilicus. Harrison's sulcus was evident in our case.

Although ophthalmic manifestations are noted rarely, findings may include optic nerve hypoplasia, retinal vessel tortuosity, deficient ocular elevation, hyperopia, and anisometropia.¹ Pulmonary stenosis and ventricular septal defect with spontaneous closure were detected in patients with this syndrome. The authors have insisted that in all cases of Aarskog syndrome a cardiac evaluation is indicated.⁷ In our case there were neither ophthalmic nor cardiac manifestations on evaluation.

Dental manifestations of the Aarskog syndrome were studied, and it revealed that there were retarded development and eruption of the permanent teeth. Dental age was less retarded than height age and bone age. The prevalence of hypodontia and the prevalence and degree of orthodontic anomalies were higher than in the general population. Caries prevalence was high.²⁰ In present case, there were 20 missing permanent teeth among that 17 teeth were impacted in jaw bone.

Some authors have noted mild neurodevelopmental delay in up to 30% of the cases.¹³ Our patient's IQ was low i.e 56 (Binet Kamat Test). A study conducted by Fryns JP, revelaed that the AAS individuals with mental impairment are mildly affected, with learning and behavioural disabilities often confirmed to early childhood. The majority of these children have a good evolution into adulthood and the changing phenotype with age includes an age related improvement of mental status.²¹

Surgery may be required to correct some of the anomalies, and orthodontic treatment²² may be used to correct some of the dental abnormalities. Trials of growth hormone have not been effective to treat short stature in this disorder.

CONCLUSION

Aarskog syndrome is a rare syndrome with a typical triad of facial, digital and genital characteristics. Patient will also have maxillary hypoplasia, dental anomalies as hypodontia, delay in eruption or lack of eruption of permanent teeth. Though the occurrence of this syndrome is rare, and the diagnosis is mainly by characteristic clinical appearance. Study for the mutation of FGD1 gene confirms the diagnosis.

REFERENCES

- 1. M. Taub, A. Stanton. Aarskog syndrome: A case report and literature review Optometry - Journal of the American Optometric Association 2008; 79(7): 371-377.
- Michael L. DiLuna, Nduka M. Amankulor, Michele H. Johnson and Murat Gunel. Cerebrovascular disease associated with aarskogscott syndrome. Paediatric Neuroradiology 2007; 49(5): 457-461.
- 3. Aryan Jogiya ; Charles Sandy. Mild optic nerve hypoplasia with retinal venous tortuosity in aarskog (facial-digital-genital) syndrome. Ophthalmic Genetics 2005; 26 (3): 139-141.
- 4. Andrassy RJ, Murthy S, Woolley MM. Aarskog syndrome: significance for the surgeon. J Pediatr Surg 1979; 14(4): 462-464.
- 5. Aarskog D. "A familial syndrome of short stature associated with facial dysplasia and genital anomalies". J Pediatr 1970; 77 (5): 856-861
- 6. Scott CI. "Unusual facies, joint hypermobility, genital anomaly and short stature: a new dysmorphic syndrome". Birth Defects Orig 1971; 6: 240-246.
- Isabel Fernandez, Masato Tsukahara, Hiroshi Mito, Hideki Yoshii, Masashi Uchida, Kiyosato Matsuo et al. Congenital heart defects in aarskog syndrome. American Journal of Medical Genetics 1994; 50(4): 318-322.
- 8. Kenneth Lyons Jones. Smith's recognizable patterns of human malformations. 5thedn. W B Saunders and company.1997; 128-129.
- 9. Alfredo Orrico, Lucia Galli, Maria Luigia Cavaliere, Livia Garavelli, Jean-Pierre Fryns, Ellen Crushell et al. Phenotypic and molecular characterisation of the Aarskog-Scott syndrome: a survey of the clinical variability in light of FGD1 mutation analysis in 46 patients. European Journal of Human Genetics 2004; 12: 16-23.
- 10. Bruno Bissonnette, Igor Luginbuehl, Bruno Marciniak, Bernard Dalens. Syndromes: rapid recognition and perioperative management. 1st

edn. Library of congress cataloging-in-Publication data. 2006.1

- 11. M. J. Van De Vooren, M. F. Niermeijer A. J. M. Hoogeboom. The Aarskog syndrome in a large family, suggestive for autosomal dominant inheritance. Clinical Genetics 1983; 24(6): 439-445.
- 12. Teebi AS, Rucquoi JK, Meyn MS. Aarskog syndrome: report of a family with review and discussion of nosology. Am J Med Genet 1993; 46(5): 501-509.
- W. Sepulveda, V. Dezerega, E. Horvath and M. Aracena. Prenatal sonographic diagnosis of Aarskog syndrome. Journal of Ultrasound in Medicine 1991; 18(10): 707-710.
- Jerome L, Gorski , Lourdes Estrada, Changzhi Hu, Zhou Liu. Skeletal-specific expression of Fgd1 during bone formation and skeletal defects in faciogenital dysplasia (FGDY; Aarskog syndrome). Developmental Dynamics 2000; 218(4): 573 - 586.
- 15. Batra P, Kharbanda OP, Duggal R, Reddy P, Parkash H. Orthodontic treatment of a case of Aarskog syndrome. J Clin Pediatr Dent 2003; 27(3): 229-233.
- 16. Stevenson RE et al: Aarskog-Scott syndrome: Confirmation of linkage to the pericentric region

of the X chromosome. Am J Med Genet 1994; 52: 339-345.

- 17. Glover TW et al: translocation breakpoint in aarskog syndrome maps to Xp11.21 between alas2 and DXS323. Hum Mol Genet 1993; 10: 1717-1718.
- 18. Pasteris NG et al: Isolation and characterization of the faciogenital dysplasia (Aarskog-Scott syndrome) gene: A putative Rho/Rac guanine nucleotide exchange factor. Cell. 1994; 79: 669-678.
- 19. CE Schwartz, G Gillessen-Kaesbach, M May1, M Cappa, J Gorski, K Steindl et al. Two novel mutations confirm FGD1 is responsible for the aarskog syndrome. European Journal of Human Genetics 2000; 8: 869-874.
- 20. Agnar Halse, Kjell Bjorvatn, Dagfinn Aarskog. Dental findings in patients with aarskog syndrome. European Journal of Oral Sciences 2007; 87(4): 253-259.
- 21. Fryns JP: Aarskog syndrome: the changing phenotype with age. Am J Med Genet 1992; 43: 420- 427.
- 22. Porteous MEM et al: The gene for Aarskog syndrome is located between DXS255 and DXS566 (Xp11.2-Xq13). Genomics 1992; 14: 298-301.

Stem Cell Therapy and Tooth Regeneration - A Review

¹Surangama Debnath, ²Prafulla G.P., ³Anupama Desai

¹Professor and Head, ²Reader, ³Senior Lecturer, Department of Periodontics, Navodaya Dental College & Hospital, Raichur.

ABSTRACT

Tooth development results from sequential and reciprocal interactions between the oral epithelium and the underlying neural crest derived mesenchyme. The generation of dental structures and / or entire teeth in the laboratory depends upon the manipulation of stem cells and requires a synergy of all cellular and molecular events that finally lead to the formation of tooth specific hard tissues, dentin and enamel. The odontogenic potential resides in the oral epithelium and thus epithelial stem cells are necessary for both the initiation of tooth formation and enamel matrix production. This review focuses on the re-growth of teeth in vitro and their relative efficiency by using stem cells from different sources.

Key words: Stem cells, Odontoblast, Dentin, Ameloblasts Enamel, Tooth, Incisor, Human.

INTRODUCTION

According to the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, the average American will lose about eight teeth by the time he or she turns 50. Common replacements include dentures which have been known to erode the underlying bone over time, and dental implants, which are prone to falling out after several years use. Thus the ability to re-grow a natural tooth, with the accompanying bone, root and nerves, could provide a significantly healthier alternative for many.

STEM CELLS

A stem cell is defined as a cell that can continuously produce unaltered daughters and, further more, has the ability to generate cells with different and more restricted properties. Stem cells are distinguished from other cell types by two important characteristics. First, they are unspecialized cells capable of renewing themselves through cell division, sometimes after long periods of inactivity. Second, under certain physiologic or experimental conditions, they can be induced to become tissue or organ specific cells with special functions. The capacity to expand stem cells in culture is an indispensable step for regenerative medicine, and a considerable effort has been made to evaluate the consequences of the cultivation on stem cell behaviour.

Stem Cell Sources for the Development of Teeth in Vitro or Ex Vivo

As tooth formation results from epithelial mesenchymal interactions, two different populations of stem cells have to be considered: epithelial stem cells which will give rise to ameloblasts and mesenchymal stem cells that will form the odontoblasts, cementoblasts, osteoblasts and fibroblasts of the periodontal ligament. Thus, tooth engineering using stem cells is based on their isolation, association and culture as recombinants in vitro or ex vivo conditions to assess firstly tooth morphogenesis and secondly, cell differentiations into tooth specific cells that will form dentin, enamel, cementum and alveolar bone.

Sources of stem, cells are human exfoliated deciduous teeth, adult dental pulp stem cells, stem cells from the apical part of the papilla, from dental follicle, periodontal ligament stem cell and bone marrow derived mesenchymal stem cells.

STEM CELLS FROM HUMAN EXFOLIATED

Deciduous Teeth (SHED)

Recent findings demonstrated the isolation of mesenchymal progenitors from the pulp of human deciduous incisors (Miura et al, 2003) which exhibited a high plasticity since they could differentiate into neurons, adipocytes, osteoblasts and odontoblasts (Miura et al, 2003). In vivo SHED cells can induce bone or dentin formation but, in contrast to dental pulp, DPSC failed to produce a dentin pulp complex.

Adult Dental Pulp Stem Cels (DPSC)

After a dental injury dental pulp is involved in a process called reparative dentinogenesis, where cells elaborate and deposit a new dentin matrix for the repair of the injured site (Mitsiadis and Rahiotis, 2004). It has been shown that adult dental pulp contains precursors capable of forming odontoblasts under appropriate signals (Miura et al. 2003; Tecles et al. 2005). Among these signals are the calcium hydroxide or calcium phosphate materials used by dentists for

common dental treatments. Tooth repair is a lifetime process thus suggesting that MSC might exist in adult dental pulp.

Stem Cells from the Apical Part of the Papilla (SCAP)

Stem cells from the apical part of the human dental papilla (SCAP) have been isolated and seen to exhibit a higher proliferative rate than PDLSC for tooth formation. Importantly, SCAP are easily accessible since they can be isolated from human third molars.

Stem Cells from the Dental Follcle (DFSC)

DFSC have been isolated from follicle of human third molars and these can differentiate into cementoblasts in vitro and are able to form cementum in vivo. (Handa et al, 2002) Immortalized dental follicle cells are able to re-create a new periodontal ligament (PDL) after in vivo implantation (Yokoi et al, 2007).

Periodontal Ligament Stem Cells (PDLSC)

The PDL is a specialized tissue located between the cementum and the alveolar bone and it's continuous regeneration is thought to involve mesenchymal progenitors arising from the dental follicle. PDL contains STRO-1 positive cells that maintain certain plasticity since they can adopt adipogenic, osteogenic and chondrogenic phenotypes in vitro (Gay et al 2007). It is thus obvious that PDL itself contains progenitors, which can be activated to self-renew and regenerate other tissues such as cementum and alveolar bone (Seo et al. 2004).

Bone Marrow Derived Mesenchymal Stem Cells (BMSC)

BMSC have been tested for their ability to recreate periodontal tissue. These cells are able to form in vivo cementum, PDL and alveolar bone after implantation into defective periodontal tissues.



Use of stem cells for tooth formation in vitro and ex vivo. A tooth germ can be created in vitro after co-culture of isolated epithelial and mesenchymal stem cells. This germ could be implanted into the alveolar bone and finally develop into a fully functional tooth.

Diagram 1: Use of stem cells for tooth formation in vitro and ex vivo

Association of Epithelial and Mesenchymal Stem Cells

Since teeth are formed from two different tissues. building a tooth logically requires the association of odontogenic mescenchymal and epithelial cells. Numerous attempts have been made in order to form teeth in vivo with very promising results. Single cell suspensions obtained from rat, pig or mice tooth germ have been seeded on to the surface of selected biomaterials (e.g. collagen coated polyglycolic acid, calcium phosphate material, collagen sponges) and successfully reimplanted into the omentum of immunocompromised animals (Duailibietal 2004; Honda et al. 2006, 2007 a, Huet al 2006, Robey, 2005, Young et al, 2002). All these reports describe the presence of both dentin and enamel. This indicates that the recombined cells could re-organize themselves and form individual layers and further more, that they can differentiate properly into odonotoblasts and ameloblasts.



Construction of a bioengineered tooth. The association of toothderived stem cells with defined scaffolds in the presence of growth factors allows the creation of tooth specific constructs such as crown and root of missing parts of an injured tooth. These biological constructs could be used in dental clinics as substitutes for metal implants, crowns and restorative dental materials.

Diagram 2: Construction of a bioengineered tooth.

Recently a new approach has been proposed for growing teeth in the mouse mandible (Nakao et al

2007). In this study, epithelial and mesenchymal cells were sequentially seeded into a collagen gel drop and then implanted into the tooth cavity of adult mice. With this technique the presence of all dental structures such as odontoblasts, ameloblasts, dental pulp, blood vessels, crown, periodontal ligament, root and alveolar bone could be observed. (Nakao et al 2007). This indicates that stem cells could be used in the future for the replacement of missing teeth in humans.

CONCLUSION

Thus we can conclude that the identification of several types of epithelial and mesenchymal stem cells in the tooth and the knowledge of molecules involved in stem cell fate is a significant achievement.

The development of biological approaches for dental reconstruction using stem cells is promising and remains one of the greatest challenges in the dental field for the years to come.

REFERENCES

- Amar S.Luo W, Snead ML, Ruch JV (1989). Amelogenin gene expression in mouse incisor heterotopic recombinations. Differentiation 41: 56-61.
- 2. Bluteau G., Luder, De Basic, Stem cells for tooth engineering, 2008, 1-9.
- Duailibi MT, Duailibi SE, Young CS, Bartlett JD, Vacanti JP, Yelich PC (2004). Bioengineered teeth from cultured rat tooth bud cells. J. Dent Res 83: 523-528.
- Duailibi SE, Duailibi MT, Vacanti JP, Yelich PC (2006). prospects for tooth regeneration. Periodontal 2000. 41: 177-187.
- 5. Gay I, Chen S, Macdong-all M (2007) Isolation and characterization of multipoint human periodontal ligament stem cells. Orthod Craniofac Res 10: 149-160.
- Gronthos S, Brahim J. Li W, Fisher LW, Cherman N, Shi S (2002) Stem cells properties of human dental pulp Stem cells J Dent Res 81: 531-535.
- 7. Honda MJ, Tsuchiya S, Sumita Y (2007b) The Sequential seeding of epithelial and mesenchymal cells for tissue engineered tooth regeneration. Biomaterials 28: 680-689.

- Hu B, Nadiri a, Kuchler Bopp S. Perrin Schmitt F, Peters H, Lesot H (2006). Tissue engineering of tooth crown, root and periodontium. Tissue Eng 12: 2069-2075.
- Kawaguchi H, Hirachi A, Hasegawa N, Iwata T, Hamaguchi H, Shiba H, Takata T, Kato Y, Kurihara H (2004) Enhancement of periodontal tissue regeneration by transplantation of bone marrow mesenchymal stem cells. J Periodontal 75: 1281-1287.
- Mitsiadis TA, Rahiotis C (2004) Parallels between tooth development and repair: conserved molecular mechanisms following carious and dental injury. J Dent Res 83: 896-902.
- 11. Miura M, Gronthos S, Zhao M, Lu B, Fisher LW, Robey P. G., Shi S (2003) SHED: Stem cells from human exfoliated deciduous teeth. Proc Natl Acad Sci USA 100: 5807-5812.
- Nakao K, Morita R, Saji Y, Ishida K, Tomita Y, Ogawa M, Saitoh M, Tomooka Y, Tsuji T (2007). The development of a bioengineered organ germ method. Nat Methods. 4; 227-230.
- Prockop DJ (1997) Marrow stromal cells as stem cells for nonhematopoietic tissues. Science 276: 71-74.
- 14. Robey PG (2005) Post-natal stem cells for dental and craniofacial repair. Oral Biosci Med 2: 83-90.
- 15. Seo BM, Miura M, Sonoyama W, Coppe C, Stanyon R, Shi S (2005) Recovery of stem cells from ryopreserved periodontal ligament. J Dent Res 84: 907-912.
- 16. Sire JY, Davit-Beal T, Delgado S, Gu X (2007) The origin and evolution of enamel mineralization genes. Cells Tissues Organs 186: 25-48.
- 17. Thesleff I, Wang XP, Suomalainen M (2007) Regulation of epithelial stem cells in tooth regeneration. C R Biol 330: 561-564.
- Yokoi T, Saito M, Kiyono T, Iseki S, Kosaka K, Nishida E, Tsubakimoto T, Harada H, Eto K, Noguchi T, Teranaka T (2007) Establishment of immortalized dental follicle cells for generating periodontal ligament in vivo. Cell Tissue Res 327: 301-311.
- 19. Yu J, Wang Y, Deng Z, Tang L, Li Y, Shi J, Jin Y (2007) Odontogenic capability: bone marrow stromal stem cells versus dental pulp stem cells. Biol Cell 99: 465-474.

Learning Style Preferences & Course Performance of Phase I MBBS Students

Jayasheela Bagi*, R.N. Raichur**, Venkappa. S. Mantur***, S.S. Goudar****

*Assistance Professor, Dept. of Physiology, **Professor, Dept. of Physiology, Jawaharlal Nehru Medical College Belgaum-590001,***Lecturer Dept. of Physiology. USM-KLE International Medical College, Belgaum-590001 ****Professor & HOD Dept. of Physiology, Jawaharlal Nehru Medical College, Belgaum-590001

ABSTRACT

Instructional methods in medical education are largely teacher centered rather than being student centered & not much attention is being given to the learning preferences of student. The present study was conducted to determine the relationship between Visual, Aural, Read/Write, Kinesthetic (VARK), sensory modality tool and course performance in the subject of physiology

Key wards: Learning style, Learning preferences, VARK, Active learning

INTRODUCTION

Learning style has been described as a strategy that student adopts to a learning situation¹. Learning preference is composite of the ways in which we learn best as individuals². Learning styles are defined as the composite of characteristic cognitive, affective and physiological characters that serve as relatively stable indicators of how a learner perceives, interacts with and responds to the learning environment³. The ways we learn new information can be categorized according to our specific learning styles⁴. Which are classified according to the sensory modality that one most prefers to use when internalizing information. The four major sensory modalities are visual, aural, read /write and kinesthetic⁵. Some learners have preferences for one of these learning modalities, whereas multimodal learners learn via two or more of the modalities³. Teaching by taking into account the student's preferences can seem complex but there have been a number of studies that support the idea, that teaching process using learning preferences can influence learning and academic success of such students is noteworthy⁴. Thus teaching in the areas of strength encourages more elaborate and diverse encoding of material than does learning in less preferred mode². It may also be helpful in planning teaching sessions and develop effective curricular approaches and for processing information¹. The idea of individualized learning styles originated in 1970s⁶. However with an emergence of numerous learning style models over the past 25 years; it has brought increasing attention of to the idea that, students learn in diverse ways and that one approach to teaching does not work for every student or even most of the students7.

A substantial number of medical students have preference for several learning styles, yet medical faculties teach overwhelmingly in a single mode⁸. For medical instructors it is important to assess and teach knowledge, attitudes and skills to meet the educational needs of the student by accommodating other learning modalities³. In order to facilitate student learning with new self directed approaches, numerous learning style inventories have been reported7. which are predicted upon information processing models that essentially aim to describe an individual's preferred intellectual approach to assimilate information by using four different sensory modalities³. Among the various tools used to determine learning preferences Visual, Aural, Read/write & Kinesthetic, VARK is one such tool which categorizes learning preferences based on sensory modalities, that is students preferring visual modality enjoys seeing graphics, diagrams, pictures. Auditory learners prefer listening, interacting, discussing while, read/write learners learn best with textual content such as reading books, text based handouts and kinesthetic learners internalize information when involved physically (touching and manipulating materials⁴. This instrument provides the users with simple profile of basic sensory learning and can be used as a guide to instructors in their selection of learning and assessment strategies³.

The transition from twelfth standard to first year medical education can be difficult for students because of dramatic increase in the volume of contents and today's medical students represent a broad spectrum in terms of age, experience, culture, ethnicity and level of preparedness, which presents a challenge for instructors to meet the educational needs of all students⁹. Most of the studies have found^{3,4,5}. That majority of the students had multimodal preferences while learning information but the studies incorporating relationship between preferred learning style and course performance appears meager. Therefore this study was undertaken to determine the preferred learning styles using VARK and a questionnaire covering VARK domains for course performance. In the course of this study observations were made about student's preferences in their use of conditions for learning.

MATERIALS AND METHODS

A total of 100 first year medical students with mean age of 20.5 years admitted during the academic year 2009-2010 were enrolled in this study. The institutional ethical clearance was obtained. The objectives of the study were explained and consent was taken. A general questionnaire was used to obtain the name, age, gender, nationality, and VARK questionnaire tool was used to determine different sensory modality learning preferences¹⁰. This VARK tool is a simple sixteen question survey. It offers both students and instructors, a method to enhance students learning by understanding the preferred modes⁸. A simple questionnaire covering domains of VARK questionnaire was included for physiology course. The students were asked to self asses their course learning style preferences by selecting the following statements which were coded as 1) V- Seeing text or diagrams helps to take new information (Visual). 2) A-hearing the material helps to take new information (Auditory). 3) R- reading/writing down what is heard (Read/ write). 4) K-touching or observing a physical model helps to take new information (Kinesthic). The course included a variety of diverse teaching resources to ensure that multiple sensory modalities were being used to help for presenting the information; for example the lecture portion of the class incorporated resources like Power Point slides, a text book, portable document format (PDF) lecture notes, animations and chalkboard drawings as well as question and answer sessions and a laboratory component were included, as indicated in Table 1. Completed questionnaires were collected at the end of the subsequent lecture and practical. Thus obtained questionnaires from students were scored.

Table 1. Course Resource and VARK modalities covered

Course resource	VARK domain covered
Lecture instructor	Aural
Lecture presentation	Visual
Laboratory equipments	Kinesthetic

Conversely because this study sought to focus on border relationship between preferred sensory modality and course performance, a simple and direct questionnaire was used to internalize the information that covered the VARK Domain.

Statistical Analysis: Data expressed in mean ± standard deviation and percentages. Data (reported as percentages) were obtained by dividing the number of students by total number of respondent

RESULT

Of the 100 students participated in the study, 60 students were male, 82 Indians, 16 Malaysians and two were of other nationality. Majority of the students were educated in English Medium schools. The demographic characteristics of the respondents are shown in Table 2. The data obtained from the VARK tool showed that majority of the students had multimodal learning preferences (67%) and remaining 33% had single preference (Figure 1). The percentages of the students preferring a single mode in the descending order were read-write 12.2%, auditory 9.2%, visual 7.6% and kinesthetic 3.8%. The corresponding mean scores of the same has been represented in Table 3 indicating higher preference for read/write followed by auditory, visual and least for kinesthetic. Comparison of the VARK result scores for single mode preference with course performance showed significant (p<0.05) corelation with the most common learning preference preferred by the students being read/write (12.4% and 45%) and least being kinesthetic for both the results. (Table 4)

Table 2.	Demogra	phic c	characteristics
----------	---------	--------	-----------------

Character	istics	Number of participants	Percentage
Sex	Male	60	60%
	Female	40	40%
Ethnicity	Indians	82	82%
	Malaysians	16	16%
	Others	02	2%

Table 3. VARK Scores for different sensory modal	it	t
--	----	---

Variables	Mean	Standard deviation
Visual	5.80	2.37
Auditory	6.10	2.29
Read / Write	6.70	55.00
Kinesthetic	3.00	0.22

 Table 4. Comparison of the percentages of VARK Scores with course performance score

Variables	VARK results	VARK Scores
Visual	7.60%	19%
Auditory	9.20%	23%
Read / Write	12.40%	45%*
Kinesthetic	3.80%	13%

*Statistically significant (p<0.05)

OBSERVATION

Comparison of the VARK result scores for single mode preference with course performance showed significant co-relation, with the most common learning preference preferred by the students being read/write and least being kinesthetic for both course preference & performance.

Rationale of this study is to help for designing lesson plans based on student preferences and also for further research. Awareness of student's preferences will be of great value in designing course delivery strategies like active learning.

DISCUSSION

The quantity and quality of learning is determined by the learning approach that the students adopts, which plays an important role in determining the outcome of any educational endeavor¹¹. In order to provide efficient and effective education it is essential that teachers understand their students as learners¹². The knowledge of learning preferences may help educators to facilitate student learning and to bridge the academic gap, there is a need to blend old didactic methods with new self directed approaches². In the present study there was no association between gender and preferred learning styles which is not in accordance with the previous studies^{1,3}. A greater percentage (67%) students exhibited multimodal preference indicating they preferred information by a variety of modes. These findings are comparable with earlier studies^{3,4,5}. Thus it can be emphasized that most of the students may benefit from active learning strategies. These active learning strategies reach all types of learners, promote thinking through reasoning and improve problem solving and decision making³. Such activities may promote group work and generate high levels of motivation and enthusiasm.

Of the single preferred styles, there was a significant relationship between the preferred VARK sensory modality and course performance for Read/write preferred mode. The result was not in parallel to earlier study⁵. which showed auditory sensory modality as the most common preferred mode of learning. Most of the resources for completing the course has visual component, however majority of the students (45%) preferred the lecture material in the form of reading/ writing, followed by auditory (23%) as the most helpful resource for completing the lecture portion of the course. Least percentage of students (13%) were Kinesthetic learners indicating that this component of the course may need to be strengthened.

Therefore the results of the present study indicate that students have different learning modes and

knowing their learning preferences may help the medical instructors to develop appropriate learning approaches and explore opportunities so that they will be able to make the educational experience more productive.

CONCLUSION

The rationale of this study was to help to design a lesson plan. Main conclusion was a significant association between preferred sensory modality and course scores. In a passive lecture format all students are assumed to be auditory learners although in present study most of the students emphasized on read/write sensory modality. Therefore learning style preferences may change over the time and with different levels of education. If the faculty is aware of student learning and lecturing preferences, then course activities including avenues to provide additional assistance can be tailored to best fit these preferences. A wide variety of teaching method can help to cater the diversity of students and restructure the instructional methods.







Graph 2: Student with single mode preferences (n=33)

Future studies can be looked into whether multimodal learners perform better in the class room than the single mode learners or how well do grading system correlate with learning preferences.

REFERENCES

- Shankar PR, Dubey AK, Binu VS, Subahsh P, Deshpande VY. Learning styles of preclinical students in a medical college in western Nepal. Kathamandu Univ Med J (KUMJ) 2006; 4(3): 390-5.
- 2. Turville J. Differentiating by student learning preferences: Strategies and lesson plans. New York: Eye on Education: 2008.

- 3. Baykan Z, Nacar M. Learning styles of the 1st year medical students attending Erciyes University. Adv Physiol Educ 2007; 31: 158-160.
- 4. Breckler J, Joun D, Ngo H. Learning style preferences in an undergraduate physiology class. Advan Physiol Educ 2009; 33: 30-36.
- 5. Dobson JL. Learning style preferences and course performance in an undergraduate physiology class. Adv Physiol Educ 2009; 33: 308-314.
- 6. Dunn R, Dunn K. Teaching students through their individual learning styles: A practical approach. Reston, VA: Prentice Hall; 1978.
- 7. Hawk TF, Shah AJ. Using learning style instruments to enhance student learning. Decis Sci J Innovat Educ 2009; 5(1): 1-19.
- 8. Rajendra Kumar L, Voralu K, Pani SP, Sethuraman KR. Predominant learning styles adopted by AIMST University students in

Malaysia. South East Asian Journal of Medical Education (SEAJME) 2007; 5(1): 37-46.

- 9. Lujan H, Stephen E. First year medical students prefer multiple learning styles Advance Physiol Edu 2006; 30; 13-16.
- 10. Fleming ND. VARK: A guide to learning styles (online). 2004; Available from: URL: www.vark-learn.com/english 2004.
- 11. Abraham RR, Vinod P, Kamath MG, Asha K, Ramanaryan K. Learning approaches of undergraduates medical students to physiology in a non PBL and partially PBL oriented curriculum. Adv Physiol Edu 2008; 32(1): 35-37.
- 12. Abraham RR, Kamath A, Upadhya S, Ramnarayanan K. Learning approaches to physiology of undergraduates in an Indian Medical School. Med Edu 2006; 40 (9): 916-923.

Intubation in Maxillofacial Trauma-A Dilemma

*Vidya B, **K.M.Cariappa, ***Abhay Kamath T

*Senior lecturer, Department of Oral and Maxillofacial Surgery, D J College of Dental Sciences and Research Modinagar, **Professor, Department of Oral and Maxillofacial Surgery, ***Professor and Head Department of Oral and Maxillofacial Surgery MCODS Manipal

ABSTRACT

Complex midfacial or panfacial injuries often require tracheostomy to ensure a free operative field. Oral intubation can interfere with assessment of occlusion and nasal tracheal intubation may lead to complications (brain damage, leakage of cerebrospinal fluid, and meningitis) when there are also fractures of the base of the skull. On the other hand, tracheostomy is associated with complications such as haemorrhage, pneumomediastinum or pneumothorax, injury to the recurrent laryngeal nerve, and tracheal stenosis and should be reserved for severely injured patients who need protracted assistance with ventilation or further operations. A useful alternative method of managing the airway intraoperatively are by submental endotracheal intubation and retromolar intubation. Submental intubation allows tracheal intubation by passing the tube through a submental skin incision into the mouth. Retromolar intubation is a non-invasive technique and avoids both submental tracheal intubation and tracheostomy in the majority of patients. In this paper two cases of maxillofacial injury, operated one using submental technique and another with retromolar intubation are reported.

Key words: Submental intubation, Retromolar intubation, Maxillofacial trauma, Anesthetic techniques, Inter maxillary fixation.

INTRODUCTION

Patients with maxillofacial trauma present unique airway management challenges in the emergent, operative and postoperative settings. Airway management during surgical treatment of patients with maxillofacial trauma is complicated by injury to route of intubation. Oral route endotracheal intubation may prevent the intraoperative inter maxillary fixation. Nasotracheal intubation is not suitable in nasal fractures and in skull base fracture cases. The use of alternative intubation methods such as tracheostomy, cricothyrotomy can be avoided due to the high rate of morbidity, aesthetic and functional compromise¹⁻³.

In such circumstances submental intubation and retromolar technique are alternative. In this paper two cases of maxillofacial injury, one was operated under submental intubation and another case using retromolar technique are reported. The submental intubation technique was widely recommended for midfacial trauma cases when short-term intermaxillary fixation was needed⁴⁻⁶. Submental technique has been advocated as a simple way to avoid to nasotracheal

Correspondence Address: Dr. Vidya B Senior Lecturer Department of Oral and Maxillofacial Surgery D J College of Dental Sciences and Research Modinagar E-Mail: drvidya_2006@yahoo.co.in intubation as well as interference to occlusion7.

CASE REPORTS

Case 1: A 38 years-old male patient with lefort II and mandibular left body fracture following road traffic accident reported to our unit. Treatment plan of open reduction and internal fixation was decided. In this case nasal intubation could not be done because of lefort II fracture and oral intubation was not preferred as it required intraoperative intermaxillary fixation. Other options were retromolar or submental intubation or tracheostomy. There was insufficient space distal to third molar and tracheostomy was more invasive procedure hence, submental intubation was technique of choice in this case.

Procedure: After standard orotracheal intubation, temporary draping of the mouth and chin region was carried out (Figure 1). 2 cm Skin incision was placed in the submental, paramedian region, directly adjacent to the lower border of the mandible (Figure 2). The muscular layers which include platysma and mylohyoid were traversed using curved artery forceps that were always in contact with the lingual cortex of the mandible (Figure 3). The mucosal layer in the floor of the mouth was incised over the distal end of the forceps, located in front of the sublingual caruncle and the forceps were then opened creating a Tunnel (Figure 4). The tube along with the cuff passed through the Tunnel with the forceps after disconnection from

the ventilator and the connection tube (Figure 5). After the tube was positioned the connection tube was restored and the circuit was re-established and secured with suture (Figure 6). At the end of the surgery the tube was disconnected, pulled back into the oral cavity and reconnected. Extraorally the wound was sutured and the patients were extubated.



Fig.1: Drapping of patient after oral intubation



Fig. 2: Incision in submental region



Fig. 3: Blunt dissection of muscular layers of platysma and mylohyoid using curved artery forceps



Fig. 4: Tunnel created following incision of oral mucosa



Fig. 5: Tube passed through tunnel



Fig. 6: Tube secured in place with suture

CASE 2

48 year old male patient with lefort I and

mandibular right parasymphysis fracture following road traffic accident reported to our trauma centre. Treatment plan of open reduction and internal fixation was decided. In this case nasal intubation was avoided because of lefort I fracture and retromolar intubation was feasibile as space distal to last molar to pass the tube was present. Oral intubation was not possible as it intermaxillary fixation was needed intraoperatively. Other options were submental intubation or tracheostomy. Submental and tracheostomy were more invasive procedure hence, retomolar technique which was simple was decided. First, orotracheal intubation was performed with a flexometallic tracheal tube. (Figure 7)The orotracheal tube was then placed in the retromolar space distal to the last erupted molar teeth. Intubation is secured in place (Figure 8). Intermaxillary fixation done with no interference from tube (Figure 9)



Fig. 7: orotracheal intubation was performed



Fig. 8: Intubation is secured in place



Fig.9: Intermaxillary fixation done with no interference from tube

DISCUSSION

An often stated reason for avoidance of naso tracheal intubation in maxillary trauma patient is the danger of accidental passage of tracheal tube into cranial cavity⁸. Submental endotracheal intubation was described by Hernandez Altemir in 19869. It is a simple surgical technique with very low morbidity and can replace tracheostomy in selected cases of maxillofacial trauma where nasal and oral intubation not feasible. Retromolar is non invasive technique, could be used when space posterior to third molar is sufficient. Another traditional method for securing the airway in such situations is tracheostomy where intermaxillary fixation could be done intraoperatively. It is preferred when post operative ventilation is required. It is claimed that submental technique may be safely used for elective ventilation for periods upto ten days¹⁰.

Submental technique is technically easier, less time consuming and accompanied by lower morbidity than tracheostomy¹¹. Different technique of submental intubation according to the site of incision has been described. Stoll and colleagues suggested a more posterior approach, in the submandibular area without complications¹⁰. Laryngeal mask airway in the submental route can be performed¹².

The original Altemir's technique has been modified by several authors. The modifications include the use of endotracheal tubes either the midline¹³⁻¹⁵ or submandibular¹⁴ approach instead of the latero-submental approach. Based on our experience, we do not see any merit in these modifications. The midline approach can traumatize the Wharton's ducts, interferes with attachment of the genioglossus and geniohyoid muscles, and snug placement of the tube to the paralingual groove might also be compromised. Injury to the mandibular lingual perforating vessels, which are present in the midline in 98% of instances, could lead to bleeding¹⁶. In our case tube was passed extraperiosteally with the standard submental approach lateral to midline. The intubation never interfered with intraoral manipulation during reduction of fracture fragments and interdental occlusion could be easily checked. There was no inflammation, poor scar formation or bleeding at the intubation site in our case. The wound healing was uneventful. The patient accepted the remaining small submental scar.

Retromolar technique is ideal when adequate space distal to last molar is present. It does not need additional surgical procedure and intermaxillary fixation can be done¹⁷. In case of inadequate space distal to last molar, a semilunar osteoctomy is made in retromolar area to gain adequate space¹⁸. In our patient we had sufficient space for tube placement. In our experience submental intubation should be advocated only when adequate space distal to last molar without additional surgical procedure. Some surgeons found oral tube awkward and risk of dislodgment during surgery with this technique. In our patient, tube was well secured at corner of mouth and did have any difficulty during surgery¹⁸.

CONCLUSION

Intubation of any form performed in a maxillofacial trauma patient is complex and requires both sound judgment and considerable experience. Good communication is always required between surgeon and anesthesiologist choosing appropriate intubation technique. According to literature reports and our own experience, these two techniques are simple, quick, safe and acceptable alternative to replace tracheostomy in selected cases of maxillofacial trauma which requires intermaxillary fixation.. We prefer retromolar technique and when insufficient space distal to last molar is there, submental technique.

REFERENCES

- Taicher S, Givol N, Peleg M, Ardekian L: Changing indications for tracheostomy in maxillofacial trauma. J Oral Maxillofac Surg 1996, 54: 292–295.
- Martinez-Lage JL, Eslara JM, Cebrecos AI, Marcos O: Retromolar intubation. J Oral Maxillofac Surg 1968; 56: 302–306.

- Johnson TR: Submental tracheal intubation versus tracheostomy.Br J Anaesth 2000; 89: 344–345.
- Manganello-Souza LC, Tenorio-Cabezas N, Piccinini L: Submental method for orotracheal intubation in treating facial trauma. Rev Paul Med 1998; 116: 1829–1832.
- Amin M, Dill-Russel P, Manisali M, Lee R, Sinton I: Facial fractures and submental tracheal intubation. Anaesthesia 2003; 58: 496–497.
- Meyer C, Valfrey J, Kjartansdottir T, Wilk A, Barriere P: J Cranio- Maxillofac Surg 2003; 31: 383–388.
- Martinez lage JL eslava JM, Cerbrecos AL retromolar intubation, J Oral and Maxfac Surg 1998; 56: 302.
- 8. Marlow TJ ,Gotra DD,Schabel SI. Intracranial placement of a nasotracheal tube after facial fracture: a rare complication, J Emerg med 1997; 15: 187.
- Hernández Altemir F: The submental route for endotracheal intubation. A new technique. J Maxillofac Surg 1986; 14:64.
- Stoll P, Galli C, Wachter R, BahrW: Submandibular endotracheal intubation in panfacial fractures. J Clin Anesth 1994; 6:83–86.
- Petr Schütz, MD, and Hussein H. Hamed,: Submental Intubation Versus Tracheostomy in Maxillofacial Trauma Patients. J Oral Maxillofac Surg 2008; 66:1404-1409.
- 12. Hernández Altemir F and Montero H: The submental route revisited using the laryngeal mask airway: a technical note. Journal of craniomaxillofacial surgery 2000; 28:343-344.
- 13. Taglialatela Scafati C, Maio G, Aliberti F: Submentosubmandibular intubation: Is the subperiosteal passage essential? Experience in 107 consecutive cases. Br J Oral Maxillofac Surg 2006; 44:12.
- 14. Green JD, Moore UJ: A modification of submental intubation. Br J Anaesth 1996; 77:789.
- MacInnis E, Baig M: A modified submental approach for oral endotracheal intubation. Int J Oral Maxillofac Surg 1999; 28:344.
- 16. Cova M, Ukmar M, Bole T: Evaluation of lingual vascular canals of the mandible with computed tomography. Radiol Med (Torino) 2003; 106:391.
- 17. Schutz P and Hameed HH. Submental versus tracheostomy, J oral anf maxfac surg. 2008; 66,1404-1409
- Martinez lage JL eslava JM, Cerbrecos AL retromolar intubation, J Oral and Maxfac Surg 1998; 56:302.

Lingual Orthodontics: The Invisible Braces

Vijay R Naik *, Vikram Pai**

*Professor and Head **Senior Lecturer, Department of Orthodontics, Maratha Mandal's Nathajirao G Halgekar, Institute. of Dental Sciences and Research Centre, Belgaum, Karnataka

ABSTRACT

The history of lingual orthodontics has not been a smooth one. We are now in a period of resurgence; the technique has become more sophisticated. The clinical results achieved can stand on an equal footing with the best of conventional labial techniques, and the acceptance of technique by the profession is growing rapidly. This article gives and brief overview of the history, indication/ contraindications, procedure and advantages/ disadvantages in lingual orthodontics.

INTRODUCTION

Lingual orthodontics or invisible braces is an efficient, legitimate treatment modality that should be part of the armamentarium of any modern, caring, comprehensive orthodontic practice. Lingual orthodontics has now come of age; its acceptance by both the profession and the patient population continues to grow internationally. The future of lingual orthodontics is dependent on the following three important issues:

- Advances in technology related to appliance design and laboratory protocols.
- (2) Demographic changes in population age groups the growth in the number of adult patients seeking orthodontic treatment associated with an increase in affluence and disposable income is creating a patient-driven demand for more esthetically acceptable appliances; and
- (3) Attitudinal changes of orthodontists.

Lingual orthodontics has come a long way, as we understand it today it is a full, multibracket appliance, which was introduced in the 1970s. Curiously, the lingual appliance was not the consequence of an esthetic demand, but it was started in Japan by Kinja Fujita to satisfy the orthodontic needs of patients who

Correspondence Address: Dr.Vijay R Naik Professor & Head Department of Orthodontics Maratha Mandal's Nathajirao G Halgekar, Inst. of Dental Sciences & Research Centre, Belgaum, Karnataka, India E mail : vijay@drvijaynaik.com Contact no.+9108314335450 Mob no. +919845128290 practiced martial arts, to protect the soft tissues (lips and cheeks) from the possible impact against brackets.

Fujita was the first to develop the lingual multibracket technique using the mushroom shaped archwire. He submitted his concepts on lingual orthodontics in 1967, began his research in 1971, and published the Fujita method in 1978, treating Class I and Class II cases with extraction of four bicuspids.

Later, Craven Kurz started his investigations with Jim Mulick in 1975 (UCLA School of Dentistry), using plastic brackets bonded to the lingual tooth surfaces. Apparently an employee of the Bunny Playboy Club with crowded teeth came to Craven Kurz's office asking him for nonvisible orthodontic treatment, further stimulating his interest in the subject. Using plastic brackets, it was easy to reshape them for a better fit to the lingual surface. However there were many problems regarding bond failure and patient discomfort which lead to the design of newer brackets.

LINGUAL BRACKETS: EVOLUTION

Generation 1: 1976

This appliance had a flat maxillary occlusal bite plane from canine to canine. The lower incisor and premolar brackets were low profile and half round, and there were no hooks on any brackets.

Generation 2: 1980

Hooks were added to all canine brackets.

Generation 3: 1981

Hooks were added to all anterior and premolar

brackets. The first molar had a bracket with an internal hook. The second molar had a terminal sheath without a hook but had a terminal recess for elastic traction.

Generation 4: 1982-84

Low profile anterior inclined plane added on the central and lateral incisor brackets.

Generation 5: 1985-86

The anterior inclined plane became more pronounced, with an increased in labial torque in the maxillary anterior region. The canine also had an inclined plane; however it was bibeveled to allow intercuspation of maxillary cusp with the embrasure between the mandibular canine and the first premolar.

Generation 6: 1987-90

The inclined plane on the maxillary anterior became squarer in shape.

Hooks on anteriors and premolars were elongated. A hinge cap, allowing ease of archwire manipulation, was now available for molar brackets.

Generation 7: 1990-PRESENT

The maxillary inclined plane is now heart shaped with short hooks. The lower anterior brackets have a large inclined plane with short hooks. The premolar brackets were widened mesiodistally and the hooks were shortened. The increased width of the premolar brackets allows better angulation and rotation control. The molar brackets now come with either a hinge cap or a terminal sheath.

The majority of malocclusions can be treated with lingual orthodontics, but certain cases are more amenable than others.

INDICATIONS

- In patients where esthetics is of prime concern.
- Cases with mild incisor crowding and with anterior deep bite.
- Long and uniform lingual tooth surfaces without Fillings, Crowns, or bridge.
- Keen, compliant patient with good gingival and periodontal health
- Patients who are able to adequately open their Mouths and extend their neck.

CONTRAINDICATIONS

• Short, abraded, and irregular lingual tooth surfaces

- Presence of multiple crowns, bridges, and large restorations
- Patients with a low level of compliance and poor oral hygiene.
- Patients with limited ability to open the mouth (trismus)
- Patients with cervical ankylosis or other neck injuries that prevent neck extension.

LABORATORY PROCEDURE

The indirect bonding laboratory procedure is often cited as major disincentive for orthodontists planning to start treating cases with the lingual technique. It is a procedure that takes the bracket positioning control out of the orthodontist's hands. Few of the laboratory procedure have been explained here.

Custom Lingual Appliance Setup Service (CLASS System).

CLASS system procedure begins with the duplication of the malocclusion model to produce a set-up model where the teeth have been cut and correctly repositioned and aligned. On this model the brackets are accurately positioned. A flat metal plate helps positioning of the anterior brackets and a separate posterior device is used to position the posterior brackets. The brackets are then transferred back to the malocclusion model by using the cap Technique, where a strip of acrylic covers the incisal edge of the tooth and overlaps onto the top of the bracket, making them one unit. This unit is then separated from the set-up and transferred to the malocclusion model. Advantages of the CLASS system include the visualization of the final occlusion on the articulated set-up model showing possible premature contacts and residual spaces that may occur following space closure in extraction cases.

Torque Angulation Reference Guide (TARG) System

The TARG machine was launched by the Ormco Society in 1984 as an important aid to the laboratory technique. It allows the accurate placement of the brackets at a precise distance from the incisal and occlusal surfaces of the teeth, as well as making it possible to prescribe the torque and angulation for each tooth individually. This creates a "virtual" set-up, and the brackets can be bonded on the malocclusion model, with each bracket having a specific resin-modified base. As the TARG machine does not take into consideration the different thickness of the teeth, many second order archwire bends must be made routinely during treatment. Bonding with Equal Specific Thickness (BEST) System

In 1986, Fillion added certain important feature which were missing from the original TARG machine-a device to measure the distance in the horizontal plane from the labial surface of the tooth to the slot of the lingual bracket. He added a precise measuring device to the original TARG machine to allow compensation for the different thickness between the teeth. This equipment was later called the Electronic TARG. Positioning the bracket so as to allow for compensation for the different Labiolingual thickness of the teeth facilitated the use of straight wire principles for both anterior and posterior teeth, thus reducing the need for second and third order bends during the treatment. The brackets are bonded directly on the malocclusion model; no set-up model is required. From the information collected during the bracket positioning (torque, angulation, height, and thickness), a special computer software package was developed to trace the ideal archwire for each individual patient. This computer-generated archwire tracing was called DALI (dessin de l'arch linguale informatise) and its main advantage is that there is no need to clinically coordinate upper and lower arches at the chair side, as the computer will have already done this procedure for the clinician.

BONDING PROCEDURE

Bonding on the lingual surface is preferably done by indirect bonding because

- 1. Variation in lingual tooth morphology creating the need for custom measurement
- 2. Practitioner's lack of familiarity with lingual tooth morphology.
- 3. Difficulty in obtaining direct line of sight for bonding.
- 4. Increased accuracy in bracket placement is required because compensating lingual arch wire bends are more difficult and time consuming.



SURFACE PREPARATION

• Large cingulae or rudimentary cusp should be reduced prior to taking impression.

- Unusual concave lingual surface (e.g. spoon shaped incisor) should filled using acid etch composite build up.
- Porcelain crowns with metal coping should be replaced with plastic crowns.
- Existing amalgam restoration should be removed and tooth should be restored with composite materials.

IMPRESSION

Impression should be taken using alginate or rubber based impression materials.

Accurate impression of the teeth and palate should be obtained (reproducing all the lingual surfaces with clear definition of the gingival crest).

PREBONDING PROCEDURE

A cast is fabricated from the impression taken and the brackets are bonded to the lingual surface of the teeth. Before beginning the bonding procedure the indirect tray which is fabricated using a low viscosity silicone to encapsulate the brackets is tried in to ensure complete seating on the arch.

INDIRECT BONDING

- 1. Maxillary teeth are etched for 60 seconds and then rinsed using a full air water spray.
- 2. The etched teeth are then completely dried.
- 3. A thin coat of the bonding sealant is applied too all-maxillary teeth to be bonded.
- 4. Adhesive is mixed and applied to the mesh of the brackets in the indirect tray using a syringe.
- 5. Slightly more adhesive is added on the teeth with concave lingual surfaces.
- 6. The tray is then inspected and seated on the prepared arch and held with a light pressure for 3 minutes.
- 7. After 10 minutes the tray is removed the brackets are inspected.
- 8. A carbide bur is then used to remove excess adhesive.
- 9. Same procedure is done for the mandibular arch.

ADVANTAGES/ BENEFITS

- 1. Lingual placement of brackets reduces the unsightful decalcification marks, which are produced by chemical insults (etchant materials and plaque accumulation) on the labial surface. Thus playing an important esthetic role.
- 2. Lingual appliance allows easy access for routine oral hygiene procedures on these labial surfaces.
- 3. Clinical judgment of treatment progress can be enhanced.

- ✓ Evaluation of individual tooth position can be easily accomplished by having the labial surfaces free of distracting metal or plastic brackets.
- ✓ Soft tissue responses of lips and check to treatment can be judged accurately because there is no distortion of shape or irritation caused by a labial appliance.

DISADVANTAGES/LIMITATIONS

- 1. Significant drawback to lingual therapy appears to be the discomfort to the tongue, and with it, difficulty in speech.
- 2. Sensitive to laboratory techniques
- 3. Extended chair time needed for appliance placement.
- 4. Not as cost effective as labial technique (cost increased by 30-50%).

CONCLUSION

Lingual braces have been and are viable treatment option. With these appliances the practitioners can achieve excellent results while providing his or her patient's with a unique and valuable service.

REFERANCE

- 1. Lingual Orthodontics: Patient Selection and Diagnostic Considerations Pablo Echarri. Seminars in orthodontics 2006; 12:160-166.
- 2. Revisiting the History of Lingual Orthodontics: A Basis for the Future Pablo Echarri. Seminars in orthodontics 2006;12:153-159.
- 3. Lingual Orthodontics: The Future H. Stuart McCrostie. Seminars in orthodontics 2006; 12: 211-214.
- 4. Lingual orthodontics textbook: author Rafi Romano.
- 5. An Overall View of the different laboratory procedures used in conjunction with lingual Orthodontics. Seminars in orthodontics.

Prevalence Study of Overweight/Obesity Among Adults (20-60yrs) of Rural Field Practice Area of Osmania Medical College, Hyderabad

Vijaya Kumar Uthakalla*, K.J. kishore Kumar**, Jena***, K. Chandra Sekhar****, Devidas Tondare*****, V. Dinesh Chandra******

*Assistant Professor, GSL Medical College, Rajahmundry, Andhra Pradesh, **GSL Medical College, Rajahmundry, AP, ***Rajiv Gandhi Institute of Medical Sciences, Kadapa, ****Associate Professor at Alluri Seetha Rama Raju Academy of Medical Sciences, Eluru, *****Assistant Professor, Rajiv Gandhi Institute of Medical Sciences, Kadapa, *****House surgeon at Osmania Medical College Hyderabad

ABSTRACT

BACKGROUND: There is an alarming increasing in the prevalence of overweight and obesity worldwide with globalization of economics and rapid international communication. Andhra Pradesh prevalence of overweight and obesity in males is 7.2% and females are 7.8% in rural areas. The prevalence of obesity in adults is 10% in rural areas of Andhra Pradesh.

OBJECTIVE: 1. To study prevalence of overweight/obesity among adults (20-60yrs) in the field practice area of OMC, Hyderabad. 2. To study the relationship between overweight/obesity with physical activity and dietary factors.3.To study the morbidity patterns among over weight/obesity individuals.

MATERIALS AND METHODS: The patancheruvu mandal consists of 13 villages, 3villages were selected randomly and households were selected by systematic random method, a sample of 900 subjects was interviewed with pretested profroma. Age, sex, height, weight, blood pressure, diabetes, dietary patterns, smoking, alcoholism, CAD were recorded from March 2005 to February 2006.

RESULTS: The prevalence of overweight/obesity was 25%. Among males 34.82% and Females19.76%. Among age group 51-60yrs, 46.73% were overweight/obese and the association between <40yrs and>40yrs was significant p<0.001. Among sedentary workers 95.82% were overweight/obese and the association between moderate and sedentary workers was significant p<0.007. Morbidities among subjects with BMI>30 were HTN3.74%, DM0.78%, joint pains26.58%, respiratory diseases 5.06%.

CONCLUSIONS: The over all prevalence of over weight/obesity was 25% in the study population .34.82% in males and 19.67% in females. As the age increases overweight/obesity also increases along a gradient till 60+yrs .High literacy, alcoholism and low physical activity were significantly associated with over weight/obesity. As BMI increases morbidities tend to increase in rural area.

BACKGROUND

There is an alarming increasing in the prevalence of over weight and obesity worldwide with

Correspondence Address: Dr. Uthakalla Vijaya Kumar .M.D Asst. Prof. Dept. Of Community Medicine. G.S.L.Medical College, Rajahmundry, A.P. 533296 Cell No: 09440148818. globalization of economics and rapid international communication. Andhra Pradesh prevalence of over weight and obesity in males is 7.2% and females are 7.8% in rural areas¹. The prevalence of obesity in adults is 10% in rural areas of Andhra Pradesh². Obesity is increasing at an alarming rate through out the world. Today, it is estimated that there are more than 250 million obese people world-wide, equivalent to 7% of the adult population (WHO, 1998)³. The prevalence of obesity is increasing in most of the populations of world, affecting men, women and children. Furthermore, obesity is no longer just a concern for

developed countries, but it is becoming a serious problem in many developing countries. A number of factors have been linked to obesity, including age, gender and socioeconomic status. In developed countries levels of obesity are higher in the lower socioeconomic groups, but in developing countries this relationship is reversed (Sobol and Stunkard, 19894; Randrianjohany et al., 1993⁵). However, it may be noted that this phenomenon is more profound among the urban populations in comparison to the rural ones (Venkatramana and ChengalReddy, 2002⁶).The increased levels of obesity is associated with the transition from rural to urban lifestyle. The urban lifestyle has been linked with dramatic changes leading to increased consumption of high energy dense foods and decrease in physical activity. Though, under nutrition continuous to be a problem in most of the tribal and rural communities (Venkatramana and Chengal Reddy, 2002⁷; Nirmala Reddy, 1998)⁸, the prevalence of overweight and obesity have been showing an increasing trend for the last few years among the Indian populations (Gopalan, 1988)⁹. The division of non communicable diseases (NCD) at WHO (1997)¹⁰ has warned that the overweight and obesity pose a major public health issue which demands urgent attention. Further, obesity has got positive association with many CHD risk factors like cholesterol, HDL cholesterol and blood pressure (Venkatramana and Chengal Reddy, 2002).

RATIONALE OF THE STUDY

Available evidences show that one of the effective ways to prevent obesity in the adult life may be prevention and management of childhood and adolescent overweight and obesity. A fundamental step in the prevention and control of obesity is the identification of risk factors contributing to the rapid increase of obesity. Relevant research in this area, in Andhra Pradesh is minimal and the data available is mostly inconsistent and often based on statistically inadequate sample size, making it difficult to assess the prevalence of overweight and obesity at State level, Therefore, it was proposed to carry out a study to assess and identify the prevalence and correlates of overweight and obesity among rural population with adequate sample. The findings of the survey will help in formulation of strategies to prevent and control the problem among the adult groups.

OBJECTIVES

 To study the prevalence of overweight and obesity among adults (20—60yrs) in the rural field practice area of Osmania medical college, Hyderabad.

- To study the relationship between overweight/ obesity with physical activity and dietary factors.
- To study the morbidity patterns among over weight/obesity individuals.

MATERIAL AND METHODS

The rural field practice area of Osmania medical college was patancheruvu a mandal under Medak district and caters a population of one lakh and twenty thousands which consists of 13 villages. Out of 13 villages 3 villages were selected for study by random method. Three villages Ismailkhan pet, Chitkul and Ghanpur which were 10-15kms away from rural health centre patancheruvu. The Ismailkhan pet subcentre caters population of 3082 and similarly chitkul-3260 population and Ghanpur-1930 population respectively.

<u>Study period</u>: one year i.e. from March 2005 to February 2006.

<u>Calculation of sample size</u>: prevalence of over weight / obesity in Medak district was 10%. Sample size 900 subjects.(n=4pq/l², error=20%)

Selection of house holds: In a village first reached the centre of the village and numbering was given to each house hold from centre to periphery with the help of B.S.C nursing students. Then reached the north east corner of village and started the house hold survey by random number method. The random number is 5 then the survey started from the 5th house onwards and the subjects who were above 20yrs and below 65yrs were interviewed with pretested profroma and anthropometric measurements were taken and moved on to next house i.e. 5+5=10th house and so on till get the required sample size(i.e. 300 in each village). The same procedure was adopted in other two villages. A proforma was designed and approval was taken from ethical committee of O.M.C. and pilot study was conducted and tested. A total of 900 subjects were interviewed for over weight and obesity and preventive measures were suggested to them during the one year period.

Exclusion criteria: pregnant women, physically handicapped were excluded.

TOOLS USED

- 1. A pretested questionnaire was used to interview the subjects after taking oral consent.
- 2. Height was measured with steadiometer to the nearest 0.5cm.
- 3. Weight was measured with bath room weighing scale to nearest 0.5kg.
- 4. BMI was classified according to W.H.O. classification.

5. Blood pressure was measured by sphygmomanometer according to J.N.C VII 2005 classification.

Description of variables: age, sex, literacy, occupation, socioeconomic status, physical activity, alcohol consumption, smoking, practice of exercise, diet, family history, blood pressure, diabetes &coronary heart diseases(which were previously diagnosed and are on treatment only were included in the study) anthropometry were recorded.

<u>Statistical analysis</u>: Analysis by simple proportions and chi-square test.

RESULTS

TABLE 1.Prevalence of Over Weight/Obesity in the Study Population

Sex	BMI		
	<25	e″25	Total
Male	204(65.18)	109(34.82)	313
Female	471(80.24)	116(19.76)	587
Total	675(75.00)	225(25.00)	900

(X²=24.70, P<0.0001, 1df)

Among the subjects males are having higher prevalence of over weight/obesity of 34.82% than females 19.76% and the observed difference was significant.

Table 2: Age wise prevalence of over weight/obesity in
the study population:

AGE	BMI		TOTAL
	<25	e″25	
20-30	315(84.22)	59(15.78)	374
31-40	174(74.68)	59(25.23)	233
41-50	102(71.33)	41(28.67)	143
51-60	84(56)	66(44)	150
TOTAL	675(75)	225(25)	900

(X²=30.74, p<0.0001, 1df)

As the age increases the BMI also increases up to 60yrs and BMI was more among 51-60yrs.the observed difference between over weight/obesity among <40yrs and>40yrs was found to be statistically significant.

Table 3.Distribution of BMI among non-vegetarians;

Non-veg	BMI		Total
	<25	≥25	
>3times/week	30(36.58)	52(63.42)	82
<3times/week	453(74.81)	152(25.13)	605
Total	483(70.30)	204(29.70)	687

In the rural area increasing proportions of BMI (63.42%) are observed among subjects eating non-vegetarian >3times/week.

Table4: Distribution of BMI according to literacy status:

Literacy status	В	Total no	
	<25	e″25	
Illiterate	257(80.06)	64(19.94)	321
Primary	70(76.04)	22(23.91)	92
Middle school	66(76.04)	20(23.06)	86
High school	127(70.17)	54(29.83)	181
Inter	115(87.12)	17(12.88)	132
Graduate/pg	40(45.45)	48(54.55)	88
Total	675(75)	225(25)	900

(x²=6.82, p<0.009,1df)

The observed difference between illiterates and literates was found to be statistically significant in rural area.

Table 5: Duration and quantity of alcohol consumption and distribution of BMI.

Quantity of alcohol	E	Total	
	<25	e″25	
>5yrs/>100ml	8(26.66)	22(73.34)	30
<5yrs/<100ml	12(80)	3(20)	15
Total	20(42.55)	25(57.45)	45

X²=11.52, p<0.000, 1df.

Among rural area, the observed difference between alcohol consumption for >5yrs and <5yrs was found to be statistically significant.

Table 6: Distribution of BMI according to physical activity

Physical activity	<25	e″25	Total
Sedentary	15(4.18)	343(95.82)	358
Moderate	64(11.80)	478(88.20)	542
Total	79(8.77)	821(91.23)	900

(X²=15.63, p<0.0007, 4df)

The observed difference between moderate and sedentary workers of rural area was found to be significant.
BMI				MORBIDITIES		
	HTN	DM	NO DISEASE	JOINT PAINS	RESP.DISEASE	Total
<25	10(1.48)	5(0.74)	512(75.85)	130(19.25)	18(2.66)	675
e"25	2(1.36)	0(0)	132(90.41)	10(6.64)	2(1.36)	146
>30	3(3.74)	2(2.53)	49(62.00)	21(26.58)	4(5.06)	79
TOTAL	15(1.67)	7(0.78)	693(77)	161(17.84)	24(2.670	900

Table7: Distribution of morbidities according to BMI.



Among rural subjects with BMI>30 HTN was 3.74%, DM was 2.53%, joint pains was 26.58% and respiratory disease was 5.06%. As BMI increases morbidities also increases.

Discussion: The present study among rural area shows prevalence of over weight/obesity was more among males (34.82%) than females (19.76), it correlates study conducted by REEDER BA etal ¹¹ on the regional and the rural urban differences in Canada, and they concluded that obesity was 41% in rural men and 35% in rural women.

Regarding age prevalence of over weight/obesity was increasing with age up to 60yrs.it correlates the study conducted by Amoah AG et al ¹²on sociodemographic variations in obesity among Ghanaians adults they concluded that obesity increased with age up to 64yrs. Findings regarding literacy status and overweight/obesity showed that as literacy status increases BMI also increases and the study correlates with the study conducted by Amoah AG et alon sociodemographic variations in obesity among Ghanaian adults. He concluded that subjects with tertiary education had the highest prevalence of obesity compared with less literate and illiterate subjects. In rural area sedentary workers were 95.82% and moderate workers 88.20% with BMI>25 and difference was significant. It correlates the study conducted by Sood RK et al13 and concluded that prevalence of obesity was less in those subjects having moderate physical activity compared to those with low physical activity. Alcohol has significant influence on prevalence of over weight\obesity. It correlates with the study conducted by S.Goya wannamethee and A Gerald shaper et al¹⁴ on alcohol, body weight, and they concluded that heavy intake (>30gms/day) contributes directly to weight gain. Findings regarding morbidities and overweight/obesity are subjects with BMI>30, HTN was 3.74%, DM was2.53%, joint pains was 62.00%.when compared to BMI>25—29.99, HTN was 1.36%, joint pains was 6.84%.as the BMI increases morbidities also increases. It correlates the study conducted by Rczende FA, Rosado et al¹⁵ on BMI and waist circumference association with cardiovascular risk factors and they concluded that the frequency of cardiovascular risk factors increased along with BMI.

CONCLUSIONS: The over all prevalence of over weight/obesity was 25% in the study population. 34.82% in males and 19.67% in females. As the age increases overweight/obesity also increases along a gradient till 60+yrs. High literacy, alcoholism and low physical activity were significantly associated with over weight/obesity. As BMI increases morbidities tend to increase in rural area.

SIGNIFICANCE OF THE STUDY

The purpose of this project is to first, describe the significance of the current adult obesity epidemic and explore the physical, environmental and societal factors that play a pivotal role in putting adults at risk. Obesity interventions and gaps in obesity prevention programs will be reviewed, selected theories and models of behavior change will be discussed, and knowledge deficits among parents and children will be identified. Health education regarding low fat diet, physical activity and change in life style modifications are suggested to the community.

REFERENCES

- 1. NNMB report 2002.
- 2. NNMB report2004.
- 3. WHO, *Obesity: Preventing and Managing the Global Epidemic.* Report of a WHO consultation on Obesity, Geneva (1998).
- 4. Sobol, J. and Stunkard, A.J.: Socioeconomic status and obesity: A review of the literature. *Psychol Bull.*, **105**: 260-275(1989).

- 5. Randrianjohany, A., Balkau, B. and Cubeau, J.: The Relationship between behavioral pattern, overall, and central adiposity in a population of healthy French men. *Int.J.Obes.* **17**: 651-655(1993).
- 6. Venkatramana, P. and Chengal Reddy, P.: Prevalence of chronic energy deficiency among two tribal Populations of Andhra Pradesh. *Tribal Research Bulletin*. XXV: 5-10 (2002).
- 7. Venkatramana P and Chengal Reddy P.: Association of overall and abdominal obesity with coronary heart disease risk factors: Comparison between urban and rural Indian men. *Asia Pacific. J. Clin. Nutr.* **11**: 66-71 (2002a).
- 8. Nirmala Reddy, B.: Body mass index and its association with socio-economic and behavioral variables among socio-economically heterogeneous populations of Andhra Pradesh, India. *Hum. Biol.*, **70**: 901-917 (1998).
- 9. Gopalan C.: Obesity in the Indian urban 'Middle class'. *Bulletin of the Nutrition Foundation of India*, **19**: 1-15 (1998).

- 10. WHO: Global Strategy for Non-Communicable Disease Prevention and Control (Draft). WHO/ NCD/GS/ 97.1, Geneva (1997).
- 11. Reeder BA, Chen Y regional and rural- urban differences in obesity in Canada. Canadian heart health surveys research group. Int j obes reiat Metab Disord.2003 Jan 27(1); 140-6.
- 12. Amoah AG; public health nutr.2003Dec; 6(8); 751-7 links, sociodemographic variations in obesity among Ghanaian adults.
- 13. Sood R.K.Gupta A.K, Sharma R.IC et al. An epidemiological study of obesity in Simla town Indian J Med sci 1996 Oct, 50(10); 362-4.
- 14. Goya S wannamethee and A Gerald shaper. Alcohol, body weight, and weight gain in middle aged men.
- 15. Rezende FA, Rosado le & et al Body mass index and waist circumference; association with cardiovascular risk factors.{Article in English, Portuguese}.Rezende FA, Rosado LE, Ribeiro RdeC.

Prevalence Study of Overweight/Obesity Among Adults (20-60yrs) of Urban Field Practice Area of Osmania Medical College, Hyderabad

Vijaya Kumar Uthakalla*, K.J. Kishore Kumar**, S.K. Jena*** Priyadarshini Matta****, Vimala Thomas*****, Suryaprabha******,

*Assistant Professor in Department of Community Medicine, GSL Medical College, Rajahmundry, Andhra Pradesh, **Assistant Professor in Department of Community Medicine, Rajiv Gandhi Institute of Medical Sciences, Kadapa, ***Assistant Professor in department of Community Medicine, GSL Medical College, Rajahmundry, Andhra Pradesh, ****PG Student, Pediatrics at Rangaraya Medical College, Kakinada, Andhra Pradesh, *****Associate Professor in Department of Community Medicine, Osmania Medicial College, Hyderabad, Andhra Pradesh, Department of Community Medicine, Osmania Medical College, Hyderabad, Andhra pradesh

ABSTRACT

Background: There is an alarming increasing in the prevalence of overweight and obesity worldwide with globalization of economics and rapid international communication. Andhra Pradesh prevalence of overweight and obesity in males is 27.27% and females are 44.64% in urban areas. The prevalence of obesity in adults is 20-40% in urban areas of Andhra Pradesh.

Objective: 1. To study prevalence of overweight/obesity among adults (20-60yrs) in the urban field practice area of OMC, Hyderabad. 2. To study the relationship between overweight/obesity with physical activity. 3. To study the morbidity patterns among over weight/obesity individuals.

Materials And Methods: The urban health centre consists of 41slums, 3 slums were selected randomly and households were selected by systematic random method, sample of 400 subjects were interviewed with pretested profroma. Age, sex, height, weight, blood pressure, diabetes, dietary patterns, smoking, alcoholism, CAD are recorded from March 2005 to September 2005.

Results: The prevalence of overweight/obesity was 37%. Among males 27.27% and females 44.64%. Among age group 51-60 yrs, 45.45% were overweight/obese and the association between <40yrs and>40yrs was significant p<0.001. Among non regular exercise 47.05% were overweight/obese and the association between non regular exercise and regular exercise was significant p<0.001. Morbidities among subjects with BMI >25 were HTN 12.16%, DM13.52%, joint pains 31.08%, respiratory diseases 8.01% and CAD 1.35%.

Conclusions: The over all prevalence of over weight/obesity was 37% in the study population. 27.27% in males and 44.64% in females. As the age increases overweight/obesity also increases along a gradient till 60+yrs. High literacy, T.V. watching and low physical exercise were significantly associated with over weight/obesity. As BMI increases morbidities tend to increase in urban area.

Key words: Urban obesity, Exercises, Prevalence, Morbidities.

BACKGROUND

Obesity is a key factor in the natural history of other chronic and non communicable diseases¹. Globally,

Corresponding author Dr.Uthakalla Vijaya Kumar M.D Asst. Prof. Dept. of Community Medicine G.S.L. Medical College, Rajahmundry, A.P. 533296 Cell No: 09440148818. Email-uvkr_75@Yahoo.co.in. there are more than one billion over weight adults, at least 300 million of them are obese². Globesity is fast becoming more of a problem than famine and under nutrition, and has now reached a point where it is becoming a serious threat to the health of every nation striving for economic development³. The prevalence of over weight and obesity in India is 20-40% in urban area⁴. Because of urbanization and industrialization, our lives are becoming more sedentary and less physically active than it was before. Women are spending most of their leisure time in front of T.V. household durable goods like washing machines, cooking gas and electric ovens etc again reduce the physical activity. Application of transportation even for shorter distance is increasing. All these prevent the people from physical activity and leads to over weight and obesity. At the same time, consumption of oily and junky food is responsible for over weight and obesity. Obesity is not immediate lethal disease itself, but it is a significant risk factor associated with a range of serious non communicable diseases and conditions.

OBJECTIVES

- 1. To study the prevalence of overweight and obesity among adults (20-60yrs) in the urban field practice area of Osmania Medical College, Hyderabad.
- 2. To study the relationship between overweight/ obesity with physical activity .
- 3. To study the morbidity patterns among over weight/obesity individuals.

MATERIALS AND METHODS

The present study was carried out in the urban health centre area Harajpenta,Hyderabad. It functions under Municipal Corporation of Hyderabad, A.P which was the field practice area of Osmania medical college, Hyderabad. The urban health centre consists of 41 slums caters a population of 58,902. Three slums i.e., Krishna Nagar, Nehru Nagar and Sunder Nagar B were selected for study by random method which caters a population of 3235, 3229 and 1947.

Calulation of Sample Size: Sample size for this study can be drawn from prevalence of overweight/obesity in urban area was 20-40%. Based on the formula4pq/l2 error was taken as 20% so the sample size is 400 subjects.

Selection of households: In harajpenta, houses were numbered from centre to periphery. Using systematic random sampling every 3rd house was selected. Household was picked up randomly to start the survey. The random number is 3, then the survey started from the 3rd house and the subjects were interviewed with pretested profroma and anthropometric measurements were taken. And then moved on to next house i.e. 3+3=6 thhouse and so on till get required sample size (i.e. 400). A profroma was designed and approval was taken from ethical committee of Osmania medical college and pilot study was conducted and tested. A total of 400 subjects were interviewed for over weight and obesity, after taking oral consent and preventive measures were suggested to them.

Study period: March 2005 to September 2005.

Exclusion criteria: pregnant women, physically handicapped were excluded.

Tools used:

- 1. A pretested questionnaire was used to interview the subjects after taking oral consent.
- 2. Height was measured with steadiometer to the nearest 0.5cm.
- 3. Weight was measured with bath room weighing scale to nearest 0.5kg.
- 4. BMI was classified according to W.H.O. classification.
- 5. Blood pressure was measured by sphygmomanometer according to J.N.C VII 2005 classification.

Description of variables: Age, sex, literacy, occupation, socioeconomic status, physical activity, alcohol consumption, smoking, practice of exercise, diet, family history, blood pressure, diabetes & coronary heart diseases(which were previously diagnosed and are on treatment only were included in the study) anthropometry were recorded.

Statistical analysis: Analysis by simple proportions and chi-square test.

RESULTS

Table 1. Prevalence of over weight/obesity in thestudy population

Sex	BMI							
	<25	<u>≥</u> 25	Total					
Male	128(72.73)	48(27.27)	176					
Female	124(55.36)	100(44.64)	224					
Total	252(63.00)	148(37.00)	400					

(X2=12.76, P<0.003, 1df)

Among the subjects females are having higher prevalence of over weight/obesity of 44.64% than males 27.27% and the observed difference was significant.

Table 2. Age wise prevalence of over v	veight/obesity
in the study population:	

AGE	BM	TOTAL	
	<25		
20-30	44(73.33)	16(26.67)	116
31-40	72(72)	28(28)	100
41-50	88(57.89)	64(42.11)	152
51-60	48(54.54)	40(45.45)	88
TOTAL	252(63)	400	

(X2=10.32, p<0.001, 1df).

As the age increases the BMI also increases up to 60 yrs and BMI was more among 51-60 yrs.the observed difference between over weight/obesity among <40 yrs and>40 yrs was found to be statistically significant.

Literacy status	BN	Total no	
-	<25	<u>≥</u> 25	
Illiterate	104(74.29)	140	
Primary	52(52.00)	100	
Middle school	32(44.44)	40(55.56)	72
High school	40(76.92)	12(23.08)	52
Inter	12(75.00)	8(40.00)	20
Graduate/pg	12(75.00)	4(25.00)	16
Total	252(63.00)	148(37.00)	400

 Table 3. Distribution of BMI according to literacy status

(X2=11.77, p<0.0006, 1df)

The observed difference between illiterates and literates was found to be statistically significant in urban area.

Table 4. Distribution of overweight/obesity according to occupation:

	0		
Occupation	Bmi		Total
	<25	?25	
Labourer	37(78.82)	10(21.28)	47
Tenant/Cultivator	8(50)	8(50)	16
Artisans	37(75.51)	12(24.49)	49
Business	48(66.68)	24(33.32)	72
Professional	22(26.19)	62(73.81)	84
Others	100(75.75)	32(24.25)	132
Total	252(63)	148(37)	400

Among the professionals prevalence of overweight/obesity was very high 73.81% when compared to labourer 21.28%.

 Table 5. Duration of TV Watching and distribution of over weight/obesity

TV Watching/Day	B	Total	
	<25	≥25	
>2hr/Day	66(33.68)	130(66.32)	196
<2hr/Day	184(92)	16(8.)	200
Total	250(63.13)	146(36.87)	396

Note: 4 Subjects Never Watch Tv And Were Excluded From Analysis. X2 =143.26, p<0.001, 1df.

The observed difference between television watching for >2hrs and<2hrs/day was found to be statistically significant.

Table 6. Distribution of regular/non regular exercise according to overweight/obesity

Practices of Exercise	BI	Total	
	<25	≥25	
Regular Exercise	38(76)	12(24)	50
Non Reg-exercise	18(52.95)	16(47.05)	34
Total	56(66.67)	28(33.33)	84

(x2=17.63, p<0.001,1df.) Note: 316 subjects never practiced any exercise.

The observed difference between regular and non

regular exercises was found to be statistically significant.

BMI	Morbities							
	HTN DM No. Disease Joint Resp. CAD							
				Pains	Disease			
<25	12(4.76)	8(3.17)	160(63.49)	62(24.10)	10(3.96)	0(0)	252	
≥25	18(12.16)	20(13.52)	50(33.78)	46(31.08)	12(8.10)	2(1.35)	148	
Total	30(7.5)	28(7)	210(52.5)	108(27)	22(5.5)	2(0.5)	400	

Among urban subjects with BMI>25 HTN was 12.16%, DM was 13.52%, joint pains was 31.08% and respiratory disease was 8.10%, CAD was1.35%. As BMI increases morbidities also increases.



DISCUSSION

The present study among urban area shows prevalence of over weight/obesity was more among females (46.64%) than males (27.27%), it correlates study conducted by Das Guptas.hazra SC et al⁵ in their study where 500 men and 500 women were included in the study from out patient department and indoor wards of medical college Calcutta noted that only 7% of males and 16% of females had BMI> 25. The probable cause could be study was conducted among patients from out patient department and indoor wards of hospital.

Regarding age prevalence of over weight/obesity was increasing with age up to 60yrs.it correlates the study conducted by Sood R.K. et al⁶ in their "An epidemiological study of obesity in simla town" have noted that prevalence of obesity rose significantly with age taking cutoff points of BMI>25.

Findings regarding literacy status and overweight/ obesity showed that as literacy status increases BMI also increases and the study correlates with the study conducted by Amoah AG et al⁷ on "sociodemographic variations in obesity among Ghanaian adults". He concluded that subjects with tertiary education had the highest prevalence of obesity compared with less literate and illiterate subjects. Findings regarding physical exercise of BMI \geq 25 among non regular exercise was 47.05% compared to regular exercise subjects and was statistically significant. it correlates with the study conducted by Bhasin.S.K.Chaturvedi *S*, Gupta P et al⁸ in their study "status of physical exercise and its association with obesity and hypertension in urban area" and they concluded that prevalence of obesity in group doing regular exercise was less than that not doing and the results were statistically significant.

Findings regarding morbidities and overweight/ obesity of subjects with BMI≥25, HTN was 12.16%, DM was13.52%, joint pains was 31.08% and CAD was1.35% as the BMI increases morbidities also increases. It correlates the study conducted by Rczende FA, Rosado et al⁹ on BMI and waist circumference association with cardiovascular risk factors and they concluded that the frequency of cardiovascular risk factors increased along with BMI.

CONCLUSIONS

The over all prevalence of over weight/obesity was 37% in the study population. 27.27% in males and 44.64% in females. As the age increases overweight/ obesity also increases along a gradient till 60+yrs. High literacy, T.V. watching and low physical exercise were significantly associated with over weight/obesity. As BMI increases morbidities tend to increase in urban area.

REFERENCES

1. Heinz nutrition foundation of India. April-June 2004.

- 2. WHO report 2005.
- 3. Independent, FEB 2002.
- 4. WHO TRS 894.
- 5. DAS gupta S, Hazra SC. The utility of waist circumference in assessment of obesity Indian J public health. 1999 Oct-Dec; 43(4); 132-135.
- 6. Sood R.K, Gupta A.K, SharmaR.IC etal an epidemiological study of obesity in simla town Indian J Med Sci 1996 Oct, 50(10); 362-364.
- Amoah AG; public health Nutr.2003 Dec; 6(8); 751-757 links Sociodemographic variations in obesity among Ghanaian adults.
- 8. Bhasin S.K;Chaturvedi S, Gupta P et. al. status of physical exercise and its association with obesity and hypertension in two urban assembly constituents of Delhi. Indian Med Asso 2001 nov;
- 9. Rezende FA, Rosado LE, & et.al. Body mass index and waist-to-hip ratio as indicators of hypertension with cardiovascular risk factors. Rezende FA, Rosado LE, Riberio Rde C.
- 10. Reducing risks, promoting healthy life-The world health report 2002; 60.
- 11. Patel JC obesity Effective and safe management Indian J Med Sci 2000 Nov; 54(11); 499-507.
- 12. Kaplan Mark S et al on prevalence and correlates of overweight and obesity among older adults; findings from the Canadian National population Health survey.
- 13. Jervell J, Bjertness E.obesity in rural and urban Palestinian west bank population. Int. J. Obese. Relat. meat. disord. 2003 Jan 27(1) 140-146.
- 14. Dudija V; Mishra A, Pandey RM et. al. obesity effective and safe management. Indian J Med sci 2000 Nov; 54(11); 499-507.
- 15. NFHS-2, 1998-99.

Age and Gender related changes in Body Composition in Pre-adolescents

Rajeswari.K¹, , Vijayalakshmi.V², Gulla.S³

¹Department of Foods and Nutrition College of HomeScience Saifabad, Hyderabad, Andhra Pradesh, India, ²Prof. Department of Foods and Nutrition College of Home Science, Saifabad, Hyderabad, Andhra Pradesh, India ³Food Technology, University College of Technology, Osmania University, hyderabad, Andhra Pradesh

Abstract

Background: The present study was initiated with the main objective to assess the changes of body composition as related to age, gender during pre-adolescence (9-12 years).

Methods: The study was conducted on 450 pre-adolescents of 9-12 years.

Results: Skin-fold thickness was higher in girls than boys indicating higher fat content in girls. Age and gender related differences in body composition indicated that body stat 1500 analyser (BSA) fat mass (% and kg) decreased with an increase in age whereas it was decreased when derived from skin-fold thickness (SFT) in both the genders. BSA and SFT fat free mass (% and kg) increased with an increase in age significantly in boys and girls. Mean fat free mass (% and kg) and water (% and kg) were significantly higher in boys than girls. The mean fat (% and kg) was significantly higher in girls than boys. Body composition as related to weight indicated that the lean body mass was significantly higher in the subjects who had maximum weight than the subjects with minimum weight. BSA fat mass and fat free mass were significantly differed from SFT fat mass and SFT fat free mass indicating BSA was not suitable to assess body composition during pre-adolescence (9-12 years).

Conclusions: Significant age related and gender related differences in body composition exist in the pre-adolescent period.

INTRODUCTION

Growth produced changes in total body fat (TBF), percent body fat (% BF) and the fat free mass (FFM) during childhood affect adult body composition and fat distribution, all of which in turn, affect risk for cardiovascular and related diseases¹. Several studies have suggested relations between one of the accepted methods of determining body fat and a simpler technique, which could be widely applied. Hence an attempt to study the pattern of age and sex retained differences in total body fat (TBF), percent body fat (%BF) and fat free mass (FFM) during pre-adolescence (9-12 years) years was taken up. Workers who studied^{2,3} a group of pre-adolescents, found that the weight had increased significantly except for males at

Corresponding author

Dr.Sridevi Gulla

Food Technology University College of Technology, Osmania University, Hyderabad - 500 007. Phone:91-40-27098901 ext 248 Email:srideviprakash@hotmail.com 12 years and females at 13 and 14 years. Vizmonas et al⁴ reported that boys presented a positive relation between age of pubertal onset and body mass index (p<0.01) which was not observed in girls. The present study is aimed to describe the body composition of Pre-adolescents (9-12 years) by age, gender and to compare the agreement of BSA (Body Stat 1500 Analyzer) with the derived from Skin fold Thickness.

METHODOLOGY

A total number of 450 children were selected and grouped in 3 age groups *i.e.*, 9-10 years age group, 10-11 years age group and 11-12 years age group. Each age group consists of 75 girls and 75 boys. The subjects were drawn from schools of Hyderabad, India. Consent from the school principals, and the subjects taken and explained of the outcome before the start up of the study. Skin-fold thickness was measured to the nearest 0.05 mm on the left side of the body from sites *i.e.*, triceps, biceps, sub scapular and suprailliac by using Harpenden's calipers⁵. The percent body fat was calculated by using the formula: Fat (%) = [(4.95/

density) — 4.5] +100(1)⁵. Later body composition was analyzed using BSA unit which works on the principle of Bioelectrical Impedance Analysis (BIA) and the parameters included are fat (% and kg), Fat free mass (% and kg) and water (% and liters).Data analysis was done using mean and standard deviation, analysis of variance, correlation coefficient, z-test and paired t-test.

RESULTS

Sex related differences in body composition were observed in boys and girls in table 1. The mean fat (% and kg) was significantly (p>0.005) higher in girls (52.4% and 13.2 kg) than boys (41.9% and 10.2 kg) where as the mean fat free mass was higher significantly (p>0.005) in boys (57.5% and 12.4 kg) than girls (44.6% and 14.6 kg)(2). The mean water levels (% and liters) were also higher in boys (77.1% and 21.2 liters) than girls (72.7% and 18.6 liters).

The correlation results also showed that skin fold thickness strongly correlated with body weight (0.01%) (r.0.208) and a negative correlation (0.01%) (r.0.208) was observed between BSA fat mass (%), water (% and liters) and body weight. There was a positive correlation between weight and fat free mass (0.01%) (r.0.208) and negative correlation between fat mass and lean mass. It was also calculated that there was a significant difference at 5% level in the fat free mass (%) between the subjects who have maximum weight than minimum weight subject and significant difference was observed in both genders. (table 2)

years and 11.4 kg at 11-12 years. The corresponding decrease in total body fat for boys was from 10.2 kg at 9-10 years and 9.1 kg at 11-12 years. Similarly, the average percent body fat decreased from 52.4% to 36.5% in girls and 41.9% to 26.4% in boys. The overall increase in fat free mass from 9-12 years was found both in boys and girls. The average amount of fat free mass increased about 14.4 kg in boys and 7.6 kg in girls (Table 3).

The mean BSA fat mass (% and kg) decreased with increase in age (41.9 to 26.4, boys and 52.4 to 36.5, girls) whereas SFT fat (% and kg) increased with an increase in age from 9-12 years (17.6 to 22.7, boys and 21.5 to 29.4, girls). BSA and SFT fat free mass (% and kg) increased with an age in boys and girls. BSA fat mass (%) was significantly higher (p < 0.01) than SFT fat (%) except at the age of 11-12 years in boys where as significant difference (p < 0.05) was observed between BSA fat (kg) and SFT (kg) except at the age of 9-10 years in girls. SFT fat free mass (% and kg) was higher than BSA fat free mass (% and kg) in boys and girls of all age groups.(table 3)

DISCUSSION AND CONCLUSIONS:

The study examined the pattern of age and gender related changes in body fat (% and kg), fat free mass (% and kg), and water (% and l) during pre-adolescence (9-12 years). The body composition was assessed using body stat 1500 analyser. The variables assessed that the mean values for body fat (% and kg) was significantly higher (P<0.01) in girls than boys in all

Variables		Age (years)										
		9-10 years		10-11 years		11-12 years		Total				
	Boys	Girls	Z-value	Boys	Girls	Z-value	Boys	Girls	Z-value	Boys	Girls	Z-value
Fat (%)	41.9 ± 9.4	52.4 ± 13.7	3.6**	37.3± 12.7	43.8 ± 18.5	2.5*	26.4 ± 6.8	36.5± 17.9	4.5**	35.2±11.9	44.2±21.0	5.6**
Fat (kg)	10.2±1.5	13.2±4.4	5.4**	10.2±1.7	12.3±4.0	4.2**	9.1±2.0	11.4±3.8	4.4**	9.8±1.8	12.3±4.2	8.0**
Lean (%)	57.5±10.6	44.6±21.4	4.6*	63.0±11.9	52.0 ± 20.6	3.9**	73.5±6.9	64.1±17.3	4.3**	64.7±11.9	53.6±21.5	6.7**
Lean (kg)	12.4±7.3	14.6±4.3	2.2**	19.4±16.5	18.8±6.8	NS	26.8±7.0	22.2±10.0	3.1**	20.1±7.9	18.0±12.6	2.0*
Water (%)	77.1±10.2	72.7±11.6	2.4*	73.3±12.4	68.2±11.5	2.5**	72.2±8.1	64.5±7.0	6.2**	74.2±10.6	68.4±10.8	5.6**
Water (1)	21.2±4.9	18.6±1.4	4.4**	22.4±2.8	19.8±2.2	6.0**	25.2±6.1	22.6±2.5	3.3**	22.9±5.1	20.3±2.7	6.6**

Table 1. Mean body composition (mean±SD) of pre-adolescents (9-12 years)

NS- non significant

*- significant at 1% level

**- significant at 5% level

Table 2. Factors affecting body composition.

Gender	Fat free	z- value	
	Minimum weight Maximum weight		
Boys (225)	57.5±24.4	73.5±27.2	6.3*
Girls (225)	45.6±23.2	64.5±25.4	5.7*

*Significant at 5% level

The total body fat and percent body fat decreased with increase in age in both genders. The average decrease in total body fat for girls was 13.2 kg at 9-10 the age groups. The significant increase in body fat in girls (44.2% and 12.3 kg) than boys (35.2% and 9.8 kg) and the greater degree of fatness compared with boys is due to greater production of estrogen¹ in the girls during menarche. The results of fat free mass indicate that boys have higher fat free mass (% and kg) than girls in all the age groups except at the age group of 10-11 years old. The significant difference (P<0.01) in the amount of changes in fat free mass between boys (64.7% and 20.1 kg) and girls (53.6% and 18.0 kg) might be due to the production of testosterone hormone by the males which plays an important role in muscle size and skeletal mass in boys.

		Boys (yea	rs)	Girls (years)			
	9-10	10-11	11-12	9-10	10-11	11-12	
% BSA FM	41.9±9.4	37.3±12.7	26.4±6.8	52.4±23.1	43.8±18.5	36.5±17.9	
% SFT FM	17.6±3.9	21.8±4.8	22.7±2.7	21.5±5.6	27.2±7.0	29.4±7.5	
z-value	24*	15.5*	3.7**	31.1*	16.6*	7.1*	
% BSA FM	10.2±1.5	10.1±1.7	9.1±2.0	13.2±4.4	12.3±4.0	11.4±3.8	
% SFT FM	5.1±0.8	6.6±1.0	7.7±1.1	5.3±1.7	7.8±2.5	10.4±3.3	
z-value	5.0**	3.5**	1.4**	5.4*	4.5**	1.0**	
% BSA FM	57.5±10.6	63.0±11.9	73.5±6.9	45.6±21.4	52.0±20.6	64.5±17.3	
% SFT FM	82.4±15.1	78.2±14.7	77.3±7.2	78.5±36.8	72.8±34.2	70.6±33.0	
z-value	24.9*	15**	42.0**	32.9*	20.8*	6.1*	
% BSA FM	12.4±7.3	19.4±11.9	26.4±15.7	14.6±4.3	18.8 ± 6.8	22.2±10.0	
% SFT FM	24.1±14.1	24.0±14.1	26.6±15.6	19.7±5.8	21.2±6.2	25.0±7.3	
z-value	11.6*	5.0*	0.2**	5.1**	2.4**	3.2**	

Table 3. Comparision of body composition from body stat 1500 analyser (BSA) and skin fold thickness (SFT)

*: significant at 1% level, **: significant at 5% level.

Mean fat (% and kg) values of girls were found to be higher than values studied by Tahara et al⁶ in Japanese girls and reported fat (% and kg) values were 15.7% and 5.9 kg at 11 years age. The large difference may be due to the cultural pressure on Japanese girls to remain thin. The mean fat (% and kg) of girls was greater than Caucasian girls¹ which may be due to ethnic group differences. Higher triceps, biceps and skin fold measurements in girls for the present study were observed to be higher than Japanese girls and Caucasian girls^{6,1}.

The mean fat (% and kg) of boys were observed to be higher than Spanish, Caucasian and Japanese boys studied by other workers. The mean fat (%) and fat (kg) in all the age groups were 41.9% (9-10 years), 37.3 % (10-11 years) and 26.4 % (11-12 years). The difference might be due to the differences in life style, environmental factors, genetic and physical activity. The similar results were reported by Ellis et al⁷ who studied that Hispanic males had higher body fat values than the white group and black groups where as black males generally had lower values than white group. The mean fat free mass values of boys in all age groups were 57.5 (9-10 years), 63.0 (10-11 years) and 73.5% (11-12 years) which were reported to be lower than Caucasian, Spanish and Japanese boys was higher than those in the present study.

The mean (% and l) water levels are higher in boys (74.2% and 22.9 l) than girls (68.4% and 20.3 l). Chumela et al⁸ reported similar results and indicated that males had higher total body water and increased from the adolescent years to mid-adulthood and declined in adult age groups. The mean fat (% and kg) decreased with an increase in age in boys and girls. This is strongly supported by Owa et al⁹ and Sarria et al² who reported that fat (% and kg) decreased in age in boys. The decrease in fat content of girls with an increase in age may be due to low fat intake and socio-economic status. Sandhya¹⁰ reported that the

intake of fat was found to be less and intake of fruits was more in the girls compared to boys.

A negative correlation was observed between fat mass (%), water (% and l) and body weight (r=0.20, P<0.01) indicating that with increase in body weight, water (% and l) and fat mass decreased. Fat mass (%) was negatively correlated with lean mass (r=0.20, P<0.01) indicating that with increase in fat free mass, the fat mass decreased.BSA fat mass (Body stat 1500 analyser) was significantly higher (P<0.05) than fat mass derived from SFT (skin fold thickness) (% and kg) whereas SFT fat free mass (% and kg) was significantly higher (P<0.05) than BSA fat free mass (% and kg).

Hence, assessment of body composition by BSA was not in agreement with that of SFT at the age of 9-10 years indicating that the BSA does not read the body composition of young children. But at the age of 11-12 years the agreement between BSA and SFT increased indicating BSA was suitable to assess body composition from 11 years onwards.

REFERENCES

- Guo SS, Chumela WC, Roche AF, Siervogel RM. Age and maturity related changes in body composition during adolescence into adulthood. The Fels longitudinal study. International Journal of Obesity Related Metabolic Disorders. 1997. 52: 1147-1175.
- Sarria A, Garcia LA, Moreno LA, Fleta I, Morellon MP, Bueno M. Skinfold thickness measurements are better predictors of body fat percentage than body mass index in male Spanish children and adolescents. European Journal of clinical nutrition. 1998.52: 573-76.
- 3. National Institute of Nutrition, Hyderabad, Annual report 1997-1998 and 1998-1999. Body composition during adolescence. 89.
- 4. Vizmanos B, Marti Henneberg. Puberty begins with characteristic subcutaneous body fat mass in each sex. European Journal of Clinical Nutrition. 2000. 54: 203-208.
- 5. Durrin JVGA, Rahaman MM. The assessment of the amount of fat in the human body from measurements of skinfold thickness. British Journal of Nutrition. 1967. 21: 681-688.
- Tahara Y, Moji K, Aoyagi K, Nishizawa S, Yukawak, Tsanawake N, et al. Age related pattern of the body development and body composition in Japanese males and females. 11-18 years of age. American Journal of Human Biology. 2002. 14(3): 337-340.
- 7. Ellis KJ. Body composition of a young multiethnic, male population. American Journal

of Clinical Nutrition. 1997. 66(6): 1323-1331; 37 ref.

- Chumela WC, Guo SS, Czmarski RJ, Fkegal KM, John Son CL, Hegrmfield SB, Kukaski HC, Fried IH, Hubbard VS. Body composition estimation from NHAMES III bioelectrical Impedence data. International Journal of Obesity related metabolic disorders. 2002. 26(2): 1596-1609.
- 9. Owa JA and Adejuyibe O. Fat mass, fat mass percentage, body mass index, and mid upper arm circumference in a healthy population of Nigeria children, Journal Tropical Pediatrics. 1997. 43: 13-19.
- 10. Sandhya. Body composition of adolescent boys and girls. Thesis submitted to Acharya N.G.Ranga Agricultural University. 2003.

Incidence of Parasitic Infestations in Rural School Children of Age 5-12 Years at Davangere District, Karnataka

Uma Kiran¹, Suneeta Kalasurmath², Basavarajappa K.G³, VinodKumar C.S⁴

¹Research Scholar, Bharathiar University, Coimbatore, Tamilnadu, ²Assistant Professor, Department of Physiology, ³Head and Professor, ⁴Assistant Professor, Department of Microbiology, S.S. Institute of Medical Sciences and Research Centre, Davangere, Karnataka

ABSTRACT

Background: Worm infestation is one of the major cause of childhood malnutrition, anaemia, physical and mental growth and psycho-social problems. The study aims to compare the prevalence of parasitic infestation and optimization of number of stool samples for screening of parasitic infestation among school children of age 5-12 years at rural areas of Davangere district.

Materials & Methods: This is a cross-sectional study conducted during the month of June2009 to October 2010. Five stool samples on five consecutive weekends were collected from each of the 474 children. Stools were examined for the presence of intestinal parasites.

Results: Out of the 474 samples, 237 were positive by the end of 5th week stool sample. Nearly 89.9% of the parasites were identified in the first and second stool samples, 92.8% were identified by the 3rd stool sample, 95.4% were identified in the 4th stool sample and virtually all the parasites seen in the study were identified in the fifth stool samples. The prevalence of worm infestation is 50%. *Ascaris lumbricoides* (18.5%) and *Ancylostoma duodenale* (16.3%) were most common parasites. Majority of the children who were affected belong to early age groups and girls were more affected than boys.

Conclusion: From this study we conclude that 5th week stool sample detects virtually all the intestinal parasites and this clinically benefits the children compared to the single stool sample used for screening purposes.

Key words: Stool samples, Worm infestation, Rural children

INTRODUCTION

Intestinal helminthic infestation is one of the commonest causes of chronic infection in humans in developing countries^{1,2}. Indeed children of an endemic community can be expected to have intestinal parasitic infection soon after weaning and high risk of reinfection in the rest of their life³. The impure drinking water, low socio-economic state, poor sanitation coupled with low literacy rates of parents particularly the mothers are the main causes⁴. Worm infestation

Correspondence Address: Dr. VinodKumar C.S Assistant Professor Department of Microbiology, S.S. Institute of Medical Sciences and Research Centre, Davangere-577005 Karnataka, India Mobile-9964402525, Email: vinodmicro@yahoo.com leads to childhood malnutrition, anaemia, stunted physical and mental growth, psycho-social problems. It also causes recurrent gastrointestinal and upper respiratory tract infection contributing to high morbidity and mortality in children. Despite of improved socio-economic conditions and elevated living standards, surprisingly it is still a public health problem even in developed countries, like United States⁵. The reason for high prevalence is mainly because patients rarely report at health centre due to its slow progress of the signs and symptoms³. Helminthic infections are more prevalent among school children aged 5-14 years^{6,8}. They constitute 12% of total disease burden in children¹⁰. The hookworm infestation is a leading cause of iron deficiency anaemia, whipworm infestation in children causes growth retardation and anaemia, while heavy infestation with both roundworm and whipworm causes protein energy malnutrition^{11,12}. It is of particular concern that these infestations have insidious constraint on cognition and learning abilities of the children^{13,14}.

Because of the high prevalence and serious adverse effects of intestinal parasitic infestation in children, many studies have been conducted in various cities of India^{,15,18}. However, most reports are based on single samples from a variety of patient groups and controls, and the community prevalence has not been documented in detail. We now report a detailed analysis of the prevalence of potentially pathogenic intestinal parasites in rural children at Davangere, Karnataka and to estimate the optimum number of stool samples which should be examined to give reliable and reproducible results.

MATERIALS AND METHODS

Type of study: A school based cross-sectional study deals with investigation of the frequency of intestinal worm infestation in children between the ages 5-12 years.

Study area: Three rural schools from Davangere district, Karnataka were selected and consented prior to the start of the study.

Period of study: June 2009 – October 2010.

Sample size: 474 school children were recruited between the age group of 5-12yr, which include both boys (49.1%) and girls (50.9%).

Inclusion and Exclusion criteria: The rural school caters to low socio-economic group of population. None of these individuals had any gastrointestinal symptoms during the period of sample collection. The age of children was ascertained by questioning them and later confirmed from school registers in case of any discrepancy between the two, the date in the school register was taken as accurate. Age in completed years was taken for analysis.

Stool sample: The importance of the study was explained to all children in the study population and

the method of collecting stool specimens were thoroughly made clear to all the children¹⁸. Five stool samples on five consecutive weekends were collected from each of the 474 children. Samples were collected in a wide mouthed plastic disposable container containing formalin and transported to the laboratory for parasitic examination^{18,19}.

Examination for parasites: Saline and iodine preparations from each sample were examined under 100X and 400X magnification²⁰. The smear was made and stained with safranine methylene blue stain for Cryptosporidium and examined under an oil-immersion²¹.

RESULTS

The overall prevalence of parasitic infestation was 50%. Multiple infestations were seen in 24 subjects. The most common parasitic helminth was *Ascaris lumbricoides* 44(18.6%), followed by *Enterobius vermicularis* 41(17.3%), *Ancylostoma duodenale* 39 (16.5%), *Trichuris trichiura* 37(15.6%), *Hymenolepis nana* 35(14.8%), *Giardia lamblia* 33(13.9%) and *Entamoeba histolytica* 08(3.4%). (Table 1)

Table 1. Parasitic profile

Parasites	Number	%
Ancylostoma duodenale	39	16.5
Ascaris lumbricoides	44	18.6
Trichuris trichiura	37	15.6
Hymenolepis nana	35	14.8
Enterobius vermicularis	41	17.3
Giardia lamblia	33	13.9
Entamoeba histolytica	08	3.4
TOTAL	237	50

Frequency of observation of parasitic infestation in five different stool samples is depicted in Table 2. Nearly 89.9% of the parasites were identified in the first and second stool samples, 92.8% were identified by the 3rd stool sample, 95.4% were identified in the 4th stool sample and virtually all the parasites seen in the study were identified in the fifth stool sample.

Table 2 Frequency of observation of parasitic infestation in five different stool samples

Parasites	Sample 1	Sample 2	Sample 3	Sample 4	Sample 5
Ancylostoma duodenale	33	36	37	39	39
Ascaris lumbricoides	43	40	41	44	44
Trichuris trichiura	32	34	36	35	37
Hymenolepis nana	32	33	34	31	35
Enterobius vermicularis	40	39	38	41	41
Giardia lamblia	27	25	29	29	33
Entamoeba histolytica	06	06	05	07	08
Total	213	213	220	226	237
Cumulative index (%)	89.9	89.9	92.8	95.4	100

In this study it was seen that girls were more infested 126 (53.1%) than boys 111(46.9%). (Table 3). Results showed that 83 (35%) children in the age group of 5-6y were infected and 74 (31.2%) in the age group

of 7-8y age. In age group of 9-10y, 50 (21.1%) were infested and in the age group of 11-12y of age 30(12.65%) were infested. (Table 4).

Table 3.	Age and se	ex wise d	listribution	of the chi	ildren v	ositive and	negative	for parasiti	c infestation
				01 4110 ert.	a sea o a a p			or paraorer	

Age	Sex						Total		
	Boys			Girls					
	Positive	Negative	Total	Positive	Negative	Total	Positive	Negative	Total
5-6 yr	44	06	50	39	16	55	83	22	105
7-8 yr	38	15	53	36	29	65	74	44	118
9-10 yr	23	43	66	27	32	59	50	75	125
11-12 yr	06	47	64	24	38	62	30	96	126
Total	111	122	233	126	115	241	237	237	474

Table 4. Age wise	distribution of	parasites
-------------------	-----------------	-----------

PARASITE	5-6yr (n=105)	7-8yr (n=118)	9-10yr (n=125)	11-12yr (n=126)	TOTAL (n=474)	%
Hook worm	19	10	6	4	39	16.5
Ascaris lumbricoides	11	18	10	5	44	18.6
Trichuris trichura	13	10	6	8	37	15.6
Hymenolepis nana	9	14	7	5	35	14.8
Enterobius vermicularis	16	8	13	4	41	17.3
Giardia lamblia	13	9	7	4	33	13.9
Entamoeba histolytica	2	5	1	-	08	3.4
Total	83	74	50	30	237	51.1
Percentage	35	31.2	21.1	12.7		

DISCUSSION

Intestinal helminthiasis is common among children of developing countries particularly the rural areas. After careful screening, we observed that the frequency of intestinal parasites is very high in our region. This study reaffirms the findings of similar other surveys carried out earlier confirming the very high rate of helminthic infestations in our population as a whole and children in particular. It is estimated that as much as 60% of the world's population is infected with gut parasites, which may play a role in morbidity due to intestinal infections¹⁴. The commonest parasitic infections reported globally are Ascaris lumbricoides, Ancylostoma duodenale, Trichuris trichura and Entamoeba histolytica²². Few studies show the prevalence of worms infestation is 20-50%¹⁵ in some communities of the world. In a study done in Nigeria showed 49.7% intestinal helminthes with Ascaris lumbricoides and *Ancylostoma duodenale* as the predominant parasites¹⁶. In their study 23.6% children showed polyparasitism. But in our study 9.9% had polyparasitisim. Worm infestation as reported is 31.8% in Turky¹⁹, 19.3% in Iran²⁰, 47.2% in Afghanistan and 44% in Sudan²³. Main reason for less incidence of parasitic infestation in these countries is mainly because they have taken single stool sample for screening purposes. There is a chance that they might have missed the parasite from a single sample. In our study we have collected five stool samples. The parasites those were missed in the first and second stool samples were identified in the subsequent samples. Prevalence is influenced by school and age but not by gender. Our study corroborates with the study carried out at Kathmandu, Nepal which reported 66.6% prevalence with significant difference between boys and girls¹⁷. In India overall prevalence range from 12.5% to 71.7%, with varying prevalence rates for individual parasites^{18, 23-} ²⁶. Study carried out at Gulbarga, have reported a prevalence of intestinal parasitism upto 71.7% among school going girls¹⁸.

In all other studies, author have taken single stool sample to screen for parasites^{6,17,21,23-26}. In our study we have collected five stool samples to increase the sensitivity of screening technique. In first & second week sample, 89.5% of parasites were observed. But in third sample 92.8% were positive for ova / cyst and in fourth sample 95.4% were positive and virtually all the parasites depicted in the study were identified in the fifth stool sample. Hence we suggest at least 5 samples should be screened in the age group of 5-12 years to rule out intestinal parasitism.

To conclude, the study revealed the presence of helminthic infection among study group. The high parasite prevalence rate observed in this study supports the idea that children are the most affected groups in the community. They also serve as source of infection and therefore responsible for parasite transmission in the community at large¹⁸. Though hook worm ova loads indicated mild to moderate infestation in most of the children, the continued presence of worms in marginally nourished children could contribute significantly to blood loss in the intestine with resultant anaemia²⁴. The high prevalence of parasitic infestation seems directly related to the unhygienic living conditions associated with lack of knowledge about the communicable disease & variety of allied factors²³ which need to be studied. In order to avert the harmful effects and complications of the this ignored problem, prompt preventive measures should be taken for the eradication of high infestation rate, which should include public health education, clean water supply, sanitation facilities, promoting personal hygiene and periodic deworming of the children. It would be also useful to teach them about personnel hygiene and conduct health education at schools through 'School Health Projects'.During the school health checkups, periodic screening for intestinal parasites and blood indices can be evaluated.

REFERENCES

- 1. Schliessmann DJ. Diarrhoeal disease and environment. Bulletin of the World Health Organization 1959; 21: 381.
- 2. Elsdon Dew, R. Housing and parasites; comparison of slums with sub-economic housing. South African Medical Journal, 1953; 27: 879-80.
- Shally Awasthi, Bundy DAP, Lorenzo Savioli-Helminthic infections. A clinical review. BMJ 2003; 327: 431-433.
- 4. Okyay P, Ertug S, Gultekin B, Onen O, Beser E. Intestinal parasites prevalence and related factors in school children, a western city sample-Turkey. BMC Public Health 2004; 22: 4: 64.
- Kappus KD, Lundgren RG, Juranek DD, Robert JM, Spencer HC. Intestinal parasitism in the United States; Update on a continuing problem. AM J Trop Med Hyg 1994; 50: 705-713.
- Yared Merid, Mamdouh Hegazy, Girma Mekete, Shiferaw Teklemariam. Intestinal helminthic infection among children at Lake Awassa Area, South Ethiopia. Ethiop. J. Health Dev 2001; 15: 31-38.
- 7. Riaz Ahmed Pal, Shahid Islam Rana. Incidence

of intestinal helminthe parasites of Man in the Twin cities of Rawalpindi - Islamabad. JPMA 1983; 33: 33-38.

- 8. Stephenson LS. Impact of helminthe infections on human nutrition: Schistosomes and soil transmitted helminthes. London Taylor and Francis, 1987.
- 9. Roche M, Layrisse M. Hookworm anaemia. AmJ Trop Med Hyg 1966; 15: 1029-1102.
- 10. Bundy DAP, Cooper ES. Trichuris and trichuriasis in humans. Adv Parasitol 1989; 28: 107-173.
- 11. Stephenson LS, Latham M, Adam SE, Kinoti SN, Pertiet A. Physical fitness, growth and appetite of Kenyan schoolboys with hookworm, Trichuris trichura and Ascaris lumbricoides infections are improved four months after a single dose of albendazole. J Nutr 1993; 123: 1036-1046.
- 12. Agbaya SS, Yavo W, Menan EI, Attey MA, Kouadio LP, Koné M. Sante. Intestinal helminthiasis among school children: preliminary results of a prospective study in Agboville in Southern Côte d'Ivoire. Sante 2004; 14: 143-147.
- 13. Watkin NE, Pollitt E. Stupidity or worms: do intestinal worms impair mental performance? Psycol Bull 1997; 121: 171-191.
- 14. NishiuraH, Imai H, Nakao H, Tsukino H, Changezi MA, Hussain GA, et al. Ascaris lumbricoides among children in rural communities the Northern Area of Pakistan: prevalence, intensity and associated sociocultural and behavioural risk factor. Acta Trop 2002; 83: 223-231.
- 15. Anah MU, Ikpeme OE, Etuk IS, Yong KE, Ibanga I, Asuquo BE. . Worm infestation and anaemia among pre-school children of peasant farmers in Calabar, Nigeria. Niger J Clin Pract. 2008; 11: 220-224.
- Adams VJ, Markus MB, Adams JF, Jordaan E, Curtis B, Dhansay MA, Obihara CC, Fincham JE. Paradoxical helminthiasis and giardiasis in Cape Town, South Africa: epidemiology and control. Afr Health Sci. 2005; 5: 276-280.
- 17. Sharma BK, Rai SK, Rai DR, Choudhury DR. Prevalence of intestinal parasitic infestation in schoolchildren in the northeastern part of Kathmandu Valley, Nepal. Southeast Asian J Trop Med Public Health 2004; 35: 501.
- 18. Kumar CS, Anand Kumar H, Sunita V, Kapur I. Prevalence of anemia and worm infestation in school going girls at Gulbargha, Karnataka. Indian Pediatr. 2003; 40: 70-2.
- 19. Okyay P, Ertug S, Gultekin B, Onen O, Beser E. Intestinal parasites prevalence and related factors in school children, a western city sample-Turkey. BMC Public Health 2004; 22; 4.
- 20. Sayyari AA, Imanzadeh F, Bagheri Yazdi SA,

Karami H, Yaghoobi M. Prevalence of intestinal parasitic infections in the Islamic Republic of Iran. East Mediterr Health J 2005; 11: 377-8. 29. Karrar ZA, Rahim FA. Prevalence and risk factors of parasitic infections among under-five Sudanese children: a community based study. East Afr Med J 1995; 72: 103-109.

- 21. Kabatereine NB, Tukahebwa EM, Brooker S, Alderman H, Hall A. Epidemiology of intestinal helminth infestations among schoolchildren in southern Uganda. East Afr Med J 2001; 78: 283-286.
- 22. World Health Organisation (WHO). Prevention and control of intestinal parasitic infections. Technical Report Series. 1987; 749: 1-86.
- 23. Ramesh, G.N., Malla, N., Raju, G.S., Sehgal, R., Ganguly, N.K., Mahajan, R.C., and Dilwari, J.B.

Epidemiological study of parasitic infections in lower socio-economic group in Chandigarh. Indian Journal of Medical Research 1991; 93: 47-50.

- 24. Amin, A.B., Amin, B.M., Bhagat, A.P., and Patel, J.C. Incidence of Helminthiasis and protozoal infections in Bombay. Journal of the Indian Medical Association 1979; 72: 225-227.
- Singh, P., Gupta, M.L., Thakur, T.S., and Vaidya, N.K. Intestinal parasitism in Himachal Pradesh. Indian Journal of Medical Science 1991; 45(8): 201-204.
- 26. Singh, S., Raju, G.V., and Samantray. Parasitic gut flora in a north Indian population with gastrointestinal symptoms. Tropical gastroenterology 1993; 14(3): 104-108.

Call for Papers / Article Submission

The editor invites scholarly articles that contribute to the development and understanding of all aspects of Public Health and all medical specialities. All manuscripts are double blind peer reviewed. If there is a requirement, medical statistician review statistical content. Invitation to submit paper: A general invitation is extended to authors to submit papers papers for publication in IJPHRD.

The following guidelines should be noted:

- The article must be submitted by e-mail only. Hard copy not needed. Send article as attachment in e-mail.
- The article should be accompanied by a declaration from all authors that it is an original work and has not been sent to any other journal for publication.
- As a policy matter, journal encourages articles regarding new concepts and new information.
- Article should have a Title
- Names of authors
- Your Affiliation (designations with college address)
- Abstract
- Key words
- Introduction or back ground
- Material and Methods
- Findings
- Conclusion
- Acknowledgements
- Interest of conflict
- References in Vancouver style.
- Please quote references in text by superscripting
- Word limit 2500-3000 words, MSWORD Format, single file

All articles should be sent to: editor.ijphrd@gmail.com

Our Contact Info:

Indian Journal of Public Health Research & Development

First Floor, Punjab National Bank Building Main Dadri Road, Bhangel, NOIDA 201 304, UTTAR PRADESH Tel 0120- 4222020, 09971888542 Email: editor.ijphrd@gmail.com • Website: www.ijphrd.com



Indian Journal of Public Health Research & Development

CALL FOR SUBSCRIPTIONS

About the Journal

Print-ISSN: 0976-0245 Electronic - ISSN: 0976-5506, Frequency: Quaterly

Indian Journal of Public Health Research & Development is a double blind peer reviewed international Journal. The frequency is half yearly. It deals with all aspects of Public Health including Community Medicine, Public Health, Epidemiology, Occupational Health, Environmental Hazards, Clinical Research, Public Health Laws and covers all medical specialities concerned with research and development for the masses. The journal strongly encourages reports of research carried out within Indian continent and south east Asia.

The journal has been assigned international standards (ISSN) serial number and is indexed with Index Copernicus (Poland). It is also brought to notice that the journal is being covered by many international databases.

Journal Title		Pricing of Journals	
IJPHRD	Print Only	Print+Online	Online Only
Indian	INR 7000	INR 9000	INR 5500
Foreign	USD 450	USD 550	USD 350

Subscription Information

Note for Subscribers

Advance payment required by cheque/demand draft in the name of " **Indian Journal of Public Health Research & Development** " payable at New Delhi.

Cancellation not allowed except for duplicate payment.

Claim must be made within six months from issue date.

A free copy can be forwarded on request.

Send all payment to: Prof. (Dr.) R.K. Sharma, Editor

Indian Journal of Public Health Research & Development

First Floor, Punjab National Bank Building Main Dadri Road , Bhangel, Noida - 201 304, Uttar Pradesh Tel: 09891098542 E-mail: editor.ijphrd@gmail.com • www.ijphrd.com

Published, Printed and Owned : Dr. R.K. Sharma Designed and Printed : Thomson Press Published at : First Floor, Punjab National Bank Building, Main Dadri Road, Bhangel, NOIDA - 201 304, Uttar Pradesh Editor : Dr. R.K. Sharma, Mobile: 09891098542